
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

MAY 12, 2014 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 

The City Manager 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your agenda.  Also included are suggested 
or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and 
possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 

GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 

 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 

 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 

 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 

 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



STRATEGIES 

 

 

 

 

TOP 12 
 

2013-2014 
 

“STRATEGY IS ABOUT MAKING CHOICES, TRADE-OFFS; IT’S ABOUT DELIBERATELY CHOOSING TO BE DIFFERENT” 

              - MICHAEL PORTER 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
3 

5 

7 

9 

11 

2 

4 

6 

8 

10 

12 

Attract and retain quality employees 
Investigate programs to improve morale 
 

Improve public perception of the city 
Analyze social media opportunities to connect 

Find a solution to the Downtown 
Development Authority Bond issue 

 

Strengthen Police/Fire  
Consider putting police officers back in schools 
 

Redevelop Site/Office Space 

Evaluate efficiencies of outsourcing services  
consider outsourcing other areas 

 

Improve roads 
Examine budget allocation 

 

Support the Transit Center 
Hold promotional events 

 

Promote Troy  
Find a way to convince youth to stay in Troy 
 

Re-evaluate Vision 2020 

Develop 3-Year budget projections 

Increase lines of communication with Troy Schools  



 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

May 12, 2014 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Fr. Maximus Habib From St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Judge Kirsten Hartig to Present Information on the Upcoming Prescription Heroin 
Addiction Program on May 14, 2014 (Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, Community 
Affairs Director) 1 

C-2 Real Estate Forum Summary (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & 
Community Development) 1 

C-3 Economic Development Update (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic 
Development Specialist) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Adoption of the 2014-15 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 2 



F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 

AND BUSINESSES: 6 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 8 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 8 

H-1 No Postponed Items 8 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – None 8 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority, Planning Commission; b) City Council Nominations –
Historic District Commission 8 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 11 

I-4 Troy Family Daze (Introduced by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, 
Streets and Drains) 11 

I-5 Oakland County One Stop Ready Communities (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, 
Economic Development Specialist) 11 

I-6 Approval of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 
2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist) 12 

I-7 Approval of the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development 
Specialist) 12 

I-8 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & 
Community Development) 13 

I-9 2013/14 Budget Amendment No. 3 – Year-End Budget Adjustments (Introduced 
by:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services) 13 



I-10 Request for Amendment to the Oakland County Solid Waste Plan – Rizzo 
Environmental Services (Introduced by:  Tim Richnak, Department of Public 
Works Director) 13 

I-11 Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions - City Manager and City Attorney 
Evaluations 14 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 14 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 14 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 14 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 14 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – April 14, 2014 .......................................... 15 
b) City Council Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft – April 21, 2014 ....... 15 
c) City Council Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft – April 23, 2014 ....... 15 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None 15 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 15 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Parking Lot Maintenance Program – Boulan Park ............................................. 15 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
New Emergency Response Kits for the Police Department ............................... 15 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 -  Michigan Municipal League 15 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fire 
Station Brick Repair ............................................................................................ 16 

J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Faith 
Lutheran Church – Project No. 13.915.3 16 

J-6 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Fast-D Hoops, Inc. 16 

J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund16 

J-8 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – April 16, 2014 17 

J-9 Amendment #3 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & 
McCliment for Engineering Services for Segment No. 1 – John R, Long Lake to 
Square Lake – Project No. 02.203.5 17 



J-10 Amendment #3 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & 
McCliment for Engineering Services for Segment No. 2 – John R, Square Lake to 
South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 17 

J-11 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 18 

J-12 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Cedar 
Pines Woods Site Condominiums – Project No. 13.919.3 18 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 19 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 19 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time):  None Submitted 19 

a) Film and Video Ordinance Amendment (Introduced by:  Brenda Carter, 
Interim Assistant to the City Manager) ............................................................... 19 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 19 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 19 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 19 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 19 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 19 

O. REPORTS: 19 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 19 

a) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – February 18, 2014 .......................................... 19 
b) Traffic Committee-Final – March 19, 2014 ......................................................... 19 

c) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – March 25, 2014 ............................ 19 
d) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – March 25, 2014 ............................ 19 
e) Planning Commission-Draft – April 8, 2014 ........................................................ 19 
f) Planning Commission-Final – April 8, 2014 ........................................................ 19 

O-2 Department Reports: 19 

a) 2014 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report .......................................... 19 



b) 2014 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service ....................................................... 19 

c) Building Department Activity Report – April, 2014 .............................................. 19 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation: 19 

a) To Mitch Grusnick From Barbara Milbauer Regarding Assistance with a Utility 
Issue ................................................................................................................... 19 

b) To Chief Nelson From Philip and Shirley Grocki Regarding Fire Station 3 
Tour .................................................................................................................... 19 

c) To Chief Mayer From Chief Corrigan O’Donohue – Royal Oak Police 
Department Regarding Assistance with a Case ................................................. 19 

d) To Library Director Cathleen Russ From Susan Hicks Regarding Ace That 
Job Interview Program ........................................................................................ 19 

e) To Chief Mayer From Philip and Shirley Grocki Regarding Winter 2014 Troy 
Citizens Police Academy and Troy Police Department Tour .............................. 19 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 20 

O-5 SEMCOG Report – Residential Construction in Southeast Michigan, 2013 20 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 

TROY BUSINESSES): 20 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 20 

Q-1 No Study Items 20 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 20 

R-1 No Closed Session 20 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 20 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 21 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 

May 19, 2014 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 21 
June 2, 2014 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 21 
June 16, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 21 
July 7, 2014 Regular Meeting ................................................................................ 21 
July 21, 2014 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 21 
August 11, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 21 
August 25, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 21 



September 8, 2014 Regular Meeting ..................................................................... 21 

September 22, 2014 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 21 
October 6, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 21 

October 20, 2014 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 21 
November 10, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 21 
November 24, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 21 
December 1, 2014 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 21 

December 15, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 21 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Fr. Maximus Habib From St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming  
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of            at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of May 12, 2014, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Judge Kirsten Hartig to Present Information on the Upcoming Prescription Heroin 

Addiction Program on May 14, 2014 (Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, Community 
Affairs Director) 

 

C-2 Real Estate Forum Summary (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & 
Community Development) 

 

C-3 Economic Development Update (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic 
Development Specialist) 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Adoption of the 2014-15 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ................................................................................... $29,840,500 
Licenses and Permits .............................................................. 2,230,350 
Federal Grants ................................................................................ 4,000 
State Grants .................................................................................. 38,000 
State Shared Revenues ........................................................... 6,727,000 
Contributions – Local .................................................................... 28,000 
Charges for Services ............................................................... 7,950,000 
Fines and Forfeitures .................................................................. 756,300 
Interest and Rents ................................................................... 1,019,000 
Other Revenue ........................................................................ 1,096,500 
Operating Transfers – In .......................................................... 4,203,300 

  Total Revenues and Transfers .......................................... 53,892,950 
Appropriation of Fund Balance ................................................ 5,622,968 
  

Total Revenues, Transfers and Appropriations         $59,515,918; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2014 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary functions shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

General Government ........................................................ $     7,540,260 
Public Safety  ......................................................................... 31,319,038 
Public Works ............................................................................ 6,273,600 
Community Development......................................................... 3,161,030 
Recreation and Culture ............................................................ 6,921,990 
Operating Transfers Out .......................................................... 4,300,000 

 

Total Expenditures and Transfers  $59,515,918; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ................................................................................... $  6,546,000 
Grants ...................................................................................... 2,311,000 
Contributions – Local .................................................................. 400,000 
Charges for Services .................................................................. 454,000 
Interest and Rents ........................................................................ 67,200 
Operating Transfer – In ........................................................... 6,774,000 

Total Revenues and Transfers ........................................... 16,552,200 
Appropriation of Fund Balance ................................................ 3,212,700 
 

Total Revenues, Transfers and Appropriations    ..        $19,764,900; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2014 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

Finance ...................................................................................... $ 17,000 
City Buildings .............................................................................. 370,000 
Police .......................................................................................... 205,000 
Fire .......................................................................................... 1,960,000 
Streets ................................................................................... 14,027,000 
Public Works .............................................................................. 790,000 
Parks .......................................................................................... 410,000 
Recreation .................................................................................. 403,500 
Nature Center ............................................................................... 50,000 
Library......................................................................................... 788,000 
Historic Village  ........................................................................... 248,000 
Operating Transfer ..................................................................... 496,400 
 

Total Expenditures ............................................................ $19,764,900; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and seven 
one-hundredths (1.07) mills on the 2014 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,446,000; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Library Fund shall be seventy one-
hundredths (0.70) mills on the 2014 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Library Fund shall be appropriated $3,582,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of seventy one-hundredths (0.70) 
mills on the 2014 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,105,600; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2014/15 budget document: 

  

Major Road Fund ................................................................. $  4,025,000  
Local Road Fund ....................................................................  2,032,000 
Drug Forfeiture Fund .................................................................. 182,000 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ............................... 157,300 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................................ 950,300 
Proposal B Debt Fund ............................................................. 1,334,300 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................................ 753,100 
Series 2013 DDA Debt Fund ...................................................... 958,900 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund........................................... 1,841,151 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ................................................ 1,106,219 
Aquatic Center Fund ................................................................... 476,500 
Sanitary Sewer Fund ............................................................. 14,745,131 
Water Fund ............................................................................ 20,248,461 
Building Operations ................................................................. 1,051,260 
Fleet Maintenance Fund .......................................................... 5,462,540 
Information Technology ........................................................... 2,292,130 
Unemployment Insurance Fund .................................................. 300,000 
Worker’s Compensation Fund .................................................... 377,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ................................................ 3,716,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the three-year budget (2015/16 – 2016/17) for the General 
Fund, Refuse Fund, Library Fund, General Debt Service Fund and Capital Operating Fund be 
approved based on the following revenues and expenditures: 
 
General Fund Operating                        2015/16            2016/17 

 
Taxes ....................................................................... $30,247,000 .....$30,661,500 
Licenses and Permits .................................................. 2,210,650 .........2,141,850 
Federal Grants .................................................................... 6,000 ................6,000  
State Grants ...................................................................... 40,000 ..............40,000 
State Shared Revenues ............................................... 6,744,000 .........6,744,000 
Contributions – Local ........................................................ 28,000 ..............28,000 
Charges for Services ................................................... 7,479,500 .........7,519,900 
Fines and Forfeitures ...................................................... 756,300 ............756,300 
Interest and Rents ....................................................... 1,022,000 .........1,025,300 
Other Revenue ............................................................ 1,107,700 .........1,119,100 
Operating Transfers – In .............................................. 4,241,700 .........4,304,100 

Total Revenues & Transfers ................................... 53,882,850 .......54,346,050 
Appropriation of Fund Balance .................................... 4,533,444 .........1,687,932 
 

Total Revenue, Transfers and Appropriations .... $58,416,294 .....$56,033,982; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating fund shall be six and 
fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2015 and 2016 taxable valuation; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

                                                 2015/16            2016/17 
 

General Government .............................................. $   7,496,060 .... $   7,576,810 
Public Safety ............................................................. 31,493,494 ....... 31,763,623 
Public Works ............................................................... 6,378,700 ......... 6,430,800 
Community Development ............................................ 3,188,530 ......... 3,199,350 
Recreation and Culture ................................................ 7,009,510 ......... 7,063,399 
Operating Transfers Out .............................................. 2,850,000 ....................... 0 

Total Expenditures ................................................ $58,416,294 ..... $56,033,982; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues and appropriation fund 
balance of the Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

                                               2015/16             2016/17 
 

Taxes ........................................................................ $ 6,639,000 ...... $ 6,731,000 
Grants .......................................................................... 2,348,000 ......... 1,350,000 
Contributions - Local ....................................................... 200,000 ............ 200,000 
Charges for Services ...................................................... 454,000 ............ 294,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................ 67,200 .............. 67,200 
Operating Transfer-In .................................................. 4,863,000 ......... 2,235,500 

Total Revenues and Transfers ............................... 14,571,200 ....... 10,877,700 
Appropriation of Fund Balance .................................... 2,123,000 ......... 2,741,300 
 

Total Revenues, Transfers and Appropriations .. $16,694,200 ..... $13,619,000; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2015 and 2016 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

                                              2015/16             2016/17 
 

Finance ......................................................................... $  17,000 .......... $  17,000 
City Buildings .................................................................. 235,000 ............ 540,000 
Police .............................................................................. 320,000 ............ 242,500 
Fire .............................................................................. 2,150,000 ............ 790,000 
Streets ....................................................................... 11,387,000 ....... 10,114,000 
Public Works .................................................................. 612,000 ............ 435,000 
Parks .............................................................................. 510,000 ............ 420,000 
Recreation ...................................................................... 403,000 ....................... 0 
Library............................................................................. 710,000 ............ 760,000 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 6 - 

Historic Village .................................................................. 75,000 ..............25,000 
Operating Transfer-Out ................................................... 275,200 ............275,500 
 

Total Expenditures................................................. $16,694,200 .....$13,619,000; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and seven 
one-hundredths (1.07) mills on the 2015 taxable valuation and the 2016 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,544,960 in 
2015/16 and $4,636,410 in 2016/17; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Library Fund shall be seventy one-
hundredths (0.70) mills on the 2015 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Library Fund shall be appropriated $3,527,100 in 
2015/16; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of seventy one-hundredths (0.70) 
mills on the 2015 and sixty one-hundredths (0.60) mills on the 2016 taxable valuation for the 
General Debt Service Fund.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,097,000 in 2015/16 and $3,036,600 in 2016/17. 
 
Yes:       
No:       

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the 
Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 7 - 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If 
the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required 
to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the 
meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, 
Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 8 - 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority, Planning Commission; b) City Council Nominations –

Historic District Commission 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City 
Council Meeting for action:  
 
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 3 

Brake Dan 4/18/2016 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 

Dziurman Theodore 3/8/2014 4/30/2015 BCBA exp 1/1/2015 

Kornacki Rosemary 12/12/2015 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 

Swartz Robert D. 7/25/2013 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 9 - 

Vacancy   04/30/2016 
Bruce Wilberding’s unexpired 
term. 

Vassallo Joseph J. 12/6/2013 4/30/2015  
 

 

Nominations to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2016  

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy-Bruce Wilberding’s unexpired 

term. (Resigned 4/11/2014) 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Dan Brake 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Rosemary Kornacki 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Robert Swartz 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Noble Carolyn 10/10/2015  
 

 

 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor 
9 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 2 

Boudon Frank 5/15/2015 7/31/2014 Student 

Edmunds Donald L. 11/15/2012 12/31/2016 EDC exp 4/30/3014;  

Gottlieb Steve 11/8/2015 12/31/2016  

Hutson Michael W. 9/4/2014 12/31/2015 Sust Design Rev Comm-Ad Hoc 

Krent Thomas G. 9/20/2015 12/31/2016 PC Rep to ZBA exp 12/31/2013 

Sanzica Philip 9/24/2014 12/31/2015 Alt. PC Rep on ZBA 

Schepke Gordon 11/16/2013 12/31/2014  

Strat Thomas 11/16/2013 12/31/2014 Sust Design Rev Comm-Ad Hoc 

Tagle John J. 9/12/2014 12/31/2015  

Vacancy   12/31/2014 Robert Schultz resigned 3/25/2014 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 10 - 

Nominations to the Planning Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  12/31/2014  

 
Term currently held by: VACANT - Robert Schultz resigned 

3/25/2014. 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name 
App Resume 

Expire 
Notes 2 

Apahidean Ollie 11/22/2015  

Binkowski Sarah E. 1/16/2015  

Huber Robert M. 3/1/2015 Student 

Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 Liquor Advisory Comm. exp. 1/31/2016 

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 12/12/2015 
P&R Bd exp 9/30/2015; ZBA (Alt.) exp 
1/31/2015 

Lambert Dave 3/10/2016 ZBA exp. 4/30/2014 
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) City Council Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 

Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017  

Knight Barbara  3/1/2015  

McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 5/15/2015  

Partlan Ann 2/24/2013 3/1/2014 Historical Society Recommendation 

Petrulis Al  3/1/2017  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 11 - 

Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 5/15/2015 Historical Society Recommendation 

Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 3/1/2016  
 

 

Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  3/1/2017  

 Term currently held by: Ann Partlan 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Viola Vincent 6/13/2014  
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 
 

I-4 Troy Family Daze (Introduced by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, 
Streets and Drains) 

 

(This Item is being brought forward for City Council consideration.  A resolution may be 

added, if needed.) 
 

I-5 Oakland County One Stop Ready Communities (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, 
Economic Development Specialist) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County Executive L. Brooks Patterson established the One Stop Ready 
pilot program in January of 2012 to help local communities assess their strengths as an 
economic asset, follow their vision for the future, and empower leadership and staff to take 
action in order to be ready for economic and community development opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The One Stop Ready program is a community focused economic development 
program built on self-evaluation, information sharing and outstanding customer service; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy commits to work together with county staff to respond quickly and 
efficiently to economic development opportunities that strengthen the tax base and improve the 
quality of life for residents, businesses and governments; and 
 
WHEREAS, The county is encouraging communities to participate in the One Stop Ready 
program to collaborate with the county and fellow communities for the purpose of improving 
economic development readiness; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy wishes to join the One Stop Ready program, will have appropriate 
elected and appointed officials, and appropriate staff members sign a participation poster, and 
will designate an individual to be the local liaison to the One Stop Ready program; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the joining of the 
Oakland County One Stop Ready program. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-6 Approval of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 

2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2014/15 budget; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2014 through June 
30, 2015. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-7 Approval of the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed Fiscal 

Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development 
Specialist) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee has adopted 
and recommends that City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2014/15 budget; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Joint Local 
Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 13 - 

I-8 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Proposed Fiscal 

Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & 
Community Development) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2014/15 budget; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2014 through June 30, 
2015. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-9 2013/14 Budget Amendment No. 3 – Year-End Budget Adjustments (Introduced by:  
Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES 2013-14 Budget Amendment No. 3 as 

submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-10 Request for Amendment to the Oakland County Solid Waste Plan – Rizzo 

Environmental Services (Introduced by:  Tim Richnak, Department of Public 
Works Director) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has experienced significant changes in population, employment, 
waste generation, landfill capacity and recycling technology and the plan no longer reflects the 
current conditions in Oakland County; 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS that Oakland County fully update the 
2000 Solid Waste Management Plan in accordance with State law. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 14 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Oakland County BEGINS this review and update without 
delay after the current amendment process is completed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-11 Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions - City Manager and City Attorney 

Evaluations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session on _________________, 
2014 at ______ pm, in the Council Board Room, pursuant to MCL 15. 268 (a) and (h) (MCL 
15.243 (g)) for the evaluation of the City Manager.   
 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session on ________________, 
2014 at ______ pm, in the Council Board Room, pursuant to MCL 15. 268 (a) and (h) (MCL 
15.243 (g)) for the evaluation of the City Attorney.   
 
Yes:       
No:       

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – April 14, 2014 

b) City Council Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft – April 21, 2014 

c) City Council Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft – April 23, 2014  
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Parking 

Lot Maintenance Program – Boulan Park 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to complete an asphalt 
overlay to Boulan Park’s entrance drive and west parking lot to the low bidder meeting 
specifications, Asphalt Specialties, Inc. of Pontiac Michigan, for an estimated total cost of 
$146,707.75, not to exceed budgetary limitations, at the unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened April 17, 2014; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – New 

Emergency Response Kits for the Police Department 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide new Emergency 
Response Kits for the Police Department to the low bidder meeting specifications, Protective 
Solutions, Inc., of Milford, MI, for an estimated total cost of $19,249.60 at unit prices contained 

in the bid tabulation opened May 1, 2014; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 -  Michigan Municipal League 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 16 - 

 

RESOLVED, Payment is AUTHORIZED for annual membership dues to the Michigan 
Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2014 through April 30, 2015, in the amount of 
$11,886. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fire 

Station Brick Repair 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to furnish all equipment, 
material and labor for brick repair at the City of Troy Fire Stations and the Police and Fire 
Training Center as specified; for an estimated total cost of $15,500.00; and, if necessary, to 
complete unforeseen damage if a problem area were to be exposed and identified, at the low 
bid hourly rate of $48.50 per hour not to exceed budgetary limitations; to Arisco Contracting 
Group, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 30, 

2014; a copy which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Faith 

Lutheran Church – Project No. 13.915.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 

Agreement) between the City of Troy and Faith Lutheran Church is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of a public sidewalk and detention pond, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 

AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-6 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Fast-D Hoops, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Fast-D Hoops, Inc., 
asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the 
purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City Management. 
 

J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 17 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 

AUTHORIZES the City of Troy’s Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions, to seek reimbursement 
for an amount not-to-exceed $11,418.06, from Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund for the 
expenditures incurred while instituting proactive public health measures used to reduce the 
population of mosquitoes in the environment. 
 

J-8 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – April 16, 2014 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 

Item # 3  Request for Traffic Control – Ogden at Keats 
 

RESOLVED, That the intersection of Ogden and Keats be MODIFIED from NO Traffic Control 
to a STOP sign on the Keats southbound approach to Ogden. 
 

Item # 4  Request for Removal of No Parking Zone – 1914 Witherbee 
 
RESOLVED, That the No Parking restrictions, along the south side of Witherbee, between 

Graefield and Eton, be REMOVED. 
 

Item # 5  Request for Traffic Control – Huntsford at Finch 
 

RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES BE MADE at the intersection of Huntsford and Finch. 
 

J-9 Amendment #3 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & 

McCliment for Engineering Services for Segment No. 1 – John R, Long Lake to 

Square Lake – Project No. 02.203.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Third Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 02-
5178/S1, between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) to update the 
Environmental Assessment for the reconstruction of John R, between Long Lake and Square 

Lake is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not-to-exceed $29,095.57, 

and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the amendment, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 

J-10 Amendment #3 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & 

McCliment for Engineering Services for Segment No. 2 – John R, Square Lake to 

South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 18 - 

RESOLVED, That the Third Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 02-
5179/S1, between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) to update the 
Environmental Assessment for the reconstruction of John R, between Square Lake and South 

Boulevard is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not-to-exceed 

$35,561.25, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the amendment, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 

J-11 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.167 of Chapter 5 and Section 6 of Chapter 20 of the Ordinance Code of 
the City of Troy require that delinquent payments and invoices, as of April 1

st
 of each year, shall 

be reported and the City Council shall certify the same to the City Assessor who shall assess 
the same on the next annual City Tax Roll, to be collected as provided for collection of City 
Taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 10.8 of the Troy City Charter provides for the collection of delinquent 
invoices through property tax collection procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, A list of individual properties is on file in the Office of the Treasurer and comprises 
a summation of totals as follows: 
 
 General Fund Invoices 
  Including Penalties    $   47,285.37 
  Special Assessments  
  Including Penalties & Interest            578.76 
 Water & Sewer Accounts 
  Including Penalties       872,392.57 
 
 Total                 $ 920,256.70 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby AUTHORIZED to 
assess these delinquent accounts on the annual City Tax Roll. 
 

J-12 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Cedar 

Pines Woods Site Condominiums – Project No. 13.919.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Trowbridge Homes Construction LLC, is hereby 

APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, paving, sidewalks, 
soil erosion and landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 

City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 19 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
a) Film and Video Ordinance Amendment (Introduced by:  Brenda Carter, Interim Assistant 

to the City Manager) 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – February 18, 2014 
b) Traffic Committee-Final – March 19, 2014 
c) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – March 25, 2014 
d) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – March 25, 2014 
e) Planning Commission-Draft – April 8, 2014 
f) Planning Commission-Final – April 8, 2014 
 

O-2 Department Reports:   
a) 2014 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report 
b) 2014 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service  
c) Building Department Activity Report – April, 2014  
 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Mitch Grusnick From Barbara Milbauer Regarding Assistance with a Utility Issue 
b) To Chief Nelson From Philip and Shirley Grocki Regarding Fire Station 3 Tour 
c) To Chief Mayer From Chief Corrigan O’Donohue – Royal Oak Police Department 

Regarding Assistance with a Case 
d) To Library Director Cathleen Russ From Susan Hicks Regarding Ace That Job Interview 

Program 
e) To Chief Mayer From Philip and Shirley Grocki Regarding Winter 2014 Troy Citizens 

Police Academy and Troy Police Department Tour  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 20 - 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

O-5 SEMCOG Report – Residential Construction in Southeast Michigan, 2013 
 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 

Q-1 No Study Items 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 12, 2014 

 

- 21 - 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
May 19, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

June 2, 2014 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

June 16, 2014 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

July 7, 2014 ...................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

July 21, 2014 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

August 11, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

August 25, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 8, 2014 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 22, 2014 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

October 6, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

October 20, 2014 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

November 10, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

November 24, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 1, 2014 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 15, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 
 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

 
 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
  

Date:             May 07, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 

Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
Maggie Hughes, Management Assistant 

   
Subject: Executive summary of the Real Estate Forum 
 

 
 
The City of Troy hosted a Real Estate Forum on Tuesday, April 29, 2014 as part of the public 
engagement process for the Master Plan update. 
 
Over 60 community leaders, business owners, real estate developers, real estate brokers, and 
interested citizens participated in providing future direction of key economic areas of the city, 
specifically Maple Road, Big Beaver, North Troy, and Rochester Road. 
 
Using a question and answer format, a panel of real estate experts was invited to share their 
understanding of current and future market trends, development constraints, and opportunities. 
 
The next steps for the five-year update of the Master Plan include: 

1. Create a portal for Master Plan process 
2. Hold a subdivision/Neighborhood Association Forum 
3. Hold a sub-area forums (Big Beaver, Maple Road, Rochester Road, and North Troy corridors) 
4. City Council and Planning Commission joint meeting 
5. Public Forum 
6. Planning Commission Meetings 
7. City Council Meeting 

 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02



City Manager’s Office 
500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084   

(248) 524-3330                        

 
 
 

 

 

 

 ...Today The City of Tomorrow... 

www.troymi.gov 
 

TROY REAL ESTATE FORUM 
Executive Summary 

INTRODUCTION 
 
As part of the public engagement process for the master plan update, the City of Troy hosted a Real Estate 
Forum on Tuesday, April 29 2014 at the Troy Community Center.   Over 60 community leaders, business 
owners, real estate developers, and interested citizens participated in a productive dialogue regarding the 
future direction of key economic areas of the city, specifically Maple Road, Big Beaver, North Troy, and 
Rochester Road.  This goal was achieved through a small group SWOT (Strengths Weaknesses Opportunities 
Threats) analysis and panel discussion (summary in appendix). During the SWOT exercise, the 60+ 
participants were presented with target area snapshots and were asked to identify and describe the assets 
and challenges of these four areas. Participants also offered strategies for reinforcing assets, re-envisioning 
challenges, and ultimately attracting new development that is right for the corridor and the community. 
Using a question and answer format, the real estate experts were then invited to share their understandings 
of current and future market trends and development constraints and opportunities. The panel included: 

• Alan Kiriluk , Chairman, Kirco & Troy DDA 
• Mark Nickita, President, Archive Design Studio 
• Tracy Wick, Broker, Coldwell Banker 
• Steve Robinson, Principal, Versa Development 
• J.C. Cataldo, Partner, RePlace Development Solutions 

 
KEY FINDINGS 
 
The Mayor, panel members, and participants emphasized the need for collaboration between city 
departments and community stakeholders, as well as a coordinated vision that is responsive to market 
demands and focused on quality of life. By building on the unique strengths of each area, activating 
established nodes and reinforcing new development with pedestrian amenities, transit connections, and a 
desirable mix of uses those sites that were once viewed as challenges will appear as opportunities for 
reinvestment.  

• Density is key 
• Plan should be market driven and forward thinking 
• Transportation and pedestrian improvements are important 
• Zoning should align with the Master Plan and offer flexibility to encourage the right development at 

the right time 
• North/South corridors provide important connections between the target areas and adjacent 

communities 
• Residential development should attract and accommodate different ages, lifestyles, and income 

levels  
• New developments should be connected 
• Strategic, tactical, and creative placemaking strategies can activated node 

 



Troy Real Estate Forum Executive Summary  Page 2 

The following is a summary of observations and recommendations for the four target areas. 
 
MAPLE ROAD 
 
Maple Road provides a great central location with a well-established traffic flow and proximity to residential 
areas. The Transit Center, Midtown Square, and new MJR theater can serve as anchors for the corridor and 
should be reinforced by complementary uses including retail, dining, and multifamily residential.  Industrial 
and office spaces offer architecturally unique redevelopment opportunities and could foster a live/work 
culture if marketed to local startups, small tech companies, or creative design firms with a need for light 
manufacturing facilities or collaborative work spaces.  
 
Access, connectivity, and convenient parking are major challenges for sites along Maple Road. Strip 
development and industrial uses are very segregated and there is no connection to the surrounding 
residential communities and current business sector.  While the zoning ordinance provides flexibility 
through the Sustainable Development Project (SDP) option, the city staff may need to educate potential 
investors on how to take advantage of this development tool and communicate the overall vision for Maple 
Road.  
 
Panel Reaction 
 
Right now Big Beaver is the preferred destination for business, so how do we provide similar experiences, 
amenities, and connectivity on Maple Road? We must find a way to communicate the vision of Maple Road.  
It’s not just about filling up the empty space. 
 
Maple Road is going to need destination oriented uses to attract people. The city needs to deliver a lifestyle 
for companies and residents to encourage investment. 
 
Recommendations 

• Think creatively about attracting companies and investment 
• Encourage circulation planning that integrates public transit stops and connects pedestrian nodes to 

greenway trails and residential sidewalks  
• Cluster pedestrian activities through redevelopment of underutilized properties 
• Support mixed-use development with strong ties to the Transit Center and transit-oriented 

development  
• Expand SmartZone and establish an overall vision for Maple Road 
• Consider transit impact study for I-75 access onto Maple Road 

 
BIG BEAVER 
 
Big Beaver is a premier destination for business, shopping, and entertainment. It is home to the Somerset 
Collection, Troy City Hall campus, and Troy Community Center, and a number of corporate headquarters. Big 
Beaver has excellent appeal internationally and provides a major draw for the community. The Big Beaver 
streetscape improvements give the corridor identity and continue to attract new pedestrian oriented 
development. In this investment rich environment, challenges such as the vacant Kmart Headquarters and 
large expanses of surface parking lot are seen as opportunities for development.  
 
Despite improvements, Big Beaver is several hundred feet wide, with heavy traffic and lack of alternative 
transit, which makes the corridor unfriendly to pedestrians moving between buildings or crossing. More 



Troy Real Estate Forum Executive Summary  Page 3 

improvements are necessary to zoning, parking, and building requirements to create more restrict mixed-
use development. Sites are large and not well connected.  
 
Panel Reaction 
 
Development is still in the transition phase and can’t justify the new construction of vertical mixed use 
development projects with retail on the first floor and residential above. We’ve got to get the economics 
right.  
 
The focus on streetscape and walkability is ongoing. The Troy DDA and Mayor are marketing it as we speak. 
We’re bringing in hotels and restaurant operators. The traffic improvement coalition from the State of 
Michigan is looking at ways to create safe crossing across Big Beaver.  
 
Recommendations 

• Establish pedestrian connections between corporate offices and corridor amenities 
• Encourage parking lot infill development and residential mid/high rises 
• Provide entertainment for young adults to develop new community lifestyle 
• Create environment that fosters the use of public transit along the corridor Big Beaver 
• Consider increasing depth of Big Beaver zone in the shallow areas to increase potential 

developments 
 
NORTH TROY 
 
North Troy is primarily office use with excellent freeway access to I-75 and close proximity to the employee 
base. Large setbacks and wooded areas provide a desirable campus setting for certain sites. Natural features 
provide amenity and may help attract mixed-use/multi-family development, if desired by the community. 
Existing corporate companies may look to build or expand in under-utilized areas.  
 
North Troy lacks an identity and office space is slow to fill resulting in high vacancy. Regional access is good 
but internal connectivity and pedestrian access is poor.  The area is dominated by cars with no alternative 
mobility options or usable green space. It also lacks entertainment for younger families. Road repair around 
the area needs to be addressed.  
 
Panel Reaction  
 
Downtown Detroit has been experimenting with pop-ups and initiating corporate programs to get 
employees out of the office. High quality food trucks provide indirect competition to brick and mortar 
establishment. Ultimately it’s about options and getting people exposed to business. 
 
Right now North Troy is just an employment center. It needs uses and amenities to complement the office 
uses and to keep people around after 5 pm. 
 
Recommendations 

• Establish more convenience uses such as restaurants, retail, and daycare 
• Experiment with tactical placemaking, such as food trucks and pedestrian improvements, to provide 

more amenities to workforce  
• Increase flexibility of current zoning to widen development of potential uses  
• Encourage more parking structures 



Troy Real Estate Forum Executive Summary  Page 4 

• Encourage quality for drainage and green space 
 
ROCHESTER ROAD 
 
Rochester Road offers a convenient economic node close to residential neighborhoods.  It is primarily 
service and retail use. The corridor could be marketed as the “Entrepreneurial Center” for the city as it 
provides an incubator for small start-up businesses. 
 
Rochester Road has a split personality. The traffic is trying to get through the area as fast as possible, yet the 
businesses and number of driveways is calling for a slower pace. The area is dominated by shallow, narrow 
lots with poor access and inconsistent setbacks. Excessive signage and inconsistent façade design result in 
the perception of visual clutter.  New development may require the consolidation of parcels, but there are 
concerns from the community about increasing building heights where adjacent to residential properties.  
 
Panel Reaction 
 
There needs to be a conscious effort in branding Rochester Road and making it a notable place. Streetscape 
should not be underestimated. Sidewalk connections and pedestrian access must be accommodated in new 
developments. In some ways infrastructure can be used to mask the visual clutter and give the corridor a 
unified image. 
 
Recommendations 

• Keep integrity of residential as more commercial frontage is developed  
• Reface on retail and create more pedestrian friendly intersections 
• Clean corridor/remove and replace obsolete buildings find incentives/funding for redevelopment 
• Reduce setback and parking associated with strip malls 
• Develop retail and restaurants that reflect the needs of nearby residents 
• Encourage senior housing and compatible uses  

 
APPENDICES 

A. List of Attendees 
B. SWOT Comment Card Activity Summation 
C. Real Estate Forum Minutes 

 
 



Name Company Title 
Antone, Anthony Kojaian Management Corp Vice President, Development 

Beltramini, Robin 
Local Development Finance 
Authority 

 Brown, Doug ASTI Environmental 
 Buechner, Toby Troy Gymnastics Owner 

Clarke, Jim Robertson Homes President 
Confer, Clint Signature Associates Industrial Division 
Drake, Lynn Compass Commercial President 
Dubeauclard, Antoine Media Genesis President 
Edmunds, Donald Planning Commission 

 Ervin III, Frank Magna Manager, Government Affairs 
Frederick, Brad Media Genesis Founder and CEO 
Friedman, David (maybe) Friedman President and CEO 
Gagniuk, David Friedman Associate, Brokerage Services 
Gell, Jared Mid-American Real Estate 

 Gershenson, Bruce Gershenson Realty & Investment 
 Gitre, Cary Landus 
 Grenville, David Bank of America Senior Vice President 

He, Jason Detroit Chinese Business Assoication Vice President 
Henderson, Dave City Council 

 Henry, Robert Detroit Medical Center 
 Hill, Geoffrey Newmark Grubb Knight Frank Senior Managing Director 

Hunter, Dan Oakland County Manager of Planning and Econ Dev 
Keisling, Larry Downtown Development Authority 

 Kincaid, Joel MJR Theatres 
 King, Michael Flagstar Bank 
 Kirk, Michael Neumann/Smith Architecture Principal  

Koch, Lance Granite City Managing Partner 
Kornacki, Rosemary Brownfield Development Authority 

 Lasky,  Thomas Forum Group Principal  
Leibovitz, Arie Ari-el Enterprises, Inc. President 
Leibovitz, Scott Ari-el Enterprises, Inc. 

 Light, Peter Oakland Mall General Manager 
Loughrin, Rachel Oakland County Business Development 
Loughrin, Tim Robertson Homes Mgr of Land Acquisition and Dev 
Magnum, David Gibbs Planning Group 

 Miceli, Tara Walsh Institute Director 
Michalek, Amy Meritor, Inc. Facilty Space Planner/Proj Coord 
Novak, Suzanne   Resident 



Osiecki, Matthew CBRE Senior Associate 
Pangle, Vince Strategic Property Services, LLC 

 Pawlowski, Kristopher Signature Associates Sale Associate 
Reddy, Ganesh Mamta Holdings, LLC 

 Redmer, Dennis MJR Theatres VP of Operations 
Rogers, Ken Automation Alley Exec Director, Deputy County Exec 
Ruppe Jr, Peter +1 Peter P. Ruppe, Inc. President 
Sanzica, Philip Planning Commission 

 Sherizen, Eugene Mini Storage 
 Slater, Dane Mayor 
 Snyder, Thomas Strategic Property Services, LLC VP Business Development 

Spanos, Irene 
Local Development Finance 
Authority 

 Strat, Thomas Planning Commission 
 Suardini, Josh Etkin Equities LEED AP, Vice President 

Swanson, Duane Somerset Inn Director of Operations 
Swartz, Robert Brownfield Development Authority 

 Tagle, John Planning Commission 
 Thomas, Janice Magna 
 Topouzian, Ara Troy Chamber of Commerce President/CEO 

Vassallo, Joseph Brownfield Development Authority 
 Ziecik, Michael Forum Group Principal  

 



TROY REAL ESTATE FORUM 
SWOT Comment Card Activity Summation 

 
MAPLE ROAD CORRIDOR 
 
Opportunities 

• Exit at I-75 onto Maple Road 
• Potential to add to restaurants in Eaton district to create a critical mass of dining 

destinations 
• Good traffic, great central location, proximity to residential base.   
• There are many obsolete buildings (that require variances, challenges, costs). Taking 

these from eye sores to viable buildable sites would help. 
• Variety of industrial and residential  
• Great traffic, great central location, proximity to residential base 
• Oakland Mall is probably functionally obsolete. How do we preserve/redevelop it? 

Should there be a proactive place in place? 
• Already has a cool tech space. 
• Redevelop industrial sites currently zoned office. 
• More connections for pedestrians, transit, roads. Mixed uses including entertainment to 

feed off theater. 
• More mixed use, more entertainment. 
• Variety of industrial and residential, more entertainment to mesh with MJR. 
• Try to build on the theater with bars and restaurants in the adjacent area 

 
Challenges 

• Intersection at John R/14 Mile has no turn around or way of heading N S E W at that 
light 

• Functionally, parking is mostly in the rear of most of the industrial buildings which is a 
deterrent. Need to allow additional parking instead of perpendicular parking along the 
side (in the easements) and in the rear. Mainly, for customers. 

• Midtown square needs to improve connections to on-site residents, nearby 
neighborhoods, and transit center. 

• There is too much office/industrial along Maple Road and not enough demand for those 
uses.  

• Lack of available functional industrial building in Troy, no industrial land, older building 
stock with obsolesce issues. 

• Storm water management – create areas for water to go. 
• Obsolete building variety of industrial and residential odd, odd use mix. 
• There needs to be more clarity for the type of uses permitted on Maple. We have lost an 

opportunity with a user that got scared off due to the direction given by Planning 
although the use was a permitted use. But it was a change of prior use in the building. 
The building has been vacant for 5 years. 

• Finding a use for the vacant land just south of Troy Racquet Club 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix B - 2 
 

• Ugly road scape, set back from road, odd use mix, no consistent walkability, industrial 
view 

• Strip development and industrial, seems to be two distinct areas east and west 
• Need vacant land identified for industrial build to start. Options for front loaded truck 

well – currently not allowed. Loan fund offer for more uses for renovations. 
 

Strategies 
• Enhance public transit points; create stronger, longer connections to local businesses 

and tie into adjacent neighborhoods (Clawson)  
• Make walkable; enhance pedestrian experience  
• Clustering pedestrian activities through redevelopment of underutilized properties 
• Develop additional transit networks emanating from existing sites and bus routes to 

include self-guided (Smartphone apps), bicycle, jogging, and running. Trails/tours of 
surrounding neighborhoods/districts 

• Study ways to leverage “transit-oriented development” to emanate from the new 
intermodal sites. Not easy due to land-locked nature, but core for linkages and 
compatible uses that can grow around the shopping center to provide vibrant mixed-use 
community going forward 

• Research and Develop small manufacturing but very cutting edge work. Ideal corridor 
for R and D advanced manufacturing.  

• To change the character and increase the likelihood of redevelopment of the Maple 
Road corridor the zoning along Maple Road needs to contemplate more mixed use with 
the ability to have commercial and other uses similar to Big Beaver zoning. Would like to 
see redevelopment of some older sites on Maple to companion the new MJR such a 
restaurants, coffee, shops, etc.  

• Redevelop existing industrial stock with mixed use, residential, etc. to attract younger 
generation. 

• Incentives to redevelop/more redevelopment. Focus on transit center 
• Dress it up with green space, transit 
• Feed off transit center, potential for high-end airport business park (think Scottsdale 

Airpark). 
• Provide incentives for redevelopment of existing properties. 
• Pilot demonstration project to target possibilities for new developments 
• Expand SmartZone to encourage more tech development. Add form-based 

redevelopment between Livernoise and John R. – would allow both residential and 
some retail. 

• It is time to become more restrictive on the uses in this corridor, more specifically on 
the Maple Road frontage in the Transit Center. It seems as though, given the current 
economy, it is the time to confine uses to true mixed use developments along this 
area/corridor consistent with the vision of the future land use plan, i.e. retail, service, 
low density office, etc. The idea of allowing a permissive approval for almost anything in 
that corridor seems to conflict with the idea of the true mixed uses for a transit area.  

 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix B - 3 
 

BIG BEAVER CORRIDOR 
 
Opportunities 

• Golden Mile, viewed as corporate headquarters. Has great appeal internationally, 
centrally located in the region. Ideal. 

• Somerset collection – regional draw to community 
• Great traffic, historic shopping corridor, prominent address, central location. 
• Big Beaver is the heart of Troy with great new development. 
• Big Beaver is several hundred feet wide and lined with multiple landmark building set far 

back on their sites and surrounded by parking. 
• Troy High School reputation 
• At the entrance to the Automation Alley Technology Park, place an electronic digital sign 

identifying the park. With the traffic count on Big Beaver take advantage of identifying 
AA.  

• Kmart should provide for mid rise life style condos. 
• Signage – improve wayfinding 
• Kmart Headquarters 
• International presence, build on it! Market it as THE international center for the state of 

Michigan.  
• Kmart site 
• On Big Beaver at the light on Bellingham, allow vehicles to cross on a red light form Big 

Beaver onto Bellingham without waiting for a green light. Now there is a sign preventing 
that.  

• Apartment/condo opportunities along Big Beaver. 
• Continue mixed-use along corridor with more entertainment. 
• Continue to invest in infrastructure.  

 
Challenges 

• Heavy traffic, lack of transit, automotive centric. 
• How do you make the large parking lots and high rises pedestrian friendly? 
• How to envision this as a downtown/walkable corridor? 
• Every business “thinks” they need to be on Big Beaver and unsure that needs to be the 

case. How are we working to help identify business locations and properly assessing 
proper locations? 

• Can the Big Beaver model be duplicated in other areas or is the limitation due to the 
soon-to-be overdevelopment of this area? 

• 50% visibility into the building on the ground floor may not be realistic depending on the 
occupant. This seems to be workable for retail/office but may not be reasonable for 
other uses (i.e. a hospital) 

• The Big Beaver plan requires “entrances” on the Big Beaver side with the building set a 
maximum of 10’ back from the property line. If parking is behind the building, who will 
use these front doors? There are no “unloading passenger lanes” along Big Beaver. 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix B - 4 
 

• Educate developers, architects, owners, etc. about district requirements for 
transparency 

• Needs walkability, has the start for it but needs more 
• “Eat the elephant” of the former Kmart HQ site by allowing to “eat it in one bite at a 

time” through some “form-based zoning” promoting “mix-use”.  
• Please describe, in detail, how the new pedestrian oriented developments (ex. PNC 

Center to new retail across the street) is intended to work and keep people safe.  
• Too many parking lots, reduce and develop green space or small scale housing. 
• Road dominated pattern. 
• Mixed-use is great, but it is NOT essential that strip retail be involved in every 

development  
 

Strategies 
• Continue parking lot infill development, bike path to shopping, Kmart site improvement, 

inject high rise residential above retail on Big Beaver. 
• Is the solution to bring in some high rise residential – or low rise residential fronting on 

Big Beaver?  
• Connect the great companies and their work force to each other through the sidewalks. 
• Provide entertainment for young adults 
• Target age targeted projects to Troy Athens HS vs. Troy HS, which is more desirable for 

young families, and provide more Troy HS transitions opportunities.   
• Encourage pedestrian traffic by slowing down street traffic and adding more cross 

walks.  
• Master Plan should acknowledge potential for east/west mass transit line and cluster 

development at reasonable nodes 
• Develop “nodes of interest” with signage – interpretive stones, areas to pause/sit and 

canopied buffers to encourage pedestrians to exist in this strongly automotive corridor 
• Bus/trolley service up and down Big Beaver to service all the shopping experiences. 

Cross walks from north to south. Getting east and west under I-75. 
• Consider increasing depth of Big Beaver zone in the shallow areas to increase potential 

developments.  
• Encourage alternative forms of transportation – bicycle friendly alternatives 
• Youth-oriented development that can incrementally develop to provide a lifestyle. 
• Expand SmartZone to encourage more tech development 
• Stay the course with Big Beaver district requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix B - 5 
 

NORTH TROY 
 
Opportunities 
• Easy on/off of I-75 with close proximity to employee base. 
• Great freeway access. 
• I-75 access. 
• Wooded underdeveloped properties – maintain and do not clear cut for new development.  
• Opportunity for mixed-use/multi-family development to increase residential opportunities 

for nearby workers. 
• Strong engineering presence there – it could become the “Automotive Engineering” center 

for the city.  
• Redevelopment opportunity at Long Lake and Crooks, on both the west and the east side of 

Crooks. The east side of Crooks is under-utilized, and the west side is vacant.  
• Any interested corporate companies looking to build, or expand, regarding northwest or 

northeast Crooks and Long Lake? 
 

Challenges 
• Too suburban looking, auto focused. No transportation or walkability and lack of green 

space. 
• Office vacancies slow to fill. 
• Suburban office park with no destination except for office workers. 
• Lacks an identity, is a mish-mash of companies and industries. 
• Mass transportation and retail lacks for high density office buildings. 
• Lack of entertainment for younger families.  
• Road repair around area needs to be addressed.  
• The Met Hotel area and Corporate Drive road is destroyed. Lack of restaurant varieties.  
• With an abundant amount of office/corporate buildings, vacancy is still higher than past and 

needs to be addressed.  
• How was “Market Area” (population, etc.) determined? Don’t rush to develop small retail, 

even though there is room on some developed site, along with the northwest corner of 
Long Lake and Crooks. 

 
Strategies 
• Infill parking lots with mixed use and retail. 
• More day care for workers, small scale retail and restaurants for workers. 
• Encourage as much convenience use (e.g. restaurants and retail) as the market can bear to 

make the area more attractive and keep the workers in the area day and night. 
• Need destination developments to attract and support workers in area.  
• Northeast and northwest corners of Crooks and Long Lake could have walkable mixed-use, 

all those big parking lots could be retrofitted for green space, add retail along secondary 
roads.  

• Increase flexibility of current zoning to widen development of potential uses.  
• Add more age-targeted condominium sites in this area like Chattfield Commons. 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix B - 6 
 

• Along Crooks Road need more neighborhood uses to facilitate the residents in the area.  
• Encourage more parking structure, rather than huge parking lots, for our corporate clients. 

What about drainage and green space consideration?  
• Break down the scale of this primarily corporate/commercial corridor with some zoning 

“serendipity” to grow small pockets of service and amenity businesses to provide relief to 
the clearly automotive corridor and serve workers and citizens. 

 
ROCHESTER ROAD 
 
Opportunities 
• Small scale neighborhood services, mixed-use and live-work, townhouse development, 

redevelopment of obsolete building types. 
• This section of Troy I view as the entrepreneurial sector. It has a lot of retail, small start-up 

businesses, etc. Build upon that corridor as the “Entrepreneurial Center” for the city. 
• Traffic strong, proximity to residential, retail. 
• Landscaping is very important. 
• Protect the adjacent neighborhoods – limit height of building.  
• Entrepreneurial center. 

 
Challenges 
• Strip mall heavy. 
• Rochester Road has a split personality. The traffic is trying to get through the areas as fast 

as possible, yet the businesses and number of driveways is calling for a slower pace.  
• What provisions are you making for non-motor pathways in the corridors? 
• Building height next to residential. 
• Lack of green space.  
• Reduce visual clutter from signage that dominates the road.  
• Keeping integrity of residential as we develop more commercial frontage 

 
Strategies 
• Reface on retail, select pedestrian friendly intersections.  
• Consider “block” or “district” events that take place in the “forecourts” (parking lots) in 

front of the strip retail centers.  
• Clean p corridor/remove and replace obsolete buildings. Incentives/funding for 

redevelopment. 
• Reduce setback and parking. 
• Why not repeat Big Beaver success on Rochester Road or incentive for transition zoning.  
• Potential for redevelopment with senior housing – to access community center, etc. Update 

needed to some of the retail avenues. Pedestrian/bike access to corridor.  
• Create adequate buffer between residential and business zones.  
• Encourage more intense uses on larger parcels, i.e. increased height of buildings.  
• Retail and restaurants should reflect needs of nearby residents.  
 



TROY REAL ESTATE FORUM 
Minutes 

 

On Tuesday, April 29 2014, the City of Troy hosted the Real Estate Forum at the Troy Community Center 

with invited community participants, business owners, real estate developers and interested citizens to 

actively engage in the future direction of key economic areas of the city. It was the goal of the city to 

present a snapshot of each area illustrating existing conditions and current zoning and then ask the 

group to reflect on future potential by performing a SWOT (Strength Weakness Opportunities Threats) 

analysis. A panel of five experts in real estate, development and redevelopment, architecture, and 

finance then offered their reaction by providing observations of their understanding of current and 

future market trends and development constraints and realities. The findings of this forum will be 

utilized by the city in creation of the Master Plan. 

OPENING REMARKS 

Mayor Slater:  

We are here to kickoff planning the Master Plan (MP) and the City of Troy provides an excellent 

foundation to build off. It is important that we continue to look forward and work collaboratively with 

City Manager’s (CM) staff and the community stakeholders; we have the team assembled right now to 

be successful. 

CM Brian Kischnick:  

How do we develop Troy to make it the best community in Michigan? What is your (stakeholders) plan 

for the future and how can we be partners in making that happen. It is difficult, but we need to develop 

a blueprint in moving forward that is market driven.  MJR Theaters example, recognizing what we do 

today will have an impact and how we can work together.  

Planning Director, Brent Savidant:  

A MP creates a roadmap for the development of Troy and is required by State Law with updates every 5 

years. The zoning ordinance will follow suit in coordination with the Plan. The original MP was 

developed in 1965 and has been updated 20 times in the last 40 years with the most recent update 

occurring in 2008. We did more than focus on land use, we focused on policy with the MP being market 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 2 
 

driven.  Much of our MP was affected by the economic downturn of 2008, making the next proposal 

even more important. There are four established focus areas to target in this meeting and in MP 2014.  

1. Maple Road corridor 

2. Big Beaver corridor  

3. North Troy 

4. Rochester Road 

This includes fringe/transition areas of those regions and the changing demographics within the city.  

COMMENT CARD ACTIVITY 

Richard Carlisle:  

To help facilitate discussion and collect thoughts and ideas, each region was assigned a color and 

corresponding colored note cards were distributed to attendees. Participants were then asked to think 

about each region and identify key opportunity sites, major assets, transportation options, future land 

use, market-direction, city-wide assets, limitations/challenges, recommendations, and any other general 

thoughts or ideas (SWOT analysis).  The following is the summation of this activity sorted into the 

categories of Opportunities, Challenges, and Strategies. 

MAPLE ROAD CORRIDOR 

• Opportunities: Has well established traffic flow, a great central location, and proximity to the 

residential area. There is a variety of industrial and residential spaces and the possibility to mesh 

entertainment (bars, restaurants) experiences with MJR theaters. Changes to zoning in the area 

could assist in redeveloping obsolete buildings into viable sites.  

• Challenges: Obsolete buildings and vacant lands have become an eyesore to the area. There is too 

much office/industrial and not enough demand. Strip development and industrial and very 

separated and there is no connection for the surrounding residential communities and current 

business sector. Parking is mostly in the rear of most of the industrial buildings which is a deterrent. 

Lack of clarity on building uses permitted. 

• Strategies: Mobility that encapsulates public transit points, walkability, trails (green space), 

surrounding neighborhoods and an enhanced pedestrian experience and then clustering pedestrian 

activities through redevelopment of underutilized/vacant properties. Mixed-use development with 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 3 
 

strong ties to the Transit Center and transit-oriented development to allow for growth. Expand 

SmartZone to encourage more technology development, ideal corridor for cutting edge work. 

Possibility for exit at I-75 onto Maple Road. 

BIG BEAVER CORRIDOR 

• Opportunities: Viewed as corporate headquarters with excellent appeal internationally that could 

be marketed as THE international center for the state of Michigan. Centrally located with great 

traffic and a prominent address it is the ideal region in Troy. Big Beaver is the heart of Troy and 

Somerset Collection is a huge draw for the community. Big Beaver is several hundred feet wide and 

lined with multiple landmark buildings set far back on their sites and surrounded by parking. Kmart 

Headquarters provides countless opportunities for entertainment and housing. 

• Challenges: The heavy traffic and lack of alternative transit to the automotive centric corridor make 

it unfriendly to pedestrians. How can it be envisioned as a downtown/walkable district with current 

mobility options that will also keep people safe? Several concerns in regards to zoning, parking, and 

building requirements (Big Beaver Plan) that restrict mixed-use development. Too many parking lots 

and road dominated pattern. 

• Strategies: Connect the great companies and their work force to each other through the sidewalks, 

slow street traffic, and add more cross walks. Continue parking lot infill development and inject 

residential mid/high rises. Provide entertainment for young adults to develop new community 

lifestyel. Master Plan should acknowledge potential for mass transit line or bus/trolley service up 

and down Big Beaver to service all the shopping experiences. Consider increasing depth of Big 

Beaver zone in the shallow areas to increase potential developments.  

NORTH TROY 

• Opportunities: Excellent freeway access to I-75 with close proximity to employee base. Wooded 

underdeveloped properties could be maintained and not clear cut for new development as an 

opportunity to attract mixed-use/multi-family development to increase residential opportunities for 

nearby workers. Option for existing corporate companies look to build or expand in under-utilized 

areas.  

• Challenges: Suburban office park with no destination except for office workers. Lacks an identity and 

is often slow to fill resulting in high vacancy. Poor transportation solely auto focused with no 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 4 
 

alternative mobility or green space. Lack of entertainment for younger families. Road repair around 

area needs to be addressed.  

• Strategies: Encourage as much convenience use (e.g. restaurants, retail, daycare) and destination 

development as the market can bear to make the area more attractive and keep the workers in the 

area day and night. Increase flexibility of current zoning to widen development of potential uses. 

Encourage more parking structure, rather than huge parking lots, for corporate clients. 

Consideration for drainage and green space.  

ROCHESTER ROAD 

• Opportunities: This section of Troy is viewed as the entrepreneurial sector. It has a lot of retail, 

small start-up businesses, etc. with close proximity to residential. Build upon that corridor as the 

“Entrepreneurial Center” for the city. 

• Challenges: Rochester Road has a split personality. The traffic is trying to get through the areas as 

fast as possible, yet the businesses and number of driveways is calling for a slower pace. Very strip 

mall heavy and lack of green space. Concerns about building height next to residential. Signage 

clutter dominates the road.  

• Strategies: Keep integrity of residential as more commercial frontage is developed. Reface on retail 

and create more pedestrian friendly intersections. Clean corridor/remove and replace obsolete 

buildings find incentives/funding for redevelopment. Reduce setback and parking associated with 

strip malls and develop retail and restaurants that reflect the needs of nearby residents. Potential 

for redevelopment with senior housing.  

PANEL DISCUSSION 

The five expert panel members then reacted to the comments made during the previous activity and 

answered general questions with their own insight and recommendations.  

Panel Members: 

JC: J.C. Cataldo, Partner, RePlace Development Solutions 

TW: Tracy Wick, Broker, Coldwell Banker 

AK: Alan Kiriluk , Chairman, Kirco & Troy DDA 

MN: Mark Nickita, President, Archive DS 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 5 
 

SR: Steve Robinson, Principal, Versa Development 

 

 

 

OPENING COMMENTS 

JC: Density. Density wins, mix-use building sitting in a sea of parking. Condense and bring together assets 
and strengths. 

TW: We’re looking at a very large geographic area, yet we’re talking about large-scale place making. We 
are going to need to focus and pinpoint to concentrate efforts and create energy for overall future 
direction. Connect the 900 acres of parkland, recreation benefit for residents. 

AK: Strong demographics and leadership but lacks promotion of high quality assets of Troy. Connectivity 
will be key. Be careful that development isn’t just what “we” want, build and design for the future. 
Transportation is extremely important here. Circulation transit system must connect surrounding 
communities, companies, shopping districts to bring people together. We need people in our 
community that want to both live and work here and encourage big investments. We need a 
coordinated agenda focused on quality of life.  

MN: General consensus that the elements for place making (walkability, synergy, mixed use) are there 
and it is agreed that’s where we should move in that direction. Create networks, connectedness, focus 
on walkability, and a realistic scale. 

SR: Big Beaver Rd is the preferred location for tenants. Maple exists in context of BB and they are in 
competition with each other. How do we create market demand in those areas? Where do we create it? 

QUESTIONS 

Integrated business uses have had low demand, how can we change that? 

AK: Remember the economy we’re coming out of. Stay positive. MJR will create traffic, build off that. 
You have a solid base. You need to deliver a lifestyle for companies and residents to encourage 
investment.  

Industrial vacancies between now and 18 months ago are very different. There are different uses in 
filling spaces that can be addressed in zoning. 

Troy was planned in a very spread out nature (traditional land use planning, single use zones) and 
younger generations want more centralized access to the city they live in. 

How can we strengthen Maple Road in its relationship with Big Beaver? 

SR: North South corridors are key for connecting. Generate Coolidge and Big Beaver intersection, lots of 
mix-use people would like to be there. Retailers want to be on Big Beaver not Maple, so what is it about 
Big Beaver that people want? Street scape and layout are positives so tie everything together and you 
will strengthen Maple. I-75 is a huge asset to Big Beaver. Maple is going to need destination orientated 
uses to attract people because it has a different character than Big Beaver. 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 6 
 

MN: Interest in permitted uses of buildings along Maple and eliminating obstacles will encourage this 
corridor. Express the vision of district and have city advertise that for reinvestment. 

The A space (Big Beaver) and the B space (Maple) have different infrastructure and different users and 
unique looks, accepting that can aid the adaptive reuses. Connection from building to building to 
building on Maple is the biggest hindrance here, must change. It should be an adjacent asset to Big 
Beaver, not an enemy of it.  

JC: I would not build (high end, loft style) multi-family housing there because it is not a dense area.  

TW: Have an investor that is the user of the builder who can utilize it as the home base for where the 
creative minds come together. Then allow them to start integration. Small scale development could be 
successful here. 

Does North Troy lack an identity and how important is that to the marketability? 

AK: It does lack an identity. It is a destination for employees only, what other amenities are there for 
people in the area? We need to keep people around after 5pm.  

TW: I would not market the North Troy area because of the lack of mix-use. Reiterated AK comments. 
Food trucks would be beneficial here.  

MN: Most regions are severely underserved with walkable places. As walkable centers appear, so does 
development. Places where people live, work, and play are the districts and North Troy could become 
this if it is zoned and thought of in this manner.  

Friedman and Associates: We are attracted to the open spread out space, opportunity to bring in large 
quantities of people. What the area lacks is restaurants and mass transit. Is a destination right now, 
doesn’t need walkability. 

Panel response: Short-term gain, long-term loss. 

 Food trucks could find a lot of success here and be a huge asset.  

How do we design not for what we want, but for what future generations and young people want and 
for where the market is going?  

JC: There are a lot of 59+ that want to enjoy a mixed-use environment. Millennials do not have the 
investment income to purchase retail. It is great to say you want to develop for that younger generation 
but they aren’t our key demographic. Boomers want to “age in place” meaning; everyone is selling their 
single-family home because the kids have moved out but they do not want to leave the great 
city/neighborhood they’re in. Current projects are attracting young people, who can’t afford them yet, 
and 60+ that can because they share similar interests. We should also try to integrate senior 
developments into the community. 

AK: Employers do have to have good employees available to them, which will be the younger 
generation. Good jobs with a good environment and the rest will follow. 

There will be a demographic shift with the wealth translating to the Millennials and use the Master Plan 
as an aggressive process to educate and plan. 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 7 
 

Troy High School has a better reputation and families want to go to this area. Capitalize on that by 
developing for the younger generation in the Athens district. 

The aging population is living longer and increasing, and they have assets. The market here is being 
missed. People want to downsize but there is no product for them, they want to go into something 
stylish.  

More flexibility in the zoning ordinance is necessary to permit this.  

Looking at the aerials, there is a huge “concrete jungle”. Where are we going looking forward? How 
do we get the tools to redevelop? 

Flexibility from the city, working towards that with form based code, but we need more of it and 
economic develop. There needs to be an incentive people for to redevelop the current landscape. Shift 
industrial sites into something else such as design or tech firms and not just focus on filling up the empty 
space.  

TW: Redeveloped sites will be attractive to that younger generation and if we keep track of who is 
asking for alternative living and activity space we can drive them towards the market later.  

Is there an opportunity to create an identity to the Rochester Road area to bring people to the area? 

SR: Create some uniformity with the corridor but ownership is so fractured. Create a better streetscape 
and identify the hard corners and build off that. How much work would I want to put into this corridor 
right now because the return on investment just isn’t there? This corridor isn’t right for my product. 
How do you make it right over time?  

MN: There needs to be a conscious effort in branding this area and making it a notable place. Identity 
and consolidation is part of this. Streetscape is a huge element of this. Commercial development near 
sidewalks but without sidewalks access to the front door is a fundamental issue. Not available on 
Rochester Road and it needs to become embedded in the planning process. If it is worthy of making a 
priority and where you want to take your efforts, there are ways of getting there.  

JC: The community not wanting things cannot be a reason to stop pursing thing. The city is a business, 
making it your job to educate the surrounding neighborhoods as to why developing to capacity is a 
benefit. Huge income opportunities in fully utilizing the land.  

What can we do as a city to encourage more vertical mixed-use, retail on the bottom, residential on 
the top? Can it work on Big Beaver? 

MN: Still on an uptick in the economy and you just can’t justify new construction. If you have an 
economic deal, the money will follow. Restaurants are a huge influencer but it will come down to 
investment. 

We talk about walkability, but what are we actually doing to promote it? Big Beaver is not walkable as 
it stands; it’s pretty much an extension of the highway. Focus on streetscape is an important issue.  

AK: It is ongoing. The Troy DDA, Mayor, busing system is marketing it as we speak. We’re bringing in the 
hotels and restaurant operators, the traffic improvement coalition from the state of Michigan to create 
safe crossings across Big Beaver and this applies across the City of Troy. We’re also working on 
transportation link to improve connectivity with Birmingham and the Transit Center. 



Troy Real Estate Forum  Appendix C - 8 
 

Mark Miller: Businesses are coming in on Big Beaver and then commenting that their employees need 
safer ways to walk along the corridor so we understand it as a priority.  

 

CLOSING REMARKS 

Mark Miller: This has been fantastic and we appreciate everyone coming out. We will take your 
comments as community stakeholders and raise what you’ve said to the public in a second forum and 
then take all thoughts to our Planning Commission who will use the input directly in the Master Plan. It 
is our hope that we can continue to partner with this community in the upcoming years.  

 

 



stewartc
Text Box
C-03







 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 6, 2014 
 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Thomas Darling, Director of Finance Services 
    
SUBJECT: Adoption of the 2014/15 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget  
 

 
Attached is a resolution to formally adopt both the 2014/15 annual City budget and the 3-year budget, 
per discussions at special City Council meetings on April 21, April 23, 2014. 
 
The budget resolution reflects a total millage rate of 10.5 mills for 2014/15 and 2015/16 fiscal years 
and 9.70 in 2016/17.  Final millage rate requirements can be summarized as follows: 

 
             2014/15         2015/16         2016/17 
 
General Operating  6.50  6.50  6.50 
Capital   1.53  1.53  1.53 
Refuse   1.07  1.07  1.07 
Library   0.70  0.70  TBD 
Debt    0.70  0.70  0.60 
 
Total Millage Rate  10.50  10.50  9.70 
 

 
 

       

stewartc
Text Box
E-01



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Reconciliation of Study Session Draft to Final Proposed Budget

General Fund 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
Total Expenditures and Other Uses Per Draft 59,490,918    58,341,294     55,958,982       

Nature Center additional support 25,000            -                        -                         
Historic Village additional support -                       75,000             75,000               

Total Expenditures and Other Uses Per Final 59,515,918    58,416,294     56,033,982       

Debt Service Fund - 2013 DDA Pass Through
Total Revenues and Other Sources Per Draft -                       -                        -                         

Transfers from DDA 958,900          951,000           942,000            
Total Revenues and Other Uses Per Final 958,900          951,000           942,000            

Total Expenditures and Other Uses Per Draft -                       -                        -                         
Debt Service Expenditures 958,900          951,000           942,000            

Total Expenditures and Other Uses Per Final 958,900          951,000           942,000            

Sewer Fund
Total Revenues and Other Sources Per Draft 14,509,000    14,683,000     14,797,000       

SAW Grant Revenues 333,000          333,000           334,000            
Total Revenues and Other Sources Per Final 14,842,000    15,016,000     15,131,000       

 



CITY OF TROY

BUDGET
2014/2015

grow through community  |  lead through action



Introductory Section General Government:

Elected Officials and Senior Staff 1 Financial Services (Continued)

Executive Staff 2 Purchasing 114

Organizational Chart 3 Assessing 118

Budget Overview 4

Fact Sheet 15 Other General Government

Community Profile 16 Buildings Department 121

Vision and Why? Statement 17

Budget Policies 18 Public Safety

Budget Calendar 22 Police Department 124

Fire Department 139

Trends and Summaries Building Inspections 144

Millage Rates and Taxes 24 Department of Public Works

Major Revenue Sources 27 Streets Department 148

General Fund, Fund Balance 34

Community & Economic Dev.

All Funds Summary Engineering Department 167

Planning Department 172

Executive Summary 35

Financial Organization Chart 42 Recreation & Culture

All Funds Financial Summaries 43 Parks Department 176

Personnel Summary 53 Recreation Department 185

Nature Center/Historic Village 191

General Fund 

How the City Allocates Resources 65 Special Revenue Funds

Revenue, Expenditures & Fund Balance 66 Special Revenues Summary 195

Revenue Details by Account 68 Major and Local Streets Funds 197

Expenditures Details by Department 78 Refuse Fund 198

Expenditure Details by Account 86 Budget Stabilization Fund 202

Drug Forfeiture Fund 203

General Fund Service Departments Library Fund 204

General Government: Community Development Block Grant 209

Council & Executive Administration

City Council 88 Debt Service Funds

City Manager’s Office 90 Legal Debt Limits 212

City Clerks Office 94 Debt Summary 213

City Attorney’s Office 99 Schedule of Principal & Interest 214

Human Resources 103 All Debt Fund Detail 217

Financial Services

Financial Services 107

Treasurer's Office 110



Capital Projects/Special Assessment Funds Supplemental Information

Major Project Descriptions 220 General Revenue by Source and 

Capital Projects Statements 222    Expenditures by Function 326

Special Assessment Statements 231 General Fund Balance Compared

Major Road Projects 232    to Annual Expenditures 327

Local Road Projects 239 Value of Taxable Property 327

Sidewalk Projects 243 Property Tax Levies and Collections 328

Drain Projects 246 Demographic Statistics 329

Six Year Major Roads 250 Top 20 Taxpayers 330

Six Year Local Roads 261 Property Values and Construction 331

Six Year Sidewalks 266 Collective Bargaining Agreements 332

Six Year Drains 270 Economic Information 333

Glossary of Key Terms 335

Enterprise Funds

Golf Course Summaries 274

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund 276

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund 278

Aquatic Center Fund 280

Water and Sewer Summaries 283

Sewer Fund Statements 288

Sewer Fund Capital 290

Water Fund Statements 296

Water Fund Capital 301

Internal Service Funds

Building Operations Fund 306

Fleet Maintenance Fund 310

Information Technology Fund 318

Unemployment Reserve Fund 323

Worker's Compensation Reserve Fund 324

Compensated Absences Reserve Fund 325



City Council

       Mayor.........................................................................................................Dane M. Slater

       Mayor Pro Tem.............................................................................................Dave Henderson

       Council Member.............................................................................................................Jim Campbell

       Council Member........................................................................................................... .Wade Fleming

       Council Member............................................................................................................Ellen Hodorek

       Council Member...........................................................................................................Ed Pennington

       Council Member..................................................................................................................Doug Tietz 

Executive Staff

       City Manager..........................................................................................................Brian M. Kischnick

       Director of Economic and Community Development………………............................Mark F. Miller

       Director of Financial Services.....................................................................Thomas E. Darling, CPA

Elected Officials and Senior Management 



       City Manager Brian M. Kischnick

       City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm

       Director of Economic and Community Development Mark F. Miller

       Director of Financial Services                                      Thomas Darling, CPA

       City Assessor Leger (Nino) Licari

       City Clerk Aileen Bittner

       City Engineer Steven J. Vandette

       City Treasurer Sandra Kasperek

       City Accounting Lisa Burnham

       Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart

       Director of Building Operations Steve Pallotta

       Fire Chief William Nelson

       Human Resources Director Jeanette Menig

       Information Technology Director Gert Paraskevin

       Library Director Cathleen A. Russ

       Recreation Director Elaine S. Bo

       Planning Director R. Brent Savidant

       Police Chief Gary G. Mayer

       Public Works Director Timothy Richnak

       Purchasing Director MaryBeth Murz

City Seal

The figure represented on the official seal of

the City of Troy is that of Athena, mythological

Greek goddess of wisdom. Athena was known

as the dispenser of prudent restraint and

practical insight, maintainer of law. Her

association with civilization and society rather

than wilderness and nature earned her

reverence as the protectress of Greek cities.

Athena’s ethical standards and precepts

remain worthy today, making her an

appropriate symbol for the modern City of Troy

and a model for all who live, work, or play here.

Executive Staff 

2



3



 

 

 

April 22, 2014 

 
THE HONORABLE MAYOR  
AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS    
 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
In accordance with the City Charter I present to 
you the city budget for fiscal year 2014/15.  
 
The budget document serves as a planning and 
policy guide, and determines the level of service 
provided to residents, businesses, and visitors.  
This document also illustrates the city’s 
administrative structure and work plan for the 
upcoming fiscal year. 
 
The spending plan incorporated within was 
developed through a comprehensive, team 
approach.  This was accomplished through City 
Council study sessions over the past year, which   
included a review of fund balance, legacy costs, 
AAA bond rating criteria, and a two-day Retreat. 
 
City administration’s philosophy is to present on-
going analysis and issue evaluation throughout 
the year to educate Council, public and staff on the 
major impacts of city management/operations.  
The budget process should truly be a spending 

priority session based on months of 
dialogue and analysis.  This 
sharpened focus encourages a 
long-term balanced approached 
towards allocating resources. 
 

In the latter part of 2008, Troy faced 
severe economic times.  Property taxes were 

declining rapidly and Troy could not avoid the sting 
of the recession.  The city was quick to respond by 
balancing its three-year budget.  The strategy was 
threefold.  Troy initiated a millage for our library, 
personnel reductions through early retirement and 
attrition, and worked as a team to align personnel 
with revised service levels.  
 
In 2011, Troy residents passed a .7 mill to fund our 
library. We were able to keep our overall millage 
rates low despite this increase.  The millage rate 
has been consistently low (approximately 9.5 mill) 
prior to 2011, and to date our millage rate remains 
the lowest at 10.50 compared to neighboring 
communities.  
 

 
The city managed the downturn and is now on the 
path of rebalancing costs and resources.  
Administration and staff are working diligently to 
maintain high standards of service.   We continue 
to place a high priority on our fund balance to 
ensure we maintain a AAA bond rating.   
 
Our standard is to collaborate and brainstorm 
creative and innovative ways to make Troy the 
community to live in.  This is our story. 
 

4



 

 

 

On November 25, 2013, we 
facilitated the Troy Story 
presentation with the City 
Council and public.   Troy Story 
has many components and 
addresses the past, present, 

and future. It is a summary of “Where We’ve Been”, 
“Where We Are” and “Where We’re Going”. We 
overviewed past studies in the section “Where 
We’ve Been” including Vision 2020, the Zucker 
Report, and the International Capital Market 
Association (ICMA) Study. 
 
The City Council and city management were able 
to align our revenues and expenditures while 
experiencing a $10 million decrease in revenues 
from 2008 to 2013 and total revenue declined by 
$10.8 million. During this same period, 
expenditures were reduced by $14.9 million. This 
included $10.6 million from employee 
concessions, offering an Early Retirement 
Incentive Plan (ERIP) to our classified and exempt 
employees, reducing full time employment by 
36.2%, and reducing General Fund expenditures by 
$4 million from the dedicated Library Millage 
approved for 5 years by the Troy voters.  
 

 
  
We discussed “Where We Are” in how Troy 
compares to neighboring communities and the 
debt service and financial situation of the city. We 
have one of the lowest millage rates in Oakland 

County as well as one of the lowest City Tax Bills 
and a general fund debt of $0. 
 
We will continue to rebalance our service in terms 
of infrastructure and internal city needs. As a 
team, we focused on a management scenario and 
what programs should take precedence over 
others in need and importance. 
 
One of the major themes from “Where We Are 
Going” in Troy Story is determining the appropriate 
level of General Fund Fund balance. For example, 
from 2008 to 2013 the unassigned General Fund 
Fund Balance grew from $8.7 million to $23.34 
million. The reason for the growth in General Fund 
Fund Balance is attributed to the significant 
expenditure reduction and unassigning Fund 
Balance set aside for tax tribunal cases. 
 
As a result, staff and council set out to develop a 
Fund Balance policy to guide city administration in 
future fiscal situations and identify the most 
effective and efficient use of part of the Fund 
Balance.  
 

During our Troy Story 
presentation, we highlighted 
Troy’s AAA Bond Rating and 
strong financial standing in 
Oakland County and the 
State. Troy has maintained 

its AAA bond rating for several 
years as rated by Standard and Poor’s 2012 
Municipal Bond Rating Analysis. There are only 
four communities in Michigan with this distinction: 
Troy, Bloomfield Township, Bloomfield Hills, and 
Birmingham.  The city’s overall financial profile 
remains very strong, despite the past 2008 
declines in taxable valuation. The city maintains 
strong reserves (53% of operating expenditures, on 
an unassigned basis as of the last audit, June 30, 
2013). 

5



 

 

 

 
Following our presentation of Troy Story, 
discussions with City Council led to a request for 
information and education regarding the process 
of rating agencies and how they determine the 
bond rating for municipalities.  The City Manager’s 
Office took initiative to invite City Council and staff 
members to an informative webinar in Bond 
Ratings hosted by the Bond Buyer at Standard and 
Poor’s. The webinar was followed with a City 
Council Study Session hosted by the City of Troy 
Municipal Bond Financial Advisor, Robert 
Bendzinski.  
 
Municipal bond ratings reflect the risk of default, 
much like a personal credit rating.  Bond rating 
agencies rate a government’s ability to make 
timely, sound financial and operational decisions 
in response to fiscal demand. The determination 
for these ratings is based on the following:  
 

 Revenue and Expenditure  
 Budget Amendments  
 Long Term Financial Planning  
 Long Term Capital Planning 
 Investment Management Policies  
 Debt Management Policies  
 Reserve and Liquidity Policies     
 

 
In 2013, the City Council 
facilitated joint meetings with 
the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA), Planning 
Commission and the Troy 
School District to strengthen 

relationships with key groups. It was an effort to 
collaboratively identify and assess issues, goals, 
and priorities. The outcome of these joint 
meetings was very positive and the overall 
consensus was to continue similar meetings in the 
future.  

 
Troy focused on civic 
engagement by including the 
public in the decision-making 
process regarding the utilization 
of fund balance. To help us chart 
our course it was imperative that 

we involved residents, businesses, and 
stakeholders in the process of identifying options 
and priorities for our future.  To accomplish this, 
we selected five focus groups and invited them to 
contribute their time and critical thinking to help us 
identify scenarios to utilize Fund Balance.   These 
groups were made up of representatives from: 
 

 Parent Teacher Organization 
 Teen Advisory Board 
 Homeowners Association 
 Business Community 
 Citizen Representative 

 

 
 

These focus group sessions were two hours each 
and included a presentation of the Troy Story 
module. We then facilitated a tabletop exercise in 
small groups to collectively outline options to 
pursue.   All results were presented to the City 
Council prior to the budget review process during 
a study session.  The following were the main 
priorities with complete consensus:  improve our 
streets, allocate resources for Police, rebuild Fire 
Station 4, and advance technology. 

6



 

 

 

 

Continuing the effort to work 
with City Council and staff, 
we hosted our first retreat. 
Leading up to the retreat we 
introduced Simon Sinek, 

author of Start with Why. We wanted to inspire the 
work that we do, showcase its importance, and 
reiterate the need of starting with “Why”. We had 
several staff meeting presentations in the month 
of March asking personnel to identify their top 
three positive and negative professional 
experiences. This acted as a prelude to the staff 
retreat.  

This exercise was a teambuilding activity to 
encourage working together to set goals and 
priorities for 2014. This was in alignment with our 
current practices of looking ahead in planning for 
Troy’s future. All of this coincides with “What kind 
of city do we want to be?”- a question we asked 
ourselves and our residents during 2013.  
 
Our collaboration as a team will help guide us as 
we move through 2015, making us stronger and 
able to achieve a better Troy. Simon Sinek’s 
philosophy is, “It doesn’t matter what you do; it 
matters Why you do it”. Going forward, the City of 
Troy employees will use this as a platform to 
inspire us to be more innovative, question our 
curiosity, and achieve success. Our first retreat 
carried the theme of, “Start with Why”. 
 
Our first Retreat was a success as it provided an 
excellent platform for identifying Troy’s 
achievements and opportunities. Together as a 
team, our goal is to recruit and retain people who 
believe in Troy and who have the capacity to think 
outside the box.  
 

This staff, both present and future, will then 
continue to strive to fulfill the ideals we outline in 
our “Why” statement. That is: 
 

“We believe a strong community embraces 
diversity, promotes innovation, and 
encourages collaboration.  We strive to 
lead by example within the region.  We do 
this because we want everyone to choose 
Troy as their community for life. We believe 
in doing government the best.” 

 
To accomplish this we will utilize key strategies 
that were developed during the Retreat. It is our 
belief that these 11 strategies will be our first 
steps in that direction: 

1. Improve road/infrastructure conditions, 
including County roads; 

2. Maintain a branding and marketing plan to 
effectively communicate; 

3. Build and maintain strong, productive 
service levels; 

4. Maintain strong Public Safety service; 
5. Increase outreach to residents, businesses, 

and neighboring communities; 
6. Facilitate redevelopment of underutilized 

office and industrial sites; 
7. Advance technology to gain efficiencies; 
8. Update and identify funding for the 

Pathways and Trails Plan; 
9. Implement a way-finding strategy for city 

resources; 
10. Enhance gateways and entrance to create 

a sense of place; 
11. Embrace the Transit Center. 
 

7



 

 

 

Our Local Economy 
 
We remain cautiously 
optimistic that the local 
economy continues to make 
small gains solidifying an 
upward recovery from the 

2008 crash.   
 
One leading indicator of the trend is new 
construction and the value of those permits.  While 
there is not a large amount of greenfields to 
develop, the infill development appears to be 
enough to complement the commercial office 
vacancy rate reduction.   
 
After three months of activity in calendar year 
2014, the valuation of permits is $35,563,244. On a 
month-to-month basis this is on track to surpass 
2013 results.  These indications give credibility to 
the notion that the local economy is slowly 
recovering.   
 
The taxable value history indicates that, for the 
first time since 2009, Troy taxable values illustrate 
a net increase of 1.42%.   
 

Taxable Value History  

Year Total Taxable 
Total T/V %  

Change 
2014 4,371,580,350 1.42 
2013 4,310,263,448 (0.06) 
2012 4,312,692,050 (3.06) 
2011 4,448,750,160 (8.15) 
2010 4,843,613,012 (11.29) 
2009 5,459,779,936 (1.85) 

 
Personal property has increased for the third year 
in a row. The taxable value breakdown continues 
to shift toward a reliance on the residential class.  
In 2014, residential makes up 63.82% and 
commercial/industrial makes up 36.18%.  This is a 
significant deviation from the past when taxable 

value was 60% commercial/industrial and 40% 
residential.   
 
Millage Rates  
 
The total General Fund millage rate is set at 10.50 
mills, a reduction of .02 mills. This reduction is the 
result of rebalancing the Refuse Fund revenues 
and expenditures which allowed a refuse millage 
reduction from 1.09 mills to 1.07 mills.  
 
This downward direction in the millage rate 
demonstrates management’s willingness to 
rebalance levels of resources annually to ensure 
the most accurate tax rates for current taxpayers. 
The focus groups and comparables across 
southeast Michigan affirm Troy as a low tax 
community.  
 
Rightsizing and Rebalancing Our Staff 
 
This budget includes the additions of six (6) full-
time positions and three (3) part-time position 
increased to full-time as part of reorganizing staff.  
 
There are an additional two Police Officers, one 
Police Service Aide and one full-time Emergency 
Planner through the elimination of one part-time 
position and reorganizing staff. This will ensure we 
maintain the highest level of public safety. 
 
In support of our fund balance focus to repair 
roads, the Department of Public Works has added 
two full-time Equipment Operators.  
 
Information Technology will supplement one full-
time Library Help Desk staffer and one full-time 
Application Specialist by elimination of one part-
time position and consolidation to keep pace with 
their continuously evolving field. 
 
Human Resources added one full-time Coordinator 

8



 

 

 

by elimination of one part-time position and 
consolidation of the risk management function.  
 
Our Safety 
 
We are proposing three new positions in our Police 
Department and an upgrade to the part-time EOP 
to full-time.   These positions are: 
 

 2 full-time officers for Crash Reductions 
Unit 

 1 full-time Emergency Operations Planner 
 1 Police Service Aide 

 
We transitioned the part-time Emergency 
Operations Planner to full-time. In essence, we 
added half a position. We added a new position, 
Police Service Aide, to our operations (patrol) 
division to handle non-criminal calls for service. 
We added two Police Officers in the Crash 
Reduction Unit to work with the directed patrol 
unit targeting areas of high crime and high traffic 
incidents. 
 
Fire station 4 funds are included in FY16 and FY 
17 to replace the outdated station with drive-
through bays for apparatus, space for storage of 
equipment, and facilities to support the daily 
operation of the fire station.  
 
Our Streets and Roads 
 
We budgeted to repair our county roads. This is 
being accomplished by transferring $5 million in 
city general fund dollars to supplement $5 million 
in county, state, and federal funds to complete this 
$10 million dollar project. Included in this project 
are Long Lake, Crooks, Big Beaver, John R, and 
Dequindre. We are also budgeting $5 million on 
city local, major and industrial from the capital 
fund.   
 

Currently, the Streets Division’s 16 laborer 
positions are each responsible for 25.5 miles of 
roads, which is considerably higher when 
compared to surrounding communities. Adding 
two additional laborer positions allows the Streets 
Division to improve responsiveness to concerns 
such as; snow and ice control, pavement repairs, 
and storm drain related concerns.  
 
Elections 
 
The 2014/15 Budget includes expenditures for the 
August 5th State Primary and the November 4th 
Gubernatorial elections. The Gubernatorial election 
is the second largest in the City of Troy. The State 
Primary in August is one of the most complex 
elections to administer due to the open primary 
style ballot and the election of Precinct Delegates.  
 
Comparatively speaking, approximately 280 
election workers are required for the Presidential 
General Election, about 250 election workers are 
required for the Gubernatorial General Election, 
and about 170 election workers are required for 
the City General Election.  
 
We have 31 “live” precincts (out in the community) 
and 31 absentee ballot counting board precincts 
(housed in City Hall). To compare, election 
administration costs for the Presidential General 
Election are about $100,000, costs for the 
Gubernatorial General Election run about $75,000, 
and costs for the City General Election are about 
$50,000. 
 
Technology 
 
Technology is a key component for the continued 
delivery of quality and efficient services to Troy 
residents and businesses.  This budget year 
focuses on several improvements that will ensure 
hardware and software will appropriately support 

9



 

 

 

operations, as well as provide staff with additional 
tools.  IT staffing is a crucial ingredient in 
technology.  A full-time PC Support position has 
been added with sole dedication to the Library 
($87,600).  This position will help support 
increased demands for technology and expand 
hours of coverage.  In addition, the part-time 
Application Support Specialist position (.60) has 
become full-time to accommodate the support 
requirements of the various systems in production 
($61,780 increase).   
 
Two servers are scheduled for replacement 
($17,500); one for the DPW and a second at the 
Community Center.  In software, various 
purchases and upgrades are included that offer 
new features and tools.  We will upgrade to the 
latest Microsoft Office 2013 ($150,000) and use of 
Onbase, our Document Management system, will 
continue to expand.  Modules are also available to 
allow mobile access to documents while in the 
field ($15,000).  The Document Knowledge 
Transfer & Compliance module will replace the 
aging Moodle system ($21,000).   
 
Lastly, the budget includes an Enterprise-wide 
Electronic Time and Attendance system 
($200,000).   This will provide easy access to time 
entry and time off requests, eliminating the need 
for paper time cards and duplicate data entry.  
This will reduce errors, allow for on-line approvals, 
and assist in more precise costing of services. 
 
Community Service 
 
The Police Department diverts approximately 40 
juveniles annually to the Troy Youth Assistance 
(TYA) caseworker.  This keeps young men and 
women out of the criminal justice system and 
allows the family to be involved in a substantial, 
positive life change.  TYA is a referral resource for 
the Police Department in issues of incorrigibility 

and entry level substance abuse.  The $10,000 
allotted will fill the funding gap to help Troy 
families remain intact.  
 
The Police Department partners with the multiple 
community sectors that make up the Troy 
Community Coalition (TCC) to reduce the use of 
alcohol and dangerous drugs.  TCC annually 
reaches 1,000 Troy School District 4th Graders to 
teach responsible decision making and 
consequences of bad choices.  The $25,000 
budget funds summer camp workers with 50 at-
risk youths to teach healthy lifestyle choices.   
 
Our Future  
 
Troy is a high-quality and high-functioning 
municipality at all levels; from the City Council 
through the staff.  When people think of Troy, they 
think “exceptional quality”.  This budget and our 
daily approach are focused toward continuing this 
tradition, reputation, and overall approach to local 
governance. 
 
Over the course of the next year we will continue 
evaluating where we are from an operational, 
staffing and fiscal perspective to determine the 
next steps to maintain our balance. With the team 
working together, we are confident our process 
and outcome will be transparent and beneficial.   
 
Library 
 
The Troy Public Library is funded by a millage of .7 
mills, which currently brings in approximately $3 
million in revenue. The Library generates an 
additional $250,000 in revenue from various 
sources including; penal fines, state aid, fines, 
rental fees, and miscellaneous charges.    
 
This $3,250,000 in revenue comprises the 
Library’s operating budget. It provides for a 6-

10



 

 

 

day/55-hour per week schedule, and a staff of 8 
full-time and 67 part-time members. These staff 
members purchase materials for the Library’s 
collection, offer programs for all ages, assist 
patrons with all of their technology and 
information needs, and provide direct personal 
service. 
 
Money from the Library’s fund balance is being 
used in 2014/15 to accommodate the Library’s 
Capital projects, such as the drive-up book drop; 
improved signage and wayfinding aids; and 
updating the Library’s outdated light panels.  
Monies from fund balance are being used because 
the amount of funding derived from the millage 
does not cover all building repairs and other 
capital projects that are necessary to maintain the 
Library facility. 
 
The fifth and final Library Millage levy is in July 
2015.  If Council decides to pursue any form of 
renewal, it would not be submitted until the August 
or November 2015 ballot for consideration.  The 
millage levy is active for the current fiscal year 
(13/14) as well as the next two fiscal years (14/15 
and 15/16). We will propose a three-year budget 
for the Library as a continuation, with funding 
decisions necessary for the third year of the three 
year budget (16/17) to be discussed in Fall 2014. 
 
We propose to identify a process that includes 
evaluation of the Library in terms of operation, 
effectiveness, usage and funding this Fall 2014.  
Through study session(s) and 
council/management communication we will 
outline the course and direction for the Troy Public 
Library.  Taking this issue out of the budget 
process allows for a thorough and comprehensive 
review with high levels of discussion and 
transparency. 
 
 

Transit Center 
 
City Council has authorized condemnation, if 
necessary, to acquire the Transit Center parcel if 
the good faith offer of $1,050,000 is rejected.  The 
cost of acquiring the Transit Center parcel 
(including the initial offer, attorney fees, and the 
final judgment) qualifies as a project expense, 
eligible for reimbursement from the federal 
funding set aside for the project.       
 
The 2014/15 city budget provides for operation 
and maintenance expenditures equal to revenue.  
Under the federal Passenger Rail Investment and 
Improvement Act (PRIIA) of 2008, operation and 
maintenance costs on Amtrak’s Wolverine Line 
that services the Transit Center are reimbursed by 
the state of Michigan.  All operation and 
maintenance costs are reimbursed to Troy.   
 
Legislative Impact 
 
Public Act 54 of 2011 prohibits retroactive pay 
increases after a budget expires, which has helped 
communities settle contracts more quickly and 
provides more certainty in municipal budgets.  
Proposed House Bill 5097 would permit 
exemption in Public Act 54 for Public Act 312 
employees. The previous reforms that helped 
government employers reach increased cost 
control and act as better stewards of taxpayer 
resources would be reversed. This legislation 
would increase unfunded liabilities for pensions 
and retiree health care in addition to increasing 
current cash requirements for salaries, with the 
burden of change being placed on tax payers.    
 
As a result of the creation of taxable value under 
Proposal A, the Legislature passed measures that 
allowed for an increase and decrease of certain 
commercial property’s taxable value based on 
occupancy.  Senate Bill 114 would amend the 

11



 

 

 

General Property Tax Act and remove the tax 
reduction loophole, effectively the “WPW Fix”. The 
bill would limit the use of occupancy rates in the 
determination of losses to the period before 
December 31, 2013 and would limit the use of 
occupancy rates in the determination of additions 
to the period before December 31, 2001 
 
Finally, the Governor recently signed a ten bill 
package that represents months of negotiations 
on personal property tax (PPT) reform. The 
legislation provides clarity and relief to the city, as 
it was poised to suffer revenue loss as a result of 
personal property tax reform enacted in 2012. The 
new legislation includes a formula to provide full 
reimbursement for lost personal property tax 
revenue by comparing current year taxable values 
to 2013 taxable values and applying the lowest 
millage rate, and adjusting for exemptions.  The 
legislation also provides for reimbursement for 
100 percent of debt loss to local units and is to be 
phased in between 2014 and 2016, contingent 
upon the voter approval of the ballot initiate.   

 
Closing   
 
This year the process of developing a three-year 
spending plan involved a prelude discussion and 
education session on fund balance, departmental 
operations and capital needs.  The intent is to 
bring more staff into the process and allow a 
direct conversation with the City Council that does 
not have the pressure of a budget approval 
timeline.  
 
I would like to thank the staff of our entire 
organization for thoroughly reviewing their 
operations and presenting a budget that is realistic 
and in concert with the City Council strategies.   
 
I want to thank Director of Financial Services 
Thomas Darling for facilitating and compil ing this 

comprehensive and easy-to-understand budget 
document.   
 
Special thanks to Assistant to the City Manager 
Brenda Carter and Management Assistant Maggie 
Hughes for their assistance, and Office 
Coordinator Beth Tashnick for her continued 
contribution, oversight and production of the 
2014/15 budget. 
  
I also wish to thank the Mayor and City Council 
members for their assistance in advancing the 
concept of a total team approach that started 
back in January of 2013.  The hard work pays off 
as we all come together to make this a better 
place. 
 
                        
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick,                
City Manager 

12



FY 2015  |  1st increase since 2009

Change since 2007  |  -21.240%

13



  

c Property Taxes

  

d DPW Workers Per Lane Mile

General Fund

14



Community Profile

Staffing levels increased by 9 full time 

positions. This includes 4 in the police 

department, 2 in the streets department, 2 in 

Information Technology and 1 in Human 

Resources.

Water and Sewer costs are expected to increase 

in the range of 4.0% to 4.5%. Water rates will 

increase slightly form $30.35 per 1,000 cubic feet 

(mcf) to $31.00 (2.14%). Sewer rates will remain 

the same as the prior year at $24.80 mcf. This will 

be the third consecutive year for no sewer rate 

increases.

General Fund revenues and other sources are 

budgeted at $53.9 million up $1.8 million or 3.5% 

from the prior year while General Fund 

expenditures and other uses are up $5.3 million 

or 9.8%. 

The major contributing factor to expenditures is a 

$4.3 million transfer to the Captial Projects Fund 

for Street repairs and the rebuild of Fire Station 

#4. This reflects a use of General Fund fund 

balance of $5.6 million but will still maintain total 

reserves at $27.7M and unassigned at $15.2M or 

27.6%

2014/15 Budget At A Glance

Total City revenues (before transfers in) of 

$123.6 million increased $3.3 million or 2.7%. 

The increase was primarly in Charges for 

Services ($2.1M) and Grants (including State 

Shared Revenues) of $0.370M. Tax reveneus 

had a modest increase of $0.286 million or 

0.6%. 

The total City budget for expenditures (before 

transfers out) of $137.9 million increased by 

$10.3 million or 8.0%. The increase is due to 

several factors including Capital Projects 

($6.5M), Personal Services ($1.6M) and Other 

Service Charges ($1.1M).

Capital Projects total $28.6 million and include 

Major Street repairs of $6.6M, Local Street 

repairs $5.6M, Rebuild Fire Station #4 1.85M 

(Total project $3.7M), Sewer System repairs 

$2.2M, Water System repairs $5M, Drain 

repairs $1M and Vehicles $1.8M.

Personal Services total of $50.4 million 

increased $1.6 million or 3.3% due primarly to 

the continued elimination of mandatory 

furlough time, a 1% wage increase, and the 

increased cost of helathcare.

Fact Sheet 

15



Troy is a vibrant community with a strong sense 
of civic pride and dedicated community leaders, 
rich in cultural diversity, community wellness, 
and economic vitality. 
  
Since its incorporation on June 13, 1955 Troy 
has been governed by a 7-member City Council, 
including a Mayor, all of which serve 4-year 
terms.  Under the Council-Manager form of 
government, Mayor and City Council appoint 2 
officials: the City Manager and the City Attorney.  
In turn, the City Manager appoints all 
department directors. 
  
The 2014 estimated population for Troy is 
82,071 according to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG), which 
compares to 80,980 from the 2010 census.  In 
terms of population, Troy is the 13th largest city 
in Michigan and its total property value is the 
third highest in the state. 
  
Troy is a full-service community with public 
transportation provided by a regional authority.   
  
The City of Troy currently maintains 17 
developed park sites, 8 of which are major 
parks.  City parks provide a variety of 
recreational opportunities from baseball 
diamonds to miles of developed walking; 
jogging; and bicycle riding pathways.  Troy has 
1000 acres of parkland (active and passive).  
Additionally, the total acreage of City and 
private parks, including two golf courses, is 
1,446. 
  
Troy has received awards from various 
professional associations and municipal services 
organizations for innovative approaches to 
service delivery and quality improvements. 

Troy enjoys a solid reputation for municipal 
planning and growth management.  Its 
development of a new comprehensive master 
land use plan and corridor studies will guide 
development of the Big Beaver corridor, other 
business corridors and high quality mixed 
residential development as the community’s 
most significant focal points.  
  
The strong commercial and industrial business 
environment is a mix of service, product and 
technological employers. This impressive mix 
of business opportunities has allowed Troy to 
maintain low unemployment rates.  Principal 
employers include: 
  
√  Altair Engineering 
√  Meritor 
√  Behr America 
√  Caretech Solutions 
√  Delphi 
√  Flagstar Bank 
√  Kelly Services 
√  Magna International 
√  PNC Bank 
√  William Beaumont Hospital  
  
Troy also enjoys a wide variety of fine 
restaurants, churches and retail shops.  The 
City occupies 34.3 square miles, and over 98% 
of its land is developed. 

Community Profile 

16



1

Implement a way-finding strategy for City resources

Update and identify funding for the Pathways and Trails Plan

Build and maintain strong, productive service levels

Embrace the Transit Center

Improve road/infrastructure conditions, including County roads

Maintain strong Public Safety service

Facilitate redevelopment of underutilized office and industrial sites

Advance technology to gain efficiencies

Enhance gateways and entrance to create a sense of place

Maintain a branding and marketing plan to effectively communicate

Increase outreach to residents, businesses, and neighboring communities

23
5
7
9

11

4
6
8
10

TOP 11 
STRATEGIES
2014/2015

To honor the past, build a strong, vibrant future and be an attractive place to live, work, and grow a business.

We believe a strong community embraces diversity, promotes innovation, and encourages collaboration. 
We strive to lead by example within the region. We do this because we want everyone to choose Troy as 
their community for life. We believe in doing government the best.

Vision

‘Why’

17



√

√

√

√

√

√

In recent years, changing conditions and fiscal 
capacities combined with the demand for 
increased services have forced a reassessment 
of the role played by local governmental units.   
  
Public officials are charged with the 
responsibility of ensuring that services are   
provided within acceptable levels of cost and, 
when required, seeking alternative methods of 
financing.   
  
The budgetary process allows for accumulation 
of financial and performance information 
relative to these services.  It provides the 
opportunity to analyze and debate the merits 
of each service as well as to make decisions 
about the level and cost of the services to be 
provided. 
  
This budget continues the conservative 
spending approach that residents of Troy 
expect from City government.  This document 
also assists our efforts to make the operations 
of the City more efficient, less costly, and more 
importantly, to target available resources to 
functions according to City Council priority 
rating. 
  

FINANCIAL POLICIES 
  
The City of Troy’s financial policies compiled at 
right set forth basic tenets for overall fiscal 
management of the City.  These policies 
provide a framework of decision making for 
City Council and Administration.  They should 
enforce any policy choice, regardless of 
changing circumstances and conditions.  
  
These policies provide guidelines for evaluating 
current activities as well as proposals for future 
programs. 

The budget process involves personnel and 
management areas of long-term importance:  
Provide a safe, clean and livable city; provide 
effective and efficient local government; build 
a sense of community and attract and retain 
business investment. 
  
Expansion of existing service programs or 
addition of a new service program is only 
considered in the proposed budget when a 
revenue source can support all of the ongoing 
cost, or when the requesting department can 
identify an existing service which can be 
reduced or eliminated.  Programs financed 
with grant money shall be budgeted in special 
funds and, when grant revenues are reduced 
or eliminated, the service program shall be 
adjusted accordingly. 
  
The City maintains a budgetary control system 
to ensure adherence to the budget and 
prepare monthly reports comparing actual 
revenues and expenditures to budgeted 
amounts.  The City reports its financial 
performance quarterly. 
  
The City monitors departmental expenditures 
on a monthly basis to ensure conformity to 
budgets. 
  
The City stresses results, integrating 
performance measurement and productivity 
indicators with the budget. 
  
The City avoids budgetary practices or 
procedures that balance current period 
expenditures at the expense of future years’ 
revenues. 
  
The budget provides for adequate 
maintenance of capital facilities and 
equipment, and for their orderly replacement. 

Budget Policies 

18



The budget process involves personnel and 

Budget Policies 

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√ √

√

  
The budget provides for adequate levels of 
funding for all retirement systems and other 
postemployment benefits. 
  
The City develops and maintains accounting 
and budgetary control systems to adequately 
safeguard the assets held in public trust. 
  
The operating and capital budgets fully 
describe the major goals to be achieved and 
the services and programs to be delivered 
based upon the levels of funding anticipated or 
provided. 
  
The City finances essential City services that 
have a City-wide benefit in the budget from 
revenue sources which are generated from a 
broad base, i.e. property taxes, state revenue 
sharing, assessments, and fees. 
  
The City seeks to minimize the impact in use of 
property tax financing by seeking alternative 
financing for City services that focus on user 
fees for responsive services, and upgrading and 
enhancing the property tax base. 
  
Special assessment financing formulas and 
user-fee rate structures accurately charge the 
cost of service provided to the benefiting 
property owners and customers served while 
being sensitive to the needs of low-income 
people. 
  
The definition of a balanced budget includes 
one in which estimated revenues plus prior 
year accumulated reserves are equal to or 
greater than estimated expenditures. 

  

REVENUE POLICIES 
  
The City makes every attempt to maintain a 
diversified and stable revenue base to shelter it 
from short- or long-term fluctuations in any one 
revenue source. 
  
The City projects its annual revenues by an 
objective and thorough analytical process. 
  
The City maintains sound appraisal procedures 
and practices to reflect current property values. 
  
The City establishes user charges and sets fees 
for services for its enterprise funds at a level 
that fully supports the total direct and indirect 
costs of the activities.  Indirect costs include the 
recognition of annualized depreciation of 
capital assets.  Cash flow requirements to 
adequately defray bond retirement and capital 
outlay are primary determinants in the 
development of user charges. 
  
The City follows an aggressive policy of 
collecting revenues. 
  
The City reviews fees/charges annually and 
design or modify revenue systems to include 
provisions that automatically allow charges to 
grow at a rate that keeps pace with the cost of 
providing the service. 

19



The budget process involves personnel and 

Budget Policies 

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

RESERVE POLICIES 
  
The City accounts for reserves in accordance 
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB ) No. 54. City policy calls for a range of 
General Fund unassigned fund balance between 
20% to 30%. A financial plan is required should 
the General Fund unassigned fund balance fall 
outside of this range.    
  

ACCOUNTING, AUDITING, AND FINANCIAL 
REPORTING POLICIES 
  
An independent audit is performed annually. 
  
The City produces comprehensive annual 
financial reports in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the 
body of accounting and financial reporting 
standards, conventions, and practices that have 
authoritative support from standard setting 
bodies such as the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) and the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). 
  

INVESTMENT POLICIES 
  
The City conducts a cash-flow analysis of all 
funds on a regular basis.  Disbursement, 
collection, and deposit of all funds is scheduled 
to insure maximum investment capabilities. 
  
When permitted by law, the City pools cash from 
several different funds for investment purposes 
to maximize potential earnings. 
  
The City analyzes market conditions and 
potential investments to maximize its yield, 
while maintaining the integrity, diversification, 
and safety of the principal. 
 

The City’s accounting system provides regular 
information concerning cash position and 
investment performance. 
  

DEBT POLICIES 
  
The City confines long-term borrowing to 
capital improvements or projects that cannot 
be financed from current revenues, and where 
the issuance of long-term debt is required, pays 
back the bonds within a period not to exceed 
the expected useful life of the project. 
  
The City attempts to keep the average maturity 
of general obligation bonds at or below 20 
years. 
  
When possible, the City uses special 
assessment, revenue, tax increment, or other 
self-supporting bonds. 
  
The City does not incur long-term debt to 
support current operations. 
  
The City maintains a sound relationship with all 
bond rating agencies and keeps them informed 
about our current capital projects. 

  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET POLICIES 
  
Capital investments foster Troy’s goal of 
providing a safe, clean and livable city. 
  
The City attempts to maintain all its assets at a 
level adequate to protect the City’s capital 
investment and to minimize future 
maintenance and replacement costs 
 

  

20



The budget process involves personnel and 

Budget Policies 

√

√

√

√

√ √

√ √

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

  
The City maintains the fiscal integrity of its 
operating debt service and capital improvement 
budgets in order to provide services, and 
construct and maintain public facilities, streets, 
and utilities. 
  
The City implements a multi-year plan for capital 
improvements with proposed funding sources, 
and updates it annually. 
  
The City makes all capital improvements in 
accordance with an adopted capital acquisition 
program. 
  
The City coordinates decision-making for the 
capital improvement budget with the operating 
budget to make effective use of the City’s limited 
resources for operating and maintaining existing 
services and facilities. 
  
The City uses inter-governmental assistance to 
finance only those capital improvements that are 
consistent with the adopted capital 
improvement plan, City priorities, and for which 
operating and maintenance costs have been 
included in the operating budget. 
  
The City maintains a responsible and prudent 
fiscal condition to minimize long-term interest 
expense when financing capital improvements.  
  
Capital investments are enhanced when there is 
the ability to leverage City assets. 
  
The capital dollar threshold has been established 
at $10,000 with the exception of federally 
funded projects ($5,000). 
 

BUDGET PROCESS 
  
Study Sessions with City Council to gain 
direction, priority and public feedback. 
  
Budget worksheets received from departments 
incorporating direction and goals. 
  
Department budget worksheets compiled, 
analyzed and refined to meet proposed 
direction and goals. 
  
Per City Charter, City Manager submits to City 
Council proposed budget for fiscal year 
commencing July 1 on or before the third 
Monday in April. 
  
Budget workshop with City Council to review 
proposed budget and make any directed 
modifications. 
  
Per City Charter a Public Hearing shall be held 
prior to adoption of budget to obtain public 
comments. 
  
The budget shall be adopted on or before the 
third Monday in May. 
  
The City Manager is authorized to transfer 
budgeted amounts within budgetary functions 
however, any revisions that alter the total 
expenditure of any budgetary function must be 
approved by a majority of the members elect 
of the City Council. 
 

21



Approved 2013/14 budget document distributed at the first City Council meeting in 

July

Director of Financial Services prepares personnel costs and operating cost targets 

for proposed budget

Preparation of the water supply and sewerage disposal system rate analysis

Revenue worksheets due from all departments

Operating budget worksheets due from departments

2014/15 revenue forecast prepared by City management

City management analyzes department budget requests

Capital budget unit (CBU) develops Capital requests and presents the CBU’s 

Capital improvement report to the City Manager

Quarterly financial performance report prepared

Director of Financial Services prepares proposed budget document

City Manager’s final Capital recommendations are reported to all offices and 

included in the proposed budget

Three year budget update and revisions

July

Begin preparing updated Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) 

Begin monitoring budget performance

Distribute operating budget manual and revenue worksheets

November

January

February

March

Quarterly financial performance report prepared

December

Prior year’s annual audit released

Budget Calendar 

22



Budget Calendar 

City Manager makes final proposed budget recommendations

Proposed budget document presented to the City Council Friday, April 18, 2014

City Council workshops:  Budget review, questions, and adjustments, Monday 

April 21, 2014 and Wednesday, April 23, 2014

Budget notice is published in local newspapers

City Manager prepares approved 2014/15 budget document incorporating City 

Council adjustments

Quarterly financial performance report prepared

Public hearing for budget, Monday, May 12, 2014

City Council adopts taxation resolution and appropriations ordinance, Monday, 

May 12, 2014

Director of Financial Services prepares final current year budget amendment

April

May

June

23



Proposed

Taxing Entity 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Tax Rate Shown in Mills

Troy School District 9.87     9.42     8.72     9.74     9.74     10.51   10.07   10.07   

Oakland County Government 4.65     4.65     4.65     4.65     4.65     4.65     4.65     4.65     

Oakland County Comm. College 1.58     1.58     1.58     1.58     1.58     1.58     1.58     1.58     

Intermediate School District 3.37     3.37     3.37     3.37     3.37     3.37     3.37     3.37     

S.M.A.R.T. 0.59     0.59     0.59     0.59     0.59     0.59     0.59     0.59     

State Education 6.00     6.00     6.00     6.00     6.00     6.00     6.00     6.00     

Zoo 0.10     0.10     0.10     0.10     0.10     0.10     0.10     0.10     

Oakland County Art Institute -       -       -       -       -       -       0.20     0.20     

City of Troy 9.28     9.28     9.28     9.40     10.19   10.48   10.50   9.70     

Total - Millage Rates 35.44 34.99 34.29 35.43 36.22 37.28 37.06 36.26

 Millage rates are estimated for other taxing jurisdictions.

Average Residential

Taxable Value 124,597 124,885 120,014 102,490 96,775 97,742 99,172 102,190

Proposed

Taxing Entity 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Average Tax Rates Shown in Dollars

Troy School District 1,230$ 1,176$ 1,047$ $998 $943 $952 $999 $1,029

Oakland County Government 579      581      558      477      450      455      $461 $475

Oakland County Comm. College 197      197      190      162      153      154      $157 $161

Intermediate School District 420      421      404      345      326      329      $334 $344

S.M.A.R.T. 74        74        71        60        57        58        $59 $60

State Education 748      749      720      615      581      586      $595 $613

Zoo -       12        12        10        10        10        $10 $10

Oakland County Art Institute -       -       -       -       -       -       $20 $20

City of Troy 1,156   1,159   1,114   963      986      1,024   $1,041 $991

Total - Dollars 4,404$ 4,369$ 4,116$ 3,630$ 3,506$ 3,568$ 3,676$ 3,703$ 

Average tax rates are based on residential homestead property within the Troy School District.

In the 2014/2015 proposed budget, although the proposed millage rate is reduced by 0.02 mills, the

City portion of the total tax bill increased by $30 or 2.8% due directly from the increase in

average residential taxable value.

Millage Rates for Troy Residents 

and Businesses 

24



Millage Rates for Troy Residents 

and Businesses 

ProposedProposedProposed

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

General Operating       6.50       6.50       6.50       6.50       6.50       6.50       6.50       6.50 

Refuse       0.75       0.87       0.96       1.05       1.09       1.07       1.07       1.07 

Capital       1.53       1.53       1.53       1.53       1.53       1.53       1.53       1.53 

Debt       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.70       0.70       0.70       0.70       0.60 

Library           -             -         0.70       0.70       0.70       0.70       0.70  TBD 

Total 9.28 9.40 10.19 10.48 10.52 10.50 10.50 9.70 

0.00 

2.00 

4.00 

6.00 

8.00 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Millage Rates 

General Operating General Capital Refuse Debt Library 

$0 

$100 

$200 

$300 

$400 

$500 

$600 

$700 

$800 

$900 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

0 0 0 0 68 68 69 72 

62 62 60 51 48 68 69 72 

85 85 90 89 93 103 108 109 

199 200 184 157 148 150 152 156 

810 812 780 666 629 635 645 664 

Average City Taxes Paid by Function 

Library Debt Refuse General Capital General Operating 

25



Millage Rates for Troy Residents 

and Businesses 

*Includes estimated millage rate for Library of 0.7 mill.

** Includes estimated millage rate for refuse collection (3 mill) and Library (0.7 mill).

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

25.89 
23.72 22.43 

15.46 15.2 14.64 13.4 12.69 
10.50 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

M
ill

s
 

Comparison of Municipal Millage Rates For FY 2014 (Estimated/Proposed) 

724 
732 

771 

727 

675 
622 

648 
718 

704 675 

100 

200 

300 

400 

500 

600 

700 

800 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

General Fund Budget Per Resident 

$
 P

e
r 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 

26



GENERAL FUND

The City's major source of revenue comes from 

property taxes.  This revenue is calculated by 

multiplying the taxable valuation of the property by 

the specific tax levy for general operations.  If 

either variable increases or decreases, a relative 

change to the City tax revenue will be 

experienced.

FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL RETURNS

Another source of revenue to the City is federal, state and 

local returns.  This source of revenue is comprised of 

grants from the federal, state, and county levels of 

government.  The major source in this revenue category 

is state revenue sharing. 

The general operations tax levy for the 2013/14 

fiscal year is 6.50 mills per $1,000 taxable value. 

The operating millage rate remains at the same 

level since 2005/06.

LICENSES AND PERMITS

The revenue source from licenses and permits is made 

up of business licenses and permits and non-business 

licenses and permits. 

This revenue source represents 4.14% of total revenue 

sources, and is generated by fees charged to individuals 

and businesses for the building of new structures as well 

as improvements made to existing structures.  

Building permits generate the largest source of revenue, 

accounting for $1.52 million or 67.9% of the total from 

licenses and permits.

State revenue sharing estimates amount to $6.7 million or 

12.5% of total General Fund revenue.  State shared 

revenue is the return of a percentage of the 6% state 

sales tax to local units of government.  Distribution of 

state shared revenue is based on population, relative tax 

efforts, valuation and state operating and reporting 

mandates.  This source of revenue has come under 

pressure as a result of the condition of the state economy 

and state budget shortfalls.  

In the 2014/15 budget, City property tax revenue 

represents 55.4% of total revenue sources, an 

increase of $177 thousand or 0.6% to prior year 

budget.

Taxable values have leveled out and are 

beginning to see modest increases.

A trend of modest increases have been realized from 

State Shared Revenues since fiscal 2011. It should be 

noted however that these revenues were over $8 million 

annually in early 2000. Recent experience can be seen on 

the following page.

The City’s total tax rate of 10.50 mills was 

decreased by 0.02 mills due to the amount 

required for refuse costs.  The operating millage 

rate of 8.03 mills (general operating = 6.50 mills 

and Capital = 1.53 mills) continues to be below the 

8.10 millage rate established by the approved 

(November 2008) City Charter amendment.

Major Revenue Sources 

27



Major Revenue Sources 

The main revenue sources are:

1.)

1.) Fees

2.) Services Rendered 2.)Component Unit Administrative Charges

3.) Sales

4.) Uses

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers to reimburse the General Fund for Major and 

Local Street Expenditures

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Charges for services are broken into the following 

4 categories: 

In total, this revenue source generates $8.0 million 

or 14.75% of total General Fund revenue.  The 

$8.0 million compares to $7.0 million in budgeted 

revenue in 2013/14.

The major sources of revenue are CATV franchise 

fees, Parks and Recreation program fees, 

Community Center pass fees and Engineering 

fees.  The Community Center and its program 

revenue are reviewed annually to meet the goals 

established by City Council.

 $-    

 $1.0  

 $2.0  

 $3.0  

 $4.0  

 $5.0  

 $6.0  

 $7.0  

 $8.0  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Estimated 

2014 
Budget 

2015 
Proposed 

2016 
Proposed 

2017 
Proposed 

State Shared Revenue 

M
il

li
o

n
s

 

28



ALL FUNDS

The graph below illustrates total fund revenues as a percent of All City funds.

(Millions)

The following graph shows property value assessments by property type.  The taxable value,

along with the millage rate, determines the total property tax collected.

Taxable Value of Property

2004/05

2005/06

2006/07

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16 Est.

2016/17 Est.

Major Revenue Sources 

$0.00  

$0.50  

$1.00  

$1.50  

$2.00  

$2.50  

$3.00  

$3.50  

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Est. 2016/17 Est. 

B
ill

io
n

s 

Taxable Value of Property 
Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Personal 

38.00% 

1.00% 
12.00% 

0.00% 

38.00% 

0.00% 
4.00% 

4.00% 

Taxes $46.95 

Licenses & Permits $2.23 

Grants $15.05 

Local Contributions $0.537 

Charges for Services $47.46 

Fines & Forfeitures $0.986 

Interest & Rents $5.118 

Other $5.205 

29



Major Revenue Sources 

GENERAL FUND

Property tax revenue is generated by multiplying the applicable millage rate times the available

taxable value of the city.  Restraints on the growth of this revenue source are tied to the

"Consumer Price Index" (CPI), or 5%, whichever is less, for existing properties.

The major sources of revenues are CATV franchise fees, Parks and Recreation program fees,

Community Center passes and Engineering fees ($6.4 million).

(Millions)

Property Tax Revenue

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 Est.

2014 Bud

2015 Bud

$27.0 

$28.0 

$29.0 

$30.0 

$31.0 

$32.0 

$33.0 

$34.0 

$35.0 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Est. 

2014 
Bud 

2015 
Bud 

2016 
Bud 

2017 
Bud 

M
ill

io
n

s 

Property Tax Revenue 

24% 

37% 
1% 

38% 

General Fund Charges for Services 

Fees $1.87 

Services Rendered $2.95 

Sales $0.07 

Use/Admin $3.04 

30



Major Revenue Sources 

GENERAL FUND, continued

The fee amount for a building permit is calculated based upon the estimated cost of construction.

This revenue source is affected by the economy, and in Troy's case, the amount of buildable

property remaining.  

SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS

ACT 51 revenue is funded by the state and are based on a $0.19 tax per gallon of gasoline 

sales, which is then returned to local units of government using a formula that includes

population and number of miles of major and local roads.  This source of revenue is tied

directly to and affected by the price of gasoline, fuel efficiency and the number of miles driven.

As can be seen from the chart pictured below, those factors have had a negative effect on

this revenue source.

 $-    

 $0.2  

 $0.4  

 $0.6  

 $0.8  

 $1.0  

 $1.2  

 $1.4  

 $1.6  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Est. 2014 Bud 2015 Bud 2016 Bud 2017 Bud 

M
ill

io
n

s 

Building Permit Revenue 

$0.00  

$1.00  

$2.00  

$3.00  

$4.00  

$5.00  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Est. 2014 Bud 2015 Bud 2016 Bud 2017 Bud 

M
ill

io
n

s 

ACT 51 Revenue 
Major Road 

Local Road 

31



Major Revenue Sources 

SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS, continued

The Refuse Fund millage rate is determined by multiplying this rate (1.07) times the taxable value in order

to generate sufficient revenue to cover the cost of refuse collection and disposal as well as curbside

recycling collection.  The 2008 rate was reduced by .15 mills due to the re-bidding of collection and

disposal services by SOCRRA member communities.  The 20011/12 budget reflected a need to increase

this millage rate due to a decrease in taxable value and an increase in costs.  The .07 mill increase in

2009/10 came from the Capital millage rate.  Due to the further reduction in taxable value, there was a

need to increase the Refuse millage rate .09 mills to to .96 mills in 2012, .09 to 1.05 in 2013,.04 to

1.09 in 2014 and down .02 mills for 2015 through 2017

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water and Sewer Rates are reviewed annually. The City purchases water directly from the Detroit 

Water & Sewer Department and indirectly from DWSD through Oakland County. Accordingly, rates set 

by DWSD have a direct impact on the rates charged by the City. Due to the recent bankruptcy of the 

City of Detroit, it is unclear at this time as to the financial stability of DWSD and future rates that it will 

charge. However, the City believes that the water and sewer funds are well positioned to meet any 

unforseen challenges.

0.00 
0.10 
0.20 
0.30 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
0.70 
0.80 
0.90 
1.00 
1.10 
1.20 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

M
ill

io
n

s 

Refuse Fund Millage 

$0.0  

$5.0  

$10.0  

$15.0  

$20.0  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Est. 2014 Bud 2015 Bud 2016 Bud 2017 Bud 

M
ill

io
n

s 

Water and Sewer Charges for Service 
Water 
Sewer 

32



Major Revenue Sources 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS, continued

The City of Troy owns two public golf courses which are now operated and maintained by  

Billy Casper Golf.  Sylvan Glen Golf Course is expected to produce 47,000 rounds of golf in 2014.

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course is our newer public course that came on line in the spring of 2004.

Sanctuary Lake is a links-style course and is projected to generate 33,300 rounds of golf for 2014.

The greens fees are higher at Sanctuary Lake and golfers are required to take a cart due to

the terrain, which accounts for the difference in the amount of revenue and projected rounds.

Sanctuary Lake also has a practice facility consisting of a driving range,

and chipping and putting areas.

2011

2012

2013

2014 Est.

2014 Bud

2015 Bud

2016 Bud

2017 Bud

As a result of a harsh winter, in the spring of 2014 there has been significant green damage to the 

Sylvan Glenn Golf Course. It is anticipated that rounds and revenue for the 2013-14 Fiscal Year will be 

down 6,200 rounds and $140,00 respectively.  

$0.0  

$0.2  

$0.4  

$0.6  

$0.8  

$1.0  

$1.2  

$1.4  

$1.6  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Est. 2014 Bud 2015 Bud 2016 Bud 2017 Bud 

M
ill

io
n

s 

Golf Course Operating Revenues 
Sylvan Glen 

Sanctuary Lake 

33



This chart depicts the cumulative result of excess revenues over or (under) expenditures in the

General Fund.

$23.6 $21.3 $23.7 $25.9 
$32.4 $35.2 $33.3 $33.2 

$27.7 
$23.2 $21.5 

$0.0 

$5.0 

$10.0 

$15.0 

$20.0 

$25.0 

$30.0 

$35.0 

$40.0 

General Fund  
Fund Balance 

(Millions) 

13.5% 
16.9% 18.5% 

23.0% 

51.0% 53.5% 

38.5% 
45.7% 

27.5% 24.3% 21.1% 

-5.0% 

5.0% 

15.0% 

25.0% 

35.0% 

45.0% 

55.0% 

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance as a Percentage of the Budget 

General Fund 

34



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 
provides a summary of Administration’s financial plans for the upcoming fiscal years.  It will explain how the 
City plans to utilize its resources and highlights some of the more significant changes to the City’s budget.  If a 
more in-depth understanding of the budget is desired, please take some time to review the wealth of 
information found within the graphs, charts, narrative text, significant notes and funding level summaries 
provided in the budget.  The budget is available at the City Clerk’s Office and on the City of Troy’s web site. 
 
2014/2015 BUDGET YEAR 
 
Total City Funds 
  
The 2014/15 budget for all City funds totals $152.4 million.  The City establishes a budget for 21 General Fund 
Departments as well as 26 separate funds;  these 26 funds can be further paired into 6 major fund groupings.  
The largest is the General Fund, which provides $59.5 million in funding toward the majority of services 
available to residents through the City’s 26 departments.   
  
Special Revenues Funds provide a total of $14.4 million for major and local road maintenance, refuse and 
recycling, library operations, federally funded Community Development Block Grant programs, federal and 
state drug forfeiture programs and budget stabilization contingency.   
  
Several notable items in the Special Revenues Funds 2014/15 budget include: 
  
Maintain and repair major roads ($4.0 million) 
Maintain local roads ($2.0 million) 
Refuse collection and disposal and recycling activities ($4.4 million). Millage reduction of 0.02 mills to 1.07 
mills. 
Library operations ($3.6 million) 
  
Debt Service Funds total $7.1 million, which provides for debt payments on voter approved debt for road 
construction projects, public safety facilities and the Community Center projects.  In addition it provides for 
DDA financed debt that was refunded under the city. 
  
Capital Projects Funds total $19.8 million for 2014/15.  These funds are used for capital equipment and 
vehicles, construction and improvement of municipal facilities and road construction.  Notable capital 
projects in the 2014/15 budget include: 
  
Major road construction and Improvements ($6.6 million) including a special funding transfer of $2.5 million 
from the General Fund to provide additional resources for Major road construction. The $2.5 million is a part 
of a larger $5.0 million transfer from the General Fund for Major street construction that spans fiscal years 
2013/2014 and 2014/2015. 
 

Local road reconstruction and improvements ($5.6 million). 
 

35



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 
Rebuilding of Fire Station #4 ($1.85 million). The total cost of the project is budgeted at $3.7 million and 
span's over fiscal years 2014/2015 and 2015/2016. The project will be funded by a special transfer from the 
General Fund in the amount of $1.85 million for each year. 
 
Enterprise Funds total $38.4 million and provide for $3.4 million in recreational activities from the City golf 
courses and Aquatic Center along with $35.0 million for public utilities of water and sanitary sewer services/  
  
Internal Service Funds account for $13.2 million in services to all departments including Fleet Maintenance of 
$5.5 million, Information Technology of $2.3 million and Compensated Absences of $3.7 million.  
  
General Fund 
  
General Fund revenues and other sources budget is $53.9 million, an increase of $1.8 million or 3.46%. The 
increase can be attributable to slight increase in tax revenues of $178 thousand or 0.6% but more notably in 
charges for services of $958 thousand or 13.7% and State Shared Revenues of $356 thousand or 5.6%. 
 
The 2014/15 General Fund expenditure budget is $59.5 million, an increase of $5.3 million or 9.8% over the 
2014/15 General Fund budget. The increase is in part due to the personal service increase of $1.3 million or 
3.6%, supplies increased $374 thousand or 15.4% and Other service charges  increased $553 thousand or 
3.4%. The largest increase is from transfers  from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund, an increase 
of $3.2 million compared to the prior year. The transfers total $4.3 million and are one-time in nature to fund 
costs of additional major road repairs ($2.5M) and partial funding to rebuild Fire Station #4 ($1.8M). 
  
Revenues by Category 
  
The General Fund derives its revenue from a variety of sources, the largest being property taxes.  The City’s 
general operating millage rate of 6.50 mills will provide approximately $29.8 million, or 55.3% of the total 
General Fund budget for revenues and other sources. 
  
Troy’s proposed overall millage rate of 10.50 mills is a decrease from 10.52 mills in 2014. This is due to a 
decrease in the refuse millage from 1.09 mills in 2014 to 1.07 for the 2015 fiscal year. 
 

36



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 

Amount %

Categories (Millions) of Total

Licenses & Permits 2.230$        4.14%

Federal, State and Local Grants 0.070          0.13%

State Shared Revenues 6.727          12.48%

Charges for Services 7.950          14.75%

Fines & Forfeitures 0.756          1.40%

Interest & Rents 1.019          1.89%

Other Revenues 1.097          2.03%

Transfers In 4.20            7.80%

Amount %

Categories (Millions) of Total

Personal Services 35.743$      60.06%

Supplies 2.800          4.70%

Other Service Charges 16.674        28.02%

Operating Transfers Out 4.300          7.22%

The General Fund also realizes revenue from a variety of smaller categories to lessen the burden and reliance 
on property taxes:  

Expenditures by Object  
The $59.5 million General Fund budget is comprised of 4 separate expenditure objects or categories as 
follows:   

The largest category of General Fund Expenditures is for Personal Services. The budget for Personal Services 
increased $1.255 million or 3.64% over the previous year. Major factors to the increase include: 
 
• The continued elimination of mandatory unpaid furlough hour concessions ($360K) 
• Salary & Wage increase 1% ($200K) 
• Election Inspectors increase ($72K) due to 2 elections in 2015 fiscal year (none in 2014) 
• Employee health insurance premiums ($230K) 
    (effected by experience rates & Health Care Affordability   Act taxes) 
• Contributions to pension/defined contribution systems increase ($446K). 
    (primarily for healthcare contributions) 
 

37



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 

Supplies increased  $374 thousand or 15.41% primarily due to: 
• Expendable equipment and supplies previously funded by Capital Projects ($213K) 
• Operating supplies for Community Center ($ 100K) 
    (for cardio equipment , water safety products,etc.) 
  
Other Services/Charges increased $528 thousand or 3.27% due to the contributing factors: 
• Contractual Services ($466K) for Local Roads Snow & Ice Control ($130K), Building Inspection fees 
     from SafeBuilt ($370K). The SafeBuilt fees are offset by charges for services. 
• Consulting  Services to increase in contractual engineering for inspections ($325K). 
 
 Transfers out had the largest percentage increase at $3.18 million or 283.9%. The transfers total $4.3 million 
and are one-time in nature to fund costs of additional major road repairs budgeted at$2.5M and to begin the 
process of rebuilding Fire Station #4 budgeted at $1.85 million. It is worth noting that the City's share in the 
additional road projects will total $5 million over the 2 budget years of 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 but the total 
cost of the project will be over $10 million with contributions from federal, state and other local sources. The 
rebuilding of Fire Station #4 is budgeted in total at $3.7 million and funded equally between budget years 
2014/2015 and 2015/2016. 
 
All departmental outlay for major capital purchases is found in the Capital Projects Fund. 
 
Expenditures by Budgetary Center 
  
The General Fund can be further broken down to departmental or budgetary center level.  These budgetary 
centers represent the 21 City operating departments as well as other ancillary expenditure cost centers. 
  
Water and Sewer Fund 
  
The Water and Sewer Fund is a completely self-supporting activity that does not receive funding from property 
taxes or any other City fund.   
  
It is designed to break even, as well as provide funding for improvements to the system, and is expressly for 
the purpose of providing water distribution and sewer disposal services to the City of Troy’s residents and 
businesses. 
  
The City purchases its water and sewage disposal services from the City of Detroit, which directly influences 
the rates Troy charges.  
  
The Detroit water rate is estimated to increase by 4.4% from $20.12 to $21.00 per thousand cubic feet (mcf), 
based on a consumption level of 530,000 mcf’s.   
  
 

38



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 

The City of Detroit will increase the water rates it charges the City of Troy effective July 1, 2014.   
  
The Southeast Oakland County Sewer District rate is estimated to increase by 4.0% from $16.94 to $17.62 per 
thousand cubic feet, after including the Oakland County Drain Commission charges.  The Evergreen-
Farmington Sewer District rate is estimated to increase by 4.4% from $19.42 to $20.20. 
  
The budget recommends that sewer rates remain the same at $24.80 per mcf. This will be the third year in a 
row at that rate. The water rate is recommended to increase from $30.35 to $31.00 per mcf an increase of 
2.14%. The average residential customer uses 3.9 MCF per quarter, which equates to a quarterly bill of  
$217.62. This would be a slight increase of $2.53 per quarter per average residential customer. 
  
Capital expenditures budgeted for both systems include $5.0 million for water and $2.237 million for sewer. 
 
The $7.237 million in water and sewer improvements are being made without bonding due to the rate 
structure in place that not only provides for the commodity charge, but for operations and maintenance and 
capital improvements as well. 
 
The system as a whole is expected to operate  with a slight economic gain of $1.2 million in the coming year 
but with a reduction in working capital of approximately $2.6 million as the City meets the infrastructure 
needs of the system.   
  
The City continues to control its discretionary costs within this fund and provide the necessary equipment to 
properly maintain the system.   
  
Refuse Fund 
  
The Refuse Fund operates as a Special Revenue Fund of the City. It is primarily funded through tax dollars from 
a dedicated millage. The proposed millage for the 2014/2015 budget calls for a reduction from 1.09 mills in 
fiscal 2013/2014 to 1.07 mills.  Based on the taxable value of the average residential home in the City of 
$102,190, the average cost per resident is $109.34 annually.  
 
The 2014/15 budget remains relatively comparable to the prior year with an overall decrease of $45 thousand 
due to agreements with contractors for refuse and recycling services. 
  
 

39



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 

Capital Projects Fund 
  
Property taxes, grants and most notably one-time transfers from the General Fund provide for the funding of 
$19.8 million in capital projects.  Significant projects include Major/County Streets of $6.6 million, Local 
Streets of $5.6 million and partial funding of Fire Station #4 at $1.85 million. 
  
Debt Service Funds 
  
The Debt Service Funds generate their revenue by applying 0.70 mills times the taxable value.  Total debt 
service for voter approved millage is only $3.1 million and will be paid by 2021.  Series 2013 DDA Debt is 
financed by the DDA through transfers to the debt service fund. 
  
Internal Service Funds 
  
Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by a department 
to other departments of the government, on a cost reimbursement basis. 
  
Major Funds 
  
The General Fund is always a major fund.  In addition, governments may report as major funds whatever other 
individual governmental funds they believe to be of particular importance to financial statements users (for 
instance, because of public interest).   
  
At a minimum, governmental funds other than the General Fund must be reported as major funds if they meet 
both of the following criteria (as applied to the final adjusted balances reported in the funds): 
  
10% criterion – An individual governmental fund reports at least 10% of any of the following: 
  
     a)  Total governmental fund assets 
     b)  Total governmental fund liabilities 
     c)  Total governmental fund revenues; or  
     d)  Total governmental fund expenditures 
  
5% criterion – An individual governmental fund reports at least 5% of the aggregated total for both 
governmental funds and enterprise funds of any of the items for which it met the 10% criterion. 
  
The major funds are:  General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Water Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund and Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Course Fund. 
 

40



Executive Summary 

 The Executive Summary is prepared as an introduction to the 2013/14 through 2016/2017 budgets and 
 
Non - Major Funds 
  
The non-major funds are:  Debt Service Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Aquatic Center Fund, Sylvan Glen Golf 
Course Fund and Internal Service Funds. 
  
Basis of Budgeting 
  
All governmental funds which includes the General Fund, Special Revenues Fund, Capital Projects Funds and 
Debt Service Funds were budgeted using the Modified Accrual basis of accounting which is used for financial 
reporting purposes in the City’s audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 
  
All proprietary funds which include the Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds were budgeted using the 
accrual basis of accounting with the exception of using a cash basis approach for the purchase of capital 
assets and not recognizing depreciation expense.  A full accrual basis of accounting is used for financial 
reporting purposes in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 
 

41



Total City Budget

152,423,910$       

General Fund (m)

Special Revenue 

Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Project Funds Enterprise Funds Internal Service Funds

59,515,918$                   14,424,500$               7,102,200$               19,764,900$                 38,417,462$            13,198,930$                         

General Gov't Major Streets Gen. Debt Svc. Capital Projects (m) Sanctuary Lk. GC (m) Building Operations

7,540,260.00$               4,025,000$                 3,105,600$               19,764,900$                 1,841,151$              1,051,260$                           

Public Safety Local Streets 2000 MTF Bond Spec. Assessments Sylvan Glen GC Fleet Maintenance

31,319,038.00$             2,032,000$                 -$                                -$                                    1,106,219$              5,462,540$                           

Public Works Refuse Fund Proposal A Debt Aquatic Center Information Technology

6,273,600.00$               4,446,000$                 950,300$                  476,500$                 2,292,130$                           

Community Dev. Budget Stabilization Proposal B Debt Sewer (m) Unemployment

3,161,030.00$               -$                                  1,334,300$               14,745,131$            300,000$                              

-$                                  

Recreation/Culture Drug Forfeiture Proposal C Debt Water (m) Worker's Comp

6,921,990.00$               182,000$                    753,100$                  20,248,461$            377,000$                              

Other Uses Library Series 2013-DDA Compensated Absences

4,300,000.00$               3,582,200$                 958,900$                  3,716,000$                           

CDGB

157,300                       

*(m) Indicates "Major" Fund Type. See Page 40 for a definition of Major Fund Type.

Financial Organization Chart 

42



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $      52,202,070  $      50,606,758  $      52,809,070  $      52,088,500  $      53,892,950 3.46%  $      53,882,850  $      54,346,050 

Expenditures By Function:

General Government             6,664,052             6,576,272             6,806,385             7,247,310             7,540,260 4.04%             7,496,060             7,576,810 

Public Safety            26,644,360            27,330,417            29,341,025            30,695,530            31,319,038 2.03%            31,493,494            31,763,623 

Public Works             4,159,750             4,257,860             5,678,002             5,778,350             6,273,600 8.57%             6,378,700             6,430,800 

Community Development             2,368,028             2,493,073             2,925,085             2,720,000             3,161,030 16.21%             3,188,530             3,199,350 

Recreation and Culture             5,925,815             5,976,908             6,425,372             6,592,910             6,921,990 4.99%             7,009,510             7,063,399 

Other Financing Uses                111,785             1,134,786             3,550,000             1,120,200             4,300,000 283.86%             2,850,000                           - 

Total Expenditures and Other 

Uses
         45,873,790          47,769,316          54,725,869          54,154,300          59,515,918 9.90%          58,416,294          56,033,982 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)            6,328,280            2,837,442          (1,916,799)          (2,065,800)          (5,622,968) 172.19%          (4,533,444)          (1,687,932)

Beginning Fund Balance            26,068,785            32,397,065            35,234,507            35,234,507            33,317,708 -5.44%            27,694,740            23,161,296 

Ending Fund Balance  $      32,397,065  $      35,234,507  $      33,317,708  $      33,168,707  $      27,694,740 -16.50%  $      23,161,296  $      21,473,364 

Special Revenue Funds

Major Streets Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $          3,580,347  $          3,628,397  $          3,676,000  $          3,509,000  $          3,932,000 12.05%  $          3,737,000  $          3,774,000 

Expenditures - Public Works             3,410,644             2,708,840             3,940,760             4,046,600             4,025,000 -0.53%             3,840,000             3,858,700 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                169,703                919,557               (264,760)               (537,600)                 (93,000) -82.70%               (103,000)                 (84,700)

Beginning Fund Balance             2,402,623             2,572,326             3,491,883             3,491,883             3,227,123 -7.58%             3,134,123             3,031,123 

Ending Fund Balance  $        2,572,326  $        3,491,883  $        3,227,123  $        2,954,283  $        3,134,123 6.09%  $        3,031,123  $        2,946,423 

Local Streets Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $          1,631,293  $          1,737,690  $          1,747,500  $          1,688,000  $          2,050,000 21.45%  $          2,074,000  $          2,089,000 

Expenditures - Public Works                920,242                921,329             1,896,710             1,705,900             2,032,000 19.12%             2,110,500             2,127,900 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                711,051                816,361               (149,210)                 (17,900)                  18,000 -200.56%                 (36,500)                 (38,900)

Beginning Fund Balance             1,454,555             2,165,606             2,981,967             2,981,967             2,832,757 -5.00%             2,850,757             2,814,257 

Ending Fund Balance  $        2,165,606  $        2,981,967  $        2,832,757  $        2,964,067  $        2,850,757 -3.82%  $        2,814,257  $        2,775,357 

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

43



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Refuse Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $          4,186,571  $          4,460,285  $          4,662,500  $          4,614,000  $          4,596,000 -0.39%  $          4,661,000  $          4,726,000 

Expenditures - Sanitation             4,216,325             4,331,561             4,324,790             4,491,240             4,446,000 -1.01%             4,544,960             4,636,410 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                 (29,753)                128,724                337,710                122,760                150,000 22.19%                116,040                  89,590 

Beginning Fund Balance                  83,898                  54,145                182,869                182,869                520,579 184.67%                670,579                786,619 

Ending Fund Balance  $             54,145  $           182,869  $           520,579  $           305,629  $           670,579 119.41%  $           786,619  $           876,209 

Budget Stabilization Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $                5,861  $              11,480  $              10,000  $                5,000  $              10,000 100.00%  $              10,000  $              10,000 

Expenditures - General 

Government
                          -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                    5,861                  11,480                  10,000                    5,000                  10,000 100.00%                  10,000                  10,000 

Beginning Fund Balance             1,508,257             1,514,118             1,525,598             1,525,598             1,535,598 0.66%             1,545,598             1,555,598 

Ending Fund Balance  $        1,514,118  $        1,525,598  $        1,535,598  $        1,530,598  $        1,545,598 0.98%  $        1,555,598  $        1,565,598 

Drug Forfeiture Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $                       -  $             266,741  $             355,500  $             119,900  $             130,000 8.42%  $             130,000  $             130,000 

Expenditures - Public Safety                           -                  48,218                  85,500                  62,000                182,000 193.55%                152,000                332,400 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                218,524                270,000                  57,900                 (52,000) -189.81%                 (22,000)               (202,400)

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                218,524                218,524                488,524 123.56%                436,524                414,524 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $           218,524  $           488,524  $           276,424  $           436,524 57.92%  $           414,524  $           212,124 

Library Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $          3,355,934  $          3,295,993  $          3,274,000  $          3,236,000  $          3,265,800 0.92%  $          3,308,800  $          3,350,800 

Expenditures - Recreation and 

Culture
            2,603,010             2,856,967             3,102,600             3,261,990             3,582,200 9.82%             3,527,100             3,559,600 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                752,924                439,027                171,400                 (25,990)               (316,400) 1117.39%               (218,300)               (208,800)

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                752,924             1,191,950             1,191,950             1,363,350 14.38%             1,046,950                828,650 

Ending Fund Balance  $           752,924  $        1,191,950  $        1,363,350  $        1,165,960  $        1,046,950 -10.21%  $           828,650  $           619,850 

Note: The Current Library Millage Expires After Fiscal 2016. The 2017 Budget is Applied on a "Going Concern" Basis. Accordingly, the 2017 Budget is for Discussion Purposes Only.

44



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Community Devlopment Block 

Grant

Revenues and Other Sources  $             133,712  $             621,439  $             725,800  $             731,100  $             157,300 -78.48%  $             152,000  $             152,000 

Expenditures - Community 

Development
               133,712                621,439                725,800                731,100                157,300 -78.48%                152,000                152,000 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Debt Service Funds

General Debt Service Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $          2,184,620  $          2,973,437  $          2,992,000  $          2,979,000  $          3,003,700 0.83%  $          3,046,000  $          2,650,000 

Expenditures - Debt Service             3,143,200             3,142,340             3,068,643             3,107,043             3,105,600 -0.05%             3,097,000             3,036,600 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)               (958,580)               (168,904)                 (76,643)               (128,043)               (101,900) -20.42%                 (51,000)               (386,600)

Beginning Fund Balance             2,586,721             1,628,141             1,459,237             1,459,237             1,382,594 -5.25%             1,280,694             1,229,694 

Ending Fund Balance  $        1,628,141  $        1,459,237  $        1,382,594  $        1,331,194  $        1,280,694 -3.79%  $        1,229,694  $           843,094 

2000 MTF Bond Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $             236,988  $             251,013  $             264,050  $             264,050  $                       - -100.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Expenditures - Debt Service                236,988                251,013                264,050                264,050                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Proposal A Bond Debt Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $             833,663  $             885,863  $             881,018  $             881,268  $             950,300 7.83%  $             914,600  $             903,100 

Expenditures - Debt Service                833,663                885,863                881,018                881,268                950,300 7.83%                914,600                903,100 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

45



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Proposal B Bond Debt Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $          1,471,825  $          1,417,100  $          1,375,225  $          1,376,075  $          1,334,300 -3.04%  $          1,391,300  $          1,355,600 

Expenditures - Debt Service             1,471,825             1,417,100             1,375,225             1,376,075             1,334,300 -3.04%             1,391,300             1,355,600 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Proposal C Bond Debt Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $             746,500  $             745,600  $             745,900  $             746,200  $             753,100 0.92%  $             722,600  $             717,100 

Expenditures - Debt Service                746,500                745,600                745,900                746,200                753,100 0.92%                722,600                717,100 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Series 2013-DDA

Revenues and Other Sources  $                       -  $                       -  $        16,093,374  $                       -  $             958,900 100.00%  $             951,000  $             942,000 

Expenditures - Debt Service                           -                           -            16,093,374                           -                958,900 100.00%                951,000                942,000 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $        10,673,447  $        14,966,358  $        17,734,700  $        13,341,400  $        16,552,200 24.07%  $        14,571,200  $        10,877,700 

Expenditures - Capital Outlay            11,565,772            14,305,137            15,710,359            14,994,900            19,764,900 31.81%            16,694,200            13,619,000 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)               (892,325)                661,222             2,024,341            (1,653,500)            (3,212,700) 94.30%            (2,123,000)            (2,741,300)

Beginning Fund Balance            12,209,633            11,317,308            11,978,530            11,978,530            14,002,871 16.90%            10,790,171             8,667,171 

Ending Fund Balance  $      11,317,308  $      11,978,530  $      14,002,871  $      10,325,030  $      10,790,171 4.50%  $        8,667,171  $        5,925,871 

Special Assessments Fund

Revenues and Other Sources  $              66,479  $              53,965  $                       -  $              20,500  $                       - -100.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

Expenditures - Capital Outlay                356,000                  97,609                           -                  20,500                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Net Surplus/(Shortfall)               (289,521)                 (43,644)                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Fund Balance                333,165                  43,644                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Ending Fund Balance  $             43,644  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 0.00%  $                       -  $                       - 

46



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Enterprise Funds

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

Fund

Operating Revenues  $          1,442,754  $          1,295,383  $          1,329,782  $          1,478,300  $          1,500,500 1.50%  $          1,522,900  $          1,522,900 

Operating Expenses             1,038,349                954,640             1,052,178             1,189,600             1,140,176 -4.15%             1,210,129             1,210,129 

Income Before Cap/Dep               404,406               340,743               277,604               288,700               360,324 24.81%               312,771               312,771 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                298,695                301,946                106,200                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Income from Operations               105,711                 38,797               171,404               288,700               360,324 24.81%               312,771               312,771 

Other Financing Uses                484,344                419,657                400,000                670,900                700,975 4.48%                879,888                855,525 

Net Income/(Loss)              (378,633)              (380,860)              (228,596)              (382,200)              (340,651) -10.87%              (567,117)              (542,754)

Beginning Net Position            (4,578,020)            (4,956,653)            (5,337,513)            (5,337,513)            (5,566,109) 4.28%            (5,906,760)            (6,473,877)

Ending Net Position  $      (4,956,653)  $      (5,337,513)  $      (5,566,109)  $      (5,719,713)  $      (5,906,760) 3.27%  $      (6,473,877)  $      (7,016,631)

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund

Operating Revenues  $          1,295,632  $          1,175,724  $          1,121,474  $          1,260,600  $          1,278,403 1.41%  $          1,293,801  $          1,293,801 

Operating Expenses                914,762                915,585             1,049,339             1,063,600             1,099,719 3.40%             1,107,038             1,107,138 

Income Before Cap/Dep               380,871               260,140                 72,135               197,000               178,684 -9.30%               186,763               186,663 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                146,997                134,069                104,000                224,400                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Income from Operations               233,874               126,070                (31,865)                (27,400)               178,684 -752.13%               186,763               186,663 

Other Financing Uses                           -                    2,949                    6,500                           -                    6,500 100.00%                    6,500                    6,500 

Net Income/(Loss)               233,874               123,122                (38,365)                (27,400)               172,184 -728.41%               180,263               180,163 

Beginning Net Position             5,309,858             5,543,732             5,666,853             5,666,853             5,628,488 -0.68%             5,800,672             5,980,935 

Ending Net Position  $        5,543,732  $        5,666,853  $        5,628,488  $        5,639,453  $        5,800,672 2.86%  $        5,980,935  $        6,161,098 

47



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Aquatic Center

Operating Revenues  $             577,757  $             481,423  $             580,400  $             580,500  $             593,500 2.24%  $             596,500  $             601,500 

Operating Expenses                401,021                371,766                406,400                402,800                388,500 -3.55%                448,530                450,500 

Income Before Cap/Dep               176,737               109,657               174,000               177,700               205,000 15.36%               147,970               151,000 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                167,213                170,420                  57,820                226,000                  88,000 -61.06%                  65,000                  85,000 

Income from Operations                   9,523                (60,763)               116,180                (48,300)               117,000 -342.24%                 82,970                 66,000 

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)                   9,523                (60,763)               116,180                (48,300)               117,000 -342.24%                 82,970                 66,000 

Beginning Net Position             1,267,839             1,277,362             1,216,600             1,216,600             1,332,780 9.55%             1,449,780             1,532,750 

Ending Net Position  $        1,277,362  $        1,216,600  $        1,332,780  $        1,168,300  $        1,449,780 24.09%  $        1,532,750  $        1,598,750 

Sewer Fund

Operating Revenues  $        13,360,860  $        13,256,111  $        12,649,000  $        14,539,000  $        14,842,000 2.08%  $        15,016,000  $        15,131,000 

Operating Expenses            10,538,947            10,986,302            10,824,270            11,925,970            12,508,131 4.88%            13,041,711            13,570,661 

Income Before Cap/Dep            2,821,913            2,269,809            1,824,730            2,613,030            2,333,869 -10.68%            1,974,289            1,560,339 

Capital/Depreciation Expense             1,241,032             1,239,219                915,000             1,800,000             2,237,000 24.28%             2,652,000             2,308,000 

Income from Operations            1,580,882            1,030,590               909,730               813,030                 96,869 -88.09%              (677,711)              (747,661)

Other Financing Uses                596,316                           -                           -                527,050                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)               984,566            1,030,590               909,730               285,980                 96,869 -66.13%              (677,711)              (747,661)

Beginning Net Position            64,028,966            65,013,532            66,044,122            66,044,122            66,953,852 1.38%            67,050,721            66,373,010 

Ending Net Position  $      65,013,532  $      66,044,122  $      66,953,852  $      66,330,102  $      67,050,721 1.09%  $      66,373,010  $      65,625,349 

48



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Water Fund

Operating Revenues  $        16,095,886  $        16,348,291  $        15,183,000  $        17,244,000  $        17,913,000 3.88%  $        18,198,000  $        18,513,000 

Operating Expenses            11,792,706            12,256,652            13,875,650            14,707,330            15,248,461 3.68%            15,515,291            16,014,591 

Income Before Cap/Dep            4,303,180            4,091,639            1,307,350            2,536,670            2,664,539 5.04%            2,682,709            2,498,409 

Capital/Depreciation Expense             2,128,153             2,183,147             4,595,000             4,300,000             5,000,000 16.28%             4,950,000             4,050,000 

Income from Operations            2,175,028            1,908,492          (3,287,650)          (1,763,330)          (2,335,461) 32.45%          (2,267,291)          (1,551,591)

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)            2,175,028            1,908,492          (3,287,650)          (1,763,330)          (2,335,461) 32.45%          (2,267,291)          (1,551,591)

Beginning Net Position            96,756,916            98,931,944          100,840,436          100,840,436            97,552,786 -3.26%            95,217,325            92,950,034 

Ending Net Position  $      98,931,944  $    100,840,436  $      97,552,786  $      99,077,106  $      95,217,325 -3.90%  $      92,950,034  $      91,398,443 

Internal Service Funds

Building Operations Fund

Operating Revenues  $             966,300  $             971,325  $             878,200  $             981,200  $             995,400 1.45%  $          1,033,200  $          1,057,400 

Operating Expenses                782,929                814,811                957,000             1,062,680             1,051,260 -1.07%             1,071,790             1,095,840 

Income Before Cap/Dep               183,371               156,513                (78,800)                (81,480)                (55,860) -31.44%                (38,590)                (38,440)

Capital/Depreciation Expense                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Income from Operations               183,371               156,513                (78,800)                (81,480)                (55,860) -31.44%                (38,590)                (38,440)

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)               183,371               156,513                (78,800)                (81,480)                (55,860) -31.44%                (38,590)                (38,440)

Beginning Net Position                259,641                443,012                599,525                599,525                520,725 -13.14%                464,865                426,275 

Ending Net Position  $           443,012  $           599,525  $           520,725  $           518,045  $           464,865 -10.27%  $           426,275  $           387,835 

49



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Fleet Maintenance Fund

Operating Revenues  $          3,668,839  $          3,547,681  $          3,971,140  $          4,077,400  $          4,103,917 0.65%  $          4,198,350  $          4,272,650 

Operating Expenses             2,645,005             2,602,924             3,279,250             3,634,460             3,674,540 1.10%             3,710,520             3,732,120 

Income Before Cap/Dep            1,023,834               944,757               691,890               442,940               429,377 -3.06%               487,830               540,530 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                822,194                687,480             1,360,000             1,393,200             1,788,000 28.34%             1,650,000             1,650,000 

Income from Operations               201,640               257,276              (668,110)              (950,260)          (1,358,623) 42.97%          (1,162,170)          (1,109,470)

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)               201,640               257,276              (668,110)              (950,260)          (1,358,623) 42.97%          (1,162,170)          (1,109,470)

Beginning Net Position             8,903,589             9,105,229             9,362,505             9,362,505             8,694,395 -7.14%             7,335,772             6,173,602 

Ending Net Position  $        9,105,229  $        9,362,505  $        8,694,395  $        8,412,245  $        7,335,772 -12.80%  $        6,173,602  $        5,064,132 

Information Technology Fund

Operating Revenues  $          1,569,797  $          1,554,825  $          1,509,355  $          1,555,400  $          2,056,690 32.23%  $          1,847,500  $          1,875,800 

Operating Expenses             1,435,008             1,632,903             1,757,300             1,769,090             2,053,630 16.08%             1,839,980             1,875,430 

Income Before Cap/Dep               134,789                (78,078)              (247,945)              (213,690)                   3,060 -101.43%                   7,520                      370 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                  64,321                  75,197                  46,000                  46,000                238,500 418.48%                  60,000                  70,000 

Income from Operations                 70,467              (153,275)              (293,945)              (259,690)              (235,440) -9.34%                (52,480)                (69,630)

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)                 70,467              (153,275)              (293,945)              (259,690)              (235,440) -9.34%                (52,480)                (69,630)

Beginning Net Position             1,797,771             1,868,238             1,714,964             1,714,964             1,421,019 -17.14%             1,185,579             1,133,099 

Ending Net Position  $        1,868,238  $        1,714,964  $        1,421,019  $        1,455,274  $        1,185,579 -18.53%  $        1,133,099  $        1,063,469 

50



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Unemployment Fund

Operating Revenues  $             364,620  $             325,030  $             300,000  $             300,000  $             300,000 0.00%  $             300,000  $             300,000 

Operating Expenses                448,872                317,512                300,000                300,000                300,000 0.00%                300,000                300,000 

Income Before Cap/Dep                (84,251)                   7,519                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Income from Operations                (84,251)                   7,519                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)                (84,251)                   7,519                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Net Position                176,732                  92,481                  99,999                  99,999                  99,999 0.00%                  99,999                  99,999 

Ending Net Position  $             92,481  $             99,999  $             99,999  $             99,999  $             99,999 0.00%  $             99,999  $             99,999 

Worker's Compensation Fund

Operating Revenues  $             336,349  $              78,366  $             370,000  $             308,500  $             377,000 22.20%  $             385,000  $             393,000 

Operating Expenses                336,349                294,322                370,000                300,000                377,000 25.67%                385,000                393,000 

Income Before Cap/Dep                           -              (215,956)                           -                   8,500                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Income from Operations                           -              (215,956)                           -                   8,500                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)                           -              (215,956)                           -                   8,500                           - -100.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Net Position             2,397,956             2,397,956             2,182,000             2,182,000             2,182,000 0.00%             2,182,000             2,182,000 

Ending Net Position  $        2,397,956  $        2,182,000  $        2,182,000  $        2,190,500  $        2,182,000 -0.39%  $        2,182,000  $        2,182,000 

51



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

All Funds  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Compensated Absences Fund

Operating Revenues  $          3,639,085  $          2,714,693  $          4,126,000  $          3,631,000  $          3,716,000 2.34%  $          3,796,000  $          3,866,000 

Operating Expenses             3,639,084             2,714,543             4,126,000             3,631,000             3,716,000 2.34%             3,796,000             3,866,000 

Income Before Cap/Dep                          1                      150                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Capital/Depreciation Expense                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Income from Operations                          1                      150                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Other Financing Uses                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Net Income/(Loss)                          1                      150                           -                           -                           - 0.00%                           -                           - 

Beginning Net Position             1,006,800             1,006,801             1,006,951             1,006,951             1,006,951 0.00%             1,006,951             1,006,951 

Ending Net Position  $        1,006,801  $        1,006,951  $        1,006,951  $        1,006,951  $        1,006,951 0.00%  $        1,006,951  $        1,006,951 

52



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Accounting

Account Clerk I 1.00 1.00 1.00

Accountant 4.00 4.00 4.00

Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00

Acting Accountant

Administrative Aide

Administrative Aide PT 0.70 0.80

Financial Services Director

Interim Controller PT 0.50

Intern 0.70

Risk Manager 1.00

Senior Accountant 1.00

Total for Accounting 7.00 0.50 6.00 0.70 6.00 1.50

Aquatic Center

Aquatics Coordinator 0.40

Assistant Pool Manager-TFAC 1.00 0.90 0.80

Cashier-Aquatic Center 1.20 1.20 1.10

Instructor-Water Safety TFAC 1.10 1.80 1.60

Instructor-Water Safety-PrivTFAC 0.10 0.20 0.10

Lifeguard TFAC 6.70 7.00 6.60

Pool Manager-TFAC 0.30 0.30 0.40

Total for Aquatic Center 0.40 10.40 0.00 11.40 0.00 10.60

Assessing

Account Clerk II 2.00 2.00 2.00

Appraiser 2.00 2.00 2.00

Appraiser PT 0.50 0.80 0.70

City Assessor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Deputy City Assessor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Assessing 6.00 0.50 6.00 0.80 6.00 0.70

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

53



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Building Inspection

Building Official/Code Inspector 0.35 0.35 0.35

Total for Building Inspection 0.35 0.00 0.35 0.00 0.35 0.00

Building Operations

Building Maint Specialist 5.00 4.00 4.00

Building Maint Specialist II 1.00 1.00

Building Maint Specialist PT 1.00 1.50 1.10

Building Operations Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Intern 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.80

Secretary 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Building Operations 7.00 1.00 7.00 1.50 7.00 1.90

City Attorney

Attorney I 1.00 1.00 1.00

Attorney II 2.00 2.00 2.00

City Attorney 1.00 1.00 1.00

Legal Assistant I 1.00 1.00 1.00

Legal Assistant II 1.00 1.00 1.00

Legal Secretary 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for City Attorney 7.00 0.00 7.00 0.00 7.00 0.00

City Clerk

Administrative Aide 1.00 1.00 1.00

City Clerk 1.00 1.00 1.00

Election Aide 0.10 0.40

Office Assistant I 2.00 2.00 2.00

Office Assistant PT 1.00 0.80 0.50

Total for City Clerk 4.00 1.00 4.00 0.90 4.00 0.90

54



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Engineering

City Engineer 1.00 1.00 1.00

Civil Engineer 2.00 2.00 2.00

Deputy City Engineer 1.00 1.00 1.00

GIS Analyst 0.25 0.25 0.25

Inspector Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Land Surveyor 1.00 1.00 1.00

MSE-E Engineering Specialist II 2.00 2.00 2.00

MSE-H Engineering Specialist III 1.00 1.00 1.00

Office Assistant PT

Secretary II 1.00 1.00 1.00

Sr Right of Way Representative 1.00 1.00 1.00

Sr Traffic Engineering Tech 0.30 0.30 0.30

Traffic Engineering Tech

Total for Engineering 11.25 0.30 11.25 0.30 11.25 0.30

Fire

Division Assistant Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00

Fire Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00

Fire Staff Assistant 1.80 1.60 1.70

Fire Staff Lieutenant 5.00 5.00 5.00

Fire Staff Technician 3.00 3.00 3.00

Office Assistant PT 0.50 0.50 0.50

Secretary 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Fire 11.00 2.30 11.00 2.10 11.00 2.20

Historic Village - Contracted with Non-Profit Entity 2011/12

MSE-C Equipment Operator I 0.10 0.10 0.10

Total for Historic Village 0.10 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.10 0.00

Golf Course - Contracted with Billy Casper Golf 2011/12

Total for Golf Course 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

55



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Human Resources

Administrative Aide PT 0.80

Administrative Aide PT - Shared 0.40

Human Resource Coordinator 2.00

Human Resources Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Human Resources Specialist 1.00 1.00

Intern 0.50

Secretary II 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Human Resources 3.00 0.40 3.00 0.80 4.00 0.50

Information Technology

Application Specialist 1.00 1.00 2.00

Application Specialist PT 0.60 0.60

Data Proc Analyst/Programmer 1.00 1.00 1.00

GIS Administrator 1.00 1.00 1.00

GIS Analyst 0.25 0.25 0.25

Information Technology Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Lead PC Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00

Network Administrator 1.00 1.00 1.00

PC Specialist/Help Desk Tech 2.00 2.00 3.00

Total for Information Technology 8.25 0.60 8.25 0.60 10.25 0.00

Library

Administrative Aide 1.00 1.00 1.00

Administrative Aide PT 0.80

Assistant Library Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Circulation Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Intern 0.50 1.50

Librarian I 2.00 1.00

Librarian II 2.00 2.00 2.00

Librarian PT 9.00 8.00 6.90

56



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Library Continued

Librarian-Substitute 0.50 1.00

Library Aide PT 5.00 5.50 6.40

Library Aide-Substitute 0.10 0.90 0.50

Library Assistant 7.00 7.50 7.40

Library Assistant-Substitute 0.40 0.70 1.20

Library Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Library Page 6.90 5.00 5.30

Library System Specialist 0.50 0.50

Marketing & Development Coor 1.00 0.50

Office Assistant PT 0.50

Technical Services Supervisor 1.50 1.10 1.00

Technology Specialist 1.00

Total for Library 6.00 31.70 9.00 29.70 8.50 31.70

Manager

Acting Asst City Mgr-EconDevSrvs

Administrative Aide

Administrative Asst to City Mgr

Asst City Mgr-Finance/Admin

Asst to CM/Cont Improvement Coord 1.00 1.00 1.00

Cable Production Specialist 0.30 0.20 0.40

Camera Operator 0.10 0.10 0.10

City Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00

Community Affairs Director 

(Police/CMO)

0.50 0.50 0.50

Director of Financial Services 1.00 1.00 1.00

Economic & Comm Development Dir 1.00 1.00 1.00

Economic Dev Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00

Intern 0.60 0.70 1.00

Marketing Coordinator (Lib/CMO) 0.50

57



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Manager Continued

Office Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Manager 6.50 1.00 6.50 1.00 7.00 1.50

Fleet Maintenance

Field Supervisor 2.00 2.00 2.00

Inventory Control Assistant 1.00 1.00 1.00

MSE-D Service Tech I-Fleet 3.00 3.00 3.00

MSE-F Trade Specialist I 6.00 6.00 6.00

MSE-G Trade Specialist II 4.00 4.00 4.00

Public Works Assistant 0.50 0.80 1.00

Public Works Director 0.33 0.33 0.33

Supt of Fleet Maintenance 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Motor Pool 17.33 0.50 17.33 0.80 17.33 1.00

Nature Center - Contracted with Non-Profit Entity 2011/12

Coordinator-Nature Center

Total for Nature Center 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Parks

Field Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

MSE-C Equipment Operator I 1.90 1.90 1.90

MSE-D Service Tech I-Parks 1.00 1.00 1.00

MSE-F Trade Specialist I 1.00 1.00 1.00

MSE-G Leader 1.00 1.00 1.00

Ordinance Enforcement Officer 0.40 0.40 0.40

Seasonal Supervisor 1.20 1.20 1.20

Summer Laborer - Parks 8.90 8.90 7.20

Supt of Parks, Streets & Drains 0.33 0.33 0.33

Total for Parks 6.23 10.50 6.23 10.50 6.23 8.80

58



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Planning

Acting Planning Director

Building Official/Code Inspector 0.65 0.65 0.65

Housing & Zoning Inspector

Housing & Zoning Inspector PT 2.00 1.00 0.80

Housing & Zoning Inspector Temp 0.80 0.80

Planning Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Secretary II 1.00 1.00 1.00

Zoning & Compliance Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Planning 3.65 2.00 3.65 1.80 3.65 1.60

Police Department

911 Operator 0.80 0.40 1.00

Administrative Assistant PT 0.40 0.40 0.40

Background Investigator 0.90 1.40 1.40

Communications Supervisor 8.00 8.00 8.00

Communications Manager 1.00

Community Affairs Director 0.50 0.50 0.50

Crime Data Analyst 1.00 1.00

Crossing Guard 0.90 1.00 1.10

Emergency Prep Planner 1.00

Emergency Prep Planner PT 0.50 0.50

Investigative Assistant 0.90 0.90 0.90

Office Assistant PT 0.50 0.50 0.50

Office Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Analyst/Planner 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Analyst/Programmer 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Captain 3.00 2.00 2.00

Police Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Computer Technician 0.50 0.50 0.50

Police Desk Attendant 2.40 2.90 2.90

Police Lieutenant 4.00 5.00 5.00

59



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Police Department-Continued

Police Officer 74.00 76.00 78.00

Police Records Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Sergeant 15.00 15.00 15.00

Police Service Aide 27.00 27.00 28.00

Records Clerk 4.00 4.00 4.00

Research & Tech Administrator 1.00 1.00 1.00

Secretary II 4.00 4.00 4.00

Student Enforcement Aide 0.10 0.10 0.10

Technical Support Specialist

Total for Police Department 146.50 7.90 148.50 8.60 152.50 8.80

Purchasing

Administrative Aide PT - Shared 0.40

Buyer 1.00 1.00 1.00

Purchasing Director 1.00

Purchasing Manager 1.00 1.00

Total for Purchasing 2.00 0.40 2.00 0.00 2.00 0.00

Recreation

Account Clerk II 1.00 1.00 1.00

Aide-Adaptive Program 0.70 1.10 0.70

Aide-Safety Town 0.10 0.10

Aquatics & Fitness Coordinator 1.00

Aquatics Coordinator 0.60

Assistant Pool Manager-CC 1.90 1.90 2.40

Assistant Recreation Director 1.00

Attendant-Community Center 3.80 5.10 3.40

Babysitter 1.50 1.60 1.50

Coordinator-Adaptive Program 0.50 0.80 0.40

Coordinator-Day Camp 0.30 0.30 0.30

Coordinator-PreSchool 0.60 0.60 0.60

Coordinator-Recreation 5.90 4.50 5.60

60



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Recreation - Continued

Coordinator-Rentals 0.70

Coordinator-Safety Town 0.10 0.10 0.10

Coordinator-Senior Program 1.40

Coordinator-Soccer-Adult 0.10 0.10

Coordinator-Soccer-Youth 0.10

Coordinator-Softball-Adult 0.10 0.10 0.10

Coordinator-Softball-Youth 0.10 0.10 0.10

Coordinator-Volleyball-Adult 0.10 0.10 0.10

Day Camp Leader 1.10 1.60 0.90

Fitness/Wellness Specialist-CC 0.30 0.30 0.30

Fitness/Wellness Specialist-REC 0.20 0.30 0.30

Fitness/Wellness Specialist-SEN 0.30

Instructor-Dance-Senior 0.10

Instructor-PreSchool 2.30 2.30 2.40

Instructor-Safety Town 0.10 0.20 0.20

Instructor-Sports-Youth 0.10 0.10 0.20

Instructor-Water Safety CC 2.00 1.90

Instructor-Water Safety-Priv CC 0.10 0.40 0.30

Lifeguard CC 7.60 8.50 8.80

Official-Basketball-Youth 0.30 0.30 0.20

Pool Manager-CC 0.60 0.50 0.40

Recreation Aide 6.00 6.10 5.20

Recreation Aide-PreSchool 0.20 0.70 0.30

Recreation Aide-REC 0.40 0.30 1.10

Recreation Director 1.00 1.00 1.00

Recreation Supervisor 2.00 2.00 2.00

Recreation Supervisor-PT-REC 0.60

Recreation Supervisor-PT-SEN 0.50

Referee-Hockey 0.10

61



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Recreation - Continued Recreat

ion - 

Recreat

ion - 

Recreat

ion - 

Recreat

ion - 

Recreat

ion - 

Recreat

ion - Scorekeeper 0.20

Secretary II 1.00 1.00 1.00

Umpire 0.10 0.10

Total for Recreation 5.60 38.90 6.00 39.90 6.00 38.40

Refuse and Recycling

Account Clerk I 0.34 0.34 0.34

Ordinance Enforcement Officer 0.10 0.10

Public Works Director 0.05 0.05 0.05

Refuse/Recycling/Office Coord 0.10 0.10 0.10

Total for Refuse and Recycling 0.49 0.10 0.49 0.10 0.49 0.00

Streets

Account Clerk I 0.34 0.34 0.34

Division Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Field Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

Intern 1.50 1.40

MSE-C Equipment Operator I 8.00 8.00 8.00

MSE-F Equipment Operator II 6.00 6.00 8.00

MSE-G Leader 2.00 2.00 2.00

Ordinance Enforcement Officer 0.30 0.30 0.30

Project Construction Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00

Public Works Director 0.28 0.28 0.28

Seasonal Supervisor 0.60 0.30

Summer Laborer - Streets 4.90 2.20 3.10

Supt of Parks, Streets & Drains 0.67 0.67 0.67

Supt of Streets & Drains

Total for Streets 20.29 5.80 20.29 4.30 22.29 4.80

Treasurer

Account Clerk I 1.00 1.00

Account Clerk II 2.00 2.00 3.00

62



FT PT FT PT FT PT

Approved Approved Requested

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Personnel Summary 

Treasurer Continued

City Treasurer 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Treasurer 4.00 0.00 4.00 0.00 4.00 0.00

Water & Sewer

Account Clerk I 0.32 0.32 0.32

Cross Connection Inspector 1.00 1.00 1.00

Division Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

GIS Analyst 0.50 0.50 0.50

MSE-C Equipment Operator I 11.00 11.00 11.00

MSE-D Service Tech I-Water 7.00 7.00 7.00

MSE-F Equipment Operator II 6.00 6.00 6.00

MSE-G Leader 3.00 3.00 3.00

Office Assistant I 3.00 3.00 3.00

Public Works Director 0.34 0.34 0.34

Refuse/Recycling/Office Coord 0.90 0.90 0.90

Summer Laborer - Water 0.40 1.30 1.40

Supt of Water & Sewer Maint 1.00 1.00 1.00

Total for Water & Sewer 35.06 0.40 35.06 1.30 35.06 1.40

Grand Total 319.00 116.20 323.00 117.10 332.00 116.60

New positions for 2014/2015 include:

Human Resources - Added 1 full-time Coordinator from elimination 1 part-time position.

Police - Added 2 full-time Police Officers, 1 Police Service Aide and added 1 Emergency

Planning Coordinator from elimination of 1 part-time position.

Public Works - Added 2 full-time MSE-F Equipment Operators II

Information Technology - Added 1 full-time Help Desk Technician dedicated solely to Library

services and 1 full-time Application Specialist from elimination of 1 part-time position.

63



2015 is based on the population estimate provided by the Southeast Michigan Council of

Governments (SEMCOG) for July 2013 of 82,853.  The 2011 population count reflects the 2010

official U.S. census number of 80,980.

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES PER 1,000 POPULATION

5.81 5.78 5.69 5.65 
5.49 5.39 5.32 

5.47 

4.8 

4.3 

3.9 3.9 4.0 

3 

3.2 

3.4 

3.6 

3.8 

4 

4.2 

4.4 

4.6 

4.8 

5 

5.2 

5.4 

5.6 

5.8 

6 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Personnel Summary 

64



Other Uses

Total

55.37% 

4.14% 

0.13% 

12.48% 

14.75% 

1.40% 

1.89% 2.03% 

7.80% 

General Fund Revenue Sources 
Taxes $29.84 

Licenses and Permits $2.23 

Federal, State & Local Grants $0.07 

State Shared Revenue $6.727 

Charges for Services $7.95 

Fines & Forfeitures $0.756 

Interest & Rents $1.019 

Other Revenues $1.096 

Other Sources $4.203 

Millions 

How the City Allocates General Fund 
Resources 

Public Safety 
General 

Government 
Recreation & 

Culture 
Public Works Other Uses 

Community 
Development 

Series1 52.62% 12.67% 11.63% 10.54% 7.22% 5.31% 

0.00% 

10.00% 

20.00% 

30.00% 

40.00% 

50.00% 

60.00% 
General Fund Uses 

65



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

REVENUE

Taxes  $     30,424,031  $     29,612,174  $    29,703,000  $     29,663,000  $     29,840,500 0.60%  $     30,247,000  $     30,661,500 

Licenses And Permits           1,686,632           2,254,772         2,207,450          2,104,900          2,230,350 5.96%           2,210,650           2,141,850 

Federal Grants                 7,708               12,146                4,000               23,000                 4,000 -82.61%                 6,000                 6,000 

State Grants               42,164               40,725              43,000               40,500               38,000 -6.17%               40,000               40,000 

State Shared Revenue           6,202,317           6,351,957         6,556,000          6,371,000          6,727,000 5.59%           6,744,000           6,744,000 

Contributions - Local               19,166               36,804              26,800               20,000               28,000 40.00%               28,000               28,000 

Charges For Services           7,040,011           7,535,802         7,686,950          6,992,300          7,950,000 13.70%           7,479,500           7,519,900 

Fines And Forfeitures           1,054,672              784,171            761,300             797,800             756,300 -5.20%              756,300              756,300 

Interest & Rent           1,004,630           1,004,471         1,071,400             994,000          1,019,000 2.52%           1,022,000           1,025,300 

Other Revenue              709,340              720,743            872,400             891,100          1,096,500 23.05%           1,107,700           1,119,100 

Total Revenue       48,190,670       48,353,765      48,932,300       47,897,600       49,689,650 3.74%       49,641,150       50,041,950 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Operating Transfers in           4,011,400           2,252,993         3,876,770          4,190,900          4,203,300 0.30%           4,241,700           4,304,100 

Total Revenue & Other Financing Sources       52,202,070       50,606,758      52,809,070       52,088,500       53,892,950 3.46%       53,882,850       54,346,050 

EXPENDITURES

General Government

Council/Executive Administration           2,835,492           3,114,860         3,364,640          3,547,450          3,863,420 8.91%           3,759,780           3,791,380 

Financial Services           2,909,728           2,543,478         2,421,600          2,600,960          2,506,280 -3.64%           2,529,040           2,562,550 

Other General Government              918,831              917,933         1,020,145          1,098,900          1,170,560 6.52%           1,207,240           1,222,880 

Total General Government         6,664,052         6,576,272        6,806,385         7,247,310         7,540,260 4.04%         7,496,060         7,576,810 

Public Safety

Police         21,529,472         21,250,093       22,645,210         24,307,110         24,573,943 1.10%         24,780,750         25,064,180 

Fire           3,784,058           4,309,551         4,751,545          4,770,160          4,901,685 2.76%           4,943,754           4,989,673 

Building Inspections           1,330,829           1,770,773         1,944,270          1,618,260          1,843,410 13.91%           1,768,990           1,709,770 

Total Public Safety       26,644,360       27,330,417      29,341,025       30,695,530       31,319,038 2.03%       31,493,494       31,763,623 

Public Works

Streets         4,159,750         4,257,860        5,678,002         5,778,350         6,273,600 8.57%         6,378,700         6,430,800 

General Fund  
Revenues and Expenditures 

66



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues and Expenditures 

Community Development

Engineering           1,680,728           1,779,929         2,146,530          1,908,070          2,307,060 20.91%           2,324,950           2,328,050 

Planning              687,300              713,144            778,555             811,930             853,970 5.18%              863,580              871,300 

Total Community Development         2,368,028         2,493,073        2,925,085         2,720,000         3,161,030 16.21%         3,188,530         3,199,350 

Recreation and Culture

Parks           1,879,908           2,219,154         2,271,846          2,400,270          2,588,670 7.85%           2,672,980           2,684,840 

Recreation           3,927,293           3,575,134         3,917,626          3,957,940          4,078,030 3.03%           4,095,410           4,133,339 

Nature Center               43,703               39,989              86,600               85,400             105,290 23.29%               86,700               87,240 

Historic Village               74,911              142,631            149,300             149,300             150,000 0.47%              154,420              157,980 

Total Recreation and Culture         5,925,815         5,976,908        6,425,372         6,592,910         6,921,990 4.99%         7,009,510         7,063,399 

TOTAL - EXPENDITURES       45,762,005       46,634,531      51,175,869       53,034,100       55,215,918 4.11%       55,566,294       56,033,982 

Surplus (Use) Before Other Uses         6,440,065         3,972,228        1,633,201          (945,600)       (1,322,968) 39.91%        (1,683,444)        (1,687,932)

OTHER FINANCING USES

Operating Transfers Out              111,785           1,134,786         3,550,000          1,120,200          4,300,000 283.86%           2,850,000                        - 

TOTAL - EXPENDITURES/TRANS OUT       45,873,790       47,769,316      54,725,869       54,154,300       59,515,918 9.90%       58,416,294       56,033,982 

SURPLUS (USE) OF FUND BALANCE         6,328,280         2,837,442      (1,916,799)       (2,065,800)       (5,622,968) 172.19%        (4,533,444)        (1,687,932)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 26,068,785       32,397,065       35,234,507      35,234,507       33,317,708       -5.44% 27,694,740       23,161,296       

ENDING FUND BALANCE 32,397,065$    35,234,507$    33,317,708$  33,168,707$   27,694,740$   -16.50% 23,161,296$    21,473,364$    

*Starting in 2012, the Library is separately reported in the Special Revenue Fund.

67



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

4402 Property Taxes  $   28,239,313  $        27,635,285  $        27,700,000  $       27,500,000  $       27,810,000 1.13%  $     28,206,000  $     28,600,000 

4423 Mobile Home Tax               1,380                    2,083                    2,000                   2,000                   2,000 0.00%                 2,000                 2,000 

4427 Senior Citizen Housing             33,464                  35,753                   36,000                  34,000                 36,500 7.35%               37,000               37,500 

4445 Tax Penalties And Interest           775,140                606,281                 600,000                755,000                600,000 -20.53%             600,000              600,000 

4447 Administration Fee        1,374,734             1,332,772              1,365,000             1,372,000             1,392,000 1.46%          1,402,000           1,422,000 

    30,424,031          29,612,174          29,703,000         29,663,000         29,840,500 0.60%       30,247,000       30,661,500 

4451.20 Electric, Plumbing, Heating             11,401                  13,002                   11,400                  11,400                 11,500 0.88%               11,400               11,200 

4451.30 Builders                  610                       460                       600                      600                      600 0.00%                    600                    600 

4451.40 Sign Erectors                  755                       170                       700                      700                      700 0.00%                    700                    700 

4451.50 Service Stations                  175                       188                       200                      200                      200 0.00%                    200                    200 

4451.60 Amusements             19,372                  19,980                   20,000                  20,000                 20,000 0.00%               20,000               20,000 

4451.70 Other             17,504                  21,569                   18,000                  20,000                 18,000 -10.00%               18,000               18,000 

           49,817                 55,369                  50,900                 52,900                51,000 -3.59%              50,900              50,700 

4476.10 Refrig. And Air Cond                      -                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4476.15 Building        1,105,295             1,485,034              1,500,000             1,450,000             1,515,000 4.48%          1,500,000           1,450,000 

4476.20 Electrical           117,689                140,019                 130,000                125,000                131,300 5.04%             130,000              125,500 

4476.25 Mechanical Permits           102,403                136,937                 112,000                108,000                113,000 4.63%             112,000              108,000 

4476.30 Plumbing             69,445                  96,484                   80,000                  75,000                 81,000 8.00%               80,000               77,000 

4476.35 Animal               4,816                    4,869                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4476.40 Sidewalks               9,946                    9,838                   11,000                   8,000                 11,000 37.50%               11,000               11,000 

4476.45 Fence               2,950                    3,030                    3,500                   3,500                   3,500 0.00%                 3,500                 3,500 

TOTAL - LICENSES AND PERMITS

NON-BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMIT

REVENUE

TAXES

TOTAL - TAXES

BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

68



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4476.50 Sewer Inspection             13,396                  13,152                   18,000                  15,000                 18,100 20.67%               18,000               17,400 

4476.55 Right Of Way             14,455                  35,204                   30,000                  10,000                 30,000 200.00%               30,000               30,000 

4476.60 Mult. Dwelling Inspect.             21,710                  27,020                   25,000                  25,000                 25,000 0.00%               25,000               25,000 

4476.65 Grading               5,805                    7,695                    9,000                   9,000                   9,100 1.11%                 9,200                 9,300 

4476.70 Fire Protection             86,531                124,840                 130,000                123,000                131,300 6.75%             130,000              125,400 

4476.75 Occupancy             42,552                  61,631                   57,000                  47,000                 58,000 23.40%               58,000               56,000 

4476.80 Sign             27,003                  33,502                   34,000                  34,000                 34,000 0.00%               34,000               34,000 

4476.85 Fireworks                  500                       375                       250                      700                      250 -64.29%                    250                    250 

4476.90 Hazardous Materials             11,500                  18,500                   16,000                  18,000                 18,000 0.00%               18,000               18,000 

4476.95 Miscellaneous                  820                    1,276                       800                      800                      800 0.00%                    800                    800 

      1,636,815            2,199,404            2,156,550           2,052,000           2,179,350 6.21%         2,159,750         2,091,150 

      1,686,632            2,254,772            2,207,450           2,104,900           2,230,350 5.96%         2,210,650         2,141,850 

4507 Domestic Preparedness                  712                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4510 Vest               6,996                           -                    4,000                  23,000                   4,000 -82.61%                 6,000                 6,000 

4512 Mcoles Police Academy                      -                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4516 Fire Act                      -                  12,146                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4519 Eecbg                      -                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4524 Ohsp                      -                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

 $          7,708  $             12,146  $                4,000  $             23,000  $              4,000 -82.61%  $            6,000  $            6,000 TOTAL - FEDERAL GRANTS

TOTAL - NON-BUS. LICENSE/PERMIT

TOTAL - LICENSES AND PERMITS

FEDERAL GRANTS

69



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4543.100 Criminal Justice             21,584                  18,151                   16,000                  20,500                 18,000 -12.20%               20,000               20,000 

4543.120 911 Training             20,580                  22,574                   22,000                  20,000                 20,000 0.00%               20,000               20,000 

4569.110 Other Grants                      -                           -                    5,000                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

 $        42,164  $             40,725  $              43,000  $             40,500  $            38,000 -6.17%  $          40,000  $          40,000 

4574.010 Homestead Exemption Reimb               7,018                    9,146                    9,000                   8,000                   9,000 12.50%                 9,000                 9,000 

4574.020 Liquor Licenses             59,233                  63,430                   60,000                  60,000                 60,000 0.00%               60,000               60,000 

4574.030 Sales Tax        5,815,126             5,935,518              6,127,000             5,960,000             6,287,000 5.49%          6,300,000           6,300,000 

4574.040 Evip           320,940                343,863                 360,000                343,000                371,000 8.16%             375,000              375,000 

 $   6,202,317  $        6,351,957  $        6,556,000  $       6,371,000  $       6,727,000 5.59%  $     6,744,000  $     6,744,000 

 $   6,244,481  $        6,392,682  $        6,599,000  $       6,411,500  $       6,765,000 5.51%  $     6,784,000  $     6,784,000 

4582 Public Safety             19,166                  36,804                   20,000                  20,000                 20,000 0.00%               20,000               20,000 

4589 County-West Nile                      -                           -                    6,800                          -                   8,000 100.00%                 8,000                 8,000 

 $        19,166  $             36,804  $              26,800  $             20,000  $            28,000 40.00%  $          28,000  $          28,000 

TOTAL - STATE SOURCES

CONTRIBUTIONS - LOCAL

TOTAL - CONTRIBUTIONS - LOCAL

STATE GRANTS

TOTAL - OTHER GRANTS

STATE REVENUE SHARING

TOTAL - STATE REVENUE SHARING

70



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4607.020 Building B Of A                  650                    1,300                    1,000                   1,000                   1,000 0.00%                 1,000                 1,000 

4607.025 Bus. Occupancy Permit               5,500                    5,470                    5,000                   5,000                   5,000 0.00%                 5,000                 5,000 

4607.030 Catv Franchise Fees        1,127,184             1,207,225              1,250,000             1,215,000             1,260,000 3.70%          1,270,000           1,280,000 

4607.035 Ift Exemption Fee               1,222                       440                    1,000                   1,000                   1,000 0.00%                 1,000                 1,000 

4607.050 Miscellaneous               6,802                         65                    7,000                   7,000                   7,000 0.00%                 7,000                 7,000 

4607.070 Plan Review           108,949                139,823                 140,000                128,000                141,000 10.16%             142,000              139,000 

4607.085 Non-Sufficient Funds               7,031                    6,812                   10,000                  10,000                 10,000 0.00%               10,000               10,000 

4607.090 Planned Unit Develop App.               1,500                           -                    1,500                   1,500                   1,500 0.00%                 1,500                 1,500 

4607.110 Site Plans             19,418                  35,910                   25,000                  25,000                 25,000 0.00%               25,000               25,000 

4607.135 Telecom - Metro           240,734                245,056                 240,000                240,000                240,000 0.00%             240,000              240,000 

4607.140 Towing             55,770                  30,620                   32,000                  32,000                 32,000 0.00%               32,000               32,000 

4607.150 Vital Statistics           134,242                143,477                 140,000                135,000                141,000 4.44%             142,000              143,000 

4607.170 Zoning Board Of Appeals               1,500                    2,450                    3,000                   3,000                   3,000 0.00%                 3,000                 3,000 

4607.180 Zoning               8,700                  12,750                   10,000                   7,000                 10,000 42.86%               10,000               10,000 

 $   1,719,200  $        1,831,397  $        1,865,500  $       1,810,500  $       1,877,500 3.70%  $     1,889,500  $     1,897,500 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES

TOTAL - CHARGES FOR FEES

71



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4626.010 Open And Close Cemetery               3,100                    2,175                    3,000                   3,000                   3,000 0.00%                 3,000                 3,000 

4626.020 Court Ordered Pmt & Ins               2,699                       430                       500                   4,000                      500 -87.50%                    500                    500 

4626.030 County Road Maintenance           249,691                249,691                 249,000                249,000                249,000 0.00%             249,000              249,000 

4626.060 Department Of Public Works             63,548                  90,018                   70,000                  70,000                 75,000 7.14%               80,000               80,000 

4626.070 Duplicating And Photostats             10,920                    9,762                   10,000                  10,000                 10,000 0.00%               10,000               10,000 

4626.080 Election Services             47,742                       380                       300                      300                      300 0.00%                    300                    300 

4626.090 Engineering Fees        1,550,795             1,760,663              1,750,000             1,400,000             2,000,000 42.86%          1,500,000           1,500,000 

4626.100 Landscaping/Tree Pres Plan                      -                           -                    1,000                   1,000                   1,000 0.00%                 1,000                 1,000 

4626.110 Microfilming               4,273                    5,816                    5,000                   4,000                   5,000 25.00%                 5,000                 5,000 

4626.120 Miscellaneous             21,488                  10,168                    4,000                  10,000                 10,000 0.00%               10,000               10,000 

4626.125 Passports             44,666                  48,689                   45,000                  45,000                 45,000 0.00%               45,000               45,000 

4626.130 Police Services - Contract             83,225                  95,203                 115,000                125,000                100,000 -20.00%             100,000              100,000 

4626.132 Police Services - Somerset                      -                  31,278                 180,000                140,000                160,000 14.29%             140,000              140,000 

4626.135 Police Services - Clawson           172,514                172,514                 172,500                172,500                179,000 3.77%             186,500              194,000 

4626.140 Police Reports             59,179                  49,259                   52,000                  50,000                 50,000 0.00%               50,000               50,000 

4626.141 Police Pbt                  375                       400                       150                      500                      200 -60.00%                    200                    200 

4626.170 Row             15,780                    8,400                   10,000                  10,000                 10,000 0.00%               10,000               10,000 

4626.210 Soil Erosion             35,986                  43,100                   30,000                  30,000                 30,000 0.00%               30,000               30,000 

4626.220 Special Row Maintenance                  (80)                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4626.230 Weed Cutting             21,703                  18,934                   10,000                  22,000                 22,000 0.00%               22,000               22,000 

 $   2,387,604  $        2,596,877  $        2,707,450  $       2,346,300  $       2,950,000 25.73%  $     2,442,500  $     2,450,000 

CHARGES/SERVICES RENDERED

TOTAL-CHARGE SERVICE RENDERED

72



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4642.010 Abandoned Vehicles             40,854                  30,090                   35,000                  40,000                 35,000 -12.50%               35,000               35,000 

4642.020 Auction- Property                      -                    5,442                           -                   8,000                          - -100.00%                        -                        - 

4642.070 Miscellaneous             12,791                  29,666                   15,000                  15,000                 15,000 0.00%               15,000               15,000 

4642.080 Printed Materials               1,077                    5,681                    1,000                   5,000                   1,000 -80.00%                 1,000                 1,000 

4642.100 Outdoor Edu. Center                  786                         10                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4642.115 Senior Store             12,999                  12,984                   15,000                  15,000                 18,000 20.00%               18,000               18,000 

4642.120 Sign Installation                  238                    4,799                    1,500                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4642.150 Tree Planting             10,060                  14,480                   15,000                   8,000                   8,000 0.00%                 8,000                 8,000 

 $        78,805  $           103,152  $              82,500  $             91,000  $            77,000 -15.38%  $          77,000  $          77,000 

4651.050 Nature Center               1,718                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4651.074 Senior Citizen Activity           249,810                230,935                 250,000                250,000                254,000 1.60%             254,000              254,000 

4651.075 Community Center Passes        1,238,314             1,483,896              1,502,000             1,360,000             1,502,000 10.44%          1,517,000           1,532,200 

4651.076 Community Center Swim           253,292                255,002                 240,000                245,000                245,000 0.00%             245,000              245,000 

4651.077 Community Center Fitness             44,773                  43,701                   48,000                  43,000                 48,000 11.63%               48,000               48,000 

4651.078 Comm. Prog./Events             16,659                  14,481                   11,500                  16,500                 16,500 0.00%               16,500               16,500 

4651.080 Recreation        1,049,729                976,360                 980,000                830,000                980,000 18.07%             990,000              999,700 

4651.090 Winter Program                  107                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

 $   2,854,401  $        3,004,376  $        3,031,500  $       2,744,500  $       3,045,500 10.97%  $     3,070,500  $     3,095,400 

 $   7,040,011  $        7,535,802  $        7,686,950  $       6,992,300  $       7,950,000 13.70%  $     7,479,500  $     7,519,900 

TOTAL - CHARGES FOR USE/ADMIN

TOTAL - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

CHARGES/SERVICE - SALES

TOTAL - CHARGES/SERVICE - SALES

CHARGES/SERVICE - USE/ADMIN

73



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4655.010 County -Court           396,906                449,735                 420,000                420,000                420,000 0.00%             420,000              420,000 

4655.020 Drug Forfeiture Proceeds           121,710                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4655.022 Police Invesigations             81,356                  43,585                   40,000                  60,000                 40,000 -33.33%               40,000               40,000 

4655.030 False Alarms - Fire Dept             27,025                  24,025                   40,000                  30,000                 30,000 0.00%               30,000               30,000 

4655.040 False Alarms - Police           219,000                195,600                 195,000                225,000                200,000 -11.11%             200,000              200,000 

4655.046 Federal Drug Forfeiture             97,062                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4655.060 Ouil Reimbursement             65,793                  68,902                   65,000                  60,000                 65,000 8.33%               65,000               65,000 

4655.062 Owi Forfeiture               2,250                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4655.065 Civil Infractions                  910                    1,015                       300                   1,400                      300 -78.57%                    300                    300 

4655.066 State Drug Forfeiture             41,547                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4655.070 Bond Processing Fees               1,113                    1,310                    1,000                   1,400                   1,000 -28.57%                 1,000                 1,000 

 $   1,054,672  $           784,171  $            761,300  $           797,800  $          756,300 -5.20%  $        756,300  $        756,300 

4667.010 Building Rent           287,428                269,951                 255,000                255,000                255,000 0.00%             255,000              255,000 

4667.015 Communication Tower             57,600                  57,600                   57,000                  57,000                 57,600 1.05%               57,600               57,600 

4667.020 Concession Stand               2,400                    2,400                    2,400                   5,000                   2,400 -52.00%                 2,400                 2,400 

4667.025 Community Center Rent           288,213                292,314                 288,000                288,000                315,000 9.38%             318,000              321,300 

4667.028 Flynn Park - Beaumont             15,000                  15,000                   15,000                  15,000                 15,000 0.00%               15,000               15,000 

4667.075 Field Maintenance             77,372                  99,113                   75,000                  75,000                 75,000 0.00%               75,000               75,000 

4667.085 Parking Lot (Smart)           170,484                169,734                 170,000                170,000                170,000 0.00%             170,000              170,000 

4667.095 Tennis Bubble             28,475                  27,014                   29,000                  29,000                 29,000 0.00%               29,000               29,000 

4667.268 Transit Center Sponsorship                      -                           -                   20,000                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

 $      926,972  $           933,126  $            911,400  $           894,000  $          919,000 2.80%  $        922,000  $        925,300 TOTAL - RENT INCOME

FINES AND FORFEITS

TOTAL - FINES AND FORFEITS

RENT INCOME

74



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4669.020 Investment Income             77,658                  71,345                 160,000                100,000                100,000 0.00%             100,000              100,000 

 $        77,658  $             71,345  $            160,000  $           100,000  $          100,000 0.00%  $        100,000  $        100,000 

 $   1,004,630  $        1,004,471  $        1,071,400  $           994,000  $       1,019,000 2.52%  $     1,022,000  $     1,025,300 

4694 Cash Over/(Short)                (881)                     (335)                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4671 Miscellaneous               9,281                  25,820                   10,000                  10,000                 10,000 0.00%               10,000               10,000 

 $          8,400  $             25,485  $              10,000  $             10,000  $            10,000  $              -  $          10,000  $          10,000 

4675.050 Fire Department                  689                           -                    2,000                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4675.060 Miscellaneous                  149                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4675.070 Museum                      -                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4675.080 Police             34,756                           -                           -                  30,000                          - -100.00%                        -                        - 

4675.110 Parks And Recreation               9,000                    9,810                           -                   7,000                   7,000 0.00%                 7,000                 7,000 

 $        44,594  $               9,810  $                2,000  $             37,000  $              7,000 -81.08%  $            7,000  $            7,000 

4676.010 Reimbursements             16,000                    6,566                   15,000                          -                   5,000 100.00%                 5,000                 5,000 

4676.268 Multimodal Transit Center                      -                           -                   39,900                  38,600                 65,600 69.95%               66,800               68,000 

 $        16,000  $               6,566  $              54,900  $             38,600  $            70,600 82.90%  $          71,800  $          73,000 

TOTAL - MISCELLANEOUS

PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL - PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS

REIMBURSEMENTS

TOTAL - REIMBURSEMENTS

INVESTMENT INCOME

TOTAL - INVESTMENT INCOME

TOTAL - INTEREST AND RENTS

MISCELLANEOUS

75



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4677.226 Refuse             53,000                  53,000                   67,000                  67,000                 93,000 38.81%               94,000               95,000 

4677.271 Library                      -                           -                   45,000                  45,000                 45,000 0.00%               45,500               46,000 

4677.301 Debt Service             53,000                  53,000                   46,000                  46,000                 59,900 30.22%               60,500               61,100 

4677.584 Golf Course             30,000                  30,000                   10,000                  10,000                 10,000 0.00%               10,100               10,200 

4677.590 Sewer           201,000                201,000                 204,000                204,000                290,200 42.25%             293,100              296,000 

4677.591 Water           258,000                258,000                 283,000                283,000                358,300 26.61%             361,900              365,500 

4677.661 Motor Pool             53,000                  53,000                   74,000                  74,000                 75,000 1.35%               75,800               76,500 

4677.731 Retirement System             25,000                  25,000                   75,000                  75,000                 76,000 1.33%               76,500               77,300 

 $      673,000  $           673,000  $            804,000  $           804,000  $       1,007,400 25.30%  $     1,017,400  $     1,027,600 

4687.040 Rebates            (32,654)                    5,882                    1,500                   1,500                   1,500 0.00%                 1,500                 1,500 

 $       (32,654)  $               5,882  $                1,500  $               1,500  $              1,500 0.00%  $            1,500  $            1,500 

 $      709,340  $           720,743  $            872,400  $           891,100  $       1,096,500 23.05%  $     1,107,700  $     1,119,100 

 $ 48,190,670  $      48,353,765  $       48,932,300  $     47,897,600  $     49,689,650 3.74%  $   49,641,150  $   50,041,950 

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES

TOTAL - ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES

REFUNDS AND REBATES

TOTAL - REFUNDS AND REBATES

TOTAL - OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL - REVENUE

76



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Revenues Summary By Account 

4699.101 General                      -                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4699.202 Major Street Fund        1,836,564             1,195,792              1,840,760             1,946,600             2,025,000 4.03%          2,040,000           2,058,700 

4699.203 Local Streets Fund           920,242                921,329              1,896,710             1,705,900             2,032,000 19.12%          2,110,500           2,127,900 

4699.243 LDFA             50,000                  50,000                    5,000                   5,000                   5,000 0.00%                 5,000                 5,000 

4699.248 DDA           227,278                  60,872                 131,800                          -                136,300 100.00%               81,200              107,500 

4699.250 Brownfield             25,000                  25,000                    2,500                   2,500                   5,000 100.00%                 5,000                 5,000 

4699.403 Special Assessment           356,000                           -                           -                          -                          - 0.00%                        -                        - 

4699.590 Sewer           596,316                           -                           -                530,900                          - -100.00%                        -                        - 

 $   4,011,400  $        2,252,993  $        3,876,770  $       4,190,900  $       4,203,300 0.30%  $     4,241,700  $     4,304,100 

 $   4,011,400  $        2,252,993  $        3,876,770  $       4,190,900  $       4,203,300 0.30%  $     4,241,700  $     4,304,100 

 $ 52,202,070  $      50,606,758  $       52,809,070  $     52,088,500  $     53,892,950 3.46%  $   53,882,850  $   54,346,050 

TOTAL - OPERATING TRANSFERS IN

TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1010   TOTAL - GENERAL FUND REVENUE

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN

77



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

102 Council  $          52,557  $          50,640  $          50,700  $          52,700  $          79,800 51.42%  $          80,300  $          80,300 

172 City Manager         1,005,319         1,080,118         1,218,390         1,315,400         1,399,340 6.38%         1,418,340         1,435,210 

748 Community Affairs               1,289                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

215 Clerks Office

215 Clerk            300,008            336,959            336,400            363,180            377,760 4.01%            320,790            324,830 

262 Elections            239,705            243,090             86,050            183,200            262,160 43.10%            186,970            188,040 

266 City Attorney            869,473            961,480         1,150,400         1,068,740         1,158,290 8.38%         1,162,680         1,175,900 

270 Human Resources            367,141            442,574            522,700            564,230            586,070 3.87%            590,700            587,100 

 $   2,835,492  $   3,114,860  $   3,364,640  $   3,547,450  $   3,863,420 8.91%  $   3,759,780  $   3,791,380 

191 Finance Department

191 Accounting  $        657,890  $        578,573  $        648,520  $        648,550  $        718,560 10.79%  $        726,980  $        738,140 

192 Risk Management            147,394             33,719               1,300               5,100                      - -100.00%                      -                      - 

223 Independent Auditor             57,100             57,100             57,000             57,000             57,000 0.00%             57,000             57,000 

233 Treasurer's Office         1,043,822            904,747            586,220            735,410            554,970 -24.54%            553,540            559,880 

247 Purchasing            228,553            183,928            229,640            251,430            228,940 -8.94%            231,220            234,240 

253 Assessing

253 Board of Review               1,745               1,268               2,420               3,000               2,970 -1.00%               2,970               2,970 

257 Assessor's Office            773,224            784,144            896,500            900,470            943,840 4.82%            957,330            970,320 

 $   2,909,728  $   2,543,478  $   2,421,600  $   2,600,960  $   2,506,280 -3.64%  $   2,529,040  $   2,562,550 

264 Bulding Operations

261 Fire/Police Training Center  $          72,206  $          75,451  $          85,080  $          90,400  $          96,080 6.28%  $        101,130  $        104,740 

265 City Hall            630,961            637,234            675,245            739,900            762,070 3.00%            784,150            792,610 

268 MuliModal Transit Center                      -                      -             39,900             38,600             65,600 69.95%             66,800             68,000 

277 District Court            215,665            205,248            219,920            230,000            246,810 7.31%            255,160            257,530 

 $      918,831  $      917,933  $   1,020,145  $   1,098,900  $   1,170,560 6.52%  $   1,207,240  $   1,222,880 

 $   6,664,052  $   6,576,272  $   6,806,385  $   7,247,310  $   7,540,260 4.04%  $   7,496,060  $   7,576,810 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Other General Government

Total Other General Government

Council/Executive Administration

Total Council/Executive Administration

Financial Services

Total Financial Services

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

78



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

10 Executive Administration

305 Police Administration  $     1,565,409  $     1,621,241  $     1,443,100  $     1,469,580  $     1,594,120 8.47%  $     1,565,325  $     1,587,010 

320 Professional Standards                      -            152,959            657,360            670,320            700,120 4.45%            714,440            729,380 

      1,565,409       1,774,199       2,100,460       2,139,900       2,294,240 7.21%       2,279,765       2,316,390 

11 Investigative/Admin Services

307 Investigations Services         1,603,489         1,938,961         1,915,140         2,013,290         2,120,820 5.34%         2,151,545         2,189,630 

308 Crime Information Unit            524,098            518,635            486,060            531,640            561,140 5.55%            570,170            578,370 

309 Special Investigations Unit            467,026            553,443            532,880            554,110            516,300 -6.82%            534,010            543,260 

311 Drug Enforcement (DEA)            220,023            230,650            215,880            228,250            219,020 -4.04%            223,690            227,650 

321 Criminal Justice Training             24,460             42,430             20,000             20,000             20,400 2.00%             20,800             21,300 

322 Training Section            294,636            419,801            404,280            414,290            433,090 4.54%            440,240            445,740 

324 Emergency Response/Preparedness            172,096             43,015             71,260             84,300            154,620 83.42%            145,280            147,180 

326 Records Section            387,619            438,618            559,820            661,350            636,450 -3.77%            625,610            633,770 

329 Lockup Section         1,158,367         1,119,386         1,278,740         1,429,390         1,458,300 2.02%         1,479,900         1,499,130 

333 Property Section             97,971            108,893            110,340            117,700            117,230 -0.40%            120,540            122,930 

334 Research & Technology            749,451            779,240            808,450            834,360            922,300 10.54%            934,630            948,140 

      5,699,235       6,193,071       6,402,850       6,888,680       7,159,670 3.93%       7,246,415       7,357,100 

PUBLIC SAFETY

Total Executive Administration

Total Investigative/Admin Services

Police

79



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

12 Operations

315 Road Patrol         8,956,300         9,568,231       10,094,600       10,819,660       10,400,703 -3.87%       10,497,680       10,560,490 

316 K-Nine Unit            541,108            566,457            557,110            576,650            591,190 2.52%            597,230            605,770 

317 Directed Patrol Unit            486,554            410,373            575,720            721,010            680,740 -5.59%            690,380            699,660 

318 Traffic Unit         1,426,842            (11,354)                      -                      -            263,070 100.00%            267,340            271,720 

319 Crossing Guards             20,026             24,553             24,500             24,500             26,420 7.84%             26,930             27,460 

325 Communications Section         1,921,990         2,103,131         2,084,900         2,224,850         2,173,890 -2.29%         2,176,540         2,216,640 

335 Community Services Section            656,643            621,432            805,070            911,860            984,020 7.91%            998,470         1,008,950 

    14,009,463     13,282,823     14,141,900     15,278,530     15,120,033 -1.04%     15,254,570     15,390,690 

13 Special Units

310 Narcotics Enforcement Unit             35,244                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

314 Juvenile Unit            203,565                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

328 Animal Control             16,557                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

         255,366                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

 $ 21,529,472  $ 21,250,093  $ 22,645,210  $ 24,307,110  $ 24,573,943 1.10%  $ 24,780,750  $ 25,064,180 

337 Fire Administration  $        315,295  $        321,857  $        361,525  $        362,010  $        374,990 3.59%  $        379,830  $        384,900 

338 Fire Operations            615,686         1,081,461         1,159,200         1,161,720         1,195,555 2.91%         1,198,460         1,214,390 

340 Fire Companies         1,283,923         1,305,491         1,504,500         1,505,500         1,510,570 0.34%         1,514,570         1,518,610 

341 Fire Prevention            895,302            972,817         1,060,200         1,070,930         1,117,120 4.31%         1,131,380         1,145,960 

343 Fire Communications            210,758            209,534            220,000            220,000            239,950 9.07%            243,850            247,880 

344 Fire Halls            463,093            418,390            446,120            450,000            463,500 3.00%            475,664            477,933 

 $   3,784,058  $   4,309,551  $   4,751,545  $   4,770,160  $   4,901,685 2.76%  $   4,943,754  $   4,989,673 

371 Building Inspections  $     1,330,829  $     1,770,773  $     1,944,270  $     1,618,260  $     1,843,410 13.91%  $     1,768,990  $     1,709,770 

 $ 26,644,360  $ 27,330,417  $ 29,341,025  $ 30,695,530  $ 31,319,038 2.03%  $ 31,493,494  $ 31,763,623 

Total Operations

Total Special Units

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

Building Inspections

Fire Department

Total Fire Department

Total Police

80



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

20 Local Streets

481 Local Surface Maint - Gravel  $          45,711  $          69,501  $          42,890  $          44,690  $          48,000 7.41%  $          49,000  $          48,600 

482 Local Surface Maint            295,931            375,635            349,540            290,080            355,000 22.38%            359,200            361,900 

483 Local Surf Maint - Concrete                    35                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

485 Local Guard Rails & Posts             11,917             12,350             11,970               9,040             10,100 11.73%             10,300             10,300 

486 Local Sweeping             76,628             79,046            113,440            146,910             80,300 -45.34%            137,100            139,200 

489 Local Drain Structures            198,443            194,988            209,000            187,860            235,600 25.41%            239,000            241,900 

490 Local Roadside Cleanup               4,222               5,680               7,400               7,660               7,800 1.83%               8,000               8,100 

491 Local Grass & Weed Control               1,052               1,026               2,390               3,380               3,200 -5.33%               3,400               3,400 

492 Local Dust Control                      -                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

495 Local Signs             84,101            108,514            122,240            145,600            145,900 0.21%            148,800            150,400 

497 Local Markings               4,459             22,074             30,610             23,830             30,300 27.15%             30,500             30,600 

498 Local Snow & Ice Control             87,047            298,716            865,430            660,450            909,800 37.75%            918,000            925,000 

499 Local Administration            110,692            106,347            141,800            192,540            206,000 6.99%            207,200            208,500 

         920,237       1,273,876       1,896,710       1,712,040       2,032,000 18.69%       2,110,500       2,127,900 

21 County Roads

500 County Surface Maintenance                  155               2,995             25,922             10,000             10,000 0.00%             10,000             10,000 

501 County Drain Structures                      -                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

502 County Snow & Ice Control            173,581            249,855            601,760            701,230            702,500 0.18%            709,700            716,100 

503 County Administration               8,981               9,078               9,740               3,700               9,900 167.57%             10,000             10,000 

504 County Signs                      -                      -             73,450             78,640             90,700 15.34%             76,400             72,000 

507 County Sweeping                  590                  849               1,990                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

         183,307          262,776          712,862          793,570          813,100 2.46%          806,100          808,100 

Total Local Streets

Total County Roads

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Streets Department

81



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

22 Major Streets

464 Major Surface Maintenance            245,238            265,004            298,620            452,120            414,900 -8.23%            419,900            424,700 

465 Major Guard Rails And Posts               4,720               9,222             12,320             12,180             12,200 0.16%             12,200             12,200 

466 Major Sweeping             60,094             70,327             84,760             71,690             86,300 20.38%             87,700             89,100 

469 Major Drain Structures            195,605             86,366            107,060            118,090            138,000 16.86%            139,000            140,600 

470 Major Roadside Cleanup             24,045             51,444             20,100             17,450             28,200 61.60%             28,600             28,900 

471 Major Grass & Weed Control               5,585               1,741               1,860               2,500             12,500 400.00%               2,500               2,500 

475 Major Signs            135,233            139,241            108,010             81,120             84,100 3.67%             76,000             76,900 

477 Major Markings             61,130            107,498            112,900            111,550            117,400 5.24%            117,800            119,000 

478 Major Snow & Ice Control            194,305            283,136            620,270            619,920            649,400 4.76%            656,600            663,000 

479 Major Administration            910,608            557,087            474,860            465,370            492,000 5.72%            499,700            501,800 

      1,836,564       1,571,065       1,840,760       1,951,990       2,035,000 4.25%       2,040,000       2,058,700 

23 Drains

514 Retention Ponds            186,283            166,656            140,750            149,390            142,800 -4.41%            158,200            159,200 

515 Open Drain Maintenance            112,901            143,651             77,170             91,450            117,700 28.70%            119,000            120,200 

516 Drains Administration            159,790            156,502            137,900            191,310            198,300 3.65%            200,200            202,300 

517 Storm Sewer & Ryd            137,341             66,927            131,790            101,890            161,400 58.41%            163,500            165,400 

         596,315          533,737          487,610          534,040          620,200 16.13%          640,900          647,100 

24 Sidewalks

444 Sidewalk Administration             12,714             11,056             17,300             17,540             13,400 -23.60%             13,500             13,600 

511 Sidewalk Maint - Snow Control               1,514             12,951             45,000             41,840             58,200 39.10%             58,400             63,800 

512 Sidewalk Maint - General             73,967             78,553            105,460            129,460            121,700 -5.99%            123,100            124,700 

           88,194          102,560          167,760          188,840          193,300 2.36%          195,000          202,100 

25 Street Lighting

448 Street Lighting            499,497            478,529            524,200            504,770            538,200 6.62%            538,700            539,200 

26 Weeds/Snow & Ice

519 Weeds/Snow And Ice             35,636             35,317             48,100             93,100             41,800 -55.10%             47,500             47,700 

 $   4,159,750  $   4,257,860  $   5,678,002  $   5,778,350  $   6,273,600 8.57%  $   6,378,700  $   6,430,800 

 $   4,159,750  $   4,257,860  $   5,678,002  $   5,778,350  $   6,273,600 8.57%  $   6,378,700  $   6,430,800 

Total Sidewalks

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Total Streets Department

Total Major Streets

Total Drains

82



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

442 Engineering  $     1,647,167  $     1,755,676  $     2,117,010  $     1,880,170  $     2,293,910 22.01%  $     2,311,700  $     2,314,700 

443 Traffic Engineering             33,561             24,253             29,520             27,900             13,150 -52.87%             13,250             13,350 

 $   1,680,728  $   1,779,929  $   2,146,530  $   1,908,070  $   2,307,060 20.91%  $   2,324,950  $   2,328,050 

721 Planning  $        673,200  $        697,506  $        755,800  $        792,830  $        828,520 4.50%  $        837,760  $        845,820 

723 Planning Commission             10,694             13,244             18,760             13,900             20,250             20,560             20,220 

726 Board of Zoning Appeals               3,406               2,395               3,995               5,200               5,200 0.00%               5,260               5,260 

 $      687,300  $      713,144  $      778,555  $      811,930  $      853,970 5.18%  $      863,580  $      871,300 

 $   2,368,028  $   2,493,073  $   2,925,085  $   2,720,000  $   3,161,030 16.21%  $   3,188,530  $   3,199,350 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Planning

Total Planning Department

Engineering

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Total Engineering Department

83



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

751 Parks Administration  $                  -  $        182,420  $        109,200  $          62,430  $          70,210 12.46%  $          71,110  $          71,920 

756 Civic Center Maintenance            206,427            315,819            207,060            274,710            314,780 14.59%            307,020            304,300 

757 Cemetery Maintenance             15,812             10,481             16,600             22,000             18,490 -15.95%             22,290             22,380 

758 Parks Garage            102,682             68,999             80,900             81,670             82,730 1.30%             84,210             85,260 

759 Athletic Field Maintenance            226,128            223,846            246,640            273,300            304,830 11.54%            329,320            330,820 

770 Parks Maintenance            952,357            661,849            850,716            962,960            995,580 3.39%         1,046,450         1,054,290 

772 Park Equipment Repair             65,203             74,426             61,130             59,490             61,960 4.15%             62,950             64,160 

773 Parks-Special Events               8,849             10,923             11,450                  500               2,000 300.00%               2,000               2,000 

774 Major Tree Maintenance               7,128               3,313             23,050                  600                  500 -16.67%                  500                  500 

775 Major Tree Planting                      -                      -               1,500               2,000               2,000 0.00%               2,000               2,000 

776 Major Tree Storm Damage                  442                  718                      -                  200                  200 0.00%                  200                  200 

777 Local Tree Maintenance             65,466            441,241            393,000            391,920            424,850 8.40%            426,650            428,340 

778 Local Tree Planting               1,346             19,920             20,300             20,300             20,300 0.00%             20,300             20,300 

779 Local Tree Storm Damage               1,496               9,205             30,000                  300                  250 -16.67%                  250                  250 

780 Street Island Maintenance-Major             84,917             63,748             81,100            114,600            130,040 13.47%            137,390            137,440 

781 Street Island Maintenance-Local                  525                    93                  600                  300                  270 -10.00%                  270                  270 

782 Street Island Maint-Northfield             13,852               5,521                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

783 Street Island Maintenance-DDA            127,278            126,629            138,600            132,990            159,680 20.07%            160,070            160,410 

 $   1,879,908  $   2,219,154  $   2,271,846  $   2,400,270  $   2,588,670 7.85%  $   2,672,980  $   2,684,840 

752 Recreation Administration  $        931,339  $        612,876  $        666,500  $        740,590  $        740,750 0.02%  $        746,910  $        753,269 

753 Recreation            931,905            900,326            996,248         1,007,960         1,030,810 2.27%         1,036,800         1,042,990 

754 Senior Programs            189,082            174,920            228,500            223,500            226,310 1.26%            227,210            228,030 

755 Community Center         1,874,968         1,887,012         2,026,378         1,985,890         2,080,160 4.75%         2,084,490         2,109,050 

 $   3,927,293  $   3,575,134  $   3,917,626  $   3,957,940  $   4,078,030 3.03%  $   4,095,410  $   4,133,339 

771 Nature Center  $          43,703  $          39,989  $          86,600  $          85,400  $        105,290 23.29%  $          86,700  $          87,240 

Nature Center

Recreation

Total Recreation Department

Total Parks Department

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Parks

84



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATE BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditures Summary By Department 

802 Village Operations  $                  -  $          75,000  $          75,000  $          75,000  $          75,000 0.00%  $          75,000  $          75,000 

804 Village Buildings             51,838             48,305             46,800             46,800             49,100             52,490             56,050 

807 Village Grounds             23,073             19,326             27,500             27,500             25,900 -5.82%             26,930             26,930 

 $        74,911  $      142,631  $      149,300  $      149,300  $      150,000 0.47%  $      154,420  $      157,980 

 $   5,925,815  $   5,976,908  $   6,425,372  $   6,592,910  $   6,921,990 4.99%  $   7,009,510  $   7,063,399 

966 Transfers Out  $                (0)  $                (0)  $                  -  $                  -  $                  - 0.00%  $                  -  $                  - 

966 Capital - Streets                      -         1,000,000         1,000,000         1,000,000                      - -100.00%         1,000,000                      - 

966 Capital - Enhanced Streets                      -                      -         2,550,000                      -         2,450,000 100.00%                      -                      - 

966 Capital - Fire Station #4                      -                      -                      -                      -         1,850,000 100.00%         1,850,000                      - 

966 Other            111,785            134,786                      -            120,200                      - -100.00%                      -                      - 

         111,785       1,134,786       3,550,000       1,120,200       4,300,000 283.86%       2,850,000                      - 

 $ 45,873,790  $ 47,769,316  $ 54,725,869  $ 54,154,300  $ 59,515,918 9.90%  $ 58,416,294  $ 56,033,982 

OTHER USES

Total Historic Village

TOTAL OTHER USES

Historic Village

TOTAL RECREATION AND CULTURE

TOTAL - GENERAL FUND

85



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

EXPENSE

PERSONAL SERVICES

Personal Service  $    17,288,158.91  $   16,928,257.47  $   18,237,859.00  $     19,597,310.00  $     20,090,680.00 2.52%  $   20,268,520  $   20,480,880 

Elected And Appointed                   19,875                  22,600                  23,850                    24,450 25,800 5.52%             25,800             25,800 

Election Inspectors                   75,829                  93,942                           -                    20,860 92,850 345.11%             21,500             21,500 

Fica              1,373,333             1,375,150             1,468,550               1,506,720 1,544,070 2.48%        1,557,360        1,575,270 

Disability Pay - Volunteer Fire                           -                  22,089                           -                             - 0 0.00%                      -                      - 

Workers Comp & Unemployment                 310,857                264,017                535,511                  561,790 506,630 -9.82%           511,450           519,860 

Sick  Pay Allowance                 691,471                814,512             1,086,580               1,111,280 1,128,750 1.57%        1,138,800        1,154,010 

Hospital And Life Insurance              2,459,044             2,531,589             3,462,867               3,625,490 3,854,740 6.32%        3,984,590        4,079,910 

Vacation              2,298,551             1,376,923             1,745,576               1,784,910 1,798,380 0.75%        1,812,060        1,832,480 

Retirement              5,557,842             7,089,657             6,196,477               6,254,590 6,700,600 7.13%        6,702,840        6,771,330 

Total - Personal Services          30,074,962          30,518,737          32,757,270            34,487,400            35,742,500 3.64%     36,022,920     36,461,040 

SUPPLIES

Office Supplies                 112,217                125,130                118,720                  130,250 129,380 -0.67%           129,935           130,930 

Postage                 118,662                110,655                127,000                  135,900 141,690 4.26%           137,640           138,290 

Supplies For Resale                           -                           -                           -                             - 0 0.00%                      -                      - 

Operating Supplies                 764,560                794,320                966,495                  926,890 1,052,208 13.52%        1,015,920        1,023,000 

Fuel                   32,321                  35,420                  36,170                    57,800 39,410 -31.82%             39,620             39,840 

Tools                   15,436                  15,997                  19,500                    20,010 20,500 2.45%             20,500             20,500 

Uniforms                 121,062                134,737                170,500                  193,600 197,070 1.79%           199,440           201,440 

Repair/Mtnce Supplies                 507,041                642,666                940,220                  961,580 1,007,004 4.72%           994,020           990,290 

Expendable Building/Equipment                           -                           -                           -                             - 212,600 100.00%             95,500             58,000 

Total - Supplies            1,671,299            1,858,924            2,378,605              2,426,030             2,799,862 15.41%       2,632,575       2,602,290 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES

Professional Services                 938,340                815,338                716,000                  791,100 802,800 1.48%           831,200           849,400 

Contractual Services              4,632,076             5,081,892             5,869,190               5,672,544 6,163,322 8.65%        6,168,054        6,130,223 

Computer Services                 923,110                972,485                966,700                  970,700 1,167,100 20.23%        1,189,600        1,212,200 

Consultant Services                 217,730                370,722                610,000                  240,000 545,000 127.08%           545,000           535,000 

Community Policing                    7,886                    5,065                    6,090                      6,090 6,220 2.13%               6,350               6,470 

Health Services                   15,686                  14,139                  41,260                    50,860 41,970 -17.48%             56,040             43,470 

Communications                   70,079                  60,256                  70,150                    76,940 75,560 -1.79%             76,630             77,280 

General Fund  
Expenditure Summary By Account 

86



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

General Fund  
Expenditure Summary By Account 

Travel & Mileage                   51,812                  56,696                  60,240                    66,390 62,430 -5.96%             62,750             62,750 

Community Promotion                       816                       807                       650                    52,000 51,000 -1.92%             51,000             51,000 

Appreciation Banquet                           -                           -                  10,000                    10,000 10,000 0.00%             10,000             10,000 

Firefighters Banquet                    1,616                    1,337                  20,000                    20,000 20,400 2.00%             20,800             21,200 

Printing & Publishing                 110,088                114,852                123,916                  175,010 147,520 -15.71%           150,730           152,540 

Books & Magazines                    5,300                    5,502                    8,655                    10,235 10,695 4.49%             10,735             10,785 

Other Fees                 150,025                100,121                135,000                  135,000 135,000 0.00%           135,000           135,000 

Public Utilities              1,951,009             1,926,813             2,059,170               2,093,855 2,186,000 4.40%        2,219,730        2,230,190 

Rentals                    8,779                  31,412                  28,500                    23,500 29,000 23.40%             30,000             30,000 

Rentals-Internal              2,384,034             2,450,979             2,644,250               2,655,110 2,692,600 1.41%        2,809,630        2,864,180 

Miscellaneous              1,454,110             1,306,375             2,059,111               2,241,681 1,852,609 -17.36%        1,858,880        1,865,204 

Membership & Dues                   93,291                  98,116                113,160                  114,570 116,370 1.57%           117,570           119,490 

Education & Training                 149,577                216,447                200,660                  210,450 237,580 12.89%           239,000           241,330 

Other                 214,894                114,493                161,812                  221,505 240,280 8.48%           242,000           242,840 

Legal Notices                    1,069                    3,392                    4,480                      3,100 4,100 32.26%               4,100               4,100 

Banking fees                           -                           -                    1,000                             - 1,000 100.00%               1,000               1,000 

Tax Refunds                 633,647                509,630                130,000                  280,030 75,000 -73.22%             75,000             75,000 

Total - Other Service Charges          14,014,976          14,256,869          16,039,994            16,120,670            16,673,556 3.43%     16,910,799     16,970,652 

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Office Equipment                       770                           -                           -                             - 0 0.00%                      -                      - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES          45,762,005          46,634,531          51,175,869            53,034,100            55,215,918 4.11%     55,566,294     56,033,982 

OTHER FINANCING USES

Operating Transfers Out                111,785            1,134,786            3,550,000              1,120,200 4,300,000 283.86%       2,850,000                      - 

TOTAL -  GENERAL FUND  $       45,873,790  $      47,769,316  $      54,725,869  $        54,154,300  $        59,515,918 9.90%  $ 58,416,294  $ 56,033,982 

87



Operating Budget History

City Council 
 

 

 

Mayor…………..………...…….………Dane Slater 
Mayor Pro Tem.……………......Dave Henderson  
Council Member………….…..……Jim Campbell 
Council Member………….…….…Wade Fleming 
Council Member……..………...…Ellen Hodorek 
Council Member……………….…Ed Pennington 
Council Member………………………Doug Tietz 
 

$
7

6
,4

7
5

  

$
7

8
,2

8
0

  

$
7

2
,2

3
9

  

$
6

9
,3

3
8

  

$
6

3
,4

6
5

  

$
6

3
,1

3
1

  

$
5

5
,8

9
5

  

$
5

3
,9

3
0

  

$
5

2
,5

5
7

  

$
5

0
,6

4
0

  

$0  

$10,000  

$20,000  

$30,000  

$40,000  

$50,000  

$60,000  

$70,000  

$80,000  

$90,000  

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

City Council 

88



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 102 Council

101.102.00.102

PERSONAL SERVICES        14,711        16,969        15,850        15,850        15,850 0.00%        15,850        15,850 

SUPPLIES          3,582          2,083          2,500          2,500          2,500 0.00%          2,500          2,500 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        34,265        31,587        32,350        34,350        61,450 78.89%        61,950        61,950 

Business Unit Total: Council       52,557       50,640       50,700       52,700       79,800 51.42%       80,300       80,300 

Department Total: Council       52,557       50,640       50,700       52,700       79,800 51.42%       80,300       80,300 

City Council

General Fund  
General Government/Council & Exec Admin 

89



 Selects candidates for vacant senior staff positions

 Recommends strategic planning initiatives

 Facilitates Council-community relationships

 Economic Development Services

 Directs economic development efforts of the City

 Creates new development tools

 Encourages and supports appropriate sustainable 

private sector developments

 Coordinates economic development services

with other City, county, regional and state

economic development agencies and

 organizations

 Monitors expenditures and revenues  Provides information and assistance to 

 Analyzes and evaluates financial trends businesses expanding or relocating to the City

 Conducts management studies Provides professional and clerical staff support

 Develops Capital Improvement Program for the Downtown Development Authority, the

 Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the

     City Management Local Development Finance Authority, the Certified

 Technology Park (SmartZone) and the Economic

 Provides support and makes Development Corporation

recommendations to the City Council  Coordinates City efforts with the Troy Chamber

 Oversees municipal operations of Commerce

 Provides organizational management

 Provides fiscal management

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City Manager’s Office is to 

partner with City Council in achieving the goals 

and objectives set forth for the City of Troy.  To 

this end, a key factor is the identification of 

priorities and establishment of management 

procedures that develop and effectively utilize City 

resources.  In addition the City Manager’s Office 

works to create an environment that actively 

encourages business retention and growth 

through public and private sector collaboration.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Prepares annual operating budget

City Manager 
 

City Manager .......................................................................Brian Kischnick 
Director of Economic and Community Development ..........Mark F. Miller 
Director of Financial Services..................................Thomas Darling, CPA 

City  Manager 

90





 Administers the pension plans

 Prepares meeting agendas

 Manages investment of fund

  



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont.)

Employee Retirement System

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

# of Regular Council Meetings 29 29 29 29

2012/13      

Actual

# of Agenda Items Prepared 175 175 175 175

# of Employees' Retirement System Board 

Meetings 12 12 12 12

2

# of Downtown Development Authority 

Meetings 4 2 2 4

2

# of Local Development Finance Authority 

Meetings 1 1 2

None

# of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

Meetings 1 1 2

Notes on Performance Indicators

# of Labor Contracts Settled 2 0 0

AAA AAA

2 2 3

Bond Rating (S&P)

3

# of Business Attractions Visits 150 150 190 190

AAA

3

# of Economic Gardening Meetings 50 50 50 50

GFOA Awards

AAA

City Manager 

91





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time Full Time

Part 

Time

6.5 1 6.5 1 6.5 1 7 1.5

6.5 1 6.5 1 6.5 1 7 1.5



*  2011 Incorporated Community Affairs Department

2013

2013/14      

Budget 2014/15 Proposed

 

Operating Budget History

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Expenditures increased $85 thousand (6.5%) due primarily to personal services for terminated furlough

hours, increased medical costs.

Total Department

City Manager's Office

Performance                                   

Indicators 2011/12      Actual 2012/13      Actual

$
7

6
9

,4
44

  

$
7

9
0

,5
77

  

$
7

2
3

,8
58

  

$
7

4
8

,7
27

  

$
7

5
2

,3
65

  

$
7

5
5

,3
40

  

$
6

7
3

,1
30

  

$
1

,1
6

0
,9

64
  

$
1

,0
0

5
,3

19
  

$
1

,0
8

0
,1

18
  

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

City Manager's Office 

92



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 172 City Manager

101.172.00.172

PERSONAL SERVICES       726,339       912,116    1,023,190    1,052,040    1,135,110 7.90%    1,150,240    1,163,810 

SUPPLIES         20,011         20,766         25,250         25,250         25,600 1.39%         26,000         26,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES       258,969       147,236       169,950       238,110       238,630 0.22%       242,100       245,400 

Business Unit Total: City Manager   1,005,319   1,080,118   1,218,390   1,315,400   1,399,340 6.38%   1,418,340   1,435,210 

Department Total: City Manager   1,005,319   1,080,118   1,218,390   1,315,400   1,399,340 6.38%   1,418,340   1,435,210 

Department: 748 Community Affairs

101.748.00.748

PERSONAL SERVICES              709                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

SUPPLIES              580                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                  -                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

Business Unit Total: Community Affairs          1,289                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

Note: The Community Affairs Department Merged with the City Manager Department in 2013 as part of the consolidation and cost reduction measures.

City Manager

General Fund 
General Government/Council & Exec 

93



 Process all FOIA request within statutorily
 required timelines

 Educate the public and staff in regard to FOIA

 law and policies



city real estate, right-of-way and economic

 Prepare

s and  transactions as required by records retention

 schedules

  

 City Council Meeting Administration Licensing

 Post notices of Public Meetings  Educate business owners and residents with

 Prepare City Council Agendas/Packets regard to licensing ordinances

 Prepare City Council Minutes  Maintain accurate records of applicants and

 Process results of City Council Meetings transactions completed

(certified resolutions, agreements, contracts)  Work in conjunction with other departments to

ensure timely and efficient responses to

 Elections applications or inquiries

 Assure all voters' their rights to fair and Vital Records

accessible elections

 Conduct all elections in compliance with  Maintain accurate and confidential records of

Federal, State and Local Election laws all events that occur within the City

 Update and maintain accurate voter records  Provide certified copies to authorized

 Maintain updated permanent absent voter list applicants according to State statute

 Educate voters and future voters with regard  Maintain complete records of all transactions

to election process and the important of

voting

 Implement new Election laws in a timely and

efficient manner

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City Clerk’s Office is to 

expeditiously provide accurate and courteous 

response to all requests for service or information, 

and to be sensitive to the individual needs of 

citizens.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

City Clerk's Office 
 
 

City Clerk............................................................................Aileen Bittner 

City Clerk's Office & Elections 

94



  

















Expect 20% savings and efficiencies growth from the electronic death certificate filing pilot program

beginning in late 2014.

Election related services increase over last year due to the State Primary Election in August and the

In 2013, electronic transmittal of election results created not just growth in efficiencies, but in overall

public satisfaction with Election Night reporting of results.

Duplicating services increased significantly due to reductions in printer and copiers made in other

departments.

State General Election in November.

58%

Business Licenses Issued 155 193 230 230

20%

Legal Notices Prepared 69 84 90 90

City Council Agenda Packets Prepared 33 40 50

Notes on Performance Indicators

Efficiencies and Savings Growth Expected 

Through the continuing development of 

electronic operations in the department  5% 20%

% of Registered Voters Voting (November) 27% 74% 27%

50

Mail Room and Duplicating-All Operations 

(copies, business cards, laminating, mail) 300,654 300,735 1,130,900 1,000,000

Passport Photos Taken 249 290 430 430

Freedom of Information Act Requests 

Processed 263 300 250 300

Absent Voter Ballots Processed 19,974 27,847 5,870 16,000

Voter Transactions Processed 16,639 17,000 11,760 13,000

Elections Conducted 4 3 1 2

Death Certificate Requests Processed 1,103 1,202 1,100 1,100

Birth Certificate Requests Processed 3,470 3,550 3,790 3,800

2014/15      

Budget

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

City Clerk's Office & Elections 

95





Elections - Contractual Services Computer Maintenance was reduced 48% due to lower than

anticipated maintenance costs.

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

4 0 4 1 4 0.8 4 0.8

0 0 0 0 0 0.1 0 0.1

4 0 4 1 4 0.9 4 0.9

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Personal Services:

 

 

City Clerks Office

Total Department

Elections

Other Service Charges:

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

City Clerk's Office & Elections 

The 2014/15 Budget includes expenditures for the August 5th State Primary and the November 4th 
Gubernatorial elections. The Gubernatorial election is the second largest election next to the 
Presidential election in the City of Troy.  
 
The State Primary in August is one of the most complex elections to administer due to the open 
primary style ballot and the election of Precinct Delegates. Comparatively speaking, the City Clerk’s 
Office employs approximately 280 election workers for the Presidential General Election, about 250 
election workers for the Gubernatorial General Election, and about 170 election workers for the City 
General Election.  
 
The Elections budgets for these election years increase and decrease accordingly. To compare, 
election administration costs for the Presidential General Election are about $100,000, costs for the 
Gubernatorial General Election are about $75,000 and costs for the City General Election are about 
$50,000. 

96







2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Operating Budget History - City Clerk's Office

Operating Budget History - Elections

$
1

3
6

,3
15

  

$
2

2
9

,3
44

  

$
2

1
8

,4
56

  

$
2

4
8

,6
89

  

$
2

3
2

,2
23

  

$
2

1
9

,6
59

  

$
2

0
0

,2
55

  

$
1

8
6

,4
67

  

$
2

3
9

,7
05

  

$
2

4
3

,0
90

  

$0 

$50,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$
4

5
4

,7
6

7
  

$
4

2
4

,2
2

0
  

$
4

1
8

,7
7

1
  

$
4

4
3

,3
8

5
  

$
5

0
6

,5
6

2
  

$
4

7
5

,3
9

9
  

$
4

9
5

,8
2

3
  

$
4

6
8

,2
6

0
  

$
3

0
0

,0
0

8
  

$
3

3
6

,9
5

9
  

$0.00 

$100,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$300,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$500,000.00 

$600,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

City Clerk's Office & Elections 

97



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 215 City Clerk

Business Unit: 215 City Clerk

101.215.00.215

PERSONAL SERVICES         261,589         287,803         289,700         310,190         317,670 2.41%         260,060         263,400 

SUPPLIES          11,178          11,229            7,000            8,260            8,800 6.54%            8,800            8,800 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          27,241          37,927          39,700          44,730          51,290 14.67%          51,930          52,630 

Business Unit Total: City Clerk       300,008       336,959       336,400       363,180       377,760 4.01%       320,790       324,830 

Business Unit: 262 Elections

101.215.00.262

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         171,579         199,266          39,000         104,850         180,360 72.02%         109,970         110,940 

SUP - SUPPLIES          26,357          15,589            7,570          15,200          20,200 32.89%          15,200          15,200 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          41,769          28,234          39,480          63,150          61,600 -2.45%          61,800          61,900 

Business Unit Total: Elections       239,705       243,090         86,050       183,200       262,160 43.10%       186,970       188,040 

Department Total: City Clerk       539,713       580,049       422,450       546,380       639,920 17.12%       507,760       512,870 

Clerks Office

General Fund 
General Government/Council & Exec Admin 

98



 Monitors compliance with Open Meetings Act

and Freedom of Information Act

 Provides information to the general public, as

 well as other local, state, and federal

 government associations

 from the department Sponsors Law Day activities

 City as Plaintiff

 Administration

 Handles eminent domain cases

 Prepares and administers department Initiates invoice collection procedures

 budget  Pursues nuisance abatement

 Serves as a liaison with local, federal,  Pursues license revocations with Secretary of

and state agencies, associations and State

groups  Prepares administrative search warrants

 Monitors progress of outside retained  Represents City at administrative hearings, including

counsel  but not limited to environmental law hearings

 Serves as a liaison with other City  

departments  Defense of the City

 Coordinates staff development

 Explores use of available technological  Represents the City when its zoning and

 advances for increase efficiency planning decisions are challenged

 Liaison for City's Casualty & Property  Defends the City, its officials and volunteers

Insurance  when sued for the performance of governmental

functions

 Defends the City and its officials in personal

 injury cases

 Defends City Assessor's value determinations

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City Attorney’s Office is to 

provide effective and efficient legal services to 

City Council, City Management and the various 

boards and committees of the City.  

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

City Attorney 
 
 

City Attorney.............................................................Lori Grigg Bluhm 

City Attorney 

99





  Negotiates or assists in negotiations of

 contracts, agreements, bonds and real

 Processes misdemeanor ordinance violations  estate transactions as needed

 Prosecutes drug and alcohol cases  Researches, drafts, and reviews all

 Pursues building and zoning ordinance cases  ordinances, policies and legal documents

 Handles domestic abuse cases  Recommends necessary revisions of the

 Prosecutes shoplifting cases  City Charter and Code

 Represents the City in traffic matters  Receives citizen complaints, mediates

 Prosecutes disorderly conduct cases  disputes and issues criminal misdemeanor

 Handles assault and battery cases  warrants

 Assist the municipal civil infraction matters  Provides training regarding the law and 

 Defends appeals of criminal convictions  legal procedures for employees and 

 Defends appeals of civil infractions  Assists citizens on a daily basis by

answering inquiries and providing 

appropriate referrals when warranted

   Responds to media inquiries

* Cost Recovery amount does not include any restitution obtained for the benefit of crime 

victims or City's percentage of fines and costs and late fees resulting from district court

prosecution.

Other ActivitiesDEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont.)

Prosecution

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

Notes on Performance Indicators

Formal Citizen Complaints of Criminal 

Activities 95 113 100

Cost Recovery for City * $63,991 $68,652 $65,000

City Council Agenda Items 150

Warrants Issued 163 231 200 200

169 154 150

100

$65,000

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

District Court Appearances 6,615 7,884 7,500 7,500

2012/13      

Actual

City Attorney 

100





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

7 0.1 7 0 7 0 7 0

7 0.1 7 0 7 0 7 0



 

City Attorney's Office

Total Department

Operating Budget History

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Personnel                                

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

Supplies up $8,700 or 91% due to carpet and chair restoration that was previously budgeted in 

Capital Projects fund.

2014/15

$
1

,0
8

0
,1

2
6

  

$
1

,1
1

1
,5

3
2

  

$
1

,0
4

1
,2

2
6

  

$
1

,0
2

1
,1

0
9

  

$
1

,0
2

9
,2

2
0

  

$
1

,0
7

3
,9

4
9

  

$
1

,0
8

4
,1

2
3

  

$
8

6
7

,1
57

  

$
8

6
9

,4
74

  

$
9

6
1

,4
80

  

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

City Attorney 

101



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 266 City Attorney

101.266.00.266

PERSONAL SERVICES        764,627        811,195        933,400        901,560        974,390 8.08%        986,680        999,200 

SUPPLIES            8,125            8,284            9,500            9,500          18,200 91.58%            9,500            9,500 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          96,722        142,001        207,500        157,680        165,700 5.09%        166,500        167,200 

Business Unit Total: City Attorney       869,473       961,480    1,150,400    1,068,740    1,158,290 8.38%    1,162,680    1,175,900 

Department Total: City Attorney       869,473       961,480    1,150,400    1,068,740    1,158,290 8.38%    1,162,680    1,175,900 

City Attorney

General Fund 
General Government/Council & Exec Admin 

102



 Labor Relations

 Provides service and consultation to

administration and labor relations issues

 Negotiates collective bargaining agreements

 Benefits Administration

 Manages enrollment in health and dental

insurance plans

 Assists employees with health benefit issues

 Human Resources  and answers related questions

 Provides required COBRA notifications

 Recruits and hires highly qualified candidates  Administers Family and Medical Leave (FMLA)

 Researches and implements effective

measures to encourage employee retention  Workplace Safety

 Assists departments in effective personnel

management  Administers Worker's Compensation

 Develops policies to assure consistent, program, including required recordkeeping

effective administration of procedures, pay, and reporting

 benefits and equal employment opportunity  Coordinates early return-to-work program for

 Maintains employee personnel records injured employees

 Ensures state and federal employment law  Reviews and evaluates workplace injuries

 compliance and accidents; makes recommendations to

 Coordinates annual performance evaluations reduce future incidents

for full-time employees  Encourages safe practices and educates

 employees through the Employee Safety

Committee

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mission of the Human Resources 

Department to develop, implement and maintain 

programs and processes that add value to the City 

of Troy and to our workplace, leading to improved 

employee welfare, empowerment, growth and 

retention, thereby solidifying the City of Troy’s 

position as an employer of choice. 

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Human Resources 
 
 

       Human Resources Director.......................Jeanette Menig 

Human Resources 

103



25 25

200

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

Full-time New Hires 10 21

Full-time Promotions 15 9 15 10

Part-time/Temporary New Hires 175 162 175

Part-time/Temporary Rehires 100 110 110 120

Full-Time Separations    (excluding 

Retirement) 10 4 8 8

Full-time Separations  (Retirement only) 33 8 10 8

Part-time/Temporary Separations 270 237 250 250

Applications processed 1344 1310 1400 1500

Drivers License Checks Processed 230 209 400 400

Criminal Checks Processed 62 165 175 175

Payroll Changes Processed 1000 835 1100 1100

Occupational Injury or Illness Claims 

Processed 32 50 45 45

Average Number of Work Days to 

Complete Internal Recruitment 57 58

500

45 40

Health Insurance Enrollment Actions 

(New Hires, COBRA, etc.) (1) 113 150 150

Benefit Changes Processed (1) 475 500

Average Number of Work Days to 

Complete External Recruitment 52 62 55

3.3% 1.3% 1.5% 1.5%

Full-Time Employee Turnover Rate 

(Excluding Retirements)

50

Workplace Safety/Training Programs 

Coordinated

(1)  Information not available for time period prior to the time when Human Resources assumed these functions.

(1)

Employee Education Involvement 

Activities Coordinated

0

Notes on Performance Indicators

2 4

0 0 3 6

Human Resources 

104





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

2 0.5 3 0.4 3 0.8 4 0.5

2 0.5 3 0.4 3 0.8 4 0.5



2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

 

Human Resources

Total Department

Operating Budget History

Personal Service:

The increase of $35K or 8.45% is due to increased staffing levels for full-time Coordinator from 

elimination of part-time position, continued elimination of mandatory furlough requirements and 1% 

salary/wage increase.

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Supplies increased approximatley $5,000 due to costs associated with Risk Management functions 

being administered by the Human Resource Departement.

Travel and Mileage:

There is an increase of $150 (100%) due to the transportation needs anticipated with the transition of 

Workers Compensation and Safety/Training to the Human Resources Department from Risk 

Management.

Books and Magazines:

There is a decrease of $50 (-8%) due to taking advantage of the cost savings with a 2-year 

subscription.

There is an increase of $570 (14%) to provide a training opportunity for the Human Resources 

Specialist (to attend the Michigan Public Employer Labor Relations Association (MPELRA) in-state 

conference.

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Supplies:

Education and Training:

$
4

5
6

,3
49

  

$
5

3
5

,7
22

  

$
5

2
5

,2
86

  

$
5

5
6

,2
60

  

$
5

6
6

,9
50

  

$
5

9
5

,3
35

  

$
5

1
9

,6
76

  

$
4

6
3

,0
68

  

$
3

6
7

,1
40

  

$
4

4
2

,5
74

  

$0 

$100,000 

$200,000 

$300,000 

$400,000 

$500,000 

$600,000 

$700,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Human Resources 

105



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 270 Human Resources

101.270.00.270

PERSONAL SERVICES       294,032       342,488       421,000       417,870       453,190 8.45%       460,100       466,000 

SUPPLIES          3,370          3,353          3,400          3,750          8,700 132.00%          4,200          4,200 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        69,738        96,733        98,300       142,610       124,180 -12.92%       126,400       116,900 

Business Unit Total: Human Resources     367,141     442,574     522,700     564,230     586,070 3.87%     590,700     587,100 

Department Total: Human Resources     367,141     442,574     522,700     564,230     586,070 3.87%     590,700     587,100 

Human Resources

General Fund 
General Government/Council & Exec Admin 

106



 Processes accounts payable transactions

 Processes accounts receivables transactions

 Review and process all city invoices

 Collaborates with Purchasing to ensure

accurate oversight of all payments and

processing of all purchases

 Processes grant reimbursement requests

 Administers retiree health insurance

 Accounting  Reconciles bank statements and investments

 Administers the procurement card program

 Performs accounting of all financial

 transactions

 Processes payroll payments

 Processes retirement payments

 

Notes on Performance Indicators

None

Bank Statements and 

Investments Reconciled 48 28 29 29

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

Payroll and Retiree Checks 

Processed

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Finance Department is to 

achieve excellence in the accounting of all 

financial transactions, and provide support to City 

departments with financial; budgetary; and 

procurement issues.  

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

26,000

Performance                                   

Indicators

23,091 21,865 25,500

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

P-Card Statements Processed 

Per Year 408

19,300

Invoices Issued 10,487 10,200 11,000 11,500

Accounts Payable Invoices 

Processed 18,348 19,000 19,100

420 480 612

Finance/Accounting 
 
 

Director of Financial Services.........................................Thomas Darling 
Accounting Manager...........................................................Lisa Burnham 

Finance and Accounting 

107





Other Service Charges:

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

7 0 7 0.5 6 0.7 6 1.4

7 0 7 0.5 6 0.7 6 1.5



Membership and Dues-Increased from $600 to $1000 or 67% to allow for MGFOA memberships for all 

accountants.

Education and Training-Increase from $4100 to $6700 or 63% to allow for additional training 

opportunities for accountants and other staff.

Note:  Risk Management costs reassigned to Human Resource Dept. Audit service fees secured at no 

increased cost through fiscal year 2017.

Total Department

Operating Budget History

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Personnel:  Increase of 11% due to elimination of furlough; 1% wage increase; additional employees 

enrolled in Medical Insurance

Supplies:  Decrease of 11% for reduction in office supplies.

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

 

Accounting

Computer Services - Increase from $23,100 to $26,400 or 14% for one additional computer for intern.

Office Equipment Maintenance - Increase from $2500 to $2800 or 12% for copier charges

$
9

7
1

,2
08

  

$
1

,1
4

8
,7

00
  

$
1

,1
4

9
,3

63
  

$
9

9
7

,0
11

  

$
8

6
2

,3
84

  

$
6

6
9

,3
91

  

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

2004 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Finance and Accounting 

108



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 191 Finance

Business Unit: 191 Accounting Department

101.191.00.191

PERSONAL SERVICES      614,101      537,678      600,700      598,330      663,320 10.86%      671,860      682,320 

SUPPLIES        11,555        14,944        12,700        16,000        14,220 -11.13%        13,500        13,700 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        32,234        25,951        35,120        34,220        41,020 19.87%        41,620        42,120 

Business Unit Total: Accounting Department     657,890     578,573     648,520     648,550     718,560 10.79%     726,980     738,140 

Business Unit: 192 Risk Management

101.191.00.192

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES      141,845        28,333                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

SUP - SUPPLIES             564             175                 -             400                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          4,985          5,211          1,300          4,700                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit Total: Risk Management     147,394       33,719         1,300         5,100                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit: 223 Independent Auditor

101.191.00.223

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        57,100        57,100        57,000        57,000        57,000 0.00%        57,000        57,000 

Business Unit Total: Independent Auditor       57,100       57,100       57,000       57,000       57,000 0.00%       57,000       57,000 

Department Total: Finance Department     862,384     669,391     706,820     710,650     775,560 9.13%     783,980     795,140 

Finance Department

General Fund 
Genreal Government/Financil Services 

109





 City Treasurer's Office

 

 Collection and recording of all City revenue

 Preparation and deposit of all funds to

 appropriate bank accounts

 Maintain and balance tax roll

 Collection of tax revenue and disbursement to

 appropriate taxing authorities

 Maintain billing of special assessments

 Process outgoing City mail

 Passport Acceptance Facility

MISSION STATEMENT DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

The mission of the City Treasurer’s Office is to 

provide knowledgeable and courteous customer 

assistance for residents, businesses and 

visitors, and to implement the most current 

information technology available.  

City Treasurer's 
Office 

 

      City Treasurer.................................................Sandra Kasperek 

City Treasurer's Office 

110



  

2014/15      

Budget

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

Tax Bill Payments Taken in the 

Treasurer's Office 22,928 23,702 23,000 22,200

Tax Bill Payments Processed 

Electronically and at the Lockbox 42,164 41,636 42,200 43,000

Tax Bill Payments Processed 

Online/IVR Credit Card 286 312 300 300

Tax Adjustments Processed 522 350 400 400

Total % of Tax Roll Collected 99.81 99.80 99.80 99.80

Water Bill Payments Taken in the 

Treasurer's Office 19,261 25,271 23,000 21,000

Water Bill Payments Processed at the 

Lockbox 64,728 59,161 61,000 63,000

Water Bill Payments Processed through 

Auto Pay 17,012 17,840 18,000 18,000

Customers Enrolled in Auto Pay 4,250 4,460 4,500 4,500

Special Assessment Billed 42 36 36 31

Number of Pieces of Outgoing City Mail 

Processed 92,740 103,710 90,000 90,000

Passport Application Accepted 1,535 1,650 1,600 1,600

None

Notes on Performance Indicators

Number of Invoices Processed 9,210 9,500 9,500 9,500

City Treasurer's Office 

111





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0

4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0



2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014/15

7% increase in postage or about $5000.  Under-budgeted this line for 2013/14.

USPS increased rates 7% as of January 26, 2014.

Expect significant decrease in tax refunds of about $100,000.

 

City Treasurer's Office

Total Department

Operating Budget History

2013/14

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Other Service Charges:

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

$
5

1
3

,0
82

  

$
4

3
5

,3
83

  

$
5

1
3

,3
36

  

$
4

5
2

,4
66

  

$
4

9
6

,7
67

  

$
6

2
8

,2
93

  

$
6

2
9

,7
68

  

$
1

,0
1

1
,4

88
  

$
1

,0
4

3
,8

22
  

$
9

0
4

,7
47

  

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

City Treasurer's Office 

112



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 191 Finance/Treasury

Business Unit: 253 Treasurer's Office

101.191.00.253

PERSONAL SERVICES        338,385       324,085       373,290       374,800       384,440 2.57%       390,110       395,950 

SUPPLIES          30,043        31,077        37,000        34,650        46,100 33.04%        37,000        37,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        675,394       549,585       175,930       325,960       124,430 -61.83%       126,430       126,930 

Business Unit Total: Treasurer's Office    1,043,822     904,747     586,220     735,410     554,970 -24.54%     553,540     559,880 

Department Total: Treasurer's Office    1,043,822     904,747     586,220     735,410     554,970 -24.54%     553,540     559,880 

Treasurer's Office

General Fund 
General Government/Financial Services 

113





 The responsibilities of the Purchasing

Department includes:

 Administering and managing and economical, 

effective, timely and lawful procurement process 

in order to meet the nees of the City.

 Utilizing MITN; the Michigan Inter-Governmental

Trade Network; www.mitn.info 

 Actively participating in cooperative

purchasing opportunities where applicable

and beneficial to the City of Troy.

 Conduct Quote and Bid process which

includes writing customized bid documents

and Request for Proposals

 Continuously facilitating and planning cost

saving opportunities

 Contract administration of City-wide, non-

construction contracts.

 Administering the procurement card program

 Collaborating with the Finance Department to

ensure accurate payment and processing of

all purchases.

MISSION STATEMENT DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

The Mission of the Purchasing Department is 

to ensure value for City of Troy Departments 

by procuring goods and services at the lowest 

competitive price from competent vendors 

meeting specifications. Activities of the 

personnel in the Purchasing Department shall 

be performed in a manner that guarantees the 

integrity of the purchasing process, and that all 

vendors and City personnel are treated 

equitably and professionally.

Purchasing 
 

     Purchasing Manager.............................................MaryBeth Murz 

Purchasing 

114






 


 

2014/15      

Budget

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

Bid/Proposals Processed 25 28 30 32

Value of Contracted Expenditures $8,082,708 $8,890,980 $10,225,000 $11,500,000

Value of Goods/Services 

Purchased $37,147,492 $33,609,583 $34,000,000 $35,000,000

P-Card Transactions per Year 1902 2062 2300 2400

Total P-Card Spending $321,940 $531,647 $585,000 $645,000

Bid Process Savings $493,621 $475,500 $500K-$1Mil $500K-1Mil

$18,573,746 $15,445,000 $16,000,000 $16,000,000

Total Purchase Monitored per 

FTE

% of Awards Without Dispute 100% 100% 100% 100%

Average Amount of P-Card 

Transactions $169 $258 $260 $260

$12,000

Office Supply Rebates $1,655 $1,765 $1,900 $2,000

Notes on Performance Indicators

Vending Commissions $12,039 $12,202 $12,000

The Purchasing Department had a very busy and successful year.  The % of Awards without

dispute were 100%

Vending sales continue to perform and the City continues to receive commissions based on the

City wide vending contract.

The total P-card spend had a substantial increase over last year; which means the City's P-Card

rebate will be $5,316.  The rebate is base on the total P-Card spend.

Purchasing 

115



Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

2 0 2 0.4 2 0 2 0

2 0 2 0.4 2 0 2 0



2014/15

 

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Purchasing Department

Total Department

Operating Budget History

Personal Services:

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

$
3

5
4

,5
08

  

$
3

6
4

,1
38

  

$
3

7
4

,6
17

  

$
4

0
5

,9
95

  

$
3

7
0

,4
10

  

$
3

7
6

,9
04

  

$
3

7
7

,3
10

  

$
2

9
5

,3
26

  

$
2

2
8

,5
52

  

$
1

8
3

,9
28

  

$0 

$50,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

$350,000 

$400,000 

$450,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Purchasing 

116



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 233 Purchasing

Business Unit: 233 Purchasing

101.233.00.233

PERSONAL SERVICES       218,320       170,420       217,077       236,360       208,440 -11.81%       211,220       214,040 

SUPPLIES          2,256          2,805          3,700          4,000          3,700 -7.50%          4,000          4,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          7,976        10,703          8,863        11,070        16,800 51.76%        16,000        16,200 

Business Unit Total: Purchasing 

Department     228,553     183,928     229,640     251,430     228,940 -8.94%     231,220     234,240 

Department Total: Purchasing Department     228,553     183,928     229,640     251,430     228,940 -8.94%     231,220     234,240 

Purchasing Department

General Fund 
General Government/Financial Services 

117



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

 Assessing

 Supervises preparation of Assessment Roll

 Serves as secretary of the Board of Review

 Implements policies and procedures

 Defends City in all matters before the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal

 

Notes on Performance Indicators

 As Residential Value increase, Board of Review Appointments will decrease.

 Assessor Review Changes will also decrease with rising values.

 Principal Residence Exemption and Deed processing will increase with more sales.

 Property Descriptions Changes will increase with more new construction.

 Small Claims Tribunal Appeals will flatten with rising residential values

 Full Tribunal Appeals should level off as the Commercial/Industrial values stagnate.

 The Sales Ratio percent and Equalization Factor should not change.

1.001.001.00

50.00%50.00%50.00%

40200252

506046

$4,785,752,725$4,275,331,460$4,410,108,900

450500423

5,0004,5004,296

3,0002,8002,600

150150150

150175128

Sales Ratio 50.00%

Equalization Factor 1.00

Small Claims Tribunal Appeals 117

Full Tribunal Appeals 424

Total State Equalized Value $4,540,412,680

Principal Residence 

Exemptions 2,621

Transfer Affidavits and Deeds 4,706

Property Description Changes 999

Assessor Review Changes 188

Personal Property Audits 155

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

Board of Review Appointments 402 448 500 400

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City Assessor’s Office is to 

accurately inventory and appraise every parcel of 

property in Troy in order to fairly distribute the tax 

burden, which supports the cost of government. 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

City Assessor's 
Office 

 
 

   City Assessor.....................................................Leger A. (Nino) Licari 

City Assessor's Office 

118





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

6 0.5 6 0.5 6 0.8 6 0.7

6 0.5 6 0.5 6 0.8 6 0.7



2012

2013

Operating Budget History

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

None

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

 

City Assessor's Office

Total Department

$
8

3
4

,0
98

  

$
8

1
2

,7
20

  

$
8

3
3

,0
78

  

$
8

9
9

,6
65

  

$
9

2
1

,9
72

  

$
9

6
0

,8
69

  

$
9

6
5

,0
23

  

$
7

5
8

,5
67

  

$
7

7
4

,9
69

  

$
7

8
5

,4
12

  

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

City Assessor's Office 

119



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 257 Assessing Department

Business Unit: 247 Board of Review

101.257.00.247

PERSONAL SERVICES          1,305             986          2,420          2,420          2,420 0.00%          2,420          2,420 

SUPPLIES                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES             440             282                 -             580             550 -5.17%             550             550 

Business Unit Total: Board of Review         1,745         1,268         2,420         3,000         2,970 -1.00%         2,970         2,970 

Business Unit: 257 Assessor's Office

101.257.00.257

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES       686,005       698,656       806,050       806,050       844,280 4.74%       855,450       866,820 

SUP - SUPPLIES        17,553        17,349        20,800        20,800        21,200 1.92%        21,700        22,100 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        69,666        68,139        69,650        73,620        78,360 6.44%        80,180        81,400 

Business Unit Total: Assessor's Office     773,224     784,144     896,500     900,470     943,840 4.82%     957,330     970,320 

Department Total: Finance Department     774,969     785,412     898,920     903,470     946,810 4.80%     960,300     973,290 

Assessing Department

General Fund 
General Government/Financial Services 

120



Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

 

       



2014/15

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

 

City Hall

Total Department

See Building Operations Fund (Internal Service Fund)

City Buildings 
 

Director of Building Operations.................................Steve Pallotta 

City Buildings 

121



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 264 Building Operations

Business Unit: 261 Fire/Police 

Training Center

101.264.00.261

PERSONAL SERVICES                 -                 -                   -                  -                  - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUPPLIES          2,119          2,805            5,000           5,000           5,000 0.00%            5,480            5,920 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        70,087        72,646          80,080         85,400         91,080 6.65%          95,650          98,820 

Business Unit Total: Fire/Police 

Training Ctr.       72,206       75,451         85,080        90,400        96,080 6.28%       101,130       104,740 

Business Unit: 265 City Hall

101.264.00.265

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                 -                 -                   -                  -                  - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES             517             750               750              750              800 6.67%               850               900 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES       630,444       636,484        674,495       739,150        761,270 2.99%         783,300         791,710 

Business Unit Total: City Hall     630,961     637,234       675,245      739,900      762,070 3.00%       784,150       792,610 

Building Operations

General Fund 
General Government/Other General 

122



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Building Operations

General Fund 
General Government/Other General 

Business Unit: 268 MultiModal Transit 

Center

101.264.00.268

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                 -                 -                   -                  -                  - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                 -                 -            2,500                  -           5,050 100.00%            5,180            5,350 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                 -                 -          37,400         38,600         60,550 56.87%          61,620          62,650 

Business Unit Total: MultiModal 

Transit Center                 -                 -         39,900        38,600        65,600 69.95%         66,800         68,000 

Business Unit: 277 District Court

101.264.00.277

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                 -                 -                   -                  -                  - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES        10,078          9,442          19,500         21,500         21,500 0.00%          21,500          21,500 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES       205,587       195,806        200,420       208,500        225,310 8.06%         233,660         236,030 

Business Unit Total: District Court     215,665     205,248       219,920      230,000      246,810 7.31%       255,160       257,530 

Department Total: Building 

Operations     918,831     917,933    1,020,145   1,098,900   1,170,560 6.52%    1,207,240    1,222,880 

123



 Serves as a liaison with law enforcement and

 community groups

 Manages emergency operations and

 homeland security functions

 Conducts Internal and Pre-employment 

Investigations

 Develops, schedules, and presents

department training

 Manages and disseminates social media

 Facilitates problem-solving projects

 Conducts background investigations on liquor

license applicants, gun registration, and

other city-mandated licensing and permits

 Manages and directs the Tactical Support

 Team, Crisis Negotiation Tem, and Special

 Response Unit

 Coordinates with Oak Tac Training

 Consortium to manage and direct small

  squad tactics, active shooter, and school

  safety training exercises

  Manages the function of Crime Data Analyst

   

coordination, and review of Department  Investigative/Administrative Services

operations  Services



 Investigates reported crimes and suspected

  criminal activity

 Conducts undercover investigations and

  criminal surveillances

  Gathers collates, and disseminates 

 information regarding criminal activity

Office of the Chief of Police / 

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mission of the Police Department to 

enhance the quality of life in our community by 

protecting life and property and maintaining the 

peace through police service.  The Police 

Department seeks to accomplish its mission by 

forming partnerships with residents, businesses, 

community groups, governmental agencies, and 

private organizations.  The Department utilizes 

problem solving and creativity to enhance 

community livability and empowers its employees 

to exercise leadership to achieve our mission.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Professional Standards Section

Prepares and administers the Department

Coordinates and administers grants

Directs the planning, organization,

Establishes, evaluates, and reports on

Department goals

Department policies and procedures

Works with the City Manager and department

Develops, implements, and evaluates

budget

heads on city plans and projects

 

Police 
 

                 Police Chief......................................................Gary G. Mayer 

Police 

124



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont.)      Operations Division

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







actions in the community to facilitate quality policing

Provides specialized narcotics trafficking and and problem solving

arson investigations Operates motor and foot patrol by uniformed

Serves as liaison with other law enforcement and plain clothes officers for the general

agencies maintenance of law and order

Conducts forensic examinations of electronic Provides immediate response to emergency

devices situations and provides specialized law

Participates in multi-jurisdictional investigative enforcement response to tactical situations

efforts

welfare, abuse, and neglect

Serves as liaison with local, state, and federal

prosecutors and courts

Houses and transports prisoners

Dispatches calls for emergency services

Maintains records, processes Freedom of

Information (FOIA) requests, and permit and

license requests

Stores, secures, and disposes of property

and evidence

Coordinates and maintains management

Participates in multi-jurisdictional South

Coordinates purchase and maintenance of Oakland County Crash Investigations team

Facilitates the volunteer Citizen on Patrol

 

Administers criminal and narcotics forfeiture

Conducts investigations relative to child

information systems and conducts research

and planning

Department vehicles

Manages impound vehicles

Coordinates volunteers working inside the

Department  

plain clothes and uniform officers

education programs, responds to complaints

of neighborhood traffic problems, and

coordinates school crossing guards

Conducts tobacco compliance checks and

Implements crime prevention programs

Utilizes K-9 Unit for drug searches, missing

persons, and tracking criminals

program

Processes major crime scene/Evidence

Technician Unit

Conducts liquor compliance inspections by

coordinates school crossing guards

Coordinates Chaplain programs

Disseminates media information/Public

Information Officer

Conducts safety education classes for youth

groups

investigates traffic crashes, facilitates traffic

Establishes working relationships with people

Coordinate the PD involvement in

Community charity based events in

conjunction with City Civic Groups

Smoking Lounges compliance checks

Massage facilities compliance checks

Somerset Liaison Officer

School Resource Officer

Plan, coordinate, staff and execute large

Scale Special Events occurring in the City

Police 

125





 

 The Police Department's goals are:

 

  

 

 

 

Liquor Law Violations

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

Underage Alcohol Enforcement 116 96

402

15

100 80

2014/15      

Budget

10 5 5

493 425 425

2013/14      

Projected

15 5 5

2,930 3,055

Group A Crimes Arrests 1,073 1,174 1,200 1,150

Alcohol Compliance Inspections Resulting in 

Violations 9

2,550

Group A Crime Clearance Rate 30.5% 36.3% 33.6% 35.0%

Directed/Selective Traffic Enforcement Details 39 14 0 30

Group A Crimes Occurring 3,197 3,038

69.1% 65.0%

Traffic Crashes (Reportable) 2,821

2,595 2,500

60.9% 63.6%

2,959 3,075 3,025

7,432 7,662 6,558 6,600

License, Title, Registration Citations 2,125

2,439

OWI Arrests

Volunteer Hours 606.25 686.25 1,000.00 1,100.00

Online (Web Based Reports Taken) 26 350 500 550

Obligated Time

Hazardous Traffic Citations

14/15 Budget column assumes the addition of 2 Officers to create a Crash Reduction 

Unit. This will create a 4% increase in the personnel assigned to road patrol, and in turn 

affect the Performance Indicators or the 14/15 Fiscal Year.

To reduce/maintain crime level in Troy

To increase the number of officers on the streets of Troy

Non-Hazardous Traffic Citations 745 846 650 675

2,149 1,650 1,500

Notes on Performance Indicators

To increase community involvement/awareness in an effort to enhance the livability of the

overall Troy community

To maintain a high level of police service and professionalism in Troy

Request for Ambulance With Officer

Police 

126





*

*

*

*

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

174.5 7.2 146.5 8.2 148.5 8.6 152.5 8.8

174.5 7.2 146.5 7.9 148.5 8.6 152.5 8.8



2010

2011

2012

2013

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

The total Police Department Operating Budget is $25,573,943.  This is a $266,833 or a 1.190% 

increase over the last year.  The capital budget is down $162,000 or 43.78%.

Full time sworn Personnel have increased by 4 persons to staff a Traffic Safety Unit.  Personal 

Services continue to be the largest portion of the Police Department budget, comprising of 86% 

of the entire budget.

The General Training fund increased $15,000 (25.0%) to get back to the budgeted amount per 

officer the Police Department had dedicated towards training in FY 2007/08.  This increase will 

partially offset reductions in state training funding due to our downsizing.

Operating Budget History

Reduction in potential litigation $400,000.

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     

Total Department

Police Department

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

 

$
2

0
,5

4
3,

1
1

3 
 

$
2

1
,1

9
2,

3
1

0 
 

$
2

1
,9

4
5,

4
3

2 
 

$
2

3
,1

4
7,

9
6

7 
 

$
2

4
,2

6
9,

9
0

2 
 

$
2

4
,4

8
2,

1
6

0 
 

$
2

4
,7

5
6,

7
6

6 
 

$
2

4
,7

1
8,

9
7

9 
 

$
2

1
,5

2
9,

4
7

2 
 

$
2

1
,2

5
0,

0
9

3
  

$0 

$5,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$15,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$25,000,000 

$30,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Police 

127



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

ExpendituresDepartment: 301 Police 

DepartmentDivision: 10 Executive 

Administration

Business Unit: 305 Police 

Administration

101.301.10.305

PERSONAL SERVICES          989,361       1,145,827          891,430          866,640          901,580 4.03%          912,500          922,800 

SUPPLIES          117,810            81,976            95,500            99,700          151,600 52.06%          103,545          105,530 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          458,239          393,438          456,170          503,240          540,940 7.49%          549,280          558,680 

Business Unit Total: Police 

Administration     1,565,409     1,621,241     1,443,100     1,469,580     1,594,120 8.47%     1,565,325     1,587,010 

Business Unit: 320 

Professional Standards

101.301.10.320

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                    -          152,295          637,940          650,800          680,020 4.49%          694,240          708,180 

SUP - SUPPLIES                    -                664             1,700             1,800             1,800 0.00%             1,800             1,800 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES                    -                    -            17,720            17,720            18,300 3.27%            18,400            19,400 

Business Unit Total: 

Professional Standards                    -         152,959         657,360         670,320         700,120 4.45%         714,440         729,380 

Division Total: Executive 

Administration     1,565,409     1,774,199     2,100,460     2,139,900     2,294,240 7.21%     2,279,765     2,316,390 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

128



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Division: 11 

Investigative/Admin Services

Business Unit: 307 

Investigations Services

101.301.11.307

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES       1,502,452       1,784,506       1,772,850       1,857,660       1,953,480 5.16%       1,979,380       2,014,160 

SUP - SUPPLIES             9,781             7,778            14,210            15,200            15,210 0.07%            15,220            15,230 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            91,255          146,677          128,080          140,430          152,130 8.33%          156,945          160,240 

Business Unit Total: 

Investigations Services     1,603,489     1,938,961     1,915,140     2,013,290     2,120,820 5.34%     2,151,545     2,189,630 

Business Unit: 308 Crime 

Information Unit

101.301.11.308

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          501,025          506,777          462,740          507,620          533,060 5.01%          540,760          549,340 

SUP - SUPPLIES             3,405             2,923             4,100             4,200             4,200 0.00%             4,200             4,200 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            19,668             8,935            19,220            19,820            23,880 20.48%            25,210            24,830 

Business Unit Total: Crime 

Information Unit         524,098         518,635         486,060         531,640         561,140 5.55%         570,170         578,370 

129



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 309 Special 

Investigations Unit

101.301.11.309

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          432,780          511,505          484,800          505,530          478,820 -5.28%          485,550          494,310 

SUP - SUPPLIES             2,592             3,065             3,600             3,700             3,700 0.00%             3,700             3,700 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            31,654            38,873            44,480            44,880            33,780 -24.73%            44,760            45,250 

Business Unit Total: Special 

Investigations Unit         467,026         553,443         532,880         554,110         516,300 -6.82%         534,010         543,260 

Business Unit: 311 Drug 

Enforcement (DEA)

101.301.11.311

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          203,849          199,606          185,220          194,350          185,120 -4.75%          188,630          192,410 

SUP - SUPPLIES             5,812             7,948             9,860            12,900            13,100 1.55%            13,300            13,510 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE            10,361            23,096            20,800            21,000            20,800 -0.95%            21,760            21,730 

Business Unit Total: Drug 

Enforcement (DEA)         220,023         230,650         215,880         228,250         219,020 -4.04%         223,690         227,650 

Business Unit: 321 Criminal 

Justice Training

101.301.11.321

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES -                                      - -                                      - -                   0.00% -                                      - 

SUP - SUPPLIES -                                      - -                                      - -                   0.00% -                                      - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES 24,460                     42,430 20,000                     20,000 20,400          2.00% 20,800                     21,300 

130



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit Total: Criminal 

Justice Training          24,460          42,430          20,000          20,000          20,400 2.00%          20,800          21,300 

Business Unit: 322 Training 

Section

101.301.11.322

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          268,649          323,206          295,380          302,810          329,620 8.85%          334,380          338,670 

SUP - SUPPLIES            24,238            80,305            80,800            81,800            83,160 1.66%            84,560            85,970 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES             1,748            16,290            28,100            29,680            20,310 -31.57%            21,300            21,100 

Business Unit Total: Training 

Section         294,636         419,801         404,280         414,290         433,090 4.54%         440,240         445,740 

Business Unit: 324 

Emergency 

Response/Preparedness

101.301.11.324

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          144,502            15,431            11,270            22,110            92,230 317.14%            82,720            84,390 

SUP - SUPPLIES            27,572            27,581            50,000            52,200            52,200 0.00%            52,200            52,200 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES                  22                    2             9,990             9,990            10,190 2.00%            10,360            10,590 

Business Unit Total: 

Emergency 

Response/Preparedness         172,096          43,015          71,260          84,300         154,620 83.42%         145,280         147,180 

131



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 326 Records 

Section

101.301.11.326

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          360,899          415,400          533,080          626,910          601,040 -4.13%          608,950          616,710 

SUP - SUPPLIES                143                785             1,200             1,300             1,300 0.00%             1,300             1,300 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            26,577            22,433            25,540            33,140            34,110 2.93%            15,360            15,760 

Business Unit Total: Records 

Section         387,619         438,618         559,820         661,350         636,450 -3.77%         625,610         633,770 

Business Unit: 329 Lockup 

Section

101.301.11.329

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES       1,107,960       1,088,042       1,243,200       1,393,820       1,423,280 2.11%       1,444,760       1,463,360 

SUP - SUPPLIES            20,614            17,656            20,400            20,430            19,590 -4.11%            19,650            19,720 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            29,793            13,688            15,140            15,140            15,430 1.92%            15,490            16,050 

Business Unit Total: Lockup 

Section     1,158,367     1,119,386     1,278,740     1,429,390     1,458,300 2.02%     1,479,900     1,499,130 

132



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 333 Property 

Section

101.301.11.333

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            95,748          106,720          108,130          115,490          115,010 -0.42%          118,310          120,690 

SUP - SUPPLIES             1,918             2,142             1,800             1,800             1,800 0.00%             1,800             1,800 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES                304                  31                410                410                420 2.44%                430                440 

Business Unit Total: 

Property Section          97,971         108,893         110,340         117,700         117,230 -0.40%         120,540         122,930 

Business Unit: 334 Research 

& Technology

101.301.11.334

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          234,184          224,308          248,400          274,270          300,740 9.65%          305,400          309,580 

SUP - SUPPLIES            22,311            23,359            23,800            23,800            24,200 1.68%            23,800            23,800 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES          492,957          531,573          536,250          536,290          597,360 11.39%          605,430          614,760 

Business Unit Total: 

Research & Technology         749,451         779,240         808,450         834,360         922,300 10.54%         934,630         948,140 

Division Total: 

Investigative/Admin Services     5,699,235     6,193,071     6,402,850     6,888,680     7,159,670 3.93%     7,246,415     7,357,100 

133



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Division: 12 Operations

Business Unit: 315 Road 

Patrol

101.301.12.315

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES       7,621,403       8,587,432       8,725,460       9,237,620       9,151,370 -0.93%       9,247,440       9,351,220 

SUP - SUPPLIES            94,192          114,597          168,650          210,150          241,723 15.02%          213,870          166,060 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES       1,240,704          866,202       1,200,490       1,371,890       1,007,610 -26.55%       1,036,370       1,043,210 

Business Unit Total: Road 

Patrol     8,956,300     9,568,231   10,094,600   10,819,660   10,400,703 -3.87%   10,497,680   10,560,490 

Business Unit: 316 K Nine

101.301.12.316

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          474,155          510,549          471,830          491,430          531,310 8.12%          538,180          544,770 

SUP - SUPPLIES             3,437             3,220             4,340             4,340             4,370 0.69%             4,340             4,340 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            63,516            52,687            80,940            80,880            55,510 -31.37%            54,710            56,660 

Business Unit Total: K Nine         541,108         566,457         557,110         576,650         591,190 2.52%         597,230         605,770 

134



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 317 Directed 

Patrol Unit

101.301.12.317

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          442,769          373,045          503,380          645,470          606,890 -5.98%          614,620          622,200 

SUP - SUPPLIES             2,520             1,509             3,600             6,500             5,600 -13.85%             5,600             5,600 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            41,264            35,819            68,740            69,040            68,250 -1.14%            70,160            71,860 

Business Unit Total: Directed 

Patrol Unit         486,554         410,373         575,720         721,010         680,740 -5.59%         690,380         699,660 

Business Unit: 318 Traffic 

Unit

101.301.12.318

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES       1,204,921          (11,354)                    -                    -          221,120 100.00%          224,540          228,040 

SUP - SUPPLIES             9,346                    -                    -                    -             3,600 100.00%             3,680             3,740 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES          212,575                    -                    -                    -            38,350 100.00%            39,120            39,940 

Business Unit Total: Traffic 

Unit     1,426,842         (11,354)                    -                    -         263,070 100.00%         267,340         271,720 

135



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 319 Crossing 

Guards

101.301.12.319

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            19,818            23,797            23,910            23,910            25,830 8.03%            26,350            26,880 

SUP - SUPPLIES                    -                734                300                300                300 0.00%                300                300 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES                207                  21                290                290                290 0.00%                280                280 

Business Unit Total: Crossing 

Guards          20,026          24,553          24,500          24,500          26,420 7.84%          26,930          27,460 

Business Unit: 325 

Communications Section

101.301.12.325

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES       1,828,774       1,997,373       1,952,730       2,081,180       2,000,550 -3.87%       2,028,670       2,049,110 

SUP - SUPPLIES            21,607            30,576            36,150            41,150            68,760 67.10%            41,170            58,680 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            71,609            75,182            96,020          102,520          104,580 2.01%          106,700          108,850 

Business Unit Total: 

Communications Section     1,921,990     2,103,131     2,084,900     2,224,850     2,173,890 -2.29%     2,176,540     2,216,640 

136



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 335 

Community Services Section

101.301.12.335

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          564,839          562,660          750,900          857,490          943,450 10.02%          956,370          967,140 

SUP - SUPPLIES                861             1,939             6,800             6,800             8,600 26.47%             8,600             8,600 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            90,943            56,833            47,370            47,570            31,970 -32.79%            33,500            33,210 

Business Unit Total: 

Community Services Section         656,643         621,432         805,070         911,860         984,020 7.91%         998,470     1,008,950 

Division Total: Operations   14,009,463   13,282,823   14,141,900   15,278,530   15,120,033 -1.04%   15,254,570   15,390,690 

Division 13 - Special Units

Business Unit: 310 Narcotics 

Enforcement

101.301.13.310

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            35,244                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                    -                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES                    -                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

Business Unit Total: 

Narcotics Enforcement          35,244                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

137



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Police Department

General Fund 
Public Safety 

Business Unit: 314 Juvenile 

Unit

101.301.13.314

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          164,595                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                882                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES            38,089                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

Business Unit Total: Juvenile 

Unit         203,565                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

Business Unit: 328 Animal 

Control

101.301.13.328

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            15,971                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                    -                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE 

CHARGES                585                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

Business Unit Total: Animal 

Control          16,557                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

Division Total: Special Units         255,366                    -                    -                    -                    - 0.00%                    -                    - 

Department Total: Police 

Department   21,529,472   21,250,093   22,645,210   24,307,110   24,573,943 1.10%   24,780,750   25,064,180 

138



 Reviews plans for fire protection system

installation

 Conducts building fire and life safety

inspections



 Issues permits for fire protection, hazardous

 materials, occupancy, fireworks and special

 event permits

 Administers state and federal firefighter "Right

to Know" program

 Conducts public fire education

 Coordinates fire prevention week/open house

 activities

  Oversees fire explorer program



  Fire Suppression

 

  Responds to fires and other emergency

 incidents

  Mitigates hazards

  Performs routine inspections and

 maintenance on assigned apparatus and

 equipment



 Operations

 Fire Prevention/Public Education  Conducts firefighter recruitment

  Coordinates/Provides recruit and in-service

  training

  Conducts fire investigations

  Coordinates equipment and apparatus

 acquisition and maintenance

 Coordinates facility maintenance

Plans fire protection/emergency services

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Troy Fire Department is to 

provide the highest possible level of fire 

protection, rescue and hazard mitigation services 

to the community. This shall be accomplished with 

a team of professionals, both volunteer and 

career, by providing fire prevention, public 

education, emergency operations and planning.  

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Administration

Recruits and selects volunteer and career

personnel

Develops policies and procedures

Prepares and administers department budget

Represents department to public groups and

regional mutual aid organizations

Reviews plans for new building construction

and renovation

 

 

Represents department and City interests at

county, state and national levels

Administers contact and emergency medical

"First Responder" program

Fire 
 

           Fire Chief.................................................William Nelson 

Fire 

139



  

 The cost of the medical first responder program was transferred from the police department to

 the fire department in the 2012/13 budget ($492,000)

 *Based on 2010 Census population - 80,980 residents

 ** Measure includes actual data only

Fire Department Responses 1,149 1,006 1,100 1,100

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

All Fires 177 152 150 150

Structure Fires 60 41 50 50

Property Endangered 204,028,999 196,870,279 200,000,000 200,000,000

Fire Loss $1,871,136 $1,401,450 $1,500,000 $1,500,000

# of Volunteer Firefighters 165 166 170 180

Firefighter Training Hours 18,530 16,914 20,000 20,000

Public Education Programs 119 118 120 120

Public Education Attendance 7,249 7,696 7,500 7,500

Inspections Performed 2,414 3,154 2,800 2,900

Violations Issued 1,419 1,861 1,500 1,500

Violations Cleared 680 980 1,000 1,000

Fees Earned $109,108 $145,571 $150,000 $150,000

Plans Reviewed 799 1,019 900 900

Fire Loss Per Capita* $23.11

0/0 0/5 0/1 **

$56.08 $58.90 $60.82

69% 69% **

Civilian fire related 

deaths/injuries

$17.31 $18.52 $18.52

Dept. Operating Cost Per 

Capita* $52.29

Permits Issued 468 538 550 550

Notes on Performance Indicators

0/4 0/4 0 **

Firefighter death/injuries

% of Sq. Ft. of Buildings with 

Auto Fire Protection 69%

Fire 

140



Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

11 2.2 11 2.3 11 2.1 11 2.1

11 2.2 11 2.3 11 2.1 11 2.1



2012

2013

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

 

Fire Department

Personal Services category increased by $93,580.00 or 5.9% Due to elimination of furlough time 

and benefit cost increases.

Total Department

Operating Budget History

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

$
3

,7
3

2
,5

06
  

$
4

,0
7

1
,7

74
  

$
4

,0
3

6
,1

10
  

$
4

,3
7

6
,8

60
  

$
4

,3
7

3
,0

11
  

$
4

,4
2

2
,1

14
  

$
4

,2
6

3
,6

06
  

$
4

,0
3

8
,5

01
  

$
3

,7
8

4
,0

58
  

$
4

,3
0

9
,5

51
  

$0 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$3,500,000 

$4,000,000 

$4,500,000 

$5,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Fire 

141



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 336 Fire Department

Business Unit: 337 Fire 

Administration

101.336.00.337

PERSONAL SERVICES        268,444        295,345        310,420        312,430        323,150 3.43%        327,290        331,560 

SUPPLIES            5,543            6,897            7,385            7,350            7,350 0.00%            7,350            7,350 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          41,308          19,615          43,720          42,230          44,490 5.35%          45,190          45,990 

Business Unit Total: Fire 

Administration       315,295       321,857       361,525       362,010       374,990 3.59%       379,830       384,900 

Business Unit: 338 Fire Operations

101.336.00.338

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        289,433        291,747        327,110        329,430        339,980 3.20%        344,540        349,190 

SUP - SUPPLIES        253,267        253,504        270,710        270,710        282,785 4.46%        270,430        270,800 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          72,216        536,210        561,380        561,580        572,790 2.00%        583,490        594,400 

Capital Outlay              770                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

Business Unit Total: Fire 

Operations       615,686   1,081,461   1,159,200   1,161,720   1,195,555 2.91%   1,198,460   1,214,390 

Business Unit: 340 Fire Companies

101.336.00.340

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                   -          22,089                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

Fire Department
General Fund 
Public Safety 

142



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fire Department
General Fund 
Public Safety 

SUP - SUPPLIES          10,077          16,278          11,000          11,000          11,220 2.00%          11,440          11,660 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES     1,273,846     1,267,123     1,493,500     1,494,500     1,499,350 0.32%     1,503,130     1,506,950 

Business Unit Total: Fire 

Companies   1,283,923   1,305,491   1,504,500   1,505,500   1,510,570 0.34%   1,514,570   1,518,610 

Business Unit: 341 Fire Prevention

101.336.00.341

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        814,468        872,057        946,810        955,540        997,490 4.39%     1,009,810     1,022,350 

SUP - SUPPLIES            6,690            6,481          11,950          12,850          12,980 1.01%          13,120          13,260 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          74,144          94,279        101,440        102,540        106,650 4.01%        108,450        110,350 

Business Unit Total: Fire 

Prevention       895,302       972,817   1,060,200   1,070,930   1,117,120 4.31%   1,131,380   1,145,960 

Business Unit: 343 Fire 

Communications

101.336.00.343

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES            3,682            3,733            3,800            3,800            3,840 1.05%            3,880            3,920 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        207,076        205,801        216,200        216,200        236,110 9.21%        239,970        243,960 

Business Unit Total: Fire 

Communications       210,758       209,534       220,000       220,000       239,950 9.07%       243,850       247,880 

Business Unit: 344 Fire Halls

101.336.00.344

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          10,945            3,575                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES          71,348          66,240          63,250          60,750          65,300 7.49%          67,500          67,500 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        380,800        348,575        382,870        389,250        398,200 2.30%        408,164        410,433 

Business Unit Total: Fire Halls       463,093       418,390       446,120       450,000       463,500 3.00%       475,664       477,933 

Department Total: Fire 

Department   3,784,058   4,309,551   4,751,545   4,770,160   4,901,685 2.76%   4,943,754   4,989,673 

143



 Clerical

 Processes and issues permits

 Collects fees for permits and conducts daily

accounting of fees

 Maintains and updates permit and inspection

records

 Prepares and processes written communications

from the department

 Prepares monthly and annual reports

 Assists the public in locating record on existing

buildings

   Administration  Recommends strategic planning initiatives

 Facilitates Council-community relationships

 Prepares and administers department  Inspects construction at various stages

 budget through completion of assure compliance with

 Develops departmental policies and all codes and ordinances

procedures that allow for delivery  Provides information and assistance to citizens

of professional services  Coordinates inspections with Fire, Engineering,

 Prepares agenda items for City Water and other involved departments

Council  Assists homeowners with the builder complaint

 Ensures that inspectors complete process through the State of Michigan

required continuing education classes

 to maintain State registration

 Provides education to the public

 on the activities of the department  

 Oversees and provides administrative

support to City building projects

MISSION STATEMENT

SAFEbuilt Inc. performs duties dedicated to 

protecting the health, safety and welfare of 

the Troy community.  The Building 

Inspection Department enforces nearly 30 

different chapters of the Troy City Code 

including building codes, property 

maintenance, signs, litter, zoning, nuisance 

and others.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Building Inspection 
 
 

SAFEbuilt Building Official...................................Paul N. Featherston 
Building Official/Code Inspector ............................Mitchell Grusnick 

Building Inspection 

144







 



 



 



  



Reviews plans for complained with the 

city, state and federal codes, 

ordinances and laws and prepares for 

issuance of permits.

Provides information regarding codes, 

ordinances, processes and 

requirements to designers, builders 

and the general public.

Provides technical support and attends 

meetings of the Building Code Board 

of Appeals and the Advisory 

Committee for Persons with 

Disabilities.

Coordinates and compiles information 

from other departments involved in the 

plan review proces.

2,508

9,146

2013/14      

Projected

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

16,252

2014/15      

Budget

Total Value of Construction $69,139,257 $138,225,319 $136,136,600 $137,000,000

Number of Inspections 7,888

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont.)

Plan Review

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

There is a trend of increasing permit and inspection activity

Plans Reviewed 1,183 2,112 2,459

Notes on Performance Indicators

8,667 8,967

15,776

Permits issued 4,812

15,933

Performance                                   

Indicators

Building Inspection 

145





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

*0.35 0 *0.35 0 *0.35 0 *0.35 0

*0.35 0 *0.35 0 *0.35 0 *0.35 0



2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Building Inspection

Total Department

Operating Budget History

*  Certified Building Official hours, service outsourced to Safe Built.

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Increase on other service charge due to contracted services for digital scanning of Building documents 

$180 thousand.

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

 

$
1

,9
2

6
,5

14
  

$
1

,9
3

8
,9

58
  

$
1

,9
9

1
,7

33
  

$
2

,0
5

1
,0

78
  

$
2

,1
2

1
,7

46
  

$
2

,1
3

7
,9

44
  

$
1

,8
8

2
,2

69
  

$
1

,1
4

7
,8

55
  

$
1

,3
3

0
,8

29
  

$
1

,7
7

0
,7

73
  

$0 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Building Inspection 

146



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 371 Building 

Inspections

Business Unit: 371 Building 

Inspections

101.371.00.371

PERSONAL SERVICES          39,081          45,822          28,460          49,830          52,340 5.04%          24,860          24,860 

SUPPLIES                   -               225            1,000            3,500            1,000 -71.43%            1,000            1,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES      1,291,749      1,724,725      1,914,810      1,564,930      1,790,070 14.39%      1,743,130      1,683,910 

Business Unit Total: Building 

Inspections    1,330,829    1,770,773    1,944,270    1,618,260    1,843,410 13.91%    1,768,990    1,709,770 

Department Total: Building 

Inspections    1,330,829    1,770,773    1,944,270    1,618,260    1,843,410 13.91%    1,768,990    1,709,770 

Building Inspections

General Fund 
Public Safety 

147



 



 Prepares material and service specifications

 and invitations to bid

 Analyze bid documents and prepares

 recommendations for City Council

 Supervises contractors to ensure that bid

specifications are being followed

 Evaluates contractors for use on future bids

 Maintains and updates the computerized

 inventory system

  



 

 Provides maintenance, repair and

 replacement to a network of 264.42 miles of

 Local Roads, 77.33 miles of Major/Industrial

Roads, and 67.18 miles of County roads

  Provides maintenance and oversight to over

 1,000 street lights

  Maintains traffic control signs through Major,

 Local, and select County roads

 Procures materials, equipment and supplies Maintains a program that monitors and

 Serves as liaison with other City replaces hazardous sidewalks in he 514

 miles of city sidewalks

  Investigates residential storm water issues

  Works to maintain a highly efficient storm

 water drainage system as regulate by the

 Oakland County Storm Water Permit and

 MDEQ

  Assists other departments or agencies in

securing a safe environment during

 emergencies

 

 

budget

Coordinates and evaluates staff activities

Coordinates staff development and training

departments and government units

Recommends and formulates policies and

programs

Administrative and Support Services

Streets and Drains

Maintains inventory

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Public Works Department is 

to continuously provide excellent services using 

the most up-to-date equipment, and to protect 

the safe, clean, and healthy environment that the 

taxpayers of Troy have come to enjoy.

The mission of the Streets and Drains Division is 

to ensure a safe environment for Troy residents 

and guests through maintenance of the local, 

major, and county road network, sidewalks, and 

the storm water drainage system of the City of 

Troy.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Administrative and Support Services

 

Prepares and administers the department

Public Works 
 

        Public Works Director ..........................................Timothy Ricknak 
        Superintendent of Parks, Streets & Drains............Kurt Bovensiep 

Public Works 

148



Streets and Drains

 Street light maintenance continues to rise based on an increased number of lights

LED lighting is being installed to reduce energy costs

 Street sweeping has decreased because of staff and equipment reductions

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

Concrete Pavement Repair $4M $3.4M $*  

2014/15     

Budget

Salt Usages in Tons 3,769 7,957 12,000 7,500

Sidewalks-New Installation $24,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Crack and Joint Sealing

Street Light Maintenance

Chloride Sand Usage in Tons 115 100 150 200

Asphalt Placed (Hot) 750 2,400 1,000 1,000

Asphalt Placed (Cold) 100 50 200 100

Concrete Redi-Mix Placed 850 250 800 800

Notes on Performance Indicators

Street Sweeping Local Roads (4 times 

per year) 50% 25% 25%

Requests for Service 1,114 1,370 1,200 1,200

25%

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

34

Traffic Sign Repairs or Replacements

Snow and Ice Control and Salting 

Occurrences 27 34

Snow Removal and Plowing 

Occurrences 0 2

708 700 700

$150,000

$500,000

$150,000 $150,000 $150,000

$520,000 $520,000

52

9 5

$520,000

494

Public Works 

149





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

20.62 0.8 20.29 5.8 20.29 4.3 22.29 4.8

20.62 0.8 20.29 5.8 20.29 4.3 22.29 4.8



2014/15

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

 

Streets and Drains

Total Department

Operating Budget History

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

$
4

,6
7

8
,2

4
8

  

$
5

,0
7

4
,8

6
9

  

$
4

,7
5

4
,5

7
0

  

$
4

,7
5

4
,1

5
8

  

$
5

,6
0

0
,7

4
6

  

$
5

,6
8

7
,3

8
3

  

$
4

,8
4

4
,7

0
5

  

$
4

,7
9

9
,0

3
5

  

$
4

,1
5

9
,7

50
  

$
4

,2
5

7
,8

6
0

  

$0 

$1,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$6,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Public Works 

150



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 447 Streets 

Department

Division: 20 - Local Streets

Business Unit: 481 Local Surface 

Maint-Gravel

101.447.20.481

PERSONAL SERVICES          28,080          43,324          22,390          22,680          19,900 -12.26%          20,500          20,700 

SUPPLIES            3,161            7,891            6,500            8,010            9,000 12.36%            9,000            8,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          14,470          18,286          14,000          14,000          19,100 36.43%          19,500          19,900 

Business Unit Total: Local Surface 

Maint-Gravel         45,711         69,501         42,890         44,690         48,000 7.41%         49,000         48,600 

Business Unit: 482 Local Surface 

Maintenance

101.447.20.482

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        178,892        245,437        182,540        112,970        179,580 58.96%        182,100        183,100 

SUP - SUPPLIES          52,581          62,368          77,000          77,500          77,500 0.00%          77,500          77,500 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          64,458          67,829          90,000          99,610          97,920 -1.70%          99,600        101,300 

Business Unit Total: Local Surface 

Maintenance       295,931       375,635       349,540       290,080       355,000 22.38%       359,200       361,900 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

151



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 483 Local Surface 

Maint-Concrete

101.447.20.483

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                35                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

Business Unit Total: Local Surface 

Maint-Concrete                35                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

Business Unit: 485 Local Guard Rails 

& Posts

101.447.20.485

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            6,992            7,631            6,470            3,230            3,530 9.29%            3,730            3,730 

SUP - SUPPLIES            3,165            3,410            4,000            5,000            5,000 0.00%            5,000            5,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            1,761            1,309            1,500              810            1,570 93.83%            1,570            1,570 

Business Unit Total: Local Guard 

Rails & Posts         11,917         12,350         11,970           9,040         10,100 11.73%         10,300         10,300 

Business Unit: 486 Local Sweeping

101.447.20.486

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          24,832          27,881          51,440          66,970          74,140 10.71%          75,100          76,000 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          51,796          51,165          62,000          79,940            6,160 -92.29%          62,000          63,200 

Business Unit Total: Local Sweeping         76,628         79,046       113,440       146,910         80,300 -45.34%       137,100       139,200 

152



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 489 Local Drain 

Structures

101.447.20.489

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        108,981        113,075        112,710          86,570        135,670 56.72%        137,700        139,200 

SUP - SUPPLIES          23,918          13,774          22,000          27,000          27,000 0.00%          27,000          27,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          65,544          68,139          74,290          74,290          72,930 -1.83%          74,300          75,700 

Business Unit Total: Local Drain 

Structures       198,443       194,988       209,000       187,860       235,600 25.41%       239,000       241,900 

Business Unit: 490 Local Roadside 

Cleanup

101.447.20.490

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES 3,289                     5,091 6,040                     6,300 6,430          2.06% 6,530                     6,650 

SUP - SUPPLIES 17                                 - 260                          260 250             -3.85% 300                          300 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES 915                          588 1,100                     1,100 1,120          1.82% 1,170                     1,150 

Business Unit Total: Local Roadside 

Cleanup           4,222           5,680           7,400           7,660           7,800 1.83%           8,000           8,100 

Business Unit: 491 Local Grass & 

Weed Control

101.447.20.491

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              490              711            1,620            2,310            2,090 -9.52%            2,320            2,320 

SUP - SUPPLIES              210              135              270              270              310 14.81%              280              280 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES              352              180              500              800              800 0.00%              800              800 

Business Unit Total: Local Grass & 

Weed Control           1,052           1,026           2,390           3,380           3,200 -5.33%           3,400           3,400 

153



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 492 Local Dust 

Control

101.447.20.492

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

Business Unit Total: Dust Control                  -                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

Business Unit: 495 Local Signs

101.447.20.495

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          51,503          62,389          67,890          91,250          92,060 0.89%          94,400          95,500 

SUP - SUPPLIES          12,752          22,702          25,000          25,000          25,000 0.00%          25,000          25,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          19,846          23,423          29,350          29,350          28,840 -1.74%          29,400          29,900 

Business Unit Total: Local Signs         84,101       108,514       122,240       145,600       145,900 0.21%       148,800       150,400 

Business Unit: 497 Local Markings

101.447.20.497

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              209          11,327          10,550            9,770          10,370 6.14%          10,440          10,470 

SUP - SUPPLIES            4,250            8,017          15,000            9,000          15,030 67.00%          15,060          15,030 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                   -            2,730            5,060            5,060            4,900 -3.16%            5,000            5,100 

Business Unit Total: Local Markings           4,459         22,074         30,610         23,830         30,300 27.15%         30,500         30,600 

154



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 498 Local Snow & Ice 

Control

101.447.20.498

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          24,741        101,871        315,150        315,170        411,670 30.62%        417,700        422,500 

SUP - SUPPLIES          47,770          94,559        140,000        115,000        140,000 21.74%        140,000        140,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          14,536        102,286        410,280        230,280        358,130 55.52%        360,300        362,500 

Business Unit Total: Local Snow & 

Ice Control         87,047       298,716       865,430       660,450       909,800 37.75%       918,000       925,000 

Business Unit: 499 Local Street 

Administration

101.447.20.499

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          42,349          32,260          34,780          35,020          36,510 4.25%          37,160          37,760 

SUP - SUPPLIES            8,679            9,347          10,300          11,000          11,300 2.73%          11,300          11,300 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          59,664          64,741          96,720        146,520        158,190 7.96%        158,740        159,440 

Business Unit Total: Local Street 

Administration       110,692       106,347       141,800       192,540       206,000 6.99%       207,200       208,500 

Division Total: Local Streets       920,237   1,273,876   1,896,710   1,712,040   2,032,000 18.69%   2,110,500   2,127,900 

155



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Division: 21 - County Roads

Business Unit: 500 County Surface 

Maintenance

101.447.21.500

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                56            1,931          24,422                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                95                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                  5            1,064            1,500          10,000          10,000 0.00%          10,000          10,000 

Business Unit Total: County Surface 

Maintenance              155           2,995         25,922         10,000         10,000 0.00%         10,000         10,000 

Business Unit: 501 County Drain 

Structures

101.447.21.501

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

Business Unit Total: County Drain 

Structures                  -                  -                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

156



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 502 County Snow & 

Ice Control

101.447.21.502

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          49,355          63,809        351,760        352,600        367,380 4.19%        372,600        377,100 

SUP - SUPPLIES          81,388        123,745        175,000        202,500        216,000 6.67%        216,000        216,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          42,838          62,301          75,000        146,130        119,120 -18.48%        121,100        123,000 

Business Unit Total: County Snow & 

Ice Control       173,581       249,855       601,760       701,230       702,500 0.18%       709,700       716,100 

Business Unit: 503 County Road 

Administration

101.447.21.503

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            3,453            3,362            3,640            3,640            3,740 2.75%            3,850            3,870 

SUP - SUPPLIES                61                59              100                   -              100 100.00%              100              100 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            5,467            5,657            6,000                60            6,060 10000.00%            6,050            6,030 

Business Unit Total: County Road 

Administration           8,981           9,078           9,740           3,700           9,900 167.57%         10,000         10,000 

Business Unit: 504 County Signs

101.447.21.504

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                   -                   -          58,450          58,590          60,780 3.74%          61,380          61,880 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -          15,000          15,000          25,000 66.67%          10,000            5,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                   -                   -                   -            5,050            4,920 -2.57%            5,020            5,120 

Business Unit Total: County Signs                  -                  -         73,450         78,640         90,700 15.34%         76,400         72,000 

157



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 507 County Sweeping

101.447.21.507

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              494              481            1,990                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                96              367                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

Business Unit Total: County 

Sweeping              590              849           1,990                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

Division Total: County Roads       183,307       262,776       712,862       793,570       813,100 2.46%       806,100       808,100 

Division 22 - Major Streets

Business Unit: 464 Major Surface 

Maintenance

101.447.22.464

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        151,383        169,566        193,620        254,810        257,810 1.18%        261,400        264,800 

SUP - SUPPLIES          39,110          42,511          43,000          73,000          63,500 -13.01%          63,500          63,500 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          54,746          52,926          62,000        124,310          93,590 -24.71%          95,000          96,400 

Business Unit Total: Major Surface 

Maintenance       245,238       265,004       298,620       452,120       414,900 -8.23%       419,900       424,700 

158



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 465 Major Guard Rail 

& Posts

101.447.22.465

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              997              862            1,820            1,900            1,850 -2.63%            1,900            1,910 

SUP - SUPPLIES            3,517            8,290          10,000          10,000          10,000 0.00%          10,000          10,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES              206                71              500              280              350 25.00%              300              290 

Business Unit Total: Major Guard 

Rails & Posts           4,720           9,222         12,320         12,180         12,200 0.16%         12,200         12,200 

Business Unit: 466 Major Sweeping

101.447.22.466

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          19,162          22,659          34,760          34,950          37,290 6.70%          37,680          38,060 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          40,932          47,668          50,000          36,740          49,010 33.40%          50,020          51,040 

Business Unit Total: Major Sweeping         60,094         70,327         84,760         71,690         86,300 20.38%         87,700         89,100 

Business Unit: 469 Major Drain 

Structures

101.447.22.469

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          96,093          43,445          56,060          56,550          76,970 36.11%          78,000          78,800 

SUP - SUPPLIES            4,423            1,084            6,000            6,000            6,000 0.00%            6,000            6,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          95,090          41,838          45,000          55,540          55,030 -0.92%          55,000          55,800 

Business Unit Total: Major Drain 

Structures       195,605         86,366       107,060       118,090       138,000 16.86%       139,000       140,600 

159



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 470 Major Roadside 

Cleanup

101.447.22.470

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES 18,237                 40,929 14,850                 15,100 17,350        14.90% 17,550                 17,700 

SUP - SUPPLIES 321                               - 250                          250 1,050          320.00% 1,050                     1,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES 5,487                   10,515 5,000                     2,100 9,800          366.67% 10,000                 10,200 

Business Unit Total: Major Roadside 

Cleanup         24,045         51,444         20,100         17,450         28,200 61.60%         28,600         28,900 

Business Unit: 471 Major Grass & 

Weed Control

101.447.22.471

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            3,301            1,554            1,860                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            2,284              187                   -            2,500          12,500 400.00%            2,500            2,500 

Business Unit Total: Major Grass & 

Weed Control           5,585           1,741           1,860           2,500         12,500 400.00%           2,500           2,500 

Business Unit: 475 Major Signs

101.447.22.475

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          94,291          99,226          63,010          40,110          30,600 -23.71%          31,000          31,420 

SUP - SUPPLIES          11,409          16,771          20,000          20,000          29,000 45.00%          20,000          20,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          29,533          23,244          25,000          21,010          24,500 16.61%          25,000          25,480 

Business Unit Total: Major Signs       135,233       139,241       108,010         81,120         84,100 3.67%         76,000         76,900 

160



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 477 Major Markings

101.447.22.477

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            5,056          27,447          20,950          21,200          22,570 6.46%          22,840          23,910 

SUP - SUPPLIES            2,441            7,092            6,950            6,950            7,930 14.10%            7,960            7,990 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          53,634          72,959          85,000          83,400          86,900 4.20%          87,000          87,100 

Business Unit Total: Major Markings         61,130       107,498       112,900       111,550       117,400 5.24%       117,800       119,000 

Business Unit: 478 Major Snow & 

Ice Control

101.447.22.478

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          95,655        133,404        360,520        360,170        381,460 5.91%        386,600        391,000 

SUP - SUPPLIES          62,928          86,721        160,000        160,000        169,940 6.21%        170,000        170,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          35,722          63,011          99,750          99,750          98,000 -1.75%        100,000        102,000 

Business Unit Total: Major Snow & 

Ice Control       194,305       283,136       620,270       619,920       649,400 4.76%       656,600       663,000 

161



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 479 Major Street 

Administration

101.447.22.479

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        619,599        324,137        193,330        164,740        171,850 4.32%        174,000        175,300 

SUP - SUPPLIES            3,790            4,302            7,000            9,000            9,000 0.00%            9,000            9,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        287,218        228,648        274,530        291,630        311,150 6.69%        316,700        317,500 

Business Unit Total: Major Street 

Administration       910,608       557,087       474,860       465,370       492,000 5.72%       499,700       501,800 

Division Total: Major Streets   1,836,564   1,571,065   1,840,760   1,951,990   2,035,000 4.25%   2,040,000   2,058,700 

Division 23 - Drains

Business Unit: 514 Retention Ponds

101.447.23.514

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          84,198          61,475          51,550          52,140          49,400 -5.26%          50,170          50,850 

SUP - SUPPLIES            9,471            4,018            6,200            6,200            6,254 0.87%            6,230            6,250 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          92,613        101,164          83,000          91,050          87,146 -4.29%        101,800        102,100 

Business Unit Total: Retention 

Ponds       186,283       166,656       140,750       149,390       142,800 -4.41%       158,200       159,200 

162



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 515 Open Drain 

Maintenance

101.447.23.515

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          74,258          97,419          42,170          42,620          45,500 6.76%          46,040          46,480 

SUP - SUPPLIES          11,942            1,357            5,000          10,000          10,000 0.00%            9,960            9,920 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          26,701          44,875          30,000          38,830          62,200 60.19%          63,000          63,800 

Business Unit Total: Open Drain 

Maintenance       112,901       143,651         77,170         91,450       117,700 28.70%       119,000       120,200 

Business Unit: 516 Drain 

Administration

101.447.23.516

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        122,796        123,632          91,240        142,750        146,630 2.72%        148,570        150,610 

SUP - SUPPLIES              223              215              300            1,000            1,000 0.00%            1,000            1,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          36,771          32,655          46,360          47,560          50,670 6.54%          50,630          50,690 

Business Unit Total: Drain 

Administration       159,790       156,502       137,900       191,310       198,300 3.65%       200,200       202,300 

163



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 517 Storm Sewer & 

Ryd

101.447.23.517

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          95,725          55,004          92,600          47,700        107,380 125.12%        109,000        110,400 

SUP - SUPPLIES            7,252              940          15,000            7,500            7,500 0.00%            7,500            7,500 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          34,364          10,983          24,190          46,690          46,520 -0.36%          47,000          47,500 

Business Unit Total: Storm Sewer & 

Ryd       137,341         66,927       131,790       101,890       161,400 58.41%       163,500       165,400 

Division Total: Drains       596,315       533,737       487,610       534,040       620,200 16.13%       640,900       647,100 

Division 24 - Sidewalks

Business Unit: 444 Sidewalk 

Administration

101.447.24.444

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          10,394            8,932          14,080          14,320          10,170 -28.98%          10,280          10,380 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            2,320            2,124            3,220            3,220            3,230 0.31%            3,220            3,220 

Business Unit Total: Sidewalk 

Administration         12,714         11,056         17,300         17,540         13,400 -23.60%         13,500         13,600 

164



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 511 Sidewalk Maint.-

Snow Removal

101.447.24.511

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            1,453             (456)          14,800          15,040          12,450 -17.22%          12,620          18,010 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -              200              800              750 -6.25%              780              790 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                61          13,407          30,000          26,000          45,000 73.08%          45,000          45,000 

Business Unit Total: Sidewalk Maint.-

Snow Removal           1,514         12,951         45,000         41,840         58,200 39.10%         58,400         63,800 

Business Unit: 512 Sidewalk Maint.-

General

101.447.24.512

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          55,375          67,280          80,460          81,320          77,120 -5.16%          78,180          79,320 

SUP - SUPPLIES            1,473            3,900          10,000          10,000          10,000 0.00%          10,000          10,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          17,118            7,373          15,000          38,140          34,580 -9.33%          34,920          35,380 

Business Unit Total: Sidewalk Maint.-

General         73,967         78,553       105,460       129,460       121,700 -5.99%       123,100       124,700 

Division Total: Sidewalks         88,194       102,560       167,760       188,840       193,300 2.36%       195,000       202,100 

165



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Streets Department

General Fund 
Public Works 

Division 25 - Street Lighting

Business Unit: 448 Street Lighting

101.447.25.448

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          22,936          19,994          31,070          39,640          45,070 13.70%          45,560          46,070 

SUP - SUPPLIES          12,339          13,620          20,000          20,000          20,000 0.00%          20,000          20,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        464,223        444,916        473,130        445,130        473,130 6.29%        473,140        473,130 

Business Unit Total: Street Lighting       499,497       478,529       524,200       504,770       538,200 6.62%       538,700       539,200 

Division Total: Street Lighting       499,497       478,529       524,200       504,770       538,200 6.62%       538,700       539,200 

Division 26 - Weeds/Snow & Ice

Business Unit: 519 Weeds/Snow & 

Ice

101.447.26.519

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            9,215            9,333          10,540          10,540            9,780 -7.21%            9,900          10,000 

SUP - SUPPLIES                   -                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          26,422          25,983          37,560          82,560          32,020 -61.22%          37,600          37,700 

Business Unit Total: Weeds/Snow & 

Ice         35,636         35,317         48,100         93,100         41,800 -55.10%         47,500         47,700 

Division Total: Weeds/Snow & Ice         35,636         35,317         48,100         93,100         41,800 -55.10%         47,500         47,700 

Department Total: Streets 

Department   4,159,750   4,257,860   5,678,002   5,778,350   6,273,600 8.57%   6,378,700   6,430,800 

166



 Manages city staff and consultants assigned

to perform technical studies, project design,

construction project administration and

inspection

 Recommends and implements policies for all

city real estate and right-of-way activities

 Administration  Engineering

 Prepares and administers capital  Designs and prepares plans for public 

 improvement program (CIP) budget for improvement (CIP) projects such as roads, 

roads, sewers, water mains, drains and storm drains, sanitary sewers, steam bank

sidewalks stabilization and water mains

 Develops master plans for capital  Reviews site grading, drainage and soil 

improvements  erosion control plans for compliance with City

 Serves as liaison with federal, state and  of Troy, county and state requirements

county agencies and other cities to  Maintains development standards,  

implement road, water, sewer and drain construction specifications and standard

projects, programs, and permits construction details

 Serves as liaison with utility companies  Provides utility and flood plain information 

for utility and telecommunications work  Maintains the pavement management system

 within city right-of-way  Issues permits and performs inspections for

 Prepares and maintains design standards water, sewer, road and utility construction,

for public and private improvements soil erosion control and culvert installations

 Prepares requests for proposals for  Prepares special assessment district projects

consulting engineering services for paving, sanitary sewers and sidewalks

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Engineering Department is 

to design and construct high quality, cost 

effective public improvements using sound 

engineering principles and cutting edge design 

and construction technologies.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Engineering 
 
 

City Engineer..................................................Steven J. Vandette, P.E. 
Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer...........William J. Huotari P.E. 

Engineering 

167



 Skilled and trained in federal and state laws

  and regulations as they pertain to real estate

 acquisition and capital improvement projects

 Conducts surveys for design and construction

 of public improvements Traffic Engineering

 Maintains the city's global positioning and

benchmark systems  Conducts traffic volume counts

 Participates in maintenance of the city's  Reviews plans for new developments for

 geographic information system compliance with traffic standards

 Investigates drainage problems  Responds to requests for new traffic signals

 Inspects public improvements for compliance and signs

 with development standards, construction  Serves as liaison with Oakland County on

 specifications and soil erosion control traffic signal concerns

 Inspects city road, water main and sewer  Investigates traffic vision obstructions

 projects  Provides staff support for Traffic Committee

  activities

Right-of-Way  Coordinates review of traffic studies

 Processes sidewalk waiver requests

 Appraises and negotiates for acquisition or

sale of city real estate and right-of-way Storm Water Drainage

 Sells, leases, and licenses land and public

property  Evaluates storm water drainage systems

 Facilitates the donation or acquisition of land  Develops and implements projects to

and property for public use improve watersheds and storm water

 Coordinates vacation or sale of city land no drainage systems

longer needed  Conduct illicit discharge detection and

 Assists in relocating businesses and elimination program

residences acquired as part of city road  Monitors construction site runoff

projects  Serves as liaison with other storm water

 Provides real estate support services to the agencies to effectively manage watersheds

public, other city departments, utility in accordance with regulations and 

companies and public agencies mandates

 Assists in the litigation process regarding  Administers state storm water permit

public property requirements

 Maintains records for city-owned property,  Participates with the Association of Rouge

easement and other real estate documents Communities and Clinton River Area of

at the County Concern on storm water permit activities,

 Researches and assures clear title to city- grant applications and grant projects

owned property and rights  Serves as enforcing agency for Soil Erosion

 Performs real estate asset management and Sediment Control (SESC) program

activities

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont.)

Surveying and Inspection

Engineering 

168



  



90%

% CIP Projects Budgeted and 

Awarded 83% 100% 90% 90%

95%

% Soil Erosion Control Permits    

Issued within 5 days 89% 84% 90% 90%

Notes on Performance Indicators

% Right -of-way Permits issued   

within 10 days 94% 92% 95%

90%

"Value of Construction Contract Awarded and Supervised" is up for 2014/15 in large part due to 

the Troy-RCOC Concrete Replacement Program to rehabilitate County Roads.

630 650

250

% Engineering Plans Reviewed   

within 8 Weeks 84% 86% 90% 90%

Soil Erosion Control Inspections 576 617

Soil Erosion Control Permits 131 213 230

$11.4M $12.5M

Right-of-way Permits Issued 242 415 400 420

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

Site Plans Approved 57 60 60 65

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

% Contract Completed within 

Contingency 83% 100%

Value of Construction Contract 

Awarded and Supervised $6.8M $10.5M

Engineering 

169





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

12.25 0.9 11.25 0 11.25 0 11.25 0

Traffic Engineering 0 0.7 0 0.3 0 0.3 0 0.3

12.25 1.6 11.25 0.3 11.25 0.3 11.25 0.3



2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

 

Engineering

Total Department

Operating Budget History

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

The 2014/15 budget includes an increase of $325,000 for consultant services inspection to account 

for a significant increase in private development related activities.

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

$
2

,7
6

6
,7

55
  

$
2

,7
8

0
,6

47
  

$
2

,8
3

5
,7

70
  

$
2

,6
7

6
,7

17
  

$
2

,6
7

6
,8

46
  

$
2

,5
2

5
,1

15
  

$
2

,0
4

3
,4

65
  

$
1

,7
5

6
,4

88
  

$
1

,6
8

0
,7

28
  

$
1

,7
7

9
,9

29
  

$0 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$3,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Engineering 

170



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 442 Engineering

Business Unit: 442 Engineering

101.442.00.442

PERSONAL SERVICES      1,275,198      1,296,240      1,453,000      1,517,640      1,604,770 5.74%      1,636,180      1,636,180 

SUPPLIES          14,493          14,808          17,500          17,500          17,500 0.00%          17,500          17,500 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         357,476         444,628         646,510         345,030         671,640 94.66%         658,020         661,020 

Business Unit Total: 

Engineering    1,647,167    1,755,676    2,117,010    1,880,170    2,293,910 22.01%    2,311,700    2,314,700 

Business Unit: 443 Traffic 

Engineering

101.442.00.443

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES            7,891          10,647          10,420            8,800            8,550 -2.84%            8,550            8,550 

SUP - SUPPLIES                 80                   -                   -                   -                   - 0.00%                   -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          25,590          13,605          19,100          19,100            4,600 -75.92%            4,700            4,800 

Business Unit Total: Traffic 

Engineering         33,561         24,253         29,520         27,900         13,150 -52.87%         13,250         13,350 

Department Total: Engineering 

Department    1,680,728    1,779,929    2,146,530    1,908,070    2,307,060 20.91%    2,324,950    2,328,050 

Engineering Department

General Fund 
Community Development 

171



 Serves as City's representative and expert

 witness in litigation related to zoning and

  condemnation

  Serves as City's alternate delegate to

 

  (SEMCOG)

  Serves as member of SEMCOG Data Center

  Advisory Council

  Serves as liaison to the Downtown

Development Authority (DDA)

 Serves as liaison with developers to residential,

commercial and industrial developments

  Serves as liaison to the Census Bureau

  

  Application and Review Process



  Provides information regarding application

 procedures and requirements

  Reviews site plan applications for compliance

with City ordinances and regulations

 Reviews special use requests for compliance

with City ordinances and regulations

 Reviews subdivision plat and site condominium

 applications for compliance with City

ordinances and regulations

  Reviews zoning map amendment (rezoning)

 applications and provides recommendations

  Reviews rezoning applications for compliance

 with the master plan and provides

budget recommendations

  Reviews zoning ordinance text amendment

 applications and provides recommendations

MISSION STATEMENT

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Administration

maintains a clean, healthy, and safe city

through education, cooperation, and 

and information to elected officials, appointed

boards and commissions, City Departments and

citizens to assist in understanding and

addressing key community issues and priorities.

The Planning Department promotes and

support to the Planning Commission and Board

of Zoning Appeals

Prepares and administers the department

The Planning Department guides private and

public development and redevelopment efforts.

Planning assists in creating a more socially,

economically and environmentally sustainable

community, as envisioned in the City of Troy

Master Plan

The Planning Department provides expertise

Prepares agendas and provides technical

enforcement of our property maintenance,

zoning, nuisance and rental inspection codes.

The Planning Department assists the City

Manager in creating an environment for

investment in the City of Troy.

Planning 
 

               Planning Director.................................................R. Brent Savidant 

Planning 

172



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS Planning, Zoning and Land Use

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

focusing on technological improvements and 

 

 

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

Determines compliance with Zoning Ordinance Inspects residential properties to ensure

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15      

Budget

Site Plan Reviews 5 15 16 18

 compliance with property maintenance codes

Special Use Requests 8 10 12 6

Site Condominium Reviews 2 4 4 6

Rezoning requests 1 3 4 2

Conditional Rezoning Requests 0 2 2 4Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendments 1 2 2 2

Planned Unit Developments 0 2 1 1Sign Permit Applications 

reviewed 291 328 300 325

Code Enforcements 4,291 4,832 4,800 4,800

Reviews street vacation request for

compliance with City ordinances and

regulations

Provides interpretations of the zoning ordinance

Develops and coordinates urban design

manuals

Provides information regarding the City's zoning

ordinance and subdivision regulations

Provides information regarding planning, land

Upgrades the development approval process,

digital submittals use, blight and nuisance

Inspects properties to ensure compliance with

the zoning ordinance and other City ordinances

Considers complaints related to zoning, land

Provides design assistance to developers and use and zoning issues

Prepares and maintains zoning districts mapCity staff

Conducts site plan compliance inspections prior

to issuance of certificates of occupancy

Reviews planned unit development applications

for compliance with City ordinances, regulations

and high quality urban design standards

Maintains the City's Master Plan

Animal Licenses 3 2 5 4

Citizen Volunteer Enforcements 

(temporary sign removal) 335 700

None

Temporary Structure, Use, & 

Outdoor Special Events Permits 19 46 46 45

Notes on Performance Indicators

700 700

Zoning Board of Appeals cases 12 22 22 20

Planning 

173





Personal Services

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

4.65 1 3.65 2 3.65 1.8 3.65 1.6

4.65 1 3.65 2 3.65 1.8 3.65 1.6



2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014/15

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Personal service increase due to reduction in furlough

 

 

Planning Department

Total Department

Operating Budget History

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

$
5

0
5

,4
85

  

$
5

1
9

,4
35

  

$
5

6
4

,8
12

  

$
6

6
7

,1
54

  

$
7

3
2

,5
73

  

$
6

4
2

,0
46

  

$
6

0
6

,6
35

  

$
8

5
4

,1
12

  

$
6

8
7

,3
00

  

$
7

1
3

,1
44

  

$0 

$100,000 

$200,000 

$300,000 

$400,000 

$500,000 

$600,000 

$700,000 

$800,000 

$900,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Planning 

174



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 721 Planning

Business Unit: 721 Planning

101.721.00.721

PERSONAL SERVICES    514,255     519,438     556,200     593,720     625,420 5.34%       633,460       640,320 

SUPPLIES        4,461        5,668         5,000        5,000        5,000 0.00%          5,000          5,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES    154,485     172,399     194,600     194,110     198,100 2.06%       199,300       200,500 

Business Unit Total: Planning   673,200   697,506    755,800   792,830   828,520 4.50%     837,760     845,820 

Business Unit: 723 Planning Commission

101.721.00.723

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        6,777        8,544       10,680        5,820      12,160 108.93%        12,470        12,130 

SUP - SUPPLIES               -               -            500           500           500 0.00%             500             500 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        3,917        4,700         7,580        7,580        7,590 0.13%          7,590          7,590 

Business Unit Total: Planning Commission     10,694     13,244      18,760     13,900     20,250 45.68%       20,560       20,220 

Business Unit: 726 Board of Zoning Appeals

101.721.00.726

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        2,277        2,310         2,155        2,260        2,260 0.00%          2,320          2,320 

SUP - SUPPLIES           244             78            200           900           900 0.00%             900             900 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES           885               7         1,640        2,040        2,040 0.00%          2,040          2,040 

Business Unit Total: Board of Zoning Appeals       3,406       2,395        3,995       5,200       5,200 0.00%         5,260         5,260 

Department Total: Planning Department   687,300   713,144    778,555   811,930   853,970 5.18%     863,580     871,300 

Planning Department

General Fund 
Community Development 

175



 Parks

 Maintains over 1000 acres of active and passive

















horticultural/arboricultural concerns

 Plans and develops park projects

 Maintains four municipal cemeteries

 

Notes on Performance Indicators

 The City received a Michigan Department of Forestry grant to augment the cost of tree planting 

 in 2013/14.

 The Recreation Department charges a field usage that augments the hours spent on athletic field

 maintenance.

MISSION STATEMENT

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicators

2011/12      

Actual

It is the mission of the Parks Division of the 

Department of Public Works is to enhance 

the quality of life for residents and 

businesses by providing recreation 

programs, facilities, parks and related 

services.  The Division promotes a healthy 

lifestyle for all age groups regardless of 

physical abilities, and enriches cultural and 

natural resources through community 

interpretive programs.

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

2014/15           

Budget

Residential Tree Trimmed 

during Winter Block Pruning 1,630 3,284 3,000 3,000

ROW Tree Planted 0 250 200 250

Soccer Field Maintenance 

Hours 900 900 900 900

Ball Diamond Maintenance 

Hours 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900

Residential Tree Related 

Request 774 800 800 800

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

park land, and municipal grounds

Plants and maintains right-of-way trees

Reviews landscape and tree preservation plans

for commercial and residential development

Administers contracted landscape maintenance

Serves as a community resource for

of all municipal buildings

Performs special event set-up and sports field

preparation

Parks 
 

 
      Superintendent of Parks, Streets & Drains.......Kurt Bovensiep 

Parks 

176



Summary of Budget Changes

No change

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

4.0 0.0 6.2 10.5 6.2 10.5 6.2 8.8

4.0 0.0 6.2 10.5 6.2 10.5 6.2 8.8



2014/15

 

Parks Department

Total Department

Operating Budget History - Parks

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

$
3

,0
9

3
,6

4
7

  

$
3

,8
4

9
,6

8
2

  

$
3

,0
1

7
,4

2
4

  

$
2

,3
5

1
,8

1
8

  

$
1

,9
4

3
,9

1
1

  

$
1

,8
7

9
,9

0
8

  

$
2

,2
1

9
,1

5
4

  

$0.00 

$500,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,500,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

$2,500,000.00 

$3,000,000.00 

$3,500,000.00 

$4,000,000.00 

$4,500,000.00 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Parks  

177



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 751 Parks

Division: 30 - Parks Maintenance

Business Unit: 751 Parks Administration

101.751.30.751

PERSONAL SERVICES                  -        168,008         93,200         46,630          50,660 8.64%         51,360          52,070 

SUPPLIES                  -              324              700           2,700            2,750 1.85%           2,750            2,750 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                  -         14,088         15,300         13,100          16,800 28.24%         17,000          17,100 

Business Unit Total: Parks 

Administration                  -      182,420      109,200        62,430         70,210 12.46%        71,110         71,920 

Business Unit: 756 Civic Center 

Maintenance

101.751.30.756

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         32,164        112,863         53,000        120,450        116,050 -3.65%        117,790        119,570 

SUP - SUPPLIES         12,527         14,904         13,000         13,000          33,000 153.85%         23,000          18,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        161,736        188,052        141,060        141,260        165,730 17.32%        166,230        166,730 

Business Unit Total: Civic Center 

Maintenance      206,427      315,819      207,060      274,710       314,780 14.59%      307,020       304,300 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

178



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 757 Cemetary 

Maintenance

101.751.30.757

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES           7,985           4,905           9,300           9,700            9,880 1.86%           9,980          10,070 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                31                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES           7,827           5,544           7,300         12,300            8,610 -30.00%         12,310          12,310 

Business Unit Total: Cemetary 

Maintenance        15,812        10,481        16,600        22,000         18,490 -15.95%        22,290         22,380 

Business Unit: 758 Parks Garage

101.751.30.758

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         43,611           8,957         10,490         10,860          12,370 13.90%         12,550          12,700 

SUP - SUPPLIES           6,107              339           5,500           6,000            6,000 0.00%           6,000            6,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         52,964         59,703         64,910         64,810          64,360 -0.69%         65,660          66,560 

Business Unit Total: Parks Garage      102,682        68,999        80,900        81,670         82,730 1.30%        84,210         85,260 

Business Unit: 759 Athletic Field 

Maintenance

101.751.30.759

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         72,483         70,737         79,710        112,970        112,100 -0.77%        113,390        114,690 

SUP - SUPPLIES         22,598         15,892         23,000         23,000          23,000 0.00%         23,000          23,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        131,047        137,218        143,930        137,330        169,730 23.59%        192,930        193,130 

Business Unit Total: Athletic Field 

Maintenance      226,128      223,846      246,640      273,300       304,830 11.54%      329,320       330,820 

179



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 770 Parks Maintenance

101.751.30.770

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        220,499        269,563        364,860        491,210        456,360 -7.09%        462,030        467,870 

SUP - SUPPLIES         71,560         64,213         95,000         98,200          98,200 0.00%         98,200          98,200 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        660,298        328,073        390,856        373,550        441,020 18.06%        486,220        488,220 

Business Unit Total: Parks Maintenance      952,357      661,849      850,716      962,960       995,580 3.39%   1,046,450   1,054,290 

Business Unit: 772 Park Equipment 

Repair

101.751.30.772

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES 63,532                72,860 58,130                58,420 59,060        1.10% 59,950                 61,060 

SUP - SUPPLIES -                                  - -                                  - -                 0.00% -                                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES 1,671                    1,566 3,000                    1,070 2,900          171.03% 3,000                     3,100 

Business Unit Total: Park Equipment 

Repair        65,203        74,426        61,130        59,490         61,960 4.15%        62,950         64,160 

Business Unit: 773 Parks - Special 

Events

101.751.30.773

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES           7,725           9,253           9,450                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES           1,125           1,670           2,000              500            2,000 300.00%           2,000            2,000 

Business Unit Total: Special Events          8,849        10,923        11,450             500           2,000 300.00%          2,000           2,000 

180



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 774 Major Tree 

Maintenance

101.751.30.774

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES           4,340           2,003         18,950                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -              329                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES           2,789              981           4,100              600              500 -16.67%              500              500 

Business Unit Total: Major Tree 

Maintenance          7,128          3,313        23,050             600              500 -16.67%             500              500 

Business Unit: 775 Major Tree Planting

101.751.30.775

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -           1,500           2,000            2,000 0.00%           2,000            2,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

Business Unit Total: Major Tree Planting                  -                  -          1,500          2,000           2,000 0.00%          2,000           2,000 

Business Unit: 776 Major Tree Storm 

Damage

101.751.30.776

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              362              584                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                79              134                  -              200              200 0.00%              200              200 

Business Unit Total: Major Tree Storm 

Damage             442             718                  -             200              200 0.00%             200              200 

181



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 777 Local Tree 

Maintenance

101.751.30.777

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         49,460         81,816         73,960         74,380          80,720 8.52%         81,620          82,410 

SUP - SUPPLIES              249           3,911           3,000           1,500            4,000 166.67%           4,000            4,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         15,758        355,514        316,040        316,040        340,130 7.62%        341,030        341,930 

Business Unit Total: Local Tree 

Maintenance        65,466      441,241      393,000      391,920       424,850 8.40%      426,650       428,340 

Business Unit: 778 Local Tree Planting

101.751.30.778

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES           1,346         19,920         20,000         20,000          20,000 0.00%         20,000          20,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                  -                  -              300              300              300 0.00%              300              300 

Business Unit Total: Local Tree Planting          1,346        19,920        20,300        20,300         20,300 0.00%        20,300         20,300 

Business Unit: 779 Local Tree Storm 

Damage

101.751.30.779

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES           1,474           4,691         15,000                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                22           4,514         15,000              300              250 -16.67%              250              250 

Business Unit Total: Local Tree Storm 

Damage          1,496          9,205        30,000             300              250 -16.67%             250              250 

182



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 780 Street Island Maint.-

Major

101.751.30.780

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES           1,097              492           2,640           2,640            4,900 85.61%           4,950            5,000 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -           1,000              500            1,000 100.00%           1,000            1,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         83,820         63,257         77,460        111,460        124,140 11.38%        131,440        131,440 

Business Unit Total: Street Island Maint.-

Major        84,917        63,748        81,100      114,600       130,040 13.47%      137,390       137,440 

Business Unit: 781 Street Island Maint.-

Local

101.751.30.781

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              418                79              200                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -              100                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES              107                14              300              300              270 -10.00%              270              270 

Business Unit Total: Street Island Maint.-

Local             525               93             600             300              270 -10.00%             270              270 

Business Unit: 782 Street Island Maint.-

Northfield

101.751.30.782

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES              335                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

SUP - SUPPLIES                  -                  -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         13,517           5,521                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                  -                   - 

Business Unit Total: Street Island Maint.-

Northfield        13,852          5,521                  -                  -                  - 0.00%                  -                  - 

183



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

City Parks

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 783 Street Island Maint.-

DDA

101.751.30.783

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         11,682         20,461         37,570         37,860          32,580 -13.95%         32,970          33,310 

SUP - SUPPLIES           1,037              205           2,000           2,000            4,000 100.00%           4,000            4,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        114,559        105,963         99,030         93,130        123,100 32.18%        123,100        123,100 

Business Unit Total: Street Island Maint.-

DDA      127,278      126,629      138,600      132,990       159,680 20.07%      160,070       160,410 

Division Total: Parks   1,879,908   2,219,154   2,271,846   2,400,270   2,588,670 7.85%   2,672,980   2,684,840 

Department Total: City Parks   1,879,908   2,219,154   2,271,846   2,400,270   2,588,670 7.85%   2,672,980   2,684,840 

184



 Application and Review Process

 Acts as liaison with Parks and Recreation

 Board

 Conducts facility planning and development

 Oversees capital improvement projects

 Applies for grants

 Conducts marketing strategies

 Supervises staff assignments

 Prepares and administers the department

 budget

 Administers scholarship and fee waiver for

  recreation programs and community center

 membership

  Maintains a Facebook page to be used for

  promoting and marketing

  Serves as liaison with Friends of Troy

 Seniors, Medi-Go, Troy Racquet Club and

County Parks and Recreation, Northwest  Troy Nature Society

Therapeutic Recreation, Troy Ability Soccer  Coordinates public use of parks

 Application and Review Process



 Provides full range preschool activities and

  classes including a state licensed school

  Offers a nationally accredited Safety Town

  program

   

Soccer League, Troy Soccer Club and Troy

Baseball Boosters



sport activities

 

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mission of the Recreation Department to 

enhance the quality of life for residents and 

businesses by providing recreation programs, 

facilities, and related services.  The Department 

promotes a healthy lifestyle for all age groups 

regardless of physical abilities, and enriches 

cultural and natural resources through community 

programs.

Athletics

Coordinates adult leagues

League

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Adaptive Recreation

Conducts social, recreational, athletic and

such as Troy Youth Football, Troy Youth

Coordinates adult and youth instructional

fitness activities for persons with disabilities

Provides programs and special events in

partnership with Special Olympics, Oakland

Coordinates youth leagues

Serves as liaison with citizen organizations

Recreation 
 

        Recreation Director.................................................Elaine S. Bo 

Recreation 

185



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont.) Senior Citizens Programs

Camps 



 

 



 

 





 Conducts Aqua Camps throughout the year















 Provides food service options for meetings

and banquets through a preferred caterer



service















Accredited by the National Council on Aging/

 National Institute of Senior Centers in 2002

Program 9 weeks of traditional day camps Offers social, enrichment, recreational,

during summer months and during school educational, sports and fitness activities

break weeks Offers services such as meals for the

Conducts Troy Sports Camps with the school homebound, food distribution, hospital

district (22 different camps) equipment loan program

Conducts dance and performing arts camp

Community Centers

 

Conducts an adaptive camp for individuals

with disabilities

Sells recreation passes to residents and non-

residents for use of the gym, pools and

fitness areas

Provides free wireless internet access

throughout the facility

Rents meeting and banquet rooms to the 

public for events including receptions,

showers, business meeting and expos

Offers personal training and massage therapy

families

Offers youth and adult enrichment programs

Coordinates skiing, arts and crafts, martial

arts, computers, fitness and dance programs

Offers special events for individuals and

Provides space for local senior artists to sell

their crafts

Enrichment Programs

Recreation 

186



*

 Elimination of recreation, senior programs and special events contributes to fewer

 registrations in 2012 forward

 Addition of all inclusive pass reduces some registrations

  

2014/15      

Actual

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Actual

Number Community Center pass holders (574)* (807)* (850)* (940)*

Number of Room Rentals 1,357 1,300 1,300 1,300

Number of Recreation Program Room 

Reservations 2,831 2,800 2,800 2,800

Number of Recreation Program 

Registrations 19,047 19,050 19,050 19,800

Park Shelter Reservations 451 460 460 465

Fitness Area Visits 244,519 245,000 245,000 266,000

Senior Program Attendance (not including 

Friends of Troy Seniors) 108,179 108,000 108,000 109,000

Swim Lessons - Indoor 3,584 3,590 3,590 2,900

Total Pool Attendance - Indoor 148,963 140,000 145,000 132,000

Aqua Swim Camp Registrations 133 150 150 210

2,600 2,625

Community Center Visits 901,004 920,000 920,000 940,000

5,795 6,254 6,400 6,670

New Passport in fall 2011 which includes classes as well as fitness areas/gym/pool.

Camp Enrollments

Notes on Performance Indicators

2,515 2,709

Recreation 

187



Summary of Budget Changes

Recreation

 Increase in revenues offset expense increase.

 Programs and community opertating goal is cost nuetral

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

8.0 33.0 5.6 38.9 6.0 39.9 6.0 38.4

8.0 33.0 5.6 38.9 6.0 39.9 6.0 38.4

 Operating Budget History - Recreation

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2014/15

 

Recreation Department

Total Department

2013/14

$
5

,1
3

1
,7

0
0

  

$
5

,9
6

3
,9

6
8

  

$
5

,4
5

1
,2

2
5

  

$
4

,6
5

0
,5

96
  

$
3

,9
2

7
,2

93
  

$
3

,5
7

5
,1

34
  

$0 

$1,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$7,000,000 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

 Recreation 

188



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 752 Recreation

Business Unit: 00 Recreation 

Administration

101.752.00.752

PERSONAL SERVICES        519,006        234,838        262,660        335,250        324,800 -3.12%        329,340        334,030 

SUPPLIES         34,933         36,704         41,000         41,000         41,000 0.00%         41,000         41,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        377,399        341,334        362,840        364,340        374,950 2.91%        376,570        378,239 

Business Unit Total: Recreation 

Administration      931,339      612,876      666,500      740,590      740,750 0.02%      746,910      753,269 

Business Unit: 753 Recreation

101.752.31.753

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        434,601        429,695        477,018        478,230        497,660 4.06%        503,550        509,640 

SUP - SUPPLIES         58,917         57,725         57,000         55,500         59,000 6.31%         59,000         59,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        438,387        412,905        462,230        474,230        474,150 -0.02%        474,250        474,350 

Business Unit Total: Recreation      931,905      900,326      996,248   1,007,960   1,030,810 2.27%   1,036,800   1,042,990 

Business Unit: 754 Senior Programs

101.752.31.754

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES         51,902         53,215         73,840         73,840         70,650 -4.32%         71,350         72,070 

SUP - SUPPLIES         12,176         16,158         14,700         14,700         14,700 0.00%         14,700         14,700 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        125,005        105,547        139,960        134,960        140,960 4.45%        141,160        141,260 

Business Unit Total: Senior Programs      189,082      174,920      228,500      223,500      226,310 1.26%      227,210      228,030 

Recreation

 General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

189



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Recreation

 General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

Business Unit: 755 Community Center

101.752.31.755

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES        751,358        719,912        810,678        811,490        779,800 -3.91%        763,970        772,450 

SUP - SUPPLIES        150,737        165,025        218,100        156,100        267,500 71.36%        271,800        276,300 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        972,872     1,002,075        997,600     1,018,300     1,032,860 1.43%     1,048,720     1,060,300 

Business Unit Total: Community 

Center   1,874,968   1,887,012   2,026,378   1,985,890   2,080,160 4.75%   2,084,490   2,109,050 

Department Total: Recreation 

Department   3,927,293   3,575,134   3,917,626   3,957,940   4,078,030 3.03%   4,095,410   4,133,339 

190



Historic Village/Nature 
Center 

 

Troy Historic Village Executive Director.........................Loraine Campbell 
Troy Nature Society Executive Director.....................................Carla Reeb 

Historic Village and Nature Center 

191





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

0 0 0.1 0 0.1 0 0.1 0

0 0 0.1 0 0.1 0 0.1 0





 

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

 

 

Operating Budget History For Historic Village

Operating Budget History For Nature Center

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13

 

Historic Village

Total Department

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES_HISTORIC VILLAGE/NATURE CENTER

2013/14 2014/15

$
3

9
9

,6
1

8
  

$
4

5
2

,0
9

0
  

$
4

4
2

,2
4

4
  

$
4

4
4

,5
2

8
  

$
4

9
7

,3
3

5
  

$
4

7
8

,0
2

7
  

$
5

1
4

,2
1

3
  

$
2

9
5

,6
2

4
  

$
7

4
,9

1
1

  

$
1

4
2

,6
3

1
  

$0.00 

$100,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$300,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$500,000.00 

$600,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$
4

4
4

,4
1

0
  

$
4

3
5

,0
7

8
  

$
4

3
2

,2
0

2
  

$
5

4
1

,0
8

4
  

$
3

9
4

,5
9

4
  

$
1

8
0

,5
4

3
  

$
4

3
,7

0
3

  

$
3

9
,9

8
9

  

$0.00 

$100,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$300,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$500,000.00 

$600,000.00 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Historic Village and Nature Center 

192



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 771 Nature Center

Business Unit: 771 Nature Center

101.771.00.771

PERSONAL SERVICES          3,570          5,785          6,000                 -                 - 0.00%          5,800          5,800 

SUPPLIES          1,684             594          2,800          2,100          2,740 30.48%          2,740          2,740 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        38,449        33,610        77,800        83,300       102,550 23.11%        78,160        78,700 

Business Unit Total: Nature Center       43,703       39,989       86,600       85,400     105,290 23.29%       86,700       87,240 

Department Total: Nature Center       43,703       39,989       86,600       85,400     105,290 23.29%       86,700       87,240 

Nature Center

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

193



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Department: 804 Historic Village

Business Unit: 802 Operations

101.804.00.802

PERSONAL SERVICES                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

SUPPLIES                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                 -        75,000        75,000        75,000        75,000 0.00%        75,000        75,000 

Business Unit Total: Operations                 -       75,000       75,000       75,000       75,000 0.00%       75,000       75,000 

Business Unit: 804 Village Buildings

101.804.00.804

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          9,247             840                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

SUP - SUPPLIES          1,896          2,428          2,600          1,000          2,800 180.00%          3,200          4,000 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        40,695        45,036        44,200        45,800        46,300 1.09%        49,290        52,050 

Business Unit Total: Village Buildings       51,838       48,305       46,800       46,800       49,100 4.91%       52,490       56,050 

Business Unit: 804 Village Grounds

101.804.00.807

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES          8,055          5,819          9,900          9,900          9,700 -2.02%        10,330        10,330 

SUP - SUPPLIES                 -               72          1,000          1,000                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES        15,018        13,436        16,600        16,600        16,200 -2.41%        16,600        16,600 

Business Unit Total: Village Grounds       23,073       19,326       27,500       27,500       25,900 -5.82%       26,930       26,930 

Department Total: Historic Village       74,911     142,631     149,300     149,300     150,000 0.47%     154,420     157,980 

Historic Village

General Fund 
Recreation and Culture 

194



· Budet Stabilization Fund $0  CDBG Grant $157,300



  Local Streets Fund $2,032,000

  Major Streets Fund $4,025,000

  Refuse Fund $4,446,000

streets classified as "local" within the city.

property taxes to provide this service.

related to the repair, maintenance and

construction of all streets classified as "major"

within the city.

Provides refuse collection, yard waste removal

and curbside recycling.  Funds are generated by

This fund accounts for state shared revenue

This fund accounts for various revenues,

including state shared revenue, related to the

repair, maintenance and construction of all

Department of Housing and Development to be

used for residential and other Capital

improvements.

This fund accounts for grant revenues from the

Troy's budgeted revenue is not being

To cover a General Fund deficit in the City of

Troy's annual audit reveals a deficit.

To prevent a reduction in the level of public

The chart below shows expenditures for each Special Revenue Fund as a percent of the total Special 

Revenue Budget.

This fund was created for the following

purposes:

City of Troy's estimated revenue does not

the budget for the next fiscal year when the

budgeted expenses.

appear sufficient to cover estimated

To prevent reduction in the level of service or

in the number of employees, when preparing

services, or in the number of employees, at

any time in a fiscal year when the City of

expenses.

To cover expenses arising because of a

natural disaster including flood, fire or

fund, that money shall be returned to the fund.

tornado.  However, if federal or state funds

are received to offset the appropriations of the

collected in an amount sufficient to cover

0.00% 1.09% 
14.09% 

27.90% 

30.82% 

24.83% 

1.26% 
Budget Stabilization 

Community Development Block Grant 

Local Streets 

Major Streets 

Refuse 

Library 

Drug Forfeiture 

Special Revenue Funds 

Percentage of Total Expenditures 

195



 Library Fund $3,582,200

 Drug Forfeiture Fund $182,000

Funding for these expenditures is provided by a

voter approved dedicated property tax.

funding entities.

This fund accounts for federal and state

contributed resources derived from drug

forfeitures.  This funding is restricted to specific

types of police expenditures as defined by these

expenditures for the city's public library.

This fund accounts costs associated with the

operations, maintenance and capital

Special Revenue Funds 

Percentage of Total Expenditures 

196



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 202 Major Streets

REVENUES

202.000.00.000

State Grant Revenues  $   3,572,892  $   3,623,451  $   3,667,000  $   3,500,000  $   3,923,000 12.09%  $   3,728,000  $    3,765,000 

Interest and rents             7,455             4,946             9,000             9,000             9,000 0.00%             9,000              9,000 

Total Revenues     3,580,347     3,628,397     3,676,000     3,509,000     3,932,000 12.05%     3,737,000      3,774,000 

EXPENDITURES

202.966.00.966

Other Financing Uses

Transfers Out for Services and 

Capital       3,410,644       2,708,840       3,940,760       4,046,600       4,025,000 -0.53%       3,840,000        3,858,700 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance 169,703       919,557       (264,760)     (537,600)      (93,000)        -82.70% (103,000)      (84,700)        

Beginning Fund Balance 2,402,623     2,572,326     3,491,883     3,491,883     3,227,123     -7.58% 3,134,123      3,031,123      

Ending Fund Balance 2,572,326$  3,491,883$  3,227,123$  2,954,283$  3,134,123$  6.09% 3,031,123$  2,946,423$   

 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 203 Local Streets

REVENUES

203.000.00.000

State Grant Revenues  $   1,402,776  $   1,420,210  $   1,439,500  $   1,380,000  $   1,542,000 11.74%  $   1,466,000  $    1,481,000 

Interest and rents             4,437             4,432             8,000             8,000             8,000 0.00%             8,000              8,000 

Total Revenues     1,407,213     1,424,642     1,447,500     1,388,000     1,550,000 11.67%     1,474,000      1,489,000 

Other Financing Sources

Transfers In from Major Streets          224,080          313,048          300,000          300,000          500,000 66.67%          600,000           600,000 

Total Revenues and Other 

Sources     1,631,293     1,737,690     1,747,500     1,688,000     2,050,000 21.45%     2,074,000      2,089,000 

EXPENDITURES

203.966.00.966

Other Financing Uses

Transfers Out for Services and 

Capital          920,242          921,329       1,896,710       1,705,900       2,032,000 19.12%       2,110,500        2,127,900 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance 711,051       816,361       (149,210)     (17,900)        18,000         -200.56% (36,500)        (38,900)        

Beginning Fund Balance 1,454,555     2,165,606     2,981,967     2,981,967     2,832,757     -5.00% 2,850,757      2,814,257      

Ending Fund Balance 2,165,606$  2,981,967$  2,832,757$  2,964,067$  2,850,757$  -3.82% 2,814,257$  2,775,357$   

Major Steets

Local Streets

Special Revenue Funds 
Public Works 

197





 Provides prompt and reliable refuse,

 curbside recycling and yard waste removal

service

 Promotes City of Troy curbside recycling as

the preferred program to remove recyclable

products from the waste stream in a fiscally

responsible manner

 Investigates and resolves refuse and

 recycling related calls in a professional

manner

 Serves as liaison to the City's refuse

contractor

 Promotes public education in the area of

solid waste disposal and recycling through

newsletters, brochures, telephone contact

and site visits

 Promotes household hazardous waste

program

 Represents the City of Troy on the SOCRRA

board

  Maintains, and monitors collection counts

  Reviews and approves service billings from

SOCRRA



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Administrative and Support Services

MISSION STATEMENT

The Refuse and Recycling Division provides 

prompt, reliable, and efficient refuse collection 

by a private contractor once per week servicing 

26,702 single-family homes; condominiums; 

mobile homes; duplexes; and 110 small 

commercial businesses. Refuse from 4,136 

apartments is also collected on a weekly basis.

 

 

 

Refuse and 
Recycling 

 

        Public Works Director ..........................................Timothy Ricknak 
        Office Coordinator....................................................Emily Frontera 

Refuse and Recycling 

198



 Goal:  To educate residents about curbside recycling, refuse and compost issues through

personal contact, brochures and articles.

 We will be reviewing the separate Christmas tree collection service as tonnage and tree count

lawfully disposed in the regular refuse collection at no additional cost.

% of Total Refuse Recycled 11% 12% 11% 11%

Refuse and Recycling Collection 

Costs Per Capita 52.07 54.65 55.40 55.40

Notes on Performance Indicators

have decreased drastically from 94 tons to 35 tons in the past 5 years.  These trees can be

% of Total Refuse Composted 23% 22% 23% 23%

Christmas Tree Chipped and 

Composted in Tons 40.00 68.25 34.61 35.00

Recyclables Collected in Tons 4,448 4,500 4,500 4,500

Compost Collected in Tons 9,343 8,786 9,400 9,400

Refuse Collected Less Recyclables 

and compost in Tons 27,015 26,655 27,000 27,000

Total Refuse Collected in Tons 40,806 40,132 40,700 40,700

2014/15      

Budget

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

Refuse and Recycling 

199





Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time Part Time

1.3 0 0.49 0.1 0.49 0.1 0.49 0
1.3 0 0.49 0.1 0.49 0.1 0.49 0



2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Charge adjustmentsubject to CPI

Total Department

Operating Budget History

5% 95% 1.00%Tringali Sanitation

2014/15

 

Refuse & Recycling

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Personnel                                   

Summary 2011/12     2012/13 2013/14

Contractor

July 2014 Service

The contractor service charge adjustments that will go into effect on July 1, 2014 are in the detail 

below.  The Fuel Cost Adjustment is based on the US Department of Energy's Midwest diesel fuel 

index at the end of the calendar year compared with the index at the start of the year.  The rest of 

cost adjustment is to be based on the Consumer Price Index of the Detroit Metropolitan area, 

comparing the end of the year index to that at the beginning of the year.

% of Service Charge

subject to fuel cost

adjustment

% of Service Charge

$
4

,4
3

2
,2

02
  

$
4

,4
3

2
,8

41
  

$
4

,3
6

7
,0

93
  

$
4

,5
2

8
,9

62
  

$
3

,8
9

2
,4

88
  

$
3

,9
6

1
,7

94
  

$
3

,9
9

6
,0

64
  

$
4

,1
0

9
,9

85
  

$
4

,2
1

6
,3

25
  

$
4

,3
3

1
,5

60
  

$0 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$3,500,000 

$4,000,000 

$4,500,000 

$5,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Refuse and Recycling 

200



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 226 Refuse 

Fund

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 721 Planning

226.000.00.000

Tax Revenues    4,168,478    4,446,398    4,642,500    4,600,000    4,576,000 -0.52%    4,641,000    4,706,000 

Charges for Services          5,700          6,012          6,000          6,000          6,000 0.00%          6,000          6,000 

Interest and rents         12,393          7,875         14,000          8,000         14,000 75.00%         14,000         14,000 

Total Revenues  4,186,571  4,460,285  4,662,500  4,614,000  4,596,000 -0.39%  4,661,000  4,726,000 

EXPENDITURES

Business Unit: 530 Refuse 

and Recycling

226.530.00.530

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges    4,024,878    4,142,764    4,160,000    4,315,000    4,261,000 -1.25%    4,355,000    4,445,000 

Business Unit Total: Refuse 

And Recycling  4,024,878  4,142,764  4,160,000  4,315,000  4,261,000 -1.25%  4,355,000  4,445,000 

Business Unit: 531 Other 

Refuse Expenditures

226.530.00.531

Personal Services          4,784          5,277          6,020          7,340          6,010 -18.12%          6,410          6,440 

Supplies                 0                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges       135,746       125,454         88,210         94,210       105,610 12.10%       106,610       107,610 

Business Unit Total: Other 

Refuse Expenditures      140,531      130,731        94,230      101,550      111,620 9.92%      113,020      114,050 

Business Unit: 532 Recycling

226.530.00.532

Personal Services         36,905         41,818         48,095         47,360         47,500 0.30%         50,960         51,280 

Supplies         10,363          8,870         11,350         11,500         13,500 17.39%         13,500         13,500 

Other Service Charges          3,648          7,378         11,115         15,830         12,380 -21.79%         12,480         12,580 

Business Unit Total: 

Recycling        50,916        58,066        70,560        74,690        73,380 -1.75%        76,940        77,360 

Total Expenditures  4,216,325  4,331,561  4,324,790  4,491,240  4,446,000 -1.01%  4,544,960  4,636,410 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund 

Balance (29,753)     128,724    337,710    122,760    150,000    22.19% 116,040    89,590      

Beginning Fund Balance 83,898       54,145       182,869     182,869     520,579     184.67% 670,579     786,619     

Ending Fund Balance 54,145$    182,869$  520,579$  305,629$  670,579$  119.41% 786,619$  876,209$  

2015-2017 Reflects the reduced millage to 1.07 mills

Refuse Fund
Special Revenue Funds 

Sanitation 

201



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 257 Budget 

Stabilization

REVENUES

 257.000.00.000 

Interest Income          5,861         11,480         10,000          5,000         10,000 100.00%         10,000         10,000 

EXPENDITURES

257.966.00.966

Other Financing Uses

Transfers Out for Budget 

Stabilization                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund 

Balance 5,861        11,480      10,000      5,000        10,000      100.00% 10,000      10,000      

Beginning Fund Balance 1,508,257  1,514,118  1,525,598  1,525,598  1,535,598  0.66% 1,545,598  1,555,598  

Ending Fund Balance 1,514,118$  1,525,598$  1,535,598$  1,530,598$  1,545,598$  0.98% 1,555,598$  1,565,598$  

Budget Stabilization

Special Revenue Funds 
General Government 

202



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 265 Drug 

Forfeiture

REVENUES

 265.000.00.000 

Fines and Forfeitures  $         -  $   131,956  $    355,500  $    119,900  $    130,000 8.42%  $    130,000  $    130,000 

Interest and rents             -                 -                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                   -                  - 

Total Revenues            -      131,956      355,500      119,900       130,000 8.42%       130,000      130,000 

Other Financing Sources

Transfers In             -       134,786                  -                  -                   - 0.00%                   -                  - 

Total Revenues and Other 

Sources             -       266,741        355,500        119,900        130,000 8.42%        130,000        130,000 

EXPENDITURES

265.321.00.321

Operating Expenditures

Supplies             -         41,367          77,500          52,000        102,000 96.15%        102,000         99,900 

Other Financing Uses

Transfers Out to Capital             -          6,850           8,000          10,000          80,000 700.00%          50,000        232,500 

Total Expenditures and Other 

Uses             -         48,218          85,500          62,000        182,000 193.55%        152,000        332,400 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance -           218,524    270,000     57,900       (52,000)      -189.81% (22,000)      (202,400)   

Beginning Fund Balance -           -                218,524      218,524      488,524       123.56% 436,524       414,524      

Ending Fund Balance -$         218,524$  488,524$   276,424$   436,524$   57.92% 414,524$   212,124$   

Drug Forfeiture

Special Revenue Funds 
Public Safety 

203



MISSION STATEMENT 



 Administrative and Support Services

 Evaluates and implements the Strategic Plan

 Recommends and implements policies

 Coordinates and evaluates activities of staff

  Develops program and priorities

 Coordinates and administers grants

  Serves as liaison to Friends of the Library

  Represents, promotes and markets the Library to

 the community

  Implements new collections, programs and

 services

  Compiles, maintain and analyzes statistics

  Serves as liaison to Suburban Library Cooperative

  Provides bookkeeping service

  Plans and conducts patron education of software

and databases

  Develops web pages, blogs, wikis and associated

technologies

  Collects and reports statistics

  Promotes electronic resources

  Evaluates and recommends new software and

 hardware





Cleans and repairs materials and AV items

Staffs telephone reception desk

Collects and reports statistics

Receives and routs deliverables

Runs acquisition and fund reports

Maintains AV equipment

Monitor collection budget spending

Circulation Services

Administer the automation system

Circulates materials

Registers borrowers

Collects fines from patrons

Discards/recycles library materials

Coordinates statewide delivery service
Acts as concierge for library services

The mission of the Troy Public Library is to be 

the community’s collection of knowledge and 

entertainment, a personal resource for lifeline 

learning, and a vibrant space for all.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS

Technical Services

Processes materials

Maintains and updates inventory

Acquires supplies and equipment and 

Library 
 

              Library Director..........................................Cathy Russ 
          

Library 

204



 

 



 



 

 



 







  Maintains periodicals

  Coordinates adult multi-cultural services and the

international collection

  Provides outreach services to homebound

 patrons  

  Educates patrons on use of database and

 research methods

 Compiles list of recommended titles to feature

on library's online reader's advisory service

  Manages public Internet access and database

use

  Plans and conducts patron education of 

software and databases

 Proctors examinations

  Checks out materials

  Coordinates distribution of tax forms

  Maintains public events calendar

 Assists public in reserving meeting rooms

  Collects and reports statistics

  Promotes electronic resources

 Troubleshoots library and patron computer

 hardware and software issues

  Assists visually-impaired patrons

  Coordinates Adult Services volunteers

  Provides notary services



on library's online reader's advisory service

Compiles lists of recommended titles to 

feature

Plans and conducts teen programming

Creates displays and shelves materials

Performs collection management

Performs database and Internet access

management

Performs collection management

Manages the special needs collection

storytelling and tours of the library

Creates bibliographies and displays

Implements a summer reading program

Compiles list of recommended titles to feature

on library's online reader's advisory service

community groups, providing visits to schools 

for

Plans, coordinates and promotes adult programs

Aids and advises patrons in materials selection

digital resources (eBooks, magazines, music)

Coordinates book discussion groups

Shelves materials

Plans and presents a variety of programs for

children and families

Develops cooperative programs with schools 

and

Teaches basic research methods

Oversees the youth computer area, and Tech

Farm, offering search strategy instructions

Performs reference and information retrieval

Educates patrons on use of databases and

research methods

Adult Services

Performs reference and information searches for

patrons in person, electronically, and by 

Maintains a current collection of print and

Advises patrons in the selection of materials

Assists students in locating materials

telephone

Teen Services

audiovisual materials for adults

Teaches patrons how to access downloadable

and AV materials

Manages teen social media outlets

Serves as liaison with high schools, vocational

schools, colleges and the Teen Advisory 

Board

Youth Services

Maintains a current collection of print and AV

material for children

Collects and reports statistics

Coordinates teen multicultural services

Aids and advises patrons in selection of 

reading

Shelves all materials

Extends volunteer opportunities for students

Educates patrons on use of databases and

research methods

Library 

205







 Beginning July 2010, the Library adopted a 6-day/week schedule of service.  Circulation numbers

continue to provide the programs, services and collections that the community desires.

As a result of community support through the library millage, as well as implementing the

Number of Library Volunteers 98 159 215 200

recommendations of the strategic plan, the library anticipates steady and growing usage

throughout the 2014/15 budget year, and beyond.

Electronic Resources Usage

Annual Visits/Capita

Annual Circulation/Capita

The library's strategic plan, completed in December 2012, provides a roadmap so the library can

15 16 16 16

402,130 450,000 460,000 465,000

5.58

have increased since that time and are now approaching the numbers the Library used to

generate when open 7 days.

56,316 54,000 52,000 55,000

5.54 5.56 5.56

Notes on Performance Indicators

Social Media Followers N/A 2,000 3,000 3,000

Hits on Library Website

Total Number of Library Cards 50,880 51,000 51,000 53,500

New Library Cards Added 4,729 5,100 5,100 5,100

Program Attendance 5,508 22,000 22,000 24,000

Items Circulated 1,239,276 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,450,000

Annual Library Visits 448,782 450,000 450,000 480,000

2014/15      

Budget

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance                                   

Indicator 

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Projected

Library 

206











Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

Full 

Time

Part 

Time

6 31.6 6 31.7 9 29.7 8.5 31.7

6 31.6 6 31.7 9 29.7 8.5 31.7



Personal Service increase has been budgeted due to the elimination of furlough hours.  The Library is 

also now open on the "soft holidays".

Budgeted to implement finding from the Wayfinding Analysis conducted in FY 2013/14 (as 

recommended in the Library's Strategic Plan).

Operating Budget History

Budgeted to install a drive-up materials return per the Library's Strategic Plan.

Personal Service

2014/15      

Actual

SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14 Budget

Total Department

Library

Personnel                               

Summary

2011/12      

Actual

2012/13      

Actual

2013/14      

Actual

 

Increase in operations budget for marketing.

 

$
4

,1
4

7
,9

7
1

  

$
4

,3
0

6
,4

9
0

  

$
4

,3
3

8
,3

5
8

  

$
4

,3
6

0
,7

5
2

  

$
4

,3
3

4
,1

0
4

  

$
3

,6
8

9
,2

2
2

  

$
3

,3
9

1
,7

4
0

  

$
1

,9
9

2
,7

0
6

  

$
2

,6
0

3
,0

1
0

  

$
2

,8
5

6
,9

6
7

  

$0.00 

$500,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,500,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

$2,500,000.00 

$3,000,000.00 

$3,500,000.00 

$4,000,000.00 

$4,500,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Library 

207



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 271 Library

REVENUES

Department: 000 

Revenue

Business Unit: 721 

Planning

271.000.00.000

Tax Revenues  $     3,037,539  $     2,962,459  $      2,979,000  $      2,956,000  $      2,992,000 1.22%  $    3,035,000  $    3,077,000 

State Grant Revenues             51,538             40,413               20,232              15,000               20,000 33.33%             20,000            20,000 

Local Contributions            112,103            109,669             107,546            100,000             109,000 9.00%           109,000          109,000 

Charges for Services             29,625             24,418               22,120              24,250               22,000 -9.28%             22,000            22,000 

Fines and Forfeitures            100,327            118,011             100,000            100,000             100,000 0.00%           100,000          100,000 

Interest and rents             17,294             19,564               17,800              13,750               17,800 29.45%             17,800            17,800 

Other Revenues               7,508             21,459               27,302              27,000                5,000 -81.48%               5,000              5,000 

Total Revenues       3,355,934       3,295,993        3,274,000        3,236,000        3,265,800 0.92%      3,308,800      3,350,800 

EXPENDITURES
Business Unit: 271 

Library

Expenditures for 

Operations

271.790.00.790

PERSONAL SERVICES         1,368,241         1,502,346          1,694,970         1,818,850          1,869,540 2.79%        1,890,000       1,910,900 

SUPPLIES             50,338             62,776               60,700              59,000               62,500 5.93%             62,500            62,500 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            678,887            701,290             724,930            762,140             862,160 13.12%           864,600          826,200 

Total Operating 

Expenditures       2,097,466       2,266,411        2,480,600        2,639,990        2,794,200 5.84%      2,817,100      2,799,600 

Other Financing Uses

271.790.00.790

Office Equipment 37,633            -                     -                      -                     -                      0.00% -                    -                    

Library Collection and 

Capital Expenditures            467,911            590,556             622,000            622,000             788,000 26.69%           710,000          760,000 

Total Expenditures       2,603,010       2,856,967        3,102,600        3,261,990        3,582,200 9.82%      3,527,100      3,559,600 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance 752,924         439,027         171,400          (25,990)          (316,400)         1117.39% (218,300)       (208,800)      

Beginning Fund Balance -                     752,924          1,191,950        1,191,950        1,363,350        14.38% 1,046,950       828,650         

Ending Fund Balance 752,924$       1,191,950$   1,363,350$     1,165,960$    1,046,950$     -10.21% 828,650$      619,850$     

Note: The current Library Millage of 0.07 mills was passed by voters to cover a 5 year period from July 1, 2011 through

June 30, 2016. The proposed budget for fiscal year 2017 is provided on a "Going Concern" basis for discussion purposes

only.

Library

Special Revenue Funds 

208



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 
Fund: 280 COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANT

REVENUES

280.000.00.000

Federal Grants  $   133,712  $   621,439  $   725,800  $   731,100  $   157,300 -78.48%  $   152,000  $   152,000 

EXPNEDITURES

Business Unit: 733 Home 

Chore Program

280.733.00.733

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges         42,945         45,043         60,000         65,300         50,300 -22.97%         45,000         45,000 

Business Unit Total: Home 

Chore Program        42,945        45,043        60,000        65,300        50,300 -22.97%        45,000        45,000 

Business Unit: 734 Section 

6 Charmwood

280.734.00.734

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit Total: 

Section 6 Charmwood                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit: 735 CDBG 

Administration

280.735.00.735

Personal Services         11,417          3,362                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges               21                 -         40,000         40,000                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit Total: CDBG 

Administration        11,438          3,362        40,000        40,000                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

Community Development Block Grant

Special Revenue Funds 
Community Development 

209



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Community Development Block Grant

Special Revenue Funds 
Community Development 

Business Unit: 736 Park 

Pathway

280.736.00.736

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies         79,329          2,958                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges                 -                 -         15,700         15,700       107,000 581.53%       107,000       107,000 

Business Unit Total: Local 

Guard Rails & Posts        79,329          2,958        15,700        15,700      107,000 581.53%      107,000      107,000 

Business Unit: 737 S/A 

Project Paving

280.737.00.737

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit Total: S/A 

Project Paving                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit: 738 Minor 

Home Repair

280.738.00.738

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit Total: Minor 

Home Repair                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit: 741 Barrier 

Free - Robinwood

280.741.00.741

Personal Services -                                - -                                - -                0.00% -                                - 

Supplies -                                - -                                - -                0.00% -                                - 

Other Service Charges -                                - -                                - -                0.00% -                                - 

Business Unit Total: 

Barrier Free - Robinwood                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

210



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Community Development Block Grant

Special Revenue Funds 
Community Development 

Business Unit: 743 Section 

36 Storm Sewer

280.743.00.743

Personal Services                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Supplies                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - 0.00%                 -                 - 

Other Service Charges                 -       570,076       610,100       610,100                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

Business Unit Total: 

Section 36 Storm Sewer                 -      570,076      610,100      610,100                 - -100.00%                 -                 - 

Total Expenditures      133,712      621,439      725,800      731,100      157,300 -78.48%      152,000      152,000 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund 

Balance -                -                -                -                -                0.00% -                -                

Beginning Fund Balance -                -                -                -                -                0.00% -                -                

Ending Fund Balance -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              0.00% -$              -$              

211



The following is the computation of legal debt margin for the City of Troy

Annual Net Debt

% of State 

Equalization 

Value

Legal Maximum 

Debt

Legal Debt 

Margin

General Obligation Debt 44,978,790$            10% 429,219,700$      384,240,910$      

Emergency Bonds -                             3/8% 16,095,739          16,095,739         

Special Assessment Bonds -                             12% 515,063,640        515,063,640        

Total Debt 44,978,790$          960,379,079$    915,400,289$    

Such special assessment bonds may be an obligation of the special assessment district or districts 

and a general obligation of the City for which the full faith and credit of the City may be pledged.

Section 11.9 of the Troy City Charter provides limits on borrowing authority.  No limits are established 

on the power of the City to borrow, except those established by the laws of this state.

The statutory debt limits of net bonded indebtedness incurred for all public purposes shall not at any 

one time exceed 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property in the City $4,292,197,000 except 

that this limit may be exceeded by 3/8ths of 1% in case of fire, flood or any other calamity.  This 

limitation does not include bonds issued in anticipation of the payment of special assessments, nor 

bonds issued pursuant to court order for sewerage or garbage disposal systems.

The Michigan State Bond Act provides that the total debt in special assessment bonds, which would 

require that the City pledge its faith and credit, shall not exceed 12% of assessed valuation of taxable 

property of the City, nor shall such bonds be issued in any calendar year in excess of 3% unless 

voted.

The Charter states that no bonds shall be sold to obtain funds for any purpose other than that for 

which they were specifically authorized, and if any such bonds are not sold within five years after 

authorization, such authorization shall be null and void.

Legal Debt Limits

Section 11.1 of the Troy City Charter enumerates the borrowing power of the City.  It states that City 

Council may, by proper ordinance or resolution, subject to the applicable provisions of law and this 

Charter, authorize the borrowing of money for any purpose within the scope of the powers vested in 

the City and the issuance of bonds of the City or other evidences of indebtedness therefore, and may 

pledge the full faith, credit and resources of the City for the payment of the obligation created thereby.

Section 11.2 of the Troy City Charter provides for borrowing in anticipation of special assessments.   

The City Council may authorize the borrowing of money, subject to the applicable provisions of law 

and this Charter, in anticipation of the payment of special assessments made for the purpose of 

defraying the cost of any public improvement, or in anticipation of the payment of any combination of 

such special assessments, and the issuing of bonds therefore.  

Legal Debt Limits 

212



DEBT SERVICE

(Does not include debt serviced by Enterprise Funds)

Debt 

Description of Outstanding

Debt 6/30/2014      Principal     Interest Total

Proposal A - Streets  $       5,580,000  $       740,000  $      209,524  $       949,524 

Proposal B - Public Safety           7,825,000        1,025,000          308,975        1,333,975 

Proposal C - Recreation           4,280,000          590,000          163,050          753,050 

Series 2013 - DDA         14,945,000          260,000          698,563          958,563 

North Arm Relief Drain              367,210            49,430             7,706            57,136 

George W. Kuhn Drain           1,876,580          167,752            50,417          218,169 

Total Debt Service  $   34,873,790  $  2,832,182  $ 1,438,235  $  4,270,417 

TAX-SUPPORTED, DDA CAPTURE AND CAPITAL PROJECT FUND DEBT SERVICE

General Debt Tax  2010/11  2011/12  2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 

Debt Service  Actual  Actual  Actual  Projected  Budget 

Proposal A – Streets  $          850,771  $       833,663  $      885,863  $       881,018  $       950,300 

Proposal B - Public Safety           1,645,159        1,471,825       1,417,100        1,375,225        1,334,300 

Proposal C - Rec. Facilities              757,632          746,500          745,600          745,900          753,100 

Total General Debt  $     3,253,562  $  3,051,988  $ 3,048,563  $  3,002,143  $  3,037,700 

DDA Capture  2010/11  2011/12  2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 

Debt Service  Actual  Actual  Actual  Projected  Budget 

MTF Rochester Road  $          220,900  $       236,988  $               -   $              -  $             - 

2013 Series - DDA  -  -  -          411,721          958,900 

Total DDA Capture Debt  $        220,900  $     236,988  $                -  $     411,721  $     958,900 

Capital Projects  2010/11  2011/12  2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 

Debt Service  Actual  Actual  Actual  Projected  Budget 

North Arm Relief  $            57,038  $        57,019  $        57,016  $        56,970  $        57,200 

George W. Kuhn              217,845          218,923          219,295          218,880          218,200 

MTF Rochester Road  -  -          251,013          264,050  - 

Total Capital Projects Debt  $        274,883  $     275,942  $     527,324  $     539,900  $     275,400 

Debt Summary 

213



GENERAL DEBT SERVICE FUND

Proposal B Proposal C Total Series 2013 Total Total

Fiscal Proposal A Public Recreation Tax-Financed DDA Financed Series 2013 DDA Financed General Debt

Year Streets Safety Facilities Interest Debt Debt Interest Debt Service

2015 740,000$     1,025,000$   590,000$       681,549$      3,036,549$    260,000$       698,563$        958,563$       3,995,112$    

2016 730,000       1,130,000     580,000         587,412        3,027,412      260,000         690,763          950,763         3,978,175      

2017 745,000       1,150,000     595,000         484,725        2,974,725      260,000         681,663          941,663         3,916,388      

2018 760,000       1,060,000     595,000         387,050        2,802,050      260,000         671,263          931,263         3,733,313      

2019 825,000       1,155,000     615,000         280,825        2,875,825      260,000         663,463          923,463         3,799,288      

2020 840,000       1,150,000     640,000         164,025        2,794,025      260,000         654,363          914,363         3,708,388      

2021 940,000       1,155,000     665,000         52,579          2,812,579      375,000         638,488          1,013,488      3,826,067      

2022 -               -               -                -                -                 440,000         618,113          1,058,113      1,058,113      

2023 -               -               -                -                -                 500,000         594,613          1,094,613      1,094,613      

2024 -               -               -                -                -                 600,000         567,113          1,167,113      1,167,113      

2025 -               -               -                -                -                 745,000         537,213          1,282,213      1,282,213      

2026 -               -               -                -                 900,000         499,813          1,399,813      1,399,813      

2027 -               -               -                -                -                 975,000         452,938          1,427,938      1,427,938      

2028 -               -               -                -                -                 1,250,000      403,563          1,653,563      1,653,563      

2029 -               -               -                -                -                 1,250,000      352,781          1,602,781      1,602,781      

2030 -               -               -                -                -                 1,250,000      294,188          1,544,188      1,544,188      

3031 -               -               -                -                -                 1,275,000      227,906          1,502,906      1,502,906      

3032 -               -               -                -                -                 1,275,000      160,969          1,435,969      1,435,969      

3033 -               -               -                -                -                 1,275,000      94,031            1,369,031      1,369,031      

3034 -               -               -                -                -                 1,275,000      30,281            1,305,281      1,305,281      

Total 5,580,000$  7,825,000$   4,280,000$    2,638,165$   20,323,165$  14,945,000$  9,532,081$     24,477,081$  44,800,246$  

Schedule of Principle and Interest 
General Debt Fund 

214



Schedule of Principle and Interest 
General Debt Fund 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Total Sanctuary Total

Fiscal George W. North Arm Capital Fiscal Lake Golf Enterprise

Year Kuhn Drain Relief Drain Interest Debt Year Course Interest Debt

2015 167,752$     49,430$        58,123$         275,305$      2015 450,000$        250,475$       700,475$       

2016 172,618       50,098          52,452           275,168        2016 645,000          234,388         879,388         

2017 177,354       51,434          46,616           275,404        2017 635,000          220,025         855,025         

2018 181,833       52,436          40,616           274,885        2018 630,000          201,050         831,050         

2019 186,187       53,772          34,459           274,418        2019 725,000          184,350         909,350         

2020 191,051       55,108          28,160           274,319        2020 715,000          169,950         884,950         

2021 196,045       54,932          21,675           272,652        2021 700,000          155,800         855,800         

2022 201,424       -               15,665           217,089        2022 685,000          140,238         825,238         

2023 164,082       -               10,127           174,209        2023 770,000          122,050         892,050         

2024 166,837       -               5,752             172,589        2024 755,000          102,988         857,988         

2025 16,111         -               1,320             17,431          2025 840,000          83,050           923,050         

2026 16,477         -               960                17,437          2026 820,000          62,300           882,300         

2027 14,551         -               590                15,141          2027 850,000          39,300           889,300         

2028 14,531         -               250                14,781          2028 885,000          13,275           898,275         

2029 9,727           -               -                9,727            Total 10,105,000$   1,979,239$    12,084,239$  

Total 1,876,580$  367,210$      316,765$       2,560,555$   

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

215



Total

2015 3,995,112$      275,305$         700,475$                4,970,892$          

2016 3,978,175        275,168           879,388                  5,132,731            

2017 3,916,388        275,404           855,025                  5,046,817            

2018 3,733,313        274,885           831,050                  4,839,248            

2019 3,799,288        274,418           909,350                  4,983,056            

2020 3,708,388        274,319           884,950                  4,867,657            

20201 3,826,067        272,652           855,800                  4,954,519            

2022 1,058,113        217,089           825,238                  2,100,440            

2023 1,094,613        174,209           892,050                  2,160,872            

2024 1,167,113        172,589           857,988                  2,197,690            

2025 1,282,213        17,431             923,050                  2,222,694            

2026 1,399,813        17,437             882,300                  2,299,550            

2027 1,427,938        15,141             889,300                  2,332,379            

2028 1,653,563        14,781             898,275                  2,566,619            

2029 1,602,781        9,727               -                          1,612,508            

2030 1,544,188        -                   1,544,188            

2031 1,502,906        -                   -                          1,502,906            

2032 1,435,969        -                   -                          1,435,969            

2033 1,369,031        -                   -                          1,369,031            

2034 1,305,274        -                   -                          1,305,274            

 Total 44,800,246$    2,560,555$      12,084,239$           59,445,040$        

Bars represent estimated millage requirements as a result of bond issue Proposals A, B and C.

Capital Projects 

Fund

Fiscal 

Year

General Debt 

Service Fund Enterprise Funds

$0.00 

$0.25 

$0.50 

$0.75 

$1.00 

Projected Millage Rate Requirements 
General Debt Fund 

Schedule of Principal and Interest 
All Funds 

216



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

4402 Property Taxes  $   2,174,581  $    2,967,608  $    2,984,000  $  2,965,000  $      2,995,700 1.04%  $      3,038,000  $    2,642,000 

4669.020 Interest Income            10,039              5,829              8,000           14,000                8,000 -42.86%                8,000              8,000 

      2,184,620       2,973,437       2,992,000      2,979,000         3,003,700 0.83%         3,046,000       2,650,000 

7801.010 Administrative Fees            53,000            53,000            53,000           53,000              59,900 13.02%              60,500            52,800 

7964 Tax Refunds            48,321            40,778            13,500           50,000                8,000 -84.00%                8,000              8,000 

7998 Other Fees          (10,108)                     -                     -                500                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

          91,213           93,778           66,500        103,500             67,900 -34.40%             68,500           60,800 

8999.355

Transfer Out to 

Proposal A Debt          833,663          885,863          881,018         881,268            950,300 7.83%            914,600          903,100 

8999.356

Transfer Out to 

Proposal B Debt       1,471,825       1,417,100       1,375,225      1,376,075         1,334,300 -3.04%         1,391,300       1,355,600 

8999.357

Transfer Out to 

Proposal C Debt          746,500          745,600          745,900         746,200            753,100 0.92%            722,600          717,100 

    3,051,988      3,048,563      3,002,143    3,003,543        3,037,700 1.14%        3,028,500      2,975,800 

    3,143,200      3,142,340      3,068,643    3,107,043        3,105,600 -0.05%        3,097,000      3,036,600 

      (958,580)       (168,904)         (76,643)      (128,043)         (101,900) -20.42%           (51,000)       (386,600)

2,586,721 1,628,141 1,459,237 1,459,237 1,382,594 -5.25% 1,280,694 1,229,694

 $ 1,628,141  $  1,459,237  $  1,382,594  $1,331,194  $    1,280,694 -3.79%  $    1,229,694  $     843,094 

4699.248 Transfer from DDA  $      236,988  $        13,006  $                 -  $                -  $                   - 0.00%  $                   -  $                 - 

4699.401

Transfer from 

Capital                     -          238,006          264,050         264,050                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

         236,988          251,013          264,050         264,050                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

Debt Service

OTHER FINAINCING USES

Total Other Financing Uses

FUND 301 GENERAL DEBT 

SERVICE

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures

REVENUES

Total Expenditures and Other 

Financing Uses

Total Revenues and Other 

Sources

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

FUND 354 2000 MTF BOND

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Debt Service Funds 
Debt Service 

217



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Debt Service

Debt Service Funds 
Debt Service 

7991 Principal          200,000          225,000          250,000         250,000                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

7995 Interest            36,713            26,013            13,750           13,750                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

7998 Other Fees                 275                     -                 300                300                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

        236,988         251,013         264,050        264,050                       - -100.00%                       -                     - 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

 $                 -  $                 -  $                 -  $                -  $                   - 0.00%  $                   -  $                 - 

4699.301

Transfer from 

General Debt  $      833,663  $       885,863  $       881,018  $     881,268  $         950,300 7.83%  $         914,600  $       903,100 

7991 Principal          555,000          625,000          645,000         645,000            740,000 14.73%            730,000          745,000 

7995 Interest          278,163          260,363          235,268         235,268            209,524 -10.94%            183,812          157,350 

7998 Other Fees                 500                 500                 750             1,000                   776 -22.40%                   788                 750 

        833,663         885,863         881,018        881,268           950,300 7.83%           914,600         903,100 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

 $                 -  $                 -  $                 -  $                -  $                   - 0.00%  $                   -  $                 - 

4699.301

Transfer from 

General Debt  $   1,471,825  $    1,417,100  $    1,375,225  $  1,376,075  $      1,334,300 -3.04%  $      1,391,300  $    1,355,600 

7991 Principal       1,060,000       1,035,000       1,025,000      1,025,000         1,025,000 0.00%         1,130,000       1,150,000 

7995 Interest          411,575          381,850          349,975         349,975            308,975 -11.72%            261,000          205,300 

7998 Other Fees                 250                 250                 250             1,100                   325 -70.45%                   300                 300 

    1,471,825      1,417,100      1,375,225    1,376,075        1,334,300 -3.04%        1,391,300      1,355,600 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

 $                 -  $                 -  $                 -  $                -  $                   - 0.00%  $                   -  $                 - 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

Total Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

FUND 355 PROPOSAL A BOND 

DEBT

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

FUND 356 PROPOSAL B BOND 

DEBT

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures

218



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Debt Service

Debt Service Funds 
Debt Service 

4699.301

Transfer from 

General Debt  $      746,500  $       745,600  $       745,900  $     746,200  $         753,100 0.92%  $         722,600  $       717,100 

7991 Principal          520,000          535,000          560,000         560,000            590,000 5.36%            580,000          595,000 

7995 Interest          226,500          210,600          185,900         185,900            163,050 -12.29%            142,600          122,075 

7998 Other Fees                     -                     -                     -                300                     50 -83.33%                       -                   25 

        746,500         745,600         745,900        746,200           753,100 0.92%           722,600         717,100 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

 $                 -  $                 -  $                 -  $                -  $                   - 0.00%  $                   -  $                 - 

4698 Bond Proceeds  $                 -  $                 -  $  14,945,000  $                -  $                   - 0.00% -$                    -$                  

4698.100 Bond Premiums                     -                     -          736,653                    -                       - 0.00% -                     -                    

4699.301 Transfer from DDA                     -                     -          411,721                    -            958,900 100.00%            951,000          942,000 

                    -                     -    16,093,374                    -           958,900 100.00%           951,000         942,000 

7991 Principal                     -                     -                     -                    -            260,000 100.00%            260,000          260,000 

7995 Interest                     -                     -          411,721                    -            698,563 100.00%            690,763          681,663 

8999.394 Transfer to DDA                     -                     -      15,438,088                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

7998 Other Fees                     -                     -          243,565                    -                   337 100.00%                   237                 337 

                    -                     -    16,093,374                    -           958,900 100.00%           951,000         942,000 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

                    -                     -                     -                    -                       - 0.00%                       -                     - 

 $                 -  $                 -  $                 -  $                -  $                   - 0.00%  $                   -  $                 - 

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

Total Other Sources

FUND 358 SERIES 2013 DDA

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance

Total Expenditures

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

FUND 357 PROPOSAL C BOND 

DEBT

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES

219



 Operating Budget History

 Major Streets 6,596,000$  





 Big Beaver-Adams to Rochester

 John R-Maple to Long Lake

 Concrete Leveling

General fund will be contributing $5 million

over 2014 and 2015 budget for $10 million

in repairs due to State and County funding.

 Local Streets 5,615,000$  

 Concrete Slab Replacement

 Fire Department 1,960,000$  



 Drains 957,000$     

 Includes SAW Grant program

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Major renovation of Major and County Roads 

throughout the City including:

Includes partial funding of rebuild of Fire Station 

#4

Capital Projects Fund Statement 

As with all governmental funds, the Capital Projects 
Fund concentrates on inflows and outflows of 
available, spendable resources.  Therefore, the 
Capital Projects Fund uses the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.   
 
The administrator of the Capital Projects Fund has 
the authority to continue expenditures within 
prescribed limits until a project is completed.  
 
The following is a breakdown of the planned capital 
projects: 
 

The City of Troy uses a Capital Projects 
Fund to account for development, 
improvement and repair of capital 
facilities as well as to purchase vehicles 
and equipment not financed by other 
funds.   
 
Receipt and disbursement of resources to 
be utilized for the construction or 
acquisition of Capital facilities, and 
performance of activities financed by 
governmental funds, is accounted for by 
Capital funds.  
 
Receipts for such purposes arise from 
Capital operating millage, the sale of 
general obligation bonds, grants from 
other governmental units, transfers from 
other funds or gifts from individuals or 
organizations. 
 
The reason for creating a fund to account 
for Capital projects, vehicles and 
equipment is to provide a formal 
mechanism that enables administrators to 
ensure revenues dedicated to a certain 
purpose are used for that purpose and no 
other.  
 
This fund enables administrators to report 
to creditors and other grantors of Capital 
Projects Fund resources that their 
requirements regarding the use of the 
resources were met. 

220



 Taxes  Interest and Rents

 State grants

 Transfers In

 Contributions - Local

 Charges for Service

Grants $2.311

Contributions $0.4

Charges for Services $0.454

Interest and Rents $0.067

Other Revenue $0

Transfers In $6.774

Total

This source of revenue contains 

operating transfers from the General 

Fund, Major Street Fund and other 

funds to fund select projects.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

This source of revenue is derived by multiplying the 

capital projects millage rate by the taxable value of the 

city.

This source of revenue is comprised of grants from the 

State of Michigan, to be used mainly for road 

construction projects

This source of revenue is comprised of County road 

funds.

Charges for service are made up of services rendered in 

conjunction with the City’s sidewalk replacement program 

and concrete street maintenance.

Interest income generated from 

invested funds of the Capital Projects 

Fund and communication tower rental 

income are contained within this 

source of revenue.

39.55% 

13.96% 

2.42% 2.74% 
0.41% 

0.00% 

40.93% 

Capital Projects Revenue (Millions) Taxes $6.546 

Grants $2.311 

Contributions $0.4 

Charges for Services $0.454 

Interest and Rents $0.067 

Other Revenue $0 

Transfers In $6.774 

Capital Projects Fund Statement 

221



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

REVENUES

Fund: 401 Capital Projects

Department: 000 CP Revenues

401.000.00.000

Taxes           6,645,570          6,481,465          6,520,000           6,480,000           6,546,000 1.02%        6,639,000         6,731,000 

Grants              858,036          4,440,232          4,150,000           2,625,000           2,311,000 -11.96%        2,348,000         1,350,000 

Contributions                         -             638,392             262,000              312,700              400,000 27.92%           200,000            200,000 

Charges for Services              850,828             150,157             414,000              404,000              454,000 12.38%           454,000            294,000 

Interest and Rents                59,518              41,154              67,200                67,200               67,200 0.00%             67,200              67,200 

Other Revenue              441,584             319,944             321,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Business Unit Total: Revenue          8,855,536      12,071,344      11,734,200         9,888,900         9,778,200 -1.12%      9,708,200        8,642,200 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers In:                       (0)                     (0)                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

General Fund:

Street Projects          1,000,000          1,000,000           1,000,000        1,000,000 

Street Project - Enhanced          2,550,000                        -           2,450,000 

Fire Station #4 Rebuild           1,850,000        1,850,000 

Major Streets           1,350,000          1,200,000          1,800,000           1,800,000           1,500,000        1,200,000         1,200,000 

Drug Forfeiture Fund                6,850                8,000                10,000               80,000             50,000            222,500 

Library Fund              467,911             590,556             622,000              622,000              788,000           710,000            760,000 

LDFA                         -                       -                       -                        -              106,000             53,000              53,000 

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

222



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Special Assessments                         -              97,609              20,500                20,500 

Business Unit Total:Other Sources          1,817,911        2,895,015        6,000,500         3,452,500         6,774,000 96.21%      4,863,000        2,235,500 

Total Revenues and Other Sources        10,673,447      14,966,358      17,734,700       13,341,400       16,552,200 24.07%    14,571,200      10,877,700 

EXPENDITURES

Department: Finance

Business Unit: 253 Treasurer

             147,887             120,470              70,000              129,000               17,000 -86.82%             17,000              17,000 

Total Treasurer             147,887           120,470             70,000            129,000              17,000 -86.82%            17,000             17,000 

Total Finance Department             147,887           120,470             70,000            129,000              17,000 -86.82%            17,000             17,000 

Department: City Buildings

Business Unit: 264 Buildings
                        -                       -              80,000                        -                        - 0.00%             35,000                       - 

                        -                       -                       -                        -               30,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

EEBG Wind Spires                (4,800)                4,800                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Multi Module Transit Center                         -                       -          1,500,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

EEBG LED Lighting              153,675                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Transportation Center              350,687          4,424,728          1,665,000           1,640,000               50,000 -96.95%                     -                       - 

City Hall HVAC                         -                4,115                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

City Hall Boiler              336,611                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Emergency Repairs                         -                       -             140,000              200,000              200,000 0.00%           200,000            200,000 

Reserve/Court Bldg                         -              12,226                       -                        -               90,000 100.00%                     -            340,000 

Total City Buildings             836,173        4,445,870        3,385,000         1,840,000            370,000 -79.89%          235,000           540,000 

223



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Department: Police

Business Unit: 301 Police

Garage/Office Renovation              160,685              35,342                       -                        -               40,000 100.00%             90,000              50,000 

General                         -                8,337             125,000              125,000               65,000 -48.00%             20,000              20,000 

Federal Drug Forfeiture              187,350                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Forfeitures                         -                1,690                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

General                         -                       -             200,000              300,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Federal Drug Forfeiture                         -                       -                8,000                10,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Computers                         -                       -                       -                85,000                        - -100.00%           210,000            172,500 

Computer Software                  4,296                       -              85,000                        -               80,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

CAD Future Replacement                         -                       -                       -                        -               20,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

Radio Communications                         -                6,900                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Total Police Department             352,331             52,269           418,000            520,000            205,000 -60.58%          320,000           242,500 

Department: Fire

Business Unit: 336 Fire

General                         -                7,394                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Apparatus Replacement           1,054,238             534,211             490,000              490,000               50,000 -89.80%           300,000            790,000 

Fire Station One                22,651                       -              12,500                12,500               35,000 180.00%                     -                       - 

Station Two                22,651                9,967              52,500                52,500                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Station Three                22,651                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Station Four                22,651                       -                       -                        -           1,850,000 100.00%        1,850,000                       - 

Fire Station Five                22,651                       -              12,500                12,500                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

224



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Station Six                22,651                       -              12,500                12,500               25,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

Total Fire Department          1,190,144           551,572           580,000            580,000         1,960,000 237.93%      2,150,000           790,000 

Department: Streets

Business Unit: 448 Street Lighting

General               15,984             28,266             30,600              39,000              59,000 51.28%            75,000             93,000 

Business Unit: 479 Major Streets

General                         -                       -             108,000              110,000              115,000 4.55%             77,000                       - 

Maple Right Turn Lane at Coolidg                  3,140                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Wattles at Rochester              151,279              40,555              10,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Dequindre from Long Lk to Auburn                         -                       -                       -                        -              125,000 100.00%             95,000            310,000 

John R from Long Lk - Square Lk                  1,628              15,511             150,000                70,000              150,000 114.29%           200,000            650,000 

John R from Sq Lake to South Bld              282,975              28,582             400,000              100,000              150,000 50.00%           200,000            600,000 

Livernois from Long Lk to Sq Lk                         -                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%        1,900,000         1,050,000 

Roch from Barclay to Trinway                  1,200                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -            150,000 

Livernois, Elmwood-Maple                  9,203                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Coolidge at Golfview                (6,060)                6,060                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Rochester, Chopin to Larchwood              254,432                1,668                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Beach Road Pavement                  4,425               (4,425)                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

2011 Tri-Party CPR              327,294                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Dequindre -South Blvd to Auburn                28,113                2,244              10,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

2012 Tri-party                         -             673,981                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Livernois, Big Beaver to Wattles                53,000              49,323                5,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

225



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

14 Mile, Campbell to Stephenson                62,500              29,765              35,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Livernois, Long Lake to Avon                     962                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Square Lake, Rochester to John R                         -             474,174              50,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Square Lake, John R to Dequindre                         -             474,174              50,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Tri-Party                         -                7,438             950,000              892,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Square Lake, Livernois to Roch                         -                       -             425,000              500,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Wattles, Crooks to LIvernois                         -                       -                       -              500,000                        - -100.00%           500,000                       - 

Wattles, Livernois to Rochester                         -                       -                       -              400,000                        - -100.00%           400,000                       - 

NHPP                         -                       -                       -              250,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

LDFA Concrete and Slab Replace                         -                       -                       -                52,700              106,000 101.14%             53,000              53,000 

Wattles, Coolidge to Crooks                         -                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%           500,000                       - 

Long Lake, coolidge to Rochester                         -                       -          1,800,000                        -              700,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

Dequindre,14 Mile to Big Beaver                         -                       -             750,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Tri-Party                         -                       -                       -                        -              100,000 100.00%           300,000            300,000 

NHPP                         -                       -                       -                        -              250,000 100.00%           250,000            250,000 

Big Beaver, Roch to Dequindre                         -                       -                       -                        -              250,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

Wattles, Rochester to John R                         -                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -            400,000 

Wattles, John r to Dequindre                         -                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -            500,000 

Big Beaver, Adams to Rochester                         -                       -                       -                        -           2,000,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

John R, Maple to Long Lake                         -                       -                       -                        -           1,500,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

Concrete Crack Sealing                55,746              49,588                       -                50,000               50,000 0.00%             50,000              50,000 

Concrete Pavement Leveling           1,903,881             970,964             950,000              700,000           1,000,000 42.86%        1,000,000         1,000,000 

Concrete Slab Replacement           1,383,308                       -             100,000              100,000              100,000 0.00%           100,000            100,000 

Long Lake from Carnaby to John R                         -                1,680                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

226



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Crooks-Sq Lk to S Blvd                  2,214               (2,214)                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Rochester from Torpey-Barclay              252,709             102,005              20,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Other Fees                         -                   275                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

2000 MTF Bond                         -             238,006             264,050              264,050                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Total Major Streets          4,771,948        3,159,354        6,077,050         3,988,750         6,596,000 65.37%      5,625,000        5,413,000 

Business Unit: 499 Local Streets

Crack Sealing              114,999             113,782                       -              100,000              100,000 0.00%           100,000            100,000 

Charnwood Hills Phse 1 Chip Seal                         -             388,362                5,000                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Troywood SAD                         -                       -             130,000                60,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Concrete Slab Replacement           2,605,900          3,063,076             850,000           2,940,000           5,515,000 87.59%        3,400,000         3,400,000 

Total Local Streets          2,720,898        3,565,221           985,000         3,100,000         5,615,000 81.13%      3,500,000        3,500,000 

Business Unit: 513 Sidewalks

New Construction                23,396                       -              50,000                50,000               50,000 0.00%             50,000              50,000 

Replacement Program              483,858             521,592             750,000              750,000              750,000 0.00%           750,000            450,000 

Total Sidewalks             507,254           521,592           800,000            800,000            800,000 0.00%          800,000           500,000 

Business Unit: 516 Drains

Lovington                         -             558,122              50,000              100,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Streambank Stabilization                  4,377                1,352              20,000                        -                        - 0.00%           750,000                       - 

Section 4 Weir Structure                     520                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Aquatic Center Pond                  8,762              98,909          1,850,000           2,000,000              250,000 -87.50%             30,000                       - 

Drains and Retention Ponds                42,540              44,131              50,000              200,000              200,000 0.00%           200,000            200,000 

Sylvan Glen Access Drive Culvert                         -                       -                       -                        -              100,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

227



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Saw Grant-Storm Sewer                         -                       -              10,000                        -              407,000 100.00%           407,000            408,000 

Total Drains               56,198           702,514        1,980,000         2,300,000            957,000 -58.39%      1,387,000           608,000 

Total Streets Department          8,072,283        7,976,946        9,872,650       10,227,750       14,027,000 37.15%    11,387,000      10,114,000 

Department: Public Works

Municipal Parking Lots                98,443             255,727             222,800              222,800              267,000 19.84%           349,000            255,000 

Storage Building                         -                       -              10,000                20,000               10,000 -50.00%                     -                       - 

Fuel Island-DPW                72,628                   328              12,000                15,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

Roof Replacement                         -                8,213                       -                40,000              150,000 275.00%                     -                       - 

General Repairs                27,181                       -             120,000              136,000              230,000 69.12%           150,000            150,000 

General                         -                       -              40,000                53,000              133,000 150.94%           113,000              30,000 

Total Public Works Department             198,252           264,267           404,800            486,800            790,000 62.28%          612,000           435,000 

Department: Parks

Brinston Park                         -                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%             60,000                       - 

Outdoor Education Center                  4,963                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Various                         -                       -                       -                        -              410,000 100.00%           450,000            420,000 

Section 36 Pathways                  8,272                       -                       -                        -                        - 0.00%                     -                       - 

Total Parks Department               13,235                       -                       -                        -            410,000 100.00%          510,000           420,000 

Department: Recreation

Annex Renovation                         -                       -              30,000              168,500              403,500 139.47%           350,000                       - 

Annex Equipment                         -                       -              52,500                52,500                        - -100.00%             53,000                       - 

228



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Total Recreation                        -                       -             82,500            221,000            403,500 82.58%          403,000                       - 

Department: Nature Center

Total Nature Center                         -                       -                       -                        -               50,000 100.00%                     -                       - 

Department: Library

Carpet/Tile Replacement                         -                       -                       -                20,000                        - -100.00%                     -                       - 

General Repairs                         -                       -                       -                        -              158,000 100.00%           130,000            100,000 

Office Equipment and Furniture                35,896              30,050              42,000                42,000               50,000 19.05%                     -              80,000 

             432,015             560,506             580,000              560,000              580,000 3.57%           580,000            580,000 

Total Library             467,911           590,556           622,000            622,000            788,000 26.69%          710,000           760,000 

Department: Historic Village

Historic Green Dev                         -                       -                       -                12,800               45,000 251.56%             50,000                       - 

General Repairs                         -              26,926                       -                33,700              203,000 502.37%             25,000              25,000 

Total Historic Village                        -             26,926                       -              46,500            248,000 433.33%            75,000             25,000 

Total Expenditures         11,278,215        14,028,876        15,434,950         14,673,050         19,268,500 31.32%      16,419,000       13,343,500 

Other Financing Uses

Information Technology                11,615                       -                       -                46,000              221,000 380.43%                     -                       - 

Principal              201,167             206,776             211,746              206,780              217,182 5.03%           222,716            228,788 

Interest                74,768              69,478              63,663                69,070               58,123 -15.85%             52,452              46,616 

Other Fees                        7                       7                       -                        -                      95 100.00%                   32                    96 

229



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Outlay 

Total Other Financing Uses             287,557           276,261           275,409            321,850            496,400 54.23%          275,200           275,500 

Total Expenditures and Other Uses         11,565,772        14,305,137        15,710,359         14,994,900         19,764,900 31.81%      16,694,200       13,619,000 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund Balance (892,325)          661,222          2,024,341       (1,653,500)       (3,212,700)      94.30% (2,123,000)    (2,741,300)     

Beginning Fund Balance 12,209,633        11,317,308      11,978,530      11,978,530        14,002,871       16.90% 10,790,171     8,667,171        

Ending Fund Balance 11,317,308$    11,978,530$   14,002,871$   10,325,030$    10,790,171$    4.50% 8,667,171$   5,925,871$    

230



2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 % 2016 2017

ACTUAL ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET BUDGET

REVENUES

Fund: 403 Special 

Assessments

Department: 000 SA 

Revenues

403.000.00.000

Interest and Rents  $     16,006  $    12,238  $          -  $          -  $       - 0.00%  $        -  $            - 

Other Revenue        50,473       41,727              -     20,500           - -100.00%            -               - 

Business Unit Total: 

CP Revenue       66,479      53,965              -    20,500           - -100.00%           -               - 

OTHER FINANCING USES

403.896.00.896

Transfers Out       356,000       97,609              -     20,500           - -100.00%            -               - 

Surplus/(Use) of Fund 

Balance (289,521)   (43,644)    -            -            -         0.00% -          -              

Beginning Fund Balance 333,165     43,644      -            -            -         0.00% -          -              

Ending Fund Balance 43,644$    -$            -$          -$          -$       0.00% -$        -$            

Special Assessments

Capital Outlay 

231



Major Roads 

232



Total Total 13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 6/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

01.106.5 Wattles, East & West of Rochester 2,700,000 1,189,000 1,511,000 0 10,000 (10,000) 0

MR-1 02.202.5 Dequindre, Long Lake to Auburn 1,250,000 100,000 1,150,000 0 0 0 125,000

MR-2 02.203.5 John R, Long Lake to Square Lake 625,000 225,000 400,000 70,000 150,000 (80,000) 150,000

MR-3 02.204.5 John R, Square Lake to South Blvd. 2,000,000 1,800,000 200,000 100,000 400,000 (300,000) 150,000

11.103.6 Dequindre, South Blvd. to Auburn 1,620,000 38,500 1,581,500 0 10,000 (10,000) 0

12.103.6 Livernois, Big Beaver to Wattles 1,059,000 105,000 954,000 0 5,000 (5,000) 0

12.104.6 14 Mile, Campbell to Stephenson 1,084,000 125,000 959,000 0 35,000 (35,000) 0

12.106.5 Square Lake, Rochester to John R 500,000 500,000 0 0 50,000 (50,000) 0 Mill & Overlay

12.107.5 Square Lake, John R to Dequindre 500,000 500,000 0 0 50,000 (50,000) 0 Mill & Overlay

13.103.5 Square Lake, Livernois to Rochester 500,000 500,000 0 500,000 425,000 75,000 0 Mill & Overlay

13.104.5 Wattles, Crooks to Livernois 500,000 500,000 0 500,000 0 500,000 0 Mill & Overlay

13.105.5 Wattles, Livernois to Rochester 400,000 400,000 0 400,000 0 400,000 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-24 13.107.5 LDFA Concrete Slab Replacement 106,000 0 53,000 52,700 0 52,700 106,000 $106k LDFA - Big Beaver, Bellingham to John R

99.203.5 Rochester, Torpey to Barclay 12,186,000 2,500,000 9,686,000 0 20,000 (20,000) 0

14.101.5 Rochester, Elmwood to Maple 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

14.102.5 Wattles, Coolidge to Crooks 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-25 14.103.5 Long Lake, Coolidge to Rochester 3,000,000 2,500,000 500,000 0 1,800,000 (1,800,000) 700,000 Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads $2.5M GF

14.104.5 Dequindre, 14 Mile to Big Beaver 900,000 750,000 150,000 0 750,000 (750,000) 0 Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads $750K GF

MR-26 14.109.5 Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre 320,000 250,000 70,000 0 0 0 250,000 Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads $250k GF

MR-27 15.103.5 Big Beaver, Adams to Rochester 3,109,000 0 2,000,000 0 0 0 2,000,000 Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads $1.6M NHPP/$400k RCOC

MR-28 14.108.5 John R, Maple to Long Lake 1,800,000 1,500,000 300,000 0 0 0 1,500,000 Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads $1.5M GF

13.101.6 Tri-Party 892,000 630,000 262,000 892,000 950,000 (58,000) 0 $392k 13-TP

MR-46 14.105.6 Tri-Party 300,000 100,000 200,000 0 0 0 100,000 $300k 14-TP

13.106.6 NHPP 2,500,000 250,000 2,250,000 250,000 0 250,000 0 National Highway Prevention Program - Local Match

MR-47 14.106.6 NHPP 2,500,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 250,000 National Highway Prevention Program - Local Match

MR-48 7989.200 Crack Sealing Program 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 By DPW 

MAJOR ROADS 2014/15 BUDGET (401.447.479.7989)

Major Roads 

233



Total Total 13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 6/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

MAJOR ROADS 2014/15 BUDGET (401.447.479.7989)

Major Roads 

MR-49 7989.300 Industrial Road Maintenance 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 700,000 950,000 (250,000) 1,000,000 Various Locations

MR-50 7989.500 Slab Replacement - Major Roads 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 By DPW

42,501,000 16,862,500 22,226,500 3,614,700 5,705,000 (2,090,300) 6,481,000  

3,550,000 2,450,000

0 1,600,000

262,000

400,000

106,000

Revenue (Tri-Party):

TOTALS:

Revenue (Federal Funds):

Revenue (LDFA):

Revenue (General Fund):

Revenue (RCOC):

234



Major Roads 

Major Roads carry the highest volumes and distribute traffic between the various residential, industrial and business 
districts of the city.  They provide for traffic movements into, out of and through the city at moderately high speeds.  The 
City of Troy is responsible for the maintenance of approximately 25 miles of city major mile roads.  An additional 32 miles 
of roads are classified under ACT 51 as Major Roads but are nominally termed “Industrial Roads” by the city and are 
funded within the Major Road fund. 
 
Approximately 43 miles of major roads within the city are under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland 
County (RCOC).   
  
Projects in the Major Road fund generally fall into two categories: 
  
Reconstruction and Widening 
Maintenance 
  
Reconstruction and widening projects are budgeted when federal funds become available.   Federal funds provide up to 
80% of the cost of these improvements and are typically used for capacity or safety projects.  These types of projects 
provide for improved traffic flow, safety for motorists and pedestrians as well as improvements in access to property.  
Most of these projects have three (3) distinct phases and are budgeted accordingly to provide for design, right-of-way 
and ultimately construction.  In most cases, these projects take multiple years to complete. 
  
Maintenance projects are generally funded entirely with city funds and as such are smaller scale projects.  Funds 
budgeted annually for maintenance activities include concrete slab replacement, asphalt pavement overlays and crack 
sealing.  All of these fixes provide for an improved road surface as well as an increased life cycle for the pavement.  
Maintenance activities are completed in the year that they are budgeted. 
  
MR-1.  Dequindre Road, Long Lake Road to Auburn Road (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen Dequindre Road, from Long Lake Road to Auburn Road from an existing 2-lane 
road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.   
  
Federal funds for the design phase have been obligated and are available.  Federal funds for the right-of-way phase and 
construction phases are anticipated in future years.  The local match for the design phase and subsequent right-of-way 
and construction phases will be split between the Cities of Troy, Rochester Hills, Sterling Heights and Shelby Township 
and the Road Commissions of Oakland County and Macomb County.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be 
impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
 
MR-2.  John R Road, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen John R Road, from Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road from an existing 2-lane 
road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.   
  
Federal funds for the design and right-of-way phases have been obligated and are available.   Construction is not funded 
at this time, but federal funds are anticipated in future years.  

235



Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission 
for Oakland County. 
   
MR-3.  John R Road, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen John R Road, from Square Lake Road to South Boulevard from an existing 2-
lane road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.  
  
Federal funds for the design and right-of-way phases have been obligated and are available.   Construction is not 
funded at this time, but federal funds are anticipated in future years.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be 
impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-24.  LDFA – Big Beaver, Bellingham to John R (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
This work involves removal and replacement of failed concrete pavement to repair and extend the life of the 
pavement.  Funds are budgeted by the Local Development Finance  
Authority (LDFA) to repair concrete pavement along Big Beaver and Bellingham.  This project will be paid for entirely 
by LDFA funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $8,600 per year per mile of concrete 
slabs replaced.  
  
MR-25. Long Lake, Coolidge to Rochester (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
Long Lake has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  Long Lake is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve 
the ride quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary 
repairs on Long Lake, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer 
from the General Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of 
the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-26. Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
Big Beaver has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve 
the ride quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary 
repairs on Big Beaver, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer 
from the General Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of 
the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-27. Big Beaver, Adams to Rochester (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
Big Beaver has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve 
the ride quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary 
repairs on Big Beaver, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer 
from the General Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of 
the Road Commission for Oakland County. 

Major Roads 

236



Major Roads 

MR-28. John R, Maple to Long Lake (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
John R has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  John R is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve the ride 
quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary repairs on 
John R, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer from the General 
Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-46.  Tri-Party Concrete Pavement Replacement 
  
Tri-Party program funds are made available on an annual basis for projects on County roads within the city.  Specific 
project locations are not delineated on the map as locations are determined annually dependent on road conditions.  
The City is responsible for 1/3 of the program amount while the Board of Road Commissioners for the County of Oakland 
and the Oakland County Board of Commissioners is responsible for the remaining 2/3.   
  
MR-47.  National Highway Prevention Program (NHPP) 
  
The National Highway Prevention Program (NHPP) was created under MAP-21 (highway bill).  This program provides 
approximately $2,500,000 annually for work on principal arterials in Oakland County.  Project locations will be developed 
jointly between the RCOC and the eight (8) communities that are eligible: Cities of Auburn Hills, Birmingham, Clawson, 
Farmington Hills, Madison Heights, Pontiac, Royal Oak and Troy.  In Troy, the majority of principal arterials are County 
Roads.  Rochester Road and the west end of Maple Road are City Majors that meet the criteria for principal arterials and 
would be eligible for funding under this program.  RCOC has jurisdiction of approximately 78% of the total centerline 
mileage throughout the County.  Troy’s principal arterials account for just 2.4% of the total centerline mileage eligible 
under this program.     
  
Projects are anticipated to be approved primarily for various County Roads throughout Oakland County as approved by 
the member communities and RCOC.  The RCOC will provide a 10% local match, function as the lead agency and be 
responsible for the design and administration of the resulting projects.  Local agencies will be required to provide a 10% 
local match and will be involved in determining the project type, location, size, etc.  Funds are proposed annually for 
Troy’s local match. If projects are not approved in Troy for any given year, then the proposed local match is 
recommended to be moved to other Capital project needs, such as local road concrete slab replacements. 
 
  
  

237



  
  
MR-48.  Major Roads (Crack Sealing Program) 
  
This work involves cleaning and sealing existing pavement joints to extend the life of the pavement.  An annual 
allocation is budgeted to complete this work and is targeted at major roads.  Locations are determined by the 
Department of Public Works and are not specifically delineated on the map.  These projects will be paid for entirely by 
City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease slightly. 
  
 MR-49.  Industrial Road Maintenance 
  
Project locations are determined annually based on the City’s Pavement Management System and field inspections, and 
are not specifically noted in the capital improvement plan.  This work involves removal and replacement of failed 
concrete pavement to repair and extend the life of the pavement or mill and overlay projects.    An annual allocation is 
budgeted to complete this work and is targeted at industrial roads in the city.  These projects will be paid for entirely by 
City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $8,600 per year per mile. 
 
MR-50.  Concrete Slab Replacement (Major Roads) 
  
Project locations are determined annually based on the City’s Pavement Management System and field inspections, and 
are not specifically noted in the capital improvement plan.  This work involves removal and replacement of failed 
concrete pavement to repair and extend the life of the pavement.  An annual allocation is budgeted to complete this 
work and is targeted at City major roads.  These projects will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and 
maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $8,600 per year per mile of concrete slabs replaced.  

Major Roads 

238



Local Roads 

239



Total Total  13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 6/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

12.101.5 Charnwood Hills 375,000 375,000 0 0 5,000 (5,000) 0 Chip Seal - Phase I & II

7989.500 Concrete Slab Replacement 2,500,000 2,500,000 0 2,500,000 410,000 2,090,000 0 By DPW

LR-1 7989.500 Concrete Slab Replacement 2,200,000 2,200,000 0 0 0 0 4,515,000 By DPW

7989.500

Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 

36 440,000 440,000 0 440,000 440,000 0 0 By Engineering

LR-7 7989.500

Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 

19 (a) 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 1,000,000 By Engineering

12.201.1 Troywood SAD Paving 60,000 60,000 0 60,000 130,000 (70,000) 0 SAD Paving

LR-49 7989.120 Crack Sealing 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 By DPW

  TOTALS: 6,675,000 6,675,000 0 3,100,000 985,000 2,115,000 5,615,000  

20,500

Resident share of 

Paving Project

LOCAL ROADS 2014/15 BUDGET (401.447.499.7989)

Revenue (SAD):

Local Roads 

240



The City of Troy is responsible for the maintenance of approximately 265 miles of local roads.  Approximately 246 
miles of these are subdivision streets of concrete or asphalt, 5 miles are chip seal and 5 miles are gravel roads.  
Approximately 2/3 of subdivision streets are concrete with the remaining 1/3 being asphalt.  The remaining 9 miles are 
nominally termed by the city as “Industrial Roads”, such as Naughton, Wheaton and Piedmont, that are classified as 
local because they do not meet the definition of a Major Road under Act 51. 
  
Public Act 499 of 2002 established a ten member State Transportation Asset Management Council (TAMC).  The law 
also required that the TAMC set up a process for determining the condition of Michigan’s highways and bridges and 
develop a strategy so that those assets are maintained, preserved and improved in an efficient and cost-effective 
manner.  The TAMC adopted the Pavement Surface and Evaluation Rating (PASER) system as its road condition survey 
reporting tool.  The TAMC initially developed the strategy for Michigan’s federal-aid eligible roads and bridges but, was 
extended to all public roads in the State. 
  
In order to prioritize road maintenance activities, the City is now using the PASER system.  PASER is used statewide and 
is a “windshield” road rating system that uses a 1 to 10 rating scale, with a value of 10 representing a new road and a 
value of 1 representing a failed road.  Condition ratings are assigned by visually identifying the type and amount of 
defects along a road segment while driving the segment.  The PASER system translates these observations into a 
condition rating. 
  
The TAMC established the following categories: 
  
PASER ratings of 8-10 require routine maintenance, such as street sweeping, shoulder grading or crack sealing 
PASER ratings of 5-7 require capital preventative maintenance, such as concrete slab replacements or asphalt overlays. 
PASER ratings of 1-4 require structural improvements, such as pulverizing or reconstruction that address the structural 
integrity of the road. 
  
The City simplifies this system by grouping roads with a rating of 6 or higher as being in Good condition, 4 or 5 as Fair 
and 3 or less as Poor.  Currently, 60 miles or 24% of local subdivision streets are rated a 5 or less. 
  
Once PASER rating work is complete, analysis of the network is performed using Roadsoft Pavement Management 
software, which is available free to local agencies by the Center for Technology & Training (CTT) at Michigan 
Technological University.  Roadsoft is used statewide by numerous road agencies including MDOT, most Counties and 
numerous local governments.  Roadsoft uses the PASER condition ratings as a basis for the analysis.  Specific 
maintenance procedures and their associated costs are established by the city based on city practice and experience.  
The software uses this data along with specific user defined information (such as budgetary limitations and 
timeframes) to generate an optimal mix of maintenance procedures and project future network conditions. 
  
The Pavement Management system is augmented by field reviews of the recommended areas as pavement conditions 
in areas can deteriorate faster or slower than anticipated based on numerous factors including weather, traffic, 
pavement thickness and previous maintenance.   
  
Once this information is analyzed, project areas are developed based on geographic locations to complete repairs.  
This provides for economies of scale for these types of repairs within a specific section or area of the city.  Streets 
outside these sections are repaired on an as needed basis.   

Local Roads 

241



The typical annual budget amount for local road maintenance is $3,400,000 over the 6-year CIP, with another $100,000 
annually for crack sealing.  The 2014/15 budget amount incorporates funding, moved from 2013/14, to allow 
acceleration of work on County roads during the 2014 construction season.  Local road maintenance typically involves 
concrete slab replacements or asphalt pavement overlays.  Crack sealing locations vary and are not identified on the 
map as this work is a rolling operation with minimal startup and construction time in any one area.   
 
Paving of a local road is initiated by the residents living on the road.  Residents on gravel roads can initiate a Special 
Assessment District (SAD) where the cost to pave the road is split by the benefitting properties and the city.  Once the 
road has been paved, future maintenance costs are traditionally borne by the City and paid for through the local road 
fund.   
  
LR-1. Local Road Maintenance – Concrete Slab Replacement (Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 18, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25) 
  
These sections are targeted for concrete slab replacements.  Concrete slab replacement removes and replaces spot 
sections of failed concrete pavement.  The Department of Public Works (DPW) identifies specific locations within these 
sections and prepares bid documents for the work to be done by a contractor.  This project will be paid for entirely by 
City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained.  
  
LR-7. Asphalt Pavement Overlay – Section 19 (a) 
  
Binbrooke, Oxford, Avonhurst, Townhill, Cheswick, Lanergan, Bolingbroke, Sunridge, Palmerston, Kent, Eastbourne, 
Woodman, Tothill, Newgate Paddington and Beach are proposed for asphalt pavement overlays.  The work will include 
milling (grinding) of the existing pavement and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will be paid for 
entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads 
maintained. 
  
 LR-50. Crack Sealing (City-wide) 
  
Funds are budgeted annually for crack sealing throughout the city.  Project areas are identified by DPW during field 
reviews and are not specifically identified on the maps.  These areas are compiled to create an annual crack sealing 
contact which is then put out for bid and the work completed by a contractor.  This project will be paid for entirely by 
City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained. 

Local Roads 

242



Sidewalks 

243



Total Total  13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 6/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

7989.700 Residential - Section 5, 6, 7 and 9 650,000 390,000 260,000 650,000 650,000 0 0 DPW

SW-1 7989.700

Residential - Section 17, 18, 19 and 

20 750,000 450,000 300,000 0 0 0 750,000 DPW

7989.700

Major Roads - Sec. 28, 29, 30, 31 

and 32 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 DPW

SW-13 7989.650 New Construction 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 DPW

  TOTALS: 1,550,000 990,000 560,000 800,000 800,000 0 800,000  

260,000 300,000

Paid by Resident for 

Sidewalk Repairs (40%)

SIDEWALKS 2014/15 BUDGET (401.447.513.7989)

Revenue (Sidewalk Replacement Program):

Sidewalks 

244



The Department of Public Works is responsible for the sidewalk replacement program.  The city is divided into 
6 areas for major road sidewalk replacements and 12 areas for residential sidewalk replacements.  These areas 
are reviewed annually and a sidewalk replacement list is prepared.  Not all sidewalks in any one area are 
replaced, only those sections of sidewalk that do not meet current requirements are included as funding 
allows.  The replacement program also upgrades sidewalks and ramps to comply with current Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements. 
  
The sidewalk replacement program provides the property owner with the option of replacing the sidewalk 
themselves or having the replacement added to the City’s list.  The City of Troy hires a contractor to remove 
and replace these sections of sidewalks and the residents are billed for the work. 
  
The annual budget amount for the sidewalk fund varies based on funds available from the overall Capital Fund.  
Funds are typically split between three categories: residential sidewalk replacement; major road sidewalk 
replacement; and new construction.  These budgeted amounts will vary based on the overall Capital Fund for 
the City.  Sidewalk funds are moved among these 3 areas in order to meet the annual needs of the sidewalk 
program. 
  
SW-1.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 17, 18, 19 and 20) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and 
maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-13.  New Construction (City-wide) 
  
Funds are budgeted annually for construction of new sidewalks, for acquisition of easements and/or right-of-
way for new sidewalks and/or filling in gaps along major roads.  Operation and maintenance costs are 
expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
 

Sidewalks 

245



Drain Fund 

246



Total Total  13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 06/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

00.306.5

Lovington, Minnesota to 

Dequindre 1,100,000 530,000 570,000 100,000 50,000 50,000 0 $570k CDBG

01.302.4 Streambank Stabilization 750,000 375,000 0 0 20,000 (20,000) 0 Sylvan Glen - $375k  Grant

DF-3 07.303.5 Aquatic Center Pond 2,300,000 1,315,000 985,000 2,000,000 1,850,000 150,000 250,000

Cleanout and Maintenance - 

$985K NOAA Grant

DF-4 14.301.5 Sylvan Glen Access Drive Culvert 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 Removal of Culvert 

DF-5 14.302.6 SAW Grant - Storm Sewer 1,222,000 222,000 1,000,000 0 10,000 (10,000) 407,000 SAW Grant - $1M

DF-50 7989.1000 Drains & Retention 200,000 200,000 0 200,000 50,000 150,000 200,000

Pump&Fence Repl.; Drains 

Misc.; DPW Misc.

5,672,000 2,742,000 2,655,000 2,300,000 1,980,000 320,000 957,000  

985,000 0  

0 333,000

DRAINS 2014/15 BUDGET (401.447.516.7989)

  TOTALS:

Revenue (Federal Funds):

Revenue (State Funds):

Drain Fund 

247



The City of Troy is divided into two principal drainage areas or watersheds: the Rouge River Watershed and 
the Clinton River Watershed.    
  
Rouge River Watershed 
  
The Rouge River Watershed is located in the northwestern portion of the city and contains 6.1 square miles.  
This area drains to the Main Branch of the Rouge River, which enters Wayne County at Telegraph and 8 Mile 
Roads and ultimately outlets to the Detroit River. 
  
Clinton River Watershed 
  
The Clinton River Watershed encompasses the remaining 27.7 square miles of the city.  This area drains to the 
Red Run Subwatershed of the Clinton River, which ultimately outlets to Lake St. Clair. 
  
The Federal Environmental Protection Agency and the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and 
Environment (DNRE) have placed limitations on municipal storm water activities, known as Phase II 
Stormwater Regulations and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.   
  
These regulations state 6 minimum measures that municipalities must address: 
  
Public education and outreach 
Public participation and involvement 
Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
Construction site runoff control 
Post-construction runoff control 
Pollution prevention and good housekeeping 
  
These measures are addressed through the Clinton River Red Run Subwatershed Management Plan; the 
Rouge River Main 1-2 Subwatershed Management Plan; the City’s Stormwater Pollution Prevention Initiative; 
and the City’s development standards and public works standard practices.  Each fall the City must submit an 
annual report to the State summarizing all activities implemented that address these measures.    
  
Projects in the Drain Fund are proposed annually that comply with these measures as well as projects that 
address drainage concerns; soil erosion; flooding; and regional drainage in accordance with the 1999 Master 
Storm Drainage Plan Update. 
  
DF-3.  Aquatic Center Pond 
  
The project area involves the Lane Drain running along Town Center and the detention basin adjacent to the 
Aquatic Center.  The basin was constructed in the mid-1970’s, as an inline detention basin on the County 
drain. Over time, the basin has filled in with sediment and the stream banks have eroded.  Stormwater 
detention has been greatly reduced due to accumulation of sediment thereby reducing capacity during major 
storm events.  The project provides for removal of the basin’s weir control structure, sediment removal, 
stream bank stabilization and removal and replacement of the existing culverts under Town Center and Civic 
Center.  
  
The project has been selected to receive a federal grant of $985,000 to pay for a portion of the project.  The 
remainder of the project cost will be paid for with City funds. Operation and maintenance costs will be 
reduced by $1,500 per year. 
 

Drain Fund 

248



 
DF-4.  Sylvan Glen Culvert Removal 
  
The existing 14’-10” x 9’-10” corrugated multi-plate pipe-arch culvert that passes the Olson County Drain along the 
Sylvan Glen golf course is in poor condition.  Several areas of the pipe along the water line have corroded through 
exposing the backfill material.  The bolt lines at water level are severely corroded.  There is visible erosion in the 
culvert base and at local buckled and failed areas.   
  
The culvert provided an access road from the Sylvan Glen parking lot to the maintenance facility at the rear of the golf 
course as well as for access to the cellular tower on the site.  The current condition of the culvert requires that loads be 
limited on this access drive.  A new access drive to the site was installed off of Sylvan Glen Lake Park so that heavier 
loads would still be able to access the golf course. 
  
DF-5.  SAW Grant – Storm Sewer 
  
Stormwater, Asset Management and Wastewater (SAW) grants were established for asset management plan 
development, stormwater plan development, sewage collection and treatment plan development and state funded 
loans to construct projects identified in the asset management plans. 
  
Grants have a $2M cap per community.  The first $1M has a 10% local match; the 2nd $1M has a 25% local match.  
Funds are awarded to grant and loan recipients on a first come, first served basis.  Grant recipient must proceed with a 
project for which grant funding is provided within 3 years of grant award or face repayment of the grant plus interest.  
The city was successful in receiving a SAW grant of $1,999,925 to be split between the Drains Fund and Sewer Fund. 
  
SAW grant projects in the drains fund are proposed to collect city-wide storm sewer inverts and to identify, investigate 
and repair deficient storm sewer locations in Section 19. 
  
DF-50.  Drains and Retention 
  
This is an annual budget amount in the Drains Fund for capital projects required by the Department of Public Works 
and Engineering Department for work associated with Drains and/or Retention/Detention basins that are otherwise 
not specifically assigned a project number and are not specifically noted in the capital improvement plan.  Larger 
projects are assigned project numbers and are budgeted as separate line items within the Drain Fund. 

Drain Fund 

249



6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

250



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

MR-1

Dequindre, Long Lake 

to Auburn 1,250,000 50,000 25,000 25,000 0 0 0 0 RCOC - PE; $440k "02-C" 

Dequindre, Long Lake 

to Auburn 4,900,000 170,000 100,000 70,000 0 0 0 0

RCOC - ROW; $3,200k "14-C" 

(68%/4)

Dequindre, Long Lake 

to Auburn 15,000,000 510,000 0 0 310,000 200,000 0 0 RCOC - CON; $12,000k "16-C" 

MR-2

John R, Long Lake to 

Square Lake 500,000 354,000 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 PE; $146k "02-C"

John R, Long Lake to 

Square Lake 625,000 225,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 ROW; $400k "05-C"

John R, Long Lake to 

Square Lake 10,974,000 2,195,000 0 200,000 650,000 0 0 0 CON; $8,779k "15-C"

MR-3

John R, Square Lake to 

South Blvd. 500,000 354,000 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 PE; $146k "02-C"

John R, Square Lake to 

South Blvd. 2,000,000 1,200,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 ROW; $800k "05-C"

John R, Square Lake to 

South Blvd. 8,490,000 1,700,000 0 200,000 600,000 0 0 0 CON; $6,792k "15-C"

MR-4

Livernois, Long Lake to 

Square Lake 550,000 330,000 0 150,000 0 0 0 PE; $219k "02-C"

Livernois, Long Lake to 

Square Lake 3,000,000 600,000 0 1,750,000 1,000,000 250,000 0 0 ROW; $2,400k "15-C"

Livernois, Long Lake to 

Square Lake 7,946,000 1,590,000 0 0 0 155,000 635,000 CON; $6,356k "17-C"

6 Year CIP - Major Roads
Proposed

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

251



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

6 Year CIP - Major Roads
Proposed

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

MR-5

Rochester, Barclay to 

Trinway 625,000 125,000 0 0 150,000 50,000 0 0 PE; $460k "02-C"

Rochester, Barclay to 

Trinway 4,000,000 800,000 0 0 0 2,250,000 1,250,000 500,000 ROW; $3,200k "07-C"

Rochester, Barclay to 

Trinway 13,000,000 2,600,000 0 0 0 0 0 360,000 CON; $10,400k "19-C"

MR-12

Wattles, Rochester to 

John R. 400,000 400,000 0 0 400,000 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-13

Wattles, John R to 

Dequindre 500,000 500,000 0 0 500,000 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-14

Square Lake, Crooks to 

Livernois 400,000 400,000 0 0 0 0 400,000 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-16

Wattles, Coolidge to 

Crooks 500,000 500,000 0 500,000 0 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-17

Wattles, Crooks to 

Livernois 500,000 500,000 0 500,000 0 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-18

Wattles, Livernois to 

Rochester 400,000 400,000 0 400,000 0 0 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-19

Square Lake, Coolidge 

to Crooks 400,000 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-20

Square Lake, Adams to 

Coolidge 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 500,000 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-21

Wattles, Adams to 

Coolidge 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 0 0 500,000 Mill & Overlay

252



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

6 Year CIP - Major Roads
Proposed

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

MR-22

Elmwood, Livernois to 

Rochester 1,800,000 180,000 0 0 0 0 0 180,000 CLAWSON - CON; 4R $1,440k

MR-23

Rochester, Elmwood to 

Maple 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 500,000 0 0 Mill & Overlay

MR-24

LDFA Concrete Slab 

Replacement 371,000 0 106,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000

Big Beaver, Bellingham to John 

R; LDFA - $53k

MR-25

Long Lake, Coolidge to 

Rochester 3,000,000 2,500,000 700,000 0 0 0 0 0

Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads 

$2.5M GF

MR-26

Big Beaver, Rochester 

to Dequindre 320,000 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0

Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads 

$250k GF

MR-27

Big Beaver, Adams to 

Rochester 3,109,000 0 2,000,000 0 0 0 0 0

Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads 

$1.6M NHPP/$400k RCOC

MR-28

John R, Maple to Long 

Lake 1,800,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 0

Conc. Slab Repl. - County Roads 

$1.5M GF

MR-45 I-75 Widening 93,500,000 2,400,000 0 0 0 0 1,200,000 1,200,000

2018/2024/2030 - 12.5% of State 

20%

MR-46 Tri-Party 2,392,000 1,132,000 100,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1/3 City - 1/3 County - 1/3 Board

MR-47 NHPP 15,000,000 1,500,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000

National Highway Prevention 

Program - Local Match

MR-48 Crack Sealing Program 300,000 300,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 By DPW 

253



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

6 Year CIP - Major Roads
Proposed

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

MR-49

Industrial Road 

Maintenance 6,000,000 6,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 Various Locations

MR-50

Slab Replacement - 

Major Roads 600,000 600,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 By DPW

206,152,000 33,765,000 6,481,000 5,548,000 5,363,000 6,058,000 5,238,000 4,493,000  

2,450,000 1,000,000

1,600,000 1,400,000 800,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 400,000

200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

400,000

106,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000 53,000Revenue (LDFA):

Revenue (RCOC):

TOTAL:

Revenue (Federal Funds):

Revenue (General Fund):

Revenue (Tri-Party):

254



Major Roads carry the highest volumes and distribute traffic between the various residential, industrial and business 
districts of the city.  They provide for traffic movements into, out of and through the city at moderately high speeds.  
The City of Troy is responsible for the maintenance of approximately 25 miles of city major mile roads.  An additional 32 
miles of roads are classified under ACT 51 as Major Roads but are nominally termed “Industrial Roads” by the city and 
are funded within the Major Road fund. 
 
Approximately 43 miles of major roads within the city are under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland 
County (RCOC).   
  
Projects in the Major Road fund generally fall into two categories: 
 Reconstruction and Widening 
Maintenance 
  
Reconstruction and widening projects are budgeted when federal funds become available.   Federal funds provide up to 
80% of the cost of these improvements and are typically used for capacity or safety projects.  These types of projects 
provide for improved traffic flow, safety for motorists and pedestrians as well as improvements in access to property.  
Most of these projects have three (3) distinct phases and are budgeted accordingly to provide for design, right-of-way 
and ultimately construction.  In most cases, these projects take multiple years to complete. 
  
Maintenance projects are generally funded entirely with city funds and as such are smaller scale projects.  Funds 
budgeted annually for maintenance activities include concrete slab replacement, asphalt pavement overlays and crack 
sealing.  All of these fixes provide for an improved road surface as well as an increased life cycle for the pavement.  
Maintenance activities are generally completed in the year that they are budgeted. 
  
MR-1.  Dequindre Road, Long Lake Road to Auburn Road (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen Dequindre Road, from Long Lake Road to Auburn Road from an existing 2-lane 
road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.   
  
Federal funds for the design phase have been obligated and are available.  Federal funds for the right-of-way phase and 
construction phases are anticipated in future years.  The local match for the design phase and subsequent right-of-way 
and construction phases will be split between the Cities of Troy, Rochester Hills, Sterling Heights and Shelby Township 
and the Road Commissions of Oakland County and Macomb County.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be 
impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-2.  John R Road, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen John R Road, from Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road from an existing 2-lane 
road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.   
  
Federal funds for the design and right-of-way phases have been obligated and are available.   Construction is approved 
for funding in 2015.    Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County. 

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

255



MR-3.  John R Road, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen John R Road, from Square Lake Road to South Boulevard from an existing 2-
lane road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.  
  
Federal funds for the design and right-of-way phases have been obligated and are available.   Federal funds for the 
construction phase have been approved in 2015.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is 
under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-4.  Livernois Road, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen Livernois Road, from Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road from an existing 2-
lane road to a new 5-lane concrete pavement.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and 
underground utilities where required.   
  
Federal funds for the design phase have been obligated and are available.  Federal funds for the right-of-way and 
construction phases are anticipated in future years.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the 
road is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-5.  Rochester Road, Barclay to Trinway (Reconstruction and Widening) 
  
This project will reconstruct and widen Rochester Road, from Barclay to Trinway from an existing 5-lane road to a new 
6-lane concrete boulevard.  Included in the project are new traffic signals, concrete sidewalks and underground 
utilities where required.   
  
Federal funds for the design and right-of-way phases have been obligated and are available.  Construction is not 
funded at this time, but federal funds are anticipated in future years.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected 
to increase by $8,600 per year due to additional lanes being constructed. 
  
MR-12.  Wattles Road, Rochester Road to John R Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act requirements.   
This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease by $8,600 per 
year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-13.  Wattles Road, John R Road to Dequindre Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act requirements.  
This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease by $8,600 per 
year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

256



6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 

MR-14.  Square Lake Road, Crooks Road to Livernois Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements.   This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease 
by $8,600 per year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-16.  Wattles Road, Coolidge Highway to Crooks Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements.  This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease 
by $8,600 per year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-17.  Wattles Road, Crooks Road to Livernois Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements.  This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease 
by $8,600 per year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-18.  Wattles Road, Livernois Road to Rochester Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements.  This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease 
by $8,600 per year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-19.  Square Lake Road, Coolidge Highway to Crooks Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements.  This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease 
by $8,600 per year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-20.  Square Lake Road, Adams Road to Coolidge Highway (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing 
asphalt pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be 
replaced as needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act 
requirements.  This project will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease 
by $8,600 per year due to rehabilitation of pavement. 

257



MR-21.  Wattles Road, Adams Road to Coolidge Highway (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing asphalt 
pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be replaced as 
needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act requirements.  This project 
will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease by $8,600 per year due to 
rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-22.  Elmwood, Livernois Road to Rochester Road (Reconstruction) 
  
This project will reconstruct Elmwood, from Livernois to Rochester Road.  The project will also include the construction 
of a new 16” water main.  The City of Clawson will be the lead agency on the project and has submitted the project for 
future federal funding consideration.   
  
Federal funds for the construction phase are anticipated to be available in the future.  The local match will be split 50/50 
between the Cities of Clawson and Troy.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease by $4,300 per year due to new 
pavement constructed (Troy’s portion is approximately ½ of the section and Clawson maintains the remainder). 
  
MR-23.  Rochester Road, Elmwood to Maple Road (Mill and Overlay) 
  
This project will provide for a new pavement surface to improve ride quality and extend service life.  The existing asphalt 
pavement will be milled (ground off) and a new asphalt pavement surface will be placed, curbs will be replaced as 
needed and sidewalk ramps will be improved to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act requirements.  This project 
will be paid for entirely with City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will decrease by $8,600 per year due to 
rehabilitation of pavement. 
  
MR-24.  LDFA – Big Beaver, Bellingham to John R (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
This work involves removal and replacement of failed concrete pavement to repair and extend the life of the pavement.  
Funds are budgeted by the Local Development Finance  
Authority (LDFA) to repair concrete pavement along Big Beaver and Bellingham.  This project will be paid for entirely by 
LDFA funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $8,600 per year per mile of concrete slabs 
replaced.  
  
MR-25. Long Lake, Coolidge to Rochester (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
Long Lake has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  Long Lake is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve the 
ride quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary repairs 
on Long Lake, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer from the 
General Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-26. Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
Big Beaver has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

258



needed repairs to improve the ride quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient 
to complete all necessary repairs on Big Beaver, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will 
come from a transfer from the General Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is 
under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-27. Big Beaver, Adams to Rochester (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
Big Beaver has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve the 
ride quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary repairs 
on Big Beaver, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer from the 
General Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-28. John R, Maple to Long Lake (Concrete Slab Replacement) 
  
John R has numerous pothole patches and broken concrete pavement.  John R is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) but the city is proposing to fund and make needed repairs to improve the ride 
quality and extend the life of the pavement.  The funds proposed are not sufficient to complete all necessary repairs on 
John R, but will be used to address only the worst locations. The city funds will come from a transfer from the General 
Fund.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted as the road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County. 
  
MR-45. I-75, 14 Mile to South Boulevard 
  
The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) is moving forward with a project to reconstruct and widen I-75 
from M-102 to south of M-59 in Oakland County.  The project will provide for four (4) lanes of travel in each direction.  
One (1) lane will provide for a High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) lane.  This will be the first use of an HOV lane in Michigan.  
Through Troy, widening will occur in what is currently the median area between the northbound and southbound lanes.  
This median area will be filled in and a barrier wall constructed.  Existing bridges will be reconstructed and the ramps at 
Square Lake will be reconfigured.   
  
This is a multi-year project.  It is anticipated that the first phase impacting Troy will be in 2018 between Wattles and 
Adams. The next phase in Troy is anticipated in 2024 between 14 Mile and Rochester Road.  The final phase in Troy is 
anticipated in 2030 between Rochester and Wattles Road.  Troy will be required to provide a share of the project based 
on our Act 51 participating share of 12.5%.  The remainder of the local match will be provided by MDOT.  It is 
anticipated that Troy’s share of the project will be approximately $9,000,000 spread over the three phases in Troy.     
  
This strategy is based on funding currently available and it spreads construction impacts over a prolonged period of 
time.  If additional federal revenue becomes available the schedule may be accelerated. 
  
MR-46.  Tri-Party Concrete Pavement Replacement 
  
Tri-Party program funds are made available on an annual basis for projects on County roads within the city.  Specific 
project locations are typically not delineated on the 6-year CIP map as locations are determined annually dependent on 
road conditions.  The City is responsible for 1/3 of the program amount while the Board 

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

259



of Road Commissioners for the County of Oakland and the Oakland County Board of Commissioners is responsible for 
the remaining 2/3.   
  
MR-47.  National Highway Prevention Program (NHPP) 
  
The National Highway Prevention Program (NHPP) was created under MAP-21 (highway bill).  This program provides 
approximately $2,500,000 annually for work on principal arterials in Oakland County.  Project locations will be 
developed jointly between the RCOC and the eight (8) communities that are eligible: Cities of Auburn Hills, Birmingham, 
Clawson, Farmington Hills, Madison Heights, Pontiac, Royal Oak and Troy.  In Troy, the majority of principal arterials are 
County Roads.  Rochester Road and the west end of Maple Road are City Majors that meet the criteria for principal 
arterials and would be eligible for funding under this program.  RCOC has jurisdiction of approximately 78% of the total 
centerline mileage throughout the County.  Troy’s principal arterials account for just 2.4% of the total centerline mileage 
eligible under this program.     
  
Projects are anticipated to be approved primarily for various County Roads throughout Oakland County as approved by 
the member communities and RCOC.  The RCOC will provide a 10% local match, function as the lead agency and be 
responsible for the design and administration of the resulting projects.  Local agencies will be required to provide a 10% 
local match and will be involved in determining the project type, location, size, etc.  Funds are proposed annually for 
Troy’s local match. If projects are not approved in Troy for any given year, then the proposed local match is 
recommended to be moved to other Capital project needs, such as Industrial Roads. 
  
MR-48.  Major Roads (Crack Sealing Program) 
  
This work involves cleaning and sealing existing pavement joints to extend the life of the pavement.  An annual 
allocation is budgeted to complete this work and is targeted at major roads.  Locations are determined by the 
Department of Public Works and are not specifically delineated on the map. 
  
This program is proposed to be funded at $50,000 per year and is on-going. These projects will be paid for entirely by 
City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease slightly. 
  
MR-49.  Industrial Road Maintenance 
  
Project locations are determined annually based on the City’s Pavement Management System and field inspections, and 
are not typically delineated on the 6-year CIP map.  This work involves removal and replacement of failed concrete 
pavement to repair and extend the life of the pavement or mill and overlay projects.    An annual allocation is budgeted 
to complete this work and is targeted at industrial roads in the city.  These projects will be paid for entirely by City 
funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $8,600 per year per mile. 
  
MR-50.  Concrete Slab Replacement (Major Roads) 
  
Project locations are determined annually based on the City’s Pavement Management System and field inspections, and 
are not typically delineated on the 6-year CIP map.  This work involves removal and replacement of failed concrete 
pavement to repair and extend the life of the pavement.  An annual allocation is budgeted to complete this work and is 
targeted at City major roads.  These projects will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are 
expected to decrease by $8,600 per year per mile of concrete slabs replaced.  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Major Roads Fund 

260



6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Local Roads 

261



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

LR-1 Concrete Slab Replacement 4,515,000 4,515,000 4,515,000 0 0 0 0 0 By DPW

LR-2 Concrete Slab Replacement 2,700,000 2,700,000 0 2,700,000 0 0 0 0 By DPW

LR-3 Concrete Slab Replacement 3,050,000 3,050,000 0 0 3,050,000 0 0 0 By DPW

LR-4 Concrete Slab Replacement 2,975,000 2,975,000 0 0 0 2,975,000 0 0 By DPW

LR-5 Concrete Slab Replacement 2,400,000 2,400,000 0 0 0 0 2,400,000 0 By DPW

LR-6 Concrete Slab Replacement 2,200,000 2,200,000 0 0 0 0 0 2,200,000 By DPW

LR-7 Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 19 (a) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 By Engineering

LR-8 Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 19 (b) 700,000 700,000 0 700,000 0 0 0 0 By Engineering

LR-9 Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 6 350,000 350,000 0 0 350,000 0 0 0 By Engineering

LR-10 Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 20 425,000 425,000 0 0 0 425,000 0 0 By Engineering

LR-11 Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 27 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 1,000,000 0 By Engineering

LR-12 Asphalt Pavement Overlay - Section 3 1,200,000 1,200,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,200,000 By Engineering

LR-50 Crack Sealing 600,000 600,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 By DPW

TOTALS: 23,115,000 23,115,000 5,615,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000

6 Year CIP - Local Roads
Proposed

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Local Roads 

262



The City of Troy is responsible for the maintenance of approximately 265 miles of local roads.  Approximately 246 miles of 
these are subdivision streets of concrete or asphalt, 5 miles are chip seal and 5 miles are gravel roads.  Approximately 2/3 
of subdivision streets are concrete with the remaining 1/3 being asphalt.  The remaining 9 miles are nominally termed by 
the city as “Industrial Roads”, such as Naughton, Wheaton and Piedmont, that are classified as local because they do not 
meet the definition of a Major Road under Act 51. 
  
Public Act 499 of 2002 established a ten member State Transportation Asset Management Council (TAMC).  The law also 
required that the TAMC set up a process for determining the condition of Michigan’s highways and bridges and develop a 
strategy so that those assets are maintained, preserved and improved in an efficient and cost-effective manner.  The 
TAMC adopted the Pavement Surface and Evaluation Rating (PASER) system as its road condition survey reporting tool.  
The TAMC initially developed the strategy for Michigan’s federal-aid eligible roads and bridges but, was extended to all 
public roads in the State. 
  
In order to prioritize road maintenance activities, the City is now using the PASER system.  PASER is used statewide and is 
a “windshield” road rating system that uses a 1 to 10 rating scale, with a value of 10 representing a new road and a value 
of 1 representing a failed road.  Condition ratings are assigned by visually identifying the type and amount of defects along 
a road segment while driving the segment.  The PASER system translates these observations into a condition rating. 
  
The TAMC established the following categories: 
  
PASER ratings of 8-10 require routine maintenance, such as street sweeping, shoulder grading or crack sealing 
PASER ratings of 5-7 require capital preventative maintenance, such as concrete slab replacements or asphalt overlays. 
PASER ratings of 1-4 require structural improvements, such as milling, pulverizing or reconstruction that address the 
structural integrity of the road. 
  
The City simplifies this system by grouping roads with a rating of 6 or higher as being in Good condition, 4 or 5 as Fair and 
3 or less as Poor.  Currently, 60 miles or 24% of local subdivision streets are rated a 5 or less. 
  
Once PASER rating work is complete, analysis of the network is performed using Roadsoft Pavement Management 
software, which is available free to local agencies by the Center for Technology & Training (CTT) at Michigan Technological 
University.  Roadsoft is used statewide by numerous road agencies including MDOT, most Counties and numerous local 
governments.  Roadsoft uses the PASER condition ratings as a basis for the analysis.  Specific maintenance procedures and 
their associated costs are established by the city based on city practice and experience.  The software uses this data along 
with specific user defined information (such as budgetary limitations and timeframes) to generate an optimal mix of 
maintenance procedures and project future network conditions. 
  
The Pavement Management system is augmented by field reviews of the recommended areas as pavement conditions in 
areas can deteriorate faster or slower than anticipated based on numerous factors including weather, traffic, pavement 
thickness and previous maintenance.   
  
Once this information is analyzed, project areas are developed based on geographic locations to complete repairs.  This 
provides for economies of scale for these types of repairs within a specific section or area of the city.  Streets outside 
these sections are repaired on an as needed basis.   
  
The typical annual budget amount for local road maintenance is $3,400,000 over the 6-year CIP, with another  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Local Roads 

263



$100,000 annually for crack sealing.  The 2014/15 budget amount incorporates funding, moved from 2013/14, to allow 
acceleration of work on County roads during the 2014 construction season.  Local road maintenance typically involves 
concrete slab replacements or asphalt pavement overlays.  Crack sealing locations vary and are not identified on the 
map as this work is a rolling operation with minimal startup and construction time in any one area.   
 
Paving of a local road is initiated by the residents living on the road.  Residents on gravel roads can initiate a Special 
Assessment District (SAD) where the cost to pave the road is split by the benefitting properties and the city.  Once the 
road has been paved, future maintenance costs are traditionally borne by the City and paid for through the local road 
fund.   
  
LR-1. Local Road Maintenance – Concrete Slab Replacement (Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 18, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25) 
  
These sections are targeted for concrete slab replacements.  Concrete slab replacement removes and replaces spot 
sections of failed concrete pavement.  The Department of Public Works (DPW) identifies specific locations within these 
sections and prepares bid documents for the work to be done by a contractor.  This project will be paid for entirely by 
City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained.  
  
 LR-2 – LR-6. Local Road Maintenance – Concrete Slab Replacement (Sections TBD) 
  
Concrete slab replacement removes and replaces spot sections of failed concrete pavement.  Using PASER ratings in 
conjunction with our Roadsoft Pavement Management software and field verification, the Department of Public Works 
(DPW) identifies specific locations within sections throughout the City and prepares bid documents for concrete slab 
replacement work to be done by a contractor.   
  
Locations are determined annually based on updated PASER ratings so specific locations are not identified for future 
years.  Local road concrete slab replacement is paid for entirely with City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are 
expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained.  
  
LR-7. Asphalt Pavement Overlay (Section 19 (a)) 
  
Residential streets in the northwest quadrant of Section 19 will be targeted for asphalt pavement overlays.  The work 
will include milling (grinding) of the existing pavement and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will be 
paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local 
roads maintained. 
  
LR-8. Asphalt Pavement Overlay (Section 19 (b)) 
  
Residential streets in the southwest quadrant of Section 19 will be targeted for asphalt pavement overlays.  The work 
will include milling (grinding) of the existing pavement and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will be 
paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local 
roads maintained. 
  
LR-9. Asphalt Pavement Overlay (Section 6) 
  
The local roads in the Lake Charnwood area will be targeted for asphalt pavement overlays.  It is anticipated that the 
project may include milling (grinding) of the existing pavement or pulverizing (crushing the existing  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Local Roads 

264



pavement into a base material) and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will be paid for entirely by 
City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained. 
  
LR-10. Asphalt Pavement Overlay (Section 20) 
  
Residential streets in the southeast quadrant of Section 20 will be targeted for asphalt pavement overlays.  The work 
will include milling (grinding) of the existing pavement and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will 
be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of 
local roads maintained. 
  
LR-11. Asphalt Pavement Overlay (Section 27) 
  
Residential streets in Section 27 will be targeted for asphalt pavement overlays.  The work will include milling (grinding) 
of the existing pavement and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will be paid for entirely by City 
funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained. 
  
LR-12. Asphalt Pavement Overlay (Section 3) 
  
Residential streets in Section 3 will be targeted for asphalt pavement overlays.  The work will include milling (grinding) 
of the existing pavement and then placing a 1.5” to 3” asphalt overlay.  This project will be paid for entirely by City 
funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained. 
  
 LR-50. Crack Sealing (City-wide) 
  
Funds are budgeted annually for crack sealing throughout the city.  Project areas are identified by DPW during field 
reviews and are not specifically identified on the maps.  These areas are compiled to create an annual crack sealing 
contact which is then put out for bid and the work completed by a contractor.  This project will be paid for entirely by 
City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $2,000 per mile of local roads maintained.  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Local Roads 

265



6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Sidewalks 

266



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

Sidewalk Replacement 

Program 3,300,000 2,220,000

SW-1

Residential - Section 17, 

18, 19 and 20 750,000 450,000 750,000 0 0 0 0 0 By DPW

SW-2

Residential - Section 1, 

12, 21, 28, 29, 30 and 32 750,000 450,000 0 750,000 0 0 0 0 By DPW

SW-3

Residential - Section 13 

and 24 350,000 210,000 0 0 350,000 0 0 0 By DPW

SW-4

Residential - Section 25 

and 36 350,000 210,000 0 0 0 350,000 0 0 By DPW

SW-5

Residential - Section 2, 3 

and 11 350,000 210,000 0 0 0 0 350,000 0 By DPW

SW-6

Residential - Section 14 

and 15 350,000 210,000 0 0 0 0 0 350,000 By DPW

SW-7

Major Roads - Section 1, 

2, 3, 10, 11 and 12 100,000 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 0 By DPW

SW-8

Major Roads - Section 13, 

14, 15, 22, 23 and 24 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 0 0 By DPW

SW-9

Major Roads - Section 25, 

26, 27, 34, 35 and 36 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 0 By DPW

SW-10

Major Roads - Section 4, 

5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 100,000 By DPW

SW-13 New Construction 300,000 300,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 By DPW

TOTALS: 3,600,000 2,520,000 800,000 800,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

300,000 300,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000

Paid by Resident for Sidewalk 

Repairs (40%)

6 Year CIP - Sidewalks
Proposed

Revenue (Sidewalk Replacement Program):

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Sidewalks 

267



The Department of Public Works is responsible for the sidewalk replacement program.  The city is divided into 6 areas for 
major road sidewalk replacements and 12 areas for residential sidewalk replacements.  These areas are reviewed 
annually and a sidewalk replacement list is prepared.  Not all sidewalks in any one area are replaced, only those sections 
of sidewalk that do not meet current requirements are included as funding allows.  The replacement program also 
upgrades sidewalks and ramps to comply with current Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements. 
  
The sidewalk replacement program provides the property owner with the option of replacing the sidewalk themselves or 
having the replacement added to the City’s list.  The City of Troy hires a contractor to remove and replace these sections 
of sidewalks and the residents are billed for the work. 
  
The annual budget amount for the sidewalk fund varies based on funds available from the overall Capital Fund.  Funds are 
typically split between three categories: residential sidewalk replacement; major road sidewalk replacement; and new 
construction.  These budgeted amounts will vary based on the overall Capital Fund for the City.  Sidewalk funds are 
moved among these 3 areas in order to meet the annual needs of the sidewalk program. 
  
SW-1.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 17, 18, 19 and 20) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and maintenance 
costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-2.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 1, 12, 21, 28, 29, 30 and 32) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and maintenance 
costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-3.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 13 and 24) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and maintenance 
costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-4.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 25 and 36) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and maintenance 
costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-5.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 2, 3 and 11) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and maintenance 
costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-6.  Residential Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 14 and 15) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds, with reimbursement by property owners. Operation and maintenance 
costs are expected to decrease by $275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Sidewalks 

268



SW-7.  Major Road Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 1, 2, 3, 10, 11 and 12) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $275 
per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-8.  Major Road Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 13, 14, 15, 22, 23 and 24) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $275 
per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-9.  Major Road Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 25, 26, 27, 34, 35 and 36) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $275 
per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-10.  Major Road Sidewalk Replacements (Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9) 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by $275 
per mile of sidewalk replaced.  
  
SW-13.  New Construction (City-wide) 
  
Funds are budgeted annually for construction of new sidewalks, for acquisition of easements and/or right-of-way for 
new sidewalks and/or filling in gaps along major roads.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected to decrease by 
$275 per mile of sidewalk replaced.  

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Sidewalks 

269



6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Drain Fund 

270



Total Total

Map Project City 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Number Project Name Cost Cost Comments

DF-2 Streambank Stabilization 750,000 375,000 0 750,000 0 0 0 0 Sylvan Glen - $375k Grant

DF-3 Aquatic Center Pond 2,300,000 1,315,000 250,000 30,000 0 0 0 0

Cleanout and Maintenance - $985k 

NOAA Grant

DF-4

Sylvan Glen Access Drive 

Culvert 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 Removal of culvert 

DF-5 SAW Grant - Storm Sewer 1,222,000 222,000 407,000 407,000 408,000 0 0 0 SAW Grant - $1M

DF-50 Drains & Retention 1,200,000 1,200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Pump & Fence Repl.; Drains Misc.; 

DPW Misc.

5,572,000 3,212,000 957,000 1,387,000 608,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

0 375,000 0 0 0 0

333,000 333,000 0 0 0

6 Year CIP - Drains
Proposed

Revenue (Federal Funds):

Revenue (State Funds):

TOTALS:

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Drain Fund 

271



The City of Troy is divided into two principal drainage areas or watersheds: the Rouge River Watershed and the Clinton 
River Watershed.    
  
Rouge River Watershed 
  
The Rouge River Watershed is located in the northwestern portion of the city and contains 6.1 square miles.  This area 
drains to the main branch of the Rouge River, which enters Wayne County at Telegraph and 8 Mile Road and ultimately 
outlets to the Detroit River. 
  
Clinton River Watershed 
  
The Clinton River Watershed encompasses the remaining 27.7 square miles of the city.  This area drains to the Red Run 
sub-watershed of the Clinton River, which ultimately outlets to Lake St. Clair. 
  
The Federal Environmental Protection Agency and the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and Environment 
(DNRE) have placed limitations on municipal storm water activities, known as Phase II Stormwater Regulations and the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit.   
  
These regulations state 6 minimum measures that municipalities must address: 
  
Public education and outreach 
Public participation and involvement 
Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
Construction site runoff control 
Post-construction runoff control 
Pollution prevention and good housekeeping 
  
These measures are addressed through the Clinton River Red Run Sub-watershed Management Plan, the Rouge River 
Main 1-2 Sub-watershed Management Plan, the City’s Stormwater Pollution Prevention Initiative, the City’s 
Development Standards and the DPW’s standard practices.  Each fall the City must submit an annual report to the State 
summarizing all activities implemented that address these measures.    
  
Projects in the Drain Fund are proposed annually that comply with these measures as well as projects that address 
drainage concerns; soil erosion; flooding; and regional drainage in accordance with the 1999 Master Storm Drainage 
Plan Update. 
  
DF-2.  Stream Bank Stabilization (Sylvan Glen) 
  
This project will provide for stream bank stabilization along the drain running behind Camp Ticonderoga.  Areas of the 
existing drain have eroded and require work to stabilize the banks.  This project will provide for corrective actions and 
the reduction of soil erosion and sedimentation control.   
  
The project has been submitted to compete for a 50/50 grant through the Sustain Our Great Lakes funding.  The grant, if 
received, would pay for 50% of the estimated project cost ($375,000) with the remaining 50% of the estimated cost to 
be provided by the City as a match to the federal funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will be reduced by $1,500 per 
year due to stream bank stabilization. 

6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Drain Fund 

272



6 Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Drain Fund 

DF-3.  Aquatic Center Pond 
  
The project area involves the Lane Drain running along Town Center and the detention basin adjacent to the Aquatic 
Center.  The basin was constructed in the mid-1970’s, as an inline detention basin on the County drain. Over time, the 
basin has filled in with sediment and the stream banks have eroded.  Stormwater detention has been greatly reduced 
due to accumulation of sediment thereby reducing capacity during major storm events.  The project provides for 
removal of the basin’s weir control structure, sediment removal, stream bank stabilization and removal and 
replacement of the existing culverts under Town Center and Civic Center.  
  
The project has been selected to receive a federal grant of $985,000 to pay for a portion of the project.  The remainder 
of the project cost will be paid for with City funds. 
  
Operation and maintenance costs will be reduced by $1,500 per year. 
  
DF-4.  Sylvan Glen Culvert Removal 
  
The existing 14’-10” x 9’-10” corrugated multi-plate pipe-arch culvert that passes the Olson County Drain along the 
Sylvan Glen golf course is in poor condition.  Several areas of the pipe along the water line have corroded through 
exposing the backfill material.  The bolt lines at water level are severely corroded.  There is visible erosion in the culvert 
base and at local buckled and failed areas.   
  
The culvert provided an access road from the Sylvan Glen parking lot to the maintenance facility at the rear of the golf 
course as well as for access to the cellular tower on the site.  The current condition of the culvert requires that loads be 
limited on this access drive.  A new access drive to the site was installed off of Sylvan Glen Lake Park so that heavier 
loads would still be able to access the golf course. 
  
DF-5.  SAW Grant – Storm Sewer 
  
Stormwater, Asset Management and Wastewater (SAW) grants were established for asset management plan 
development, stormwater plan development, sewage collection and treatment plan development and state funded 
loans to construct projects identified in the asset management plans. 
  
Grants have a $2M cap per community.  The first $1M has a 10% local match; the 2nd $1M has a 25% local match.  
Funds are awarded to grant and loan recipients on a first come, first served basis.  Grant recipient must proceed with a 
project for which grant funding is provided within 3 years of grant award or face repayment of the grant plus interest.  
The city was successful in receiving a SAW grant of $1,999,925 to be split between the Drains Fund and Sewer Fund. 
  
SAW grant projects in the drains fund are proposed to collect city-wide storm sewer inverts and to identify, investigate 
and repair deficient storm sewer locations in Section 19. 
  
DF-50.  Drains and Retention 
  
This is an annual budget amount in the Drains Fund for capital projects required by the Department of Public Works and 
Engineering Department for work associated with Drains and/or Retention/Detention basins that are otherwise not 
specifically assigned a project number and are not specifically noted in the capital improvement plan.  Larger projects 
are assigned project numbers and are budgeted as separate line items within the Drain Fund. 
 
 The budget amount is established annually based on anticipated needs and is on-going.  This project will be paid for 
entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are not expected to be impacted. 
 

273



MISSION STATEMENT

 Golf Division

 With Billy Casper Golf operates two municipal

 golf operations



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS  



 Acts as liaison with golf management and improvements to courses are completed

 company Billy Casper Golf  Offers a full practice facility at Sanctuary Lake

 Golf Course

Works on capital improvement projects

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Notes on Performance Indicators

 Green damage at Sylvan Glen will have a significant impact on 2014 spring play.

Estimates include a loss of approximately 6,200 rounds and $140,000 in revenues.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Indicator Actual Actual Projected Budget

Performance

Sylvan Glen Rounds 47,500

Sanctuary Lake Rounds 33,300

47,293 46,350 40,800

33,485 32,125 33,000

It is the mission of the Golf Division to provide a 

quality golf experience for residents and 

businesses.

Camp Ticonderoga

Conducts facility planning and development

Works with Billy Casper Golf to ensure repairs

Serves as liaison with restaurant operation

Golf Course 

Golf Courses 
 

 

    Recreation Director..........................................Elaine S. Bo 
 

274



SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES



2014/15

Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 *0 *0 *0 *0 *0 *0

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS * Billy Casper Golf



 

Aquatic Center

Pro Shop

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14

Operating Budget History - Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

Personnel

Summary

Total Department

2011/12 2012/13
2013/14

$
4

7
,0

7
6

  

$
1
,7

4
7
,9

7
8
  

$
1

,7
2

5
,6

2
7

  

$
1

,6
8

0
,2

1
5

  

$
1

,6
2

0
,6

0
4

  

$
1

,6
3

4
,6

8
5

  

$
1

,6
3

8
,2

7
8

  

$
1

,5
2

3
,6

1
6

  

$
1

,8
2

1
,3

8
7

  

$
1

,6
7

6
,2

4
3

  

$0.00 

$500,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,500,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$
1
,1

8
7
,3

5
4
  

$
1

,0
6

5
,3

2
7

  

$
1

,1
1

0
,4

2
3

  

$
1

,0
8

2
,0

3
4

  

$
1

,1
0

5
,5

5
5

  

$
1

,1
0

3
,9

6
2

  

$
1

,0
9

4
,6

2
5

  

$
1

,0
2

1
,4

2
1

  

$
1

,0
6

1
,7

5
8

  

$
1

,0
5

2
,6

0
3

  

$0.00 

$200,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$800,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,200,000.00 

$1,400,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Golf Course 

275



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 583 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 583 SL Golf Course Revenue

 583.000.00.000 

Charges for Services  $     1,442,754  $     1,295,276  $     1,329,782  $     1,478,300  $     1,500,500 1.50%  $     1,522,900  $     1,522,900 

Interest and rents                      -                  106                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

Total Revenues       1,442,754       1,295,383       1,329,782       1,478,300       1,500,500 1.50%       1,522,900       1,522,900 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 765 Billy Casper Operations

Expenditures for Operations

583.765.00.765

PERSONAL SERVICES           389,293           417,582           394,095           490,918           445,153 -9.32%           505,726           505,726 

SUPPLIES           544,106           426,547           433,292           460,762           467,673 1.50%           474,689           474,689 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES           102,933           122,560           205,491           221,020           212,850 -3.70%           215,214           215,214 

Total Billy Casper Operations       1,036,332          966,688       1,032,878       1,172,700       1,125,676 -4.01%       1,195,629       1,195,629 

Business Unit: 766 City Expenses

Expenditures for Operations

583.766.00.766

PERSONAL SERVICES                      -                  540                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

SUPPLIES                  923               3,382               4,000               2,000               2,000 0.00%               2,000               2,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES               1,094            (15,971)             15,300             14,900             12,500 -16.11%             12,500             12,500 

Total City Expenses              2,017           (12,048)            19,300            16,900            14,500 -14.20%            14,500            14,500 

Total Operating Expenses       1,038,349          954,640       1,052,178       1,189,600       1,140,176 -4.15%       1,210,129       1,210,129 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

Enterprise Funds 
Recreation and Culture 

276



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed % Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

Enterprise Funds 
Recreation and Culture 

Total Income from Operations Before Dep/Cap          404,406          340,743          277,604          288,700          360,324 24.81%          312,771          312,771 

Capital/Depreciation Expense

583.768.00.768

Depreciation           298,695           301,946                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

Capital Expenditures                      -                      -           106,200                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense          298,695          301,946          106,200                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

Income from Operations          105,711            38,797          171,404          288,700          360,324 24.81%          312,771          312,771 

OTHER FINANCING USES

Debt Service

583.766.00.766

Debt Service           484,344           419,657           400,000           670,900           700,975 4.48%           879,888           855,525 

Total Income (Loss) (378,633)       (380,860)       (228,596)       (382,200)       (340,651)       -10.87% (567,117)       (542,754)       

Beginning Net Position (4,578,020)      (4,956,653)      (5,337,513)      (5,337,513)      (5,566,109)      4.28% (5,906,760)      (6,473,877)      

Ending Net Position (4,956,653)$  (5,337,513)$  (5,566,109)$  (5,719,713)$  (5,906,760)$  3.27% (6,473,877)$  (7,016,631)$  

Note: Actual amounts are on the full-accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, capital expenses are capitalized and debt service expenses will not include principal 

amounts paid as these amounts are used to reduce the liability.

277



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 584 Sylvan Glen Golf Course

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 584 SG Golf Course Revenue

584.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $       1,131,652  $       1,015,488  $          958,124  $       1,097,200  $       1,115,003 1.62%  $     1,130,401  $      1,130,401 

Interest and rents              163,980              160,237              163,350             163,400              163,400 0.00%            163,400             163,400 

Total Revenues         1,295,632         1,175,724         1,121,474         1,260,600         1,278,403 1.41%       1,293,801        1,293,801 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 785 Billy Casper Operations

Expenditures for Operations

584.785.00.785

PERSONAL SERVICES              442,988              489,140              516,780             517,699              533,932 3.14%            533,347             533,347 

SUPPLIES              332,469              283,584              328,824             299,423              303,929 1.50%            308,488             308,488 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES              104,102              116,129              164,035             167,578              224,358 33.88%            226,103             226,103 

Total Billy Casper Operations            879,559            888,853         1,009,639            984,700         1,062,219 7.87%       1,067,938        1,067,938 

Business Unit: 786 City Expenses

Expenditures for Operations

584.786.00.786

PERSONAL SERVICES                    192                 2,863                 1,500                        -                        - 0.00%               1,500                1,500 

SUPPLIES                      93                    495                    700                        -                        - 0.00%                      -                       - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES               34,918               23,374               37,500               78,900               37,500 -52.47%             37,600              37,700 

Total City Expenses              35,203              26,732              39,700              78,900              37,500 -52.47%            39,100             39,200 

Total Operating Expenses            914,762            915,585         1,049,339         1,063,600         1,099,719 3.40%       1,107,038        1,107,138 

Total Income from Operations Before Dep/Cap            380,871            260,140              72,135            197,000            178,684 -9.30%          186,763           186,663 

Sylvan Glen Golf Course

Enterprise Funds 
Recreation and Culture 

278



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Sylvan Glen Golf Course

Enterprise Funds 
Recreation and Culture 

Capital/Depreciation Expense

584.788.00.788

Depreciation              146,997              134,069                        -                        -                        - 0.00%                      -                       - 

Capital Expenditures                        -                        -              104,000             224,400                        - -100.00%                      -                       - 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense            146,997            134,069            104,000            224,400                        - -100.00%                      -                       - 

Income from Operations            233,874            126,070             (31,865)            (27,400)            178,684 -752.13%          186,763           186,663 

OTHER FINANCING USES

Debt Service

584.786.00.786

Debt Service                        -                 2,949                 6,500                        -                 6,500 100.00%               6,500                6,500 

Total Income (Loss) 233,874           123,122           (38,365)           (27,400)           172,184           -728.41% 180,263         180,163          

Beginning Net Position 5,309,858         5,543,732         5,666,853         5,666,853         5,628,488         -0.68% 5,800,672       5,980,935        

Ending Net Position 5,543,732$      5,666,853$      5,628,488$      5,639,453$     5,800,672$      2.86% 5,980,935$    6,161,098$     

Note: Actual amounts are on the full-accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, capital expenses are capitalized and debt service expenses

will not include principal amounts paid as these amounts are used to reduce the liability.

279



MISSION STATEMENT

 

 

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS  Aquatics Division

 Administration 



 

  

  

  

 

 

  

  Conducts weekly family nights

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Notes on Performance Indicators

 Increase in special groups/offers a result of additional promotions and special offers.

Non-Resident Daily Visits 15,353 14,000 14,000 14,000

Residents Daily Visits 14,306 14,000 14,000 14,000

Special Group/Offers Attendance 13,495 10,000 10,000 10,000

17,500 17,500 18,000

Swim Lesson Registrations 1,640 1,700 1,508 1,700

Season Pass Attendance 17,689

Budget

Aquatic Center Admissions 60,843 55,500 44,745 56,000

Indicator Actual Actual Projected

The mission of the Aquatics Division is to 

provide quality swim lessons, special events 

and recreational swimming opportunities. 

Works on capital improvement projects

Coordinates marketing

Establishes staff assignments

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15Performance

Prepares and administers the department
budget

Coordinates planning and development

Manages sponsorship and donations

learn to swim, preschool and private swim

lessons

residents, businesses and school groups

Conducts classes including lifeguarding,

lifeguard instructor, water safety instructor,

Conducts birthday and celebration parties

Provides group rentals and private rentals to

Operates the Troy Family Aquatics Center

Processes over 55,000 visitors annually

Aquatics 
 

             Recreation Director..........................................Elaine S. Bo 
 

Aquatics 

280



SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES





2014/15

Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

0 10.9 0 10.4 0 11.4 0 10.6

0 10.9 0 10.4 0 11.4 0 10.6

 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS



 

Total Department

Aquatic Center

Operating Budget History

Significant Notes

Aquatics Center budget reflects cost neutral objective.

Personnel

Summary
2011/12 2012/13

2013/14

$
5

4
1

,8
8

5
  

$
5

6
0

,2
1

1
  

$
6
3
8
,0

6
5
  

$
6

8
4

,3
3

4
  

$
5

8
8

,5
4

9
  

$
6

0
1

,8
5

9
  

$
5

6
7

,8
4

5
  

$
5

6
6

,1
8

2
  

$
5
6
8
,2

3
4
  

$
5

4
2

,1
8

5
  

$0.00 

$100,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$300,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$500,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$700,000.00 

$800,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Aquatics 

281



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 587 Aquatic Center

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 587 Aquatic Revenue

587.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $       541,326  $      441,772  $       522,000  $       542,000  $       545,000 0.55%  $      548,000  $      553,000 

Interest and rents            36,274            39,650             58,400             38,400             48,400 26.04%            48,400            48,400 

Other Revenues                 157                    2                     -                 100                 100 0.00%                100                 100 

Total Revenues         577,757         481,423          580,400          580,500          593,500 2.24%         596,500         601,500 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 787 Aquatic Exp

Expenditures for Operations

587.787.00.787

PERSONAL SERVICES          269,605          240,327           260,605           265,950           234,650 -11.77%          292,300          292,300 

SUPPLIES            32,648            34,795             42,600             30,600             45,100 47.39%            45,100            45,100 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            98,767            96,644           103,195           106,250           108,750 2.35%          111,130          113,100 

Total Operating Expense         401,021         371,766          406,400          402,800          388,500 -3.55%         448,530         450,500 

Income from Operations (Before Cap/Depr)         176,737         109,657          174,000          177,700          205,000 15.36%         147,970         151,000 

Capital/Depreciation Expense

587.789.00.789

Depreciation          167,213          170,420                     -           168,000                     - -100.00%                    -                     - 

Capital Expenditures                     -                    -             57,820             58,000             88,000 51.72%            65,000            85,000 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense         167,213         170,420            57,820          226,000            88,000 -61.06%           65,000           85,000 

Total Income (Loss) 9,523           (60,763)        116,180        (48,300)         117,000        -342.24% 82,970         66,000         

Beginning Net Position 1,267,839      1,277,362     1,216,600      1,216,600      1,332,780      9.55% 1,449,780     1,532,750      

Ending Net Position 1,277,362$  1,216,600$  1,332,780$   1,168,300$   1,449,780$   24.09% 1,532,750$  1,598,750$  

Aquatic Center

Enterprise Funds 
Recreation and Culture 

282



MISSION STATEMENT  Water Transmission and Distribution

 Provides accurate and continuous readings



hydrants, services and meters

 Responds to citizen service request and

inquiries related to water quality questions,

water pressure problems and water main

 

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS 

 

 Water and Sewer Billing and Accounts water distribution system

 Inspects connections to the water supply in

 commercial buildings and enforces City

 Ordinances related to cross-connection

 control

customer service request and information

  Sewer Maintenance

 Maintains , cleans, televises and repairs



 Inspects, assist and supervises

subcontractors in the development and

expansion of the sanitary sewer system

 Provides flow metering for a study to identify

 

of water meters

Maintains water distribution system,

including pressure reducing valves,

sanitary sewers, lift stations and manholes

Responds to service request calls related to

the sanitary sewer system

inflow and infiltration issues

systems

Educates consumers on leak detection,

Water-driven sump pumps, water loss

through leaking toilets and lawn sprinkler

The Water Division is dedicated to serving 

residents of the City of Troy by ensuring that the 

quality of the drinking water is above all standards 

and that water needed to fight fires is never 

compromised.  The Sewer Division is dedicated to 

ensuring the safe and efficient discharge of 

wastewater to the Detroit Water and Sewerage 

Department (DWSD) waste treatment facility.

construction

Inspect, assist and supervises contractors

in the development and expansion of the

Provides billing, account management and

administration

Communicates with field staff regarding

Provides clerical support to the department

Water & Sewer 
 

Public Works Director..........................................Timothy Richnak 
Superintendent of Water and Sewer..................Richard Shepler 

 

Water and Sewer 

283



PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Notes on Performance Indicators

Unregulated Contaminants Monitoring Rule-3(UCMR-3) started in 2013

** No data available for 2010/11 or 2011/12

Miles of Sanitary Sewer 400 400 400 400

Sanitary Sewer Main Blockages 5 4 6 6

Miles of Water Main 500 500 500 500

Water Purchased from Detroit (MCF) 530,452 498,281 460,495 530,000

10 Year Meter Exchanges 2,147 2,244 2,600 3,000

**Water & Sewer Customers 27,637 27,637 27,637

**Sanitary Sewers Cleaned (feet) 600,000 653,597 800,000

Large Meter Exchanges 57 6 200 200

**Miss Dig Teletypes 5,432 6,592 6,000

*Water Sample Testing 230 400 188 176

Hydrants Winterized 5,815 5,815 5,815 5,815

Valves Turned 6,783 6,783 3,000 6,000

Water Services Re-tapped 150 0 contracted 50

34

** New Water Taps** 128 126 150

Repaired Water Main Breaks 16 22 30 30

Disinfection By-Product Rule (DBPR)-stared in 2012

2014/152011/12 2012/13 2013/14Performance

Indicator Actual

*  Federal & State unfunded mandates for water sampling testing

New Water Meter Installations 72 122 182 200

Backflow Preventer Testing Compliance 

Notices 2,272 2,613 6,600

Site Plans Reviewed 5 12 34

Budget

4,000

6,600

Service Request Received 3,666 3,918 4,286

Actual Projected

Water and Sewer 

284



2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Proposed

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates

Water $24.20 $24.92 $26.40 $25.08 $28.10 $30.35 $30.35 $31.00 2.14% $0.65

Sewer $17.88 $18.42 $19.10 $20.82 $22.90 $24.80 $24.80 $24.80 0.00% $0.00

Total

Rate $42.08 $43.34 $45.50 $45.90 $51.00 $55.15 $55.15 $55.80 1.18% $0.65

Rate

Adjustment

$0.00  

$5.00  

$10.00  

$15.00  

$20.00  

$25.00  

$30.00  

$35.00  

Rates 

Water Sewer 

Water and Sewer Rates 

285



 

Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

19.06 0.9 19.06 0.4 19.06 1.3 19.06 1.4

19.06 0.9 19.06 0.4 19.06 1.3 19.06 1.4

Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

16 0 16 0 16 0 16 0

16 0 16 0 16 0 16 0

Sewer Division

Total Department

Personnel

Summary 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

2014/152013/142012/132011/12

Personnel

Summary

2014/15

Water Division

Total Department

Water and Sewer 

286



SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES



$10.49

$10.76

$11.62

$11.87

 $12.82

$14.47

$16.07

$16.94

estimate $17.62 estimate

Operating Budget History - Water Operating Budget History - Sewer

$15.54

$16.83

$17.27

$18.96

$19.42

$20.20

2013/14

2014/15

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2009/10

2011/12

2012/13

$16.26

$18.42

estimate

$14.79

2014/15

2013/14$20.12

$21.00

2007/08

2008/09

$14.61

Evergreen-Farmington Sewerage Rate:

$14.032006/07

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14

Detroit Water & Sewer Department Rate: Southeast Oakland County Sewerage Rate:

Detroit Water reflects a 4.4% increase.  2013/14 rate had an 6.1% increase.  The overall sewage 

rate increase is estimated at 4%

2006/07 2006/07$14.92

$15.39

$15.70

$16.26

2010/11

2007/08 2007/08

$14.75

2009/10

2010/11

2008/09

2009/10

2008/09

$
1

0
,1

6
8

,0
3

9
  

$
9

,8
1

1
,3

7
0

  

$
1

0
,4

3
9

,5
2

3
  

$
1

0
,3

3
7

,6
6

4
  

$
1

0
,2

4
4

,8
8

6
  

$
9

,7
4

4
,0

8
3

  

$
9

,7
7

5
,0

3
9

  

$
1

0
,8

7
7

,5
2

5
  

$
1

2
,3

7
6

,2
9

5
  

$
1

2
,2

2
5

,5
2

1
  

$0 

$2,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$12,000,000 

$14,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$
1

0
,6

8
2

,3
2

6
  

$
1

3
,2

7
6

,6
2

8
  

$
1

3
,8

3
1

,7
4

6
  

$
1

3
,9

2
2

,9
0

5
  

$
1

3
,7

7
6

,8
0

1
  

$
1

2
,6

9
8

,5
9

5
  

$
1

2
,4

9
1

,6
4

2
  

$
1

2
,4

0
9

,6
9

9
  

$
1

3
,9

1
8

,7
5

9
  

$
1

4
,3

9
9

,4
9

8
  

$0 

$2,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$12,000,000 

$14,000,000 

$16,000,000 

Water and Sewer 

287



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 590 Sewer Fund

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 590 Sewer Revenue

590.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $    13,177,411  $      12,978,862  $    12,534,000  $     14,424,000  $    14,394,000 -0.21%  $    14,568,000  $    14,682,000 

Federal Grants - SAW                       -                         -                       -                        -             333,000 100.00%             333,000            334,000 

Interest and rents             109,592                 79,717             115,000             115,000             115,000 0.00%             115,000            115,000 

Other Revenues              73,857               197,532                       -                        -                       - 0.00%                       -                       - 

Total Revenues      13,360,860        13,256,111      12,649,000       14,539,000      14,842,000 2.08%      15,016,000      15,131,000 

EXPENSE

Expenditures for Operations

Business Unit: 527 Sewer Administration

590.527.00.527

Personal Services             240,623               236,911             270,040             283,520             291,790 2.92%             295,650            299,600 

Supplies                       -                         -                       -                        -                       - 0.00%                       -                       - 

Other Service Charges          9,548,768          10,057,296          9,798,200         10,546,200        11,119,211 5.43%        11,632,441        12,138,341 

Total Sewer Administration        9,789,391        10,294,206      10,068,240       10,829,720      11,411,001 5.37%      11,928,091      12,437,941 

Business Unit: 536 Sewer Maintenance

590.527.00.536

Personal Services             424,375               409,527             478,000             800,220             827,110 3.36%             839,400            851,800 

Supplies              31,501                 27,535              24,340               24,340              24,340 0.00%              24,340              26,740 

Other Service Charges             293,681               255,033             253,690             271,690             245,680 -9.57%             249,880            254,180 

Total Sewer Maintenance           749,556              692,095           756,030         1,096,250        1,097,130 0.08%        1,113,620        1,132,720 

Total Operating Expense (Before Cap/Depr)      10,538,947        10,986,302      10,824,270       11,925,970      12,508,131 4.88%      13,041,711      13,570,661 

Total Operating Income (Before Cap/Depr)        2,821,913          2,269,809        1,824,730         2,613,030        2,333,869 -10.68%        1,974,289        1,560,339 

Sewer Fund

Enterprise Funds 

288



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Sewer Fund

Enterprise Funds 

Business Unit: 535 Capital/Depreciation Expense

590.527.00.535

Depreciation          1,241,037            1,239,219                       -                        -                       - 0.00%                       -                       - 

Capital Expenditures                     (5)                       (0)             915,000          1,800,000          2,237,000 24.28%          2,652,000         2,308,000 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense        1,241,032          1,239,219           915,000         1,800,000        2,237,000 24.28%        2,652,000        2,308,000 

Total Operating Income (Loss)        1,580,882          1,030,590           909,730            813,030             96,869 -88.09%          (677,711)          (747,661)

Business Unit: 536 Other Financing Uses

Transfers Out             596,316                         -                       -             527,050                       - -100.00%                       -                       - 

Total Income (Loss) 984,566          1,030,590         909,730          285,980          96,869            -66.13% (677,711)         (747,661)        

Beginning Net Position 64,028,966      65,013,532         66,044,122      66,044,122       66,953,852      1.38% 67,050,721      66,373,010      

Ending Net Position 65,013,532$   66,044,122$     66,953,852$   66,330,102$   67,050,721$   1.09% 66,373,010$   65,625,349$   

289



Sewer Fund 

290



Total Total  13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 6/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

SS-1 03.402.5

Evergreen - Farmington 

SSO Program 13,300,000 480,000 12,820,000 100,000 0 100,000 100,000

Eliminate sewage in Ev-Frm 

District/ OCWRC Projects

SS-2 04.402.5

Sanitary Sewer Overflow - 

Ev.Frm. District 3,500,000 3,500,000 0 500,000 0 500,000 500,000

Beach/Rouge Pump Station - 

MDEQ ACO Contingency

07.401.5 SCADA Upgrade 350,000 350,000 0 0 130,000 (130,000) 0

SS-4 09.401.5

Miscellaneous Sanitary 

Sewer Locations 2,500,000 2,500,000 0 500,000 100,000 400,000 500,000

City Wide Sanitary Sewer 

Extension Program

SS-5 97.407.5

Flow Metering in 

Evergreen-Farmington 200,000 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 200,000

Inflow and Infiltration Removal - 

Evergreen-Farmington

SS-6 99.404.5

Flow Metering in Troy 

District 200,000 200,000 0 200,000 10,000 190,000 200,000

Inflow & Infiltration Removal - 

Troy District

10.402.6

Evergreen - Farmington 

I&I Removal 505,000 258,000 247,000 0 5,000 (5,000) 0 OCWRC Grant - $247k

11.401.5 Fieldstone Sanitary Sewer 125,000 125,000 0 25,000 160,000 (135,000) 0

Sanitary sewer repair under 

DWSD 84" WM

SS-15 13.403.5

Aquatic Center Sanitary 

Sewer 230,000 230,000 0 0 200,000 (200,000) 30,000 Pool discharge

SS-16 14.401.6

SAW Grant - Sanitary 

Sewer 1,250,000 250,000 0 10,000 (10,000) 407,000 SAW Grant - $1M

SS-49 7973.0001

Various Projects & 

Locations 50,000 50,000 0 25,000 50,000 (25,000) 50,000 Various Projects

SS-50 7978.010 General Equipment 250,000 250,000 0 250,000 250,000 0 250,000 DPW

22,460,000 8,393,000 13,067,000 1,800,000 915,000 885,000 2,237,000  

0 333,000  

SEWER FUND 2014/15 BUDGET (590.527.535.7973) 

  TOTALS:

Revenue (State Funds)

Sewer Fund 

291



The City of Troy is divided into 3 sanitary sewer districts: the Twelve Towns Relief Drains; Evergreen-Farmington Sewage 
Disposal District; and the Troy Sewage Disposal District.  Wastewater from all 3 districts is carried through large diameter 
interceptor pipes to the Detroit Wastewater Treatment Plant for treatment before discharge to the Detroit River. 
 
Following is a description of the specific functions of each district: 
  
Twelve Towns Relief District 
  
This district includes the area in the southwest portion of the city that is within the Twelve Towns Drains plus, some area 
south of Maple Road, west of Crooks Road and west of I-75.  The Twelve Towns system is a combined sewer system 
carrying both storm water and sanitary waste water flow.  Sanitary waste water flow drains into the Twelve Towns 
system and storm water flow drains to the Henry-Graham Drain system.  The sanitary flows discharge to the Dequindre 
Interceptor in Dequindre Road. 
  
Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal District  
  
This district is in the northwest portion of the city in the Rouge River Drainage Basin.  This interceptor was constructed by 
the Oakland County Department of Public Works in 1959 and serves the City of Troy and surrounding communities.  The 
County contracted with each community for their share of the interceptor based on population. 
  
Troy Sewage Disposal District 
  
The interceptor sewers in this district were constructed for the City of Troy by the Oakland County Department of Public 
Works.  The sanitary flow from this district discharges to the Dequindre Interceptor at 14 Mile and Dequindre.  The city 
contracted for capacity in the Southeastern Oakland County Sewage Disposal System.  Troy’s capacity was computed on 
the basis of population in the Twelve Towns Drain District and the Troy Sewage Disposal District. 
  
Sewer Fund projects typically are initiated to address one of 3 issues: 
  
To provide for the City of Troy’s share towards major sewer projects that may be mandated by state or federal laws or 
permit requirements. 
 
Sewer system studies that identify projects to address state and federal requirements. 
Elimination of septic systems in Troy. 
  
SS-1.  Evergreen-Farmington Sanitary Sewer Overflow Program 
SS-2.  Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Evergreen-Farmington District 
  
These items are intimately connected and linked to the same mandates, but are budgeted separately to allow for annual 
changes as required in each program. 
  
Sanitary sewers are designed to carry sewage (and only sewage) to the wastewater treatment plant.  In practice, 
however, storm water enters the collection system during rain events causing the system to exceed the design capacity.  
To prevent basement flooding, this excess water is discharged to the nearby waterways.  These sanitary sewer overflows 
violate the Clean Water Act and must be prevented.  
 

Sewer Fund 

292



The Evergreen Farmington sanitary sewer overflow control project was initiated to keep sewage out of our rivers and to 
avoid litigation. 
  
The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office, formerly the Oakland County Drain Commission, and the 
communities within the Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System are required to comply with the federal and 
state sanitary sewer overflow policies.  Unfortunately, compliance is very costly and care must be taken to assure that 
the funding committed to sanitary sewer overflow control is sufficient to fulfill the requirements of the law while 
minimizing the costs to our rate payers. 
  
The City of Troy entered into an Administrative Consent Order for the Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System, as 
negotiated by the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office, with the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality.  This agreement resolved some significant technical and legal issues relative to sewer system 
overflows in the district.  As part of the Administrative Consent Order, all Evergreen-Farmington communities with 
sanitary sewer overflows and/or outlet capacity problems had to submit a short-term corrective action plan for 
resolution of these problems by 2009.  
  
For Troy, since we are below our town outlet capacity, this means our corrective action plan must address one sanitary 
sewer overflow that we have in the district.  The resulting program has been underway with the purpose of reducing 
sewer inflow and infiltration.  These corrective actions must be implemented and their effectiveness determined by flow 
monitoring and engineering analysis.  The ultimate goal is to continue implementing improvements to the sanitary sewer 
system in the Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System to eliminate the sanitary sewer overflows. 
  
The program requirements include potential projects totaling $13,300,000.  The annual budget amount is for Troy’s 
share of project’s that are carried out by the city to meet the requirements of the Administrative Consent Order and/or 
project’s completed within the district that are spread to all member communities.   Penalties for non-compliance range 
from $500 to $2,500 per day depending on the violation.  This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation 
and maintenance costs will not be impacted. 
  
SS-4.  Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Locations 
  
This project will provide for new sanitary sewer throughout the city.  Locations that are currently serviced by septic 
systems have been identified.  A continuation of this program will require that right-of-way and/or easements be 
acquired in order to construct additional sanitary sewer.  Specific locations are not delineated on the map due to the 
small size of most locations. 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds. Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted due to design 
and property acquisition.  Future construction of sanitary sewer would increase operation and maintenance costs by 
$4,000 per year. 
  
SS-5.  Flow Metering in the Evergreen-Farmington District 
  
In accordance with the Administrative Consent Order, the City performs flow metering throughout the Evergreen-
Farmington Sewage Disposal System on an annual basis.  The data acquired is analyzed and recommended projects are 
developed.  Typically, these projects involve manhole rehabilitation and sanitary sewer lining projects.  The intent of 
these projects is to eliminate storm water infiltration into the sanitary sewer system. 
 

Sewer Fund 

293



Funds are budgeted annually for monitoring, reporting and construction.  This project will be paid for entirely 
by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted. 
  
SS-6.  Flow Metering in the Troy District 
  
The City recently completed flow metering throughout the Troy District on, similar to what was done in the 
Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System.  The data acquired was analyzed and additional testing and 
analysis is underway in areas found to have significant inflow and infiltration.  Additional projects will follow 
this analysis. Typically these projects involve manhole rehabilitation and sanitary sewer lining projects.  The 
intent of these projects is to eliminate storm water infiltration into the sanitary sewer system and stay within 
our contract capacity.   
  
Funds are budgeted annually for monitoring, reporting and construction.  This project will be paid for entirely 
by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs will not be impacted. 
  
SS-15. Aquatic Center Sanitary Sewer 
  
A new sanitary sewer and storage facility is proposed to collect and detain the Aquatic Center pool filter 
backwash discharge from its existing outlet to the storm drainage system (currently outlets to the Lane Drain, 
an open channel County drain) and connect it to the sanitary sewer system.  The existing 8” sanitary sewer 
that this will connect to does not have capacity for the full discharge from the pumps so an in-line pipe storage 
system with a restricted outlet is proposed. 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are expected to increase 
by $4,000 per year due to a new sanitary sewer and in-line pipe storage being constructed.   
  
SS-16.  SAW Grant – Storm Sewer 
  
Stormwater, Asset Management and Wastewater (SAW) grants were established for asset management plan 
development, stormwater plan development, sewage collection and treatment plan development and state 
funded loans to construct projects identified in the asset management plans. 
  
Grants have a $2M cap per community.  The first $1M has a 10% local match; the 2nd $1M has a 25% local 
match.  Funds are awarded to grant and loan recipients on a first come, first served basis.  Grant recipient 
must proceed with a project for which grant funding is provided within 3 years of grant award or face 
repayment of the grant plus interest.  The city was successful in receiving a SAW grant of $1,999,925 to be split 
between the Drains Fund and Sewer Fund. 
  
SAW grant projects in the sewer fund are proposed to televise existing sanitary sewer lines and collect sanitary 
sewer inverts city-wide. 
  
SS-49. Various Projects and Locations 
  
This item is used for small projects that are encountered throughout the year that do not fit within a 
traditional sewer fund project.  Examples are maintenance items and expenditures for materials for the sewer 
system. 
  
An annual amount is included in the budget which is on-going and is paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation 
and maintenance costs will not be impacted. 

Sewer Fund 

294



SS-50. General Equipment 
  
This is an annual budget amount in the Sewer Fund for miscellaneous equipment required by the Public Works or 
Engineering Department for work associated with the Sewer Fund that are otherwise not specifically noted in the capital 
improvement plan.   
  
The budget amount is established annually based on anticipated needs and is on-going. 
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are not expected to be impacted. 
 

Sewer Fund 

295



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Chang

e

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 591 Water Fund

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 591 Water Revenue

591.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $     15,919,727  $      15,961,204  $     15,074,000  $     17,165,000  $     17,805,000 3.73%  $      18,090,000  $      18,405,000 

Interest and rents               99,413                56,203             109,000               79,000             108,000 36.71%               108,000               108,000 

Other Revenues               76,746              330,884                        -                        -                        - 0.00%                         -                         - 

Total Revenues       16,095,886        16,348,291       15,183,000       17,244,000       17,913,000 3.88%        18,198,000        18,513,000 

EXPENSE

Expenditures for Operations
Business Unit: 537 Water 

Transmission/Distribute

591.537.00.537

Personal Services             129,094                59,696               50,000             260,430             269,780 3.59%               247,080               247,080 

Supplies               15,148                14,977               28,000               28,000               28,000 0.00%                28,000                28,000 

Other Service Charges               64,421                47,541               65,000               89,140               53,900 -39.53%                54,100                54,300 

Total Water Transmission/Distribution            208,663             122,214            143,000            377,570            351,680 -6.86%             329,180             329,380 

Business Unit: 538 Water Customer Cross 

Connect

591.537.00.538

Personal Services               93,959                96,385             104,670             104,500             109,650 4.93%                97,280                97,280 

Supplies                        -                         -                        -                        -                        - 0.00%                         -                         - 

Other Service Charges                 9,657                  9,580                 9,750                 9,750                 9,500 -2.56%                  9,700                  9,900 

Total Water Customer Cross Connection            103,615             105,965            114,420            114,250            119,150 4.29%             106,980             107,180 

Water Fund

Enterprise Funds 
Public Works 

296



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Chang

e

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Water Fund

Enterprise Funds 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 539 Water Contractors Service

591.537.00.539

Personal Services             129,953              198,039             193,510             195,660             202,980 3.74%               186,850               186,850 

Supplies                 2,231                  1,644                 2,000                 2,000                 2,000 0.00%                  2,000                  2,000 

Other Service Charges               10,949                12,886               13,690               13,690               13,400 -2.12%                13,700                14,000 

Total Water Contractors Service            143,133             212,569            209,200            211,350            218,380 3.33%             202,550             202,850 

Business Unit: 540 Water Main Testing

591.537.00.540

Personal Services               28,803                26,836               55,800               74,370               75,500 1.52%                69,870                69,870 

Supplies                    581                  1,385                 1,000                 1,000                 2,000 100.00%                  2,000                  2,000 

Other Service Charges                 2,219                  2,481                 2,500                 2,490                 2,500 0.40%                  2,600                  2,700 

Total Water Main Testing              31,603               30,702              59,300              77,860              80,000 2.75%               74,470               74,570 

Business Unit: 541 Maintenance of Mains

591.537.00.541

Personal Services             255,109              190,121             333,210             391,200             399,790 2.20%               372,680               372,680 

Supplies               15,882                32,163               35,000               35,000               35,000 0.00%                35,000                35,000 

Other Service Charges               87,138                88,099               90,000             107,430             105,600 -1.70%               107,400               109,200 

Total Maintenance of Mains            358,129             310,382            458,210            533,630            540,390 1.27%             515,080             516,880 

Business Unit: 542 Maintenance of Services

591.537.00.542

Personal Services             126,812              123,065             228,920             255,340             266,660 4.43%               242,830               242,830 

Supplies               15,812                  5,916               20,000               20,000               20,000 0.00%                20,000                20,000 

297



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Chang

e

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Water Fund

Enterprise Funds 
Public Works 

Other Service Charges               46,761                46,856               52,440               52,440               52,500 0.11%                53,600                54,700 

Total Maintenance of Services            189,385             175,837            301,360            327,780            339,160 3.47%             316,430             317,530 

Business Unit: 543 Maintenance of Meters

591.537.00.543

Personal Services             320,782              418,171             432,780             414,100             422,270 1.97%               393,750               393,750 

Supplies               64,759                94,109             200,000             200,000             200,000 0.00%               200,000               200,000 

Other Service Charges               22,388                25,748               25,000               18,030               24,500 35.88%                25,000                25,500 

Total Maintenance of Meters            407,930             538,028            657,780            632,130            646,770 2.32%             618,750             619,250 

Business Unit: 544 Maintenance of Hydrants

591.537.00.544

Personal Services             145,686              122,133             308,030             310,810             325,140 4.61%               294,670               294,670 

Supplies               21,203                  7,038               35,000               35,000               25,000 -28.57%                25,000                25,000 

Other Service Charges               49,959                46,846               80,000               57,770               80,000 38.48%                81,600                83,200 

Total Maintenance of Hydrants            216,848             176,017            423,030            403,580            430,140 6.58%             401,270             402,870 

Business Unit: 545 Water Meter & Tap-Ins

591.537.00.545

Personal Services               54,489                82,701             165,080             166,490             165,120 -0.82%               158,680               158,680 

Supplies               29,948                82,853             150,000             150,000             100,000 -33.33%               125,000               150,000 

Other Service Charges               34,628                55,292               56,000               38,220               52,000 36.05%                52,900                53,800 

Total Water Meter & Tap-Ins            119,065             220,847            371,080            354,710            317,120 -10.60%             336,580             362,480 

298



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Chang

e

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Water Fund

Enterprise Funds 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 548 Water Administration

591.537.00.548

Personal Services             598,314              546,120             661,000             204,910             210,940 2.94%               192,840               192,840 

Supplies               17,601                20,660               22,140               19,640               22,140 12.73%                22,140                22,140 

Other Service Charges          9,274,678           9,671,572         10,211,060         11,179,060         11,698,181 4.64%          12,147,581          12,614,981 

Total Water Administration         9,890,593        10,238,352       10,894,200       11,403,610       11,931,261 4.63%        12,362,561        12,829,961 

Business Unit: 546 Water Accounting

591.546.00.546

Personal Services               26,188                31,503               54,910               67,790               66,500 -1.90%                64,120                64,120 

Supplies                        -                         -                        -                        -                        - 0.00%                         -                         - 

Other Service Charges                 2,359                  2,874                 5,770                 5,770                 5,700 -1.21%                  5,800                  5,900 

Total Water Administration              28,547               34,376              60,680              73,560              72,200 -1.85%               69,920               70,020 

Business Unit: 547 Water Accounting & Collect

591.546.00.547

Personal Services               47,616                41,508               88,790             103,420             106,610 3.08%                85,720                85,720 

Supplies               20,831                20,971               42,000               41,280               42,000 1.74%                42,000                42,000 

Other Service Charges               26,747                28,883               52,600               52,600               53,600 1.90%                53,800                53,900 

Total Water Administration              95,194               91,362            183,390            197,300            202,210 2.49%             181,520             181,620 

Total Operating Expenses (Before Cap/Depr)       11,792,706        12,256,652       13,875,650       14,707,330       15,248,461 3.68%        15,515,291        16,014,591 

Total Operating Income (Before Cap/Depr)         4,303,180          4,091,639         1,307,350         2,536,670         2,664,539 5.04%          2,682,709          2,498,409 

299



 2012 Actual 

Amount 

 2013 Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Chang

e

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Water Fund

Enterprise Funds 
Public Works 

Business Unit: 555 Capital/Depreciation 

Expense

591.537.00.555

Depreciation          2,128,153           2,183,147                        -                        -                        - 0.00%                         -                         - 

Capital Expenditures                       0                        0          4,595,000          4,300,000          5,000,000 16.28%            4,950,000            4,050,000 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense         2,128,153          2,183,147         4,595,000         4,300,000         5,000,000 16.28%          4,950,000          4,050,000 

Total Income (Loss) 2,175,028       1,908,492        (3,287,650)      (1,763,330)      (2,335,461)      32.45% (2,267,291)       (1,551,591)       

Beginning Net Position 96,756,916       98,931,944        100,840,436     100,840,436     97,552,786       -3.26% 95,217,325        92,950,034        

Ending Net Position 98,931,944$   100,840,436$  97,552,786$   99,077,106$   95,217,325$   -3.90% 92,950,034$     91,398,443$     

300



Water Fund 

301



Total Total 13/14 13/14 13/14 Proposed

Map Project Project City Other Amended Expenditure Balance 14/15

Number Number Project Name Cost Cost Sources Budget to 6/30/14 at 6/30/14 Budget Comments

07.501.5 SCADA Upgrades 400,000 400,000 0 0 130,000 (130,000) 0 System Monitoring

09.501.5 SW 1/4 Sec. 35 1,500,000 1,500,000 0 0 10,000 (10,000) 0

Road Repair Due to 

Water Main 

Construction

10.501.5 Tallman & Eckford 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 5,000 (5,000) 0 Tallman & Eckford

10.502.5 SE 1/4 of Section 16 2,700,000 2,700,000 0 0 100,000 (100,000) 0

Hart, Webb, Paragon, 

Carter, Lange, Pierce, 

Virgilia

10.502.5 SE 1/4 of Section 16 400,000 400,000 0 400,000 0 400,000 0

Road Repair Due to 

Water Main 

Construction

11.501.5 Wattles, Crooks to Livernois 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 200,000 (200,000) 0

WF-4 12.501.5 Section 4 North 1/2 2,700,000 2,700,000 0 2,700,000 2,600,000 100,000 100,000

Houghten, Vernmoor, 

Fredmoor, Hurst, 

Lovell, Scone

13.502.5 Westwood, Maple to North End 300,000 300,000 0 250,000 300,000 (50,000) 0

13.504.5 Wattles, Chestnut to Butternut 250,000 250,000 0 250,000 (250,000) 0

13.505.5 Section 7 NW 1/4 900,000 900,000 0 600,000 900,000 (300,000) 0

WF-7 14.501.5 Section 4 South 1/2 2,850,000 2,850,000 0 0 0 0 2,850,000

Troyvalley, Aspinwall, 

Canmoor, Herbmoor, 

Elmoor, Blackwall, 

WF-14 14.502.5 Section 19 NE 1/4 800,000 800,000 0 0 0 0 800,000

Scott, Estates Ct., 

Sunset, Ledge

WF-35 14.503.5 1955 Stephenson Crossing 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 100,000

WATER  FUND 2014/15 BUDGET (591.537.555.7972)

Water Fund 

302



WATER  FUND 2014/15 BUDGET (591.537.555.7972)

Water Fund 

WF-36 14.504.5 Maxwell & Stutz 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 1,000,000

WF-49 7972.0001 Various Projects & Locations 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 50,000 50,000 100,000 Various Projects

WF-50 7978.010 General Equipment 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 DPW

16,050,000 16,050,000 0 4,100,000 4,595,000 (495,000) 5,000,000TOTALS:

303



The City of Troy receives its water from the City of Detroit through large diameter transmission mains, ranging in size 
from 54-inch to 84-inch, that flow into the city through six (6) Detroit Water and Sewerage Department (DWSD) 
metered locations located along the perimeter of the city.  There are two (2) of these meter vaults located along 
Adams, two (2) along South Boulevard and two (2) along Dequindre.  The water flows from these entrance points 
through approximately 536 miles of city water mains consisting of 6-inch to 36-inch mains. Pressures are increased or 
reduced, as needed, within the five (5) pressure districts within the city to maintain proper fire flows and pressures in 
response to water demands.     
  
The city water system is managed by the use of a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system.  SCADA 
allows the collection of real-time operations data and the ability to monitor locations to optimize the overall water 
system.  The SCADA system is comprised of twenty-two remote data collection sites, the central computer location at 
the DPW yard and six DWSD meter vaults.      
  
Proposed projects in the Water Fund are selected primarily based on the following factors: 
  
Age of the water main 
History of water main breaks 
Size of the water main 
Flow requirements based on the Water System Master Plan 
Redundancy or the looping of the water system 
Coordination with other capital improvement projects 
  
The proposed water system projects are flexible, allowing for the addition of new improvements to address specific 
needs without deferring other projects along the way.  Studies and analysis of the existing system is an on-going 
endeavor that, coupled with new technologies, provides for improved system capabilities and reliability.   
  
WF-4.  Section 4 North ½ (Water Main Replacement) 
  
This project will replace the existing 6” water mains on Houghten and Vernmoor with new 8” water mains.  The 
existing 8” water mains on Fredmoor, Hurst, Lovell and Scone will be replaced with new 8” to 12” water mains.  Also 
included in the project will be the construction of storm sewer for drainage where required.  The water main 
replacement is due to the mains substandard size, age and/or history of breaks.    
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs for water main are estimated at 
$900 per mile.  Replacement of older water mains reduces the number of water main breaks that occur, reducing 
costs for repairs. 
  
WF-7.  Section 4 South ½ (Water Main Replacement) 
  
This project will replace the existing 6” water mains on Canmoor, Elmoor and Niles with new 8” water mains.  The 
existing 8” water mains on Herbmoor, Troyvalley, Aspinwall and Blackwell will be replaced with new 8” to 12” water 
mains.  Also included in the project will be the construction of storm sewer for drainage where required.  The water 
main replacement is due to the mains substandard size, age and/or history of breaks.    
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs for water main are estimated at 
$900 per mile.  Replacement of older water mains reduces the number of water main breaks that occur, reducing 
costs for repairs. 
 

Water Fund 

304



WF-14.  Section 19 Northeast ¼ and Southwest ¼ (Water Main Replacement) 
  
This project will replace the existing 6” water mains on Myddleton, Wendover, Scott, Estates Court, Sunset and Ledge 
with new 8” water mains.  The water main replacement is due to the mains current size, age and/or history of breaks.   
After the water main replacement project has been completed the existing concrete roads in the project area will 
receive concrete slab replacements due to damage caused by the water main construction. 
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs for water main are estimated at 
$900 per mile and $2,000 per year for the road rehabilitation.  Replacement of older water mains reduces the number 
of water main breaks that occur, reducing costs for repairs. 
  
WF-35. 1955 Stephenson Crossing (Water Main Replacement) 
  
This project will replace the existing 8” water main crossing Stephenson Highway near 1955 Stephenson.  A new 12” 
water main is proposed that will provide a connection between the existing 12” water main on the east side and the 
existing 16” water main on the west side of Stephenson.  The water main is proposed for replacement due to several 
breaks that have occurred.   
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs for water main are estimated at 
$900 per mile and $2,000 per year for the road rehabilitation.  Replacement of older water mains reduces the number 
of water main breaks that occur, reducing costs for repairs. 
  
WF-36.  Maxwell & Stutz (Water Main Replacement) 
  
This project will replace the existing 8” water mains on Maxwell and Stutz with new 12” water mains.  The water main 
replacement is due to the mains current size, age and/or history of breaks.   Contributing to the condition of the water 
main is the existing poor soil conditions in this area which has ash and landfill material throughout a significant portion 
of the project area.   
  
This project will be paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and maintenance costs for water main are estimated at 
$900 per mile and $2,000 per year for the road rehabilitation.  Replacement of older water mains reduces the number 
of water main breaks that occur, reducing costs for repairs. 
  
WF-49.  Various Projects and Locations 
  
This item is used by the Water Department for small projects that are encountered throughout the year that do not fit 
within a traditional water fund project.  Examples are maintenance items and expenditures for materials for the water 
system. 
  
An annual amount is included in the budget which is on-going and is paid for entirely by City funds.  Operation and 
maintenance costs will not be impacted.  
 
WF-50.  General Equipment 
  
This is an annual budget amount in the Water Fund for miscellaneous equipment required by the Public Works or 
Engineering Department for work associated with the Water Fund that are otherwise not specifically noted in the 
capital improvement plan.   
  
The budget amount is established annually based on anticipated needs, is on-going and is paid for entirely by City 
funds.  Operation and maintenance costs are not expected to be impacted. 
 

Water Fund 

305



MISSION STATEMENT

 Plans and conducts preventive maintenance

programs

 Acquires material, equipment and supplies

 Coordinates with outside vendors

 Maintains parts inventory

 Processes and reviews utility invoices

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS  Formulates and develops service procedures

Develops safe work practices

 Administrative Services  Receives and coordinates deliveries

 Assists the City Clerk's Office at voting

 precincts before, during and after elections

  Provides energy conservation with building

 upgrades

 Provides 24-hour maintenance and custodial  Formulates and develops renovation projects

 to utilize space needs

  Analyzes equipment for efficiency and

longevity

The mission of the Building Operations 

Department is to maintain 52 City Facilities in 

a safe, clean and efficient manner for the 

benefit of the residents, employees and 

visitors.

Analyzes building needs

Prepares and administers the department

budget

Coordinates staff activities

services to all City-owned buildings

Building Operations 
 

Director of Building Operations..................................Steve Pallotta 
 

Building Operations 

306



PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1.43 1.67 1.83

Capital Projects Completed 2 4 2 1

Cost of Building Operations Per Square Foot 1.37

Janitorial Cost Per Square Foot 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90

Exterior Preventative Maintenance Cycles 1 1 1 1

Renovation Projects 2 3 3 2

Interior Preventative Maintenance Cycles 2 2 2 2

City Facilities - Square Feet 569,578 569,578 574,763 573,123

Number of Buildings Serviced 55 55 54 52

Budget

Written and Telephone Requests 18,885 18,500 18,500 18,500

Indicator Actual Actual Projected

Performance 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Building Operations 

307



SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES



Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

7 1 7 1 7 1.5 7 1.9

7 1 7 1 7 1.5 7 1.9



Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14

Personal Services

Personal services increase due to  reduction in furlough hours.

Operating Budget History

Personnel

Summary 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Building Operations

Total Department

$
1

,6
8

5
,8

2
7

 

$
1

,6
9

0
,1

6
7

 

$
1

,7
1

8
,6

9
7

 

$
1

,7
9

8
,2

6
0

 

$
1

,7
8

6
,7

4
1

 

$
1

,1
0

8
,0

6
4

 

$
1

,1
4

9
,3

9
9

 

$
1

,2
1

5
,0

9
6

 

$
7

8
2

,9
3

0
 

$
8

1
4

,8
1

1
 

$0.00 

$200,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$800,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,200,000.00 

$1,400,000.00 

$1,600,000.00 

$1,800,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Building Operations 

308



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 631 Building Operations

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 587 Aquatic Revenue

631.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $       965,530  $      970,480  $       877,000  $       980,000  $       994,200 1.45%  $   1,032,000  $   1,056,200 

Interest and rents                 770                845              1,200              1,200              1,200 0.00%             1,200              1,200 

Other Revenues                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Total Revenues         966,300         971,325          878,200          981,200          995,400 1.45%     1,033,200      1,057,400 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 264 Building Operations

Expenditures for Operations

631.264.00.264

PERSONAL SERVICES          681,845          703,035           817,350           909,660           905,090 -0.50%          923,500          945,500 

SUPPLIES            26,056            29,238             39,850             50,520             43,570 -13.76%            43,590            43,640 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES            75,029            82,539             99,800           102,500           102,600 0.10%          104,700          106,700 

Total Operating Expense         782,929         814,811          957,000      1,062,680      1,051,260 -1.07%     1,071,790      1,095,840 

Income from Operations (Before Cap/Depr)         183,371         156,513          (78,800)          (81,480)          (55,860) -31.44%         (38,590)         (38,440)

Capital/Depreciation Expense

631.264.00.264

Depreciation                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Capital Expenditures                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Total Income (Loss) 183,371        156,513       (78,800)         (81,480)         (55,860)         -31.44% (38,590)        (38,440)        

Beginning Net Position 259,641         443,012        599,525         599,525         520,725         -13.14% 464,865        426,275         

Ending Net Position 443,012$      599,525$     520,725$      518,045$      464,865$      -10.27% 426,275$     387,835$     

Building Operations

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

309



MISSION STATEMENT  Develops and administers safety and training

for new and current equipment prior to

 implementation for heavy seasonal use periods

such as winter snow and ice control, turf

maintenance and pavement construction

 seasons

 Coordinates DPW building repairs and

 improvements

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS  Administers fourteen (14) signed service

 agreements with In-sourced customers

 Administrative & Support Services  Administers one (1) vehicle lease agreement

 with In-sourced customer

  Reviews customer service evaluations and

 responds as needed

  Monitors Dashboard which we developed for

 Coordinates staff development and training the fleet operation with 12 (KPI) Key

  Performance Indicators

  

 Fleet Maintenance:

 

  Provides vehicle/heavy truck/equipment repair

services for the City-owned fleet

  Provides 24-hour maintenance on all 

emergency equipment

 Operates a main facility and a satellite garage

 through a 2-shift operation (7:30 AM - 12:30

 AM, Monday through Friday)

security system and employee access  Performs welding, fabrication and repairs on

various equipment

 Assists Police Department with fatal traffic

accident investigations

 Maintains 4 Medi-Go vans and busses

Administers the DPW facility automated

parts and fuel inventory program

Recommends creative and efficient procedures

and programs in the department's areas of

concern

Coordinates vehicle and equipment auctions

The mission of the Fleet Maintenance Division 

provides the City of Troy with safe and efficient 

equipment and vehicle maintenance, repair and 

replacement services through a workforce that 

values communication, teamwork and quality of 

work.

Serves as liaison with other governmental units

Formulates and develops operational programs

and priorities

Maintains computerized fleet maintenance,

Prepares specifications and administers the

department budget

Coordinates and evaluates staff activities

Procures materials, equipment and supplies

Fleet Maintenance  
 

Public Works Director……………………..…………..Timothy Richnak 
Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance…………..….Samuel Lamerato 

Fleet Maintenance 

310



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont)  Repairs and maintains vehicle and equipment

for the Road Commission for Oakland County

 Repairs police and fire apparatus and public  Calibrates speedometers for Troy patrol cars

works vehicles and equipment from ten and surrounding communities

 surrounding communities  Installs and removes radio equipment and

 Repairs and maintains vehicles and equipment  emergency lights

from the Southeastern Oakland County Resource  Place mirror hanger customer evaluations on

 Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) and the  completed vehicle repairs

 Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority  Chrysler, Ford and General Motors authorized

 (SOCWA)  warranty repair center

 Repairs and maintains Troy School District

 maintenance vehicles

Notes on Performance Indicators

 Goals





Achieve 98-100% compliance with a monthly preventive maintenance program.

Expand the web-based auctioning of out-of-service vehicles and specialty pieces of equipment

8.0 8.5 8.0 8.0

Average Age of Police Vehicles (Years)
2.5 2.5 2.0 2.0

Average Age of Salt Trucks (Years)

85.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

% of Front Line Fire Apparatus Available
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

% of Snow Equip. Prepared by Nov. 15 

412.00 465.00 410.00 500.00

% of Snow Removal Equip. Available
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Vehicle Tires Replaced

1,092 963 1,010 1,100

Preventative Maintenance - B
304.00 195.00 190.00 200.00

Preventative Maintenance - A

70 106 100 100

Brake Replacement/Repairs
268 233 430 450

Towing

2,744 3,100 3,200

Cleaning/Washing
1,892 1,869 1,900 2,000

Completed Work Orders
2,687

1,586 2,000 2,100

Road Service Calls
77 34 40 50

Completed Driver's Work Request

2013/14 2014/15

Indicator Actual Actual Projected Budget

Performance 2011/12 2012/13

Fleet Maintenance 

311



SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES



None

Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

17.3 0.5 17.3 0.5 17.3 0.8 17.3 1

17.3 0.5 17.3 0.5 17.3 0.8 17.3 1



Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14

Personnel

Summary 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Fleet Maintenance

Total Department

Operating Budget History

$
3

,6
6

2
,4

4
9

 

$
3

,7
3

5
,1

6
7

 

$
4

,0
3

5
,0

8
5

 

$
4

,2
7

1
,7

8
0

 

$
4

,4
4

5
,5

0
5

 

$
4

,3
5

1
,9

2
6

 

$
3

,8
9

4
,0

4
5

 

$
3

,9
1

2
,7

7
5

 

$
3

,4
6

7
,1

9
9

 

$
3

,2
9

0
,4

0
6

 

$0.00 

$500,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,500,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

$2,500,000.00 

$3,000,000.00 

$3,500,000.00 

$4,000,000.00 

$4,500,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Fleet Maintenance 

312



FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

 Section A - Replacement Units

Unit Estimated

Item # Quantity Replaces Description Cost Cost

1 10
A Police Patrol Cars $26,000 $260,000

2 3
B Detective Cars $26,000 $78,000

3 2 C Police Command 4X4s $29,000 $58,000

4 2 D Fire Department 4X4s $29,000 $58,000

5 1
E Staff Car $17,000 $17,000

6 2
F Cargo Vans $24,000 $48,000

7 2 G Pickup Trucks $20,000 $40,000

8 2 H Pickup Trucks 4X4 W/Plows $32,000 $64,000

Crew Truck W/Flat Bed Air Compressor

9 1 I and Generator $160,000 $160,000

10 2 J 10-12 Yard Dump Trucks Stainless  

W-Snow Plows, Salt Spreaders & Floats $190,000 $380,000

11 1 K Brush Chipper $55,000 $55,000

12 1 L Road Grader $300,000 $300,000

$1,518,000

 Section B - Replacement Units

Unit Estimated

Item # Quantity Replaces Description Cost Cost

1 1
DPW Truck Hook Lift W/Crane & Log Loader $160,000 $160,000

2 2
DPW Trailer Mounted Message Boards $20,000 $40,000

$200,000Total Section B - Replacement Units

Total Section A - Replacement Units

Fleet Maintenance 

313



FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

 Section C - Equipment to be Replaced - Estimated Proceeds

Estimated

Item # Equipment# Description Recovery

A  Police Patrol Cars @ $3,500 each X 10 $35,000

B  Detective Cars @ $3,500 each X 3 $10,500

C  Police Command @ $8,000 each X 2 $16,000

D 64 2004 Ford Explorer 4 X 4 $7,000

 65 2005 Ford Explorer 4 X 4 $8,000

E 181 2002 Chevrolet Malibu $3,000

F 249 2002 Chevrolet Cargo Van $3,500

 254 2002 Chevrolet Cargo Van $5,000

G 280 2004 Chevrolet Pickup $4,000

 283 2005 Chevrolet Pickup $5,000

H 294 2006 Chevrolet Pickup 4 X 4 W/Plow $7,500

 295 2006 Chevrolet Pickup 4 X 4 W/Plow $7,500

 I 413 1991 GMC Crew Truck W/Air Compressor $5,500

J 443 2000 Sterling 1-0-12 Yard Dump W/Plow $12,000

 444 2000 Sterling 1-0-12 Yard Dump W/Plow $12,000

K 459 2002 Bandit Chipper $6,000

L 639 1980 Galion Road Grader $10,000

$157,500Total Section C - Replacement Units

Fleet Maintenance 

314



FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

 Section D - Equipment to be Replaced - Estimated Proceeds

Unit Estimated

Item # Quantity Description Cost Cost

1 1 Radio System Upgrade $10,000 $10,000

$10,500

 Section E - Tools and Shop Equipment

Unit Estimated

Item # Quantity Description Cost Cost

1 2 In-ground Vehicle Hoist $15,000 $30,000

2 1 Fleet Software Upgrade and Maintenance $14,000 $14,000

3 1 Fuel Software Upgrade and Maintenance $16,000 $16,000

$60,000

 Section E - Tools and Shop Equipment

Estimated

Item # Quantity Description Cost

Replacement Units $1,518,000

Additional Units $200,000

Radio Equipment $10,000

Tools & Shop Equipment $60,000

$1,788,000

TOTAL SECTION D - RADIO EQUIPMENT

TOTAL SECTION E - TOOLS AND SHOP EQUIPMENT

Total Section Summary

Section A

Section B

Section D

Section E

Fleet Maintenance 

315



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 661 Motor Pool

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 661 Revenues

661.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $        139,457  $        166,937  $        221,140  $        224,430  $        213,700 -4.78%  $        216,800  $        218,400 

Interest and rents         3,181,082         3,094,450         3,294,000         3,442,470         3,501,217 1.71%         3,580,550         3,650,250 

Other Revenues            348,300            286,294            456,000            410,500            389,000 -5.24%            401,000            404,000 

Total Revenues       3,668,839       3,547,681       3,971,140       4,077,400       4,103,917 0.65%       4,198,350       4,272,650 

EXPENSE

Expenditures for Operations

Business Unit: 549 Motor Pool Administration

661.549.00.549

Personal Services            322,309            251,634            337,000            382,420            383,950 0.40%            375,110            377,440 

Supplies               5,890               6,526               8,600               9,500             11,400 20.00%               9,100             10,600 

Other Service Charges             92,357             89,680            113,550             98,000            121,670 24.15%            126,670            128,100 

Total Motor Pool Administration          420,557          347,840          459,150          489,920          517,020 5.53%          510,880          516,140 

Business Unit: 550 Equipment Operation & Maint.

661.549.00.550

Personal Services            858,686            880,373         1,282,200         1,492,790         1,463,370 -1.97%         1,478,480         1,486,910 

Supplies         1,007,161         1,043,379         1,130,000         1,187,800         1,221,000 2.80%         1,228,250         1,228,250 

Other Service Charges             89,866             75,522            112,800            134,850            116,500 -13.61%            123,000            124,000 

Total Equipment Operations & Maintenance       1,955,713       1,999,274       2,525,000       2,815,440       2,800,870 -0.52%       2,829,730       2,839,160 

Fleet Maintenance

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

316



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fleet Maintenance

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

Business Unit: 551 DPW Facility Maintenance

661.549.00.551

Personal Services                      -                      -                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

Supplies             14,222               8,800             19,000             20,100             21,450 6.72%             22,800             22,800 

Other Service Charges            254,513            247,010            276,100            309,000            335,200 8.48%            347,110            354,020 

Total DPW Facility Maintenance          268,736          255,810          295,100          329,100          356,650 8.37%          369,910          376,820 

Total Operating Expenses (Before Cap/Depr)       2,645,005       2,602,924       3,279,250       3,634,460       3,674,540 1.10%       3,710,520       3,732,120 

Total Operating Income (Before Cap/Depr)       1,023,834          944,757          691,890          442,940          429,377 -3.06%          487,830          540,530 

Business Unit: 555 Capital/Depreciation Expense

661.549.00.565

Depreciation            815,428            687,480                      -                      -                      - 0.00%                      -                      - 

Capital Expenditures               6,766                      -         1,360,000         1,393,200         1,788,000 28.34%         1,650,000         1,650,000 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense          822,194          687,480       1,360,000       1,393,200       1,788,000 28.34%       1,650,000       1,650,000 

Total Income (Loss) 201,640         257,276         (668,110)        (950,260)        (1,358,623)    42.97% (1,162,170)    (1,109,470)    

Beginning Net Position 8,903,589       9,105,229       9,362,505       9,362,505       8,694,395       -7.14% 7,335,772       6,173,602       

Ending Net Position 9,105,229$    9,362,505$    8,694,395$    8,412,245$    7,335,772$    -12.80% 6,173,602$    5,064,132$    

317



MISSION STATEMENT  Application Support

 Performs requirements analysis to determine

 application software needs

 Recommends and implements application

 software

 Provides initial and ongoing training



 

 to resolve issues

DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS


 Administrative & Support Services  Creates custom programming and interfaces

 Maintains the Intranet and Internet websites

   

  Client Support

   

 Develops short-and long-term plans  Provides desktop hardware support and

 maintenance

  Provides desktop software support and

 maintenance



 Purchases and installs new equipment and

  software

  Serves as the contact with various vendors

  Provides Smartphone support

Functions as front line support and acts as the 

liaison between software vendors and end users

Implements change requests and enhancements 

Performs software upgrades

Manages purchases and implementations

Information Technology is an internal service 

organization whose purpose is to provide technology 

and telecommunications services in support of the City 

of Troy’s goals.  Information Technology empowers 

users to effectively utilize resources by providing a 

stable, reliable environment, and responsive support 

services.

Prepares and administers the department

budget

Keeps abreast of technological changes

Establishes standards

Adopts policies

Maintains software and equipment inventory

Serves as liaison with City departments

Coordinates and evaluates staff development and

activities

Information 
Technology 

 

               Information Technology Director….......Gert Paraskevin 

Information Technology 

318



DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS (cont)  Maintains communications equipment and

network hardware

 Infrastructure Support  Develops and executes backup procedures

 Provides network administration  Monitors the network to proactively identify

Supports all data communications technology  problems and recommend upgrades

 Performs installations, maintenance and  Maintains e-mail communication gateways

 upgrades of network operating systems  Oversees network security

 Maintains and supports the City's

telecommunication system

Notes on Performance Indicators

 Goals

1

2

This does not include software written in-house only publicly available or commercial 

software

Includes physical and virtual servers (not hosts)

Equipment Maintenance Dollars 

Expended $21,320 $30,159 $30,000 $33,610

Computer Chargeback
$3,300/$2,785 $3,300/$2,785 $3,300/$2,785 $3,300/$2,785

Computer Help Desk Requests 

Processed 2,423 2,314 2,400 2,990

IT Staff Training Dollars 

Expended $4,290 $4,239 $10,000 $10,000

Printers Supported
136 140 140

Servers Supported
65 68 68 66

Personal Computers Supported
475 484

Projected Budget

467 484

Indicator Actual Actual

Software Supported
115 123 133 133

Performance 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Information Technology 

319



SUMMARY OF BUDGET CHANGES



Personal Services

Supplies

Other Service Charges

Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part- Full- Part-

Time Time Time Time Time Time Time Time

Information

8.25 0.6 8.25 0.6 8.25 0.6 10.25 0

8.25 0.6 8.25 0.6 8.25 0.6 10.25 0



Significant Notes - 2014/15 Budget Compared to 2013/14

Operating Budget History

Personnel

Summary 2011/12 2012/13

Technology

Total Department

2013/14 2014/15

Other Service Charges have increased 21% overall mainly due to increases in maintenance 

cost for the various software the City uses.  Some are annual increases, and others are the 

additional maintenance cost of utilizing new software.  Depreciation also significantly 

increase.

part-time Application Support position to full-time, and medical rate increases.

Supplies increased 34% due to New Service Upgrade for window products including the Windows 

operating system, Outlook, Word and Excel.

Personal Services increase 18% due to a variety of changes: a reduction in furlough hours, 1% pay 

increase. Created new help desk position dedicated solely to the Library and combined part-time 

position to create full time application support specialist.

Information Technology 

$
1

,5
0

0
,6

7
1

 

$
1

,4
3

0
,3

2
0

 

$
1

,5
5

2
,6

1
8

 

$
1

,5
8

3
,1

9
5

 

$
1

,5
7

0
,3

7
1

 

$
1

,3
5

2
,4

1
9

 

$
1

,3
9

5
,0

1
7

 

$
1

,4
9

9
,3

2
9

 

$
1

,7
0

8
,1

0
0

 

$0.00 

$200,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$800,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 

$1,200,000.00 

$1,400,000.00 

$1,600,000.00 

$1,800,000.00 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

320



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 636 Information Technology

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 636 IT Revenue

636.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $    1,553,645  $   1,552,008  $    1,505,355  $    1,505,355  $    1,814,190 20.52%  $   1,843,500  $   1,871,800 

Interest and rents              4,537             2,817              4,000              4,045              4,000 -1.11%             4,000              4,000 

Other Revenues                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Transfers In            11,615                    -                     -             46,000           238,500 418.48%                    -                     - 

Total Revenues      1,569,797     1,554,825      1,509,355      1,555,400      2,056,690 32.23%     1,847,500      1,875,800 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 228 Information Technology

Expenditures for Operations

636.228.00.228

PERSONAL SERVICES          901,601          974,255        1,040,520        1,070,360        1,271,830 18.82%       1,217,670       1,242,430 

SUPPLIES            53,839          223,951           223,500           222,000           298,000 34.23%          133,000          133,000 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          479,569          434,697           493,280           476,730           483,800 1.48%          489,310          500,000 

Total Operating Expense      1,435,008     1,632,903      1,757,300      1,769,090      2,053,630 16.08%     1,839,980      1,875,430 

Income from Operations (Before Cap/Depr)         134,789         (78,078)        (247,945)        (213,690)              3,060 -101.43%            7,520                370 

Information Technology

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

321



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Information Technology

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

Capital/Depreciation Expense

636.228.00.228

Depreciation            64,321            75,197                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -            70,000 

Capital Expenditures                     -                    -             46,000             46,000           238,500 418.48%            60,000                     - 

Transfers In                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Total Capital/Depreciation Expense           64,321           75,197            46,000            46,000          238,500 418.48%           60,000           70,000 

Total Income (Loss) 70,467          (153,275)      (293,945)       (259,690)       (235,440)       -9.34% (52,480)        (69,630)        

Beginning Net Position 1,797,771      1,868,238     1,714,964      1,714,964      1,421,019      -17.14% 1,185,579     1,133,099      

Ending Net Position 1,868,238$  1,714,964$  1,421,019$   1,455,274$   1,185,579$   -18.53% 1,133,099$  1,063,469$  

322



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 605 Unemployment Comp

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 605 Unemployement

605.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $       364,053  $      324,894  $       300,000  $       300,000  $       300,000 0.00%  $      300,000  $      300,000 

Interest and Rents                 567                136                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Other Revenues                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Total Revenues         364,620         325,030          300,000          300,000          300,000 0.00%         300,000         300,000 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 870 Unemployment

Expenditures for Operations

605.870.00.870

PERSONAL SERVICES                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

SUPPLIES                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          448,872          317,512           300,000           300,000           300,000 0.00%          300,000          300,000 

Total Operating Expense         448,872         317,512          300,000          300,000          300,000 0.00%         300,000         300,000 

Income from Operations          (84,251)            7,519                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Beginning Net Position 176,732         92,481          99,999           99,999           99,999           0.00% 99,999          99,999          

Ending Net Position 92,481$        99,999$       99,999$        99,999$        99,999$        0.00% 99,999$       99,999$       

Unemployment Compensation

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

323



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 606 Worker's Comp Reserve

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 606 Work Comp Revenue

606.000.00.000

Charges for Services  $       169,987  $        16,913  $       346,500  $       250,000  $       353,500 41.40%  $      361,500  $      369,500 

Interest and rents              7,714             4,636              8,500              8,500              8,500 0.00%             8,500              8,500 

Other Revenues          158,648            56,817             15,000             50,000             15,000 -70.00%            15,000            15,000 

Total Revenues         336,349           78,366          370,000          308,500          377,000 22.20%         385,000         393,000 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 871 Worker's Compensation

Expenditures for Operations

606.871.00.871

PERSONAL SERVICES                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

SUPPLIES                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES          336,349          294,322           370,000           300,000           377,000 25.67%          385,000          393,000 

Total Operating Expense         336,349         294,322          370,000          300,000          377,000 25.67%         385,000         393,000 

Income from Operations                     -       (215,956)                     -              8,500                     - -100.00%                    -                     - 

Beginning Net Position 2,397,956      2,397,956     2,182,000      2,182,000      2,182,000      0.00% 2,182,000     2,182,000      

Ending Net Position 2,397,956$  2,182,000$  2,182,000$   2,190,500$   2,182,000$   -0.39% 2,182,000$  2,182,000$  

Worker's Compensation Reserve

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

324



 2012 

Actual 

Amount 

 2013 

Actual 

Amount 

 2014 

Estimated 

Amount 

 2014 

Amended 

Budget 

 2015 

Proposed 

% 

Change

 2016 

Proposed 

 2017 

Proposed 

Fund: 630 Compensated Absences

REVENUES

Department: 000 Revenue

Business Unit: 630 Comp Abs Revenue

630.000.00.000

Interest and rents  $        25,294  $          8,222  $         16,000  $         16,000  $         16,000 0.00%  $        16,000  $        16,000 

Other Revenues       3,613,791       2,706,472        4,110,000        3,615,000        3,700,000 2.35%       3,780,000       3,850,000 

Total Revenues      3,639,085     2,714,693      4,126,000      3,631,000      3,716,000 2.34%     3,796,000      3,866,000 

EXPENSE

Business Unit: 859 Compensated Absences

Expenditures for Operations

630.859.00.859

PERSONAL SERVICES       3,639,084       2,714,543        4,126,000        3,631,000        3,716,000 2.34%       3,796,000       3,866,000 

SUPPLIES                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES                     -                    -                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Total Operating Expense      3,639,084     2,714,543      4,126,000      3,631,000      3,716,000 2.34%     3,796,000      3,866,000 

Income from Operations                    1                150                     -                     -                     - 0.00%                    -                     - 

Beginning Net Position 1,006,800      1,006,801     1,006,951      1,006,951      1,006,951      0.00% 1,006,951     1,006,951      

Ending Net Position 1,006,801$  1,006,951$  1,006,951$   1,006,951$   1,006,951$   0.00% 1,006,951$  1,006,951$  

Compensated Absences

Internal Service Funds 
General Government 

325



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Property Taxes 49,729,110$      51,455,237$    49,877,171$    50,696,911$    51,270,756$   51,092,129$   50,828,551$ 46,082,673$  46,450,199$   46,470,104$  

Licenses and Permits 1,649,985          1,607,445        1,662,592        1,491,958        1,393,635       1,237,191       1,113,809     1,259,748      1,686,633       2,254,775      

Federal Sources 415,609             2,928,690        961,366           551,965           1,279,826       4,884,314       3,185,364     2,171,633      1,040,037       5,119,153      

State Sources 19,579,823        12,944,756      12,073,497      11,805,209      11,990,424     11,345,811     10,494,294   10,504,385    11,384,502     11,673,045    

County Sources 241,418             165,154           891,705           765,823           758,058          465,212         908,398        1,039,709      614,530         786,068         

Charges for Services 6,310,960          8,594,731        7,895,033        8,338,480        8,109,915       7,782,945       8,151,713     7,335,759      7,660,204       7,760,295      

Fines and Forfeits 960,250             973,527           994,373           1,243,286        1,483,784       1,054,161       1,226,729     1,277,705      1,154,999       902,183         

Interest Income 1,198,874          2,213,067        2,947,672        3,942,955        2,782,486       1,592,062       643,073        430,899         186,897         154,351         

Miscellaneous 5,497,512          2,817,781        1,601,059        2,046,840        1,924,977       1,999,943       3,347,701     1,967,075      2,330,595       2,007,022      

Total 85,583,541$      83,700,388$    78,904,468$    80,883,427$    80,993,861$   81,453,768$   79,899,632$ 72,069,586$  72,508,596$   77,126,996$  

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

General Government 8,217,477$        8,657,335$      8,978,687$      9,002,076$      9,118,399$     9,181,757$     9,167,749$   8,562,924$    8,232,791$     7,409,887$    

Public Safety 25,229,356        26,313,278      27,203,034      27,973,275      29,575,908     30,764,667     31,042,277   30,902,648    29,899,440     27,371,783    

Roads and Streets 3,822,154          3,944,998        5,074,870        4,755,184        4,754,166       5,600,748       5,687,378     4,844,712      4,799,035       6,037,793      

Sanitation 3,708,860          3,500,055        2,780,643        2,835,772        2,676,716       3,892,487       3,961,794     3,996,065      4,109,985       4,331,560      

Other Public Works 4,198,140          4,432,201        4,432,841        4,367,093        4,528,962       2,676,845       2,525,114     2,043,464      1,756,490       621,439         

Park & Rec, Cemeteries 7,419,478          7,976,960        8,504,982        8,596,120        8,607,457       9,599,827       9,663,164     8,325,497      6,779,136       5,834,282      

Library/Museum 4,474,276          4,547,590        4,758,578        4,780,602        4,805,282       4,831,440       4,167,249     3,905,927      2,288,355       2,409,040      

Debt Service 7,214,312          17,283,219      6,356,165        3,439,568        3,557,367       3,440,055       3,686,878     3,680,385      3,745,065       3,669,615      

Capital Outlay 42,801,620        22,194,876      14,791,534      18,994,837      11,856,766     12,322,730     17,176,377   17,062,105    14,244,384     13,670,400    

Economic & Phys. Dev. 576,366             553,242           474,591           2,011,275        116,091          115,981         195,216        127,522         148,800         51,220           

107,662,039$    99,403,754$    83,355,925$    86,755,802$    79,597,114$   82,426,537$   87,273,196$ 83,451,249$  76,003,481$   71,407,019$  

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Description

Total

Description

GENERAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION - 10-YEAR HISTORY

General Revenues By Source 10 Year History - 
Governmental Funds and Expenditures by 

326



Fiscal Unassigned

Year Nonspendable Restricted Committed Assigned Unassigned Fund Balance

Ended Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Annual as a % of

30-Jun Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Expenditures Expenditures

2004 972,200$            -$                -$                   2,624,939$ 16,855,616$  55,568,486$     30%

2005 708,988$            -$                1,305,560$        8,756,013$ 13,036,631$  57,300,794$     23%

2006 618,143$            -$                6,367,250$        8,756,013$ 11,157,403$  58,042,415$     19%

2007 695,992$            -$                4,210,280$        9,171,895$ 10,787,420$  63,037,928$     17%

2008 617,505$            -$                5,136,980$        9,171,895$ 8,706,382$    62,655,284$     14%

2009 623,544$            -$                1,000,000$        9,171,895$ 10,519,037$  62,252,931$     17%

2010 447,720$            -$                3,400,000$        9,171,895$ 10,722,271$  58,585,172$     18%

2011* 4,034,119$         1,508,257$     3,610,131$        5,953,000$ 12,359,648$  53,695,418$     23%

2012* 3,884,686$         1,514,118$     1,517,000$        3,655,000$ 23,340,380$  45,761,906$     51%

2013* 4,369,038$         1,525,598$     2,771,300$        3,148,000$ 24,946,170$  46,634,537$     53%

* Note:  Includes balance of stabilization fund in accordance with GASB statement 54

Fiscal 

Year

Ended Real Personal Total Taxable

30-Jun Property Property Property

2004 4,394,026,741$  584,236,696$ 4,978,263,437$ 

2005 4,558,664,800$  536,093,423$ 5,094,758,223$ 

2006 4,760,853,880$  503,497,670$ 5,264,351,550$ 

2007 4,955,160,492$  479,874,950$ 5,435,035,442$ 

2008 5,086,302,787$  464,213,650$ 5,550,516,437$ 

2009 5,105,043,510$  457,552,500$ 5,562,596,010$ 

2010 5,011,679,706$  448,100,230$ 5,459,779,936$ 

2011 4,435,622,282$  407,990,730$ 4,843,613,012$ 

2012 4,064,665,270$  384,084,890$ 4,448,750,160$ 

2013 3,917,595,130$  395,096,920$ 4,312,692,050$ 

Real Property

As Percent of Total

92%

91%

88%

89%

Taxable Property

92%

VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

10-YEAR HISTORY

90%

91%

92%

92%

91%

General Fund Balance  
Compared to Annual 

327



Fiscal Year Total Current % of Delinquent Total % of Total 

Ended Tax Tax Taxes Tax Tax Collection

30-Jun Levy Collections Collected Collections Collection to Tax Levy

2004 44,251,910$     43,440,583$      98.17% 672,473$        44,113,056$     99.69%

2005 45,666,420$     44,814,456$      98.13% 637,527$        45,451,983$     99.53%

2006 46,913,799$     45,924,486$      97.89% 726,792$        46,651,278$     99.44%

2007 48,338,412$     47,306,612$      97.87% 923,002$        48,229,614$     99.77%

2008 48,667,887$     47,589,455$      97.78% 1,037,838$     48,627,293$     99.92%

2009 48,676,220$     47,420,544$      97.42% 771,027$        48,191,571$     99.00%

2010 48,273,658$     47,388,992$      98.17% 766,850$        48,155,842$     99.76%

2011 43,852,179$     42,664,592$      97.29% 1,095,386$     43,759,978$     99.79%

2012 44,257,157$     43,064,206$      97.30% 1,108,768$     44,172,974$     99.81%

2013 45,327,073$     44,436,644$      98.04% 158,037$        44,594,681$     98.38%

 $
4

3
,4

4
0

,5
8

3
  

 $
4

4
,8

1
4

,4
5

6
  

 $
4

5
,9

2
4

,4
8

6
  

 $
4

7
,3

0
6

,6
1

2
  

 $
4

7
,5

8
9

,4
5

5
  

 $
4

7
,4

2
0

,5
4

4
  

 $
4

7
,3

8
8

,9
9

2
  

 $
4

2
,6

6
4

,5
9

2
  

 $
4

3
,0

6
4

,2
0

6
  

 $
4

5
,1

6
9

,0
3

5
  

$0 

$5,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$15,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$25,000,000 

$30,000,000 

$35,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$45,000,000 

$50,000,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Property Tax Collections 

Property Tax Levies and 
Collections 10-Year History 

328



Median

Fiscal Year Household

Ended Estimated # of Effective Buying School Median Unempl.

30-Jun Population (5) Households (1) Income (1) Enrollments (3) Age Rate (2)

2004 85,956            31,944              96,840$               12,059             38.41 3.2%

2005 86,740            32,281              96,840$               12,005             38.41 4.7%

2006 87,159            32,431              96,840$               12,131             38.41 4.9%

2007 87,594            32,596              96,840$               12,192             38.41 4.8%

2008 87,956            32,802              96,840$               12,165             38.41 5.6%

2009 81,490            ** 33,368              ** $112,980 ** 12,069             38.41 ** 9.4%

2010 80,980            (4) 33,176              112,980$             12,045             41.8 11.9 **

2011 81,161            33,368              108,356$             12,106             41.8 9.5

2012 82,071            32,998              107,532$             12,385             41.8 7.7

2013 82,853            33,063              107,532$             11,911             41.8 7.9

(1)  U.S. Census 2006-2008 American Community Survey

(2)  Michigan Dept. of Energy, Labor and Economic Growth

(3)  Troy School District

(4)  U.S. Bureau of the Census (2010)

(5) Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG)

*     Information not available

**   Change in the calculation method

Race

White 60,006

Black 3,239

American Indian                                  162

Asian 15,467

Other 486

Multiple 1,620

High School Graduates 76,688              94.70%

Bachelor's Degree or Higher 45,997              56.80%

0%

2%

Educational Level Attainment - Age 25 or Older

Based on 2010 Census

                2010 Census Percentage of Population

82%

2%

0%

13%

Population Based on 

Demographic Statistics 

329



2014 2014 % of

Assessed Taxable # of Business Total

Rank Name Value Value Parcels Activity Taxable Value

 

1 Frankel Forbes Cohen 53,368,490 51,579,130 3 Somerset Malls 1.18

2 Urbancal Oakland Mall LLC 36,768,050 36,713,920 16 Oakland Mall/Plaza 0.84

3 Dte 33,929,550 33,483,940 17 Utility 0.77

4 Nykel Management Co 25,039,520 25,039,520 24 Apartment Leasing 0.57

5 Cc Troy Assoc 20,052,680 20,025,150 3 Office Leasing 0.46

6 Osprey-Troy Officentre LLC 19,962,720 19,962,720 2 Office Leasing 0.46

7 Nemer Troy Place Realty 22,236,900 19,696,840 5 Office Leasing 0.45

8 Bank Of America NA 17,884,980 17,840,330 14 Office HQ-Branches 0.41

9 Kelly Services 17,742,380 17,480,210 2 Office HQ 0.40

10 Delphi 18,596,640 17,010,500 16 Corp HQ-Industrial 0.39

11 Macys 15,717,460 15,717,460 10 Retail 0.36

12 755 Tower Associates LLC 14,480,660 14,046,290 5 Office Leasing 0.32

13 Troy Industrial 13,911,450 13,230,100 15 Industrial Leasing 0.30

14 Regents Park Of Troy 12,695,080 12,695,080 4 Apartment Leasing 0.29

15 Troy Sports Center LLC 11,875,010 11,875,010 2 Ice Rink/Retail 0.27

16 Consumers Energy 11,855,050 11,728,610 2 Utility 0.27

17 West Huron Joint Venture 10,962,780 10,821,070 5 Office Leasing 0.25

18 Somerset Place LLC 9,789,810 9,789,810 3 Office Leasing 0.22

19 Liberty Investments 9,387,880 9,387,880 3 Office Leasing 0.21

20 Sheffield Owner 10,265,910 8,929,350 3 Office Leasing 0.20

386,523,000$  377,052,920$    8.62 %

 

4,491,432,340 4,310,263,448

2014 Total 2014 Total

Assessed Taxable Value

Value (A/V) (T/V)

Top 20 Tax Payers 

330



Fiscal Year Ended

June 30 of: Property Values Construction

2005 $12,674,445,946 $325,052,794 

2006 $13,052,148,660 $322,561,346 

2007 $13,217,609,500 $293,310,680 

2008 $12,845,319,620 $241,191,844 

2009 $12,454,188,100 $330,821,604 

2010 $11,677,738,478 $235,276,998 

2011 $9,977,036,626 $263,289,234 

2012 $9,080,825,360 $252,679,260 

2013 $8,820,217,800 $263,246,270 

2014 $8,982,864,680 $211,200,000 

2011

2012

2013

2014

12.7 13.1 13.2 
12.8 12.5 

11.7 

10.0 
9.1 8.8 9.0 

0 

2 

4 

6 

8 

10 

12 

14 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

B
ill

io
n

s 

Property Values 

Property Values and Construction 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

331



# of 

Expiration Employees

Bargaining Unit Date Covered

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 

(AFSCME) - 

Public Works Employees 6/30/2016 58

6/30/2015 39

6/30/2014

Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) -

Police Officers 6/30/2015 74

6/30/2014

Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) Civilian 

Communications Supervisors 6/30/2016 8

Michigan Association of Police (MAP) - Clerical Employees, Police 

Service Aides

Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) - Command Police 

Officers 21

Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA) - Career Fire 

Professionals 9

Collective Bargaining Agreements 

332



1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

The City of Troy has maintained one of the lowest tax rates of surrounding cities.

In Michigan the assessed value is approximately 50% of the market value of a home.  If the home sells for 

$200,000 the assessed value would be $100,000.  Each mill levied on this property would cost $100 annually 

(before any applicable state or federal tax credits).  Under the state school funding system (Proposal A) the 

annual increase in the taxable value of your property is capped at the rate of inflation or 5%, whichever is less.

$8.6 

$8.8 

$9.0 

$9.2 

$9.4 

$9.6 

$9.8 

$10.0 

$10.2 

$10.4 

$10.6 

$10.8 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Millage Rate Mills per $1,000 

$0 

$1,000 

$2,000 

$3,000 

$4,000 

$5,000 

$6,000 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Taxable Value (T/V) Series1 

333



     Area

     Form of Government

     Present Charter

     Elections Registered voters at the time of General Election on November 5, 2013 58,361

Number of voters voting in General Election November 5, 2013 15,832

Percentage of registered voters voted  27.1%

58,195

Number of voters voting in City General Election November 6, 2012 42,872

Percentage of registered voters voted 73.7%

     Fiscal Year Begins

     # of Employees

     Fire Protection

     Police Protection

     Building 2003/04 2,110 permits     $140,823,926 estimated value

Construction 2004/05 2,136 permits     $143,697,564 estimated value

2005/06 1,927 permits     $114,459,317 estimated value

2006/07 1,696 permits     $113,160,162 estimated value

2007/08 1,588 permits     $103,420,413 estimated value

2008/09 1,251 permits     $  99,128,945 estimated value

2009/10 1,185 permits*    $  56,329,455 estimated value

2010/11 940 permits     $  81,414,322 estimated value

2011/12 1,699 permits     $  98,609,054 estimated value   

2012/13 2,006 permits      $146,556,961 estimated value

     Streets

     Sewers

     Street Lights

     Water Plant

City - Regular                  27,591

Annual Distribution          5330 million cubic feet

Water Mains                   540 miles

Hydrants                         5,854

545 miles storm sewer

580 Detroit Edison-owned

956 City-owned

Accounts:

1 station, 101 police officers, 36 non-sworn and 15.5 civilian employees

*Change in permit base

443 miles improved

4.0 miles unimproved

10 miles (combination storm and sanitary)

398 miles sanitary sewer

34.3 square miles (21,952 acres)

6 stations, training center, 11 fire personnel

Council-Manager (since December 12, 1955)

Adopted December 12, 1955

July 1
st

332 regular, 117 seasonal (full-time equivalents), summer and fall 

programs

Registered voters at the time of City General Election on November 6, 

2012

334



[A] Accrual basis accounting recognizes transactions 
when they occur, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows.  The application of accrual accounting 
techniques prevents distortions in financial statement 
representations due to shifts in the timing of cash 
flows and related underlying economic events near 
the end of a fiscal period. 
  
ACT 51 highway and street funds are derived from gas 
and weight taxes, and are distributed to communities 
by the Michigan Department of Transportation based 
on a municipality’s population and number of street 
miles. 
  
An activity is an office within a department to which 
specific expenses are allocated. 
  
APPROPRIATION REFERS TO AUTHORIZATION GRANTED BY A 
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO INCUR OBLIGATIONS AND TO EXPEND 
PUBLIC FUNDS FOR A STATED PURPOSE. 
  
The City of Troy’s appropriation ordinance is the 
official enactment by City Council establishing legal 
authority for the City to incur obligations and to 
expend public funds for a stated purpose. 
  
Assessed valuation is the value placed upon property 
equal to 50% of fair market value, as required by State 
law. 
  
[B] A balanced budget is one in which estimated 
revenues plus prior year accumulated reserves are 
equal to or greater than estimated expenditures. 
  
The budget calendar is the schedule of key dates a 
government follows in the preparation and adoption 
of the budget. 
  
The budget message is a written policy and financial 
overview of the City as presented by the City 
Manager. 
 

A budgetary center is a grouping of office, or activity, 
budgets that are combined to create a cost center in 
which actual expenditures cannot exceed budgeted 
appropriations. 
  
[C] A disbursement of money that results in the 
acquisition of or addition to fixed assets is called a Capital 
expenditure.  The item must have a purchase price 
greater than $10,000 to be considered a Capital item. 
  
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for 
development of municipal Capital facilities other than 
those financed by the Enterprise Fund. 
  
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) is a 
federally funded program to assist communities in the 
expansion and improvement of community services, to 
develop and improve neighborhoods, and to restore and 
preserve property values. 
  
[D] The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for and the payment of general 
long-term debt principal and interest. 
  
Deferment is a form filed (by qualifying residents) that 
allows a postponement of the summer homestead tax, 
without levying interest or penalty, unless payment is 
made after the deferment date. 
  
A deficit is an excess of liabilities and reserves of a fund 
over its assets. 
  
The departmental mission statement describes the 
course of action proposed to link the City’s goals and 
objectives with the financial resources of the department. 

335



[E]  An enterprise fund is used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to a private business, i.e. the intent of 
the governing body is that the costs of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges.  An example of an enterprise fund is the 
Water and Sewer Fund. 
  
The equalization factor is a multiplier applied to the 
assessed value of a class of property by the County 
Equalization Department or State Tax Commission 
that will produce a sum that represents 50 percent of 
the true cash value of that class. 
  
Expenditure is the cost of goods delivered and 
services rendered, whether paid or unpaid, including 
expenses, debt retirement not reported as liability of 
the fund from which retired, or capital outlay. 
  
An expenditure object is a specific classification of 
expenditure accounts that includes a number of 
related accounts determined by the type of goods and 
services to be purchased.  For example, the personnel 
services expenditure object includes the wages 
account as well as all fringe benefit accounts.  
Expenditure objects include personnel services, 
supplies, other services/charges, capital outlay, debt 
service, and transfers out. 
  
[F] FOIA is the acronym for the Freedom of 
Information Act. 
  
Fixed assets are equipment and other Capital items 
used in governmental fund type operations and are 
accounted for in the general fixed assets group of 
accounts rather than in the government funds.  Such 
assets, which are recorded as expenditures at the 
time of purchase, do not include certain 
improvements such as roads, bridges, curbs and 
gutters, streets and sidewalks, and lighting systems.  
No depreciation has been provided on general fixed 
assets. 
 

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts recording cash and other 
financial resources, together with all related liabilities and 
residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which 
are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific 
activities. 
  
The City’s accounts are organized on the basis of funds 
and account groups in order to report on its financial 
position and results of its operations.  Fund accounting is 
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregating transactions related 
to certain government functions or activities. 
  
Fund balance is the excess of a fund entity’s accumulated 
assets over its liabilities.  Typically, excess revenues over 
expenditures at year-end will increase a fund’s fund 
balance. 
  
[G] The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the ultimate authoritative accounting and 
financial reporting standards-setting body for state and 
local governments.  
  
The General Fund is the City’s major operating fund to 
account for all financial resources except those required 
to be accounted for in another fund. 
  
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) are 
conventions, rules and procedures that define accepted 
accounting practice at a particular time, including both 
broad guidelines of general applications and detailed 
practices and procedures.  GAAP represents the 
benchmark by which financial statements are measured 

336



THE GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (GFOA) OF 
THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA IS A PROFESSIONAL 
ORGANIZATION OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS UNITED TO ENHANCE AND 
PROMOTE THE PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT OF GOVERNMENTAL 
FINANCIAL RESOURCES BY IDENTIFYING, DEVELOPING AND 
ADVANCING FISCAL STRATEGIES, POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR 
PUBLIC BENEFIT. 
  
[I] Internal Service Funds are used to finance and 
account for services furnished by a designated 
department to another department within a single 
governmental unit.  Examples of funds in this category 
are Building Operations, Fleet Maintenance, and 
Information Services. 
  
[L] A Line Item Budget is one that emphasizes 
allocations of resources to  
given organizational units for particular expenditures, 
such as salaries, supplies, services, and equipment.  
Line item budgets may be organized to provide 
accountability at varying levels, such as on department, 
division, or agency levels. 
  
[M] The Michigan Transportation Fund (MTF) 
designates bonded road projects that are financed by 
Motor Vehicle Highway Funds. 
  
THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING RECOGNIZES 
REVENUES IN THE PERIOD THEY BECOME AVAILABLE AND 
MEASURABLE, AND EXPENDITURES ARE RECOGNIZED AT THE TIME 
A LIABILITY IS INCURRED PURSUANT TO APPROPRIATION 
AUTHORITY.  EXCEPTIONS TO THE GENERAL RULE OF 
EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION OCCUR IN DEBT SERVICE. 
  
[O] The operating budget represents the authorized 
revenues and expenditures for ongoing municipal 
services and is the primary means by which 
government is controlled.  The life span of an operating 
budget typically is one year or less, as opposed to a 
Capital budget, which usually has a long-term outlook, 
showing projects spanning a several year period.   
Personnel costs, supplies, and other service/charges 
are found in an operating budget.   
 

OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES IS AN EXPENDITURE OBJECT WITHIN AN 
ACTIVITY THAT INCLUDES PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, UTILITIES, RENTS, 
AND TRAINING, FOR EXAMPLE. 
  
[P] Performance indicators measure how a program is 
accomplishing its mission through the delivery of 
products or services. 
  
Performance objectives are desired output-oriented 
accomplishments which can be measured within a given 
time period. 
  
Personal Services is an expenditure object within an 
activity, which includes payroll and all fringe benefits. 
  
Proposal “A” is a State constitutional amendment 
approved by the electorate in 1994 that limits the 
increase in taxable value of individual parcels to the 
Consumer Price Index or 5%, whichever is lower.  This 
applies to all properties that do not transfer ownership.  
Properties that change ownership or where additions or 
new construction takes place can be assessed at 50% of 
fair market value. 
  
[R] Results-oriented budgeting is a management concept 
that links the annual line item budget to departmental 
results of operations. 
  
Revenue is defined as an addition to the assets of a fund 
which does not increase a liability, does not represent the 
recovery of an expenditure, does not represent the 
cancellation of a liability without a corresponding 
increase in any other liability or a decrease in assets, and 
does not represent a contribution of fund capital in 
enterprise or in intra-governmental service funds. 
  
[S] SAD is the acronym for special assessment district. 
  
The service statement shows general and specific service 
deliveries rendered by an activity for the community. 
 

337



The Special Revenue Fund is used to   account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
special assessment, expendable trusts, or the major 
capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 
  
STATE SHARED REVENUE REFERS TO THE PORTION OF THE $.06 
SALES TAX RETURNED TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS BASED ON PER 
CAPITA TAXABLE VALUE, POPULATION AND RELATIVE TAX EFFORT. 
  
Supplies is an expenditure object within an activity, 
which includes all supplies that have a useful life of less 
than one year and/or a purchase price of less than 
$500. 
  
Surplus refers to an excess of the assets of a fund over 
its liabilities and reserves. 
  
[T] TRANSFERS - IN/OUT ARE LEGALLY AUTHORIZED FUNDING 
TRANSFERS BETWEEN FUNDS IN WHICH ONE FUND IS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR THE INITIAL RECEIPT AND THE OTHER FUND IS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR THE ACTUAL DISBURSEMENT. 
  
[U] Unreserved Fund Balance is the balance of net 
financial resources that are spendable or available for 
appreciation or the portion of fund balance that is not 
legally restricted. 
  
[W] WATER & SEWER FUND:  THE ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACCOUNT 
FOR THE OPERATION OF THE WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM.  THE 
REVENUES CONSIST OF CHARGES FOR SERVICES FROM CITY 
BUSINESSES AND RESIDENCES THAT ARE USED TO PAY FOR ALL 
WATER AND SEWER RELATED EXPENSES. 

338



 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 9, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Timothy Richnak, Department of Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
Subject: Troy Family Daze Festival 

 
 
The City of Troy has been approached by the North Woodward Community Foundation to host the 
2014 Troy Family Daze Festival. In the attached letter, the North Woodward Community Foundation 
describes its current struggle to find a suitable home for the festival since the proposed sale of the 
section of Zion’s property, which was formerly used. The foundation has evaluated and contacted 
several private property owners to host this event with little success. The festival requires 7 to 8 acres 
of vacant property, three of which are required to be paved. In addition to these requirements, 2,000 
parking spots are required.  
 
The North Woodward Community Foundation is requesting the City of Troy to host the 2014 Troy 
Family Daze Festival by only providing a suitable site that can be used this year on September 11-14 
and in the future. The foundation would have complete control and responsibility of all functions 
associated with the festival including security and liability, which would be through a Special Use 
Permit. The foundation is suggesting a grant would be provided to the city in an estimated amount of 
$10,000 a year.  
 
Although the North Woodward Community Foundation states the organization will be responsible for 
all functions, there will be a cost to the City of Troy to administer the Special Use Permit. 
Administration responsibility will include the assistance and approval of festival layout, assistance 
with infrastructure needs, and other general oversight to ensure permit compliance.  
 
Boulan Park has been selected by the city and the foundation as the most suitable location meeting 
all the necessary requirements. The North Woodward Community Foundation has prepared a letter of 
intent to use Boulan Park for the festival including parking arraignments, which is attached. The 
foundation understands that it will be responsible for all damages associated with the festival 
including any turf damage from vehicle parking. 
 
The Recreation Department has identified three organizations that have reserved the shelters at 
Boulan Park for the same time as the proposed Troy Daze Festival. Two of the groups’ space needs 
can be accommodated at other parks. The Troy Youth Assistance is the third and would like to work 
with the North Woodward Community Foundation to hold the events consecutively. The North 
Woodward Community Foundation is comfortable with working with the Troy Youth Assistance in this 
effort and would be an effort facilitated by the city. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board’s support is divided in the proposed recommendation to 
host the event at Boulan Park. Two members were adamantly against hosting the event at the park 

stewartc
Text Box
I-04



2 

 

with concerns of damage to the park. Three members suggested support only if the City of Troy had 
the ability to close the festival at its discretion for weather or crowd issues. One member was in 
complete support of the event. The City of Troy administration agrees that the city will require the 
ability to make decision including closing the festival if it is in the best interest of the community and to 
preserve the city’s assets from damages. 
 
One of the largest concerns from the administration is the potential damages caused from parking on 
the turf. This will require the North Woodward Community Foundation to obtain a bond to cover any 
potential damages caused by the event in addition to the required liability insurance. This item will be 
introduced by Kurt Bovensiep Superintendent Parks, Streets and Drains as regular business. In 
addition, Tom Kaszubski, Executive Director with the North Woodward Community Foundation will be 
present to answer any questions as city administration seeks direction from City Council on how to 
proceed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 

 



4 

 

 



5 

 

 



 

 
 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

 ______________________________________________________________________         
 
Date:             April 22, 2014              
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 

Paul Featherston, SAFEbuilt 
William Nelson, Fire Chief 

  R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
 
Subject: Oakland County One Stop Ready Program 
 

 
The City of Troy has been invited to participate in the 2014 Oakland County One Stop 
Ready Program – a community focused economic development program built upon self-
evaluation, information sharing, and outstanding customer service.  In 2013, seven 
communities participated in the program.  The OSR Program enables communities to 
share best practices and information on planning, development and building processes.  
The purpose is to help participating communities capitalize on their strengths and refine 
their economic development processes in order to advance each community’s ability to 
attract, retain and expand investment. 
 
Participation in the program involves attending the OSR Academy which includes four 
sessions focused on best practices and information sharing.  These sessions are open 
to interested staff, elected and appointed local officials.  Sessions are scheduled to take 
place in the early evening on June 25th, July 23rd, September 24th and October 29th.   
 
The attached Program Overview provides a one-page summary of the initiative.  Bret 
Rasegan and Dan Riley, representatives from the Oakland County Economic and 
Community Affairs Department, will be present at the City Council meeting to provide 
program information and answer any questions.  Participating communities are asked to 
pass a supporting resolution by the governing body, designate a liaison and display an 
OSR poster.    
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends passing the attached resolution enabling Troy to 
participate in the 2014 Oakland County One Stop Ready Program. 

stewartc
Text Box
I-05



OSR Academy
Year One Year Two

Program Components

Completing these three steps sets in motion a two year One Stop Ready Program collaboration!

Getting Started
Oakland County makes a presentation
to the elected body about the One Stop
Ready Program.  It is an informational
session outlining the importance of
readiness and the details of the 
program.

The governing body of the community 
supports a resolution
stating that the leadership of the
community will participate and 
support the work of becoming,
and being, One Stop Ready.

Resolution Poster Signing
The elected and appointed
leadership and staff sign an OSR
Poster to display at the municipal
office.  The poster shows the
community is participating in the
One Stop Ready Program.

Liaisons
Oakland County and the
community designate liaisons to
act as communication conduits to
work collaboratively to advance
the One Stop Ready program.

The one Stop Ready Program encourages communities to capitalize on their strengths and refine their
economic development processes for the purpose of implementing their community vision.

Being ready for economic and community development is not simply approving projects.  It means
understanding the effects of leadership, process and time, and implementing a culture of collaboration with
community stakeholders, businesses, developers, residents and resources.

The One Stop Ready program encourages communities to think of themselves in the context of a developer, a
business or a resident making a decision to locate, or invest, in their community.

How do they perceive the community?  Why have they chosen this location?  What are their deadlines?

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

Community officials and staff will participate in
four, 2-hour long, interactive learning sessions.
The sessions cover fundamental ways
communities can be strategic in making
economic development decisions.

Liaisons must complete the four Academy
sessions in one year.  Elected and appointed
officials and other staff can take two years.

All OSR communities attend the same sessions.
This begins community information sharing and
builds mutual awareness and appreciation for
each others strengths and barriers.

Economic Context and Community Vision
Tax revenue, public services, amenities, assets

An Investor’s Perspective
Developer constraints, time frames, financing
deadlines, weather

Management Structure
Concept meetings, pre-application meetings and
administrative approval

Implementation Best Practices
PUD, tax abatement, conditional re-zoning

Sessions
All sessions are repeated allowing
local representatives the opportunity
to participate in all sessions.

Liaisons and other staff can repeat the
sessions as a refresher.

New communities joining the program
will be attending also.

Sessions

Tools & Strategies

Throughout the program a community’s
economic development readiness will be 
strenghthend by implementing and/or refining
a set of tools and strategies.

The OSR Program has five core tools and
strategies that are considered best practices. In
year one, the goal is to document and evaluate
how current community operations align with 
these best practices.  Also to document and
evaluate other tools and strategies being
employed.

The county and community liaisons with
assistance from Oakland County Business
Roundtable representatives will collaboratively
document & evaluate and refine & monitor the
impact of the best practices.

A business with the greatest product in the 
world won’t maximize their success if no one 
knows about the business, or their product.  The 
same thinking applies to communities.  Informa-
tion about a community’s One Stop Ready status 
and the tools and strategies being employed will 
be shared with residents, investors and brokers.

Marketing
Internet and Social Media
Throughout year one the emphasis is on proactively 
sharing a community’s OSR progress with stakeholders.  
Communities will be encouraged to keep the economic 
development information current on their websites and 
utilize Blogs, Facebook, Linkedin and Twitter to post progress

Oakland County will assist OSR communities by using
the county web resources and training.

Open House
During year two, the county will assist 
the community in promoting and 
holding an investor and broker open 
house.  The purpose of the open house 
is for investors and brokers to meet 
community and county staff and officials, 
and learn about the best practices being 
employed and other services offered.

OSR Forum

All One Stop Ready community and county
liaisons will meet twice a year as a group.  The
meetings are intended to share successes,
identify problems and improve the OSR program.

Discussion Topics
What tools and strategies are in place, how have they
evolved over year one, what changes are planned for year
two, what tools and strategies will be taken on from other 
communities and a review of the OSR program.

Discussion Topics
How communities have refined their
tools and strategies, methods of
monitoring progress and a review of
the OSR program.

Document & Evaluate the alignment of community
tools and strategies with OSR recommended best
practices

OSR Best Practices

        Free Pre-application Meetings

        Internet accessibility:
        Applications and fee schedules
        Plans, ordinances, regulations and maps
        Adopted policies and parameters of use

        Mechanism to track projects from application through
        occupancy

        Mechanism to gather input on from the business
        community

        Clear permitting processes and efficient time frames

       Other Community Tools and Strategies

Refine & Monitor community tools
and strategies so they support OSR
recommended best practices.

Monitoring techniques that may be
used are meetings with investors,
follow up surveys and tracking of
projects from concept through
occupancy and Oakland County
Business Roundtable input.

Purpose

One Stop Ready Program Guide Page 9



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
April 16, 2014                          
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 

 
Subject: Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 

2014/15 Budget 
 

 
The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) recommended approval of its proposed 2014/15 
budget at the April 15, 2014 BRA meeting. City management recommends that City Council approve 
the BRA’s proposed 2014/15 budget. 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-06



Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Meeting April 15, 2014 
 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:02 p.m. in the Council Boardroom, Troy City Hall 
by Vice Chairperson Joseph Vassallo (Chairperson Bruce Wilberding has moved out of 
the City and has resigned from the committee).  
 
Members Present: Joseph Vassallo 
   Dan Brake 
   Theodore Dziurman 
   Rosemary Kornacki 
   Robert Swartz 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary/Treasurer) 
 
Resolution # BRA 2014-04-01 
Moved by Dziurman 
Seconded by Swartz  
RESOLVED, that Joseph Vassallo be elected as Chairperson. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
Resolution # BRA 2014-04-02 
Moved by Vassallo 
Seconded by Swartz  
RESOLVED, that Rosemary Kornacki be elected as Vice Chairperson. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
Resolution # BRA 2014-04-03 
Moved by Swartz 
Seconded by Brake 
RESOLVED, that Mark F. Miller be elected as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 



Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Meeting April 15, 2014 
 

2 
 

2014 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
2014 BRA meetings are scheduled on April 15th and October 21st at 3:00 pm.  Meetings 
are held in the Council Boardroom at Troy City Hall. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM OCTOBER 15, 2013 
 
Resolution # BRA 2014-04-04 
Moved by Dziurman 
Seconded by Brake 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of the October 15, 2013 regular 
meeting. 
 
Yeas:  5  
Nays:   0 
Absent:  0  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #6  - MJR Troy Grand Project Update 
 
Mark F. Miller provided an update on the MJR Troy Grand Project including construction 
progress, project financing and schedule.  The project is expected to open to the public 
in June of 2014. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2014/15 BRA Budget 
 
Mark F. Miller provided an overview of the budget to the BRA and answered questions 
related to it. 
 
Resolution # BRA 2014-04-05 
Moved by Dziurman 
Seconded by Brake 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the 2014/15 Budget. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
General discussion took place. 



Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Meeting April 15, 2014 
 

3 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:37 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is October 21, 2014 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
 
 



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Estimated Budget Budget Budget Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes-MJR  $                         -  $                    -  $                     -  $           22,980  $           69,451  $          69,451 

Property Taxes-TCF                      3,240                 2,735                  2,735                 2,758                 2,690                2,690 

Interest Income                      1,533                 2,500                  2,500                 1,200                 1,200                1,200 
Total Revenues                     4,773                5,235                 5,235              26,937              73,341             73,341 

EXPENDITURES
Administrative Expenses                    25,000                 2,500                  2,500                 5,000                 5,000                5,000 
Audit Fees                      1,800                 1,800                  1,800                 1,800                 1,800                1,800 
Tax Tribunals                             -                        -                         -                        -                        -                       - 
Payment to TCF Bank                      3,240                 2,735                  2,735                 2,758                 2,690                2,690 
Payment to MJR                             -              463,495                         -               11,585                        -                       - 
Other expenditures                             -                        -                         -                        -                        -                       - 
TOTAL - EXPENDITURES                   30,040            470,530                 7,035              21,143                9,490               9,490 

Change in Fund Balance                  (25,267)           (465,295)               (1,800)                5,794              63,851             63,851 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 764,811                 739,544            739,544             274,249            280,043            343,895           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 739,544$              274,249$         737,744$         280,043$        343,895$        407,746$        

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

Beginning Balance 549,558$               549,558$          549,558$           86,063$            86,063$            129,544$         
Loan payments from MJR -                            -                       -                       -                      43,481             52,650             
Loan payments (to) MJR -                            (463,495)           -                       -                      -                      -                     
Ending Balance 549,558                86,063             549,558           86,063            129,544          182,194         

Unassigned Fund Balance 189,986                188,186           188,186           193,980          214,351          225,551         
Total Fund Balance 739,544$              274,249$         737,744$         280,043$        343,895$        407,746$        

014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

Revolving Fund/Fund Balance

 1



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Budget Budget Budget Estimated Estimated

TCF Bank

Base Taxable Value  $               197,940  $          197,940  $          197,940  $         197,940  $         197,940 

Taxable Value                   335,890              332,531              332,531             335,856             339,215 

Captured Taxable Value                 137,950            134,591             134,591            137,916            141,275 

TCF Bank Tax Revenues                     2,758                2,690                 2,690                2,757                2,824 

MJR Theature

Base Taxable Value  $            1,025,640  $       1,025,640  $       1,025,640  $      1,025,640  $      1,025,640 
Taxable Value                2,175,240           4,500,000           4,500,000          4,545,000          4,590,450 
Captured Taxable Value              1,149,600         3,474,360          3,474,360         3,519,360         3,564,810 

MJR Theature Tax Revenues                   22,980              69,451               69,451              70,350              71,259 

Millage Rates
City Less Debt Service                    9.8000               9.8000                9.8000               9.8000               9.8000 
County                    4.6461               4.6461                4.6461               4.6461               4.6461 
Community College                    1.5844               1.5844                1.5844               1.5844               1.5844 

Tax Capture and Millage
2014/15 through 2016/17

y g
Oakland County Transportation                    0.5900               0.5900                0.5900               0.5900               0.5900 
Intermediate School District                    3.3690               3.3690                3.3690               3.3690               3.3690 

Total                 19.9895            19.9895             19.9895            19.9895            19.9895 

 2



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

MJR Revolving Fund Debt Service MJR Interest and Admin Fees Totals

Prior MJR

Admin Admin Paid  Total 

Beginning Prior Interest Fees Fees Ending Interest Interest Admin Admin on  Tax 

Year Balance Principal Outstanding Outstanding Interest (1% Outstanding) Balance Paid Outstanding Paid Outstanding LSRRF  MJR 

2014/2015     463,495              -   13,905                    4,635   463,495   11,395            2,510          -            4,635 11,395        22,980        

2015/2016     463,495     43,481              2,510            4,635   14,119                    4,706   420,014   16,629                  0   9,341                  0 69,451        69,451        

2016/2017     420,014     52,650                    0                  0   12,600                    4,200   367,364   12,600                  0   4,200                   - 69,451        69,451        

2017/2018     367,364     55,655                    0                   -   11,021                    3,674   311,708   11,021                  0   3,674                   - 70,350        70,350        

2018/2019     311,708     58,791                    0                   -     9,351                    3,117   252,917     9,351                  0   3,117                   - 71,259        71,259       

2019/2020     252,917     62,068                    0                   -     7,588                    2,529   190,849     7,588                  0   2,529                   - 72,185        72,185       

2020/20201     190,849     65,490                    0                   -     5,725                    1,908   125,359     5,725                  0   1,908                   - 73,124        73,124        

2021/2022     125,359     69,061                    0                   -     3,761                    1,254     56,298     3,761                  0   1,254                   - 74,075        74,075        

2022/2023       56 298     56 298                    0                   -     1 689                       563             0     1 689                  0      563                   - 58 550        58 550        

MJR 
Revolving Loan Schedule

2022/2023       56,298     56,298                    0                        1,689                       563             0     1,689                  0      563                    58,550        58,550        

 3



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
April 30, 2014                          
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 

 
Subject: Approval of the Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee 

Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget 
 

 
The Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee (LDFA) recommended approval 
of its proposed 2014/15 budget at the April 28, 2014 LDFA meeting. City management recommends 
that City Council approve the LDFA’s proposed 2014/15 budget. 
 

 

stewartc
Text Box
I-07



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee       
Annual Meeting of April 28, 2014 

 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:40 p.m. in the Council Boardroom at Troy’s City 
Hall by Chairperson Robin Beltramini.   
 
Members Present: Chairperson Robin Beltramini 
   Paul Hoef 
   Michael Kidder 
   John Sharp  

Irene Spanos (County representative, non-voting) 
   Councilperson Ellen Hodorek (alternate) 
   Mayor Dane Slater (alternate) 
 
Members Absent: David Shields 
  Nickolas Vitale 
 
Officers Absent: Secretary/Treasurer Mark F. Miller 
   
Also Present:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 

Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chair, Secretary/Treasurer) 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2014-04-01 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Sharp 
 
RESOLVED, that the following be elected: 
 
 Chair    Robin Beltramini 
 Secretary/Treasurer  Mark F. Miller 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:   0 
Absent:   
 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2014 
 
The regular meeting schedule for 2014 was provided for informational purposes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2014-04-02 
Moved by Sharp 
Seconded by Hoef 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA approve the minutes of the October 28, 2013 regular 
meeting. 



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee       
Annual Meeting of April 28, 2014 

 

2 
 

 
Yeas:  6  
Nays:   0 
Absent:    
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. 2014/15 Budget 

 
Glenn Lapin provided an overview of the proposed 2014-2015 budget. 

 
Resolution # LDFA 2014-04-03 
Moved by Hoef 
Seconded by Kidder 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA recommends approval of the 2014/15 Budget to City 
Council. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 
 

B. Future LDFA/SmartZone Considerations 
 

Glenn Lapin provided an overview of the options available through the State of 
Michigan to extend the duration of the existing Troy SmartZone beyond its current 
expiration date of December 31, 2017.  Information on a five-year and a fifteen-year 
extension option was provided.  Discussion took place including comments related 
to the importance of Automation Alley to the City of Troy and State of Michigan and 
the desire to engage in strategic alliances to extend the duration of the SmartZone, 
as appropriate.   
 

Resolution #LDFA 2014-04-04 
Moved by Sharp 
Seconded by Kidder 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA authorizes staff to move forward with investigating a five- 
year extension of the current SmartZone, as appropriate. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee       
Annual Meeting of April 28, 2014 

 

3 
 

 
Resolution #LDFA 2014-04-05 
Moved by Sharp 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA authorizes staff to investigate, in cooperation with 
Automation Alley and other potential partners, if the fifteen-year SmartZone extension 
option is a viable and prudent option.  The LDFA would like to review staff 
recommendations prior to proceeding with an application. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:23 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is October 27, 2014 – 3:30 p.m. 



Local Development Financing Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Estimated Budget Budget Budget Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes  $                 86,234  $          141,790  $           131,656  $          138,300  $          139,000  $     141,900 

Interest Income                          420                    500                     640                    500                    500               500 

Total Revenues                    86,654             142,290             132,296            138,800            139,500       142,400 

EXPENDITURES

Automation Alley - Operations                     92,359                60,000                60,000               57,000               61,950          63,690 

Infrastructure                              -                        -                52,662              122,500               55,600          56,760 

Tax Tribunals                              -                        -                         -                        -                        -                   - 

Administrative Services                     50,000                 5,000                  5,000                 5,000                 5,000            5,000 

Marketing Costs (Membership)                     15,000                15,000                15,000               15,000               15,000          15,000 

Audit Fees                       1,950                 1,950                  1,950                 1,950                 1,950            1,950 

Other                          575                        -                     575                    472                        -                   - 

TOTAL - EXPENDITURES                  159,884               81,950             135,187            201,922            139,500       142,400 

Change Before Other Financing                  (73,230)               60,340                (2,891)             (63,122)                        -                   - 

SURPLUS (USE) OF FUND BALANCE                  (73,230)               60,340                (2,891)             (63,122)                        -                   - 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 88,012                   14,782              14,782               75,122              12,000              12,000         

ENDING FUND BALANCE 14,782$                75,122$           11,891$            12,000$           12,000$           12,000$      

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Industrial Real Property Taxable Taxable Taxable

Real Base Taxable Value 13,016,380$       13,016,380$      13,016,380$      

Real Taxable Value 13,052,800        13,183,328       13,315,161       

Industrial Real Captured Value 36,420              166,948           298,781           

Commercial Personal Property

Personal Base Taxable Value 1,431,000          1,431,000         1,431,000         

Personal Taxable Value 2,110,680          2,089,573         2,110,469         

Commercial Personal Property Captured Value 679,680            658,573           679,469           

Industrial Personal Property

Personal Base Taxable Value -                        -                       -                       

Personal Taxable Value 5,759,915          5,644,717         5,588,270         

Commercial Personal Property Captured Value 5,759,915         5,644,717        5,588,270        

Total Captured Value 6,476,015$       6,470,238$      6,566,520$      

Tax Revenues

Industrial Real Revenues 995$                  4,562$              8,164$              

Commercial Personal Revenues 16,321               15,814              16,315              

Industrial Personal Revenues 121,028             118,607            117,421            

Total Revenues 138,344$          138,983$         141,900$         

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget 

Captured Taxable Value 

 1



Local Development Financing Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Millage Oakland City School *1/2 1/2 Community Hold

Rates County Debt OCPTA OP School OP-12 ISD College Harmless Total

Industrial Real 4.64610    9.82000     0.59000     -       9.00000         1.68450    1.58440      -      27.32500     

Commercial Personal 4.64610    9.82000     0.59000     3.00000     -           1.68450    1.58440      2.68705    24.01205     

Industrial Personal 4.64610    9.82000     0.59000     -       -           1.68450    1.58440      2.68705    21.01205     

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 

Date:             April 29, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
    
Subject: Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/15 

Budget (Introduced by: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community 
Development) 

 

 
The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) approved their proposed 2014/15 budget at the April 
16, 2014 DDA meeting. 
 
The City-captured tax rate of 10.5 mills, Oakland County 4.65 mills and Oakland County Community 
College. 1.58 mills was used in determining the DDA property tax revenue, based on a captured 
taxable value of $71,665,210 in fiscal year 2014/15. 
 
The DDA’s proposed fiscal year 2014/15 budget is hereby submitted to City Council for their 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\My Documents\Agenda Items\2014\Word Files\05.12.14 – Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget 

stewartc
Text Box
I-08



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Introduction

In order to prevent further deterioration and to encourage economic development of the 
Downtown District, the City of Troy established the Downtown Development Authority of the City 
of Troy (the TDDA) pursuant to Act 197 of 1975 (Act 197) and an ordinance adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Troy on July 12, 1993 and amended on September 28, 1998, February 7, 
2000, August 5, 2002, December 16, 2002, June 4, 2007 and October 7, 2013.

The TDDA in it's first six Tax Increment Financing and Development Plans identified specific 
sources of funding to finance the implementation of a plan for physical improvements to the 
Downtown District identified in this plan as the Development Area.

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

The purpose of the Tax Increment Financing and Development Plans are to provide for the 
construction and financing of the necessary streets, sidewalks, street lighting, landscaping, 
parking garage and other facilities, Kmart and Civic Center projects, widening of Rochester and 
Big Beaver roads to improve traffic flow; provide and expand existing public facilities on the 
civic center site to serve the needs of the TDDA businesses and the citizens of the City of Troy; 
to fund improvements contained in the Big Beaver Corridor Study and to carry out the objectives 
of the TDDA so as to prevent the further deterioration of the Downtown Development Area while 
preserving and promoting economic growth for the benefit of all taxing units located within and 
benefited by the Troy Downtown Development Authority.

 1



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Introduction

The TDDA issued three separate bond issues in 2001, 2002 and 2003.  The bonds were “naked tax 
increment bonds” secured solely by the tax increment revenues to be derived from the 
properties in the Downtown District.  This is rare in Michigan and was based on the then 
perceived strength of the Downtown District’s taxable values and the ability of properties in the 
Downtown District to generate sufficient tax increment revenues to pay the debt service on the 
bonds.  While the City has a AAA rating, its full faith and credit was not utilized or pledged for 
these three bond issues.

The initial value of the district in 1993 was $439,230,530.  At the height of the aggregate value 
f  th  TDDA  th  l  k d t $700 929 970 d t d l   $271 014 440   I  

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

for the TDDA, the value peaked at $700,929,970 and captured value was $271,014,440.  In 
comparison, the projected value for 2014/2015 is $380,857,480 and the captured value is 
$71,665,210. The reduction in the separation between the base year value and current taxable 
value created a revenue stream reduction trending toward elimination.  This created a situation 
in which the TDDA would not be able to service the three bond issues and default was imminent. 

On October 7, 2013, a new Tax Increment Financing and Development Plan was approved.  The 
revised Plan eliminated properties that were a negative draw on the aggregate value of the 
TDDA.  The Plan authorized three functions: debt service, maintenance costs and administrative 
fees.  In addition, the TDDA and Plan were extended to 2033.  Finally, the City of Troy issued 
bonds backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including it's AAA bond rating to pay off the 
three TDDA bond series.  In conclusion, this budget demonstrates that the revision of the Plan 
provides for sufficient revenue to service the City of Troy bonds and thereby eliminates the 
threat of default of the TDDA bonds.

 2



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Estimated Budget Budget Budget Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes  $               320,854  $          216,067  $          216,040  $      1,199,000  $      1,136,100  $ 1,153,300 

City Contribution                        -              120,200                        - 

Interest Income                      3,823                    300                  6,000                        -                        -                   - 

Total Revenues                 324,677            216,367             342,240         1,199,000         1,136,100    1,153,300 

EXPENDITURES

Administrative Expenses                             -                        -                         -                        -                        -                   - 
Audit Fees                      3,070                 3,070                  3,070                 3,070                 3,070            3,070 
Tax Tribunals                   397,754               80,000              106,193             100,000             100,000        100,000 
Street Island Maintenance                    60,872              131,798                         -             136,367               81,267        107,567 
Debt Service-Prior Issues                3,267,357                        -           3,262,870                        -                        -                   - 
Debt Service-Series 2013                             -              411,721                         -             958,563             950,763        941,663 
Other expenditures                      1,152                 1,500                         -                 1,000                 1,000            1,000 
TOTAL - EXPENDITURES              3,730,205            628,089          3,372,133         1,199,000         1,136,100    1,153,300 

Change Before Other Financing             (3,405,528)           (411,722)        (3,029,893)                        -                        -                  - 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond Proceeds from General Fund         15,438,088                         -                        -                        -                   - 

Payments to Escrow Agent                             -       (17,866,244)                         -                        -                        -                   - 
Total Financing Sources (Uses)                             -        (2,428,156)                         -                        -                        -                  - 

SURPLUS (USE) OF FUND BALANCE             (3,405,528)        (2,839,878)        (3,029,893)                        -                        -                  - 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 6,245,406              2,839,878         3,029,893          -                      -                      -                 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,839,878$           -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                    -$               

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Taxable Taxable Taxable
Real Base Taxable Value (1993 initial/Revised 2013) 244,924,440$    244,924,440$   244,924,440$   
Real Taxable Value 277,809,450      275,054,900     275,068,537     
Real Captured Value 32,885,010      30,130,460     30,144,097     

Personal Base Taxable Value (1193 initial/Revised 2013) 64,267,830        64,267,830       64,267,830       
Personal Taxable Value 103,048,030      102,047,726     103,062,847     
Personal Captured Value 38,780,200      37,779,896     38,795,017     

Total Captured Value 71,665,210$    67,910,356$   68,939,114$   

Oakland Oakland City of
County Comm. College Troy Total

Millage Rates 4.65 1.58 10.5 16.73

Captured Taxable Value

 3



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Revenues Debt Service - Series 2013

Captured

Total Captured Tax Total

Taxable Taxable Revenues Debt

Year Value Value (16.7305 mills) Principal Interest Service Net

2014/2015             380,857,480     71,665,210          1,198,995      260,000   698,563       958,563       240,432 

2015/2016             377,102,626     67,910,356          1,136,174      260,000   690,763       950,763       185,411 

2016/2017             378,131,384     68,939,114          1,153,386      260,000   681,663       941,663       211,723 

2017/2018             381,917,773     72,725,503          1,216,734      260,000   671,263       931,263       285,471 

2018/2019             385,742,287     76,550,017          1,280,720      260,000   663,463       923,463       357,257 

2019/2020 *             389,599,710     80,407,440          1,345,257      260,000   654,363       914,363       430,894 

2020/20201             393,495,707     84,303,437          1,410,439      375,000   638,488    1,013,488       396,951 

2021/2022             397,430,664     88,238,394          1,476,272      440,000   618,113    1,058,113       418,159 

2022/2023             401,404,971     92,212,701          1,542,765      500,000   594,613    1,094,613       448,152 

2023/2024             405,419,020     96,226,750          1,609,922      600,000   567,113    1,167,113       442,809 

2024/2025 **             413,527,401    104,335,131          1,745,579      745,000   537,213    1,282,213       463,366 

2025/2026             421,797,949    112,605,679          1,883,949      900,000   499,813    1,399,813       484,136 

2026/2027             430,233,908    121,041,638          2,025,087      975,000   452,938    1,427,938       597,149 

Projected Tax Capture to Debt
Schedule

2027/2028             438,838,586    129,646,316          2,169,048   1,250,000   403,563    1,653,563       515,485 

2028/2029             477,615,358    138,423,088          2,315,887   1,250,000   352,781    1,602,781       713,106 

2029/2030             456,567,665    147,375,395          2,465,664   1,250,000   294,188    1,544,188       921,476 

2030/2031             465,699,018    156,506,748          2,618,436   1,275,000   227,906    1,502,906    1,115,530 

2031/2032             475,012,998    165,820,728          2,774,264   1,275,000   160,969    1,435,969    1,338,295 

2032/2033             484,513,258    175,320,988          2,933,208   1,275,000     94,031    1,369,031    1,564,177 

2033/2034             494,203,524    185,011,254          3,095,331   1,275,000     30,281    1,305,281    1,790,050 

*  = 1% Increase
** = 2% Increase

 4



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

TAX INCREMENT PROCEDURE

Tax increment revenue to be transmitted to the TDDA is generated when the current taxable 
value of all properties within a development area exceeds the initial assessed value of the 
properties. The initial assessed value is defined in Act 197 as the assessed value of all taxable 
property within the boundaries of the development area at the time the ordinance establishing 
the tax increment financing plan is approved, as shown by the most recent assessment roll of 
the municipality for which equalization has been completed at the time the ordinance is 
adopted. The current assessed value refers to the assessed value of all properties, real and 
personal, within the development area as established each year subsequent to the adoption of 
the tax increment financing plan. The amount in any one year by which the current taxable 
value exceeds the initial assessed value, including real and personal property, is defined as the 
"captured taxable value". The tax increment revenue transmitted to the TDDA results from 
applying the total tax levy of taxing units within the development area to the captured taxable 
value.

a.

b.

c. Increases in property values which occur for any other reason.

Tax increment revenues transmitted to the TDDA can be pledged for debt service on general 
obligation tax increment bonds issued by the municipality or tax increment revenue bonds 
issued by the TDDA.

Inreases in  assessed values within a development area which result in the generation of tax 
increment revenues, can result from any of the following:

Construction of the new development occurring after the date establishing the "initial 
assessed value".

Construction of new rehabilitation, remodeling alterations, or additions accruing after the 
date establishing the "initial assessed value".

 5



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

If bonds are to be sold, the municipality may not pledge for annual debt service requirements 
in excess of 80% of the estimated tax increment revenue to be received from a development 
area for that year. In addition, the estimated annual debt service owed on bonds issued by the 
municipality may not exceed 80% of the estimated annual tax increment revenues. Should 
actual tax increment revenues fall below projections, any previously accumulated revenue 
would be devoted to retirement of the bonds. Any tax increment revenues collected in excess 
of the 80% measure described in Table 2 of the Development Plan will be used to pay current 
debt service on any bonds issued under the Plan. The bonds are subject to the Michigan 
Municipal Finance Act and may not mature in more than thirty years.

The TDDA may expend tax increment revenues only in accordance with the tax increment 
financing plan; surplus revenues revert proportionally to the prospective taxing jurisdictions. 
The tax increment financing plan may be modified upon approval of the governing body after 
notificaiton and hearings as required by Act 197. When the governing body finds that the 
purposes for which the plan was established have been accomplished, they may abolish the 
plan.

 6



 

 
 
May 6, 2014 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
   Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
    
SUBJECT:  2013/14 Budget Amendment No. 3 – Year End Budget Adjustments 
 
Background: 
 
City Management submits budget amendments for Council approval in accordance with Section 17 of 
Public Act 2, as amended or commonly referred to as the “Budget Act”.  Budget amendments are 
required as soon as a deviation from the budget is apparent. During completion of the budget 
process, budget study sessions and completion of the Third Quarter financial report, it is 
management’s recommendation that the following budget amendments be approved: 
 

General Fund Budget Request Budget Letter
Revenues

Transfer in from Local Streets 1,705,900$        200,000$     1,905,900$    A
Licenses and Permits 2,104,900          430,000       2,534,900       F

Expenditures
Local Street Dept 1,712,040          200,000       1,912,040       A
Engineering 1,908,070          260,000       2,168,070       B
Nature Center 85,400               5,800            91,200            C
Building Inspections 1,618,260          326,000       1,944,260       F
Transfers Out 1,120,200          2,550,000    3,670,200       D

Local Streets Fund
Expenditures 1,705,900          200,000       1,905,900       A

Drug Forfeiture Fund
Revenues 119,900             235,600       355,500          E
Expenditures 62,000               25,000          87,000            E

Capital Fund
Revenues 13,341,400        2,550,000    15,891,400    D
Expenditures 14,994,900        2,550,000    17,544,900    D  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-09



 
 
 
 
Comments 
 

A. The Local Streets Department is requesting an additional $200,000 to cover costs for local snow 
and ice control due to the extreme weather conditions during the winter of 2014. The General 
Fund Local Streets Department expenditures are reimbursed back to the General Fund through 
funding from the Local Streets Special Revenue Fund. Accordingly, any increase in the General 
Fund Local Streets Department would create an increase in the Local Streets Special Revenue 
Fund due to reimbursements back to the General Fund. 
 

B. The Engineering Department is requesting an additional $260,000 due to increased contractual 
services for road inspections from the “Troy Roads Rock” program as discussed during the 
budget study sessions. 
 

C. The City has responsibility for maintaining the building and grounds of the nature center. It is 
estimated that it will require an additional $5,800 to cover City employee wages and supplies for 
this maintenance. This is not a subsidy to the “operations” of the nature center. 

 
D. City Management proposed and City Council agreed in the “Troy Rocks Road Program”. This 

budget amendment recognizes the anticipated work in the 2014 fiscal year. The proposal 
included a transfer from the General Fund in the amount of $2,550,000 to the Capital Projects 
Fund where the expenditures will be incurred. Accordingly, the Capital Projects Fund has the 
corresponding proposed amendments. 
 

E. The City police department participated in a joint task force event that resulted in a significant 
drug forfeiture seizure. Due to the City being the lead agency in the seizure, it was up to the City 
to collect the funding (the revenue portion) and distribute it out to other participating agencies (the 
expenditure portion). This budget amendment reflects that action. 

 
F. The City contracts SafeBuilt to provide building inspection and related services. SafeBuilt fees 

are designed as a percentage of fees received by the City. This budget amendment reflects the 
expected increase in fees received by the City, and accordingly, the increased fees due to 
SafeBuilt. 
 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 12, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Request for Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Management Plan / Rizzo 

Environmental Services. (Introduced by: Public Works Director, Tim Richnak) 
 

 
History  
The County of Oakland enacted and the State of Michigan approved the Oakland County Solid Waste 
Management Plan in 2000.  
 
Rizzo Environmental Services has requested to have the Oakland County Solid Waste Management Plan 
amended. The amendment is to add a Type A Transfer Station and Waste Processing Facility located at 900 
Baldwin Avenue Pontiac Michigan. They have sought and gained approval from the host community of 
Pontiac, Oakland County Solid Waste Planning Committee and the Oakland County Board of Commissioners. 
Oakland County conducted a 90 day public comment period regarding the proposed plan amendment. The 
amendment must also receive approval from 2/3 of the all Oakland County communities to be added to the solid 
waste plan.  
 
The Oakland County Solid Waste Management Plan states that the plan is to be updated every 5 years. It has 
not had an update since it was enacted. Oakland County has experienced significant changes in population, 
employment, waste generation, landfill capacity and recycling technology and the plan no longer reflects the 
current conditions in Oakland County. This request is an amendment to the plan and not a full review and 
update of the plan. Separate from this amendment the City of Troy requests that Oakland County Solid Waste 
Management Plan have a full review and update in a timely manner. 
 

There are no Purchasing items to consider. 
Purchasing  

 
Financial  
There are no financial considerations. 
 
Recommendation   
City Management is in support of this amendment and recommends a vote of approval for the resolution.  
 
City Management additionally recommends a vote of approval for the attached resolution to have Oakland 
County fully update the 2000 Solid Waste Management Plan in accordance with State law after the current 
amendment process is completed.   
 
 
TLR/tlr\S:DPW AGENDA ITEMS\05.12.14 Request for Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Plan \Rizzo Environmental Services 

stewartc
Text Box
I-10



































 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

April 22, 2014 
 
 
Re: Request for Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Plan 
 
 
To All Oakland County Communities: 
 
In October, we wrote to you as we began the process to amend the County Solid Waste 
Plan.  We are very pleased to report to you that Rizzo Environmental Services, Inc. 
(“Rizzo”) has made substantial progress in our efforts to redevelop the former Pontiac 
Fiero plant site into a transfer station/waste processing plant. 
 
Last week, on April 17th, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners voted 
unanimously to approve the Amendment.  On March 26th, the Oakland County Solid 
Waste Planning Committee, by an 11-1 vote, approved the recommendation for the 
requested Amendment.  That approval followed on the heels of a vote on March 24th of 
the Pontiac City Council, by a 6-0 margin, approving support of the Amendment and a 
modification to the Host City Agreement for additional benefits to Pontiac. 
 
We are extremely pleased with the passage of these three significant milestones.  At 
this point, state law requires that two-thirds of all Oakland County communities pass a 
resolution of approval.  We respectfully request your consideration for approval of the 
Amendment to the County Solid Waste Plan (the “Rizzo Amendment”).  Our goal is to 
acquire the necessary resolutions by June 30th and we ask for your kind 
assistance in that regard. 
 
These votes are the result of broad support for the Amendment as evidenced by the 
attached letters from: 
 

• Pontiac City Councilwoman/President Pro-Tem Mary Pietela 

• County Commission Chairman Mike Gingell 

• County Commissioner/County Solid Waste Planning Committee Chairman 
Robert Hoffman 

 
For the reasons stated below, we urge affirmative action by your community: 
 
Amendment Compliance with State Environmental Goals.  The Rizzo Amendment will 
comply with State environmental goals, as stated in Part 115 













Solid Waste Management Plan Amendment Resolution 

WHEREAS, Oakland County (“County”) has a Solid Waste Management Plan (“Plan”) that was 

prepared in accordance with Public Act 451, as amended, 1994, Part 115;  Solid Waste 

Management;  and 

WHEREAS, the law requires that the Plan identify all solid waste landfills, Type A Transfer 

Stations, and Waste Processing Facilities within the County and that the Plan must be amended 

if the County desires to include new facilities or sites; and 

WHEREAS, the Oakland County Executive received a request to amend the County Solid 

Waste Management Plan for the inclusion of a proposed Type A Transfer Station and a Waste 

Processing Facility to be located on the same piece of property in Pontiac at 900 Baldwin 

Avenue from Pontiac Baldwin, LLC and Rizzo Properties LLC (“Requested Amendment”);  and 

WHEREAS, The Oakland County Solid Waste Planning Committee (“SWPC”), along with the 

staff of the Oakland County Economic Development & Community Affairs Department, which is 

the Designed Planning Agency (“DPA”) for Oakland County have met and discussed this 

requested amendment to the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Oakland County Solid Waste Planning Committee authorized by resolution that 

the requested amendment be released for the required 90-day public comment period which 

was held from December 14, 2013-March 17, 2014 and was widely publicized to all Oakland 

County municipalities, adjacent counties, the Board of Commissioners, the MI Department of 

Environmental Quality, SEMCOG and other interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the public comment period and date of a public hearing was published in 

The Oakland Press on December 13, 2013 and all corresponding documents were available for 

public review in the Oakland County One Stop Shop, as well as on the Oakland County website; 

and 

WHEREAS, the applicants ,Baldwin Pontiac, LLC and Rizzo Properties LLC have entered into a 

host community agreement with the City of Pontiac to provide the City of Pontiac additional 

benefits; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 26, 2014 at the Oakland County Executive 

Office Building; and 

WHEREAS, the SWPC met after the end of the 90-day public comment period and reviewed the 

transcript of the public hearing and considered all written and verbal public comments received 

during the meetings and public comment period. The SWPC approved the requested 

amendment and recommended that it be forwarded to the Oakland County Board of 

Commissioners for consideration; and  

WHEREAS the Oakland County Board of Commissioners approved the requested amendment 

at its April 17, 2014 meeting; and 



WHEREAS, per Public Act 451, Part 115, Solid Waste Management, Section 11536, it is a 

requirement that a solid waste plan amendment must receive support via resolution by no less 

than 67% of the local units of government within the respective county before being sent to the 

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality for approval;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 

 ________________________ of the ________________________________________  
(Board/Council)    (Municipality name) 
 

does hereby approve the requested amendment to the Oakland County Solid Waste Plan for 

the inclusion of a Type A Transfer Station and Solid Waste Processing Facility to be located at 

900 Baldwin Avenue in Pontiac, MI.  

AYES: 

NAYS: 

DATE: 

 

 



STANDARD RESOLUTION – Update of the Oakland County Solid Waste 
Management Plan 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby requests that Oakland County fully update the 

2000 Solid Waste Management Plan in accordance with State law.  

 

WHEREAS, Oakland County has experienced significant changes in population, employment, 

waste generation, landfill capacity and recycling technology and the plan no longer reflects the 

current conditions in Oakland County. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Oakland County begins this review and update without 

delay after the current amendment process is completed.   

 
 
 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 28, 2014 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
    
Subject: Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions – City Manager and City Attorney 

Evaluations 
 
 
City Council periodically conducts performance evaluations for the City Manager and City Attorney, 
since these two positions report directly to City Council. 
 
The “personnel evaluation” exception of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(a) allows for such 
personnel evaluations to take place in closed session if requested by the person being evaluated.  
Through this memo, both of us request our performance evaluations be held in a closed session. 
 
Proposed resolutions, without specific dates or times, are prepared for your consideration.  
If Council would like the evaluations to be scheduled at a date or time other than at the closed 
session portion of a regularly scheduled City Council meeting, then a special meeting would need to 
be scheduled.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G: my documents/Agenda Items/2014/05.12.14 – Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions – City Manager and City Attorney Personnel Evaluations 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-11



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 1 - 

Pastor Mark Novak from First Baptist Church of Troy performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, April 14, 2014, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming  
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Mayor Slater Presented Presented the National Library Week 2014 Proclamation to 

Cathy Russ, Library Director 
 

C-2 Cathy Russ, Library Director, Recognized the Troy Library Mini Grant From the 

Brinker International Charitable Committee  
 

C-3 Mike Kerr Presented the Recognition Plaque From the Michigan Veterans 

Foundation to Friends of Troy Public Library VP Eve Parsons  
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Conditional Rezoning Application (File CR 011) – Proposed Amber Town Center 

Townhomes and Lofts, 3409 Livernois, Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB 

(Big Beaver) District 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the following residents or 
business owners: 
 

Lavanway, Ted Spoke in support of E-01. 

Warner, Robert Spoke in opposition to E-01. 

Crusse, Karen Spoke in opposition to E-01. 

Welch, Grayson Spoke in support of E-01. 

Werpetinski, Jim Spoke in opposition to E-01 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 2 - 

Moross, Arthur Spoke in opposition to E-01. 

Peters, Richard Spoke on E-01. 

Fahmy, Michael Spoke in opposition to E-01. 

Sawyer, Tom Spoke in opposition to E-01. 

 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Tietz  
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a proposed rezoning request from O Office District to BB 
Big Beaver District; and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant voluntarily offered a number of conditions, as described in the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related attachments, as per Section 16.04 of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, The subject property, located on the northwest corner of Livernois and Town 
Center, parcel 88-20-21-426-010, being approximately 1.23 acres in size, and described on the 
attached Certified Survey; and 
 
WHEREAS, The conditional rezoning was recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed rezoning is supported by the Master Plan and advances the general 
and specific development policies of the Master Plan; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the O to BB Conditional 
Rezoning Agreement and related attachments, including Version 3 elevations, as revised by 
the applicant; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 

Vote on Resolution to AMEND Item E-1Conditional Rezoning Application (File CR 011) – 
Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, 3409 Livernois, Section 21, From 
O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Resolution #2014-04-054 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AMENDS Item E-1 Conditional Rezoning Application (File 
CR 011) – Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, 3409 Livernois, Section 21, 

From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District by STRIKING “Version 3” in the sixth (6
th

) 

paragraph, and INSERTING “Version 2, with additional elevations of brick on the South side, as 
approved by the Planning Director.” 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, Hodorek, Pennington, Tietz, Slater  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 3 - 

No: Campbell 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote On Resolution As Amended 
 
Resolution #2014-04-055 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a proposed rezoning request from O Office District to BB 
Big Beaver District; and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant voluntarily offered a number of conditions, as described in the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related attachments, as per Section 16.04 of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, The subject property, located on the northwest corner of Livernois and Town 
Center, parcel 88-20-21-426-010, being approximately 1.23 acres in size, and described on the 
attached Certified Survey; and 
 
WHEREAS, The conditional rezoning was recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed rezoning is supported by the Master Plan and advances the general 
and specific development policies of the Master Plan; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the O to BB Conditional 
Rezoning Agreement and related attachments, including Version 2 with additional elevations of 
brick on the South side, as approved by the Planning Director and revised by the applicant; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, Pennington, Tietz, Slater 
No: Hodorek, Campbell  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 4 - 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Charter Revision Committee, Personnel Board and 

Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:   

 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Frank Howrylak 

 Term currently held by: Frank Howrylak 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Cynthia Wilsher 

 Term currently held by: Cynthia Wilsher 
 

 
Resolution #2014-04-056 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Item I-2b) City Council Appointments – 
Charter Revision Committee by dividing the appointments in order to consider one applicant 

at a time.  Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Frank Howrylak 

 Term currently held by: Frank Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 5 - 

   
Yes: Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Fleming, Henderson  
No: Hodorek, Campbell  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #2014-04-057 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Pennington  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Cynthia Wilsher 

 Term currently held by: Cynthia Wilsher 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #2014-04-058 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Deborah Baughman 

 Term currently held by: Deborah Baughman 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Michael Rosenberg 

 Term currently held by: Ann Comiskey 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #2014-04-059 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Campbell  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 6 - 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 A. Allen Kneale 

 Term currently held by: A. Allen Kneale 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2017 Dave Lambert 

 Term currently held by: Dave Lambert 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority, Planning Commission; b) City Council Nominations –

Historic District Commission 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   

 

City Council TOOK NO ACTION on this Item. 

 

b) City Council Nominations:   
 

City Council TOOK NO ACTION on this Item. 
 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 
 

I-4 Do Not Knock Ordinance – Chapter 74 Amendment (Introduced by:  Aileen Bittner, 
City Clerk) 

 
Resolution #2014-04-060 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Pennington  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 74, Solicitations, of the Troy City 
Code in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Administration. A copy of this ordinance 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 7 - 

I-5 Troy-RCOC Concrete Pavement Replacement Program (Introduced by:  Brian 
Kischnick, City Manager, and Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer) 

 
Resolution #2014-04-061 
Moved by Hodorek  
Seconded by Campbell  
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the $10,535,000 Troy-RCOC Concrete 
Pavement Replacement Program for comprehensive concrete pavement replacement on the 
following RCOC roads: 
 

 Long Lake, Rochester to Livernois 

 Dequindre, Big Beaver to 14 Mile Road 

 Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre 

 John R, Long Lake to Maple Road 

 Long Lake, Livernois to Northfield Parkway 

 Big Beaver, Adams to Civic Center 

 Crooks, Wattles to Square Lake; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the transfer of 
$5,000,000 from the General Fund Fund Balance to be used as a match to approximately 
$5,500,000 in outside funding. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That budget amendments WILL BE PROCESSED AND 

PRESENTED to City Council to reflect actual expenditures under this program to reconcile 
costs within the appropriate budget year. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-6 General Fund Balance Policy (Introduced by:  Thomas Darling, Director of 
Financial Services) 

 
Resolution #2014-04-062 
Moved by Hodorek   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the General Fund Balance Policy as 

submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 8 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Pennington  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) Joint Special City Council and Downtown Development Authority Meeting-Draft – April 2, 
2014 

b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – April 7, 2014 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   

a) Library Week – April 13-19, 2014 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder - Concrete Slab 

Replacement Program 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years as needed for Concrete Slab Replacement to the low bidder; 
DiLisio Construction Inc., of Clinton Township, MI; for an estimated total cost of $5,515,000 for 
Fiscal Year 2014/2015, at the unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 27, 

2014, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  The annual 
cost of which shall not exceed annual budgetary limitations; with the contract to expire 
December 31, 2016. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications - Transit 

Mixed Concrete 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one (1) year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to 
the sole bidder meeting specifications, to Superior Materials, LLC, of Farmington Hills, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 10, 2014, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting to be purchased on an as-needed basis as 
specified, with the contract expiring April 30, 2016. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase three (3) 2015 
Sierra 2500 HD GMC 4X4 pickups from Red Holman Buick, GMC of Westland, MI, through the 
Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total cost of $77,313.00 
as per the Oakland County Contract ID #4096. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – HGAC Cooperative Purchasing 

Contract – Fleet Vehicles  
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase (1) 2015 
TYMCO Model 600 Regenerative Air Sweeper from TYMCO, Inc. of Waco, TX, through the 
HGAC Cooperative Purchasing Contract for an estimated total cost of $197,975.00, as per the 
HGAC Contract ID number SW 04-14. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal Program – 

Portable/Changeable Message Signs 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase two (2) Addco 
All LED Portable/Changeable Message Signs from Bell Equipment Company of Lake Orion, MI 
for an estimated total cost of $34,800.00, at prices detailed and contained in the attached quote 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 10 - 

as per the Michigan MiDeal Contract #071B1300075, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 14-30 – 2014 

Troy-RCOC Concrete Pavement Replacement Program 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-4f 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 14-3, 2014 Troy-RCOC 
Concrete Pavement Replacement Program to Dilisio Contracting, Inc., 23525 Lakepointe, 
Clinton Twp., MI 48036 for a total cost not-to-exceed $5,106,000, at unit prices contained in 

their bid, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements.   
 

J-5 2014 NHPP/Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacement – Big Beaver, Adams 

to Civic Center 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County (Board) for the 2014 NHPP/Tri-Party Program is 

hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $100,054;  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy SHALL ADVANCE $2,000,000 to the 
project and be reimbursed from $1,600,000 in FY 2015 National Highway Prevention Program 
(NHPP) funds and $400,000 from the Board’s local match with reimbursement to the City of 
Troy after October 1, 2014. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the 

agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 

J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – 1-800-

Mini Storage Building Addition – Project No. 14.905.3 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and West Maple 
Ventures, LLC, for the installation of a public water main, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 

AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 11 - 

J-7 State of Michigan Grant Agreement – QVF Oracle/Equipment Upgrade Project  
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the State of Michigan Grant 
Agreement for the Qualified Voter File (QVF) Oracle/Equipment Upgrade Project. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to sign the 

agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-8 Intergovernmental Agreement – Michigan Centralized Birth Certification System 

(MiCBCS) 
 
Resolution #2014-04-063-J-8 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Intergovernmental Agreement 
between the Michigan Department of Community Health and the City of Troy for the Michigan 
Centralized Birth Certificate System (MiCBCS). 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to sign the 

agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Sawyer, Tom Spoke about National Tom Sawyer Days in Hannibal, Missouri, including the 
national fence painting tournament. 

 
Resolution #2014-04-064 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Fleming 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES Public Comment, Council Rule #17, 
Members of the Public & Visitors, to allow Mr. Tom Sawyer to continue his public comment at 
the request of the Chair and by majority vote of City Council members elect. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 12 - 

 

Sawyer, Tom Continued by requesting a City of Troy flag to take back to Hannibal, 
Missouri. 

Mayernik, John Spoke about experiencing sidewalk issues and an inopperable crosswalk 
button while biking in Troy. 

Werpetinski, Jim Spoke requesting that the City invest in a dog park, as well as to allocate 
funding for senior programs and the Nature Center, Historical Society, Troy 
Youth Assistance, and Troy Community Coalition. 

Peters, Richard Spoke about various topics, including violent crimes occurring in schools in 
the United States.  

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Council Member Henderson requested City Manager Kischnick address the problems with the 
sidewalks at the Livernois culvert. City Manager Kischnick indicated that the Livernois culvert is 
scheduled to be repaired this summer. 
 
Council Member Hodorek announced that the City of Troy is sponsoring a Red Cross Blood 
Drive at the Community Center on April 24, 2014, from 9:00 AM to 8:45 PM.  Walk-ins are 
welcome.  Contact Community Affairs at (248) 524-1147 for more information. 
 
Council Member Hodorek announced that Troy People Concerned will be hosting their Annual 
Spring Pasta Dinner at the San Marino Club on April 24, 2014 from 5:00-8:00 PM.  Tickets are 
$15 for adults, and $5 per child under 10 years old.  Entertainment includes music, cash bar, 
50/50 raffle, silent auction, caricatures, magician and fun for the kids.  Contact Troy People 
Concerned at (248) 528-9199 or www.troypeopleconcerned.org for more information. 
 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
 

O-2 Department Reports:   
a) 2014 First Quarter Litigation Report  

Noted and Filed 
 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Mayer From Richard Dylewski Jr. Regarding Department Assistance for the 

Funeral Process of Former Fire Chief Harvey Malone, Clawson Fire Department 
Noted and Filed 

 

http://www.troypeopleconcerned.org/


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 14, 2014 

 

- 13 - 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 

Q-1 No Study Items 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:53 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2014 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Tuesday, April 21, 2014, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell  
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek 
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz  

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 
(Budget is available for review at the City Clerk’s Office, Troy Public Library.) 
 
Mayor Slater opened the meeting and thanked City Manager Kischnick and Staff for their hard 
work in putting together this budget. He turned the conversation over to City Manager Brian 
Kischnick. Mr. Kischnick announced that tomorrow, April 22

nd
, road work will begin on Long 

Lake Road. He also announced the website TroyRoadsRock.com so the public can track all the 
road work throughout Troy. Mr. Kischnick began discussing the PowerPoint presentation titled, 
“Major Budget Changes,” and gave an overview of the discussion items for tonight and also the 
Special Budget Study Session on Wednesday, April 23, 2014. 
 
Mr. Kischnick discussed the Management Letter located on pages 4-12 of the Budget 
document. He then discussed highlights of the Introductory Section of the Budget. Mr. 
Kischnick concluded the overview by discussing the New Positions chart on page 63 and the 
General Fund chart on page 67.  
 
Mr. Nino Licari, City Assessor, discussed Taxable Value using the PowerPoint presentation. 
Council Member Fleming asked if commercial property values will rebound. Mr. Licari answered 
that in the next year, the values will flatten out and we should see increases after that. 
 
Mr. Tom Darling, Director of Finance and Administrative Services, presented slides and 
discussed the Millage Summary. 
 
Mr. Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development Services, discussed 
economic development activity. He introduced Mr. Paul Featherston of SAFEbuilt. Mr. 
Featherston discussed the presentation slides regarding Building Activity.  
 
Mr. Darling discussed the presentation slides regarding the General Fund Summary. Council 
Member Hodorek asked if there are any indications from Lansing to verify the numbers in the 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2014 
 

- 2 - 

Budget. Mr. Kischnick answered that the State provides these numbers on the State’s website, 
and will be updated every six months. 
 
Chief Gary Mayer, Captain Robert Redmond, Captain Keith Frye, Lieutenant Tom Gordon and 
Lieutenant Chris Stout discussed the presentation slides regarding the Police Department 
Budget. Council Member Fleming asked if Somerset Collection is the only mall that pays for 
Police Department special detail. Chief Mayer said that Oakland Mall pays for Christmas 
Season detail. Council Member Tietz asked if the forfeiture trend decrease is due to criminals’ 
financial hardship. Captain Frye answered that the decrease is due to criminals’ utilizing more 
electronic funds than actual currency. Chief Mayer said most of the forfeiture money comes 
from Troy Police Department’s involvement with the federal task force. 
 
Mr. Tim Richnak, Director of Public Works, discussed the presentation slides regarding the 
Department of Public Works Budget. Mr. Rick Shepler, Water and Sewer Superintendent, 
discussed the slides regarding water and sewer rates. Mr. Darling discussed the status of the 
Water Fund and the Sewer Fund. Mr. Kurt Bovensiep, Parks, Streets and Drains 
Superintendent, discussed the presentation slides regarding the Streets and Drains Division 
Budget.  
 
Mayor Slater asked Mr. Bovensiep if there is an opportunity to bring back employees who were 
laid off. Mr. Bovensiep answered that all the staff reductions were done through attrition, so 
there are no laid off employees to bring back. Council Member Hodorek commented that the 
efficiencies and operations are very obvious in the numbers in the DPW Budget. 
 
Chief Bill Nelson discussed the presentation slides regarding the Fire Department Budget. 
Council Member Fleming asked what kind of timetable is there for the proposed changes to be 
in place. Chief Nelson answered that negotiations are ongoing. Mr. Darling commented that the 
actuary numbers should be available soon. Mr. Kischnick commented that City Management 
has been working on this issue for quite some time with the actuaries and the committee, and 
that a Study Session will be scheduled once the numbers are confirmed. He said that the 
current budget is what Council will be deciding, and changes for the future plan will be 
presented to Council before future budgets are decided. 
 
Mr. Miller discussed presentation slides regarding the Recreation Budget. He pointed out that 
Ms. Elaine Bo is the current Recreation Director, and Brian Goul is the current Assistant 
Recreation Director.  
 
Mr. Steve Vandette, City Engineer, discussed slides regarding the Engineering Budget. 
Mrs. Gert Paraskevin discussed the presentation slides regarding the Information Technology 
Budget. Mrs. Paraskevin and Mr. Bovensiep also discussed the partnership of Information 
Technology with the Streets Division throughout the winter of 2013/2014. Mrs. Paraskevin and 
Ms. Cathy Russ, Library Director, discussed the partnership of Information Technology with the 
Troy Public Library. Council Member Pennington complimented the updated online snow 
removal map. Council Member Fleming asked if there is payback for the electronic time and 
attendance system. Mrs. Paraskevin answered that there isn’t really a payback, but it will free 
up employees who do the entry and maintenance on the existing program to work on other 
tasks. Mr. Richnak commented that the Supervisors in DPW have become reactive due to staff 
reductions. With the proposed new system, Supervisors will have easier access to work log 
records and will make the current staff more efficient. Ms. Russ added that she has a staff 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2014 
 

- 3 - 

member that spends 10% of her time working on timesheets. This proposed new system will 
free up that employee to work on other tasks. The proposed new system will also free up staff 
members who work on scheduling. Mr. Richnak added that the current time clock in DPW is 
obsolete and cannot be serviced any longer. The proposed new system will also free up staff in 
DPW who work on timesheets and scheduling so they can work on other tasks. Mr. Darling 
commented that the proposed new system will reduce redundancy in the Finance Department, 
add internal controls, and free up Finance staff to work on other tasks.  
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:00 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:10 PM. 
 
Ms. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk, discussed the presentation slides regarding the Elections Budget. 
 
Ms. Loraine Campbell, Director of the Troy Historic Village, discussed the presentation slides 
regarding the Historic Village Budget and the City’s investment in the Historic Village. 
 
Mr. Tom Lakocy, Acting President of the Troy Nature Society, discussed the presentation slides 
regarding the Nature Center Budget and the City’s investment in the Nature Center. Mayor 
Slater asked if City Management is recommending the $75,000 request of the Nature Center. 
Mr. Kischnick answered that City Management is recommending status quo of $50,000. Mayor 
Pro Tem Henderson asked if the additional staffing will be to find new funding sources. Mr. 
Lakocy replied the additional funding will pay for the Executive Director to be full-time. Council 
Member Hodorek said she understands the predicament that the Nature Center is in while 
trying to obtain grants. She asked that Council consider what the extra $25,000 would mean to 
the Nature Center and, that this money would mean the ability to fundraise. Mayor Pro Tem 
Henderson asked when the Nature Center will be able to stand on its own. Mr. Lakocy 
answered he anticipates that this would be a one-time request for additional funds. Council 
Member Tietz asked if the Nature Society has a plan to obtain grants and funding from other 
sources. Mr. Lakocy answered that the young age of the Nature Society was a hinderence in 
fundraising but is not an issue as much now that they have been in existence more than two 
years. Mayor Slater said he understands the difficulties that the Nature Society has in 
fundraising, but Council would like to see a strategic plan. Council Member Fleming 
commented that the budgeted amounts for wages and payroll are projected to be a lot more 
than the donations and grants revenue projections. He would like to see how the Nature 
Society will be increasing the revenue from donations and grants in future budget years, and 
the correlation between City funds and how the funds are used by the Society. 
 
Mayor Slater said he is willing to give $75,000 to both the Nature Society and the Historic 
Village, and would like to see a strategic plan from the Nature Society. Mayor Pro Tem 
Henderson said he agrees with Mayor Slater, but, he would like to see the correlation between 
the funds from the City and the use of those funds by the Nature Society. Council Member 
Hodorek said she supports giving both the Nature Society and the Historic Village each 
$75,000. Council Member Campbell would like to wait until Wednesday to take a consensus of 
Council. He agrees with giving both organizations each $75,000, but would like to see the 
strategic plan from the Nature Society. Council Member Pennington agreed that he also 
supports giving both organizations each $75,000, but would like to see the strategic plan from 
the Nature Society. Council Member Tietz said he would like to see a strategic plan from the 
Nature Society. Mayor Slater asked if there is a consensus to approve the request for funds 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2014 
 

- 4 - 

from both organizations and to also ask the Nature Society to provide a strategic plan to 
Council by September, 2014. Council Member Fleming agrees and thinks the strategic plan is 
very important. Mr. Kischnick asked for clarification regarding the three-year budget. Mayor 
Slater provided clarification that the additional $25,000 be given to the Nature Society for one 
budget year with the understanding that the strategic plan be provided in September, 2014. 
The remaining years of the three-year budget for both organizations will remain status quo. The 
Historic Village will receive $75,000 per year. The Nature Society will receive $75,000 this year, 
and $50,000 the remaining two years. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson commented it is tougher to 
say no to increases when there is a budget surplus. 
 
Chief Mayer introduced Nancy Morrison, Executive Director of the Troy Community Coalition. 
Mrs. Morrison discussed the presentation slides regarding the Troy Community Coalition 
Budget. She also discussed partnerships with the Troy Police Department and the City of Troy. 
Council Member Fleming asked how much in funding the Troy Community Coalition is 
requesting. Ms. Morrison answered $25,000. Council Member Tietz requested that Ms. 
Morrison provide Council with the budget for the Troy Community Coalition prior to the meeting 
on Wednesday evening. Ms. Morrison commented that the organization had a grant with 
matching funds that sustained them, but the grant ended and the City wasn’t able to provide 
funding during the recession. Chief Mayer commented that the partnership with Troy 
Community Coalition is very valuable to the work of the Police Department. Council Member 
Hodorek said she attended a workshop that discussed the partnership between Troy Police 
and Troy Community Coalition. She said that the partnership is appreciated by many people. 
 
Chief Mayer introduced Leonette Ciepielowski, Advisor for Troy Youth Assistance, and Police 
Officer Kristine Shuler. Ms. Ciepielowski discussed the budget of Troy Youth Assistance and 
the partnership with Troy Police and Oakland County. She said that when the City’s funding 
was eliminated, Troy Youth Assistance sought funds through many fundraising campaigns. Ms. 
Ciepielowski requested that City Council approve the request for $10,000. Officer Shuler 
commented that Troy Youth Assistance provides many services to the Police Department in 
prevention but also during court proceedings and referrals. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson 
commented that he knows many parents who wish they had Troy Youth Assistance available to 
them when their children were growing up. 
 
Council Member Tietz requested to see the budgets from TYA and TCC. There was a 
consensus of Council to approve all the requests of funding from the nonprofit organizations 
who presented tonight. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 

Roger Kowalski Spoke about the value of the City’s investment in the Nature Center and 
thanked Council for approving the request 

 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 10:56 PM. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2014 
 

- 5 - 

 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 23, 2014 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Tuesday, April 23, 2014, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell  
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek 
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz  

 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 
(Budget is available for review at the City Clerk’s Office, Troy Public Library.) 
 
Mayor Slater opened the meeting and turned the discussion over to City Manager Kischnick. 
 
Mr. Kischnick provided an overview of the agenda for tonight’s meeting. He then discussed a 
summary of the May 21

st
 Budget Study Session. Mr. Kischnick highlighted the Firefighter 

Incentive Plan, the Library and Library Millage, the Historic Village, Nature Center, Troy Youth 
Assistance and Troy Community Coalition items discussed on Monday, May 21

st
. 

 
Mr. Kischnick turned the discussion over to Mr. Tom Darling, Director of Finance and 
Administrative Services. Mr. Darling discussed presentation slides regarding capital projects. 
Mr. Bill Houtari, Deputy City Engineer, discussed presentation slides covering Capital 
Expenditure Highlights – Major Roads and Local Streets. Mr. Kurt Bovensiep, Parks, Streets 
and Drains Superintendent, discussed presentation slides covering Capital Expenditure 
Highlights – Park Projects. Council Member Campbell asked why a dog park would cost almost 
$500,000. Mr. Bovensiep answered that since there is not a suitable location in an existing 
park, an area will need to be redeveloped in order to create the dog park. Council Member 
Hodorek asked if an area has been identified. Mr. Bovensiep answered not as of today. Council 
Member Tietz asked if there is a plan of how to generate outside funding. Mr. Bovensiep 
answered that there are not funds available for matching State grants but outside funds would 
be from public-private partnerships. Council Member Fleming asked if City funds would be 
spent only when matching funds are found. Mr. Bovensiep answered that City funds would only 
be spent once matches are found. Mr. Kischnick added only if Council authorized funding. 
Council Member Hodorek asked if we are missing an opportunity by waiting for matching funds. 
Mr. Bovensiep answered that we are not missing opportunities, and it will be possible to have 
connectivity to some of the existing trails with the proposed plan. Council Member Tietz asked 
what the millage rate is for the Capital Project Fund and if it is citizen approved. Mr. Darling 
answered that the millage rate is 1.53 mills and that it is part of the capped 8.1 mills between 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02c



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 23, 2014 
 

- 2 - 

the General Fund and the Capital Project Fund. Mr. Kischnick referenced page 25 of the 
Budget. Mayor Slater asked Mr. Kischnick to talk a little about Capital Fund Balance. Mr. 
Kischnick answered that the Capital Fund and General Fund are separate funds, with separate 
fund balances. He referred to page 43, All Fund Summary, and then to page 46, Capital Project 
Fund, for information about funds and fund balances. Council Member Hodorek asked if at 
some point Council decided to not explore the connectivity of trail projects, and if that is 
something Council should explore. Mayor Slater answered that at one time, Council was 
moving toward setting aside money for trails, prior to 2008, with a goal of $250,000, but, once 
the recession hit, that money was used for more urgent issues. He continued that now it seems 
we can start over again with funding for trails. Mr. Miller added that there was a committee 
studying the idea and plan for trails, and that the study could be brought back to Council. Mr. 
Kischnick added that trails are a significant conversation piece and is back on the City’s radar, 
but roads are our number one priority right now.  
 
Mr. Kischnick began the discussing regarding Issues, and turned the discussion over to Mrs. 
Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director. Mrs. Menig discussed presentation slides 
regarding staffing and new positions. 
 
Police Chief Gary Mayer, discussed the presentation slides regarding hiring in the Police 
Department. He turned the discussion to Police Lieutenant Tom Gordon who discussed staffing 
levels and hiring in the Police Department. Mr. Kischnick commented that last year, Council 
wanted to know what could be done to move along the hiring process, and the advancements 
that have occurred in the Human Resources processes have made a huge improvement to that 
end. 
 
Mr. Kischnick introduced the topic of Health Insurance and turned the discussion back to Mrs. 
Menig, who began discussing presentation slides comparing health insurance plans. Council 
Member Fleming asked if there is a stop loss in Community Blue. Mrs. Menig answered there is 
a stop loss. Mr. Darling discussed presentation slides regarding active healthcare participants. 
Council Member Pennington asked if the “None” column means that some employees opt out 
of health coverage? Mr. Darling answered yes, some employees opt not to take City health 
insurance. Mr. Kischnick added that we are moving in the right direction. Mr. Darling continued 
by discussing healthcare budget vs. claims. Mr. Kischnick commented that the gap between 
conservative budgeted dollars and lower actual costs for healthcare is what contributes to 
General Fund Balance as well. Mrs. Menig continued by discussing health and wellness 
programs. Council Member Pennington asked if the free fitness classes for employees are at 
the Community Center. Mrs. Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director, answered that they are 
free and are at the Community Center for all City employees and retirees. 
 
Ms. Cathy Russ discussed the presentation slides regarding the Troy Public Library, 
partnerships, strategic plan, technology, and marketing. Mr. Andrew Opalewski, Marketing 
Coordinator, discussed the presentation slides regarding the Library brand and marketing. Ms. 
Russ continued by discussing the impact of new and proposed staff positions in the Library as 
well as a financial review summary. Council Member Fleming asked if the budget for hardcopy 
books has been reduced in favor of e-books. Ms. Russ answered that yes, the Library is 
spending less money on hardcopy books and more money on e-books. She clarified that one 
copy of an e-book is the same as one copy of a hardcopy book, so the Library needs to 
purchase more copies and licenses for e-books. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked if fines ever 
offset costs for new books. Ms. Russ answered that fines are a significant part of the Library 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 23, 2014 
 

- 3 - 

revenue, but they are variable. Council Member Hodorek applauded the idea of the Tween 
Librarian, and feels it is a great way to connect with the school district and that age group. 
 
Mr. Kischnick introduced the topic of Marketing Initiatives. Mr. Opalewski discussed the work he 
has been doing with the Library and City Management regarding developing a unique brand, 
forming connections with residents and businesses, marketing the Transit Center, the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center and the Troy MJR Theater. Mrs. Stewart discussed presentation slides 
regarding communicating, marketing and branding the City of Troy. She also discussed the 
upcoming 60

th
 Anniversary celebration in 2015. Mayor Slater asked if there is a timetable on 

branding and signage. Mrs. Stewart answered that in the next three months, we will start 
seeing results of the work on branding. 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:44 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 8:55 PM. 
 
Mr. Kischnick introduced Mr. Don Tillar, General Manager of Troy Golf Courses, from Billy 
Casper Golf. Mr. Tillar discussed the relationship between the City of Troy and Billy Casper. Mr. 
Tillar discussed the presentation slides regarding the Billy Casper contract with the City of Troy 
for management of the City golf courses, and the impact of winter of 2013/2014. Mayor Slater 
asked if the capital issues have been budgeted this year. Mr. Tillar answered that those issues 
are being addressed directly out of the golf course revenues. Mayor Slater asked if 
replacement of the Sylvan Glen irrigation system needs to be planned. Mr. Tillar answered that 
in the near future, the irrigation system replacement will need to be installed. Mr. Mark Miller, 
Director of Economic and Community Development added that City Council will have the 
opportunity to schedule the replacement in the Capital Improvement Plan and prioritize all the 
capital needs. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked if the solutions proposed for the winterkill at 
Sylvan Glen will resolve those issues. Mr. Tillar answered that repair has already begun at 
Sylvan Glen and will continue as long as necessary.  
 
Mr. Tim Richnak, Director of Public Works, and Rick Shepler, Water and Sewer 
Superintendent, discussed presentation slides regarding Detroit Water and Sewerage Update. 
Council Member Fleming thanked Mr. Richnak for the presentation on this topic. He 
commented that anything the City and residents can do to advocate for regional authority 
control of the water system will be very helpful. He continued by asking if the City is looking into 
a water storage tank. Mr. Richnak answered yes, but there are many restrictions and 
regulations that prevent a tank from being practical in Troy. He added that he will bring 
information to City Council as it develops. Council Member Hodorek asked if Mr. Richnak 
needs anything more formal than consensus of Council to bring information back. Mr. Richnak 
answered that there is nothing at this time, but a resolution in the future will help. 
 
Mr. Kischnick referred to page 43 as the start of the wrap-up of the two Budget Study Sessions. 
He said Council should be pleased with the condition of the budget and the City overall. Mayor 
Slater said page 3 through the executive summary explains almost everything about the 
Budget.  
 
Mayor Slater pointed out that the Budget Public Hearing is May 12, 2014. He encouraged 
everyone to send Mr. Kischnick questions and comments prior to that hearing.  
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft April 23, 2014 
 

- 4 - 

Council Member Fleming commented that he is concerned that as of 2018, the fund balance 
will be below the policy percentage. He said that it is important to note that the decrease in fund 
balance is due to money being put into important capital projects. He asked if Mr. Kischnick is 
concerned about the decreasing fund balance. Mr. Kischnick answered that the decrease is 
due to one-time expenditures in capital, specifically roads, that are critical. He said that the 
Budget is in balance, the City is financially on stable ground, and budgeting and spending will 
be in accordance with Fund Balance Policy. Mayor Slater said he looks forward to seeing the 
Capital Plan and what is in the future for capital projects. Mr. Kischnick clarified that he was 
talking about the General Fund Balance. 
 
Council Member Tietz asked about the budgeted $1 million Firefighter Incentive Plan item on 
the slide and what is the $1.2 million number referenced. Mr. Kischnick explained the actuary 
was $1,078,000 based on $642 per year. Mr. Kischnick said that Management has not asked 
for that increase, but it is what has been discussed in negotiations with the volunteers. Mayor 
Slater is in favor of providing a good incentive to the volunteer firefighters. Council Member 
Tietz said he is also in favor of the plan. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: No Public Comment was offered. 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:56 PM. 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 28, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets and Drains 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 - Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Parking Lot 

Maintenance Program- Boulan Park 

 
History 
The Department of Public Works is responsible for the maintenance and repair for all municipal parking lots. 
Asphalt parking lots that receive an asphalt overlay has a general deterioration schedule of 7-15 years.  The 
Department of Public Works schedules maintenance based on actual deterioration and requests Capital Funds 
accordingly.  Boulan Park’s entrance drive and west parking lot have both deteriorated and require an asphalt 
overlay and new parking lot stripping. 
 
Purchasing 
On April 17, 2014, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for the Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program- Boulan Park.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network 
(MITN) website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Seven (7) bid 
responses were received for both Proposal A and Proposal B.  Below is a detailed summary of potential 
vendors for both bid opportunities: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 229 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 4 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 3 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 1 
Companies that viewed the bid  43 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

  
After reviewing the bid responses, Asphalt Specialties, Inc. of Pontiac Michigan was the low bidder meeting 
specifications for both Proposal A and B and is being recommended for the asphalt overlay at Boulan Park.   
 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Department of Public Works Capital Budget. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to complete an asphalt overlay to Boulan Park’s entrance 
drive and west parking lot, for an estimated total cost of $146,707.75 and not to exceed budgetary limitations to 
Asphalt Specialties, Inc. of Pontiac Michigan at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 17, 2104. 
The awards are contingent upon the contractors’ submission of properly executed bid documents including 
insurance certificates, and all other specified requirements.  

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 

      

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-13
Opening Date -- 4/17/2014 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 4/18/2014 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO

          THE SPECIFICATIONS.

PROPOSAL A: 3671 CROOKS ROAD - BOULAN PARK WEST PARKING LOT:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 1,620 sq. yd. $2.45 $3,969.00 $3.65 $5,913.00
2 Pavement Replacement 1,560 sq. yd. $5.50 $8,580.00 $5.50 $8,580.00
3 Subgrade undercutting, 3 x 1 780 cu.yd. $15.25 $11,895.00 $23.85 $18,603.00
4 Aggregate Base, 21AA, Limestone, 6 inch 470 Ton $16.50 $7,755.00 $20.00 $9,400.00
5 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 1,099 Ton $65.00 $71,435.00 $63.00 $69,237.00
6 HMA, 2C, 1.5 inch 129 Ton $75.00 $9,675.00 $75.00 $9,675.00
7 HMA, Hand Patching 5 Ton $125.00 $625.00 $90.00 $450.00
8 Joint and Crack Cleanout 500 LF $2.75 $1,375.00 $1.50 $750.00
9 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, yellow 5,890 LF $0.30 $1,767.00 $0.25 $1,472.50
10 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, blue 250 LF $0.50 $125.00 $0.25 $62.50
11 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, blue, Acc. Symbol 6 each $39.00 $234.00 $25.00 $150.00
12 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $4.00 $320.00 $4.00 $320.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C  N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $117,755.00 $124,613.00

PROPOSAL B: BOULAN PARK ACCESS DRIVE:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 2,395 sq. yd. $2.45 $5,867.75 $3.60 $8,622.00
2 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 341 Ton $65.00 $22,165.00 $67.50 $23,017.50
3 HMA, Hand Patching 1 Ton $100.00 $100.00 $200.00 $200.00
4 Joint and Crack Cleanout 50 LF $10.00 $500.00 $1.50 $75.00
5 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $4.00 $320.00 $5.00 $400.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPSOAL B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $28,952.75 $32,314.50

PROPSOAL A & B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $146,707.75 $156,927.50

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N
                                 Date visited
REFERENCES: Y or N
COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N
INSURANCE:              Can Meet
                                  Cannot Meet
SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N
PAYMENT TERMS:
WARRANTY:
EXCEPTIONS:
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N
FORMS COMPLETED: (5 Forms) Y or N

DENOTES LOW BIDDER
ATTEST:
Susan Riesterer
Kurt Bovensiep MaryBeth Murz,

Purchasing Manager

G:ITB-COT 14-13 Parking Lot Maintenance.xls

Ashalt Specialties, Inc. S&J Asphalt Paving Co.

725194 1427191
Pontiac, MI Canton, MI

4/9/20144/15/2014

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

$5,000.00 $5,000.00

Per Contract Monthly
Yes Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

YesYes

2 Yrs.Per Contract
Net 30Per Project Manual

YesYes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-13
Opening Date -- 04/17/2014 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Reviewed -- PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO

          THE SPECIFICATIONS.

PROPOSAL A: 3671 CROOKS ROAD - BOULAN PARK WEST PARKING LOT:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 1,620 sq. yd. $2.40 $3,888.00 $3.20 $5,184.00
2 Pavement Replacement 1,560 sq. yd. $2.30 $3,588.00 $7.15 $11,154.00
3 Subgrade undercutting, 3 x 1 780 cu.yd. $34.50 $26,910.00 $20.00 $15,600.00
4 Aggregate Base, 21AA, Limestone, 6 inch 470 Ton $23.00 $10,810.00 $22.25 $10,457.50
5 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 1,099 Ton $68.50 $75,281.50 $71.30 $78,358.70
6 HMA, 2C, 1.5 inch 129 Ton $76.00 $9,804.00 $82.37 $10,625.73
7 HMA, Hand Patching 5 Ton $250.00 $1,250.00 $110.00 $550.00
8 Joint and Crack Cleanout 500 LF $4.00 $2,000.00 $4.00 $2,000.00
9 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, yellow 5,890 LF $0.20 $1,178.00 $0.16 $942.40
10 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, blue 250 LF $0.25 $62.50 $0.16 $40.00
11 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, blue, Acc. Symbol 6 each $25.00 $150.00 $11.16 $66.96
12 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $7.50 $600.00 $5.00 $400.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C  N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $135,522.00 $135,379.29

PROPOSAL B: BOULAN PARK ACCESS DRIVE:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 2,395 sq. yd. $2.40 $5,748.00 $3.20 $7,664.00
2 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 341 Ton $68.50 $23,358.50 $67.74 $23,099.34
3 HMA, Hand Patching 1 Ton $250.00 $250.00 $110.00 $110.00
4 Joint and Crack Cleanout 50 LF $4.00 $200.00 $4.00 $200.00
5 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $7.50 $600.00 $5.00 $400.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPSOAL B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $30,156.50 $31,473.34

PROPSOAL A & B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $165,678.50 $166,852.63

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N
                                 Date visited
REFERENCES: Y or N
COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N
INSURANCE:              Can Meet
                                  Cannot Meet
SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N
PAYMENT TERMS:
WARRANTY:
EXCEPTIONS:
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N
FORMS COMPLETED: (5 Forms) Y or N

Nagel Paving Co. Pro-Line Inc.
Washington, Mi

$5,000.00
739985 1252835967

Novi, Mi.

$5,000.00

Yes

Net 30
Yes

4/11/2014
Yes
Yes

Yes

Net 30
Yes

4/16/2014
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Net 30
1 Yr.

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
Net 30

Per Contract



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-13
Opening Date -- 04/17/2014 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Reviewed -- PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO

          THE SPECIFICATIONS.

PROPOSAL A: 3671 CROOKS ROAD - BOULAN PARK WEST PARKING LOT:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 1,620 sq. yd. $4.30 $6,966.00 $4.70 $7,614.00
2 Pavement Replacement 1,560 sq. yd. $3.15 $4,914.00 $4.70 $7,332.00
3 Subgrade undercutting, 3 x 1 780 cu.yd. $32.00 $24,960.00 $30.00 $23,400.00
4 Aggregate Base, 21AA, Limestone, 6 inch 470 Ton $31.50 $14,805.00 $20.00 $9,400.00
5 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 1,099 Ton $66.65 $73,248.35 $75.00 $82,425.00
6 HMA, 2C, 1.5 inch 129 Ton $66.00 $8,514.00 $70.20 $9,055.80
7 HMA, Hand Patching 5 Ton $800.00 $4,000.00 $100.00 $500.00
8 Joint and Crack Cleanout 500 LF $1.00 $500.00 $3.00 $1,500.00
9 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, yellow 5,890 LF $0.22 $1,295.80 $0.28 $1,649.20
10 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, blue 250 LF $0.22 $55.00 $0.45 $112.50
11 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, blue, Acc. Symbol 6 each $20.00 $120.00 $39.00 $234.00
12 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $5.00 $400.00 $4.70 $376.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C  N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $139,778.15 $143,598.50

PROPOSAL B: BOULAN PARK ACCESS DRIVE:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 2,395 sq. yd. $2.55 $6,107.25 $4.70 $11,256.50
2 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 341 Ton $71.50 $24,381.50 $75.00 $25,575.00
3 HMA, Hand Patching 1 Ton $800.00 $800.00 $100.00 $100.00
4 Joint and Crack Cleanout 50 LF $1.00 $50.00 $3.00 $150.00
5 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $5.00 $400.00 $4.70 $376.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPSOAL B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $31,738.75 $37,457.50

PROPSOAL A & B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $171,516.90 $181,056.00

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N
                                 Date visited
REFERENCES: Y or N
COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N
INSURANCE:              Can Meet
                                  Cannot Meet
SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N
PAYMENT TERMS:
WARRANTY:
EXCEPTIONS:
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N
FORMS COMPLETED: (5 Forms) Y or N

DENOTES LOW BIDDER

Hutch Paving Cadillac Asphalt LLC

6425486 705882
$5,000.00 $5,000.00

Warren, Mi. Wixom, Mi.

Yes

Net 30
Yes

4/14/2014
Yes
Yes

Yes

Monthly
Yes

Pre Bid Mtg.
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Monthly
2 Yrs.

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
Net 30
2 yrs.



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-13
Opening Date -- 04/17/2014 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Reviewed -- PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO

          THE SPECIFICATIONS.

PROPOSAL A: 3671 CROOKS ROAD - BOULAN PARK WEST PARKING LOT:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 1,620 sq. yd. $3.00 $4,860.00 $0.00
2 Pavement Replacement 1,560 sq. yd. $3.35 $5,226.00 $0.00
3 Subgrade undercutting, 3 x 1 780 cu.yd. $34.40 $26,832.00 $0.00
4 Aggregate Base, 21AA, Limestone, 6 inch 470 Ton $31.00 $14,570.00 $0.00
5 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 1,099 Ton $74.65 $82,040.35 $0.00
6 HMA, 2C, 1.5 inch 129 Ton $90.00 $11,610.00 $0.00
7 HMA, Hand Patching 5 Ton $150.00 $750.00 $0.00
8 Joint and Crack Cleanout 500 LF $2.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
9 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, yellow 5,890 LF $0.15 $883.50 $0.00
10 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, 4 inch, blue 250 LF $0.15 $37.50 $0.00
11 Pavt. Mrkg., Waterborne, blue, Acc. Symbol 6 each $5.00 $30.00 $0.00
12 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $5.00 $400.00 $0.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C  N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $148,239.35 $0.00

PROPOSAL B: BOULAN PARK ACCESS DRIVE:
UNIT UNIT

ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION
1 Cold Milling Pavement, (1.5"-0") 2,395 sq. yd. $3.05 $7,304.75 $0.00
2 HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch 341 Ton $76.40 $26,052.40 $0.00
3 HMA, Hand Patching 1 Ton $310.00 $310.00 $0.00
4 Joint and Crack Cleanout 50 LF $2.40 $120.00 $0.00
5 6' Butt Joint 80 LF $5.00 $400.00 $0.00

Turf Resotoration Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
Traffic Maintenance Control Included N/C N/C N/C N/C
PROPSOAL B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $34,187.15 $0.00

PROPSOAL A & B ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $182,426.50 $0.00

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N
                                 Date visited
REFERENCES: Y or N
COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N
INSURANCE:              Can Meet
                                  Cannot Meet
SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N
PAYMENT TERMS:
WARRANTY:
EXCEPTIONS:
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N
FORMS COMPLETED: (5 Forms) Y or N

DENOTES LOW BIDDER

$5,000.00

Florence Cement Co.

Shelby Twp.

743660

Monthly
Yes

4/11/2014
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Monthly

2Yr.

Yes



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date:  May 5, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
 Tom Gordon, Police Lieutenant 

MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – New Emergency Response 

Kits for the Police Department 
 
 
History 
The Troy Police Department is fully committed to providing the highest quality service to the citizens of this 
community.  As such, based on experience, the police administration realized a need to better equip road patrol 
officers in response to critical incidents involving armed subjects that were intent on harming others, either in office 
buildings, schools, shopping centers, or other public venues.  In order to resolve the situation immediately, history 
has shown that active shooting cases evolve very quickly, forcing police agencies to respond rapidly with each officer 
carrying the gear they need.  
 
As a result of this need, the Police Department implemented a three step program to combat this ever increasing 
crime trend.   

• Step 1 occurred in 1999, following the Columbine High School tragedy.  This step involved developing and 
conducting a department-wide training in response to active shooting cases, which has occurred annually 
since its inception in 1999.   

• Step 2 was to purchase upgraded firearms, in particular, patrol rifles.  In July of 2008, the Department 
purchased sixty (60) Smith and Wesson patrol rifles and conducted department wide training with this 
weapon platform.  This training has continued annually since its inception. 

• Step 3 involves equipping each patrol officer with a load bearing vest, a level 3A ballistic helmet, ballistic 
rated protective eyewear, and a gear-bag to carry all of this equipment with them, while on patrol.   
 

This purchase will complete the Police Department’s inventory, and will insure that every City of Troy Police Officer 
will be properly equipped for this specific type of response. 
 
Purchasing 
On May 1, 2014, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for new emergency response 
kids.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info.  Four 
(4) bid responses were received.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 77 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 1 
Troy Companies notified Active email 
Notification 1 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  35 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04b



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 Purchasing (continued) 
All bid responses were reviewed in detail by line item including line items bid as alternates.  After reviewing the bid 
proposals, Protective Solutions, Inc., of Milford, MI was the lowest bidder meeting specifications and is being 
recommended for the purchase of new Emergency Response Kits. 
 
Financial 
Funds for this purchase is available in the 2013-14 Police Department Budget. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to purchase new Emergency Response Kits to the low bidder 
meeting specifications; Protective Solutions, Inc. of Milford, MI, for an estimated total cost of $19,249.60, all at prices 
contained in the bid tabulation dated May 1, 2014.   
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 Emergency Response Kits ITB-COT 14-11.doc 



Opening Date -- 5/1/2014 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-11
Date Reviewed - 5/2/2014 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2

EMERGENCY RESPONSE KITS

PROPOSAL: Furnish New Emergency Response Kits for the Troy Police Department; bid as specified or 

                     al approved equivalent.

Item Qty Item Model # Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 26
BlackHawk 
S.T.R.I.K.E. Omega 
Vest (Black)

37CL368K $88.00 $2,288.00 $81.66 $2,123.16 

2 52
S.T.R.I.K.E. AK/M4 
Double Mag Pouch - 
holds 4 (Black)

37CL88BK $24.40 $1,268.80 $29.41 $1,529.32 

3 26 S.T.R.I.K.E. Double 
Mag Pouch (Black) 37CL09BK $14.50 $377.00 $8.28 $215.28 

4 26  S.T.R.I.K.E.  Medical 
Pouch (black) 37CL18BK $22.80 $592.80 $21.38 $555.88 

5 26  S.T.R.I.K.E.  Medium 
ALERT Bag (black) 20LO4BK $135.90 $3,533.40 $146.62 $3,812.12 

6 26  5.11 Shear 
Sunglasses (black) 52013 $61.00 $1,586.00 $66.08 $1,718.08 

7 26  Condor Digi Pouch 
(black) MA66-002 $10.10 $262.60 $9.75 $253.50 

8 26  Combat Application 
Tourniquet (CAT) 30-0001 $27.00 $702.00 $29.15 $757.90 

9 52 Glock 22 .40 S&W 
Magazine

GLO-
MF91322 $25.00 $1,300.00 $18.99 $987.48 

9 104
 PMAG AR/M4 Gen 
M2 MOE, 5.56x45 
Magazine

MAGS571BLK $9.75 $1,014.00 $10.78 $1,121.12 

10 23
Protech Delta 4 
Tactical Helmet Level 
IIIA

BAA091 $346.50 $7,969.50 

10 23
Bid Alternate: Diamond 

Back DBT-
MICH-4H

$275.00 $6,325.00 

Contact Name

References Y/N
Forms (5) Y/N

Delivery
Warranty

Payment Terms
Exceptions

Bold Type Indciates Low Bidder meeting specifications or approved equivalent.

ATTEST:
Tom Gordon
Susan Riesterer
Enna Bachelor MaryBeth Murz,
G:Bid Tab/ITB-COT 14-11 Emergency Response Kits Purchasing Manager

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL

Milford, MI  

Protective Solutions, Inc. C.M.P. Distributors, Inc.
Lansing, MI  

Contact Phone
Hours of Operation

Jeffery M. Anderson

248.787.4292

9:00AM - 7:00PM

$21,043.34$19,249.60 

Y

Catherine Parks
517.974.4276

N 
45 Days ARO

Manufacturer's Warranty
Net 30 Net 30

Y

Blank

Manufacturer's

Alternate Bid Item #11 Blank

Mon-Fri 8:30-5:00/1st Sat 9pm-1pm
Y



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-11
BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
EMERGENCY RESPONSE KITS

PROPOSAL: Furnish New Emergency Response Kits for the Troy Police Department; bid as specified or 

                     alternate.

Item Qty Item Model # Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 26
BlackHawk 
S.T.R.I.K.E. Omega 
Vest (Black)

37CL368K $98.00 $2,548.00 $83.46 $2,169.96 

2 52
S.T.R.I.K.E. AK/M4 
Double Mag Pouch - 
holds 4 (Black)

37CL88BK $30.00 $1,560.00 $29.22 $1,519.44 

3 26 S.T.R.I.K.E. Double 
Mag Pouch (Black) 37CL09BK $13.00 $338.00 $12.51 $325.26 

4 26  S.T.R.I.K.E.  Medical 
Pouch (black) 37CL18BK $21.00 $546.00 $20.87 $542.62 

5 26  S.T.R.I.K.E.  Medium 
ALERT Bag (black) 20LO4BK $144.00 $3,744.00 $143.07 $3,719.82 

6 26  5.11 Shear 
Sunglasses (black) 52013 $65.00 $1,690.00 $64.48 $1,676.48 

7 26  Condor Digi Pouch 
(black) MA66-002 $9.00 $234.00 $8.68 $225.68 

8 26  Combat Application 
Tourniquet (CAT) 30-0001 $24.30 $631.80 $24.17 $628.42 

9 52 Glock 22 .40 S&W 
Magazine

GLO-
MF91322 $19.00 $988.00 $38.14 $1,983.28 

9 104
 PMAG AR/M4 Gen 
M2 MOE, 5.56x45 
Magazine

MAGS571BLK $9.25 $962.00 $14.97 $1,556.88 

11 23
Protech Delta 4 
Tactical Helmet Level 
IIIA

BAA091 $353.00 $8,119.00 $490.74 $11,287.02 

Contact Name

References Y/N
Forms (5) Y/N

Delivery
Warranty

Payment Terms
Exceptions

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL

Kiesler Police Supply, Inc. CPR Savers & First Aid Supply

Y Y
Hours of Operation 8a-5p Mon-Fri 8a-6p

Jeffersonville, IN  Scottsdale, AZ 

$21,360.80 $25,634.86
Kelsie McMahel Darryl Cooper

Contact Phone 502.931.7300 800.480.1277

0% Net 30 Net 30 Days
Blank No Exceptions

Y Y
7-120 days ARO varies per item 30 Days ARO
Standard Factory Warranty Manufacturer's Warranty



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 10, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services  
  Beth Tashnick, City Manager’s Office Coordinator 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 

Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 - Michigan Municipal League 
 
 
History 
 
The Michigan Municipal League (MML), a state association of cities and villages, is a nonpartisan, 
nonprofit association working cooperatively to strengthen the quality of municipal government and 
administration.   
 
Benefits of membership include advocacy of municipal issues and low-cost educational opportunities 
for municipal officials and employees regarding a multitude of areas for effective and efficient 
governance.   
 
Throughout the last 36 years of the City of Troy’s membership with the MML, City Council members 
and staff members have taken advantage of many continuing education opportunities, legislative 
updates, workshops, conferences and resource materials made available by the League.   
 
With our membership, we are also able to take advantage of the MML’s Workers’ Compensation 
Fund (MML WCF). The MML WCF provides Workers Compensation coverage to more than 880 
public entities throughout Michigan and provides legal expertise and defense loss control services, as 
well as claims handling services which are included in their premium.  The broker for the MML WCF 
takes competitive bids from re-insurers.  As of June 30, 2013, the re-insurer and the rating is:  Munich 
ReCAT.   
 
According to the MML, “The Michigan Municipal League Workers' Compensation Fund is the state's 
leading provider of municipal workers' compensation and risk management services.  The Fund has 
the lowest rates, the best claims service and the highest historical return of dividends of any insurer in 
Michigan.  The Fund has more than 880 members, $135 million in assets and more than $65 million 
in net member equity.  Efficient administration, effective loss control programs and proactive claims 
services have resulted in rates that are on average 50 percent lower than those of our nearest 
competitor.” 
 

The invoice reflects $1,081 for participation in the Michigan Municipal League’s Legal Defense Fund.  
The Legal Defense Fund authorizes amicus briefs in cases that have a statewide impact for Michigan 
municipalities.   The Legal Defense Fund has recently weighed in on medical marijuana cases, 
billboard cases, tax cases, governmental immunity cases, right to farm act cases, constitutional law 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

cases, municipal employment law cases, telecommunications cases and zoning cases.  In addition to 
advocating on behalf of municipal interests throughout the State of Michigan, the Legal Defense Fund 
has also specifically provided amicus briefs in cases filed against the City of Troy. 
 

Financial 
 
The City anticipates a renewal package from the MML WCF with a modification factor of .086.  This is 
a decrease of 0.11 from the prior year of 0.97.  The anticipated premium is $302,262, which is net of 
a dividend credit of $158,002. 
 
Funds are available in City Council’s membership and dues account, 102.7958. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Continued membership with the MML via payment of the attached invoice is recommended for annual 
dues in the amount of $11,886.  These dues cover the time period of May 1, 2014 through April 30, 
2015. 
 
 
Bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2014\05.12.14 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 - MML Dues 









 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 7, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Peter Hullinger, Technician 
    
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 - Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fire Station 

Brick Repair 
 
 
History 
All of the City of Troy Fire Stations and the Police and Fire Training Center have brick areas that have 
deteriorated over the past ten years and require repair to extend the life of the facilities.  The buildings 
are in need of brick repair and tuck pointing. 
 
Purchasing 
On March 20, 2014, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for Brick 
Repair for the fire Department.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  
Six (6) bid responses were received.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors for both bid 
opportunities: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 605 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 19 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 19 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  48 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

 • The need for brick repair and scope of work that is required at each location varies. 

• Pictures of each site were included with the bid specifications. 

• Prospective bidders were required to visit and evaluate each site. 

• A Post-Bid Meeting was held and each location was visited; with the low bidder so as to confirm 
the need(s) for repair, the detail of the brick repair required, and to also review potential 
problem areas not exposed that may require additional work. 

• Arisco Contracting Group, Inc. was the low bidder meeting specifications in total for Brick 
Repair bid as specified. 

• Additionally, Arisco Contracting Group, Inc. has the lowest hourly rate as compared to the other 
bid responses. 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 

      

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04d



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Financial 
Funds are budgeted in the 2013-2014 Capital Budget for these repairs.  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to furnish all equipment, material and labor for 
brick repair at the City of Troy Fire Stations and the Police and Fire Training Center as specified; for 
an estimated total cost of $15,500.00; and if necessary to complete unforeseen damage if a problem 
area were to be exposed and identified at the low bid hourly rate of $48.50 per hour; not to exceed 
budgetary limitations to Arisco Contracting Group, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI at prices contained in 
the bid tabulation opened March 30, 2104.  The awards are contingent upon the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid documents including insurance certificates, and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-02

BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2

BRICK REPAIR FOR FIRE STATIONS

Arisco Contracting Group Luigi Ferdinandi Cement National Restoration, Inc.

Clinton Township, MI Roseville, MI Milford, MI

Ck# 609491 627132 732064

Ck. Amount $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:  To furnish all equipment, material and labor for brick repair at the City of Troy Fire Stations and the Police and

and Fire Training Center in accordance with the bid specifications.

STATION #1 $4,000.00 $2,200.00 $4,500.00

1019 Big Beaver Road

STATION #2 $1,500.00 $2,200.00 $2,750.00

5600 Livernois

STATION #3 $1,000.00 $1,740.00 $3,200.00

2350 W. Big Beaver Road

STATION #4 $1,500.00 $3,900.00 $2,100.00

2103 Maple Road

STATION #5 $3,000.00 $1,840.00 $3,100.00

6399 John R

STATION #6 $2,500.00 $4,820.00 $13,600.00

5901 Coolidge

Police/Fire Training Center $2,000.00 $2,200.00 $4,000.00

4850 John R

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: $15,500.00 $18,900.00 $33,250.00

HOURLY LABOR RATE: $48.50 $55.00 $62.00

MATERIAL DISCOUNT: None None   None

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Hours of Operation 8 a.m./ 5 p.m 8 a.m./5 p.m. 7 a.m./ 5 p.m.

24HR Phone # 586-615-0077 586-615-6101 248-318-0609

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y/N Yes Yes Yes

Date 3/17/2014 3/18/2014 3/11&17/2014

COMPLETION DATE:  

Can Meet Yes Yes Yes

Cannot Meet

Offers

Work Shall Commence

5 Days after notice to 

proceed

10 Day after notice to 

proceed

14 Days after notice to 

proceed

REFERENCES: Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet Yes Yes Yes

Cannot Meet

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y OR N Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: Work per photos provided None None

WARRANTY: One Year One year One year

QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y or N

FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER MEETING SPECIFICATIONS

ATTEST:

Susan Riesterer _______________________________

Peter Hullinger MaryBeth Murz,

Purchasing Manager

G:ITB-COT 14-02 Brick Repair

Opening Date -- 03/20/2014

Date Reviewed -- 03/27/2014

June 30, 2014



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-02

BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2

BRICK REPAIR FOR FIRE STATIONS

DC Byers Company Cusack's Masonry Boss Construction

Detroit, Mi Hubbardston, MI Ecorse, MI

Ck# 22959894 55455968 835528

Ck. Amount $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:  To furnish all equipment, material and labor for brick repair at the City of Troy Fire Stations and the Police and

and Fire Training Center in accordance with the bid specifications.

STATION #1 $4,360.00 $16,200.00 $16,310.00

1019 Big Beaver Road

STATION #2 $3,425.00 $3,600.00 $12,250.00

5600 Livernois

STATION #3 $6,275.00 $7,800.00 $14,000.00

2350 W. Big Beaver Road

STATION #4 $3,500.00 $3,600.00 $17,500.00

2103 Maple Road 3600

STATION #5 $3,100.00 $3,600.00 $10,500.00

6399 John R

STATION #6 $7,190.00 $3,600.00 $14,000.00

5901 Coolidge

Police/Fire Training Center $5,500.00 $3,950.00 $15,750.00

4850 John R

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: $33,350.00 $45,950.00 $100,310.00

HOURLY LABOR RATE: $74.10 $85.00 $60.00

MATERIAL DISCOUNT: $100.00 None None

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Hours of Operation N/A N/A 7 a.m./ 5 p.m.

24HR Phone # 313-729-2134 517-331-2873 313-218-1943

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y/N Yes Yes Yes

Date 3/19/2014 2/28/2014 3/11/2014

COMPLETION DATE:  

Can Meet Yes Yes Yes

Cannot Meet

Offers

Work Shall Commence

10 Days after notice to 

proceed

20 Days after notice to 

proceed

10 Days after notice to 

proceed

REFERENCES: Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet Yes Yes Yes

Cannot Meet

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y OR N Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: None None None

WARRANTY: 2 Years One year One year

QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y or N

FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N Yes Yes No

June 30, 2014

Opening Date -- 03/20/2014

Date Reviewed -- 03/27/2014





 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 17, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Faith Lutheran Church - Project No. 13.915.3 
 

 
History 
 
Faith Lutheran Church proposes to develop Faith Lutheran Church Improvements located 37635 
Dequindre Road.   
 
Troy Planning Commission recommended preliminary site plan approval on October 22, 2013.  
 
Site grading and utility plans for this development were reviewed and recently approved by the  
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements which will be constructed by 
Faith Lutheran Church on behalf of the City of Troy: Sidewalk and Detention Pond.  The required fees 
and refundable escrow deposits in the form of Check, that will assure completion of the municipal 
improvements, have been provided by Faith Lutheran Church (see attached Private Agreement).  
 
Financial 
 
See attached summary of required deposits and fees for this Private Agreement. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-05













 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
Date:         April 22, 2014                     
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
   
From:  Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Fast-D Hoops, Inc.  
 

 
Background 
 
Attached is a request from Arthur F. Orzame, Legal Counsel for Fast-D Hoops, Inc., seeking 
recognition as a nonprofit organization for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license for 
fundraising purposes.  
 
Recommendation 
 
It has been City Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-06

























































































































 
 
Date  April 22, 2014 
 
 
TO:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 
  

History 
The Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions are responsible for the maintenance of all municipal property 
including the control of pests.  Park patrons, golf course participants, and property owners abutting some City 
of Troy maintained retention ponds have become accustomed to using these facilities with limited nuisances 
like mosquitoes.  The objective of mosquito control is not to eradicate all mosquitoes but to limit the population 
to a tolerable threshold.  The control targets both mosquito larva and adult mosquitoes at city parks, golf 
courses, cemeteries, and some retention ponds.  Although Oakland County Department of Health and Human 
Services recommends the best form of protection from mosquitoes is personal protection products, the 
mosquito control products used by professionals will decrease the mosquito population at some of our 
facilities. Based on the County formula the City of Troy is eligible for reimbursement of County approved 
expenses up to $11,418.06, which is approximately one-third of the total annual expense of $31,747.59. To 
qualify for reimbursement of eligible expenses, City Council must pass a resolution authorizing the 
reimbursement request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
Lower mosquito populations reduce the danger of insect borne diseases being transferred to the general 
public, thereby enhancing the health and safety of the community. Also by reducing the population of 
mosquitoes adds to the quality of life for Troy residents using our parks and other outdoor facilities. 
 
Options: 
The Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions recommends the City Council approve the request to seek 
reimbursement from Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund.  
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

stewartc
Text Box
J-07



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM 

 
Date:    April 24, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   
Subject: Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – April 16, 2014 
 

 
At the Traffic Committee meeting of April 16, 2014, the following recommendations were made for 
City Council approval: 
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Ogden at Keats 

 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of Ogden and Keats be modified from NO Traffic Control to a 
STOP sign on the Keats southbound approach to Ogden. 

 

4.  Request for Removal of No Parking Zone – 1914 Witherbee 
 

RESOLVED, that the No Parking restrictions, along the south side of Witherbee, between 
Graefield and Eton, be REMOVED. 

 
5.  Request for Traffic Control – Huntsford at Finch 
 

RESOLVED, that NO changes be made at the intersection of Huntsford and Finch. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WJH/wjhG:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2014\4_April 16\To CC re April 16 2014 TC Minutes.docx 

stewartc
Text Box
J-08



Traffic Committee Minutes – April 16, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 1 of 6 

 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, April 16, 2014 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT:  Sarah Binkowski 
    Tim Brandstetter 
    Ted Halsey 
    Richard Kilmer 
    Al Petrulis 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
     
ABSENT:  Stevan Popovic 
      
Also present: Martin & Shirley Mortensen, 3698 Finch 
    Robert Dona, 3680 Finch 
    Mark Abdal, 908 Huntsford 
    Mike Wullaert, 860 Huntsford 
    Daved Dietze, 1900 Witherbee 
    Eric Esshaki, 1914 Witherbee 
    Dianne Poulton, 1432 Madison 
    Bradley Reynolds, 373 Coachman, Apt. 3c 
    Sgt. Mike Szuminski, Police Department 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
     
2. Minutes – March 19, 2014 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-04-14 
  
Moved by Binkowski  
Seconded by Halsey 
 
To approve the March 19, 2014 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   6  (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  1 (Popovic) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Ogden at Keats 
 
Dianne Poulton of 1432 Madison Drive requests that traffic control be placed at the 



Traffic Committee Minutes – April 16, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 2 of 6 

 

intersection of Ogden and Keats.  Ms. Poulton states that the lack of traffic control at the 
intersection creates a hazardous situation. 
 
Ms. Poulton was in attendance at the meeting and discussed her concerns as a 
representative of the homeowners association.  She stated that the homeowners 
association supports the installation of a Yield sign.  During the winter months the 
intersection was difficult to navigate and the intersection had many close calls.  Ms. 
Poulton believes that drivers are not yielding or stopping to allow vehicles to pass through 
the intersection safely. 
 
Mr. Petrulis would recommend a Stop sign as he believes they are more effective at 
assigning right-of-way. 
 
Sgt. Szuminski agreed and stated that Stop signs are more enforceable. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2014-04-15 
  
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of Ogden and Keats be modified from NO Traffic Control 
to a STOP sign on the Keats southbound approach to Ogden. 
 
YES:   6 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Kilmer, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  1 (Popovic) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4.  Request for Removal of No Parking Zone – 1914 Witherbee 
 
Eric Esshaki of 1914 Witherbee requests that the No Parking restrictions adjacent to 1914 
Witherbee be removed.  The south side of Witherbee, between Eton and Graefield, is 
posted No Parking on school days only between 8:15 – 9:15 AM and 3:15 – 4:15 PM.  The 
north side of Witherbee is posted No Parking as the fire hydrant side of the street.  Mr. 
Esshaki states that the current No Parking restriction places an undue burden on 
residents.   
 
Mr. Esshaki was present at the meeting and provided input on his request.  He has four (4) 
vehicles at his home.  There is currently no parking on the north side of the street due to 
fire hydrants.  The south side is posted no parking during the AM and PM arrival and 
dismissal times, school days only.  There is also no parking on the west side of Eton.  His 
property is the corner parcel at Witherbee and Eton.  He has to go out twice a day, when 
home, to move cars based on the posted signs.  He feels this is a major inconvenience to 
him and his neighbors.  Ms. Esshaki stated that the police department needs to enforce 
the current no parking zones as parents “stand” or wait along Eton and Witherbee to drop 



Traffic Committee Minutes – April 16, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 3 of 6 

 

off or pick up their children.  He further stated that the original Traffic Committee minutes, 
from 2006, stated that the No Parking signs on the south side of Witherbee were placed 
based on lack of parking when Pembroke Elementary was constructing improvements.  
These improvements have long been done and the parking available at the school has 
sufficient capacity to hold all vehicles. 
 
Mr. Dave Dietz of 1900 Witherbee spoke about lack of communication between the school 
and residents.  Changes to the site were made and no input was requested or provided by 
residents.  He stated that buses do not have issues with pulling out of the school site when 
cars are parked on the south side of Witherbee.  Mr. Dietz stated that when the signs were 
placed the residents were told that they would still be able to park along the south side of 
the street.  He further stated that the signs were placed to prohibit Pembroke Elementary 
employees from parking along the south side of the road during the construction back in 
2006.  A compromise was made at the 2006 Traffic Committee meeting to post the signs 
but limit it to the AM arrival and PM dismissal time.  He reiterated that it is a major 
inconvenience to residents as they have to go out and move their vehicles to avoid 
enforcement action from the police.  Mr. Dietz also stated that there are paid crossing 
guards at this school. 
 
Mr. Kilmer asked about the No Parking zone on the north side [posted No Parking due to 
the fire hydrants].  He supports leaving it the way it is as the majority of school sites in the 
city have no parking zones established limiting parking during the AM arrival and PM 
dismissal periods.  He recognized that at other school locations, No Parking signs are not 
very effective without enforcement due to the large volume of traffic to and from the school 
sites. 
 
Ms. Binkowski understands the resident’s frustrations since parents park or stand along 
both sides of the road.  This situation is very common at all school sites.   
 
Mr. Petrulis asked about the current time limits on the signs [current signs restrict parking 
from 8:15 – 9:15 AM and 3:15 – 4:15 PM]. 
 
Sgt. Szuminski responded to the resident concerns about lack of enforcement.  He 
explained that there are 22 schools and virtually every school has parking issues.  There 
are not sufficient staff to patrol each school during the AM and PM hours as higher priority 
calls for service take precedence.  Troy Police officers are not looking to issue tickets to 
residents but have been to this location and talked to residents.  Sgt. Szuminski said that 
there are just too many parents dropping off/picking up students.  The time is short but 
there is a very intense amount of traffic during these times. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter asked about vehicles parking or standing on both sides of the road as 
well as the ability of buses to enter/exit the site.  Mr. Esshaki stated that parents do stand 
or park along both sides of the road.  Mr. Esshaki further stated that buses do not have an 
issue pulling out of the site when cars are parked on the south side of the road. 
 
Traffic Engineering did receive two (2) emails regarding this request.  Principal Susan 



Traffic Committee Minutes – April 16, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 4 of 6 

 

Crocker of Pembroke Elementary states that Witherbee is a narrow road already and 
vehicles parking on the south side of the road will increase congestion and decrease 
safety during the AM arrival and PM dismissal.  She understands the residents’ concerns 
but supports no changes to the current parking restrictions. 
 
The second email received was from Casey Marhefka of 3467 Witherbee (east of Eton) 
and supported making no changes to the current parking restrictions. 

 
RESOLUTION # 2014-04-16 
  
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the No Parking restrictions, along the south side of Witherbee, between 
Graefield and Eton, be REMOVED. 
 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   2 (Halsey, Kilmer) 
ABSENT:  1 (Popovic) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
5.  Request for Traffic Control – Huntsford at Finch 
 
Raimonda Abdal of 908 Huntsford Drive requests that the existing Yield signs at the 
intersection of Huntsford and Finch be replaced with Stop signs on the northbound and 
southbound Finch approaches to Huntsford .  Mr. Abdal states that motorists do not yield 
at the intersection creating a hazardous situation. 
 
Mr. Abdal was in attendance at the meeting and stated that drivers are not paying attention 
to the existing Yield sign.  Drivers do not yield the right-of-way and there have been some 
close calls at the intersection.  He recommends that the Yield signs be changed to Stop 
signs.  Mr. Abdal stated that traffic has increased in the past few years and more drivers 
are cutting through from Wattles to Crooks.   
 
Martin Mortensen of 3698 Finch does not believe there is a significant problem at the 
intersection and supports no changes to the current signage.  He has not seen drivers 
ignoring or disobeying the existing signs. 
 
Bob Dona of 3680 Finch also does not believe there is an issue at the intersection.  He 
acknowledged that traffic has increased but he stated that the current traffic does not 
warrant a Stop sign.  He stated that he does see drivers stopping or yielding at the 
intersection to other vehicles and pedestrians. 
 
Shirley Mortensen of 3698 Finch reiterated that there is not a problem at the intersection.  
She said that there is a playground near the intersection but that children are watched very 



Traffic Committee Minutes – April 16, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 5 of 6 

 

closely.  She believes that the current signage is appropriate and that no changes should 
be made. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder is in favor of changing all Yield signs to Stop signs. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter discussed the use of Stop signs where warranted.  Use of Stop signs in 
locations where they are not warranted breed a false sense of security for drivers and 
pedestrians.  Unwarranted Stop signs can create a safety issue if people assume that a 
vehicle is going to stop. 
 
Mr. Halsey stated that Yield signs do not require a full or complete stop if there is no 
opposing traffic or pedstrians. 
 
Ms. Binkowski reiterated Mr. Brandstetter’s concerns about the use of Stop signs at 
locations where they are not warranted.  
 
Traffic Engineering received one (1) email from Bob Beauchamp of 880 Huntsford 
recommending that the Yield sign be replaced with a Stop sign.  He states that he has had 
several close calls at the intersection and a Stop sign would be more effective in protecting 
neighbors who have small children. 

 
RESOLUTION # 2014-04-17 
  
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 
RESOLVED, that NO changes be made at the intersection of Huntsford and Finch. 
 
YES:   4 (Binkowski, Brandstetter, Halsey, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   2 (Kilmer, Petrulis) 
ABSENT:  1 (Popovic) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
6. Public Comment 
 
Ms. Dianne Poulton of 1432 Madison Drive discussed a parking issue on Crimson near 
John R.  A home owner parks two (2) cars very close to the intersection which creates a 
hazard for drivers at the intersection.  Troy Police will investigate and enforce as 
necessary. 
 
7. Other Business 
 
Information on the “TroyRoadsRock” program was distributed to the members.  A 
discussion of the plan, anticipated schedule, etc. followed. 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – April 16, 2014  DRAFT 

Page 6 of 6 

 

The Amber apartment complex was discussed as it is adjacent to the City Hall complex. 
 
The DMC site was also discussed as it is also adjacent to the City Hall complex. 
 
The skilled nursing and rehabilitation facility, proposed on the south end of the Zion church 
site, was discussed. 
 
8. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:38 p.m.  
 
                                          ___           
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 

 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2014\4_April 16\Minutes_20140416_DRAFT.docx 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date:  April 28, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Amendment #3 - Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment 

for Engineering Services for Segment No. 1 
  John R, Long Lake to Square Lake   
  Project No. 02.203.5 
   
There are two (2) items included on the agenda involving the widening and reconstruction of John R 
between Long Lake and South Boulevard.  Both items involve amendments to current preliminary 
engineering agreements, but need to be addressed separately due to budgeting and future federal 
funding reimbursement requirements.   
 
History 
 
The City entered into a Preliminary Engineering agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc 
(OHM) in 2002 for the design phase of the federally funded John R reconstruction project from Long 
Lake to Square Lake Road (Resolution #2002-06-367-E-8).  The amount of this design phase 
agreement was $370,027.29. 
 
Since 2002, there have been two amendments.  Amendment #1 was approved by Resolution #2004-
02-040-E-4 in the amount of $49,996.23 and provided for an extension of the project limits to tie into 
pavement at Long Lake.  Amendment #2 was approved by Resolution #2013-07-130-J-7 in the 
amount of $94,002.36 and provided for additional work associated with the bridge just north of Long 
Lake, traffic signals and ADA compliant sidewalk work. 
 
The Environmental Assessment (EA) phase of this project concluded on January 18, 2005 when a 
Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) was issued by MDOT and FHWA.  Due to the length of time 
between the FONSI and the approval of federal funds to allow construction to start in the winter of 
2015/16, MDOT and FHWA have required that the EA be updated to current conditions as detailed in 
“Exhibit A”.  The scope of Amendment #3 will include various activities including, but not limited to:  
 

• Traffic analysis  

• Update air quality and noise analysis based on current standards and models 

• Contact various governmental agencies to ascertain potential impacts 

• Incorporate bridge deck work  
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-09



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Financial 
 
The total cost for Amendment #3 is $29,095.57 as detailed in “Exhibit B”.  The total amended 
agreement will be $543,121.45.   
 
There are no federal funds available for Amendment #3; its cost will be 100% City.   
 
However, we were successful in our request for construction funding this past February and secured 
$8,779,0000 in federal Economic Development Category C funds to pay for approximately 80% of the 
estimated $10,974,000 construction phase cost.  The local match is currently estimated at 
$2,195,000. 
 
This project will be bid with the John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard project as one large 
reconstruction and widening project, starting in the winter of 2015/16.  The total estimated cost for 
both miles, built as one project, is $19,465,000 utilizing $15,571,000 in federal funds and $3,894,000 
in local match. 
 
Funds for Amendment #3 are available in the 2013/14 and proposed 2014/15 Major Road fund.  
Funds for the local match of the construction phase are included in the 3-year budget in the Major 
Road, Water and Sewer funds. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the attached Third Amendment to the Preliminary 
Engineering Agreement between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for the 
reconstruction of John R, between Long Lake and Square Lake.  Furthermore, staff recommends that 
the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the agreement for a not to exceed fee of 
$29,095.57. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wjh/G:\Projects\Projects - 2002\02.203.5 - John R, Long Lake to Square Lake\To CC re PE Amendment #3_Long Lake to Square Lake.docx 













 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date:  April 28, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Amendment #3 - Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment 

for Engineering Services for Segment No. 2 
  John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard 
  Project No. 02.204.5 
   
There are two (2) items included on the agenda involving the widening and reconstruction of John R 
between Long Lake and South Boulevard.  Both items involve amendments to current preliminary 
engineering agreements, but need to be addressed separately due to budgeting and future federal 
funding reimbursement requirements.   
 
History 
 
The City entered into a Preliminary Engineering agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc 
(OHM) in 2002 for the design phase of the federally funded John R reconstruction project from Long 
Lake to Square Lake Road (Resolution #2002-06-367-E-7).  The amount of this design phase 
agreement was $326,428.81. 
 
Since 2002, there have been two amendments.  Amendment #1 was approved by Resolution #2004-
02-040-E-4 in the amount of $5,292.91 and provided for an increase in cost due to a delay in 
authorization impacting data collection.  Amendment #2 was approved by Resolution #2013-07-130-
J-8 in the amount of $79,827.82 and provided for additional work associated with water and sewer, 
traffic signals and ADA compliant sidewalk work. 
 
The Environmental Assessment (EA) phase of this project concluded on January 18, 2005 when a 
Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) was issued by MDOT and FHWA.  Due to the length of time 
between the FONSI and the approval of federal funds to allow construction to start in the winter of 
2015/16, MDOT and FHWA have required that the EA be updated to current conditions as detailed in 
“Exhibit A”.  The scope of Amendment #3 will include various activities including, but not limited to: 
 

• Traffic analysis  

• Update air quality and noise analysis based on current standards and models 

• Contact various governmental agencies to ascertain potential impacts 

• Incorporate additional work added to the project scope in Rochester Hills. 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-10



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
The work in Rochester Hills will include:  
 

• A southbound right turn lane on John R at South Boulevard 

• Ditch enclosure on the north side of South Boulevard  

• Pathway extension from John R to the west.   
 

All work, including EA update and subsequent construction, in Rochester Hills not paid for with 
federal funds will be paid by the City of Rochester Hills.  A separate inter-governmental agency 
agreement will be submitted once we are nearer the actual construction date.  Costs associated with 
work in Rochester Hills as part of the EA update are not included in the attached agreement.  A 
separate agreement has been prepared and submitted to Rochester Hills for their review and 
approval.  
 
Financial 
 
The total cost for Amendment #3 is $35,561.25 as detailed in “Exhibit B”.  The total amended 
agreement will be $447,110.79.   
 
There are no federal funds available for Amendment #3; its cost will be 100% City.   
 
However, we were successful in our request for construction funding this past February and secured 
$6,792,000 in federal Economic Development Category C funds to pay for approximately 80% of the 
estimated $8,491,000 construction phase cost.  The local match will be shared by Troy and 
Rochester Hills commensurate with each agencies proportionate share of the construction.  Troy’s 
share is currently estimated at $1,699,000 and Rochester Hills share at $40,000. 
 
This project will be bid with the John R, Long Lake to Square Lake project as one large reconstruction 
and widening project, starting in the winter of 2015/16.  The total estimated cost for both miles, built 
as one project is $19,465,000 utilizing $15,571,000 in federal funds and $3,894,000 in local match. 
 
Funds for Amendment #3 are available in the 2013/14 and proposed 2014/15 Major Road fund.  
Funds for the local match of the construction phase are included in the 3-year budget in the Major 
Road, Water and Sewer funds. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the attached Third Amendment to the Preliminary 
Engineering Agreement between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for the 
reconstruction of John R, between Square Lake and South Boulevard.  Furthermore, staff 
recommends that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the agreement for a not to 
exceed fee of $35,561.25. 
 
 
Wjh/G:\Projects\Projects - 2002\02.204.5 - John R, Square Lake to South Blvd\To CC re PE Amendment #3_Square Lake to South Blvd.docx 













 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 6, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
  Sandra Kasperek, City Treasurer 
  Lisa Burnham, Accounting Manager 
      
 
Subject: Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
History 
 
The Code of ordinances provides for transfer of delinquent accounts to the city tax roll. 
 
Financial 
 
The delinquent accounts from the various funds to be assessed to the 2014 tax rolls are as follows:  
  
 General Fund Invoices $ 42,986.67 
 Penalties                                 4,298.70 
       $ 47,285.37 
 
 Special Assessments $     420.00 
 Penalties and Interest        158.76 
             $578.76 
 
 Water & Sewer Accounts $793,083.84 
 Penalties                                 79,308.73 
       $872,392.57 
 
Total to be assessed    $920,256.70 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the assessment of delinquent accounts. 
 
 
 
 
LB/Finance G: Council Items-Reassessed May 2014 

stewartc
Text Box
J-11



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 6, 2014   
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominiums - Project No. 13.919.3 
 
 
History 
 
Trowbridge Homes Construction LLC proposes to develop Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominiums 
located east of Crooks road and south of Benjamin in the NW ¼ of Section 4.   
 
Troy Planning Commission recommended preliminary site plan approval on August 13, 2014.  
 
Site grading and utility plans for this development were reviewed and recently approved by the 
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements which will be constructed by 
Trowbridge Homes Construction LLC on behalf of the City of Troy: sanitary sewer, storm sewer, 
water main, paving, sidewalks, soil erosion and landscaping improvements.  The required fees and 
refundable escrow deposits in the form of Performance Bond and 10% Cash, that will assure 
completion of the municipal improvements, have been provided by Trowbridge Homes Construction 
LLC (see attached Private Agreement).  
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-12













 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 10, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 

William Nelson, Chief of Fire 
Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
Elaine Bo, Recreation Director  

  Sehrish Salah-Ud-Din, Assistant to the City Manager 
  Brenda Carter, Interim Assistant to the City Manager 
 
Subject: Informational Item - Adoption of Film and Video Ordinance (Introduced by: Brenda 

Carter, Interim Assistant to the City Manager) 
 
History 
 
The Film and Video documentation is informational at this time. This documentation will be presented 
as an action item on the next agenda absent contrary direction.  More and more producers are 
looking for locations to film outside of California. Michigan is becoming one of the states that many 
film companies are exploring.  The State of Michigan still offers some incentives for filming in 
Michigan under the Michigan Film and Digital Media Assistance Program, MCL 125.2029(h). Many 
communities have adopted ordinances requiring film permits to protect the residents from 
consequences of filming such as traffic blockage, neighborhood disruptions, noise and potentially 
hazardous activities.  Additionally, film permits put the city on notice of the possible need for police 
and fire personnel to monitor street activity and hazardous activities. Many times film makers ignore 
building fire code. For example, large generators and other equipment may be used which require 
inspections and approval by the Building Department prior to use.  A permitting process allows a city 
to alert the Building Department to possible use of such equipment. 
 
The City of Troy has welcomed film and video productions for several years now. Those productions 
required fire inspections, building code inspections, and police assistance. The proposed Film Permit 
Ordinance notifies the film producers of their responsibilities and protects City of Troy’s interest in 
making sure there is a mechanism for recouping any personnel costs and/or expenses incurred by 
the City of Troy. The Film Permit Ordinance also exempts certain types of filming, such as, filming by 
news media, creation of student films, and filming done by church, school or civic organization for 
broadcast to its membership (Chapter 61A.5. Exemptions).  
 
In addition to the ordinance, city administration created a complete film and video package welcoming 
interested parties to film in Troy. This package includes an informational step-by-step process, 
including a checklist, to guide the film industry representatives through the City of Troy permit 
process.  All of the new information will be readily available on the City of Troy’s website located at 
www.troymi.gov/Resources/FilmingInTroy. 

http://www.troymi.gov/Resources/FilmingInTroy�
stewartc
Text Box
K-02a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
There were multiple staff members involved in creating this film and video package. Aside from those 
outlined above, the following were also great aides in the creation of this process: 
 

Paul Featherston, SafeBuilt Building Official  
David Roberts, Assistant Chief/Fire Marshal 
Robert Redmond, Police Captain 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
Cindy Stewart- Community Affairs Director  

 
Recommendation 
 
The adoption of the proposed Film Permit Ordinance will require adoption of amendments to Chapter 
3 of the Troy City Code to allow the Troy Police Department, the Troy Fire Department, the Troy 
Planning and/or Code Enforcement to issue citations for violations of the ordinance. Chapter 60 will 
also have to be amended to provide for fees and bonds as required under the Film Permit ordinance. 
 
City Administration recommends adoption of the new Film Permit Ordinance, Chapter 61A and the 
amendments to Chapter 3 and Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
G:\MY DOCUMENTS\Film and Video\Word Document Final 



1 

 

CITY OF TROY 

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A NEW CHAPTER 61A, “FILM PRODUCTION” TO THE CITY OF 
TROY CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROVIDE REGULATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS FOR 

FILM PRODUCTIONS IN THE CITY OF TROY 

 

THE CITY OF TROY ORDAINS: 

Section 1: 

That a new Chapter 61A, to the City of Troy Code of Ordinances be and is hereby 
adopted to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 61A.   FILM PRODUCTION PERMIT 

 61A.1.   SHORT TITLE. 

This Chapter may be known and may be cited as the City of Troy “Film Production  
Ordinance”. 

 61A.2.   PURPOSE. 

This Chapter sets forth rules and regulations to govern and authorize individuals and film 
companies to conduct filming activities in the City without unreasonably impacting the 
peace and comfort of the residents of the community; to assure that such activities are 
consistent with considerations of the public health, safety, and general welfare; to ensure 
the protection of property; and to provide a streamlined process for issuing film 
production permits.  The requirements provided in this Chapter shall be separate and in 
addition to those provisions of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances, and/or other codes 
adopted by reference, regarding business regulation and licensing. Any and all fees 
provided in Chapter 60 are intended to cover the cost of investigation and processing 
permits for filming, and for recovery of costs to the City for use of City personnel, 
equipment and/or supplies as specified herein, and shall be in addition to all other 
applicable licenses and/or permits. 

61A.3.   DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

(A) Day:  Any calendar day beginning at 12:00 a.m. and ending at 11:59 p.m. 

(B) Base Camp: The location in the City established as the headquarters or command 
center for the permittee’s filming activities. 

(C) Film: Single media or multimedia entertainment content for distribution or exhibition 
to the general public by any means and media in any digital media format, film, or 
videotape, including, but not limited to, a motion picture, documentary, television 
series, television miniseries, television special, interstitial television programming, 



2 

 

long-form television, interactive television, music videos, interactive games, video 
games, commercials, internet programming, internet video, sound recording, video, 
digital animation, or  interactive website. The use of the words “film”, “filming” or 
“filming production” in this Chapter shall include all types of media set out in this 
definition. 

(D) Filming: The act(s) of undertaking, producing, or creating a film regardless of the 
intended viewing audience.  The term also includes the setup and dismantling of all 
related equipment. 

(E) News Media: The filming for the purpose of spontaneous, unplanned, or “on scene” 
television news broadcasting by reporters, photographers, or camera operators, but 
not including magazine or documentary programs filmed, edited, and prepared for 
commercial purposes. 

(F) Personal Film: A film for private or family use, including, but not limited to, family 
event filming or a film of security footage. 

(G) Student Film: A film production by a student of a public or private school or college 
where the production is for school or college credit and from which no profit is taken. 

61A.4.  PERMIT REQUIRED.  

Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, it is unlawful for any person to engage in 
the business or activity of filming at any place within the City of Troy without a film 
production permit from the City, other than in a motion picture or television studio in an 
appropriate zoning district with no outside storage of filming equipment. Any person 
interested in filming within the City shall complete, in full, a film production permit 
application that shall be submitted with the required application fees to the City Clerk. A 
film production permit does not constitute or grant permission to use or occupy property 
not owned, leased or controlled by the City if such filming activity is deemed by the City 
of Troy to impact public safety and/or be in the public interest. 

61A.5   EXEMPTIONS.  

(A) The City has chosen to exempt certain film productions from the permitting 
requirement of this Ordinance for productions which are not likely to interfere in any 
substantial way with the health, safety or welfare of the public. The City reserves the 
right to require specific conditions, including, but not limited to, proof of insurance 
approved by the City, if the City, in its sole discretion, determines those conditions 
are necessary to protect the public or property even though there is no film 
production permit requirement. All individuals and entities, whether required to get a 
film production permit or exempt, shall comply with all other Troy Ordinances, and 
federal and state law. 

(B) The provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to: 

1. The creation of a personal film; 

2. The creation of news media; 

3. The filming of motion pictures for use in a criminal investigation, civil proceeding, 
or emergencies such as fires, floods, or police actions; 



3 

 

4. The filming of motion pictures and activities associated therewith which occur 
upon commercial property which is owned or leased for more than 3 months by 
the enterprise or individual conducting the filming and none of the activities are 
open to view by the general public.  To be eligible for this exemption, all trailers, 
vans for personnel, equipment, displays, sets, and storage of other types of 
equipment or materials shall not be visible from any public or private roadway 
whether within the City of Troy or a neighboring community and the activities do 
not interfere in any way with the public right-of-way or impact neighboring private 
property.  Further, this exemption shall not be construed to authorize the violation 
of any laws, including the City of Troy’s Code of Ordinances; 

5. The filming of motion pictures and activities associated therewith, which occur 
upon residential property which is owned or leased for more than 3 months by 
the enterprise or individual conducting the filming and none of the activities are 
open to view by the general public.  To be eligible for this exemption, all trailers, 
vans for personnel, equipment, displays, sets, and storage of other types of 
equipment or materials shall not be visible from any public or private roadway 
whether within the City of Troy or a neighboring community and the activities do 
not interfere in any way with the public right-of-way or impact neighboring private 
property.  Further, this exemption shall not be construed to authorize the violation 
of any laws, including the City of Troy’s Code of Ordinances; 

6. A film or multimedia broadcast or transmission on screen monitors of a live 
performance within a live entertainment venue or for training purposes, but only 
if, the transmission is not filmed simultaneously for distribution by any method to 
the general public; 

7. Education, government, and public access and local origination programs for 
cable television systems franchised within the City; 

8. Filming done by a church, school or civic organization for broadcast to its 
membership and/or students; 

9. Filming by the City, including, but not limited to, filming of a sewer line or 
preparation of promotional films, or training of employees; 

10. The filming of competitive athletic events, parades, or other similar events of a 
public nature, when in attendance as a member of the public and a spectator; 

11. The creation of a student film, unless the filming activities utilize or adversely 
impact public ways or are conducted outdoors in residential or commercial areas; 

12. Local commercials (film or still photography) produced entirely on private 
property for purposes of advertising local businesses and merchants, so long as 
the equipment, personnel, and subject connected with the commercials do not 
interfere in any way with the public right-of-way or impact neighboring private 
property, or use pyrotechnics or other hazardous special effects; 

13. Still photographers, who are photographing in a public area, and who do not 
encroach upon the public right-of-way with equipment or personnel; 



4 

 

14. Films produced entirely for training of employees or personnel that are produced 
within the employer’s property and do not utilize or adversely impact any public 
ways and are not produced outdoors in residential or commercial areas; and 

15. Any other activity not deemed to impact public safety and/or be in the public 
interest by the Film and Video Coordinator. 

 

61A.6. MANDATORY PRE-APPLICATION MEETING; APPLICATION. 

(A) Pre-Application Meeting. Any person desiring to conduct film production activities 
shall meet with the Film and Video Coordinator or his or her designee to 
communicate to the City of Troy its intentions and to determine if it is exempt from 
obtaining a filming permit.  Preliminary information concerning pre-application 
meetings and permit procedures may be found on the City of Troy’s website: 
www.troymi.gov, including any revisions, or at the Film and Video Coordinator’s 
Office.  

(B) Application. Any person determined by the City of Troy to be non-exempt from 
obtaining a filming permit at a pre-application meeting, shall make application to the 
City Clerk on the appropriate form provided by the City Clerk.  The form must be fully 
completed, signed and accompanied by the required administrative fee(s) and any 
other documentation required in this Chapter, including but not limited to, plans as 
required under Section 61A.7, a hold harmless agreement, and insurance certificate, 
before it will be processed.  The applicant for a permit required by this Chapter shall 
supply the following information on the application: 

1. Name, permanent street address, and telephone numbers of applicant, including 
mobile phone and email addresses and the names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers, including mobile phone numbers, of the person(s) in charge of the 
location and responsible for the applicant’s and applicant’s employees’ conduct. 
Individuals, partnerships, corporations, and limited liability companies shall be 
required to submit all information designated on the  application form approved 
by the City Clerk and shall submit any requested documents as indicated on the 
form; 

2. Name, address and twenty-four (24) hour telephone numbers, including mobile 
phone numbers, email addresses,  and local addresses of a least two (2) 
persons to be contacted, or in the event of emergency situations;  

3. Name (or working title) of the film or project, and the nature of the proposed 
motion picture, television production, or photographic production; 

4. Location(s), date(s), time(s), and activities of the proposed filming, and an 
estimate of the maximum number of attendees expected at the filming during 
each day or time. If the proposed filming involves the use of private property, the 
full name and address of the property owner where the filming is to occur and a 
signed affidavit from the owner granting permission for the proposed use of the 

http://www.troymi.gov/�


5 

 

property in question shall be provided.  If, in the discretion of the City, it appears 
that the peace and tranquility of neighboring property owners may be disturbed 
by the filming, the City  may send notice of the filming, to the neighboring 
property owners who are within a 300-foot radius of filming site; 

5.  The approximate maximum  number of individuals in the cast and crew 
anticipated at any one filming site within the City; 

6. The approximate maximum number of vehicles and other equipment, including, 
but not limited to, vehicles and equipment used during the filming and cast and 
crew private vehicles, anticipated at any one filming site within the City with a 
parking plan as set out in Chapter 61A.7. Plans. If applicable, a statement that 
overnight parking and locations are needed at one or more locations and a plan 
for that overnight parking as set out in Chapter 61A.7; 

7. Requests for special assistance from the City at any location, including, but not 
limited to, street closure, traffic control,  crowd control and emergency or standby 
services; 

8. A statement of intent to use animals or reptiles, chemicals, explosives, special 
effects or fire, or to engage in any other hazardous activity and a description of 
such use or activities with specificity; 

9. Special conditions or requests by the applicant; 

10. Expiration date for the permit which indicates the date that all filming, restoration 
and clean-up will be completed. The actual expiration date of the permit will be 
determined by the City; 

11. A sworn statement as to the truth of the statements in the application.  If the 
applicant is a corporation, limited liability company or business, the application 
shall be signed by one (1) principal officer of the corporation or business; 

12. In addition to the requirements of this Chapter, any applicant who engages in any 
activity that requires compliance with any federal, state, or local regulations, 
including additional licenses or permits, shall present evidence of satisfactory 
compliance with such regulations; and 

13. Each application shall be accompanied by the administrative fee(s).  Before the 
issuance of a film production permit, the applicant may be required to submit a 
cost deposit for City services and a cash bond, as set out in Chapter 61A.8. 

14. Attachment of the insurance and executed hold harmless agreement documents. 

 

61A.7   APPLICATION – PLANS SUBMITTAL. 



6 

 

Each applicant for a film production permit shall digitally submit as part of its application 
a detailed explanation, including drawings and diagrams, where applicable, of the 
prospective permittee’s plans to provide the following: 

(A)  A  sketch or sketches  of the filming site with dimensions showing  the following:  

1. Traffic and parking control plans for the base camp, if any, and each location 
showing traffic patterns, right-of-ways to be closed or intruded upon and any on-
street or off-street parking  locations for work trucks, vehicles to be used in the 
film, crew parking, sanitary facilities, catering, and non-essential production 
vehicles; 

2. A  list of the anticipated duration of the proposed activities and daily hours of 
operation for each location; 

3. A plan for cleanup and waste disposal for each location; 

61A.8 FEES, COST DEPOSITS AND CASH BOND. 

(A) Fees, Cost Deposit and Cash Bond. The applicant shall be required to provide 
information on the application to be used to determine the amount of the 
administrative fee(s), cost deposit and cash bond.  Administrative fee(s), cost deposit 
and cash bonds, may include the following: 

1. Application Fee. A processing fee in an amount established by City Council as 
set out in Chapter 60 to reimburse the City for the estimated personnel costs 
required to evaluate the application and establish conditions of approval. The 
application fees are non-refundable. 

2. Public Property Use Fee.  A fee in an amount established by City Council as set 
out in Chapter 60 to compensate the City for the use of public property.  
Additional costs and cash bonds may be required as set out in this Ordinance.    

3. Hazardous Materials/Pyrotechnical Fees.  A separate permit fee for use of 
hazardous materials or pyrotechnics.  

4. Cost Deposit for Special Conditions.  Estimated costs assessed by the City for 
the implementation of special conditions as requested by the applicant in the 
application. Before a film production permit is issued, the applicant shall be 
required to pay in advance the approximate total costs as determined by the City. 

5. Cost Deposit for Use of City Personnel, Equipment and Supplies. Estimated 
costs assessed by the City to provide City personnel, whether requested by 
applicant/permittee or required by the City, for protection of the public health, 
safety, and welfare, including, but not limited to, inspections by City personnel of 
the filming site, the presence of “stand-by” personnel before, during or after 
filming, and/or the setting up of equipment and providing for traffic or crowd 



7 

 

control. Costs shall include, but not be limited to, employee wages including 
overtime, fringe benefits, supervision, administrative overhead and the hourly 
cost for the use of equipment and supplies. Before a film production permit is 
issued, the applicant shall be required to pay in advance the approximate total 
costs as determined by the City. 

6. Cash Bond. A cash bond shall be required prior to the issuance of a film 
production permit in an amount to include the estimated cost deposit, equipment, 
supplies and special conditions, and for the restoration and clean-up of any film 
location(s) used by permittee. The cash bond may be waived by the City Clerk, 
or his/her designee, if an acceptable alternative method of providing financial 
protection to the City of Troy is provided for damages and/or clean up at the 
close of filming. After a film production permit is issued, if at any time it is 
determined that additional personnel, equipment, supplies or special conditions 
are needed or the City will incur additional costs not covered by the cost deposit 
and cash bond, the permittee shall immediately deposit with the City additional 
money as part of either its cost deposition or cash bond.  Failure to do so will 
result in a revocation of the film production permit. If, and only if, all of the City’s 
costs for any service, administrative fee or expense have been paid in full, the 
portion of the remaining cost deposit and cash bond will be returned in full as set 
out in Section 8 below.  

7. Additional Fees and/or Costs.  This Ordinance shall not limit the City’s ability to 
assess additional fees and/or costs for situations not provided for in the 
Ordinance if those situations have an impact on public resources, public safety or 
result in inconvenience to the City or the public. 

8. Within sixty (60) days of the expiration of the permit or an extension of the permit, 
the City shall send the permittee by mail or method agreed to in writing by the 
permittee and the City, a final invoice of all of the City’s outstanding costs with 
credit for the cost deposit and cash bond. The permittee shall have thirty (30) 
days from the date of the invoice to submit payment for the full invoice amount to 
the City by cash or a check sent to: City Clerk, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, Michigan 48084.  In the event the permittee fails to fully reimburse 
the City within the thirty (30) day time frame, the City shall deduct the full amount 
or any unpaid fees or costs amounts from the cost deposit and cash bond held 
on behalf of the permittee and deposit those funds in the City accounts. Those 
funds shall become the property of the City and are not refundable to the 
permittee, its heirs, successors or assigns.  If there are any funds remaining from 
the cost deposit and cash bond after deductions by the City, that amount shall be 
refunded to permittee. The procedure set out herein for deduction of monies 
owed to the City from permittee’s cost deposit and cash bond, does not waive in 
any way the City’s right to take any legal action against the permittee to collect 
any unpaid fees or costs incurred by the City as a result of permittee’s activities. 
By signing the application for film production permit, applicant/permittee is 



8 

 

agreeing to the deduction of the City’s cost from the cost deposit and cash bond 
as set out herein. 

(B) Extensions of Permit; City’s Determination of Need for Personnel Services; 
Extraordinary Costs for Investigation; Waiver of Administrative Fee(s). 

1.  In the event that weather conditions or other circumstances beyond the control 
of the permittee require that the date(s) or time(s) of the proposed filming need to 
be altered, no additional fees shall be required as long as the City Clerk, or 
his/her designee, is given at least one (1) day notice of the alteration; however, 
additional fee(s) as determined by the City and as set out in Chapter 60 may be 
charged if changes or additions, and extensions to the original film production 
permit are requested which are not beyond the control of the permittee.  A 
change or addition to the original film production permit request must be filed with 
the City Clerk prior to the activities proposed in the change or addition. Failure to 
file for a change or addition prior to the activity requested shall be considered a 
violation of this Ordinance. A request for extension shall be filed within three (3) 
business days prior to the expiration of the original permit. The City shall have 
the absolute discretion to deny a request for alteration or extension of a permit if, 
after reviewing the reason for the request for alteration or extension of a permit, 
no good cause for the alteration or extension exists.  

2. If the City determines that any potential danger to the public health, safety or 
general welfare, or to property would be eliminated by the presence of police or 
fire protection at the site of the filming, the City Clerk may grant the film 
production permit with the condition that the permittee pay in advance to the City 
the anticipated costs of such police or fire protection or presence. 

3. For film production permits that require the City to provide personnel services to 
the permittee in addition to police or fire protection, service costs shall be 
imposed for the same.  Such costs will be determined by the City for the services 
provided and shall be based on the actual cost incurred by the City in providing 
such services.  Such service costs shall include, but not be limited to, employee 
wages including overtime, fringe benefits, and supervision, administrative 
overhead, and the hourly costs for the use of any City equipment and supplies. 

4. For all fees set out herein, additional charges may be imposed to cover the cost 
of extraordinary film production permit investigation and/or staff costs, if the City 
deems the collection of such costs to be necessary to prevent the absorption of 
any costs by the City and/or its taxpayers. 

5. The administrative fee(s) and the property use fee may be waived by the Film and 
Video Coordinator for productions conducted by a cable television company 
operating under a franchise granted by the City when such productions are not 
conducted on public property, do not interfere with public right-of-way, and which 



9 

 

involve fewer than two (2) motor vehicles.  Any applicants whose administrative 
fee(s) are waived still remain subject to the other provisions of this Ordinance. 

61A.9 LIABILITY PROVISIONS. 

The requirements of this section are applicable whenever a permittee’s operation will 
utilize or impact City facilities or property as determined by the City. 

(A)  Liability Insurance. Before a permit is issued a certificate of insurance must be 
submitted evidencing insurance in an amount not less than one (1) million dollars 
per occurrence for automobile liability and one (1) million dollars per occurrence 
for general liability insurance. Cancellation of the insurance shall be considered a 
material breach of the conditions of the permit, and the permit shall become null 
and void unless proof of renewal of continuous coverage is immediately provided 
to the City Clerk. All insurance carriers shall be licensed and admitted to do 
business in the State of Michigan and acceptable to the City. In the event the use 
of pyrotechnics or any other potentially hazardous activity is contemplated, the 
permittee will be required to submit evidence of insurance which will cover said 
use or activities in an amount and form acceptable to the City. An endorsement 
to any liability policies shall name the City of Troy, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, and others working on 
behalf of the City as additional insureds. 

(B) Indemnification and hold harmless. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
permittee  agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
City of Troy, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and 
others working on behalf of the City of Troy against any and all claims, demands, 
suits, or loss ( including all costs connected therewith), and for any damages 
which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Troy,  its 
elected and appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers  
and others working on behalf of the City of Troy.  This provision includes, but is 
not limited to claims of personal injury (including bodily injury or death) and/or 
property damage which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated 
with the execution of activities by permittee set out in the application for permit 
and under the provisions and/or conditions of the permit.  

61A.10 INVESTIGATION OF APPLICANT AND PROCESSING TIME. 

(A) Upon receipt by the City Clerk, copies of the application for a permit required by 
this Chapter shall be forwarded to City Administration who shall review and 
investigate matters relevant to the application and within ten (10) business days 
of receipt thereof shall report their findings and recommendation to the City 
Clerk.   

(B)  The Police Department and the Fire Department shall investigate each 
application for a film production permit.  If during the course of such investigation, 
the   City desires additional information to assist with determining whether or not 
such a permit should be issued, the City is authorized to require the applicant to 
furnish such additional information. 



10 

 

(C) By filing the application for film production permit, the applicant/permittee shall 
be presumed to agree to allow for site inspections by the City as requested for 
purposes of ensuring compliance with this Chapter, all conditions of the permit, 
and all applicable State and Federal laws and  the City of Troy’s Code of 
Ordinances, including but not limited to, fire codes, building codes and 
referenced standards. 
 

(D) If the application satisfies the criteria of this Chapter, the permit shall be issued 
            within ten (10) business days of submission of the film production permit   
            application. 
 
       (E) A film production permit may not be transferred or assigned to another individual 
   or entity. 
.   

(F) A copy of the film production permit must be posted in public view at the filming 
location at all times. If posting is not possible due to the location or 
circumstances of the filming, a permit shall be provided within a reasonable time 
upon request by any City official.  

61A.11 SPECIFIC CIRCUMSTANCES. 

In addition to the criteria listed in this Chapter, the City may also investigate the 
application with respect to public health, safety and welfare issues, including, but not 
limited to, the following special circumstances and may impose further conditions on 
the issuance of a film production permit if warranted: 

(A) Hours. Filming is permitted in residentially-zoned neighborhoods between the 
hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday; 8:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. on Saturdays, and between 9:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on Sundays 
and legal holidays unless the City approves filming during hours other that those 
set out herein. 

(B) Noise. Filming activities which produce unusual noise such as gunfire, sirens, 
public address systems, bull horns, or any other loud noises may be restricted to 
mitigate the effects of the activity. Chapter 88, Nuisances, of the City of Troy 
Code of Ordinances will be enforced 

(C) Aircraft.  Helicopter landings or filming from the air are not permitted without 
explicit written permission from the City Clerk or his/her designee. The request 
for written authorization shall be filed with the application with a detailed 
explanation of what activities are anticipated, when and where. 

(D) Public safety personnel. Police and/or fire personnel requirements shall be 
determined by those departments and any personnel required shall be at the 
permittee’s expense.  Requests for additional public safety employees at 



11 

 

permittee’s expense may be filed with the application.  The Police Chief or 
his/her designee may approve the use of additional police personnel or may 
require the applicant to contract with a private security firm. At all times, all police 
employees approved by the Police Chief or his/her designee shall constitute and 
remain City employees and shall be required to enforce all State and Federal 
laws and the City of Troy’s Code of Ordinances.  City public safety personnel 
shall not be employees of the permittee at any time while assigned by the Police 
Chief or the Fire Chief or their designee as public safety personnel. 

(E) Rights-of-Ways. No person shall close or impose upon any right-of-way in the 
City unless first obtaining permission from the City. The permittee must obtain 
permission from the City to string cable across streets, sidewalks or from a 
generator to a service point.  

(F) Traffic Control and Parking.  For any filming that would impair traffic flow or 
parking in any manner or for any duration, the permittee shall comply with all 
traffic control and parking requirements deemed necessary by the City or private 
security personnel, subject to the approval of the City. The use of City police 
officers, in addition to being approved and funded as described in this Chapter, 
shall depend on the location of filming since the possible location sites within the 
City may fall within the jurisdiction of Oakland County or the State of Michigan. 

(G) Adult entertainment.  No adult entertainment filming shall be conducted within the 
City which depicts nudity, sexual intercourse, simulated sex acts, or other 
displays prohibited by State law or the City of Troy’s Code of Ordinances which 
could be observed by member of the general public.  Films which have as their 
primary purpose the display of such acts for distribution to an adult entertainment 
market or video provider shall not be granted a permit for filming.  A permit 
issued under this Chapter does not authorize the production of a film that in any 
manner requires the use of property owned by or under the control of the City in 
violation of Public Act 84 of 2008, MCL 123, 1191, et.seq., which prohibits the 
production of films that include obscene matter. A permit issued under this 
Chapter does not authorize the production of a film on City owned property or 
property under the control of the City that requires that individually identifiable 
records be created and maintained for every performer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.A. 
2557. Film studios engaged in adult entertainment must be licensed in 
compliance with Chapter 76 of the City of Troy’s Code of Ordinances. 

(H) Pyrotechnics and special effects. The applicant/permittee shall obtain written 
permission from the Fire Chief, or his/her designee, for the use of any hazardous 
materials, pyrotechnics or similar special effects. The Fire Chief or his/her 
designee shall have the discretion to determine if a separate permit for these 
types of activities is required under Federal or State law or the City of Troy’s 
Code of Ordinance. The applicant/permittee is responsible for payment of any 
permit fees under this section. 



12 

 

(I) Vegetation. The City may impose restrictions on filming in areas with native 
vegetation, natural areas, wetlands and similar locations. 

(J) Crew size. The City may impose maximum capacity requirements for cast and 
crew size for filming operations at a filming location. 

(K) Refueling. The City may impose restrictions on refueling operations. 

(L) Boundaries. The City may impose requirements concerning the posting of the 
outer boundaries of the filming area. 

(M) Uniforms/badges. The City may impose restrictions concerning the covering of 
police, fire, and other uniforms and/or badges worn by actors when they are not 
being filmed. 

(N) Logos, Insignia.  The City may impose conditions and/or restrictions on the use 
of City and other public agencies’ logos, insignias, badges, or decals for filming 
purposes. 

(O) Acknowledgements.  The City may require that the permittee properly 
acknowledge the assistance of the City in the final film credits. 

(P) Access. The City may request access to behind the scenes production of any 
filming activity for purposes of creating promotional videos for the City.  However, 
the City will honor all conditions of the production company regarding material 
that may be disclosed to the public prior to release of the final film or production. 

(Q) Clean-up and Restoration. All clean-up and restoration of a film site shall be 
completed on the last day of filming at that location. If not completed, the City 
may issue a Municipal civil infraction pursuant to Chapter 100, Municipal Civil 
Infractions, of the Troy Code of Ordinances and proceed to get a court order to 
complete the clean-up and/or restoration and deduct the costs for the full amount 
of the clean-up and/or restoration from the cash bond held by the City on behalf 
of the permittee. Those funds shall be deposited in a City account and shall 
become the property of the City and are not refundable to the permittee, its heirs, 
successors or assigns 

 

61A.12  GRANT OR DENIAL OF PERMIT; ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES. 

(A) The City may deny a permit, if, after investigation, the City Administration finds 
that the conduct of the activities regulated by this Chapter or the proposed 
location of such filming will not comport with the public welfare; or that it will tend 
to create a nuisance; or that the character or reputation of the applicant, its 
officers, or employees is one of untruthfulness and indecency, or an investigation 
of the applicant, its officers, or employees indicates a failure to pay debts at 



13 

 

previous filming venues whether in the City or in another location, or  he/she/it 
has failed to comply with permit requirements, including, but not limited to, failure 
to restore and/or clean up locations or failure to pay in full for city services in the 
City of Troy or for any other governmental entity. 

(B) The City Administration may promulgate administrative policies and procedures 
governing the form, time, and location of any filming activity within the City. Even 
though time frames for issuance of permits are set out in this Chapter, the City of 
Troy may not always be able to comply with those time line due to limited, public 
holidays or other unanticipated events. Time limits for extensions and appeals 
will always apply.  Such policies and procedures shall be on file with the City 
Clerk and the Film and Video Coordinator’s office for review by the public and 
they shall have the force and effect of law as if fully set forth in this Chapter.  In 
addition to the City’s policies and procedures, if any, all decisions concerning the 
issuance of any film production permit and/or the conditions imposed thereon 
shall be made after consideration of the following factors: 

 1.  The health and safety of the public; 

 2.  Disruption of activities of businesses or persons within the affected area; 

 3. The safety of property within the City;  

 4. Traffic congestion at particular locations within the City; and 

5. The effect on the personnel resources and/or finances of the City. 

61A.13  APPEAL. 

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the City shall have the right to appeal the 
approval, conditional approval, or a denial of a  film production permit to the City 
Manager in writing.  The appeal shall be taken within ten (10) business days after 
notice of the decision is mailed or transmitted to the applicant.  The City Manager 
shall decide the appeal within fourteen (14) business days.  The decision of the City 
Manager shall be final. 

 

 

61A.14   REVOCATION OF PERMIT. 

(A) Any film production permit may be revoked under the following circumstances: 

1. Where it has been determined that the permittee has violated or has failed to      
comply with any of the terms or conditions of the film production permit; 



14 

 

2. Where it has been determined that the permittee has violated or has failed to 
comply with any ordinance, resolution, or applicable regulation; 

3. Where it has been determined that the film production permit was granted 
pursuant to false or fraudulent information contained in the film production permit 
application or verbally provided to the City; 

4. Where it has subsequently been determined that filming activity will fail to meet 
the criteria enumerated in this Chapter for granting a film production permit; or 

5. Where it has been determined that the preservation of the public health, safety 
and general welfare demand revocation of the film production permit. 

(B) A notice of revocation shall be mailed to the permittee by the City, by mail, or 
personally delivered, stating the grounds for revocation and advising the permittee 
of the appeal rights afforded by this Chapter. 

61A.15.  VIOLATIONS PUNISHABLE AS MISDEMEANORS; NUISANCE  
 PER SE.  
 
(A) Violations of any of the provisions of this Chapter or any of the terms and 
conditions of a film production permit shall be punishable by a fine of $500.00 and 
costs and/or a jail term of ninety (90) days.  In addition, it shall be a misdemeanor 
to: 

1. Provide false or fraudulent information to the City during the permit      
application process; 

2. Provide any false or fraudulent information after the permit has been 
issued, including, but not limited to, the possession or existence of 
consent or permission from property owners when require; or 

3. Failure or refusal to cease any film activities when ordered to do so by 
the City Administration due to violations of any City of Troy Code or 
Ordinance, including this Chapter, State law or Federal law.  

(B) Any filming or related activity conducted contrary to the provisions of this 
Chapter shall be and is hereby declared to be an unlawful action and a public 
nuisance.  The City Council may authorize the commencement of an action at 
law or in equity in the name of the City of Troy in any court of competent 
jurisdiction against the permittee to ensure compliance with the terms of this 
Chapter.  All remedies prescribed herein will be cumulative and the use of any 
one or more remedies by the City shall not preclude the use of any other remedy 
for the purpose of enforcing the provisions of this Chapter, nor shall the City’s 
delay or failure to exercise any remedy result in a waiver of that remedy. 

Section 3. Repeal 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent 
necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 



15 

 

 
Section 4. Savings 
 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced. This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution 
hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective 
date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 5. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 6. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
________ day of ________, 2014. 

 

Dane Slater, Mayor 

 
Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 CITY OF TROY 
 
    AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE OF 
THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3, 
Administrative Service, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
 
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(7), shall be amended to add Chapter 61A as follows: 
 
1.141(7) A City of Troy Fire Department Staff Lieutenant, Division Assistant Chief or Chief shall 
have authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil 
Infraction notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of 
the Troy City Code: 

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 
 
Chapter 61A: Film Production 
           (provisions related to fire safety) 
 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 
        (provisions related to fire safety) 
 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

        (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 
         (provisions related to fire safety) 

 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 
             (provisions related to fire safety) 

 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

        (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations 
        (provisions related to fire safety) 

 
 



 

 -2- 

Chapter 82A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 
           (provisions related to fire safety) 
 
Chapter82B: Dangerous Buildings (provisions related to fire safety) 

 
Chapter 84: Garbage, Rubbish, and Refuse Transfer Station 

        (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

Chapter 88: Nuisance (provisions related to fire safety) 
 
Chapter 93:  Fire Prevention 
 
Chapter 97:  Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 

         (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

Chapter 106: Traffic (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

 
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(9) shall be amended to add Chapter 61A as follows: 
 
1.141(9)  A City of Troy Foreman of Parks Mainenance Division, Superintendent of Public 

Grounds, or Director of Parks and Recreation  The City of Troy Director of Public Works, 

Superintendent of Parks, Streets, and Drains or the Parks Division Field Supervisor shall have 

authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction 

notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to 

believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy 

City Code: 

  Chapter 28: Tree Regulations 
 
  Chapter 29: Cemetery 
 
  Chapter 39:  Zoning (provisions related to landscaping) 
  
  Chapter 41:  Subdivision Control 
             (provisions related to landscaping) 
 
  Chapter 61A:  Film Production 
                (provisions related to filming on public parks and 
                                                public lands) 



 

 -3- 

 
 
 

   
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(10) shall be amended to add Chapter 61A as follows: 
 

1.141(10). The Zoning Administrator, or his/her designee, a Housing and Zoning 

Inspector, and the Inspector Supervisor shall have authority to issue and serve upon a 

person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, and/or a 

Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the 

person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 

Code: 

Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 
 
  Chapter 34:  Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches 
 
  Chapter 39:  Zoning 
 
  Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 
 
  Chapter 61: Temporary Merchant Business 
 
  Chapter 61A: Film Production 
     
  Chapter 64:  Gasoline Stations 
  
  Chapter 67:  Dances and Dance Halls  
 
  Chapter 69:  Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 
   
  Chapter 72:  Drive-In Restaurants 
 
  Chapter 76:  Adult Use Businesses Licenses 
 
   Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
 



 

 -4- 

   Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations 
 
   Chapter 82A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 
 
    Chapter 82B: Dangerous Buildings 
 
    Chapter 83:  Fences 
 
    Chapter 85: Signs 
 
    Chapter 88: Nuisances 
 
    Chaper 90: Animals 
 
    Chapter 93: Fire Prevention 
 
    Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 
   
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution  hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after adoption or publication, 
whichever occurs later. 
 



 

 -5- 

 
 
 
 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of  ___________________, 2014. 
 
 
 
               ______________________________ 
                                     Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
                                     _______________________________ 
                                    Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 



 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Chapter 60, Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule, shall be amended by adding the 
following items: 
 

ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 

FILM PRODUCTION (Chapter 61A)  
    Application Fee $100.00 
    Public Property Use Fee   (Per Day)                                                     $100.00  
    Fire Inspection Fee (per Inspection) 
    Hazardous Materials/Pyrotechnical Fee* 

       $100.00 

   Cost Deposit for Special Conditions* 
   Cost Deposit for Use of City Personnel* 
   Cash Bond*  
   Additional Fees and Costs*  
   Extension of Permit  $100.00 
*To be determined after applying and/or as required if production 
activities change. Other Ordinance provisions require fees, for 
example, Building and Fire. 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 



under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
  

 
 

 Dane Slater, Mayor 
  

 
 

 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
 



 

 

 

DATE:   

TO:  _________(insert title)__________________ 

FROM: Sehrish Salah-Ud-Din, Film and Video Coordinator 

SUBJECT:   Request to shoot film in the City of Troy 

When? When will you be shooting this scene? Day, date, and time? 

Who? Who will be involved? Number of Crew members? Number of cast members? 

What? What will they be doing? What will you need from the city? What equipment will you be bringing 

in? What equipment will you need from us? 

Where? Where do you want to shoot? Describe the scene 

Time? How much time will you need to shoot? What time do you want to start the shooting? 

What will Troy gain? Explain how Troy will benefit?  

Movie credit? Would you include Troy in the movie credits? 

Any additional information we may need to know? Explain 

Please check if you plan to use the following items: 

� Generators 

� Road use or closure 

� Pyrotechnics               

� Construction 

� Fire protection impact 

� Trailer 

 

LETTER OF INTENT 

          FOR INTERNAL OFFICE USE ONLY  

 

Exempt               Non- Exempt   



 

 

 
 
 

� Contact Film & Video Coordinator 
www.troymi.gov/Resources/FilmingInTroy  
 
 

� Obtain Special Event Permit for 
Outdoor Filming             

   

    
 

If use of a City Park is required: 

� Obtain a Filming Agreement    
 

   
 

� Determine if a Building Inspection  
Is Needed for Structures Built  

� Determine if a Generator Inspection 
Is Needed  

� Determine if the Alterations of a  
Building or Property Require the 
Submittal of a Site Plan for Review 
 

� Tent/Canopy Inspections 

� Explosives/Pyrotechnics/Special Effects 

� Schedule a Fire Inspection 

� Site Access/Equipment Placement 

� Street Closures 

� Traffic Crowd Control 

� Site Location Assistance 
 
 
 
       

 

Welcome to Troy, Michigan 
Michigan’s premier address for business, retail and commerce!  With our ideal 
location, excellent City services and friendly business environment, you will find 
that Troy is a great place to shoot your film.  To get you started, the following 
checklist has been prepared to assist you with your filming project in Troy. You 
will find Troy’s staff to be courteous and helpful throughout the process and 
each step to be fast, efficient and user-friendly.  We look forward to serving you, 
and once again, welcome to Troy. 

Sehrish Salah-Ud-Din, Assistant City Manager,  
Film and Video Coordinator 
Office:  248.524.3329 
Cell:  248.824.3992 
Email:  salahuddins@troymi.gov 
 
Aileen Bittner,  City Clerk 
Office:  248.524.3331 
Email:  aileen.bittner@troymi.gov 
     
 
Elaine Bo, Recreation Director 
Brian Goul, Supervisor 
Office:   248.524.3491 
Email:  boes@troymi.gov 
Email:  goulb@troymi.gov  
 
 

Paul N Featherston,  
SafeBuilt Building Official  
Or Rick Kessler, Plans Examiner 
Office:   248.524.3348 
Cell:   248.798.9186 
Email:  paul.featherston@troymi.gov 
Email:  r.kessler@troymi.gov 
 
 
 
 

David Roberts, Assistant Chief/ Fire Marshal 
Office:   248.524.3419 
Email:  robertsdj@troymi.gov 
 
 
 
Robert Redmond, Police Captain 
Office:   248.619.7662 
Email:  redmondrj@troymi.gov 
 
 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
Office:   248.524.3314 
Cell:   248.825.6794 
Email:  g.lapin@troymi.gov 
 

For any additional questions, please contact Sehrish Salah-Ud-Din (See above). 

Film & Video Checklist:             Contact: 

http://www.troymi.gov/Resources/FilmingInTroy�
mailto:salahuddins@troymi.gov�
mailto:aileen.bittner@troymi.gov�
mailto:boes@troymi.gov�
mailto:goulb@troymi.gov�
mailto:paul.featherston@troymi.gov�
mailto:r.kessler@troymi.gov�
mailto:robertsdj@troymi.gov�
mailto:redmondrj@troymi.gov�
mailto:g.lapin@troymi.gov�


 

1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

STEP I. APPLICANT: 

 Submit the completed Film Permit Application (TYPED OR PRINTED) to the City Clerk’s Office 

with the following: 

 

 Plans as required by City Code 61A.7 - Plans 

 Insurance certificate  

 Hold harmless agreement 

 *Signed affidavit of permission from private property owner 

 *Cash bond and cost deposit 

 Check payable to City of Troy for $100 

 

STEP II. APPLICANT/CITY CLERK’S OFFICE: 

 Review accuracy of completed application  

 Process application fee; give receipt to applicant 

 Print second copy of receipt; paperclip to application 

 

STEP III. CITY CLERK’S OFFICE: 

 Route application packet electronically for approval/denial 

 Print license; provide to contact listed on application 

 

* If applicable 

     

  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILM PERMIT 
 

 

City of Troy 
City Clerk’s Office 
500 W. Big Beaver  

Troy, Michigan  48084 
248.524.3317 



 

2 
 

APPLICATION FOR FILM PERMIT 
 

 
Date  

 
Name of Applicant/Company   
 
Address  
 
City/State/Zip  
 
Phone   
 
Project Manager at Location  
 
#1 Contact Person for Location  24-Hr Phone  
 
Address  
 
City/State/Zip  
  
Email Address  
 
#2 Contact Person for Location  24-Hr Phone  
 
Address  
 
City/State/Zip  
  
Email Address  
 
Name of Project  
 
Project Date(s)  to  
  
Project Hours  until  
 Start Time  End Time 
 
Nature of project   
   
Location(s)   
 (attach a separate sheet if necessary; provide street address and location name if applicable)  

# of Attendees per day per location  # of vehicles per day per location  
Include cast, crew, etc .    

If you answer “Yes” to any of the below, please attach detailed description 

Do you need City assistance?   Any special requests or conditions?   
Ex. Traffic control, emergency standby 
services Yes No  Yes No 

 

 

 



 

3 
 

 

       
      
 
Will this project use any of the following?    
(If “Yes”, attach a detailed description)   
 YES NO 

Animals and/or Reptiles   
Chemicals   
Explosives   

Special Effects   
Fire   

Other Hazardous Activities   
 
 

The above stated project will be carried out in accordance with all City Ordinances, Special Conditions and/or controls 
deemed necessary by the City. Any violation of this condition shall be sufficient cause for the City to shut down the 
project and revoke the permit. By signing this application, I am attesting that the statements made in this application 
are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 
  

 
 

 Applicant’s Signature 
 
 

This Permit will expire on  

 

 (Date to be determined by City Administration and all work/clean-up must be completed by this date) 

 
 

Approval of this application is determined by the following departments: 
Attorney’s Office, Building, Engineering, Fire, Police, Public Works/Parks, Purchasing, Recreation 

 
  
Note: The permit does not relieve applicant from meeting any applicable requirements of law or other public 

bodies or agencies. 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR FILM PERMIT 

 

 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

 

 

The CITY OF TROY welcomes you and wants you to enjoy its many residential, commercial and park settings where film 
MAGIC can be created.  We need to know a few things about you before you begin your creative endeavor.  Likewise, 
you should know a few things about us. 

The City of Troy does require a Film Permit unless you are exempt from that requirement.  Our experienced and helpful 
staff will meet with your production staff prior to any application for a Film Permit to discuss your goals and to 
determine if a Film Permit is necessary.  The following simple steps should be followed to ensure a prompt response to 
your questions and concerns about filming in Troy. 

 PRELIMINARY STEPS* 

1. Call the City’s Film and Video Coordinator in the City Manager’s Office to set up a pre-application meeting.  
The City’s Film and Video Coordinator can be reached at: 248.524.3329. At the meeting the following issues may be 
discussed: 

a.  Whether or not you are exempt from a Film Permit. (Chapter 61A. 5) 

Obtaining and completing an Application for a Film Permit.  (Chapter 61A.6).  An application can be 
found at the City of Troy Website: www.troymi.gov/Resources/FilmingInTroy under “Forms”. 

b. Any fees, costs and/or cash deposits, or extraordinary costs, as well as insurance requirements, if any, for the 
proposed filming activity. (Chapter 61A.8 and 61A.9).  A detailed explanation concerning the amount of fees, costs 
and cash bonds, if any, is provided as part of the Film Permit Application Package under the link on the City of Troy 
Website. 

c. Any special circumstances that you anticipate such as use of aircraft, gunfire, pyrotechnics, and other 
activities. (Chapter 61A.11).  

POST FILM PERMIT APPLICATION STEPS 

2. After an Application is received and all necessary documents are received by the City, the City Clerk will 
promptly circulate it to all necessary Departments for approval. 

3. Verify with the City of Troy’s building permit contractor, SafeBuilt, what building permits are needed, if any.  
SafeBuilt can be contacted in person on the second floor of City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan or by 
calling: 248.524.3344. 

FILMING PROCEDURES STEPS 

4. Once a Film Permit has been issued, inform the City Film and Video Coordinator, or another individual 
designated by the City Film and Video Coordinator, for example, the Troy Police Department or the Troy Fire 
Department,  of any of the specific circumstances set out in Chapter 61A.11 such as, but not limited to,  the need for 
traffic control, the use of pyrotechnics, the use of public agency logos, insignias, decals, or the use of aircraft. 

 

FILMING IN THE CITY OF TROY 

http://www.troymi.gov/Resources/FilmingInTroy�


 

2 
 

5. Film Permit extensions are allowed if in compliance with Chapter 61A.8.B. with at least one (1) day notice to 
the City Clerk.  

POST PRODUCTION STEPS 

6. Make sure clean-up and restoration of a film site is complete. 

7. Check with the City Clerk to confirm if there are any deposits that should be returned to you. 

8. Check with the City’s Film and Video Coordinator to determine if the City will require that you acknowledge 
the assistance of the City in the final film credits. 

 

∗   The City Film and Video Coordinator will provide you with a copy of Chapter 61A – Film Production Permit at the  pre-
application meeting.  This is a summary of Chapter 61A only.  The requirements and procedures set out in Chapter 61A 
shall control. 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

All Certificates of Insurance shall be approved by the City of Troy prior to issuance of a Film Permit. 

Liability Insurance.  Before a Film Permit is issued a certificate of insurance must be submitted 
evidencing Insurance in an amount not less than one (1) million dollars per occurrence for automobile 
liability and one (1) million dollars per occurrence for general liability insurance.  Cancellation of the 
insurance shall be considered a material breach of the conditions of the permit, and the permit shall 
become null and void unless proof of renewal of continues coverage is immediately provided to the City 
Clerk.  All insurance carriers shall be licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan and 
acceptable to the City.  In the event the use of pyrotechnics or any other potentially hazardous activity is 
contemplated, the permittee will be required to submit evidence of insurance which will cover said use 
or activities in the amount and form acceptable to the City.  An endorsement to any liability policies shall 
name the City of Troy, its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, 
volunteers, and other working on behalf of the City as additional insureds. 
 
A sample Certificate of Insurance is attached. 
 
IMDEMNIFCATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT. 
 
An Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement shall be signed by the applicant prior to the issuance 
of a Film Permit. 
 

(B) Indemnification and hold harmless.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, permittee agrees 
to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Troy, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf  of the City of Troy 
against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss (including all costs connected therewith), and 
for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Troy, 
its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers and others 
working on behalf of the City of Troy.  This provision includes, but is not limited to claims of 
personal injury (including bodily injury or death) and/or property damage which arises out of or 
is in any way connected or associated with the execution of activities by permittee set out in the 
application for permit and under the provisions and/or conditions of the permit. 
 

The indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement is attached and will be requested as part of the 
application procedure. 
 

 

 

INSURANCE AND HOLD HARMLESS 
REQUIRMENTS FOR FILM PERMIT 

 



 

2 
 

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

 

 To the fullest extent permitted by law, ____________________________, agrees to 

defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Troy, its elected and 

appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the City of Troy 

against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all cost connected therewith, and 

for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Troy, 

its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the 

City of Troy.  This Agreement includes, but is not limited to, claims of personal injury, including 

bodily injury or death and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out 

of or in any way connected to or associated with the activity of _________________________ 

as set out in the application for Film Permit or any activities related to filming while in the City 

of Troy an as set out under the provisions and conditions of the Film Permit. 

 

Witnesses:    Film Permit Applicant 

 

________________________  ________________________________________________ 

     Title: ___________________________________________ 

________________________ 

 

Dated:  __________________ 



SAMPLE

carterbj
Typewritten Text

carterbj
Typewritten Text

carterbj
Typewritten Text



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   FINAL FEBRUARY 18, 2014 

1 

On February 18, 2014, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Vice Chair 
Clark called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Bruce Bloomingdale Allen Kneale 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
David Eisenbacher 
Thomas Krent 
David Lambert 
Paul McCown 
 

Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 21, 2014 
 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the January 21, 2014 meeting minutes. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, ALLAN SHARP, 5910 HILMORE – In order to split one 

parcel into two, a 2.625 foot variance to the required minimum 85 foot lot width. 
The variance is necessary for both of the proposed parcels. Zoning Ordinance 
Section 4.06 (C) R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Moved by McCown 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, to grant the request.  
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01a



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   FINAL FEBRUARY 18, 2014 

2 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, WALSH COLLEGE c/o VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN 
ASSOCIATES, 3838 LIVERNOIS – In order to construct modifications to the 
existing building:  1) a 10 foot variance to the 25 foot maximum allowed building 
height; 2) a 5.15 foot variance to the required 80 foot setback from adjacent 
residential property; and 3) a 4 foot variance to the maximum permitted 35 foot 
height limit for proposed rooftop mechanical equipment screening structures. 
Zoning Ordinance Sections 4.11 (C) CF Zoning District, 6.22 (B), 7.08 (A) (1). 
 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by McCown 
 

RESOLVED, to grant the request, subject to: 

 Applicant and owner of 3864 Livernois to develop a mutually agreeable 
landscape screening plan; 

 Landscape screening plan to address the common east-west property line 
separating the properties; 

 Landscape screening plan to be incorporated into an amended Site Plan 
for the Planning Commission. 

 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
The Board discussed Member Krent’s potential zoning ordinance recommendations. At 
the Board’s direction, Member Krent agreed to amend the document adding 
suggestions for lot splits/lot averaging, setbacks for post secondary schools, and height 
requirements in the CF zoning district. Member Krent will provide the revised document 
for consideration at the next ZBA meeting.   

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 9:01 pm. 
 





stewartc
Text Box
O-01b

















PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to 
order at 7:04 p.m. on March 25, 2014 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Gordon Schepke 
Steve Gottlieb 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-016 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-017 
Moved by: Gottlieb 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 11, 2014 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Krent gave a report on the February 18, 2014 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant said a joint meeting of the Downtown Development Authority and City 
Council is scheduled on April 2, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the Board of recent planning activity. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D) – Proposed Walsh 

College Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 
Livernois), Section 22, Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application for Walsh College. He 
reported the variances sought by the applicant were granted by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals with conditions to which the applicant has met. Mr. Savidant addressed the 
applicant’s request for a parking deviation from the required number of parking spaces 
and said the existing 985 parking spaces are sufficient for the new project. Mr. Savidant 
recommended approval of the proposed Preliminary Site Plan because it is consistent 
with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and is a major improvement to the 
existing facility on the Walsh College Campus. 
 
Stephanie Bergeron, President and Chief Executive Officer of Walsh College, was 
present. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-018 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed Walsh College Renovations and 
Addition to 985 when a total of 1,048 spaces are required on the site based on the off-
street parking space requirements for post-secondary schools and auditoriums. This 63-
space reduction meets the standards of Section 13.06; and, 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

3 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Walsh College Renovations 
and Addition, located on the east side of Livernois, south of Wattles (3838 Livernois), 
Section 22, within the CF (Community Facilities) District, be granted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) 

– Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of 
Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed Conditional Rezoning application for Amber Town 
Center Townhomes and Lofts and gave a history of the proposed development as 
relates to the previous traditional rezoning submission. He addressed the follow changes 
proposed in the Conditional Rezoning application: 
 

 Building height reduced by one story; 4 story, 51 feet high. 

 Number of units reduced. 

 Additional green space. 

 Reduction in parking spaces. 

 Greater percentage of brick on elevations. 

 Open space exceeds requirement. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Preliminary Site Plan submitted represents the conditions as 
proposed and if the Conditional Rezoning application is ultimately approved by City 
Council, the conditions would be final. He said any significant modifications in the future 
would have to come back before the Planning Commission for review and approval. Mr. 
Savidant said the proposed conditions volunteered by the applicant would control future 
development of the property. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is recommended to approve the proposed Conditional Rezoning 
application for the reasons as provided by the Planning Consultant in his report dated 
March 13, 2014. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Proposed open space; surpasses minimum requirement of 15%. 

 Density compared to existing apartment buildings in City. 

 Traffic generation; reviewed by City Traffic Engineer. 

 Building addressing; charge of the City’s Building Department. 

 Reciprocal cross access easement/agreement with property to the north. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

4 
 

Dennis Cowan of Plunkett Cooney was present to represent the petitioner. Mr. Cowan 
said it is their belief the Conditional Rezoning application addresses every concern 
expressed by the Planning Commission, City Council and neighbors, both commercial 
and residential. He said the proposed development remains a viable and economic 
project. 
 
Justin Wieber of SHW Group, project architect, displayed and addressed the sight line 
demonstrations, renderings and elevations. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Craig Goldin of Cosmetic Dentistry Institute, 3415 Livernois, spoke in opposition. He 
addressed the Master Plan, visibility of his office building, potential increase in traffic 
and concerns with parking and wear and tear on the parking lot as relates to the cross 
access easement. 
 
Michael Fahmy of OMPT Specialists, 3435 Livernois, spoke in opposition. He 
addressed the potential increase in traffic, visibility of existing office buildings and safety 
of his clientele. 
 
Sanjay Shah of 123 Millstone spoke in opposition. He distributed information he 
prepared relating to surrounding zoning, the Master Plan, traffic, compatibility of 
proposed use and the knowledge of a prospective purchaser of the subject property 
with an interest to develop office. 
 
Mr. Savidant clarified the information received from Mr. Shah as relates to the 
surrounding zoning and advised Mr. Shah and the audience of the legal zoning 
classifications of the surrounding area. 
 
Chetan Rastogi of 3535 Cherished View spoke in opposition. He addressed potential 
increase of traffic and safety of children. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson said is supportive of the application. He outlined the activity of development 
around the office building in which he works located at 292 Town Center since 
constructed in 1985. He said the missing element is residential with the access to 
community services such as the library, aquatic center and recreational center. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he is supportive of the application because it is a good development in 
a good location. He addressed the application process, traffic and alternative living 
accommodations. Mr. Schultz said he is pleased the petitioner is offering a conditional 
rezoning so there is control going forward with any future development. He hopes the 
City Council will share the vision of the Planning Commission and provide new housing 
stock within the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Tagle said he is supportive of the application and agrees the proposed development 
would provide the walkability, sustainability and a different housing stock, views shared 
in the 20/20 Vision study in which residents were involved. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed the generation of traffic and parking for office versus residential 
with respect to the times of day. He addressed the visibility of existing buildings as 
relates to any development on the subject parcel. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the Preliminary Site Plan application meets all requirements of 
the Zoning Ordinance. He addressed the vacancy history and the potential development 
of the subject parcel under its existing zoning classification. 
 
Mr. Strat said he is supportive of the application. He said it is an excellent location for 
young professionals to reside with its close proximity to the City campus. 
 
Mr. Sanzica said he is supportive of the application. He commended the petitioner on 
the application and his existing developments in Royal Oak and Clawson. 
 
Chair Edmunds said he is happy to support the recommendation to City Council, noting 
the petitioner went beyond all expectations. 
 
Mr. Cowan addressed the Probate Court’s decision on the conservatorship of the 
subject property. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-019 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O to BB conditional rezoning request, which incorporates Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the 
west side of Livernois, north of Town Center (3409 Livernois), within Section 21, being 
approximately 1.23 acres in size, be granted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 
Mr. Savidant announced a Public Hearing on the proposed Conditional Rezoning 
application is scheduled for the April 14, 2014 City Council meeting. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS – Draft Revisions 
 
Assistant City Attorney Motzny circulated draft bylaws that were reviewed and marked-
up by the City Attorney. He briefly outlined the proposed revisions. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

6 
 

There was discussion on: 

 Rotating roll call vote vs voice vote on procedural matters. 
 
It was determined the Bylaws would come back before the Board for a vote at the next 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
Mr. Schultz said he accepted an employment position with the City and it was 
determined by the City Clerk that he cannot simultaneously serve on the Planning 
Commission as an active employee. He said tonight would be his last meeting after 
serving on the Board for 12 years. 
 
Goodbyes and best wishes from around the table went out to Mr. Schultz. 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments that followed. 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2014 PC Minutes\Draft\2014 03 25 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to 
order at 7:04 p.m. on March 25, 2014 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Gordon Schepke 
Steve Gottlieb 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-016 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-017 
Moved by: Gottlieb 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 11, 2014 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Krent gave a report on the February 18, 2014 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant said a joint meeting of the Downtown Development Authority and City 
Council is scheduled on April 2, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the Board of recent planning activity. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D) – Proposed Walsh 

College Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 
Livernois), Section 22, Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application for Walsh College. He 
reported the variances sought by the applicant were granted by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals with conditions to which the applicant has met. Mr. Savidant addressed the 
applicant’s request for a parking deviation from the required number of parking spaces 
and said the existing 985 parking spaces are sufficient for the new project. Mr. Savidant 
recommended approval of the proposed Preliminary Site Plan because it is consistent 
with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and is a major improvement to the 
existing facility on the Walsh College Campus. 
 
Stephanie Bergeron, President and Chief Executive Officer of Walsh College, was 
present. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-018 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed Walsh College Renovations and 
Addition to 985 when a total of 1,048 spaces are required on the site based on the off-
street parking space requirements for post-secondary schools and auditoriums. This 63-
space reduction meets the standards of Section 13.06; and, 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

3 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Walsh College Renovations 
and Addition, located on the east side of Livernois, south of Wattles (3838 Livernois), 
Section 22, within the CF (Community Facilities) District, be granted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) 

– Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of 
Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed Conditional Rezoning application for Amber Town 
Center Townhomes and Lofts and gave a history of the proposed development as 
relates to the previous traditional rezoning submission. He addressed the follow changes 
proposed in the Conditional Rezoning application: 
 

 Building height reduced by one story; 4 story, 51 feet high. 

 Number of units reduced. 

 Additional green space. 

 Reduction in parking spaces. 

 Greater percentage of brick on elevations. 

 Open space exceeds requirement. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Preliminary Site Plan submitted represents the conditions as 
proposed and if the Conditional Rezoning application is ultimately approved by City 
Council, the conditions would be final. He said any significant modifications in the future 
would have to come back before the Planning Commission for review and approval. Mr. 
Savidant said the proposed conditions volunteered by the applicant would control future 
development of the property. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is recommended to approve the proposed Conditional Rezoning 
application for the reasons as provided by the Planning Consultant in his report dated 
March 13, 2014. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Proposed open space; surpasses minimum requirement of 15%. 

 Density compared to existing apartment buildings in City. 

 Traffic generation; reviewed by City Traffic Engineer. 

 Building addressing; charge of the City’s Building Department. 

 Reciprocal cross access easement/agreement with property to the north. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

4 
 

Dennis Cowan of Plunkett Cooney was present to represent the petitioner. Mr. Cowan 
said it is their belief the Conditional Rezoning application addresses every concern 
expressed by the Planning Commission, City Council and neighbors, both commercial 
and residential. He said the proposed development remains a viable and economic 
project. 
 
Justin Wieber of SHW Group, project architect, displayed and addressed the sight line 
demonstrations, renderings and elevations. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Craig Goldin of Cosmetic Dentistry Institute, 3415 Livernois, spoke in opposition. He 
addressed the Master Plan, visibility of his office building, potential increase in traffic 
and concerns with parking and wear and tear on the parking lot as relates to the cross 
access easement. 
 
Michael Fahmy of OMPT Specialists, 3435 Livernois, spoke in opposition. He 
addressed the potential increase in traffic, visibility of existing office buildings and safety 
of his clientele. 
 
Sanjay Shah of 123 Millstone spoke in opposition. He distributed information he 
prepared relating to surrounding zoning, the Master Plan, traffic, compatibility of 
proposed use and the knowledge of a prospective purchaser of the subject property 
with an interest to develop office. 
 
Mr. Savidant clarified the information received from Mr. Shah as relates to the 
surrounding zoning and advised Mr. Shah and the audience of the legal zoning 
classifications of the surrounding area. 
 
Chetan Rastogi of 3535 Cherished View spoke in opposition. He addressed potential 
increase of traffic and safety of children. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson said is supportive of the application. He outlined the activity of development 
around the office building in which he works located at 292 Town Center since 
constructed in 1985. He said the missing element is residential with the access to 
community services such as the library, aquatic center and recreational center. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he is supportive of the application because it is a good development in 
a good location. He addressed the application process, traffic and alternative living 
accommodations. Mr. Schultz said he is pleased the petitioner is offering a conditional 
rezoning so there is control going forward with any future development. He hopes the 
City Council will share the vision of the Planning Commission and provide new housing 
stock within the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 25, 2014 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Tagle said he is supportive of the application and agrees the proposed development 
would provide the walkability, sustainability and a different housing stock, views shared 
in the 20/20 Vision study in which residents were involved. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed the generation of traffic and parking for office versus residential 
with respect to the times of day. He addressed the visibility of existing buildings as 
relates to any development on the subject parcel. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the Preliminary Site Plan application meets all requirements of 
the Zoning Ordinance. He addressed the vacancy history and the potential development 
of the subject parcel under its existing zoning classification. 
 
Mr. Strat said he is supportive of the application. He said it is an excellent location for 
young professionals to reside with its close proximity to the City campus. 
 
Mr. Sanzica said he is supportive of the application. He commended the petitioner on 
the application and his existing developments in Royal Oak and Clawson. 
 
Chair Edmunds said he is happy to support the recommendation to City Council, noting 
the petitioner went beyond all expectations. 
 
Mr. Cowan addressed the Probate Court’s decision on the conservatorship of the 
subject property. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-019 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O to BB conditional rezoning request, which incorporates Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the 
west side of Livernois, north of Town Center (3409 Livernois), within Section 21, being 
approximately 1.23 acres in size, be granted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 
Mr. Savidant announced a Public Hearing on the proposed Conditional Rezoning 
application is scheduled for the April 14, 2014 City Council meeting. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS – Draft Revisions 
 
Assistant City Attorney Motzny circulated draft bylaws that were reviewed and marked-
up by the City Attorney. He briefly outlined the proposed revisions. 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on April 8, 2014 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Steve Gottlieb Gordon Schepke 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Resolution # PC-2014-04-020 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2014-04-021 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 25, 2014 Special/Study meeting as 
prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 412) – 

Proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., North side of Birchwood, East 
of Bellingham (1871 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial 
and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle summarized the application. 
 
Russ Maloney, 1871 Birchwood, applicant, described his application. 
 
Nathan Robinson, PO Box 182158, Shelby Township, Engineer for applicant, discussed 
the application. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jeffrey Pearson, 1893 Birchwood, spoke in opposition to the application. Mr. Pearson 
made a PowerPoint presentation. 
 
Cara Maloney, 1871 Birchwood, suggested that there were other soil screening operations 
within the City.  
 
The floor was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-04-022 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., located on the North side of 
Birchwood, East of Bellingham, Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial 
and Business) District be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Provide an 8-foot high fence around property. On the east side of property, fence is 
to be located on top of a 3-foot high landscaped berm. 

2. Maximum of one (1) soil screener on the property at any given time. Soil screener 
not to exceed size of soil screener listed in application. 

3. Soils screened on the property to be used by Advanced Landscape only. No retail 
sales of soil on the property. 

4. Hours of operation for the soil screener to be between 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. 
only. Soil screener not to operate on Sundays. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

3 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 990) – Proposed Belleclaire 

Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of Lamb (part of 
4210 Rochester Road), Section 14, Currently Zoned RT (One-Family Attached 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle summarized the application. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-04-023 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, including seven 
(7) attached units, located on the east side of Rochester and south side of Lamb, 
Section 14, within the RT (One-Family Attached Residential) district, be granted, with 
the following condition: 
 

1. Modify the driveway radii at the Lamb Road right-of-way. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Krent, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
No: Gottlieb 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Gottlieb explained that his “no” vote was due to concerns over a lack of guest 
parking spaces for guests to the condominium.  
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 

 
Mr. Savidant summarized the draft bylaws, which had been reviewed and approved by 
the City Attorney. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2014-04-024 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission approve the revised Planning Commission 
Bylaws, as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
Anthony Leo spoke in opposition of a potential congregate care facility located on the 
east side of Livernois, just south of Zion Christian Church. 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Savidant reminded Planning Commission members of the upcoming Real Estate 
Forum on April 29, 2014. He indicated that members would be receiving invitations in 
the near future.  

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2014 PC Minutes\Final\2014 04 08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on April 8, 2014 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Steve Gottlieb Gordon Schepke 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Resolution # PC-2014-04-020 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2014-04-021 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 25, 2014 Special/Study meeting as 
prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 412) – 

Proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., North side of Birchwood, East 
of Bellingham (1871 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial 
and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle summarized the application. 
 
Russ Maloney, 1871 Birchwood, applicant, described his application. 
 
Nathan Robinson, PO Box 182158, Shelby Township, Engineer for applicant, discussed 
the application. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jeffrey Pearson, 1893 Birchwood, spoke in opposition to the application. Mr. Pearson 
made a PowerPoint presentation. 
 
Cara Maloney, 1871 Birchwood, suggested that there were other soil screening operations 
within the City.  
 
The floor was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-04-022 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., located on the North side of 
Birchwood, East of Bellingham, Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial 
and Business) District be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Provide an 8-foot high fence around property. On the east side of property, fence is 
to be located on top of a 3-foot high landscaped berm. 

2. Maximum of one (1) soil screener on the property at any given time. Soil screener 
not to exceed size of soil screener listed in application. 

3. Soils screened on the property to be used by Advanced Landscape only. No retail 
sales of soil on the property. 

4. Hours of operation for the soil screener to be between 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. 
only. Soil screener not to operate on Sundays. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 8, 2014 
  

 
 

3 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 990) – Proposed Belleclaire 

Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of Lamb (part of 
4210 Rochester Road), Section 14, Currently Zoned RT (One-Family Attached 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle summarized the application. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-04-023 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, including seven 
(7) attached units, located on the east side of Rochester and south side of Lamb, 
Section 14, within the RT (One-Family Attached Residential) district, be granted, with 
the following condition: 
 

1. Modify the driveway radii at the Lamb Road right-of-way. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Krent, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
No: Gottlieb 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Gottlieb explained that his “no” vote was due to concerns over a lack of guest 
parking spaces for guests to the condominium.  
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 

 
Mr. Savidant summarized the draft bylaws, which had been reviewed and approved by 
the City Attorney. 





Report

2014

CITY of TROY

Assessment Roll

&

Board of Review

stewartc
Text Box
O-02a



 

Eileen Turner

Submitted by:   Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

James Hatch

Frank Strahl, Chairman

City of Troy

2014 Board of Review:

2014 ASSESSMENT ROLL

ANNUAL REPORT

Board of Review



 i

April 24, 2014 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
RE: 2014 Assessment Roll Report and Board of Review Minutes 

 

   It is my pleasure to present to you the 2014 Assessment Roll Report and 
Board of Review Minutes for the City of Troy.  This roll is the product of a full 
year’s effort by the entire Assessing Department staff.  Without their able 
assistance, this roll would surely suffer.    I am most appreciative of the efforts 
they expend every year in the service of the community.  Their efforts should 
not go unnoticed. 

   The 2014 Assessment Roll is summarized as follows: 
  

Total  Total Residential Commercial Industrial Personal 
Assessed Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Value Value Value Value Value Value 
            
4,827,541,740 4,371,580,350 2,790,011,280 878,242,440 277,484,950 425,841,680 

 

   The Assessed Value increase for 2014 is $336,109,400 or a 7.50% increase 
from 2013.     

   This year the Taxable Value increased $61,316,902 or 1.42%.   

   The following chart represents a 5-year history of Assessed and Taxable 
Values: 

Year Assessed Increase % Taxable Increase % 
  Value (Decrease)   Value (Decrease)    

2014 4,827,541,740 336,109,400 7.50 4,371,580,350 61,316,902 1.42 
2013 4,491,432,340 81,323,440 1.80 4,310,263,448 (2,428,602) (0.001) 
2012 4,410,108,900 (130,303,780) (2.90) 4,312,692,050 (136,158,010) (3.10) 
2011 4,540,412,680 (448,105,633) (9.00) 4,448,750,160 (394,862,852) (8.20) 
2010 4,985,518,313 (850,370,926) (14.56) 4,843,613,012 (616,166,924) (11.29) 

    

It should be noted that the Consumer Price Index in Michigan for 2014 
Taxable Value was set at 1.60% (a multiplier of 1.016).   



 ii

   The data reflects an increase in Residential Values, and Personal Property.  
The Commercial/Industrial properties experienced a slight decline.        

   The following chart details the Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value (2 
times the Assessed Value) with and without Personal Property, since the 
passage of Proposal “A”. 

 

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value since 1994 

Year Assessed Value Taxable Value Ratio All 
Personal 
Property 

Ratio No 
Personal 

2014 4,827,541,740 4,371,580,350 45.28 425,841,680 44.82 
2013 4,491,432,340 4,310,263,448 47.98 414,094,580 47.78 
2012 4,410,108,900 4,312,692,050 48.90 395,095,920 48.79 
2011 4,540,412,680 4,448,750,160 48.99 384,084,890 48.90 
2010 4,958,518,313 4,843,613,012 48.84 407,990,730 48.74 
2009 5,838,869,239 5,459,779,936 46.75 448,100,230 46.48 
2008 6,227,094,050 5,562,596,010 44.26 457,552,500 44.24 
2007 6,422,659,810  5,550,516,437  43.21  464,213,650  42.68  
2006 6,608,804,750 5,435,035,442 41.12  479,874,950 40.42  
2005 6,525,074,330 5,264,351,550 40.33  503,497,670 39.53  
2004 6,337,222,973 5,094,758,223 40.20  536,093,423 39.34  
2003 6,188,084,256 4,978,263,437 40.22  584,236,696 39.21  
2002 5,955,697,398 4,861,640,648 40.82  619,964,538 39.75  
2001 5,652,563,942 4,686,250,942 41.45  649,562,212 40.34  
2000 5,218,597,300 4,373,072,080 41.90  643,070,690 40.76  
1999 4,696,926,183 4,183,560,453 44.54  666,496,353 43.63  
1998 4,284,960,814 4,005,628,276 46.74  626,129,990 46.18  
1997 3,954,663,960 3,775,248,837 47.73  579,417,710 47.34  
1996 3,672,996,870 3,573,652,298 48.65  522,531,950 48.42  
1995 3,463,173,910 3,425,410,880 49.45  507,025,520 49.36  
1994 3,308,095,110 3,308,095,110 50.00  453,375,110 50.00  

 

   The Personal Property Roll for 2014 is $ 425,841,680, an increase of 
$11,747,100 or 2.84%.  This is due to an increase in office occupancy in the 
commercial class (good news!).     

    This is the third increase in the Personal Property Roll since 2001.  Only four 
of the last sixteen years have shown an increase in the Personal Property 
totals.   

    

   

  

 

 



 iii

 The following chart illustrates the 5-year Personal Property Roll history. 

 

   

   The Industrial Facilities Tax Roll has a decrease of $2,202,370 or 12.15%.    

   This is due to normal depreciation of the personal property assets that are 
currently abated.      

     The chart below reflects a 5 year history of the tax abatement roll. 

5 Year Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 

        
2014 15,930,700 (2,202,370) (12.15) 
2013 18,133,070 4,219,340 30.33 
2012 13,913,730 1,930,580 16.11 
2011 11,983,150 1,639,540 15.85 
2010 10,343,610 (883,520) (7.87) 

 

   As you recall, the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) was 
reconfigured, and the debt was refinanced for the 2014 year. 

  Therefore, the history of the new DDA starts with the current Assessment 
Year of 2014. 

 

   The following chart details the history of the DDA 

DDA History and Capture Changes 

Year TOTAL DDA Real Personal Capture 
Capture 

%+,- 
2014 380,857,480 277,809,450 103,048,030 71,665,210  

    

    

  

5 Year Personal Property History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 

        
2014 425,841,680 11,747,100 2.84 
2013 414,094,580 18,998,660 4.90 
2012 395,096,920 11,102,030 2.87 
2011 384,084,890 (23,905,840) (5.90) 
2010 407,990,730 (40,109,500) (8.95) 



 iv

   The City of Troy now has 2 Brownfield Redevelopment Authorities (BRA), TCF 
Bank and MJR (the new movie complex being constructed on the site of the 
former Kmart at Maple and Livernois).   

  The TCF Brownfield is in its eighth year.  The 2014 Taxable Value is 335,890, 
an increase of $1,010, or 0.73% from the 2013 value.   

  TCF BRA History and Capture Changes (Troy) 
Year Total BRA Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2014 335,890 335,890 0 137,950 0.73 
2013 334,880 334,880 0 136,940 (15.60) 
2012 360,210 360,210 0 162,270 (12.08) 
2011 382,510 382,510 0 184,570 (22.85) 
2010 437,180 437,180 0 239,240 (21.71) 
2009 503,530 503,530 0 305,590 (5.66) 
2008 521,860 521,860 0 323,920 (4.91) 
2007 538,570 538,570 0 340,630  

 

   The MJR Brownfield is in its first year.  The 2014 Taxable Value is $2,175,240.  
The Captured Taxable Value is $1,149,600. 

 

   This is the eleventh year for the Smart Zone (SZ) in Troy.  This is the 
development occurring at the former Big Beaver Airport site.  It shows a 
6.10% increase in captured Taxable Value from 2013.   

   The following chart details the History of the SmartZone.   

 

SmartZone Totals 
Year     TOTAL SZ Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2014 20,923,395 13,052,800 7,870,595 6,476,015 6.10 
2013 20,546,380 13,126,260 7,420,120 6,099,000 (6.80) 
2012 20,096,250 12,118,900 7,977,350 6,546,350 14.27 
2011 20,097,510 13,907,950 6,189,560 5,650,130 (46.09) 
2010 24,927,370 17,102,270 7,825,100 10,479,990 (10.99) 
2009 26,221,980 19,630,100 6,591,880 11,774,600 12.14 
2008 24,947,540 18,428,290 6,519,250 10,500,160 (0.69) 
2007 25,725,320 18,164,810 7,560,510 11,277,940 25.89 
2006 23,405,930 16,888,080 6,517,850 8,958,550 11.50 
2005 22,482,220 16,372,300 6,109,920 8,034,840 48.22 
2004 19,867,910 15,089,770 4,778,140 5,420,530   

  

    



 v

   The State of Michigan introduced 2 New Tax Exemptions of property 
starting with the 2014 year. 

   The first of these was an expansion of the Veterans Exemption.  The new 
legislation allows any veteran who is declared 100% disabled, or 100% 
unemployable to be exempt from local property taxes.  This benefit 
continues for the unremarried surviving spouse. 

   There were 21 of these exemptions granted, totaling $2,004,240 in Taxable 
Value.  This is a loss of City revenue of $21,080.  Contrast this with the total 
Poverty Exemptions from 2013, which equaled $247,380 in Taxable Value 
and $2,602 of City revenue, also for 21 exemptions.  I’ll let you draw your own 
conclusions as to the value of the properties being exempted. 

    

   The second exemption is the beginning of the proposed phase out of 
Personal Property statewide.  This started with the Small Parcel Exemption.    
The Small Parcel Exemption is for Personal Property accounts that have a 
Market Value of $80,000 or less, or, $40,000 or less of Assessed Value. 

   There were over 2,000 of these parcels on the Personal Property Roll that 
will no longer have to pay Personal Property taxes starting with the 2014 
year.  They accounted for less than $180,000 in Assessed Value, which 
translates into approximately $1,900 in City revenue. 

 

   For the 2014 Assessment Year there are 27,303 residential parcels in the City 
of Troy.  They have an average Assessed Value (A/V) of $116,770, and an 
average Market Value of $233,540.  The average Taxable Value (T/V) for 
these parcels is $102,190.  (For 2013 the average A/V was $104,500 and the 
average T/V was $99,172.) 

   There were 910 residential sales in the 2013 calendar year, compared to 
715 in 2012.  The total sales price for these parcels was $257,056,800, for an 
average selling price of $282,480 ($258,248 in 2012).  The lowest recorded 
residential sale was $30,000 and the highest recorded residential sale was 
$1,195,000.    

   There were also 160 sales of condominiums in 2013, compared to 140 in 
2012.  They had a total selling price of $27,596,800, for an average sale price 
of $172,480 ($139,620 in 2012).  The lowest recorded condominium sale was 
$51,100 and the highest recorded condominium sale was $363,900.    

    

 

 

licarila
Text Box
2013)

licarila
Text Box
2013)

licarila
Text Box
2013

licarila
Text Box
2013



 vi

   There were 2,580 deeds processed by the Office Assistant staff in the 
Assessing Department.  The vast majority of these lead to the filing of a 
Property Transfer Affidavit that is processed by this department.  In addition, 
we handle approximately the same amount of Principal Residence 
Exemption Affidavits annually. 

       There are currently 1,994 Commercial or Industrial zoned parcels in the 
City of Troy.  These parcels encompass 6,943 businesses that file Personal 
Property returns in the City.  The filing deadline is February 20th, of any given 
year.  All of these returns are processed before the last scheduled session of 
the Board of Review. 

   Also included are the 2014 Assessment Roll Summary sheets, which 
summarize most of the information in this report. 

      I must also compliment the staff of the Assessing Department for the 
valuable work they do on behalf of the citizens of the City of Troy.  The 
telephone volume is staggering.  Staff personally review and change dozens 
of Assessments, on top of the many hundreds they each reviewed and were 
unable to change.  Counter traffic is extreme.  In spite of the thousands of 
citizens we spoke with by telephone, or dealt with in person, I received no 
complaints about any of our staff, but did receive many compliments from 
the citizens we interacted with.  Staff’s work this year was again, outstanding. 

   I should also mention the extraordinary work performed by the citizen 
volunteers who served on the 2014 Board of Review.  Their work is difficult 
and stressful.  The Board ran 4 days.  They heard 41 in person appeals, and 
decided on many hundreds more Correspondence Appeals, Protection 
Appeals, and Poverty Exemptions.  This was another great job in a high stress 
environment.    

  The Minutes of the Board of Review close this report.   

  I am available to answer any questions you may have. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

 

Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor   



Type Count Assessed Value Taxable Value
Agricultural Real 0 0 0
Commercial Real 1012 932,504,910 878,242,440
Industrial Real 982 281,125,890 277,484,950
Residential Real 27,303 3,188,069,260 2,790,011,280

Total Real 29,297 4,401,700,060 3,945,738,670

Commercial Personal 6,404 258,780,990 258,780,990
Industrial Personal 520 121,212,780 121,212,780
Utility Personal 19 45,847,910 45,847,910
Deletes 0
Total Personal 6,943 425,841,680 425,841,680
Total of Roll 36,240 4,827,541,740 4,371,580,350

Assessed Value Percent Change Taxable Value Percent Change
% %

Residential 11.90 Residential (3.40)
Commercial (1.00) Commercial (2.10)
Industrial (2.00) Industrial 3.17

2014 Assessment Roll Summary

Percent Changes by Class

Personal 2.80 Personal 2.80

Overall A/V 7.48 Overall T/V 1.42

A/V % T/V % A/V % T/V %
Residential 66.04 63.82 Real 91.18 90.26
Commercial 19.32 20.09 Personal 8.82 9.74
Industrial 5.82 6.35
Personal 8.82 9.74

 
Total 100.00 100.00 Total 100.00 100.00

1,012 Commercial Personal 6,404
982 Industrial Personal 520

27,303 UtilityPersonal 19
Total Real 29,297 Total Personal 6,943
Grand Total 36,240

Percent of Total Roll (A/V = Assessed Value, T/V = Taxable Value)

 
 

Commercial Real
Parcel Count (36,240) Breakdown

Industrial Real
Residential Real

quick stats 1



2014 Assessment Roll Summary

Sale Market Assessed Taxable 
Price Value Value Value

Residential 282,480 0 0 0
910 Sales @ $257,056,800 High Sale 1,195,000 Low Sale 30,000

Price M/V A/V T/V
Condo 172,480 0 0 0
160 Sales @ $27,596,800 High Sale 363,900 Low Sale 51,100

Price M/V A/V T/V
Combined Residential & Condo 266,030 233,540 116,770 102,190
1,070 Sales @ $284,653,600 High Sale 1,195,000 Low Sale 30,000

Total Market Value (including Personal Property) 9,655,083,480
Total Taxable Value (including Personal Property) 8,743,160,700

Ratio of T/V to M/V (including Personal Property) % 45.28

Total Market Value (No Personal Property) 8,803,400,120
Total Taxable Value (No Personal Property) 7,891,477,340

Ratio of T/V to M/V (No Personal Property) % 44.82

Averages

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value

Ratio of T/V to M/V (No Personal Property) % 44.82

By Type (No Personal Property) Assessed Market Taxable
Value Value Value Ratio

Commercial 1,191,285,900 2,382,571,800 1,137,023,430 47.72
Industrial 448,186,580 896,373,160 444,545,640 49.59
Residential 3,188,069,260 6,376,138,520 2,790,011,280 43.76

Base 2014 T/V 2014 Capture
Total 309,192,270 380,857,480 71,665,210

Base 2014 T/V 2014 Capture
Total 197,940 335,890 137,950

Base 2014 T/V 2014 Capture
Total 1,025,640 2,175,240 1,149,600

Base 2014 T/V 2014 Capture
Total 14,447,380 20,923,395 6,476,015

Troy Smart Zone (SZ) Statistics

DDA Statistics

Troy Brownfield - TCF Bank Statistics

Troy Brownfield - MJR Theater Statistics

quick stats 2



2014 Assessment Roll Summary

School Code School P.R.E July P.R.E Dec Total P.R.E Non-H July Non-H Dec Total Non-H

260 TROY 30.9023 6.4469 37.3492 37.2783 12.8230 50.1013
010 Avondale 29.8043 5.3490 35.1533 38.8943 14.4390 53.3333
030 Birmingham 34.8455 6.3921 41.2376 38.8438 10.4495 49.2933
040 Bloomfield 31.2840 6.8287 38.1127 36.1380 11.6827 47.8207
160 Lamphere 35.4805 11.0252 46.5057 37.2480 12.7927 50.0407
230 Royal Oak 33.6221 1.3595 34.9816 48.7923 1.3595 50.1518
265 DDA Troy 30.9023 6.4469 37.3492 37.2783 12.8230 50.1013
269 Brwnf'd Troy 30.9023 6.4469 37.3492 37.2783 12.8230 50.1013
268 SmartZn Troy 30.9023 6.4469 37.3492 37.2783 12.8230 50.1013
750 Warren 36.8813 1.3595 38.2408 47.5237 1.3595 48.8832

Rank 2014 A/V 2014 T/V Activity ParcelsName
Top Twenty Taxpayers

2013 Millage Rates (2014 rates are not Certified until late Fall)

P.R.E. = Principal Residence Exemption (Homestead),   Non-H = Non-Homestead

1 FRANKEL FORBES COHEN 53,368,490 51,579,130 Somerset Malls 3
2 URBANCAL OAKLAND MALL LLC 36,768,050 36,713,920 Oakland Mall 16
3 DTE 33,929,550 33,483,940 Utility 17
4 NYKEL MANAGEMENT CO 25,039,520 25,039,520 Apartments 24
5 CC TROY ASSOC 20,052,680 20,025,150 Office Leasing 3
6 OSPREY-TROY OFFICENTRE LLC 19,962,720 19,962,720 Office Leasing 2
7 NEMER TROY PLACE REALTY 22,236,900 19,696,840 Office Leasing 5
8 BANK OF AMERICA NA 17,884,980 17,840,330 HQ 14
9 KELLY SERVICES 17,742,380 17,480,210 HQ 10

10 DELPHI 18,596,640 17,010,500 HQ 11
11 MACYS 15,717,460 15,717,460 Retail 4
12 755 TOWER ASSOCIATES LLC 14,480,660 14,046,290 Office Leasing 2
13 TROY INDUSTRIAL 13,911,450 13,230,100 Industrial Leasing 15
14 REGENTS PARK OF TROY 12,695,080 12,695,080 Apartments 3
15 TROY SPORTS CENTER LLC 11,875,010 11,875,010 Ice Rink/Retail 3
16 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11,855,050 11,728,610 Utility 12
17 WEST HURON JOINT VENTURE 10,962,780 10,821,070 Office Leasing 3
18 SOMERSET PLACE LLC 9,789,810 9,789,810 Office Leasing 1
19 LIBERTY INVESTMENTS 9,387,880 9,387,880 Office Leasing 3
20 SHEFFIELD OWNER 10,265,910 8,929,350 Office Leasing 3

quick stats 3



TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

12:45 P.M. - The 2014 Board of Review met at the Troy City 
offices. Frank Strahl was elected to the Chair.  Also serving 
were Eileen Turner and James Hatch.  City Assessor, Nino 
Licari, served as the Secretary.  Mr. Licari presented the 
Assessment Roll to the Board.  There were no corrections of 
omissions or errors.  The Board was then called to order at 
1:00PM to hear all appeals of Assessments placed against 
property in the City of Troy.  The following appeals were 
heard.



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 001.01:00PM 88-20-30-278-017
LUDWICKI, LAWRENCE 2351 DERBY

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND SPOKE ABOUT THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY  
FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

79,410 59,900 79,410 59,900 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 002.01:20PM 88-20-13-252-011
HAWKEY, JOHN 2652 RENSHAW

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

94,880 77,500 94,880 77,500 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 003.01:30PM 88-20-12-279-004
REAUME, MARK C & AGATA 42285 DEQUINDRE

THE PETITIONER PROVIDED PROOF OF RENTAL INCOME.  THE BOARD VOTED TO CHANGE THE  
ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $40,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

66,300 60,340 40,000 40,000 -26,300 -20,340

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 004.01:40PM 88-20-14-401-025
REA, DARIO & MARISA 4434 ELEANOR

THE PETITIONER SPOKE OF THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE  
BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

195,560 159,080 195,560 159,080 0 0

licarila
Text Box
1



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 005.01:50PM 88-20-06-303-006
BRIGGS, TIMOTHY S & MARY S 2745 BRETBY

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

152,030 125,300 152,030 125,300 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 006.03:00PM 88-20-20-302-008
HERBON, THOMAS G & JANET 3468 BALFOUR

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND SITED QUALITY OF CONSTRUCTION OF HIS PROPERTY  
FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

223,990 193,810 223,990 193,810 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 007.06:00PM 88-20-16-228-002
EILER, ERNEST T & JOYCE 139 BRAEMAR

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $128,000 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE TAXABLE VALUE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

135,390 97,460 128,000 97,460 -7,390 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 008.06:00PM 88-20-17-328-005
MANEV, LOUIE & DEBBIE LYNN GRACE 4324 WINTERGREEN

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

220,950 220,950 220,950 220,950 0 0

licarila
Text Box
2



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 009.06:20PM 88-20-21-203-025
COOK, TRAVIS F & STEPHANIE A 278 MIRACLE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED  
TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $96,500.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

101,040 101,040 96,500 96,500 -4,540 -4,540

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 010.06:30PM 88-20-07-453-010
CHEN, RUTIE & JIN, YAN 5092 CRESTMONT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND HIS RECENT PURCHASE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.   
THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $179,250.  

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

182,110 182,110 179,250 179,250 -2,860 -2,860

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 011.06:40PM 88-20-21-203-033
HOM, KAN 290 BARBARA

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF THE HOME FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE IN A SPLIT DECISION.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

143,990 143,990 143,990 143,990 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 012.06:50PM 88-20-13-207-004
KANDIAH, NATHAN ARUMUGNATHAN 4828 BUTLER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED HIS RECENT PURCHASE AND COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.   
THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

86,080 86,080 86,080 86,080 0 0

licarila
Text Box
3



MONDAY, MARCH 10, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

9:00A.M. - The 2014 Board of Review met for the second 
session at the Troy City offices. Frank Strahl called the 
meeting to order.  Also present were Eileen Turner, James 
Hatch, and City Assessor, Nino Licari, serving as the 
Secretary.  The following appeals were heard.



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 013.09:40AM 88-20-10-101-005
MELTON, MARIANNE & LLOYD 126 E SQUARE LAKE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF PROPERTY WITH PICTURES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.   
THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $45,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

66,090 66,090 45,000 45,000 -21,090 -21,090

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 014.09:50AM 88-20-03-203-005
MURAD, VANESSA V 752 AMBERWOOD

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

374,760 341,010 374,760 341,010 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 015.10:00AM 88-20-02-228-035
SZYMCZAK, KAZIMIERZ & BOZENA 1967 CHANCERY

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  BASED ON THE SALES STUDY.   
THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED TO $93,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

99,850 88,740 93,000 88,740 -6,850 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 016.10:10AM 88-20-12-182-006
FLINT, WILLIAM E & VIRGINIA L 2220 MICHELE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THAT THE CONDITION OF PROPERTY WARRANTED A REDUCTION IN VALUE.   
PICTURES WERE PROVIDED.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $96,470.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

103,970 93,590 96,470 93,590 -7,500 0

licarila
Text Box
4



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 017.10:50AM 88-20-14-305-007
DAWED, AMER 4359 WILLOW CREEK

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

105,990 105,990 105,990 105,990 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 018.01:00PM 88-20-03-401-014
BISCHOFF, NYAL A 767 OTTAWA

THE PETITIONER REVIEWED COMPARABLES IN THE SALES STUDY.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

187,450 131,350 187,450 131,350 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 019.01:10PM 88-20-01-481-013
BALTSON, NATALIA 2916 BRIARWOOD CT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $153,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

168,740 148,100 153,000 148,100 -15,740 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/10/2014 020.04:00PM 88-20-25-178-020
BENDEL, BRIAN 2281 ISABELL

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPRABLES AND CONDITION OF HOME FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.   
THE BOARD REQUESTED THE HOMEOWNER PROVIDE A WRITTEN ESTIMATE. UPON REVIEW OF THE  
WRITTEN ESTIMATE OF REPAIRS THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $61,890 AND  
THE TAXABLE VALUE TO $57,710.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

67,890 63,630 61,890 57,710 -6,000 -5,920

licarila
Text Box
5



TUESDAY, MARCH 11, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2014 Board of Review met for the third session 
at the Troy City offices. Frank Strahl called the meeting to 
order.  Also present were Eileen Turner, James Hatch, and 
City Assessor, Nino Licari, serving as the Secretary.  The 
following appeals were heard.   



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 021.01:00PM 88-20-07-427-022
EVANOFF, MILLICENT 5324 CAPRI

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $151,300 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE TAXABLE VALUE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

168,160 119,640 151,300 119,640 -16,860 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 022.01:20PM 88-20-07-401-003
YANG, YANHUA 2462 RIDGE

THE PETITIONER HAD QUESTIONS REGARDING STATE EQUALIZED VALUE AND TAXABLE VALUE FOR THE  
BOARD.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

182,500 182,500 182,500 182,500 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 023.01:50PM 88-20-24-232-010
PATIL, MANOJ G 2974 SIENA

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $185,300.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

191,860 191,860 185,300 185,300 -6,560 -6,560

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 024.02:00PM 88-20-18-176-013
RICO, MARIO JR & CAROLYN 2743 TIMBERWYCK TRAIL

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $201,500 WITH NO CHANGE TO TAXABLE VALUE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

206,940 196,590 201,500 196,590 -5,440 0

licarila
Text Box
6



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 025.02:10PM 88-20-25-326-007
WEIR, EVELYN M 2183 MILVERTON

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

79,710 74,390 79,710 74,390 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 026.02:20PM 88-20-21-201-028
VALENTI, JOHN T II & JANIS 441 SCOTTSDALE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $127,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

129,770 129,770 127,000 127,000 -2,770 -2,770

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 027.03:40PM 88-20-13-476-008
WILK, ANTHONY & CHERYL 4091 MOREHEAD

BOARD MEMBER, FRANK STRAHL, AND ASSESSOR NINO LICARI EXCUSED THEMSELVES FROM  
PEITIONERS' HEARING DUE TO PRIOR AFFILIATION.  THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF  
NEIGHBORING HOME FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

132,080 113,180 132,080 113,180 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 028.03:50PM 88-20-07-101-010
TOURTILLOTT, ROBERT & JANICE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

87,500 78,020 87,500 78,020 0 0

licarila
Text Box
7



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 029.04:00PM 88-20-06-226-034
BECK, PAUL R 2101 MCINTOSH

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

137,050 119,310 137,050 119,310 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 030.04:05PM 88-20-14-101-003
BECK, PAUL R & CAROL S 4932 ROCHESTER

THE PETITIONER DECIDED NOT TO APPEAL PROPERTY.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

70,720 70,720 70,720 70,720 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 031.06:00PM 88-20-10-426-018
HUANG, XIAO H

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

20,750 20,750 20,750 20,750 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 031.06:00PM 88-20-10-426-019
HUANG, XIAO H

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND THE MAIN ROAD INFLUENCE FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

58,100 58,100 58,100 58,100 0 0

licarila
Text Box
8



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 031.06:00PM 88-20-10-426-020
HUANG, XIA HUA

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND THE MAIN ROAD INFLUENCE FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

25,020 25,020 25,020 25,020 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 032.06:10PM 88-20-12-204-027
OMANSIEK, KATHLEEN 2603 CORAL

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

84,960 77,720 84,960 77,720 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 032.06:50PM 88-20-24-102-021
TODOROV, GUEORGUI 3802 FAIRFAX

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $151,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

162,740 162,740 151,000 151,000 -11,740 -11,740

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 033.06:20PM 88-20-36-227-023
PAUL, SEAN 2900 IOWA

THE PETITIONERS SUBMITTED CONDITION OF THEIR PROPERTY AND NEIGHBORING PROPERTY FOR THE  
BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $50,000 WITH NO  
CHANGE TO TAXABLE VALUE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

54,240 45,550 50,000 45,550 -4,240 0

licarila
Text Box
9



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 034.06:30PM 88-20-07-151-045
HASAN, AKM R 2974 SQUIRE CT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

294,410 278,520 294,410 278,520 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 036.07:00PM 88-20-08-130-006
WONG, YUEN H 1680 FREEMONT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE PRICE AND CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE  
BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $122,500.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

125,930 125,930 122,500 122,500 -3,430 -3,430

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 037.07:10PM 88-20-21-152-038
YANG, LI 908 PORTSMOUTH

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THEIR RECENT PURCHASE PRICE AND CONDITION OF THEIR PROPERTY FOR  
THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO  
$160,000.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

162,590 162,590 160,000 160,000 -2,590 -2,590

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 038.07:20PM 88-20-12-380-001
BARJUCA, TEOFII & EMANUELA 2240 CUSTER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED NO CHANGE..

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

119,290 119,290 119,290 119,290 0 0

licarila
Text Box
10



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 039.07:40PM 88-20-10-329-004
BROMM, CLIFFORD & JACQUELINE 5372 FALMOUTH

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APRPRAISAL AND CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

112,770 98,830 112,770 98,830 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 040.07:50PM 88-20-19-230-008
XU, CHUNCHUAN 2109 W WATTLES

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED NO CHANGE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

130,680 130,680 130,680 130,680 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2014 041.08:20PM 88-20-30-126-082
WEISS, HOWARD C 3445 ROXBURY CT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND THE CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $73,020 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE  
TAXABLE VALUE.

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

75,160 65,020 73,020 65,020 -2,140 0

licarila
Text Box
11



TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2014 Board of Review met for the fourth 
session at the Troy City offices. Frank Strahl called the 
meeting to order.  Also present were Eileen Turner, James 
Hatch, and City Assessor, Nino Licari, serving as the 
Secretary.  There were no in person appeals to be heard on 
this day.  The Board then moved on to study items including 
Correspondence Appeals, Poverty Exemptions, Assessor 
Changes, and late filed Personal Property returns.   



 

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00PM. - Petitioners who cannot appear in person to protest 
an assessment are allowed to protest in writing.  These 
Correspondence Appeals are reviewed by Assessing 
Department staff, and a recommendation is made to the 
Board.  The Board then reviews these recommendations 
based on other actions they have taken on similar 
properties, and renders a decision.  Additionally, Protection 
appeals are filed, wherein the Petitioner does not ask for 
relief, but wishes to protest their right to appeal to the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal.  These appeasl are 'Noted & Denied'.



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C001.01:00PM 88-20-07-202-023
PARKS, ROBERT & MARY ANNE 5845 CLEARVIEW CT

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

441,870 261,680 441,870 261,680 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C002.01:00PM 88-20-08-202-127
PARKS, ROBERT & MARY ANNE 5818 DAWN RIDGE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

113,880 93,090 110,710 93,090 -3,170 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C003.01:00PM 88-20-10-302-006
BOEHM, MARCIA 5454 WINCHESTER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

110,270 97,900 110,270 97,900 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-001
JOHN R LAND LLC 2029 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

180,770 153,900 180,770 153,900 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-002
JOHN R LAND LLC 2045 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

52,870 26,000 52,870 26,000 0 0

licarila
Text Box
12



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-003
JOHN R LAND LLC 2061 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

115,470 88,600 115,470 88,600 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-004
JOHN R LAND LLC 2077 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

52,870 26,000 52,870 26,000 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-005
DEROCHA, JAMES W & DEANA M 2093 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

110,380 110,380 110,380 110,380 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-006
JOHN R LAND LLC 2109 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

52,870 26,000 52,870 26,000 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-007
JOHN R LAND LLC 2125 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

licarila
Text Box
13



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-008
JOHN R LAND LLC 2141 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-009
JOHN R LAND LLC 2157 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-010
JOHN R LAND LLC 2173 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-011
JOHN R LAND LLC 2189 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-012
JOHN R LAND LLC 2205 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

licarila
Text Box
14



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-013
JOHN R LAND LLC 2221 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-014
JOHN R LAND LLC 2237 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-015
JOHN R LAND LLC 2253 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-016
JOHN R LAND LLC 2269 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-017
JOHN R LAND LLC 2206 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

46,830 19,960 46,830 19,960 0 0

licarila
Text Box
15



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-018
JOHN R LAND LLC 2190 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-019
JOHN R LAND LLC 2174 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-020
JOHN R LAND LLC 2158 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-021
JOHN R LAND LLC 2142 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-022
JOHN R LAND LLC 2126 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

71,730 44,860 71,730 44,860 0 0

licarila
Text Box
16



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-023
JOHN R LAND LLC 2110 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-024
JOHN R LAND LLC 2094 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

71,740 44,870 71,740 44,870 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-025
JOHN R LAND LLC 2078 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-026
JOHN R LAND LLC 2062 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

71,430 44,560 71,430 44,560 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C004.01:00PM 88-20-12-302-027
JOHN R LAND LLC 2046 MAYFLOWER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

70,930 43,950 70,930 43,950 0 0

licarila
Text Box
17



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C005.01:00PM 88-20-35-226-099
METROPOLITAN DETROIT PLUMBING 1911 RING

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

427,690 427,690 0 0 -427,690 -427,690

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C005.01:00PM 88-99-00-399-950
METROPOLITAN DETROIT PLUMBING IND 1911 RING

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

0 0 0 0 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C006.01:00PM 88-20-36-326-036
PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY 636 EXECUTIVE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

457,150 457,150 0 0 -457,150 -457,150

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C006.01:00PM 88-99-00-399-490
PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF DETROIT 636 EXECUTIVE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

0 0 0 0 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C007.01:00PM 88-99-00-060-999
BELLE TIRE DISTRIBUTORS INC 4966 ROCHESTER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

45,420 45,420 0 0 -45,420 -45,420

licarila
Text Box
18



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C008.01:00PM 88-20-05-428-013
KRZEMINSKI, ROBERT & SANDRA 6329 DENTON

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

142,800 142,800 140,000 140,000 -2,800 -2,800

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C009.01:00PM 88-20-06-327-002
HARTKOPF, RACHELLE L 6476 ANSLOW

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

174,160 141,810 157,500 141,810 -16,660 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C010.01:00PM 88-20-07-227-009
LEE, SUNG KYO & JUNG 5936 CLEARVIEW

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

445,280 248,730 445,280 248,730 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C011.01:00PM 88-20-10-127-038
THIBODEAU, HAROLD B & SHERI L 5845 GLASGOW

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

122,200 108,190 122,200 108,190 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C012.01:00PM 88-20-14-101-043
UDDIN REAL ESTATE HOLDING CO LLC 4924 ROCHESTER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

308,880 308,880 207,500 207,500 -101,380 -101,380

licarila
Text Box
19



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C012.01:00PM 88-20-14-101-044
MARINELLIS

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C013.01:00PM 88-20-19-453-010
GM EQUITIES LLC 3270 W BIG BEAVER 120

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

2,897,120 2,897,120 2,202,800 2,202,800 -694,320 -694,320

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C013.01:00PM 88-20-27-101-060
MAMTA HOLDINGS LLC 100 E BIG BEAVER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

9,979,330 9,979,330 6,345,720 6,345,720 -3,633,610 -3,633,610

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C014.01:00PM 88-20-29-226-003
ACORE GROUP LLC 1787 W BIG BEAVER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

421,780 421,780 375,000 375,000 -46,780 -46,780

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C015.01:00PM 88-20-31-228-042
NOSANCHUK, JOEL & MARILYN 3099 CAMDEN

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

91,030 70,820 91,030 70,820 0 0

licarila
Text Box
20



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C016.01:00PM 88-20-34-177-044
312 PARK STREET LLC 312 PARK

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

322,850 322,850 165,000 165,000 -157,850 -157,850

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C017.01:00PM 88-20-34-178-019
JANG DEVELOPMENT LLC 575 ELMWOOD

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

198,300 198,300 147,000 147,000 -51,300 -51,300

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C018.01:00PM 88-20-36-426-093
ELAN ASSOC LLC 640 MINNESOTA

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

257,170 257,170 192,500 192,500 -64,670 -64,670

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C019.01:00PM 88-99-00-311-120
ANTOINE SALON 2838 W MAPLE

4/13/14-OWNER WANTED TO PROTECT RIGHT TO APPEAL THE DENIAL OF THE 5076 EXEMPTION.   
NOTED AND DENIED

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

19,650 19,650 19,650 19,650 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C020.01:00PM 88-99-00-388-600
CEDAR GRILLE 5377 CROOKS

4/13/14-OWNER WANTED TO PROTECT RIGHT TO APPEAL THE DENIAL OF THE 5076 EXEMPTION.   
NOTED AND DENIED

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

licarila
Text Box
21

licarila
Text Box
22,510

licarila
Text Box
22,510

licarila
Text Box
22,510

licarila
Text Box
22,510

licarila
Text Box
0

licarila
Text Box
0



March Board of Review Report2014

22,510 22,510 22,510 22,510 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C021.01:00PM 88-99-00-344-680
URBAN OUTFITTERS 2800 W BIG BEAVER Y315

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

114,440 114,440 114,440 114,440 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C021.01:00PM 88-99-00-354-220
ANTHROPOLOGIE INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER Q107

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

349,300 349,300 349,300 349,300 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C021.01:00PM 88-99-00-396-190
FREE PEOPLE 2800 W BIG BEAVER R246

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

134,800 134,800 134,800 134,800 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 C022.01:00PM 88-20-18-101-044
STEPHEN, MARK H & MANSOUR, NOURA F 4866 ADAMS POINTE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

484,800 484,800 455,000 455,000 -29,800 -29,800

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
22



 

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

2:00 P.M. - Persons who by reason of poverty, are unable to 
contribute to the public charges, may have their taxes 
exempted for one (1) year.  They must meet income 
gudieliness and an asset test that is mandated by the 
courts, and approved by City Council each year.  In these 
appeals only, the Assessor and the Board must agree on the 
exemption.  Either the Assessor alone, or the Board, with all 
three members agreeing, may deny an exemption.  All 
Board members and the Assessor, in concurrance, are 
necessary to approve an exemption.  



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE01.02:00PM 88-20-02-201-061
NAJAR, YOUSIF & SALIMA 1567 DELTA

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

141,860 136,870 0 0 -141,860 -136,870

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE02.02:00PM 88-20-03-151-002
EREMIE, AUREL & NASTASIA 6658 LIVERNOIS

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

82,890 37,760 0 0 -82,890 -37,760

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE03.02:00PM 88-20-04-402-003
EISENBRAUN, C A 6406 HOUGHTEN

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

90,890 55,750 0 0 -90,890 -55,750

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE04.02:00PM 88-20-04-403-004
STRZYZEWSKI, JAMES M & CAROL A 6485 FREDMOOR

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

90,440 90,040 0 0 -90,440 -90,040

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE05.02:00PM 88-20-05-479-004
SHAKUA, ARIF & SHARI 1061 FALCON

OWNER HAS RENTAL PROPERTY IN WARREN WHICH DISQUALIFIES HIM

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

138,660 114,080 138,660 114,080 0 0

licarila
Text Box
23

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE06.02:00PM 88-20-09-253-004
BEGERON, LORETTA 5640 WRIGHT

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

74,000 71,180 0 0 -74,000 -71,180

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE07.02:00PM 88-20-09-404-022
BUNDA, GEORGE & ELENA 5325 VIRGILIA

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

100,400 87,640 0 0 -100,400 -87,640

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE08.02:00PM 88-20-11-352-020
GHIURAU, ARON & ELISABETA 1184 MAYBERRY

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

83,720 83,720 0 0 -83,720 -83,720

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE09.02:00PM 88-20-11-377-009
BAHRI, SALIM & MARGRET 1271 E LONG LAKE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

84,450 77,540 84,450 77,540 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE10.02:00PM 88-20-14-153-006
MISHREKY, NADER & MERVAT 1156 SHALLOWDALE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

110,290 95,560 0 0 -110,290 -95,560

licarila
Text Box
24

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE11.02:00PM 88-20-15-153-001
DUONG, NHUT 49 STREAMVIEW

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

115,820 95,850 0 0 -115,820 -95,850

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE12.02:00PM 88-20-22-253-031
GEBREL, MAGDY 764 COLEBROOK

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

99,780 99,780 0 0 -99,780 -99,780

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE13.02:00PM 88-20-22-377-046
FAWZY, ROZTA 3179 KILMER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

81,840 74,980 0 0 -81,840 -74,980

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 PE14.02:00PM 88-20-27-481-012
EREMIA, ANETA & IOAN M 1105 CHOPIN

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

108,790 82,390 0 0 -108,790 -82,390

licarila
Text Box
25

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



 

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

02:30 P.M. - The following listing is for Assessor Changes that 
occur after the Board of Review has opened, named Board 
Affidavits.  These agreements can only be authorized by the 
Board.  An affidavit is signed by the Petitioner and the 
Representative from the Assessing Department, and then 
presented to the Board for their concurrance.   



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC01.02:30PM 88-20-02-253-065
DOMBROWSKI, DANIEL & JENNIFER 1844 LYSTER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

158,400 158,400 150,000 150,000 -8,400 -8,400

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC02.02:30PM 88-20-04-132-022
JAXTHEIMER, JANA 6786 JASMINE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

143,810 127,800 132,500 127,800 -11,310 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC03.02:30PM 88-20-06-103-006
WIENCLAW, ARIC & MELISSA 6725 LIMERICK

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

160,360 160,360 152,500 152,500 -7,860 -7,860

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC04.02:30PM 88-20-07-176-024
TOOMAJIAN, MICHAEL A & JENNIFER A 2613 HOUNDS CHASE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

160,330 160,330 150,000 150,000 -10,330 -10,330

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC05.02:30PM 88-20-13-426-062
CAVANAUGH, ROBERT D 4108 FORSYTH

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

119,110 97,960 90,070 90,070 -29,040 -7,890

licarila
Text Box
26



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC06.02:30PM 88-20-15-178-027
ABDULAHAD, ANGEL 238 STREAMVIEW

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

152,210 152,210 121,000 121,000 -31,210 -31,210

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC07.02:30PM 88-20-21-101-037
PULAVARTHI, VENKATA & SUNEETHA 3837 FINCH

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

238,550 237,950 219,170 219,170 -19,380 -18,780

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC08.02:30PM 88-20-21-201-040
ALBRECHT, JOHN & CHRISTA TEWS 293 SCOTTSDALE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

98,940 87,230 89,500 87,230 -9,440 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC09.02:30PM 88-20-24-302-008
HAYES, TROY & GRIMM, JENNIFER 2137 NIAGARA

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

84,860 84,860 77,500 77,500 -7,360 -7,360

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/25/2014 AC10.02:30PM 88-20-17-328-019
THOMMANA, LIJO 4359 DEVONSHIRE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

243,390 192,570 230,000 192,570 -13,390 0

licarila
Text Box
27



 

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

03:00 P.M. - The following listing is for late filed Personal 
Property returns.  These returns are processed by members 
of the Assessing Department staff and presented to the 
Board of Review for acceptance, subject to audit.  All of 
these properties qualified for the new exemption of Personal 
Property where the total property in control of the Petitioner 
equal $80,000 and less of Market Value, or $40,000 and less 
of Assessed Value.  The Assessment is then set to 0.00.



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
88-99-00-003-000 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-022-316 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-025-072 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-030-278 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-030-285 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-034-020 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-035-104 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-035-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-035-248 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-035-358 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-035-887 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-036-730 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-036-969 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-037-643 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-037-671 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-039-019 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-039-714 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-040-551 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-047-031 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-047-147 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-050-281 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-050-436 0 0 0 0 0 0

2014 March Board of Review Report
Appeal #  PP01     Time 03:00PM     Date 03/25/14
Form 5076 Exemptions Approved by the Board

88 99 00 050 436 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-051-992 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-052-033 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-052-036 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-053-004 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-053-637 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-056-810 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-058-040 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-058-130 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-059-510 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-060-424 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-061-108 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-061-322 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-065-528 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-066-647 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-188-520 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-188-720 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-188-740 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-189-340 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-203-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-204-400 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-204-720 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-209-980 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-211-640 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-215-420 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-219-020 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-221-820 0 0 0 0 0 0

28



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

2014 March Board of Review Report
Appeal #  PP01     Time 03:00PM     Date 03/25/14
Form 5076 Exemptions Approved by the Board

88-99-00-227-100 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-234-480 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-235-040 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-235-620 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-238-440 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-240-040 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-242-340 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-243-100 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-244-580 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-248-980 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-251-920 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-257-820 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-258-660 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-261-380 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-262-520 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-268-400 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-269-660 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-273-180 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-279-580 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-280-500 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-280-720 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-282-220 0 0 0 0 0 088 99 00 282 220 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-286-160 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-286-840 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-292-300 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-293-140 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-304-700 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-305-460 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-310-380 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-317-700 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-320-100 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-324-460 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-332-360 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-332-420 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-332-700 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-333-160 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-333-740 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-333-980 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-335-960 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-336-480 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-339-700 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-339-800 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-341-800 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-342-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-346-460 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-347-020 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-347-300 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-347-640 0 0 0 0 0 0

29



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

2014 March Board of Review Report
Appeal #  PP01     Time 03:00PM     Date 03/25/14
Form 5076 Exemptions Approved by the Board

88-99-00-347-880 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-351-160 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-352-820 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-355-880 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-359-720 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-360-320 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-361-640 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-362-360 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-362-640 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-364-100 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-364-440 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-365-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-365-680 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-368-780 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-369-460 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-371-900 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-372-060 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-372-160 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-372-540 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-374-860 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-375-220 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-376-820 0 0 0 0 0 088 99 00 376 820 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-377-010 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-377-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-380-400 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-380-800 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-381-900 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-382-260 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-382-860 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-383-420 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-385-040 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-385-680 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-386-240 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-387-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-388-560 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-391-420 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-391-440 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-391-520 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-391-920 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-392-020 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-392-520 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-392-700 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-393-060 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-393-080 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-393-140 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-393-860 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-394-220 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-394-280 0 0 0 0 0 0

30



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

2014 March Board of Review Report
Appeal #  PP01     Time 03:00PM     Date 03/25/14
Form 5076 Exemptions Approved by the Board

88-99-00-394-310 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-394-360 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-394-490 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-394-540 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-394-920 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-395-050 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-395-310 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-395-490 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-396-040 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-396-260 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-396-520 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-180 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-210 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-470 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-570 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-610 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-790 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-800 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-397-840 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-398-160 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-398-390 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-398-620 0 0 0 0 0 088 99 00 398 620 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-398-650 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-398-660 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-398-860 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-399-040 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-399-530 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-399-660 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-399-690 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-060 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-150 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-550 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-630 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-780 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-820 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-400-830 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-401-010 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-401-320 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-401-410 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-401-420 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-401-870 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-402-020 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-402-270 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-402-360 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-402-430 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-402-580 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-402-930 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-403-060 0 0 0 0 0 0

 
31



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

2014 March Board of Review Report
Appeal #  PP01     Time 03:00PM     Date 03/25/14
Form 5076 Exemptions Approved by the Board

88-99-00-403-310 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-403-340 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-403-940 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-020 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-150 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-510 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-540 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-590 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-620 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-404-640 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-500-390 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-500-680 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-500-820 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-500-870 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-501-080 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-501-120 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-705-570 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-726-770 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-727-590 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-735-610 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-740-230 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-747-750 0 0 0 0 0 088 99 00 747 750 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-749-390 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-749-810 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-750-390 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-750-550 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-750-750 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-751-550 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-751-570 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-752-290 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-752-370 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-752-850 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-753-050 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-753-190 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-753-200 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-753-220 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-753-700 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-753-740 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-754-300 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-754-310 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-754-330 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-754-410 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-754-420 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-754-440 0 0 0 0 0 0
88-99-00-757-050 0 0 0 0 0 0

32



 

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

2014

Board of Review 

Minutes

03:30 P.M. - The State of Michigan adopted changes to the 
existing Veteran's Exemption for the 2014 year.  Qualification 
is much simpler, and less strict.  The exemption application 
must be filed each year.  For the 2014 year, the application 
is brought before the Board of Review for approval.  The 
following Veteran's Exemptions were approved.



March Board of Review Report2014

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-01-451-018
WAWKZYNIAK, JAMES 6159 MEADOWLARK

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

212,880 212,880 0 0 -212,880 -212,880

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-02-203-009
WHEELER , EDWARD J & ELEEN J 6825 NORTHPOINT

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

130,490 113,410 0 0 -130,490 -113,410

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-03-177-001
FARRUG TRUST, JOSEPH 274 LESDALE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

84,480 75,200 0 0 -84,480 -75,200

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-03-376-022
THORNLOW, TRUST RAYMOND W 6089 MONTCLAIR

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

81,400 52,600 0 0 -81,400 -52,600

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-04-128-005
BAYES TRUST, LEROY E & PATRICIA M 6850 SERENITY

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

108,510 105,990 0 0 -108,510 -105,990

licarila
Text Box
33



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-04-257-004
HINSON, RAY L 6500 VERNMOOR

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

80,900 62,720 0 0 -80,900 -62,720

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-05-427-008
KOCH, MARTIN 6362 DENTON

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

157,420 136,250 0 0 -157,420 -136,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-05-428-033
VANHORN, GARY R 6336 ELSEY

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

151,870 134,180 0 0 -151,870 -134,180

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-08-152-006
COOSAIA, EDWARD 1945 FREEMONT

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

115,240 99,660 0 0 -115,240 -99,660

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-10-376-010
DOLKOWSKI, MICHAEL & DONA 5183 FOLKSTONE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

105,810 94,650 0 0 -105,810 -94,650

licarila
Text Box
34



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-12-153-003
COURTNEY, LAWRENCE & LORRAINE 2081 HIGHBURY

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

102,390 92,390 0 0 -102,390 -92,390

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-12-226-008
CAPERS, BARTHOLOMEW & MARTHA 5844 RUBY

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

137,130 121,750 0 0 -137,130 -121,750

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-15-103-020
COOK, JOHN & MARYANN 307 WILTON

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

87,080 76,950 0 0 -87,080 -76,950

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-16-278-004
CZERWINSKI, BERNARD P 87 GORDON

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

133,470 96,550 0 0 -133,470 -96,550

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-19-228-006
BILOVUS, PETER 2185 JOANNE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

137,290 110,800 0 0 -137,290 -110,800

licarila
Text Box
35



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-19-427-003
D'AOUST, ALLEN & ERIKA 2163 LANCER

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

182,280 154,910 0 0 -182,280 -154,910

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-20-402-044
BURKHART, RICHARD & PHYLLIS 3436 ALPINE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

92,030 64,980 0 0 -92,030 -64,980

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-23-404-003
BEASLEY, REGINALD & KIMBERLY 3438 HARMONY

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

99,450 87,500 0 0 -99,450 -87,500

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-25-131-023
DUGAS, DANIEL C 2931 ROUNDTREE

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

28,440 27,710 0 0 -28,440 -27,710

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-25-326-008
ZIEGLER, EDWARD ROMAN & MARY E 2153 MILVERTON

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

56,570 51,680 0 0 -56,570 -51,680

licarila
Text Box
36



March Board of Review Report2014
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/04/2014 V001.01:00PM 88-20-29-357-001
KAY, DAVID J 1935 AXTELL 1

2014 A/V 2014 T/V 2014 BoR A/V 2014 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

40,990 32,180 0 0 -40,990 -32,180

licarila
Text Box
37



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page
88-20-01-451-018 212,880 212,880 0 0 (212,880) (212,880) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 33
88-20-01-481-013 168,740 148,100 153,000 148,100 (15,740) 0 019 01:10PM 03/10/14 5
88-20-02 141,860 136,870 0 0 (141,860) (136,870) PE01 02:00PM 03/25/14 23
88-20-02-203-009 130,490 113,410 0 0 (130,490) (113,410) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 33
88-20-02-228-035 99,850 88,740 93,000 88,740 (6,850) 0 015 10:00AM 03/10/14 4
88-20-02-253-065 158,400 158,400 150,000 150,000 (8,400) (8,400) AC01 02:30PM 03/25/14 26
88-20-03 82,890 37,760 0 0 (82,890) (37,760) PE02 02:00PM 03/25/14 23
88-20-03-177-001 84,480 75,200 0 0 (84,480) (75,200) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 33
88-20-03-203-005 374,760 341,010 374,760 341,010 0 0 014 09:50AM 03/10/14 4
88-20-03-376-022 81,400 52,600 0 0 (81,400) (52,600) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 33
88-20-03-401-014 187,450 131,350 187,450 131,350 0 0 018 01:00PM 03/10/14 5
88-20-04-128-005 108,510 105,990 0 0 (108,510) (105,990) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 33
88-20-04-132-022 143,810 127,800 132,500 127,800 (11,310) 0 AC02 02:30PM 03/25/14 26
88-20-04-257-004 80,900 62,720 0 0 (80,900) (62,720) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 34
88-20-04 90,890 55,750 0 0 (90,890) (55,750) PE03 02:00PM 03/25/14 23
88-20-04 90,440 90,040 0 0 (90,440) (90,040) PE04 02:00PM 03/25/14 23
88-20-05-427-008 157,420 136,250 0 0 (157,420) (136,250) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 34
88-20-05-428-013 142,800 142,800 140,000 140,000 (2,800) (2,800) C008 01:00PM 03/25/14 19
88-20-05-428-033 151,870 134,180 0 0 (151,870) (134,180) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 34
88-20-05 138,660 114,080 138,660 114,080 0 0 PE05 02:00PM 03/25/14 23
88-20-06-103-006 160,360 160,360 152,500 152,500 (7,860) (7,860) AC03 02:30PM 03/25/14 26
88-20-06-226-034 137,050 119,310 137,050 119,310 0 0 029 04:00PM 03/11/14 8
88-20-06-303-006 152,030 125,300 152,030 125,300 0 0 005 01:50PM 03/04/14 2
88-20-06-327-002 174,160 141,810 157,500 141,810 (16,660) 0 C009 01:00PM 03/25/14 19
88-20-07-101-010 87,500 78,020 87,500 78,020 0 0 028 03:50PM 03/11/14 7
88 20 07 151 045 294 410 278 520 294 410 278 520 0 0 034 06:30PM 03/11/14 10

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-20-07-151-045 294,410 278,520 294,410 278,520 0 0 034 06:30PM 03/11/14 10
88-20-07-176-024 160,330 160,330 150,000 150,000 (10,330) (10,330) AC04 02:30PM 03/25/14 26
88-20-07-202-023 441,870 261,680 441,870 261,680 0 0 C001 01:00PM 03/25/14 12
88-20-07-227-009 445,280 248,730 445,280 248,730 0 0 C010 01:00PM 03/25/14 19
88-20-07-401-003 182,500 182,500 182,500 182,500 0 0 022 01:20PM 03/11/14 6
88-20-07-427-022 168,160 119,640 151,300 119,640 (16,860) 0 021 01:00PM 03/11/14 6
88-20-07-453-010 182,110 182,110 179,250 179,250 (2,860) (2,860) 010 06:30PM 03/04/14 3
88-20-08-130-006 125,930 125,930 122,500 122,500 (3,430) (3,430) 036 07:00PM 03/11/14 10
88-20-08-152-006 115,240 99,660 0 0 (115,240) (99,660) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 34
88-20-08-202-127 113,880 93,090 110,710 93,090 (3,170) 0 C002 01:00PM 03/25/14 12
88-20-09 74,000 71,180 0 0 (74,000) (71,180) PE06 02:00PM 03/25/14 24
88-20-09 100,400 87,640 0 0 (100,400) (87,640) PE07 02:00PM 03/25/14 24
88-20-10-101-005 66,090 66,090 45,000 45,000 (21,090) (21,090) 013 09:40AM 03/10/14 4
88-20-10-127-038 122,200 108,190 122,200 108,190 0 0 C011 01:00PM 03/25/14 19
88-20-10-302-006 110,270 97,900 110,270 97,900 0 0 C003 01:00PM 03/25/14 12
88-20-10-329-004 112,770 98,830 112,770 98,830 0 0 039 07:40PM 03/11/14 11
88-20-10-376-010 105,810 94,650 0 0 (105,810) (94,650) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 34
88-20-10-426-018 20,750 20,750 20,750 20,750 0 0 031 06:00PM 03/11/14 8
88-20-10-426-019 58,100 58,100 58,100 58,100 0 0 031 06:00PM 03/11/14 8
88-20-10-426-020 25,020 25,020 25,020 25,020 0 0 031 06:00PM 03/11/14 9
88-20-11 83,720 83,720 0 0 (83,720) (83,720) PE08 02:00PM 03/25/14 24
88-20-11 84,450 77,540 84,450 77,540 0 0 PE09 02:00PM 03/25/14 24
88-20-12-153-003 102,390 92,390 0 0 (102,390) (92,390) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 35
88-20-12-182-006 103,970 93,590 96,470 93,590 (7,500) 0 016 10:10AM 03/10/14 4
88-20-12-204-027 84,960 77,720 84,960 77,720 0 0 032 06:10PM 03/11/14 9
88-20-12-226-008 137,130 121,750 0 0 (137,130) (121,750) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 35
88-20-12-279-004 66,300 60,340 40,000 40,000 (26,300) (20,340) 003 01:30PM 03/04/14 1
88-20-12-302-001 180,770 153,900 180,770 153,900 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 12
88-20-12-302-002 52,870 26,000 52,870 26,000 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 12
88-20-12-302-003 115,470 88,600 115,470 88,600 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 13

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 1 of 7



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-20-12-302-004 52,870 26,000 52,870 26,000 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 13
88-20-12-302-005 110,380 110,380 110,380 110,380 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 13
88-20-12-302-006 52,870 26,000 52,870 26,000 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 13
88-20-12-302-007 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 13
88-20-12-302-008 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 14
88-20-12-302-009 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 14
88-20-12-302-010 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 14
88-20-12-302-011 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 14
88-20-12-302-012 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 14
88-20-12-302-013 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 15
88-20-12-302-014 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 15
88-20-12-302-015 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 15
88-20-12-302-016 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 15
88-20-12-302-017 46,830 19,960 46,830 19,960 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 15
88-20-12-302-018 41,500 14,630 41,500 14,630 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 16
88-20-12-302-019 53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 16
88-20-12-302-020 53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 16
88-20-12-302-021 53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 16
88-20-12-302-022 71,730 44,860 71,730 44,860 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 16
88-20-12-302-023 53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 17
88-20-12-302-024 71,740 44,870 71,740 44,870 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 17
88-20-12-302-025 53,240 26,370 53,240 26,370 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 17
88-20-12-302-026 71,430 44,560 71,430 44,560 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 17
88-20-12-302-027 70,930 43,950 70,930 43,950 0 0 C004 01:00PM 03/25/14 17
88-20-12-380-001 119,290 119,290 119,290 119,290 0 0 038 07:20PM 03/11/14 10
88 20 13 207 004 86 080 86 080 86 080 86 080 0 0 012 06:50PM 03/04/14 388-20-13-207-004 86,080 86,080 86,080 86,080 0 0 012 06:50PM 03/04/14 3
88-20-13-252-011 94,880 77,500 94,880 77,500 0 0 002 01:20PM 03/04/14 1
88-20-13-426-062 119,110 97,960 90,070 90,070 (29,040) (7,890) AC05 02:30PM 03/25/14 26
88-20-13-476-008 132,080 113,180 132,080 113,180 0 0 027 03:40PM 03/11/14 7
88-20-14-101-003 70,720 70,720 70,720 70,720 0 0 030 04:05PM 03/11/14 8
88-20-14-101-043 308,880 308,880 207,500 207,500 (101,380) (101,380) C012 01:00PM 03/25/14 19
88-20-14-101-044 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 0 0 C012 01:00PM 03/25/14 20
88-20-14 110,290 95,560 0 0 (110,290) (95,560) PE10 02:00PM 03/25/14 24
88-20-14-305-007 105,990 105,990 105,990 105,990 0 0 017 10:50AM 03/10/14 5
88-20-14-401-025 195,560 159,080 195,560 159,080 0 0 004 01:40PM 03/04/14 1
88-20-15-103-020 87,080 76,950 0 0 (87,080) (76,950) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 35
88-20-15 115,820 95,850 0 0 (115,820) (95,850) PE11 02:00PM 03/25/14 25
88-20-15-178-027 152,210 152,210 121,000 121,000 (31,210) (31,210) AC06 02:30PM 03/25/14 27
88-20-16-228-002 135,390 97,460 128,000 97,460 (7,390) 0 007 06:00PM 03/04/14 2
88-20-16-278-004 133,470 96,550 0 0 (133,470) (96,550) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 35
88-20-17-328-005 220,950 220,950 220,950 220,950 0 0 008 06:00PM 03/04/14 2
88-20-17-328-019 243,390 192,570 230,000 192,570 (13,390) 0 AC10 02:30PM 03/25/14 27
88-20-18-101-044 484,800 484,800 455,000 455,000 (29,800) (29,800) C022 01:00PM 03/25/14 22
88-20-18-176-013 206,940 196,590 201,500 196,590 (5,440) 0 024 02:00PM 03/11/14 6
88-20-19-228-006 137,290 110,800 0 0 (137,290) (110,800) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 35
88-20-19-230-008 130,680 130,680 130,680 130,680 0 0 040 07:50PM 03/11/14 11
88-20-19-427-003 182,280 154,910 0 0 (182,280) (154,910) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 36
88-20-19-453-010 2,897,120 2,897,120 2,202,800 2,202,800 (694,320) (694,320) C013 01:00PM 03/25/14 20
88-20-20-302-008 223,990 193,810 223,990 193,810 0 0 006 03:00PM 03/04/14 2
88-20-20-402-044 92,030 64,980 0 0 (92,030) (64,980) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 36
88-20-21-101-037 238,550 237,950 219,170 219,170 (19,380) (18,780) AC07 02:30PM 03/25/14 27
88-20-21-152-038 162,590 162,590 160,000 160,000 (2,590) (2,590) 037 07:10PM 03/11/14 10
88-20-21-201-028 129,770 129,770 127,000 127,000 (2,770) (2,770) 026 02:20PM 03/11/14 7
88-20-21-201-040 98,940 87,230 89,500 87,230 (9,440) 0 AC08 02:30PM 03/25/14 27
88-20-21-203-025 101,040 101,040 96,500 96,500 (4,540) (4,540) 009 06:20PM 03/04/14 3

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 2 of 7



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-20-21-203-033 143,990 143,990 143,990 143,990 0 0 011 06:40PM 03/04/14 3
88-20-22 99,780 99,780 0 0 (99,780) (99,780) PE12 02:00PM 03/25/14 25
88-20-22 81,840 74,980 0 0 (81,840) (74,980) PE13 02:00PM 03/25/14 25
88-20-23-404-003 99,450 87,500 0 0 (99,450) (87,500) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 36
88-20-24-102-021 162,740 162,740 151,000 151,000 (11,740) (11,740) 032 06:50PM 03/11/14 9
88-20-24-232-010 191,860 191,860 185,300 185,300 (6,560) (6,560) 023 01:50PM 03/11/14 6
88-20-24-302-008 84,860 84,860 77,500 77,500 (7,360) (7,360) AC09 02:30PM 03/25/14 27
88-20-25-131-023 28,440 27,710 0 0 (28,440) (27,710) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 36
88-20-25-178-020 67,890 63,630 61,890 57,710 (6,000) (5,920) 020 04:00PM 03/10/14 5
88-20-25-326-007 79,710 74,390 79,710 74,390 0 0 025 02:10PM 03/11/14 7
88-20-25-326-008 56,570 51,680 0 0 (56,570) (51,680) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 36
88-20-27-101-060 9,979,330 9,979,330 6,345,720 6,345,720 (3,633,610) (3,633,610) C013 01:00PM 03/25/14 20
88-20-27 108,790 82,390 0 0 (108,790) (82,390) PE14 02:00PM 03/25/14 25
88-20-29-226-003 421,780 421,780 375,000 375,000 (46,780) (46,780) C014 01:00PM 03/25/14 20
88-20-29-357-001 40,990 32,180 0 0 (40,990) (32,180) V001 03:30PM 03/25/14 37
88-20-30-126-082 75,160 65,020 73,020 65,020 (2,140) 0 041 08:20PM 03/11/14 11
88-20-30-278-017 79,410 59,900 79,410 59,900 0 0 001 01:00PM 03/04/14 1
88-20-31-228-042 91,030 70,820 91,030 70,820 0 0 C015 01:00PM 03/25/14 20
88-20-34-177-044 322,850 322,850 165,000 165,000 (157,850) (157,850) C016 01:00PM 03/25/14 21
88-20-34-178-019 198,300 198,300 147,000 147,000 (51,300) (51,300) C017 01:00PM 03/25/14 21
88-20-35-226-099 427,690 427,690 0 0 (427,690) (427,690) C005 01:00PM 03/25/14 18
88-20-36-227-023 54,240 45,550 50,000 45,550 (4,240) 0 033 06:20PM 03/11/14 9
88-20-36-326-036 457,150 457,150 0 0 (457,150) (457,150) C006 01:00PM 03/25/14 18
88-20-36-426-093 257,170 257,170 192,500 192,500 (64,670) (64,670) C018 01:00PM 03/25/14 21
88-99-00-003-000 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88 99 00 022 316 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 2888-99-00-022-316 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-025-072 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-030-278 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-030-285 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-034-020 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-035-104 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-035-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-035-248 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-035-358 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-035-887 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-036-730 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-036-969 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-037-643 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-037-671 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-039-019 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-039-714 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-040-551 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-047-031 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-047-147 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-050-281 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-050-436 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-051-992 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-052-033 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-052-036 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-053-004 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-053-637 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-056-810 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-058-040 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-058-130 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-059-510 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 3 of 7



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-99-00-060-424 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-060-999 45,420 45,420 0 0 (45,420) (45,420) C007 01:00PM 03/25/14 18
88-99-00-061-108 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-061-322 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-065-528 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-066-647 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-188-520 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-188-720 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-188-740 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-189-340 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-203-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-204-400 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-204-720 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-209-980 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-211-640 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-215-420 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-219-020 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-221-820 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 28
88-99-00-227-100 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-234-480 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-235-040 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-235-620 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-238-440 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-240-040 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-242-340 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88 99 00 243 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 2988-99-00-243-100 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-244-580 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-248-980 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-251-920 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-257-820 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-258-660 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-261-380 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-262-520 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-268-400 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-269-660 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-273-180 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-279-580 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-280-500 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-280-720 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-282-220 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-286-160 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-286-840 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-292-300 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-293-140 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-304-700 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-305-460 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-310-380 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-311-120 19,650 19,650 19,650 19,650 0 0 C019 01:00PM 03/25/14 21
88-99-00-317-700 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-320-100 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-324-460 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-332-360 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-332-420 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-332-700 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-333-160 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 4 of 7



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-99-00-333-740 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-333-980 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-335-960 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-336-480 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-339-700 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-339-800 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-341-800 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-342-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-344-680 114,440 114,440 114,440 114,440 0 0 C021 01:00PM 03/25/14 22
88-99-00-346-460 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-347-020 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-347-300 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-347-640 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 29
88-99-00-347-880 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-351-160 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-352-820 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-354-220 349,300 349,300 349,300 349,300 0 0 C021 01:00PM 03/25/14 22
88-99-00-355-880 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-359-720 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-360-320 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-361-640 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-362-360 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-362-640 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-364-100 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-364-440 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88 99 00 365 120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 3088-99-00-365-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-365-680 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-368-780 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-369-460 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-371-900 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-372-060 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-372-160 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-372-540 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-374-860 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-375-220 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-376-820 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-377-010 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-377-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-380-400 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-380-800 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-381-900 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-382-260 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-382-860 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-383-420 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-385-040 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-385-680 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-386-240 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-387-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-388-560 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-388-600 22,510 22,510 22,510 22,510 0 0 C020 01:00PM 03/25/14 21
88-99-00-391-420 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-391-440 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-391-520 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-391-920 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-392-020 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 5 of 7



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-99-00-392-520 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-392-700 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-393-060 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-393-080 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-393-140 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-393-860 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-394-220 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-394-280 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 30
88-99-00-394-310 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-394-360 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-394-490 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-394-540 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-394-920 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-395-050 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-395-310 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-395-490 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-396-040 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-396-190 134,800 134,800 134,800 134,800 0 0 C021 01:00PM 03/25/14 22
88-99-00-396-260 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-396-520 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-180 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-210 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-470 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-570 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-610 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88 99 00 397 790 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 3188-99-00-397-790 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-800 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-397-840 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-398-160 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-398-390 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-398-620 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-398-650 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-398-660 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-398-860 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-399-040 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-399-490 0 0 0 0 0 0 C006 01:00PM 03/25/14 18
88-99-00-399-530 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-399-660 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-399-690 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-399-950 0 0 0 0 0 0 C005 01:00PM 03/25/14 18
88-99-00-400-060 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-400-150 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-400-550 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-400-630 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-400-780 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-400-820 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-400-830 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-401-010 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-401-320 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-401-410 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-401-420 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-401-870 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-402-020 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-402-270 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-402-360 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 6 of 7



Parcel ID 2014 A/V 2014 T/V BoR A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Petition # Time Date Page

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2014 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-99-00-402-430 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-402-580 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-402-930 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-403-060 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 31
88-99-00-403-310 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-403-340 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-403-940 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-020 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-150 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-510 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-540 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-590 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-620 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-404-640 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-500-390 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-500-680 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-500-820 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-500-870 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-501-080 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-501-120 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-705-570 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-726-770 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-727-590 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-735-610 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-740-230 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88 99 00 747 750 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 3288-99-00-747-750 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-749-390 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-749-810 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-750-390 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-750-550 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-750-750 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-751-550 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-751-570 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-752-290 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-752-370 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-752-850 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-753-050 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-753-190 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-753-200 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-753-220 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-753-700 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-753-740 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-754-300 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-754-310 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-754-330 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-754-410 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-754-420 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-754-440 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32
88-99-00-757-050 0 0 0 0 0 0 PP01 03:00PM 03/25/14 32

 2014 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 7 of 7



stewartc
Text Box
O-02b









stewartc
Text Box
O-02c





From: Mitchell E Grusnick
To: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: FW: Need Advice on Troy Residence
Date: Monday, April 28, 2014 2:23:44 PM

 

From: Barbara S. Milbauer [mailto:barbara.milbauer@udmercy.edu] 
Sent: Monday, April 07, 2014 1:29 PM
To: Mitchell E Grusnick
Subject: RE: Need Advice on Troy Residence
 
Mitch,
 
You are a miracle-worker!! I received your email and then in a moment received a call from
Consumers Energy. I spoke to a very helpful representative who told me exactly what was going to
happen and it looks like it will be attended to soon.
 
I am so grateful to you and your contacts in the City of Troy. If I can help you in any way, please let
me know.
 
Barbara S. Milbauer
Vice President for University Advancement
University of Detroit Mercy
313-815-9910 cell
313-938-0662 personal cell
 

From: Mitchell E Grusnick [mailto:GrusnickME@troymi.gov] 
Sent: Monday, April 07, 2014 1:16 PM
To: Barbara S. Milbauer
Subject: RE: Need Advice on Troy Residence
 
Barbara,
 
Our Engineering Department works with Consumers Energy when planning and developing land in
Troy. I explained your issue to Antonio Cicchetti, City of Troy Civil Engineer. Antonio sent the
attached inquiry to Consumers representatives who he thinks may be able to assist.
I will forward you the response when we receive the reply.
Hope this helps!
 

From: Barbara S. Milbauer [mailto:barbara.milbauer@udmercy.edu] 
Sent: Monday, April 07, 2014 8:56 AM
To: Mitchell E Grusnick
Subject: RE: Need Advice on Troy Residence
 
Thank you, Mitch.  Thanks for checking it out. Does this “safety issue” come under your department
in Troy? I was planning on visiting City Hall to ask questions nut I’m not sure want department to go
to. Do you think it is safe for me to go away for a week?
 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=GRUSNICKME
mailto:CzarneckiK@troymi.gov
mailto:barbara.milbauer@udmercy.edu
mailto:GrusnickME@troymi.gov
mailto:barbara.milbauer@udmercy.edu
stewartc
Text Box
O-03a



Have a good day!
 
Barbara S. Milbauer
Vice President for University Advancement
University of Detroit Mercy
313-815-9910 cell
313-938-0662 personal cell
 

From: Mitchell E Grusnick [mailto:GrusnickME@troymi.gov] 
Sent: Monday, April 07, 2014 8:27 AM
To: Barbara S. Milbauer
Subject: RE: Need Advice on Troy Residence
 
Hi Barbara,
 
Sorry to hear this. I will stop by today to see the condition. I have no contacts at Consumers Energy,
but if I see an unsafe condition I will be happy to make a few calls to CE.
 

From: Barbara S. Milbauer [mailto:barbara.milbauer@udmercy.edu] 
Sent: Friday, April 04, 2014 9:39 AM
To: Mitchell E Grusnick
Subject: Need Advice on Troy Residence
 
Good morning, Mitch,
 
Last Fall, you were helpful (and kind) in guiding me to a temporary solution to a visibility problem at
the intersection of Beach Road and Fox Chase.  I am looking forward to landscaping the area
permanently as soon as I can but I have a problem, beyond the delayed Spring, and am asking for
your advice and direction on a serious safety problem.
 
Like many residents, I have had more home problems than usual this past winter. These problems
included a natural gas leak on March 7. It was determined that the leak was under the driveway to
the garage. The crews re-routed the gas line from a front yard hole around the other side of the
house to the rear entry into the basement. This gas line (looks like a big extension cord) remains
exposed.  I was told at the time it will be buried in a few weeks. It is now a month.  I was also told it
is safe unless someone cuts the line.  
 
I have tried various means to have Consumers Energy tell me when it will be buried.  I am told
someone will call but they never do.
 
Mitch, I am nervous about this and I am sure my neighbors are nervous too.  Can the City of Troy
help in getting this resolved? Who should I contact in City Hall?  I continue to live in the house but I
do worry about safety. Even if I knew when completion of this job is scheduled, it would make be
feel better.  
 
Your advice and direction would be appreciated.   Please use my cell if you are calling. Thank you.
 

mailto:GrusnickME@troymi.gov
mailto:barbara.milbauer@udmercy.edu


P.S. I thought of you when snow removal piled 6 feet of snow on the Beach-Fox Chase NW corner. 
Our efforts to clear the view lasted just a short time before the snow came….but it’s better now.
 
Barbara S. Milbauer
5544 Hunters Gate Drive
Troy, MI 48098
313-938-0662 cell
248-641-1780 home



stewartc
Text Box
O-03b



stewartc
Text Box
O-03c



1

Beth L Tashnick

Subject: FW: Ace that Job Interview

From: Susan Hicks  
Sent: Friday, April 25, 2014 10:11 PM 
To: Cathleen A Russ 
Subject: Ace that Job Interview 
 
Hi Cathleen,  
  
My name is Susan Hicks and I just watched your talk about interviews.  It was wonderful.  Not only did I learn 
a lot you were very funny.  Your talk was very enjoyable and so much great information was given on every 
aspect of the entire interview.   
  
I'm currently looking for a job and this comes right in time for me and I will be using all the advise and tips that 
you  
gave.  Thank you for taking the time to help our community find work.  You're great at what you do and I can 
see why you're the director of the library.  I learned so much from this.   
  
Thank you,  
  
Susan 
  
  

stewartc
Text Box
O-03d



stewartc
Text Box
O-03e



 

 
1001 Woodward Ave., Suite 1400 • Detroit, MI 48226 • (313) 961-4266 • infocenter@semcog.org • www.semcog.org 

 

 
April 2014 

 

Residential Construction in Southeast Michigan, 2013 
 
 The seven-county Southeast Michigan region ended 2013 with a total of 7,586 new residential units 

authorized — a 34 percent increase over 2012.  

 All counties experienced positive growth in residential construction, with Livingston County leading with an 
88 percent increase over 2012 levels. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Oakland County permitted the most residential units with 2,693, followed by Macomb County with 1,860. 

 Single-family homes accounted for 75 percent (74 percent in 2012) of total permits issued for the year.  

 Median reported construction value for single-family homes was $223,806 — an increase of 12 percent from 
2012.  

 Total reported construction value for all residential units combined was $1.3 billion. 
 

 

Total Units Authorized by County, 2012-2013

County 2012 2013 Change Percent Change

Livingston 369 695 326 88%

Macomb 1,342 1,860 518 39%

Monroe 131 213 82 63%

Oakland 1,957 2,693 736 38%

St. Clair 60 75 15 25%

Washtenaw 701 875 174 25%

Wayne 1,098 1,175 77 7%

SEMCOG Region 5,658 7,586 1,928 34%

County Single-Family Condominium Apartments Total New Demolitions Net Units

Livingston 626 22 47 695 6 689

Macomb 1,342 253 265 1,860 141 1,719

Monroe 213 0 0 213 51 162

Oakland 2,214 120 359 2,693 453 2,240

St. Clair 75 0 0 75 88 -13

Washtenaw 461 80 334 875 188 687

Wayne 785 234 156 1,175 1,888 -713

     Detroit 32 154 128 314 1,606 -1,292

     Out-Wayne 753 80 28 861 282 579

SEMCOG Region 5,716 709 1,161 7,586 2,815 4,771

Residential Building Permits by County and Type, 2013

stewartc
Text Box
O-05



 
1001 Woodward Ave., Suite 1400 • Detroit, MI 48226 • (313) 961-4266 • infocenter@semcog.org • www.semcog.org 

 

 The region has had four consecutive years of gains in residential construction since hitting bottom in 2009. 
Net units returned to the positive in 2011. 

 A total of 2,815 demolition permits were issued in 2013, resulting in a net gain of 4,771 units in the region. 
The City of Detroit registered 57 percent of total demolitions for the region. 

 

 Macomb Township was the top community in the region for both total units permitted (595) and single-
family homes (585). 

 The top 10 communities comprised 42 percent of total permits for 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Units Permitted Single-Family Permits

Community County Total Community County Total

Macomb Twp Macomb 595 Macomb Twp Macomb 585

Clinton Twp Macomb 350 Lyon Twp Oakland 290

Shelby Twp Macomb 330 Canton Twp Wayne 258

Detroit Wayne 314 Novi Oakland 213

Canton Twp Wayne 302 Oakland Twp Oakland 207

Lyon Twp Oakland 292 Shelby Twp Macomb 186

Pittsfield Twp Washtenaw 288 Commerce Twp Oakland 157

Commerce Twp Oakland 239 Washington Twp Macomb 153

Ann Arbor Washtenaw 231 Independence Twp Oakland 151

Novi Oakland 213 Troy Oakland 150

2013 Top 10 Communities

3,407

4,733

5,658

7,586

-3,612
-3,318

-3,520

-2,815

-205
1,415

2,138

4,771

-6,000

-4,000

-2,000

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

2010 2011 2012 2013

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
e

rm
it

s 
Is

su
e

d

Total Residential Permits Issued, 2010-2013

New Units Demolitions Net Units



 
1001 Woodward Ave., Suite 1400 • Detroit, MI 48226 • (313) 961-4266 • infocenter@semcog.org • www.semcog.org 

 

ST. CLAIR

M
A

R
Y

S
V

IL
L
E

MANCHESTER

LIVINGSTON

BRIDGEWATER

FREEDOM

OCEOLA

O
A

K
L

A
N

D

LONDON

AUGUSTA

MILFORD

Milford

Maybee

W
A

S
H

T
E

N
A

W

NORTHVILLE

WESTLAND

WALLED LAKE

CLARKSTON

Ortonville

MONROE

WAYNE

LATHRUP

VILLAGE

PONTIAC

OXFORD

G
IB

R
A

L
T
A

R

RIVERVIEW

EASTPOINTE

Romeo

S
T
. 

C
L

A
IR

GROSSE POINTE

WOODS

R
O

S
E

V
IL

LE

ARMADA

MACOMB

CHESTERFIELD

LENOX

COLUMBUS

CHELSEA

LIMA

MARION

LIVINGSTON

M
O

N
R

O
E

WHITEFORD

SUMMERFIELD

YORK

WASHTENAW

YPSILANTI

RAISINVILLE

NOVI

OAKLAND

ASH

HURON

BERLIN

BROWNSTOWN

AUBURN

HILLS

BROWNSTOWN

B
R

O
W

N
S

T
O

W
N

MELVINDALE

FERNDALE

OAKLAND

RIVER

ROUGE

MACOMB
M

A
C

O
M

B

GROSSE POINTE

PARK

GROSSE POINTE

FARMS

CLINTON

Armada

New Haven

COTTRELLVILLE

J
A

C
K

S
O

N

SYLVAN

GENOA

DEERFIELD

GENESEE

NORTHFIELD

BRIGHTON

ANN ARBOR

WASHTENAW

L
IV

IN
G

S
T

O
N

OAKLAND

IDA

YPSILANTI

HIGHLAND

ROSE

W
A

Y
N

E

PLYMOUTH

WHITE LAKE

LASALLE

MONROE

FARMINGTON

HILLS

FARMINGTON

ORCHARD LAKE

VILLAGE

LAKE ANGELUS

South

Rockwood

WOODHAVEN

Oxford

TROY

WAYNE

UTICA

ST. CLAIR

Capac

MUSSEY

EMMETT

Emmett

SHARON

LYNDON

IN
G

H
A

M

L
IV

IN
G

S
T

O
N

CONWAY

Fowlerville

LENAWEE

Pinckney

HOWELL

HOWELL

SCIO

ANN

ARBOR

PITTSFIELD

SALEM

Holly

ERIE

PLYMOUTH

W
IX

O
M

COMMERCE

LUNA PIER

INDEPENDENCE

ROMULUS

LIVONIA

Estral Beach

ROCKWOOD

SOUTHGATE

TAYLOR

DEARBORN

HEIGHTS

Lake Orion

LINCOLN

PARK

ADDISON

O
A

K
L

A
N

D

MACOMB

CENTER

LINE

FRASER

NEW BALTIMORE

CLYDE

GRANT

FORT

GRATIOT

W
A

S
H

T
E

N
A

W

Manchester

COHOCTAH

SHIAWASSEE

LIVINGSTON

PETERSBURG

MONROE

OAKLAND

LYON

SUMPTER

VAN BUREN

CANTON

Wolverine

Lake

GROVELAND

WATERFORD

FRENCHTOWN

Carleton

WAYNE

Franklin

SYLVAN LAKE
R

E
D

F
O

R
D

Bingham

Farms

BLOOMFIELD

BLOOMFIELD

HILLS

ROYAL OAK

OAK PARK

HUNTINGTON

WOODS

ROCHESTER

HILLS

PLEASANT

RIDGE

HAMTRAMCK

L
A

P
E

E
R

S
T
. 

C
L

A
IR

S
H

O
R

E
S

BERLIN

BROCKWAY

KENOCKEE

MARINE CITY

B
U

R
T

C
H

V
IL

L
E

WASHTENAW

SALINE

HAMBURG

Barton Hills

HARTLAND

TYRONE

Dundee

EXETER

BRANDON

MONROE

OAKLAND

FLAT

ROCK

Beverly Hills

ORION

W
Y

A
N

D
O

T
T

E

ALLEN

PARK

Leonard

H
A

Z
E

L

P
A

R
K

BRUCE

GROSSE POINTE

RICHMOND

SANILAC

WALES

UNADILLA

DEXTER

PUTNAM

LODI

WEBSTER

L
E

N
A

W
E

E

SALINE

GREEN OAK

DUNDEE

MILAN

MILAN

GENESEE

SOUTH LYON

WEST BLOOMFIELD

WAYNE

SOUTHFIELD

T
R

E
N

T
O

N

BERKLEY

CLAWSON

ROCHESTER

HIGHLAND

PARK

M
A

D
IS

O
N

H
E

IG
H

T
S

WARREN

MACOMB

RAY

GROSSE POINTE

SHORES

HARRISON

RICHMOND

RILEY

M
A

C
O

M
B

MEMPHIS

IRA

PORT

HURON

P
O

R
T

 H
U

R
O

N

CHINA

ST. CLAIR

E
A

S
T

 C
H

IN
A

KIMBALL

IOSCO

HANDY

WASHTENAW

Dexter

BRIGHTON

LUCAS (Michigan/Ohio State Line)
MONROE

BEDFORD

SUPERIOR

HOLLY

BELLEVILLE

NORTHVILLE

SPRINGFIELD

GARDEN

CITY

INKSTER

KEEGO

HARBOR

DEARBORN

BIRMINGHAM

LAPEER

G
R

O
S

S
E

 I
L
E

ECORSE

ROYAL

OAK

DETROIT

WASHINGTON

LAPEER

STERLING

HEIGHTS

SHELBY

HARPER

WOODS

MOUNT

CLEMENS

LYNN

YALE

S
T
. 

C
L

A
IR

GREENWOOD

ST. CLAIR

CASCO

ALGONAC

CLAY

None

1 to 9

10 to 24

25 to 99

Over 100

Total Units Permitted

Total Residential Units Permitted by Community, 2013 

Southeast Michigan 



 
1001 Woodward Ave., Suite 1400 • Detroit, MI 48226 • (313) 961-4266 • infocenter@semcog.org • www.semcog.org 

 

Background 
SEMCOG, the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments, collects on a monthly basis the number of residential 
building permits issued by each of the 233 communities in the Southeast Michigan region for new single-family 
homes, condominiums and apartment buildings/units, and the number of demolitions for the same. Staff of 
community and county building departments and building authorities has provided this data to us for more than 
40 years.  
 
Building permit data are available on the SEMCOG website, searchable by year and community, back to 1969.  
http://www.semcog.org/Data/Apps/permits.cfm 
 
Residential building permit data are an effective measure of community growth — both demographic and 
economic. It is assumed when a permit is authorized, the home/condominium/apartment will be built and 
occupied. Construction of a unit is usually completed within six to nine months. The terms issued, authorized, or 
permitted all refer to the local government or authority allowing legal construction of a dwelling unit.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

http://www.semcog.org/Data/Apps/permits.cfm

	MAY 12, 2014 AGENDA
	COVER MEMO
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS
	TOP 12 STRATEGIES
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:  Fr. Maximus Habib From St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Judge Kirsten Hartig to Present Information on the Upcoming Prescription Heroin Addiction Program on May 14, 2014 (Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director)
	C-2 Real Estate Forum Summary (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development)
	C-3 Economic Development Update (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Adoption of the 2014-15 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, Planning Commission; b) City Council Nominations –Historic District Commission
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Troy Family Daze (Introduced by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets and Drains)
	I-5 Oakland County One Stop Ready Communities (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist)
	I-6 Approval of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist)
	I-7 Approval of the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist)
	I-8 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget (Introduced by:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development)
	I-9 2013/14 Budget Amendment No. 3 – Year-End Budget Adjustments (Introduced by:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services)
	I-10 Request for Amendment to the Oakland County Solid Waste Plan – Rizzo Environmental Services (Introduced by:  Tim Richnak, Department of Public Works Director)
	I-11 Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions - City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – April 14, 2014
	b) City Council Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft – April 21, 2014
	c) City Council Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft – April 23, 2014

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Parking Lot Maintenance Program – Boulan Park
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – New Emergency Response Kits for the Police Department
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 -  Michigan Municipal League
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fire Station Brick Repair

	J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Faith Lutheran Church – Project No. 13.915.3
	J-6 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Fast-D Hoops, Inc.
	J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund
	J-8 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – April 16, 2014
	J-9 Amendment #3 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment for Engineering Services for Segment No. 1 – John R, Long Lake to Square Lake – Project No. 02.203.5
	J-10 Amendment #3 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment for Engineering Services for Segment No. 2 – John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5
	J-11 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts
	J-12 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominiums – Project No. 13.919.3

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted
	a) Film and Video Ordinance Amendment (Introduced by:  Brenda Carter, Interim Assistant to the City Manager)


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – February 18, 2014
	b) Traffic Committee-Final – March 19, 2014
	c) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – March 25, 2014
	d) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – March 25, 2014
	e) Planning Commission-Draft – April 8, 2014
	f) Planning Commission-Final – April 8, 2014

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) 2014 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report
	b) 2014 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service
	c) Building Department Activity Report – April, 2014

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Mitch Grusnick From Barbara Milbauer Regarding Assistance with a Utility Issue
	b) To Chief Nelson From Philip and Shirley Grocki Regarding Fire Station 3 Tour
	c) To Chief Mayer From Chief Corrigan O’Donohue – Royal Oak Police Department Regarding Assistance with a Case
	d) To Library Director Cathleen Russ From Susan Hicks Regarding Ace That Job Interview Program
	e) To Chief Mayer From Philip and Shirley Grocki Regarding Winter 2014 Troy Citizens Police Academy and Troy Police Department Tour

	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	O-5 SEMCOG Report – Residential Construction in Southeast Michigan, 2013

	P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	Q. STUDY ITEMS:
	Q-1 No Study Items

	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	Attachments.pdf
	20140512 Agenda - C-02  Executive Summary of the Real Estate Forum.pdf
	20140512 Agenda - C-03  Economic Development Activity Report 
	20140512 Agenda - E-01  Adoption of the 2014-15 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget
	20140512 Agenda - I-04  Troy Family Daze
	20140512 Agenda - I-05  Oakland County One Stop Ready Communities
	20140512 Agenda - I-06  Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Proposed FY 2014-15 Budget
	05.12.14 - 04.15.14 Draft BRA Minutes.pdf
	OLD BUSINESS


	20140512 Agenda - I-07  Approval of the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed 2014-15 Budget
	05.12.14 - Approval of LDFA 2014-15 Budget att.pdf
	OLD BUSINESS


	20140512 Agenda - I-08  Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget
	20140512 Agenda - I-09  2013-14 Budget Amendment No 3 - Year-End Budget Adjustments
	20140512 Agenda - I-10  Request for Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Management Plan  Rizzo Environmental Services
	Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Plan Rizzo Environmental Services
	full CVT packet
	Rizzo Letter, Letters of Support, Draft Resolution
	Rizzo Letter, Letters of Support, Draft Resolution
	Pietila Letter.pdf
	Gingell Letter 4-22-14
	Hoffman Letter 04172014
	CVT resolution for amendment (2)


	20140512 Agenda - I-11  Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions - City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations
	20140512 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - April 14, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - J-02b  Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft - April 21, 2014
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20140512 Agenda - J-02c  Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft - April 23, 2014
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT: No Public Comment was offered.
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20140512 Agenda - J-04a  SPR2 Low Bidder Meeting Specs - Parking Lot Maintenance Program - Boulan Park
	ITB-COT 14-13 ParkingLotMntnceProgram_BoulanPK_Bid Tab.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet2
	Sheet3
	Sheet4


	20140512 Agenda - J-04b  SPR1  Low Bidder Meeting Specs - New Emergency Response Kits - Police Department
	ITB-COT 14-11 EmergencyResponseKits BidTab.pdf
	Sheet2


	20140512 Agenda - J-04c  SPR9  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 - Michigan Municipal League 
	20140512 Agenda - J-04d  SPR2 Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Fire Station Brick Repair
	ITB-COT 14-02 Brick Repair_FD Bid Tab.pdf
	Sheet1


	20140512 Agenda - J-05  Private Agreement - Faith Lutheran Church - Project No13 915 3
	20140512 Agenda - J-06  Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Fast-D Hoops Inc
	Gaming License Request-14.04.22 Fast-D Hoops
	20140422162244599.pdf

	20140512 Agenda - J-07  Authorization to Request Reimbursement - Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund
	20140512 Agenda - J-08  Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes - April 16, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - J-09  Amendment #3 Preliminary Engineering Agreement with OHM for Segment No 1 - John R, Long Lake to Square Lake - Project No 02 203 5
	20140512 Agenda - J-10  Amendment #3 Preliminary Engineering Agreement with OHM for Segment No 2 - John R, Square Lake to South Blvd - Project No 02 204 5
	20140512 Agenda - J-11  Assessment of Delinquent Accounts
	20140512 Agenda - J-12  Private Agreement Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements - Cedar Pines Woods Site Condos - Project No 13 919 3
	20140512 Agenda - K-02a  Adoption of Film and Video Ordinance
	05.12.14 - AFVO-2 - Chapter 61A - Film Production Permit.pdf
	Section 3. Repeal
	Section 4. Savings


	05.12.14 - AFVO-4 - Chapter 60 - Section 60 03 Fee Schedule- Film Production Ordinance.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
	CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE

	ITEM/SERVICE:

	05.12.14 - AFVO-7 - Film Permit Application and Instructions.pdf
	STEP I. APPLICANT:
	Submit the completed Film Permit Application (TYPED OR PRINTED) to the City Clerk’s Office with the following:
	Plans as required by City Code 61A.7 - Plans
	Insurance certificate
	Hold harmless agreement
	*Signed affidavit of permission from private property owner
	*Cash bond and cost deposit
	Check payable to City of Troy for $100
	STEP II. APPLICANT/CITY CLERK’S OFFICE:
	Review accuracy of completed application
	Process application fee; give receipt to applicant
	Print second copy of receipt; paperclip to application
	STEP III. CITY CLERK’S OFFICE:
	Route application packet electronically for approval/denial
	Print license; provide to contact listed on application
	* If applicable
	INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILM PERMIT APPLICATION
	City of Troy
	City Clerk’s Office
	500 W. Big Beaver
	Troy, Michigan  48084
	APPLICATION FOR FILM PERMIT

	05.12.14 - AFVO-9 - Hold Harmless Requirements.pdf
	INSURANCE AND HOLD HARMLESS REQUIRMENTS FOR FILM PERMIT


	20140512 Agenda - O-01a  Zoning Board of Appeals-Final - February 18, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01b  Traffic Committee-Final - March 19, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01c  Planning Commission Special Study-Draft - March 25, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01d  Planning Commission Special Study-Final - March 25, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01e  Planning Commission-Draft - April 8, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01f  Planning Commission-Final - April 8, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-02a  2014 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report
	20140512 Agenda - O-02b  2014 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report
	20140512 Agenda - O-02c  Building Department Activity Report - April, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-03a  LoA to Mitch Grusnick from Barbara Milbauer re a Utility Issue
	20140512 Agenda - O-03b  LoA to Chief Nelson From Philip and Shirley Grocki RE Fire Station 3 Tour
	20140512 Agenda - O-03c  LoA to Chief Mayer from Chief Corrigan O'Donohue - Royal Oak PD re Assistance with a Case
	20140512 Agenda - O-03d  LoA to Library Director Cathleen Russ From Susan Hicks Regarding Ace That Job Interview Program
	20140512 Agenda - O-03e  LoA to Chief Mayer From Philip & Shirley Grocki Regarding Winter 2014 Troy Citizens Police Academy and PD Tour
	20140512 Agenda - O-05  SEMCOG Report - Residential Construction in Southeast Michigan 2013

	Attachments.pdf
	20140512 Agenda - C-02  Executive Summary of the Real Estate Forum.pdf
	20140512 Agenda - C-03  Economic Development Activity Report 
	20140512 Agenda - E-01  Adoption of the 2014-15 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget
	20140512 Agenda - I-04  Troy Family Daze
	20140512 Agenda - I-05  Oakland County One Stop Ready Communities
	20140512 Agenda - I-06  Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Proposed FY 2014-15 Budget
	05.12.14 - 04.15.14 Draft BRA Minutes.pdf
	OLD BUSINESS


	20140512 Agenda - I-07  Approval of the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed 2014-15 Budget
	05.12.14 - Approval of LDFA 2014-15 Budget att.pdf
	OLD BUSINESS


	20140512 Agenda - I-08  Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget
	20140512 Agenda - I-09  2013-14 Budget Amendment No 3 - Year-End Budget Adjustments
	20140512 Agenda - I-10  Request for Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Management Plan  Rizzo Environmental Services
	Amendment to Oakland County Solid Waste Plan Rizzo Environmental Services
	full CVT packet
	Rizzo Letter, Letters of Support, Draft Resolution
	Rizzo Letter, Letters of Support, Draft Resolution
	Pietila Letter.pdf
	Gingell Letter 4-22-14
	Hoffman Letter 04172014
	CVT resolution for amendment (2)


	20140512 Agenda - I-11  Request to Set Dates for Closed Sessions - City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations
	20140512 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - April 14, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - J-02b  Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft - April 21, 2014
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20140512 Agenda - J-02c  Special Budget Study Session Minutes-Draft - April 23, 2014
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT: No Public Comment was offered.
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20140512 Agenda - J-04a  SPR2 Low Bidder Meeting Specs - Parking Lot Maintenance Program - Boulan Park
	ITB-COT 14-13 ParkingLotMntnceProgram_BoulanPK_Bid Tab.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet2
	Sheet3
	Sheet4


	20140512 Agenda - J-04b  SPR1  Low Bidder Meeting Specs - New Emergency Response Kits - Police Department
	ITB-COT 14-11 EmergencyResponseKits BidTab.pdf
	Sheet2


	20140512 Agenda - J-04c  SPR9  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 - Michigan Municipal League 
	20140512 Agenda - J-04d  SPR2 Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Fire Station Brick Repair
	ITB-COT 14-02 Brick Repair_FD Bid Tab.pdf
	Sheet1


	20140512 Agenda - J-05  Private Agreement - Faith Lutheran Church - Project No13 915 3
	20140512 Agenda - J-06  Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Fast-D Hoops Inc
	Gaming License Request-14.04.22 Fast-D Hoops
	20140422162244599.pdf

	20140512 Agenda - J-07  Authorization to Request Reimbursement - Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund
	20140512 Agenda - J-08  Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes - April 16, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - J-09  Amendment #3 Preliminary Engineering Agreement with OHM for Segment No 1 - John R, Long Lake to Square Lake - Project No 02 203 5
	20140512 Agenda - J-10  Amendment #3 Preliminary Engineering Agreement with OHM for Segment No 2 - John R, Square Lake to South Blvd - Project No 02 204 5
	20140512 Agenda - J-11  Assessment of Delinquent Accounts
	20140512 Agenda - J-12  Private Agreement Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements - Cedar Pines Woods Site Condos - Project No 13 919 3
	20140512 Agenda - K-02a  Adoption of Film and Video Ordinance
	05.12.14 - AFVO-2 - Chapter 61A - Film Production Permit.pdf
	Section 3. Repeal
	Section 4. Savings


	05.12.14 - AFVO-4 - Chapter 60 - Section 60 03 Fee Schedule- Film Production Ordinance.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
	CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE

	ITEM/SERVICE:

	05.12.14 - AFVO-7 - Film Permit Application and Instructions.pdf
	STEP I. APPLICANT:
	Submit the completed Film Permit Application (TYPED OR PRINTED) to the City Clerk’s Office with the following:
	Plans as required by City Code 61A.7 - Plans
	Insurance certificate
	Hold harmless agreement
	*Signed affidavit of permission from private property owner
	*Cash bond and cost deposit
	Check payable to City of Troy for $100
	STEP II. APPLICANT/CITY CLERK’S OFFICE:
	Review accuracy of completed application
	Process application fee; give receipt to applicant
	Print second copy of receipt; paperclip to application
	STEP III. CITY CLERK’S OFFICE:
	Route application packet electronically for approval/denial
	Print license; provide to contact listed on application
	* If applicable
	INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILM PERMIT APPLICATION
	City of Troy
	City Clerk’s Office
	500 W. Big Beaver
	Troy, Michigan  48084
	APPLICATION FOR FILM PERMIT

	05.12.14 - AFVO-9 - Hold Harmless Requirements.pdf
	INSURANCE AND HOLD HARMLESS REQUIRMENTS FOR FILM PERMIT


	20140512 Agenda - O-01a  Zoning Board of Appeals-Final - February 18, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01b  Traffic Committee-Final - March 19, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01c  Planning Commission Special Study-Draft - March 25, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01d  Planning Commission Special Study-Final - March 25, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01e  Planning Commission-Draft - April 8, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-01f  Planning Commission-Final - April 8, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-02a  2014 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report
	20140512 Agenda - O-02b  2014 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report
	20140512 Agenda - O-02c  Building Department Activity Report - April, 2014
	20140512 Agenda - O-03a  LoA to Mitch Grusnick from Barbara Milbauer re a Utility Issue
	20140512 Agenda - O-03b  LoA to Chief Nelson From Philip and Shirley Grocki RE Fire Station 3 Tour
	20140512 Agenda - O-03c  LoA to Chief Mayer from Chief Corrigan O'Donohue - Royal Oak PD re Assistance with a Case
	20140512 Agenda - O-03d  LoA to Library Director Cathleen Russ From Susan Hicks Regarding Ace That Job Interview Program
	20140512 Agenda - O-03e  LoA to Chief Mayer From Philip & Shirley Grocki Regarding Winter 2014 Troy Citizens Police Academy and PD Tour
	20140512 Agenda - O-05  SEMCOG Report - Residential Construction in Southeast Michigan 2013




